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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT F.()Ri ',!,'}_IE: 
; !C: 

., '' :. 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK' · 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C . TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC. , 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

73C 1529 
CIVIL ACTION NO·----

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTION 
PURSUANT TO FAIR HOUSING 
ACT OF 1968, 42 U.S.C. 
3601, et seq. ___________________ ) 

The United States of America alleges: 

1. This is an action brought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 

3613 seeking to remedy violations of the Fair Housing Act, 

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601, 

2. This Court has jurisdiction of this action under 

28 u.s.c. 1345 and 42 U.S.C. 3613. 

3. Defendant Trump Management Inc., which is a New 

York corporation, doing business in the Eastern District of 

New York, manages and operates numerous apartment buildings, 

totalling at least 14,000 dwelling units in the New York area 

and elsewhere. Defendant Fred C. Trump is the principal 

stockholder and Chairman of the Board of Directors of Trump 

Management Inc. Defendant Donald Trump is president of Trump 

Management Inc. The defendants Fred C. Trump and Donald Trump 

transact business in New York and are responsible for the 

policies and practices of Trump Management Inc. 

J) 



4. The apartment buildings and complexes managed 

by Trump Management Inc. are dwellings within the meaning 

of 42 U.S.C. 3602(b). 

5. The defendants, through the actions of their 

agents and employees, have discriminated against persons 

because of race in the operation of their apartment build-

ings, among other ways, by: 

(a) Refusing to rent dwellings and negotiate 

for the rental of dwellings with persons because 

of race and color, in violation of Section 804(a) 

of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3604(a). 

(b) Requiring different terms and conditions 

with respect to the rental of dwellings because 

of race and color, in violation of Section 804(b) 

of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3604(b). 

(c) Making and causing to be made statements 

with respect to the rental of dwellings which 

indicate a preference, limitation and discrimi-

nation based on race and color in violation of 

Section 804(c) of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 

42 U.S.C. 3604(c). 

(d) Representing to persons because of race 

and color that dwellings are not available for 

inspection and rental when such dwellings are 

in fact so available, in violation of Section 

804(d) of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 

3604(d). 
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6. The defendants' conduct described in the pre-

ceding paragraph constitutes: 

(a) A pattern and practice of resistance 

by the defendants to the full enjoyment of 

rights secured by Title VIII of the Fair Housing 

Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et and 

(b) A denial to groups of persons of rights 

granted by Title VIII of the Fair Housing Act 

of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et denial 

raises an issue of general public importance. 

WHEREFORE the plaintiff prays that the Court enter 

an Order enjoining the defendants, their employees, agents, 

and successors and all those in active concert and partici-

pation with any of them, from: 

(a) Discriminating against any person on 

the basis of race, color, religion or national 

origin, with respect to any right secured by 

the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 

(b) Failing or refusing to take adequate 

affirmative steps to correct the effects of 

their past discriminatory policies and prac-

tices. Plaintiff further prays for such 
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additional relief as the interests of justice 

may require, together with the costs and dis-

bursements of this action. 

.-.1. .n •. ,, ,., 
ELLIOT L. RICHARDSON 
Attorney General 

. 
J _,._, .. ,.......v.......-·.(.6...·-w __ u , '/.f6:...G->)<J VL-/ 

ROBERT A. 
United States Attorney 

1 -{. 
FRANK E . SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 

i-;;1 /J 
.(jo-t; cl<-""-t. f·wr€_ 

ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 



SUMM0NS IN A CIVIL ACTION 
CIV.l (2-64) 

No. 45 Rev. (6·49)) 

i". 

lluiteil m istrtnlr: Clriturt . 
OCT291973 

FOR THE 
TF:.: P. 

.EAS_TERN .. D.IRTRLCT __ OF ___ NRt·LY.ORK. P.r.·. 

CIVIL ACTION FILE NO. _______________ _ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

7:3 1, / '\\ 2 taJ 

Plaintiff 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP INC., 

Defendants 

To the above named Defendant 

SUMMONS 

rn 
Cl .·l 

( '-,, 

You are hereby summoned and required to serve upon ROBERT A. HORSE, United 

States Attorney for the Eastern District of New York, 

plaintiff's attorney , whose address is 225 Cadman Plaza East, Brooklyn, New York, 

11201, 

an answer to the complaint which is herewith served upon you, within 20 days after service 

of this summons upon you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail to do so, judgement by default 

will be taken against you for the relief demanded in the complaint . 

)/!/y, 
Dare: October 15, 1973 

....Lruil. ·--::z:2 . -------------\ . "'· · - . . lerk of Court . 

Deputy Clerk. 

[Seal of Court] 

Note:-This summons is issued pursuant to Rule 4 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 



--·---
' INSTRUCTIONS: See "INSTRUCTIOi\3 FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS · u.s. MARSHALS SERt.r ICE BY THE U.S. MARSHAL" on the reverse of the last (No. 5) copy of this 

INSTRUCT fO N AND PROCESS RECORD fonn. Please type or print legibly, insuring readability of all copies. 
Do not detach any copies. 

PLAINTIFF ' COURT NUMBER 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 7'8 -c 
DEFENDANT TYPE OF WRIT 

FRED C. TRUMP, et _al Summons&Comnlaint 
SERVE NAME OF INDIVIDUAL, COMPANY, CORPORATION, ETC., TO SERVE OR DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO SEIZE OR CONDEMN ,_. 

AT 

FRED c. TRUMP 
ADDRESS (Street or RFD, Apartment No., City, Stote and ZIP Code) 

2 88 Ga f •leo c i '£1 
I 

600 Avenue z. Brooklvn 

Henry A. Brachtl, AUSA 
u. s. Courthouse 

na ' ,, eo c i ' 1' 
New York ' 

225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

lSf 

L __________________________________ _ 
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: 

Show amount of deposit (or appllcabli 
code) and sign USM-285 for first writ 
only if more than one writ submitted. 
I acknowledge receipt for the total number of 
writs indicated and for the deposit (if appli-
cable) shown. 

r. (s113-¥t/oo) i Show number of this writ and • I NO. : :TOTAL total number of writs submit-
ted, i.e., I of I, I of 3, etc. 1 10F1 3 

I CHECK IF APPUCABLE: 

I D One copy for U. S. Attorney or designee and 
1 two copies for Attorney General of the U. S. 

included. 

I SHOW IN THE SPACE BELOW AND TO THE LEFT 
I ANY SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS OR OTHER 
1 INFORMATION PERTINENT TO SERVING THE l WRIT DESCRIBED ABOVE. 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

596-3563 

LOCATION OF SUB·OFFICE OF DIST. TO SERVE 

/Cl ... /0' 

D I hereby certify and return that, after diligent investigation, I am unable to locate the individual, company, corporation, etc., 
named above within this Judicial District. 

NAME AND TITLE OF INDIVIDUAL SERVED (If not shown iibooe) 

ADDRESS (Complete onl•/if different than shown abooe) 

DATE(S) OF ENDEAVOR (Use Remarks if necessarrJ) 

REMARKS 

USM·285 (Ed. 7·1·70) 1. CLERK OF JHE COURT 

D A person of suitabfe age ana 
discretion then abiding in the 

defendant's usual place of abode. 
FEE (I/ applicable) I MILEAGE 

$.6JO $-



1 
U.S. MARSHALS 

....RVICE OF PROCESS 
BY THE U.S. MARSHAL" on the reverse of the last (No.5) copy of this 
form. Please type or print legibly, insuring readability of all copies. 
Do not detach any copies. INSTRUCT; .JN AND PROCESS RECORD 

PLAINTIFF 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
DEFENDANT 

& Complaint 
SERVE • AT !2Qn r;ac<ler• c;r1' J3laza, Gar,Je•• c;ry, 

SEND NOTICE OF SERVICE COPY TO NAME AND ADDRESS BELOW: ,------------------------------------
Henry A. Brachtl, AUSA 
U. s. Courthouse 

Show number of this writ and ...... 
total number of writs submit- .,.. 
ted, i.e., 1 of 1, 1 of 3, etc. 

I CHECK IF APPUCABLE: 
I D One copy for U. S. Attorney or designee and 
1 two copies for Attorney General of the U. S. 

included 

225 Cadman Plaza East I SHOW IN THE SPACE BELOW AND TO THE LEFT 
1 k 112 1 I ANY SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS OR OTHER Brook yn 1 NeW Yor Q I INFORMATION PERTINENT TO SERVING THE 

L- - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - I WRIT DESCRIBED ABOVE. 
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: 

Show amount of deposit (or appliCable 
code) and sign USM-285 for first writ 
onlv if more than one writ submitted -

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

596-3563 

LOCATION OF SUB-OFFICE OF DIST. TO SERVE 

3 

I aclmowledge receipt for the total ruilnber of 
writs indicated and for the deposit (If appU-
cable) shown. 

DATE 

/0-/0-._ 
d I hereby certify and return that I have personally served, have legal evidence of service, or have executed as shown in 

"REMARKS," the writ described on the individual, company, corporation, etc., at the address shown above or on the individual, 
company, corporation, etc., at the address inserted below. 

D I hereby certify and return that, after diligent investigation, I am unable to locate the ihdividual, company, corporation, etc., 
named above within this Judicial District. 

NAME AND TITLE OF INDIVIDUAL SERVED (If ni>t 8Mwn -alxifie) 

ADDRESS (Complete orllv tFilifferent than shown abooe) 

DATE(S) OF ENDEAVOR (Use Remarka If nece#a'l/) 

REMARKS 

USM·285 (Ed. 7·1·70) 1. CLERK OF THE COURT 

0 A person of suitable age and 
discretion then abiding in the 

defendant's usual place of abode. 
FEE (If appllcoble) I MILEAGE£:) ol 
$ $.oo 



I INSTRUCTIONS: See "INSTRUCTIONS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS u.s. MARSHALS SER'w•CE BY TilE U.S. MARSHAL" on the reverse of the last (No. 5) copy of this 
INSTRUCTfON AND PROCESS RECORD form. Please type or print legibly, insuring readability of all copies. 

Do not detach any copies. 
PLAINTIFF ' COURT NUMBER 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 7s -<3 -
DEFENDANT TYPE OF WRIT I 

FRED c. TRUMP, et al. Summons & Complaj 
SERVE NAME OF INDIVIDUAL. COMPANY. CORPORATION, ETC., TO SERVE DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO SEIZE OR CONDEMN • TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC 

ADDRESS (StTeet or RFD, Apartment No., City, State and ZIP Code) 

t!¥&iW: i'J • L (s-#'3-#oo) AT 
Show number of this writ and • I NO. I ITOTAL total number of writs submit- · I I 
ted, i.e., 1 of 1, 1 of 3, etc. "=t loFI 1 

Henry A. Bracht!, AUSA 
u. S. Courthouse 

J CHECK IF APPUCABLE: 
I D One copy for U. S. Attorney or designee and 
1 two copies for Attorney General of the U. S. 

included. . 

225 Cadman Plaza East I SHOW IN THE SPACE BELOW AND TO THE LEFT 
I ANY SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS OR OTHER Brooklyn 1 NeW York 11201 )INFORMATION PERTINENT TO SERVING THE 

L_ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - I WRIT DESCRIBED ABOVE. 
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: 

Defendant Fred c. Trump is Chairman of the Bd. of Directors, and 
Donald Trump is president of the above named corporation. 

Show amowit of dfposit {or-applicable 
code) and sign USM-285 for first writ 
onlv if more than one writ submitted. • 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

DATE I acknowledge receipt for the-total number of 
writs Indicated and for the deposit (If appli-
cable) shown. /0 - /.:::5-... 
1'\:7( I hereby certify and return that I have personally served, have legal evidence of service, or have executed as shown In 

"REMARKS," the writ described on the individual, company, corporation, etc., at the address shown above or on the individual, 
company, corporation, etc., at the address Inserted below. ' 

D I hereby certify and return that, after diligent Investigation, I am unable to locate the individual, company, corporation, etc., 
named above within this Judicial District. 

NAME AND TITLE OF INDIVIDUAL SERVED (If not 1hown 

VOA/.,tJLJ) /) 
ADDRESS (Complete onl11 lf dijjlrent 1hown abooe) 

DATE(S) OF ENDEAVOR (U1e Remarks if 

REMARKS 

USM-285 (Ed. 7·1·70) 1. CLERK OF THE COURT 

-

nt 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

' NOV 2 1913 
.,.,.,: r1 .!\: J. .. \ ... -' .. ··\'-""''\' .. . r.t\ .... ....... . 

NOTICE OF 
APPEARANCE 

Civil Action File 
No. 73 C 1529 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP, and 
TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

·siR 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that the defendants, Fred C. Trump,! 

Donald Trump, and Trump Management, Inc., hereby appear in the above 

entitled action, and that the undersigned havebeen retained as attorneys 

for said defendants and demand that copies of all papers in this action be 

served upon the undersigned at the office and post office address stated 

below. 

TO: Hon. Robert A. Morse 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

I , •} .. 
Yours, l 

.. k,-Y-..,. .. ;3:c ... / '2d .. .,_ <t 

SAXE, BACON, BOLAN & MANLE 
Attorneys for Defendants 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 
(212) 472 1400 

--..... - . -,"" 
/3) 
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"i r:- ,.-, 

Nov 7 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

1973 

- - - - - - - - - - - _. - - - - - - - -- •....... '. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, : STIPULATION 

-against-

Plaintiff, : Civil Action File 
No. 73 C 1529 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP, and 
TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED, by and between 

the United States Attorney for the Eastern District of New York, attorney 

for the plaintiff, and Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley; attorneys for the defendant.,.., 

that the defendants' time within \\hich to answer or otherwise move with 

respect to the complaint be and the same hereby is extended to and including 

November 26, 1973. 

Dated: New York, New York 
November l, 1973 

5'() o;f._DER£P 

Robert A. Morse 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
AttQ;rney for Pl 

( ¢2, 

Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
Attorneys for 

By {"- 1 C/-

g 12.£'0 f,?<..j /-/E<--v Yc£ 1:: 

v, S, D. T-



.Elt:ED IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT OFFiCE 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT E.D. N.V. 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK* NOV 15197:1 * 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

) 
v. ) 

) 
FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD ) 
TRUMP and TRUMP MANAGEMENT ) 
INC., ) 

) 
Defendants. ) _______________________ ) 

TIME A.M ............................... n 

P.M ............................... . 
CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

PLAINTIFF'S FIRST 
INTERROGATORIES TO 
DEFENDANTS 

TO THE DEFENDANTS, FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP, AND TRUMP 
MANAGEMENT INC. : 

Plaintiff requests that the defendants answer each 

Interrogatory separately and fully, in writing and under 

oath, in accordance with Rule 33 of the Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure. If the information requested by any Inter-

rogatory is contained in documents, papers or records in the 

custody of the defendants, you may so indicate and answer 

that Interrogatory by attaching copies of such documents or 

papers to your answers and by indicating the Interrogatory to 

which those documents or papers are deemed responsive. In 

the alternative, you may answer that Interrogatory by identify-

ing those documents, papers or records in which the answer is 

contained and specifying the location of the documents, papers 

or records, and making the same available to Plaintiff to inspect, 

copy or photograph. 

/;;::-/:J \ .. 



These Interrogatories call for all information avail-

able to the defendants, their employees and agents, and the 

officers of defendant Trump Management Inc., with respect to 

the subject matter into which they inquire. If some of the 

information is known or available to a particular officer, 

employee or agent, and other information is available to 

another officer, employee or agent, please include in your 

answers all information known to each officer, employee 

or agent, and please specify which officer, employee or agent 

provided information with respect to each answer: 

1. Please state the name, race and address of all 

persons who own stock or who have any other ownership interest, 

direct or indirect, in Trump Management Inc. [hereinafter 

referred to as "T.M.I."] and the date they acquired such 

interest. 

2. Please state the date and place of incorporation 

of T.M.I. and the name, race and address of each officer of 

the corporation. Please specify each officer's duties. 

3. Please state whether any person with an interest 

in T.M.I., as described in the above two Interrogatories, 

directly or indirectly supervises the management of the apart-

ments owned and/or managed by T.M.I. If so, please identify 

the person or persons with such supervisory duties and explain 

in detail those duties performed. 

4. Please state whether any person with an ownership 

management interest in T.M.I., owns any interest, direct or 

indirect, in any other real estate development, management or 
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promotion company. If so, please identify each such real 

estate interest and its location. In the case of any other 

apartment complex in which an interest is held by such person, 

or which is owned by a company in which such person owns an 

interest, please indicate the total number of units at each 

said apartment complex and the number of units at each said 

apartment complex that are occupied by persons. 

5. Please state the name and address of each apart-

ment building or real estate development owned and/or managed, 

in whole or in part, by T.M.I. at anytime since January 1, 1968 

and with respect to each, please state the following information: 

A. The date the apartment or development 

opened for occupancy; 

B. The number of efficiencies, one-bedrooms, 

two-bedrooms, and three-bedrooms in each building; 

C. The number of units in each building occupied 

by Negroes as of January 1, 1968, January 1, 1969 

and as of the present time. Please identify each 

individual by name, address and dates of occupancy; 

D. Please indicate the date the first Negro 

;/ tenant, other than an employee of T .M. I. , moved into 

each building; 

E. Please set forth the number of apartment 

units which became available for rental, by size, **/ 

In each Interrogatory requesting information concerning Negroes, 
please also indicate the same information for Puerto Ricans. 

**I For example, one-bedrooms, two-bedrooms, etc. 
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per month, between January 1, 1969 and November 1, 

1973; 

F. Please state the number of persons per 

month, by race, making inquiry concerning the 

availability of an apartment between January 1, 

1969, and the present. Please also state the 

number of people who submitted applications for 

an apartment during the same period of time. If 

exact figures are not reasonably available, please 

provide estimates or approximations. In any event, 

please state the basis for the figures provided; 

G. Whether a formal, written application is 

required of every prospective tenant and, if so, 

whether any exceptions are made to this general 

policy. If exceptions are made, please state how 

frequently they are made, why exceptions are made 

and the name, race, address and job title of every 

person who has the authority to make these exceptions. 

If any applicant has been accepted as a tenant with-

out submitt_ing a formal written application in the 

past three please indicate the tenant's 

name, race, address and the circumstances surrounding 

the rental of the apartment. Please state how long 

applications for apartments are retained on tile. 

*l The term "past three years" used throughout these Inter-
- rogatories means the period of time between November 1, 1970 

and November 1, 1973. 
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If you are willing to do so, please 

attach copies of such application forms to your 

answers to these Interrogatories; 

H. The maximum, average, and minimum length 

of time required for the processing of tenant 

applications. Please state what factors have 

affected or presently affect the time required 

for the processing of individual applications; 

I. Please indicate what qualifications have 

been or are required for an applicant to be accepted 

as a tenant in terms of income, credit standing, 

age, education, family status, children, or any 

other factors which may be taken into account in 

deciding whether to accept or reject an applicant. 

If exceptions to these qualifications are made, 

please state how frequently they are made, why 

exceptions are made and the name, race, address 

and job title of every person who has the authority 

to make these exceptions. If any applicant has been 

accepted as a tenant without meeting these requirements 

in the past three years, please indicate the tenant's 

name, race, address and the circumstances surrounding 

the rental of the apartment; 

J. Please state whether credit or background 

checks are or have been obtained in the past three 

years on every prospective tenant and, if so, whether 

any exceptions are made 
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to this general policy. If exceptions to 

obtaining credit or background checks are made, 

please state how frequently they are made, why 

exceptions are made and the name, address 

and job title of every person who has the authority 

to make these exceptions. If any applicant has 

been accepted as a tenant without a credit or back-

ground check being obtained in the past three years, 

please indicate the tenant's name,zace, address and 

the circumstances surrounding the rental of the apart-

ment. Please state whether the services of any 

credit reporting companies have been used at any 

time since January 1, 1969 and, if so, indicate the 

name of each company and the dates its services have 

been used. Also, please state whether the reports 

are given orally or in writing, whether the same 

types of reports are required on all applicants, 

the general contents of the reports, and under what, 

if different types of reports 

are requested or required; 

K. Please indicate whether a waiting list is 

maintained from which new tenants are selected. If 

so, please state whether there is one central waiting 

list for all the buildings managed anq/or bwned by 

T.M.I. or if there is a separate waiting list for 

each apartment building managed and/or owned by T.M.I. 

- 6 -



Please describe the conditions which must be 

met before an applicant's name goes on the 

waiting list, how often the list is updated 

and the average number of persons on the list 

at any one time. Please state whether all 

new tenants are selected from the waiting 

list or whether exceptions are made to rent 

to individuals not on the list. If exceptions 

are made, please state how frequently they are 

made, why exceptions are made and the name, race, 

address and job title of every person who has 

the authority to make these exceptions. (If no 

central waiting list is maintained, please state 

the information requested above separately for 

each apartment building that utilizes a waiting 

list.) Please list the name, race and address of 

the last ten tenants (if applicable) who were rented 

an apartment while a waiting list was maintained, but 

whose names were not on a waiting list. 

If you willing to do so, would you please 

attach a copy of the waiting lists used since 

January 1, 1970, including the name, address, race 

and date of application of each prospective tenant. 

In the alternative, are you willing to allow repre-

sentatives of the plaintiff to inspect and copy 

these documents without an Order of the Court under 

Rule 34 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 
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L. Please state whether a security deposit 

is required of every prospective tenant and, if 

so, whether any exceptions are made to this general 

policy. If exceptions are made, please indicate how 

frequently they are made, why exceptions are made 

and the name, race, address and job title of every 

person who has the authority to make these exceptions. 

If any applicant has been accepted as a tenant with-

out submitting a security deposit in the past three 

years, please indicate the tenant's name, race, address 

and the circumstances surrounding the rental of the 

apartment. Please indicate the amount of security 

deposit required and whether it is required the time 

of application or whether it may be submitted subsequent 

to the formal application; 

M. Please state the monthly rental rates for 

efficiencies, one, two and three-bedroom apartments. 

Please indicate whether there have been any increases 

or decreases in these rental rates since January 1, 

1968, and, so, the reasons for such changes. Please 

state this information for each complex owned and/or 

managed by T.M.I.; 

N. Please describe the method presently or formerly 

used to publicize vacant apartments. If advertising is 

utilized, please indicate every newspaper that T.M.I. 

has run apartment advertisements in since January, 1968, 
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whether advertisements have ever been run in news-

papers which have predominantly Negro or Puerto Rican 

audiences, if so, please identify each such newspaper, 

the approximate frequency of all newspaper advertising 

and whether T.M.I. advertising now contains or ever 

contained a fair housing logo. If present-tenant 

referrals are or were ever used, please indicate whether 

this is or was ever the exclusive means utilized to 

rent available apartments. If neither advertising, nor 

present-tenant referrals are or have ever been utilized, 

please explain the rental procedures used since January 1, 

1968. If any exceptions to the normal rental procedures 

have been made, please state generally the nature of all 

such exceptions, the circumstances and the reasons for 

them, and the name, race, address and employment position 

of each person who is authorized to make or allow such 

exceptions; 

0. Please indicate the name, race, last known address, 

job title, job location, dates of employment, immediate 

supervisor and details of the duties of every person who 

has had the authority to accept and/or consider and/or 

act on rental applications since January 1, 1968; 

P. Please describe in detail the supervision that 

officers of T.M.I. or other T.M.I. personnel maintain 

over the persons referred to in Interrogatory No. 5 (0) 
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and whether they have ever instructed these persons 

to maintain racial records or use racial codes for 

any purpose. 

6. With respect to each apartment building owned 

and/or managed, in whole or in part, by any of the defendants, 

please state: 

A. Whether there has ever been in effect a 

policy to refuse to accept, or to dissuade applications 

for tenancy from certain classes of persons because 

of their race, color or national origin. If so, please 

state why such a policy was maintained; 

B. If such a policy was maintained, please state 

whether it has been changed, the nature of the change, 

the reasons for making a change and when the change 

was made. Please state in detail any steps taken to 

implement the policy, including but not necessarily 

limited to, instructions to resident managers, rental 

agents and other personnel. 

7. Please state the name, race and last known address 

of all employees_of T.M.I. employed for any period of time, 

since January 1, 1968, including for each employee listed, 

the job title, job location, dates of employment and details 

of their duties. (It is unnecessary to duplicate any infor-

mation which has been provided in response to Interrogatory 

5 (0)). 

8. Please state whether any of the defendants have 

ever had a policy not to employ Negroes or members of any 

racial or ethnic group, or to consider race or national origin 
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in any manner in relation to employment. If race or national 

origin are considered, please state in detail all pertinent 

circumstances surrounding this policy. Has there ever been 

a change in this policy? If so, please explain in detail 

including the reasons for this change. 

9. Please state the name and address of each black 

and Puerto Rican individual who has applied for a position 

of any kind with T.M.I. in the past three years, and indicate 

the disposition of each such application. For each individual 

whose application for employment was rejected, please state 

the reason(s) for the rejection. 

10. Please describe in detail the nature and location 

of all T.M.I. rental records since January 1, 1969, in 

defendants custody or control including applications for 

tenancy, records of action taken therein, correspondence, daily 

telephone logs and waiting lists. Are you willing to allow 

representatives of the plaintiff to inspect and copy any or all 

of these documents without an Order of the Court under Rule 34 

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedures? Please state if any 

records have been since January 1, 1968, and, if so, 

the date, circumstances and reason for such destruction. 

11. Please provide the name, address, apartment number, 

and date of occupancy of each black tenant presently living, 

or who has lived in the past five years, in any apartment 

buildings owned and/or managed in whole or in part, by T.M.I. 

and which now has a black population of less than 10%. For 

each tenant, please indicate if the individual had been placed 
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on a waiting list prior to being leased an apartment, and 

if so, for how long the tenant's name had been on a waiting 

list. 

12. Please describe in detail what positive steps, 

if any, each of the defendants has taken to promote equal 

housing opportunity after being contacted by the United States 

Department of Justice in October, 1972. 

13. Please state the name, address and race of every 

person who has, to the knowledge of any owner or agent of 

T.M.I., made a oral or written, to or about T.M.I. 

regarding racial discrimination in employment or housing by 

T.M:I., by any agent of or any person having an ownership 

interest in T.M.I., or by any representatives of T.M.I., since 

January 1, 1960. If so, please state the name, address and 

race of every complainant, the details of the complaint, to 

whom it was made, the name, race, address and job title of the 

person(s) representing T.M.I. who dealt in any way with the 

complaint and the disposition of the matter. With respect 

to this Interrogatory, please give all details of each such 

incident including, but not necessarily limited to: 

A. Complaints made directly to T.M.I. or 

to any person having an ownership interest in T.M.I.; 

B. Complaints made to the owners or the repre-

sentatives of the owners of any building managed by 

*(As used herein, "complaint" refers to any information 
- suggesting or alleging actual or possible discrimination. 
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T.M.I. or by any person with an ownership interest 

in T.M.I.; 

C. Complaints made to any federal, state or 

local agency such as the New York City Human Rights 

Commission or to any local civil rights or fair housing 

organizations, including, but not limited to the 

Urban League, N.A.A.C.P., A.C.L.U., etc. 

14. Please indicate whether any persons have ever been 

accepted as tenants to any building owned and/or managed 

in whole or in part by T.M.I. after having initially been 

rejected and/or after having made a complaint (as that word 

is used in the preceding Interrogatory) concerning discriminatory 

rental practices by T.M.I. or its agents? If so, please 

give all details of each such incident, including, but not 

necessarily limited to: 

A. The name, race and address of each person 

whose application for tenancy was originally rejected; 

B. The dates of original application, rejection, 

later acceptance and the date tenancy commenced; 

C. The names of all T.M.I. personnel involved; 

D. The reason(s) the application was originally 

denied; 

E. The reason(s) the application was subsequently 

approved. 

15. Please state the name, address, race and occupation 

of each person interviewed by you or on your behalf in relation 

to this case. Please state separately the name, address, race 

and occupation of any person not interview by 

- 13 -



you or on your behalf but whom you intend to interview, 

or who has information with respect to any facts pertinent 

to this case. 

16. If the answers to any of these Interrogatories 

are not known to you or to any of your representatives, please 

state the name, address, race and occupation of any person, 

whom you believe may have knowledge or information requested 

in a specific Interrogatory. 

Please take notice that a copy of such answers 

must be served upon the undersigned within thirty days after 

service of the foregoing interrogatories. 

ROBERT MORSE 
United States Attorney 

Respectfully submitted, 

--;: 1_ :/ II !l !I 
>I -1/Lvl . 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 

d. 
ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on November 7, 1973, copies 

of the foregoing Plaintiff's First Interrogatories to De-

fendants were placed in the United States first-class mail, 

postage-prepaid, addressed to: 

Michael Rosen, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bollan and Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York City, New York 10021 

fJ a 1 a. <LJtJ--(J hv.ei:A __ 0C./ 
ELY E S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

-against-

FRED c. TRUMP I DONALD TRUMP I 

and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

X 

! 

- --- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 

i-'1 L L ... 
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U. S. IJiSl il:d (,;JJ:d t:.D. fd..Y. 

* NOV 261973 
TIME A.M ................................. . 

P.M ................. . 

STIPULATION 

Civil Action File 
No. 73 c 1529 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED, by and between 

the United States Attorney for the Eastern District of New York, 

attorney for the plaintiff, and Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley, 

attorneys for the defendants, that the defendants' time within 

which to answer or otherwise move with respect to the complaint 

be, and the same hereby is extended to and including December 3, 

1973. 

Dated: New York, New York 
November 21, 1973 

. , SO ORDEltED 

By: 

j312"oo (4. Y/1· rci'F 
-rttJ.EL'").}/!:73 

. 

· u.s.1 J.1 

York 

© 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP, 
TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

STIPULATION 
.. r.:,..l;:>· 

\\" \ l-:-;,,. '';· _u.'{., . • \'\\ · ActlOn F1le 
1)\':::\'·'-''\ . 73 C 1529 

arMS· C-« .• . .. --
"1\1\(. ,, .. 

:P)!c 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED, by and between 

the United States Attorney for the Eastern District of New York, attorney 

for the United States of America, and Bacon, Bolan & Manley, 

attorneys for the defendants, that the defendants' time within which to 

answer or otherwise move with respect to the complaint be and the same 

hereby is extended to and including December lOth, 1973. 

DATED: NEW YORK, NEW YORK 
November 30, 1973 

... SO ORDERED 

Datedt /1/6-u YNZ!c 
· 3o" !"? '7_3 

u.s.l J:., ··-

Robert A. Morse 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
Attorney for the United States 

of America 

B 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

- - X 

Defendants. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 

STATE OF NEW YORK 

COUNTY OF NEW YORK 
ss.: 

AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF 
DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO 
DISMISS OR FOR A MORE 
DEFINITE STATEMENT 

Civ. Action File 
No, 73 C 1529 

DONALD TRUMP, being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

I am a defendant in the above-entitled action and 

am associated with Trump Management, Inc., also a defendant. 

I make this affidavit in support of our motion to dismiss the 

Government's complaint .for failure to state a claim or for a 
more definite statement, 

On the morning of October 15th while listening to 

he news on car radio, I was shocked to hear that the Governmed 

as bringing an action against me, my father, and Trump Manage-

ent .for bias in renting our apartments, I have never, nor has 

nyone in my organization ever, to the best of my knowledge, 

iscriminated or shown bias in the of our apartments. 

he news report was all the more shocking inasmuch as I had not 

o that point received ar.y .formal communication from the 

overnment whatever, regarding the subject matter of the action 

In fact, the first I heard about it was on my car radio the 
morning of the 15th. 
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Later that day on television news reports and the 

next day, on the front page of the New York Times and in the 

Daily News, there were headline stories stating that we had been 

charged with bias in renting our apartments. Again, still no 

word from the Government itself. It was not until the 17th 

that the Summons and Complaint were finally served. 

I have always tried to see to it that buildings 

which we own and manage are well run and that there is equal 

opportunity for anyone to rent apartments. We have always 

.maintained the respect and admiration of not only our tenants, 

but the community as a whole. 

As a direct result of the Government's unwarranted 

and unfounded charges made public, we have suffered substantial 

damage to our business and reputation. As is set out in the 

Memorandum of Law and Roy M. Cohn's affidavit, there is no one 

single fact alleged, not a date, year, apartment location, not 

an employee's name mentioned. We cannot answer charges against 

us when we do not know upon what grounds they are made, and to 

find our name blackened in the press before we had received 

formal notification and had an opportunity to have a trial or 

even answer is unfair and unjust. 

When these stories hit the national wire services, I 

received many calls and letters of surprise from tenants and 

community leaders expressing their shock and disbelief that our 

organization should be charged with such outrageous lies. The 

fact is that our apartments have the same ratio of minority 

tenants as exists in the community as a whole. Our organization 

has never discriminated and does not now discriminate. 

Sworn to before me this 

;-1973 



UNITED STf\.TE.S DIS'rRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED S'l'ATES OF AMERICA 

-against-

- - X 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD and 
TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - * 
STATE 01•, NEW YORK 

ss.: 
COUNTY OF NE\v YORK 

AFFIDA VI'l' 

Civ. Action File 
No. 73 C 1529 

ROY M. COHN, being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

I am a partner in the firm of Saxe, Bacon, Bolan& 

Manley, attorneys for defendants in the above-entitled action, 

and am familiar with the facts and circumstances herein. 

I make this affidavit in support of our motion to 

dismiss the complaint for failure to state a claim upon which 

relief can be granted or for a more definite statement. The 

Government has failed to allege even one fact in the complaint 

upon which a cause of action could be granted and it 

certain that they will be entitled to no relief. Feder& 

Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 12(b), a motion may be made to 

dismiss the complaint for failure to state a claim upon which 

relief can be granted. The Government's complaint recites the 

statutes alleged to have been violated verbatim with no 

factual allegations to support the complaint. 

On October 16, 1973, the Government announced the 

filing of their suit in the Daily News with banner headlines sia t-

ing that the United States Charges Bias. Similar headlines appear 

ed on the front page of the New Yt:>rk Times. They attempted to bring 



unlawful and undue pressure upon the defendants to settle this 

case. The Government has no facts to support the charges. If 

they did, they would be stated in the complaint. This action was 

brought to coerce the defendants into making a settlement and 

nothing more. The request for interrogatories served upon 

defendants by the Government makes it evident that this is a 

form of harassment and that the Government is merely "fishing'' 

for facts upon which it can base its case. These facts do not 

exist and the Government knows they do not exist. 

In the alternative, I request that a sufficiently full, 

definite, certain and specific complaint be served upon defendant 

so that they may prepare their answer and prepare for trial. 

The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure provide for such a motion 

and such a motion is the proper method of obtaining a fuller 

statement of a cause of action. Rule l2(e) of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure states: 

" ••• if a pleading to which a responsive 
pleading is permitted is so vague or ambiguous 
that a party cannot reasonably be required to 
frame a responsive pleading he may move for a 
more definite statement before interposing his 
responsive pleading. The motion shall point 
out the defects complained of and the details 
desired .••• " 

As has been set forth above and as the complaint attached 

hereto clearly shows, the defendants are unable to properly 

answer the charges alleged therein and a more definite statement 

of these charges should be required. 

This case represents an abuse of process. The Civil 

Rights Division did not file a lawsuit. It slapped together a 

piece of paper for use as a press release, and only secondarily 

as a court document. It contains not one fact concerning the 

discriminatory practices against blacks by the Trump 

2 



It does not name one single building in which any improper prac-

tices were directed. It not only contains no statement of days 

or months, but believe it or not, it does not even designate any 

year. What was done was simply to copy verbatim the language of 

the statute, and add the name of the Trump organization, because 

it is one of the largest in its field. If a private litigant 

filed such a paper, it would be summarily dismissed, with costs 

to the defendants. The Civil Rights Division's conduct after 

the filing of this threadbare document is even more outrageous. 

They immediately approached the defendants to quickly terminate 

·the litigation by entering into a "consent" decree dictated by 

the Civil Rights Division! This would undoubtedly have resulted 

in the next press release -- that one announcing the capitulation 

of the defendants and the substitution of the Welfare Department 

for the management corporation. Such a capitulation would have 

been a surrender under pressure of the rights of the defendants, 

who have established an efficient organization which has con-

tributed substantially to community life on all levels for many 

years. It would have been a surrender of the interests of our 

tenants past, present and future -- who are entitled to the 

maintenance of the type service we offer -- not subservience to tiDe 

Welfare Department. 

When it became apparent that we would not accept this 

"capitulation" an amazing thing occurred. th3t J.t l1ad 

no case, the Civ:U Rir;hts Di.visi.on served us with fifteen 

of lnterrogator:Les, asklng such question ar> the "number of 

persons per month, by race, making inquiries concerning the 

availability of an apartment ... " (Pltf 1 s first interrogatories 

to Def. p. 4, 5, F); the name of any credit reporting company 

3 



used and the dates of their servjce (r.5, J); "State the monthly 

rental rates for efficiencies, one, two and three-bedroom 

apartments. Indicate whether there have been any increases or 

decreases in these rental rates since January 1, 1968, and, if 

so, the reasons for such changes. State this information for 

each complex owned managed by T.M.I. "(p. 8,M); and 

"Indicate the name, race, last known address, job title, job 

location, dates of employment, immediate supervisor and details 

of the duties of every person who has had the authority to accept 

and/or consider and/or act on rental applications since 

1, 1968 (p.9, 0). 

The reading of the Bill of Particulars which is 

hereto in effect, asks us to go out and make an investigation 

as to whether any of our employees had ever had a disagreement 

against anyone. In other words, after having smeared us on the 

front page of the New York Times with an amorphous complaint, the 

Government is now asking us to find out whether there could 

have been any truth to it. Our top management was never even 

questioned in advance of the charges or given the opportunity 

to show that we do not employ discriminatory practices. 

I respectfully urge that these defendants do not 

discriminate in the renting of their apartments and that the 

Government's charges are totally unfounded. The complaint, 

which shows no facts, and the publicity which was released by 

the Government and has damaged the defendants was all geared to• 

force the defendants to compromise their rights for fear of 

Government reprisal. 

.:r 
Sworn to before me this /I 
da;'l of Decem. 19.73. o· . . :1 fo- l . / "1' ::r ,/ -£.·"\-' ...- \1. ,P' . .·i,.. ,?1--'J..II. , 

. , scHWi·'-··{, L 
/ '' !:State o\ New .{ orK. 

NGL'.llY r dOIIC, .SS72220 
No .. 3l y k county • 

3_G,l.9* .c._orrimiSS\on 

L1 ) t/L_ 
ROfl M. COHN 
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.n ::ook!:{n yesterday against! Mr. Trump and his father, 
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At the corporation's main of- I 
fice, 600 Avenue Z in Brooklyn,: 

,Donald Trump, president, de-· 
lnied the charges. 
'· "They are absolutely ridicu-
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would. There have been a num· 
ber of local '\Ctions against us,_ "' .·. -' . .\ 
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By ROBERT KAPPSTATTER ' 

_Charging discrimination against blacks, the U.S. Department of· Justice 'riled 
a civil suit yesterday against the Trump Management Corp., which owns and operates 
more.than 14,000 apartments in Brooklyn, Queens and Staten Island. 

The suit charges specifically . ::o.::c .. -o::.,_::-_:: •• :: .. = ... .,., __ c:._=c_...,_:-o __ ,, .. 
th:ot firm t? rent .or metropolitan area filed by the de-
negotiate r<;ntmg • umt': w1th partmcnt in the bst two years. 
blarks;• that 1t requtred. · The first, against Life Realty, 
rental terms and cond1lions be- an aim of the Samuel Lefrak or-
cause o! race, and that it mis- ganizatiou, ended with a consent 
represented to blacks apart- decree in which the firm agreed 
nu;nts were not ava1lable. The to rent more units to members oi 
su1t asks Brooklyn C?urt minority groups. . 
t!' order the alleged d•sc_rt!'Una- . Announcing the filing of the . 
tton ended. . • suit· in Washington, J. Stanley 

as .m the Pottinger, the assistant attorney 
suit, beside the f•.rm, "ere Do'!- general in charge of the civil 
aid and · rights di\ision, said the Trump 
fatlu:r Fred, the prmclpal .stock- case was oriooinally referred to his 
holder and chmrman of the -If' b tho N v k c· t H 
board. The Trumps, who own and 0 •ce ,Y e cw ! 0 '! 1 Y u-
operate 39 apartznent buildings, ma_n Conum.sston. u 

most of them. in Coney Island, Weve·Wol\ '.!;hem All 
Jam.:1ica Estate3 · and Fori!st It. ,Nas based in pa1t, he' said, 
Hills, wore charged \vith violat- on allegations made b;• Opera-
ing the Fair Housing Act of: 1963. tion Open City, an: affiliate of 

Serond Such Action · the, U rbm\ · League. • 
. . · 'I he youngci'Trump sa1d "There 

Donald Trtlmp flatly the a nuinbet· ·of local ac-
clmrge3 yesterday, tions against us and we've won 
"'l'hey are ahzolutely ridiculous. them all. We were chargetl with 
We ne;oer have discriglinated and an;l we I . 
we never would." tn that we not . . .... 

. _ : . . nate. . . ; BrooKlyn, have 60 davs to answer 
The smt wa3 t.be second maJor Attorneys for the firm, \vho::;e the h:/ the ghvCrn-

action in tb.o main office i3 at 600 z, . . . .; .... 
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1!1 THE U:llT:C:!J STi:r::::s DIST!:ICT COu:ZT FOR THE 

EASTEt\:--1 DISTRICT OF YORK 

UNITED STATES OF l01ERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

v. . ' } 
) 

FRED C. TRUHP, DONALD ) 
TRUMP and TRUHP MANAGEJYIENT ) 
INC., ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

) 

,r 

\ 
./ 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

PLAINTIFF'S FIRST 
INTERROGATORIES TO 
DEFENDANTS 

TO THE DEFENDANTS , FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP, AND TRUMP 
MANAGEiviENT INC.: 

Plaintiff requests that the defendants answer each 

Interrogatory separately and fully, in \vriting and under 

oath, in accordance with Rule 33 of the Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure. If the information requested by any Inter-

.rogatory is contained in documents, papers or records in the 

custody of the defendants, you may so indicate and ans\·ler 

that Interrogatory by attaching copies of such documents or 

papers to your aninvers and by indicati!.lg the Interrogatory to 

which those documents or papers are deemed responsive. In 

the al-ternative, you may answer that Interrogatory by identify-

ing those documents, papers or records in which the answer is 

contained and specifying the location of the documents, papers 

records, and making the same available to Plaintiff to inspect, 

copy or photograph. 

'-. 
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ll f:y:_- in.Cor-:::.:1tion avail-

able to the t!c[c::·u..!J.r:ts) .:1nd agents,- and the 

officers of defendant Inc., with respect to 
I 

the subject matter into which they inquire. If some of the 

information is kno'vn or available to a particular officer, 

employee or agent, and other is available to ' . I 

another officer, employee or agent, please include in your 

answers all information kno'vn to each officer, employee 

or agent, and please specify which officer, employee or agent 

provided information with_respect to each answer: 

1. Please state the name, race and address of all 

--:/ 

persons who own stock or who have any other mvnership interest, 

direct or indirect, in Trump Management Inc. [hereinafter 

referred to as "T.M.I."] and the date they acquired such 

interest. 

2. Please state the date and place of incorporation 

of T.M.I. and the name, race and address of each officer of 

the corporation. Please specify each officer's duties. 

3. Please state whether any person with an interest 

in T.M.I., as described in the above two Interrogatories, 

directly or indirectly supervises the management of the apart---
ments mvned and/or managed by T.M.I. If so, please identify 

the person or persons with such supervisory duties and explain 

in detail those duties performed. 

4. Please sta'te whether any person an ownership _,. 

or management interest in T.H.I:·,-ovms any interest,.direct or 
'·· 

indirect, in any other real estate development, management or 

I 
- 2 -
/ 
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If so, please identify each such real 

estate interest and its location. In the case of any other 

apartment complex in which an interest is held by such person, 
! 

or \vhich is O'dned by a company in \.,.hich such person mms an 

interest, please indicate the total munber of units at each 

said apartment complex and the;' nurr,.ber of units at each said 
' "' " 

apartment complex that are by Negro 21 persons. 

5. Please state the name and address of each apart-

ment building or real estate development owned and/or managed, 

in whole or in part, by T.M.I. at anytime since January 1, 1968 

and with respect to each, please state the following information: 

A. The date the apartment or development 

opened for occupancy; 

B. The number of efficiencies, one-bedrooms, 

two-bedrooms, and in each building; 

c.' The number of units in each building occ_upied 

by Negroes as of January 1, 1968, January 1, 1969 

and-as of the present time. Please identify each 

individual by name, address and dates of occupancy; 

D.· Please indicate the date the first Negro 

tenant, other· than an employee of T.M.I., moved into - . 

each building; · 

E. Please set forth the number of apartment 

units \vhich became available for rental, by size, *·kf 

*I In eacnlnterrogatory requesting information concerning Negro 
- please also indicate the same information for Puerto Ricans. 

"!:!:_/For one-bedrooms, t\vo-bedrooms, etc. 

13 -
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con:h, J, 1969 and Novecbcr 1, 

1973; 

F. Please state the of persons per 

month, by race, making inqulry concerning the 

availability of an apartment between January 1, 

1969, and the present. also state the 
i / 

number of people who applications 'for 

an apartment during the same period. of time. If 

exact figures are not reasonably available, please 

provide estimates or approximations. In any event, 

please state the basis for the figures provided; 

G. Whether a formal, written application is 

required of every prospective tenant and, if so, 

whether any exceptions are made to this general 

policy. If exceptions are made, please state hm.J' 

frequently they are made, why exceptions are made 

' and the narr.e, race, address and job title of every 

person who has the authority to make these exceptions. 

If any applicant has been accepted as a tenant ,.,ith-

out submitting a formal written-application in the 

past three please indicate the tenant's 

name, race, address and the circumstances surrounding 

the rental of the apartment. Please. state ho\.J' long 

applications for apartments are retained on file . 
. --

- . 
The term "past three years" used-throughout these Inter-
rogatories means the period of time between November 1, 1970 
and November .1, 1973. 

- 4/-
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If you are willing to do so, please 

copies of such application forms to your 

answers to these Interrogatories; 

H. The raaximt.!.rn, averagce, and minimum 

of time required for the of tenant 

applications. Please state what factors have 
( / 

affected or presently £ffect the time 
I 

for the processing of individual applications; 

I. Please indicate what qualifications have 

been or are required for an applicant to be accepted 

as a tenant in terms of income, credit standing, 

age, education, family status, children, or any 

other factors which may be taken into account in 

deciding >vhether to accept or reject an applicant. 

If exceptions to these qualifications are made, 

please state how frequently they are 'vhy 

exceptions are made and the name, race, address 

and job title of every person who has the authority 

to make these exceptions. If any applicant has been 

accepted as a tenant without meeting these requirements 

in the past three years, please indicate the tenant's 

name, race, address and the circumstances surrounding 
\ 

the rental of the apartment; 

J. Please state ,.,hether credit or background 

checks are or• have been obtained in the past three 
__. 

years on every prospective -tenant and, if so, .'dl).ether 

,any exceptions are made 

5 
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Please describe the conditions ;.;bich cust be 

met before an applicant's goes on the _ _-/;:;- -
waiting list, how often the list is updated 

and the average number of persons on the list 

at any one time. Please state Hhether all 

new tenants are selected f:r.'om the Haiting 
j . 
\ 

list or whether exceptions are made to rent 

to individuals not on the list. If exceptions 

are made, please state how frequently they are 

made, why exceptions are made and the name, race, 

address and job title of every person who has 

the authority to make these exceptions. (If no 

central waiting list is maintained, please state 

the information requested above separately for 

each apartment building that utilizes a waiting 

list.)' Please list the name, race and address of 

---------

the last ten tenants'(if applicable) who were rented 

an apartment while a waiting list was maintained, but 

whose names were not on a waiting list. 

If you are willing to do so, ·would you please 

attach a copy 'of the \'laiting lists used since 

January 1, 1970, including the name, address, race 
' 

and date of application of each prospective tenant. 

In the alternative, are you Hilling to allm'l repre-

sentatives of 'the plaintiff to inspect and copy .... 
these doctunents \'lithout an Or-der of the Court unaer 

'·. 
Rule 34 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

I 
7 
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L. Please state whether a security deposit 

is required of every prospective tenant and, if 

so, whether any exceptions are made to this general -

policy. If exceptions please indicate how 

frequently they are made, why exceptions are made 

and the name, race, and job title of every 
,! 

person has the authority to make these exceptions. 

If any applicant has been accepted as a tenant with-

out submitting a security deposit in the past three 

years, please indicate the tenant's name, race, address 

and the circumstances surrounding the rental of the 

apartment. Please indicate the amount of security 

deposit required and whether it is required the time 

of application or whether it may be submitted subsequent 

to the formal application; 

M. Please state the monthly rental rates for 

efficiencies, one, t\Y'O and three-bedroom apartments. 

Please indicate \•7hether there have been any increases 

or decreases in these rental rates since January 1, 

1968, and, if so, the reasons for such changes. Please 

state this information for each complex owned and/or 

managed by T.M.I.; 
' 

N. Please describe the method presently or formerly 

used to publicize vacant If advertising is 

util}zed, pie'ase indicate every ne;•,7Spaper that T .H. I. 

has run apartment advertiseriients il71 since Janua·r-y, 1968, 
'·-

- 8 -
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I 

whether advertisements have ever been run in news-

papers which have predominantly Negro or Puerto Rican 

audiences, if so, please identify each such newspaper, 

the approximate frequency or all newspaper advertising 
- I 

and whether T.M.I. now contains or ever 

contained a fair housing l'?_go. If present-tenant 
i( / 

referrals are or Here 'ver"'used, please indicate whether 

this is or was ever the exclusive means utilized to 

rent available apartments. If neither advertising, nor 

present-tenant referrals are or have ever been utilized, 

please explain the rental procedures used since January 1, 

1968. If any exceptions to the normal rental procedures 

have been made, please state generally the nature of all 

such exceptions, the circumstances and the reasons for 

them, and the name, race, address and employment 

of each person \•lho is authorized to make or allm·r such 
I 

exceptions; 

0. Please.indicate the name, ·race, last knmm address, 

job title, ]ob location, dates of employment, immediate 

supervisor and details of the duties of every person who 

has had the authority to accept and/or consider and/or 

act on rental applications since January 1, 1968; 

P. Please describe in detail the supervision that 

officers of T.M.I. or other T.M.I. personnel maintain 

over the persons referred to in Interrogatory No. 5 (0) 
/ 

, __ 
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and whether they have ever instructed these persons 

to maintain racial records or use racial codes for 

any purpose. 

6. With respect to each app.rtment building O\vned 
I 

and/or managed, in whole or in pa,rt, by any of the defendants, 

please state: ,. ,. 

A. 
' / 
,,· I 
! 

Whether there has ever been in effect a 
\ 

policy to refuse to accept, or to dissuade applications 

for tenancy from certain classes of persons because 

of their race, color or national origin. If so, please 

state why such a policy main.tained; 

B. If such a policy \vas maintained, please state 

whether it has been changed, the nature of the change, 

the reasons for making a change and when the change 

was made. Please state in detail any steps taken to 

·implement the policy, including but not necessarily 

limited to, instructions to resident _managers, rental 

agents and other personnel. 

7. Please state the.name, race and last kno-vm address 

of all employees of T.M.I. employed for any period of time, 

since_January 1, 1968, including for each employee listed, 

the job title, job location, dates of employment and details 

of their duties. (It is unnecessary to duplicate any infor-

mation which has been provided in response to Interrogatory 

5 (0)). 
;' 

8. Please state of the defendants have 
'-. 

ever had a policy not to employ Negroes or members of any 

racial or ethnic group, or1to consider race or national origin 

./ 

- 10 -
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in any manner in relation to employment. If race or national 

origin are considered, please state in detail all pertinent 

circurnstances surrounding this policy. Has there ever been ----
. _:::.--- -· 

a change in this policy? If so, please explain in detail 

including the reasons for this -------
9. Please state the name and address of each black 

/ .I . 
and Puerto Rican individual wh.o has applied for a position \ . 
of any kind '"ith T .M. I. in the past three years, and indicate 

the disposition of each such application. For each individual 

whose application for employment was rejected, please state 

the reason(s) for the rejection. 

10. Please describe in detail the nature and location 

of all T.M.I. rental records since January 1, 1969, in 

defendants custody or control including applications for 

tenancy, records of action taken therein, daily 

.telephone logs and waiting lists. Are you willing to allm-1 

representatives, of the plaintiff to inspect and copy any or all. 

of these documents without an Order of the Court under Rule 34 

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedures? Please state if any 

records have been-destroyed since Janu?ry 1, 1968, and, if so, 

the date, circumstances and reason for'such destruction. 

-11. Please provide the name, address, apartment number, 

and date of occupancy of each black tenant presently living, 

or who has lived in the past five years, in any apartment 

buildings mmed and/or managed in Hhole or in part, by T .H. I. 

and '·1hich now has a black population of less than 10%. For 
. ·--

each tenant, please indicate if the individual had been placed 

u! 
. --· 
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on a waiting list prior to being leased an apartment, and 

if so, for how long the tenant's name had been on a waiting 

list. 

12. Please describe in detalil what positive steps, 

if any, each of the defendants taken to promote equal 

housing opportunity after being cqntacted by the United States ( 
Department of Justice in 1972. 

13. Please state the name, address and race of every 

person who has, to the knmvledge of any mvner or agent of 

T.M.I., made a oral or written, to or about T.M.I. 

regarding racial discrimination in employment or housing by 

T .M. I., by any agent of or any person having an mvnership 
I 

interest in T.M.I., or by any representatives of T.M.I., since 

· January 1, 1960. If so, please state the name, address and 

race of every the details of the complaint, to · 

whom it was the name, race, address and job title of the . 
person(s) representing T .M. I. who dealt in any 1.·1ay 1.-1ith the 

complaint and the disposition of the matter. respect 

to this Interrogatory, please give all details of each such 

incident ·including, but not necessarily limited to: 

A. Complaints made directly to T.M.I. or 

to any person having an ownership interest in T .H. I.; 

B. Complaints made to the oHners or the repre-

sentatives of the ovmers of any building managed by 

· '!!_/ As used herein, "complaint" refers to any information 
suggesting 00 alleging actual or possible discrimination. 

12{ 
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/ 

T. H. I. or by any person with an m-mership interest 

in T .N. I.; 

C. Complaints made to any federal, state or 

local agency such as the Ne\v York City Human Rights 

Commission or to any local civil rights or fair housing 

organizations, includii[-'g, .1:fut. not limited to the 
( 

Urban League, N.A.A.C.P., A.C.L.U., etc. 

14. Please indicate whether any persons have ever been 

accepted as tenants to any building owned and/or managed 

in whole or in part by T.M.I. after having initially been 

rejected and/or after having made a complaint (as that v10rd 

is used in the preceding Interrogatory) concerning discriminatory 

rental practices by T.M.I. or its agents? If so, please 

give all details of each such incident, including, but not 

necessarily limited to: 

A.' The name, race and address of each person 

whose app'lication for tenancy ,.1as originally rejected; 

B. The dates of original application, rejection, 

later acceptance and the date tenancy commenced; 

C. The names of all T.M.I. personnel involved; 

D. The reason(s) the application was originally 

denied:,; 

E. The reason(s) the applicatio.n was subsequently 

appro".ed. 
- ' 

15. Ylease state the name, address, race and occupation 

of each person tnterviewed by on your behalf :irCrelation 

to this case. state separately the name, address, race 

and occupation of a_ny persob not intervieH by 

- 13 -
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you or on your behalf but whom you intend to interview, 

or who has information with respect to any facts pertinent 

to this case. 

16. If the answers to any bf these Interrogatories 

are not known to you or to any,: of 7our representatives, please 
I ;;,o 

state the name, address, race lf!nd occupation of any person, 

whom you believe may have knowledge or information requested 

in a specific Interrogatory. 

Please take notice that a copy of such answers 

must be served upon the undersigned thirty days after 

service of the foregoing interrogatories. 

ROBERT NORSE 
United States Attorney 

/ 

,_ 

Respectfully submitted, 

-:f { ? 1/ !l/ f1!2rl . fi.IL&v '-d!t-
FRANK E. SCHiiELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 

t:Lg;o:e- d. ,_,J; / 
ELYSE S. GOLD\.JEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
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' .. 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on November 7, 1973, copies 

of the foregoing Plaintif£ 7 s First Interrogatories to De-

fendants placed in the States first-class mail, 

postage-prepaid, addressed to: 

--
' 

..-· 

Michael Rosen, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bollan and Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York City, Ne1v York 10021 

- . 
'-, 

ef 
ELY E S. GOLDHEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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FOR THf= 

.. .DJ:S.TRI.Ct ... D£ .. 

' ,• 

1 (>-lo D. C. :,-.,.__ H H:.,.. (-;.--\))1 

(f-

\ CIVIL ACTION FILE No. _____________ _ 

UNITED STATES OF A!-!ERICA, 

'F"' Q J :;:U1"'. v 
\ 

;-:;Y /""'>, r;: -.... 'i1 I () / U( 

Plaintiff 

v ... 

FRED C. TRUHP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUHP ?-Ll\J.'Ll\GEr•!ENT, INC • , 

·,Defendant s 

To the above named Defendant 

.-

SU1H:i.'riONS 

.. 

You are hereby and to serve upon ROBERT A •.. 
1 

United 

States Attorney for the Eastern District of New York, 
-';,; 

piaintiff's attorney , whose address -is 225 Cadman Plaza East, Brdoklyn, Ne\'1 York, 

11201, I. • . :. :... .._ .. • : 

,.,.:· , .. , 

an answer to the complaint which is herewith served upon you, within 20 . days :titer service 

of this summons upon you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail 'to do so, judgement by default 

will be taken against you for _the relief demanded in the complaint. 

A /. . / ;, -:.2 .. ,. cd'z. n r 
'" A ". /J. I' ' 

October 1973 D2.te: 

l '/ /·; 

_LEIDS OP,G-;:;T, 
. / _ /7 Cl.,.,-J.: oj 

/.:;j 

,, 
___ ,,.: 

Depu.t'j Cldr.!:. 

[3eal of Cou:::-t] 
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UNITED STATES D,ISTRICT COURT FOR THE· 

EASTEfu.\f DISTRICT OF NE 1.•T YOR..'< 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) ·,&,'! ·n f'l 
.$ 0 .. .:,._, .... 

J '"' •:._'; 
l :t_) - -::J •V ) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. ·-----
·v. ,) 

) 
:FRED C • TRill<IP, DONALD TRUMP ) COriPLAINT FOR INJUNCTION 

PURSUANT TO FAIR HOUSING 
ACT OF 1968, 42 U.S.C. 
3601, et seq. 

and .TRill<IP 't-1ANAGE:tviENT INC., ) 
) 

Defendants. ) 
) 

The United States of America alleges: 

1. This is an action brought pursuant to 42 u.s.c.' 
3613 seeking to remedy violations of the Fair Act, 

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968,. 42 U.S.C. 3601, 
I 

2. This· Court has jurisdiction of this action under· 

28 u.s.c: 1345 and 42 U.S.C. 3613. ; 
-·- ------ --·-:·-.·--------- ------

· · --·-3 :-· · Defendant: Tr.imp Nanagerrlent- Inc. , is a New 

York corporation, doing business in the Eastern District: of 

York, manages and operates numerous apartment buildings, 

totalling at least 14,000 dwelling units in the New York area 

and else\vhere. Defendant Fred C. Trump is the principal 

stockholder and Chairman of the-Board o£ Directors of Trump 

Management Inc. Defendant Donald is president of Trumn 
' . . 

Management Inc. The defendants Fred C. Trump and Donald Trump 

trans·act business in Ne\V' York and are responsii>le for the 

policies and practices of Tr0.c.1p Nanagecnent Inc. 

/'-
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4. The apartment buildings and managed 

by T::::"urnp Nanagement Inc. are djvellings vithin the rr:eaning 

of 42 U.S.C. 3602(b). 

5. The defendants'/ the actions of their 

agents and employees, have\ discriminated against persons 

because of race in the operation of their apartment build-

ings, among other ways, by: 

(a) Refusing to rent dwellings and negotiate 

for the rental of dwellings with persons because 

of race and color, in violation of 804(a) 

of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3604(a). 

(b) Requiring different terms and 

with respect to the rental of dwellings because 

of race and color, in violation of Section ·304(b) 
\ . 

of the Fair Bousing Act of 42 U.S.C. 3604(b). 

(c) and causing to be made statements 

----- .. -•. respect to the rental of dwellings which 

·· a preference;·-limitation and discrimi-

nation based on race and color in violation of 

Section 804(c) of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 

42 U.S.C. 3604(c). 

(d) Representing to persons because of race 

and color that dwellings are not available for· 

inspection and rental when such dwellings are 

in fact so available, in violation of Section 

804(d) of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 4i U.S.C. 

3604(d). 

;...,.--....... 

\ 



.· I j· 

! 

{i 

l--. 
I 
' 

I .. 

?··--. ------···-··· -·---. 
' 

\ 
6. The defendants' conduct described in the pre-

1 ceding paragraph constitutes: 

(a) A pattern and practice'of resistance 

by the defendants to the full enjoyment of 

rights\ secured Title VIII of the Fair Housing 

.Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et and 

(b) A denial to of persons of rights 

granted by Title VIII of the Fair Housing Act 

of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et which denial 

raises an issue of general public importance. 

the plaintiff prays that the Court enter 

an Order enjoining the defendants, their employees, agents, 

and successors and all those in active concert and partici-

pation. with any of them, from: · 

(a) Dlscriminating against any person on 
0 -,•. •o-o•'•, _ .. , .. ••' the basis 0 of race) religion or natlonai 

1-

.origin, w·ith respect to any right secured by 

the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. -3601 

(b) Failing or refusing to take adequate 

affirmative steps to correct the effects of 

their past discriminatory policies and 

tices.: Plaintiff further prays for such 

") 
.j 

'· 
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addicional relief Es th? interests of justice 

I 
may r

1
equire, together the costs end dis-

of this accion. 

i- . 
. \ 
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i'' 
- . . . . . c:-Y"i'-'" .n .. 

-ELLIOT L. RICHARDSON 
Attorney General 
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7;'-- STANLEY POTTINGER / i 
Attorney v . . 

.. • 
ROBERT A. HORSE . 
United States 

J -{-
FRANI<. E. SCHHELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 

. ... . - : .. .. . 

J !ia--P 
ELYSE S. GOLDwr.BER 
Attorney, Housing Section 

/ Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

-against-

FRED C TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. 

S I R S 

• I LED 
IN CLERK'S OFFICE 

J. S. DISTRICT COURT E.D. N. 

Jf DEC 12 1973 
MOTION 

O" 
Civ. Action File No . 

73 c 1529 ' I / '·:; 

... 
' 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that the undersigned will move 

before United States District Judge NEill/€ f , at Room 7 , in the 

Cllb'lAI'/ l>J.AZ4 "'r?lf.._ 
United States Courthouse, Fsl9;)' New York, New York, on theJ-1- --

.J a fHJcl.. ( j 
day of B iiib •, 197fj, at 10:00 o'clock in the forenoon of that day or as 

soon thereafter as counsel can be heard for an order dismissing the complain 

for failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted or for a more 

definite statement and for such other and further relief as to the Court may 

seem just and proper in the premises. 

This motion is based upon this notice, the affidavits of Donald ,_,,_ 
. I# 

Trump and Roy M. Cohn, sworn to the 1/' day of December, 1973, and upon 

all the pleadings and proceedings heretofore had herein. 

TO: United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
Attorney for the United States 

of America 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
New York, New York 

Yours, etc., 

Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 

kjNC Cohn 
3 9 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 
(212) 4 72 1400 

/r-
/. 
l (). 
"'-----""'"_,../" 
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UNITED STATES DISTRIC'I' COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

- - -x 

UNITED STATES OF Jll'-1ERICA 

-ag:<tinst-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. 

- - - - - - - - - -x 

MOTION FOR A MORE DEFINITE 
STATEMENT 

Ci v. Act ion File 
No. 73 C 1529 

Defendants in the above entitled cause hereby 

separately and severally move the Court pursuant to the 

_provisions of Rule 12(e) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure for the District Courts of the United States that 

the plaintiff be ordered to furnish a more definite statement 

with respect to matters alleged in the Complaint herein in each 

of the following particulars: 

1. That with respect to the allegations contained in 

paragraph 5, page 2 of the complaint plaintiff be required to 

state the facts supporting their conclusion that defendants 

violated the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3604(a), (b), 

(c) and (d) in the following respects: 

(a) name the employees and agents to have 

carried out the discr1oination for the defendants; 

(b) the exact addresses and locations of the 

building at which the alleged discrimination 

occurred; 

(c) the parties to the alleged discrimination; 

(d) the time, giving exact dates, that the alleged 

discrimination occurred. 



2. That with respect to the allegations contained 

in paragraph 6 page 3 in the complaint, that the plaintiff 

be required to state the facts supporting the allegations 

contained i.n paragraph SIXTH in the following respects:. 

(a) name the employees and agents alleged to 

have carried out the discrimination for 

the defendants; 

(b) the exact addresses and locations of the 

apartment building at which the alleged 

discrimination occurred; 

(c) the parties to the alleged discrimination; 

(d) the time, giving exact dates, that the 

alleged discrimination occurred. 

Dated: New York, New York 

December 7, 1973 

2 

Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
Attorneys for Defendants 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 
(212) 472-1400 



STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP, 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants . 

Civ. Action File 
No. 73 c 1529 

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF 
DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO DISMISS 
GOVERNMENT'S COMPLAINT FOR FAILURE 
TO STATE A CLAIM OR FOR A MORE 
DEFINI'l'E STATEMENT PURSUANT TO 
FRCP RULE 12 

Preliminary Statement 

The Government on or about October 15, 1973, 

served a summons and complaint upon the defendants. No 

answer has yet been made. The complaint, which contains 

six paragraphs, asks for an injunction pursuant to the 

Fair Housing Act of 1968, but states absolutely no facts 

upon which the injunction might be granted. There is 

simply a recitation of the statutes alleged to have been 

violated. Nowhere in the complaint is there one date, 

not even a year, nor one address where the alleged vio-

lations occurred, not one employee's name who is alleged 

to have committed the violations. It is for· these reasons 

that no answer can be given and that the defendants are 
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making this motion to dismiss the complaint. The Govern-

ment is obviously seeking to have the defendants sign a 

consent decree by harassing them through unfair and undue 

publicity. In fact, even before the summons and complaint 

were served upon defendants, the media publicized nation-

ally news of the charges against defendants. (See 

affidavit of Donald Trump.) They have even sent to 

defendants' attorneys a sample consent decree. It is 

extremely questionable how the Government can enter into 

any agreement with the defendants when it is apparent 

that they do not know upon what facts the alleged viola-

tions occurred. 

The defendants are a large management company 

and operate buildings in many areas of the city, especially 

Brooklyn and Queens. The buildings are filled with tenants 

of many races and nationalities. No attempt whatever to 

screen prospective tenants according to any racial or 

religious lines is made. The buildings as a rule are 

filled with roughly the same percentages of races and 

religions as the communities in which these buildings 

are located. 

An examination of the complaint immediately 

discloses that the Government has no facts and knows of 

no facts to support their complaint. It is completely 

void of any information which would enable the defendants 
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to supply an answer or to properly respond. 

Issues 

There are two issues presented to this Court. 

(1) Whether the Government's complaint should be dismissed 

for failure to state a claim pursuant to Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure 12(b)-(6) because of action upon which 

relief might be granted, and (2) whether a more definite 

statement should be required pursuant to Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure Rule 12(e). 



POINT I. 

MOTION TO DISMISS COMPLAINT FOR FAILURE 
TO STATE A CLAIM SHOULD BE GRANTED 

The has failed to state a claim upon 

which a judgment might be rendered and therefore the 

4 

complaint should be dismissed. Pursuant to Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure, Rule 12(b) (6), where the claim has 

not been adequately stated in the complaint it should be 

dismissed. In the Government's complaint there are no 

facts and the allegations are nothing more than "sweep-

ing legal conclusions." 

In Pauling v. McElroy,C.A. 1960, 278 F.2d 252, 

· 10 7 U.S. App. D. C. 372, cert. denied 81 S. Ct. 61·, 364 

U.S. 835, 5 L. Ed. 2d 60, the Court held that they would 

not accept "sweeping legal conclusions in the form of 

factual allegations." In the instant case the Government 

has not even attempted to make these factual allegations 

but has relied upon restating the sections of the Fair 

Housing Law alleged to have been violated. The princi-

pal was adopted in McCleneghan v. Union Stock Yards Co. 

of Omaha (8 Cir. 1962), 298 F.2d 659: 

"For the purpose of the motions to dismiss 
we are to regard as admitted the well pleaded 
facts of the complaint ..•. This admission 
'does not, of course, embrace sweeping legal 
conclusions cast in the form of factual alle-
gations.' ... Furthermore, a general allegation 
of conspiracy without a statement of facts 
constituting that conspiracy, is only an 
allegation of a legal conclusion and is insuf-
ficient to constitute a cause of action. . " 



See also Stewart v. Havelone, D.C. Neb. 1968, 

283 F. Supp. 842, Blackburn v. Fish University, C.A. 6th 

1971, 443 F.2d 121; Atlanta Gas Co. v. Southern Natural 

Gas Co., D.C. Ga. 1972, 338 F. Supp. 1039. 

The Government's failure to state even one fact 

in support of their allegations is really a bald state-

ment that they may have some type of valid claim against 

defendants and this the courts have held is insufficient. 

When the complaint contains nothing but a series of 

broad conclusory statements the complaint should be 

dismissed. Thurston v. Setab Computer Institute, D.C.N.Y. 

1969, 48 F.R.D. 134, Jackson v. Nelson, C.A. 9th 1968, 

405 F.2d 872. 

In Huey v. Barloga, D.C. Ill. 1967, 277 F. Supp. 

864, 871, the Court held.that a complaint failed to state 

a civil rights claim, stating that "although pleadings 

are given a liberal construction in the federal courts, 

the rules contemplate some factual statement in support 

5 

of the claim. General allegations of this kind unsupported 

by any factual statements have usually been rejected as 

insufficient. Huey v. Barloga, supra. In Stewart v. 

Havelone, supra, the Court similarly held that a general 

allegation of conspiracy without a statement of the facts 

constituting that conspiracy is only an allegation of a 

legal conclusion and is insufficient to constitute a 

claim for relief. 



We are presented here with no facts to support 

the Government's allegations and therefore the complaint 

should be dismissed. 

POINT II. 

A MORE DEFINITE STATEMENT IS REQUIRED 

6 

The courts have consistently held that Rule 12(e) 

motions for a more definite statement should be granted 

when the broad allegations of plaintiff's complaint will 

permit the Government to conduct a fishing expedition among 

defendant's records for evidence of misconduct. Cope v. 

Fuyn Engineering Co., D.C. Pa. 1949, 8 F.R.D. 620. 

The allegations herein are extremely vague and 

sketchy and there is no way in which defendant in respond-

ing to the complaint can help formulate the issues in the 

action at the pleading stage and thereby limit the scope 

of plaintiff's discovery. 

The Government's complaint is so general that it 

does not even include dates of the alleged violations. 

CONCLUSION 

In summary, the statute and case law is clear. 

The complaint should be dismissed for failure to state a 

claim. The Government has provided no facts whatsoever 

to support its complaint. 
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If the Government has these facts, then at the 

very least, defendants' motion for a more definite state-

ment pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 12(e) 

should be imposed. It is impossible to require the defen-

dants to reply to a complaint couched in vague allegations 

when no facts are stated. 

WHEREFORE, the Government's complaint should be 

dismissed or a more definite statement required. 

Of counsel 

Roy M. Cohn 

Respectfully submitted, 

SAXE, BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY 
Attorneys for Defendants 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 
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lf DEC 12 1973 

........ . 
" .. 

Civ. Action File 
No. 73 C 1529 

COUNTERCLAIM 

AS AND FOR A FIRST DEFENSE AND BY 
WAY OF A COUNTERCLAIM 

.<1 

* ' 

1. On October 16, 1973, the New York Times published 

a statement containing false and misleading information concern-

ing the suit herein. 

2. On October 16, 1973, plaintiff caused the Daily 

News to publish under banner headlines a story containing infor-

mation which it knew to be false and misleading and damaging to 

defendants. 

3. Defendants have sustained damages as a result of 

the plaintiff's untrue and unfair statements to the cornrnunica-

tions media prior to any formal action on its part. The plain-

tiff knew the information which it released to be false and 

misleading. 

WHEREFORE, defendants pray that this Court enter an 

order granting defendants judgment on their counterclaim in the 

amount of One Hundred Million Dollars ($100,000,000.00), together 

with such further 

and the costs and 

relief as the interests of justice may require 

1 

Attorneys for Defendants 
Office and Post Office A 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

i . 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE "- L J:: • 
1d 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK ::i. i.kii\: ... :1 CUJnf E.D. fU. 

* JANB 1974 * 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

TIME A.M. :r.c· ·· •. · 
p ..... \ ....... ., 

.M ......... . 
) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC . , ) 

) 
Defendants. ) _________________________ ) 

S I R S: 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

NOTICE OF MOTION TO DISMISS 
DEFENDANTS' COUNTERCLAIM 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that plaintiff, United States of 

America will move this Court, before the Honorable Edward R. 

Neaher, District Judge at the United States Courthouse, 225 

Cadman Plaza East, Brooklyn, New York in Courtroom 9, on the 

day of January 11, 1974 at 10:00 o'clock in the forenoon of 

that day or as soon thereafter as counsel can be heard, for 

an Order dismissing defendants' counterclaim pursuant to 

Rule 12(b)(6) of the Fed. R. Civ. Proc. on the grounds that: 

1. This Court has no jurisdiction over the subject 

matter of the counterclaim; 

2. That the counterclaim fails to state a claim upon 

which relief can be granted;and for other and further relief 

that this Court deems just and proper. 

@ 
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Dated: January 4, 1974 
Brooklyn, New York 

To: Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan 

and Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Yours, etc. 

FRANK E • SCHWE LB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 

United States 
Attorney 

Brooklyn, New York 

if ifo-ftL.-dye/ 
ELSE s. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 



., 

-• .. , ' - ., 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Elyse S. Goldweber, an attorney for the plaintiff, 

hereby certify that I have served a copy of the attached Notice 

of Motion of the United States to dismiss defendants' counter-

claim, a copy of the attached Memorandum of the United States 

in Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, Motion for 

More Definite Statement and in Support of Plaintiff's Motion 

to Dismiss the Counterclaim and a copy of the attached 

Memorandum of the United States in Response to the Affidavits 

of Donald Trump and Roy Cohn on the defendants by mailing a 

copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney at the following 

address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

This, the 4th day of January, 1974. 

GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
AND TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC. , 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM OF THE UNITED STATES IN OPPOSITION TO 
DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO DISMISS, MOTION FOR MORE 

DEFINITE STATEMENT AND IN SUPPORT OF 
PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO DISMISS 

THE COUNTERCLAIM 

HENRY A. BRACHTL 
Assistant United States 

Attorney 
Department of Justice 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of ,Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
AND TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC. , 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM OF THE UNITED STATES IN OPPOSITION TO 
DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO DISMISS, MOTION FOR MORE 

DEFINITE STATEMENT AND IN SUPPORT OF 
PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO DISMISS 

THE COUNTERCLAIM 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

The United States initiated this action on October 15, 1973, 

pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 3613 *I alleging racial discrimination in 

housing. The operative paragraphs of the Complaint allege that: 

*I 42 U.S.C. 3613 provides that the Attorney General may sue when 
- there has been a "pattern or practice" of discrimination in housing 

or where he determines that a denial of equal housing opportunity to 
a group of persons raises an issue of general public importance. 



"5. The defendants, through the actions of their 
agents and employees, have discriminated against persons 
because of race in the operation of their apartment build-
ings, among other ways, by: 

(a) Refusing to rent dwellings and negotiate 
for the rental of dwellings with persons because 
of race and color, in violation of Section 804(a) 
of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3604(a). 

{b) Requiring different terms and conditions 
with respect to the rental of dwellings because 
of race and color, in violation of Section 804(b) 
of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3604{b}. 

(c) Making and causing to be made statements 
with respect to the rental of dwellings which indicate 
a preference, limitation and discrimination based on 
race and color in violation of Section 804(c) of the 
Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3604(c). 

(d) Representing to persons because of race 
and color that dwellings are not available for 
inspection and rental when such dwellings are in 
fact so available, in violation of Section 804(d) 
of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3604{d)." 

"6. The defendants' conduct described in the pre-
ceding paragraph constitutes: 

(a) A pattern and practice of resistance 
by the defendants to the full enjoyment of rights 
secured by Title VIII of the Fair Housing Act of 
1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et 

(b) A denial to groups of persons of rights 
granted by Title VIII of the Fair Housing Act of 
1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et denial raises 
an issue of general public importance." 

- 2 -



The defendants have filed Motions to dismiss and, in the 

alternative, for a more definite statement, alleging that the 

Complaint fails to state a cause of action and is too vague to en-

able them to respond. Defendants have also filed what purports to 

be a counterclaim which seeks damages from the United States in the 

amount of 100 million dollars. Defendants' counterclaim is grounded 

on the proposition that plaintiff having no facts to support its 

charges and having filed an "amorphous" ·k I complaint, damaged de fen-

dants in the amount of 100 million dollars because of the false and 

misleading information plaintiff conveyed to the New York Times and 

the Daily News concerning this lawsuit. 

DISCUSSION 

I. Motion to Dismiss 

Defendants claim that the Complaint in this action does not 

allege facts to support its general allegations, and that it should 

therefore be dismissed for failure to state a claim upon which 

relief can be granted. Plaintiff submits that the Complaint conforms 

to the requirements of F.R.C.P. 8(a) and is sufficient. 

*' Affidavit of Roy Cohn, p.4. Ostensibly in support of their motions 
and counterclaim, defendants have filed extravagant and misleading 
affidavits by the defendant Donald Trump and by his counsel which 
accuse the United States, in the most inflammatory rhetoric, of bring-
ing the suit without grounds, of attempting to "bludgeon" a settle-
ment, and of various other nefarious activities. While these affidavits 
have nothing to do with any of the motions before the Court, Motions 
to dismiss and for a more definite statement are predicated on pleadings 
alone. We respond to them briefly in a separate memorandum in order to 
set the record straight. 

- 3 -



Under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure "[the] federal 

courts are not hampered by the morass of decisions as to whether 

a particular allegation is one of fact, evidence or law ... There 

is no requirement that the pleading state 'facts," or 'ultimate 

facts,' or 'facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action.'" 

2A Moore's Federal Practice ,813, pp. 1692, 1694. In Conley v. 

Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 47-48 (1957), another case of racial discrimination 

in which defendants filed a motion identical in principle to that 

filed here, the Supreme Court sustained the Complaint as follows: 

The respondents also argue that the complaint 
failed to set forth specific facts to support its 
general allegations of discrimination and that its 
dismissal is therefore proper. The decisive answer 
to this is that the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 
do not require a claimant to set out in detail the 
facts upon which he bases his claim. To the con-
trary, all the Rules require is "a short and plain 
statement of the claim" that will give the defendant 
fair notice of what the plaintiff's claim is and 
the grounds upon which it rests. The illustrative 
forms appended to the Rules plainly demonstrate this. 
Such simplified "notice pleading" is made possible 
by the liberal opportunity for discovery and the 
other pretrial procedures established by the Rules 
to disclose more precisely the basis of both claim 
and defense and to define more narrowly the dis-
puted facts and issues. 

The Complaint in this case alleges that the defendants pursue 

a racially discriminatory policy in the operation of their apartment 

- 4 -



buildings. While omitting evidentiary details such as names, dates, 

places, etc., it clearly advises the defendants of the nature and 

basic outline of the charges by alleging, in paragraph 5, in "simple, 

concise, and direct" terms four separate categories of the defend-

ants' noncompliance with the Fair Housing Act. It is identical, in 

terms of nonpleading of evidentiary matter, to a number of other fair 

housing complaints by the Attorney General brought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 

3613, with respect to which similar motions to dismiss have been 

uniformly denied. See e.g., United States v. Luebke, 345 F. Supp. 179 

(D. Colo. 1972); United States v. Black Jack, Civil Action No. 71-C-

372(1), P.H.E.O.H. Rptr. Para. 13,561 (E.D. Mo. March 30, 1972); United 

States v. Bob Lawrence Realty, Inc., 313 F. Supp. 870 (N.D. Ga. 1970); 

rel'd order aff'd 474 F. 2d 115 (5th Cir. 1973), cert. den. U.S. 

____ , 42 L.W. 3195 (Oct. 9, 1973.); United States v. Northside Realty 
Associates, 324 F. Supp. 287 (N.D. Ga. 1971). 

R. CIV. P. 8(e)(l). 
The Courts have reached the same result in the following unreported 

cases: United States v. Raymond, Civil Action No. 73-119-CIV-T-H (M.D. 
Fla. Sept. 5, 1973); United States v. City of Parma, Civil Action No. C-
73-439 (N.D. Ohio Sept. 5, 1973); United States v. Robbins, Civil Action 
No. 73-848 CIV-JE (S.D. Fla. June 22, 1973); United States v. Watson 
Civil Action No. 73-97 (M.D. La. May 15, 1973); United States v. Pelzer 
Realty Company, Inc., Civil Action No. 3284-N (M.D. Ala. July 16, 1971); 
United States v. Davis, Civil Action No. 6451-71 (S.D. Ala. May 18, 1971); 
United States v. A.B. Smythe, Inc., Civil Action No. C-69-885 (N.D. Ohio 
Nov. 24, 1970); United States v. Goldberg, Civil Action No. 70-1223-CIV-
CF (S.D. Fla. Oct. 19, 1970); United States v. PMC Development Co., Inc. 
Civil Action No. 13578 (N.D. Ga., July 28, 1970); United States v. Palm 
(continued on next page) 
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The same result has been reached in numerous employment discrimi-

nation cases. United States v. Georgia Power Company, 301 F. Supp. 

538, 541 (N.D. Ga. 1969); United States v. International Brotherhood 

of Electrical Workers, Local No. 683, 270 F. Supp. 233, 235 (S. D. 

Ohio 1967); United States v. Building and Construction Trades Council 

of St. Louis, 271 F. Supp. 447, 452 (E. D. Mo. 1966). 

In Conley v. Gibson, supra, the Courtsaid: 

" .•• in appraising the sufficiency.of 
the complaint we follow, of course, the 
accepted rule that a complaint should not 
be dismissed for failure to state a claim 
unless it appears beyond doubt that the 
plaintiff can prove no set of facts in 
support of his claim which would entitle 
him to relief." 355 U.S. at 45-46. 

See also 2A Moore's Federal Practice ,12.08, p. 2271-2274 and 

(continued from previous page) 
Beach Listing Bureau, Inc., Civil Action No. 70-379-CIV-CF (S.D. Fla. 
May 5, 1970); United States v. Miller, Civil Action No. 70-40 (D. Md. 
April 27, 1970); United States v. H.G. Smithy, Civil Action No. 21470 
(D. Md. April 17, 1970); United States v. Management Clearing, Inc., 
Civil Action No. 70-23-PHX. (CAM) (D. Ariz. April 8, 1970). 

Copies of the Complaints and Orders in the above cases have 
been attached to this memorandum. 

- 6 -



cases there collected. Rule 12(b)(6) motion'has the effect of 

admitting the validity and existence of the claim as stated, but 

contests plaintiff's right to recover under the law On motion 

to dismiss, the complaint is to be construed in the light most 

favorable to the plaintiff." United States v. Georgia Power Company, 

supra, 301 F. Supp. at 541. In United States v. City of Parma, Civil 

Action No. 73-439 (N.D. Ohio Sept. 5, 1973), P.H.E.O.H. Rptr. Para. 

13,616 the Court, after summarizing the foregoing authorities, added 

that: 

"It is especially in civil rights disputes that 
we ought to be wary of disposing of the case on 
pretrial motions and courts do in fact have a 
predilection for allowing civil rights cases to 
proceed until a comprehensive record is avail-
able to either support or negate the facts alleged." 
Sisters of Prov. of St. Mary of Woods v. City of 
Evanston, 335 F. Supp. 396, 399 (N.D. Ill. 1971). 

Consistent with the allegations of the complaint, plaintiff is 

authorized to adduce proof that defendants have refused to rent 

dwellings on the basis of race, have required different terms and 

conditions with respect to the rental of dwellings on the basis of 

race, made discriminatory statements relating to the rental of dwell-

ings and have represented on account of race that dwellings were 

!I The test as to sufficiency laid down by Mr. Justice Holmes in Hart v. 
B. F. Keith Vaudeville Exchange, 262 U.S. 271 (1923) is whether 
the claim is wholly frivolous. Radovich v. National Football League 
352 U.S. 445 (1957) reh. den. 353 U.S. 931 (1957). 
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unavailable for rental when such dwellings were in fact so available. 

Defendants can hardly controvert the proposition that if plaintiff 

proves its allegations, then the defendants will have been shown 

to have violated 42 U.S.C. 3604(a) through (d) and plaintiff will be 

entitled to relief. Conley v. Gibson, supra, Cf. United States v. 

Georgia Power Company, supra, 301 F. Supp. at 541, 543; United States 

v. Building and Construction Trades Council of St. Louis, supra, 

271 F. Supp. at 452. 

The authorities cited by defendants do not even remotely 

support the proposition that the complaint in this case should be 

dismissed. While plaintiff's authorities arise out of cases involving 

complaints and suits virtually identical in principle to those here, 

defendants' authorities involve entirely different kinds of complaints 

and issues. Even so, the motions to dismiss in several of defendants' 

cases were denied, and the propriety of general pleadings which are to 

be liberally construed was recognized in substantially all of them. 

In those cases in which the complaints were dismissed, that result 

rested on considerations demonstrably absent from the instant case. 

In Pauling v. McElroy, 278 F. 2d 258 (D.C. Cir. 1955), the 

Court of Appeals sustained the dismissal of a suit to enjoin nuclear 

testing on the grounds that the plaintiffs lacked standing. The 

Court explicitly stated that: 
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"we need not reach possible questions ari.si.ng 
out of the facts, well pleaded or otherwise." 
Id at 254. 

The Court recognized by way of dictum that a motion to dis-

miss does not admit "sweeping legal conclusions cast in the form of 

factual allegations." In the present case, however, we allege, among 

other things, that defendants have refused to rent to blacks on 

account of race - a statement of fact pertaining to defendants' 

policies which can hardly be characterized as a "legal conclusion". 

Conley v. Gibson, supra. */ 

Defendants claim to rely on Thurston v. Setab Computer Insti-

48 F.R.D. 134 (S.D. N.Y. 1969). That case involved a 

complaint which alleged fraud by the defendants but failed to allege 

any injury resulting from that fraud. Since Rule 9(b), F.R.CIV.P. 

explicitly requires that in such cases, "the circumstances consti-

tuting fraud ... shall be stated with particularity," the Court, 

was compelled to dismiss the action, even though it recognized the 

general liberal rules of pleading described in this memorandum. 

The McLeneghan, Stewart, and Atlanta Gas cases purportedly relied 
on by defendants at pages 4-5 of their brief are apparently cited 
simply because they contain the same observation about "sweeping 
legal conclusions" as in Pauling. They are all distinguishable on 
the same ground as Pauling. In the Blackburn case, the Court de-
clined to "accept as true allegations that are in conflict with 
facts judicially known to the Court." 443 F. 2d at 123. This is of 
no help to defendants here, for this Court can hardly take judicial 
notice without proof that the Trumps do or do not discriminate in 
their rental practices. 
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But it is well settled that a civil suit by the Attorney General 

for racial discrimination is not one for fraud subject to Rule 9(b). 

As the Court said in United States v. 321 F. 2d 26, 27 (5th 

Cir. 1963), in relying on Conley v. Gibson, supra, to sustain a voting 

discrimination complaint no more specific than the housing discrimi-

nation complaint in this case: 

As to the problem of pleading, we adhere to our 
former ruling that "it is clear that there was 
no justification for the Court's requiring the 
government to amend its complaint in this civil 
rights action to allege specific details of voter 
discrimination as if this were an action for fraud 
or mistake under Rule 9, Federal Rules of Civil 
Procedure." 

Accordingly, defendants' analogy to the Thurston decision is unsound. 

Finally, defendants cite a group of decisions for the pro-

position that a general allegation of conspiracy, without more, will 

not survive a motion to dismiss. !/ In the present case, however, no 

conspiracy is alleged, and it is therefore unnecessary to plead with 

particularity such items as intentional wrongdoing and overt acts, 

which are essential to a civil complaint in conspiracy. Huey v. Barloga, 

supra, 277 F. Supp. at 871-872. The present action alleges housing 

discrimination, not conspiracy, and it is well established that con-

duct with a racially discriminatory effect violates the Fair Housing 

Act, irrespective of motivation. 

!I Huey v. Barloga, 277 F. Supp. 864 (N.D. Ill. 1971); Stewart v. 
Havelone, 283 F. Supp. 842 (D. Neb. 1968). 

States v. Pelzer Realty Co., 484 F. 2d 438 (5th Cir. 1973); 
United States v. Real Estate Dev. Corp., 347 F. Supp. 776 (N.D. 
Miss. 1972) and see Griggs v. Duke Power Co., 401 U.S. 424 (1971). 
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We believe that the foregoing demonstrates that none of 

the authorities relied on by defendants stands for any proposition 

at issue in this case. Since complaints such as that in this case 

have been uniformly sustained in suits by the Attorney General under 

the Fair Housing Act and similar statutes, the motion to dismiss 

should be denied. 

II. Motion for More Definite Statement 

Defendants' Motion for More Definite Statement requests 

specific facts as to the persons, buildings and dates that were in-

volved in the alleged violations of 42 U.S.C. 3604. Plaintiff sub-

mits that such information amounts to evidentiary detail which should 

be obtained through discovery. Rule 12(e) on which defendants' motion 

is based, "is designed to strike at unintelligibility rather than want 

of detail .... If the pleading meets the requirements of Rule 8 and 

fairly notifies the opposing party of the nature of the claim, a motion 

for a more definite statement will not be granted." 2A Moore's Federal 

Practice '12.18, p. 2389, DellaVecchia v. Fairchild Engine Co., 171 

F. 2d 610 (2d Cir. 1968). As the Court of Appeals for this Circuit 

observed in Michael v. Clark Equipment Co., 380 F. 2d 351, 352 (2d Cir. 

1967), motions of this kind ostensibly designed to "get the plaintiff's 

pleading into better shape," are often a waste of time, especially 

since evidentiary facts can easily be elicited through discovery and 

frivolous suits disposed of by a motion for sununary judgement. 
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It is not the function of a Motion for a more definite 

statement to discover evidence. Nixa v. Hayes, 55 F.R.D. 40 (E.D. 

Wis. 1972). Accordingly, courts have repeatedly held in cases in-

volving racial discrimination that the complaint need not plead 

evidence. The Complaint in this action is identical, in terms of 

non-pleading of evidentiary matter, to a number of other fair housing 

complaints by the Attorney General brought pursuant to 42 U.S. 3613, 

with respect to which motions for a more definite statement have been 

filed on a wide variety of grounds. All of these motions have been 

denied, the Court holding in each instance that additional clarifi-

cation or evidentiary allegations were unnecessary. See e.g., United 

States v. Bob Lawrence Realty, Inc., 313 F. Supp. 870 (N.D. Ga. 1970); 

United States v. Northside Realty Associates, 324 F. Supp. 287 (N.D. 

Ga. 1971); United States v. City of Black Jack, Civil Action No. 71-

C-372(1), P.H.E.O.H. Rptr. Para. 13,561 (E.D. Mo. March 30, 1972); 

United States v. City of Parma, P.H.E.O.H. Rptr. para. 13,616 (N.D. 

Ohio 1973). *' As the Court said in Lawrence, supra: 

*I The Courts have reached the same result in the following unreported 
cases: United States v. Mrs. Dean Miles, et al., Civil Action No. CA-
3-7243-E (N.D. Tex. Sept. 5, 1973); United States v. Robbins, Civil 
Action No. 73-848 CIV-JE (S.D. Fla. June 22, 1973); United States v. 
Jim Tucker Co., Civil Action No. 72-H-993 (S.D. Tex. Sept. 27, 1972); 
United States v. J.C. Long, Civil Action No. 71-1262 (D. S.C. April 3, 
1972); United States v. Exclusive Multiple Exchange, Civil Action No. 
C-70-969 (N.D. Ohio Nov. 8, 1971); United States v. Margurette Jones, 
(Continuedon next page) 
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We conclude further that the complaint, 
couched as it is in the very language of the 
statute, provides adequate notice of the claim 
made by plaintiff and is not subject to a 
motion for more definite statement. Any 
additional information to which defendant is 
entitled may be obtained by use of the dis-
covery procedures provided by the Federal Rules. 
United States v. Bob Lawrence Realty, Inc., 
supra, 313 F. Supp. at 873. (emphasis added) 

Likewise in employment discrimination cases brought pursuant 

to 42 U.S.C. 2000e-6, (which has a pattern and practice provision 

substantially identical to 42 U.S.C. 3613) the courts have denied 

motions for a more definite statement, holding that the Government's 

complaints clearly advised the defendants of the nature and basic 

outline of the charges by alleging categories of noncompliance with 

the law and not evidentiary details. United States v. Gustin-Bacon 

Division, 426 F. 2d 539, 543 (lOth Cir. 1970), den. 400 U.S. 

832 (1970); United States v. Georgia Power Co., supra, 301 F. Supp. 

at 543-44; United States v. International Brotherhood of Electrical 

Workers, Local No. 683, 270 F. Supp. 233, 235 (S.D. Ohio 1967); 

(continued from previous page) 
Civil Action No. 71-H-279 (S.D. Tex. April 30, 1971); United States v. 
Chirico, Civil Action No. 70-1851 (E.D. Pa., August 12, 1970); United 
States v. Gilman, Civil Action No. 70-Civil 1967 (S.D. N.Y. July 28, 
1970); United States v. PMC Development Co., Inc., Civil Action No. 
13578 (N.D. Ga. July 28, 1970); United States v. Palm Beach Realty 
Listing Bureau, Inc., Civil Action No. 70-379-CIV-CF (S.D. Fla., 
May 5, 1970); United States v. Arco Inc., Civil Action No. 70-29 
(W.D. Tenn. March 20, 1970). 

Copies of the complaints and orders in the above cases have 
been attached to this memorandum. 
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United States v. Building and Construction Trades Council of St. Louis, 

271 F. Supp. 447, 454 (E.D. Mo. 1966). See also, United States v. 

Lynd, 321 F. 2d 26, 27 (5th Cir. 1963) (voting discrimination) 

(district judge abused discretion by granting motion for a more 

definite statement on theory that voting discrimination case was 

equivalent to suit for fraud). 

It is well settled that "Rule 12(e) does not require the 

pleader to set out in detail the facts upon which he bases his claim, 

. nor may the Rule be employed as a means of discovery." Michigan 

Gas & Electric Co. v. American Electric Power Co., 41 F.R.D. 462, 

464 (S.D. N.Y. 1966); 4 Moore's Federal Practice §12.18, pp. 2395-96. 

The test is whether the complaint is "capable of being answered." 

Acoustica Associates v. Ultrasonic Corp., 4 F.R. Serv. 2d 

12e. 241, case 1 (E.D. N.Y. 1961). Defendants are hardly in a position 

to claim that a complaint alleging, among other things, that defendants 

have refused to rent apartments on account of race and have misrepre-

sented their availability on account of race, is incomprehensible to 

them. 

The defendant Donald Trump has denied discrimination in his 

affidavit. His counsel, Mr. Cohn, has sworn that "it appears certain 

that will be entitled to no relief" and, further, that: 

*I Although Mr. Cohn consistently refers to the Government in the plural, 
- we expressly disavow the royal "we". 
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11 these defendants do not discriminate in the 
renting of their apartments and that the 
Government's charges are totally unfounded." 

Being so committed under oath, the defendants can surely answer 

the Complaint, deny the allegations, and put us to our proof, 

instead of engaging in the "barristerial shadow boxing" to which 

motions for a more definite statement are prone. Lincoln Labora-

tories v. Savage Laboratories, 26 F.R.D. 141, 142-143 (D. Del. 

1960). 
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III. Defendants' Counterclaim 

Defendants' purported counterclaim, which is rather cryptically 

pleaded and has apparently been presented to the Court even though 

defendants seek dismissal of the main action and have not answered, 

alleges in substance that plaintiff has defamed defendants by causing 

two New York newspapers to publish false information about the suit, 

to defendants' pecuniary damage. It seeks damages in the modest 

amount of $100,000,000. On its face, it appears to be a claim for 

damages for libel or slander. Read in the most generous way possible, 

and in conjunction with the Cohn and Trump affidavits, it could con-

ceivably be construed as alleging abuse of process. Either way, the 

Court has no jurisdiction of the claim, and it should be dismissed 

as the United States is not subject to suit for damages for libel, 

slander, or abuse of process. 28 U.S.C. 2680(h). 

This Court's jurisdiction to grant relief against the United 

States "depends wholly upon the extent to which the sovereign has 

waived its immunity to suit, and such waiver cannot be implied but 

must be unequivocally expressed." United States v. Sherwood, 312 U.S. 

584 (1941); United States v. King, 395 U.S. 1, 4 (1969); United 

States v. Clark, 8 Peters. 436, 33 U.S. 436 (1834). 
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Despite the express requirement of Rule 8(a) that a counter-

claim contain "a short and plain statement of the grounds upon 

which the court's jurisdiction depends," defendants' counterclaim 

contains no such statement. The reason is plain: this Court has 

no jurisdiction of defendants' claim. 

Under the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §1346(b} and 

Ch. 171, this Court does have jurisdiction of actions against the 

United States "for money damages • • • for injury or loss of 

property • • • caused by the negligent or wrongful act or omission 

of any employee of the Government while acting within the scope of 

his employment • • II 28 u.s.c. §1346(b). However, the Tort Claims 

Act expressly provides that it shall not confer jurisdiction of actions 

against the United States on "[a]ny claim arising out of . . • abuse 

of process, ••• libel: [or] slander •••• " 28 U.S.C. §2680(h). 

I II n sum, • • • the United States is not liable for the deliberate 

torts of its agents of the kind alleged." Wessly v. General Services 

Administration, 341 F. 2d 275, 276 (2d Cir. 1964}. See also, Baca v. 

United States, 467 F. 2d 1061, 1063 (lOth Cir. 1972); Smith v. 

DiCova, 329 F. Supp. 439 (E.D. N.Y. 1971); DiSilvestro v. United 

States, 181 F. Supp. 860 (E.D. N.Y. 1960); Teplitsky v. Bureau of 

Compensation, U.S. Department of Labor, 288 F. Supp. 310, 312 (S.D. N.Y. 

1968); and Benjamin v. Ribicoff, 205 F. Supp. 532, 533 (D. Mass. 1962). 
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That defendants' alleged claim is asserted as a counterclaim 

here,instead of as an independent action, is immaterial. Rule 13(d) 

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure expressly provides that 

"[t]hese rules shall not be construed to enlarge beyond the limits 

now fixed by law the right to assert counterclaims or to claim credits 

against the United States • • " 
Moreover, even if a claim against the sovereign for damages 

for defamation or abuse of process were cognizable in this Court, 
*I 

this counterclaim would not be.- "With the exception of a com-

pulsory counterclaim which asserts a matter of recoupment and a set-

off, neither a permissive nor a compulsory counterclaim may be main-

tained against the United States unless it has given specific 

statutory consent." 3 Moore's Federal Practice, 2d ed. 313"!'28; United 

States v. Shaw, 309 U.S. 495 (1939); United States v. Northside Realty 

Associates, 324 F. Supp. 287, 292 (N.D. Ga. 1971). No consent has 
**I been given to claims, or counterclaims, such as this.--

*7 Were such a claim within the Tort Claims Act jurisdiction, it would 
nonetheless be jurisdictionally defective for want of compliance with 
the requirements of 28 U.S.C. §267S(a), which bars a tort action 
against the United States'unless the claimant shall have first presented 
the claim to the appropriate Federal agency and his claim shall have 
been finally denied by the agency in writing •••• " 

The total absence of any foundation in law for defendants' pur-
ported counterclaim is compounded by the technical but significant 
fact that this extraordinary pleading has not been signed "by at least 
one attorney of record in his individual name," as required by Rule 11, 

(footnote continued next page) 

- 18 -



* * * 

This is not the first time that a large real estate company 

has sought to strike back flamboyantly against the United States 

for seeking to bring its housing practices before the courts. In 

United States v. Northside Realty Associates, Inc., 324 F. Supp. 287 

(N.D. Ga. 1971), the defendants made essentially the same baseless 

motions to dismiss and for a more definite statement here presented 

by the Trumps, and also sued for damages. More temperate than the 

Trumps, Northside and its president, Ed Isakson, only sought not less 

than $100,000 per each defendant, a substantial enough but 

only one tenth of one per cent of what the Trumps would like. 

Although a similar press release was issued, and received considerable 

(footnote continued from previous page) 
F.R.C.P •• That salutary Rule declares, in pertinent part: 

The signature of an attorney constitutes a certificate 
by him that he has read the pleading; that to his 
knowledge, information, and belief there is good 
ground to support it; and that it is not interposed 
for delay. If a pleading is not signed or is 
signed with intent to defeat the purpose of this 
rule, it may be stricken as sham and false and 
the action may proceed as though the pleading had 
not been served. 

See American Automobile Ass'n. v. Rothman, 104 F. Supp. 655 (E.D. N.Y. 
1952); American Automobile Ass'n. v. Rothman, 101 F. Supp. 193 (E.D. 
N.Y. 1951); and United States to Use of and for Benefit of Foster 
Wheeler Corporation v. American Surety Co. of New York, 25 F. Supp. 
225 (E.D. N.Y. 1938). 
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*I play,- Northside's counterclaim contained no count for libel and 
**I 

was limited to abuse of process.-- After denying defendants' motions 

addressed to the Complaint, the Court dismissed the counterclaim for 

reasons comprehensively presented in its opinion, 324 F. Supp. 290-293. 

Despite the minor technical differences between these two counter-

claims, they are two of a kind. For the reasons given by the Court 
***I in Northside,--- as well as the additional grounds related in this 

brief, we ask the Court to dismiss the counterclaim with prejudice 

so that the parties can address themselves to the one and only real 

issue in this case, namely, whether defendants have engaged in a 

pattern and practice of discrimination in housing or have denied 

equal housing opportunity to a group of persons.42 U.S.C. 3613. 

Defendant Isakson was the President of the Georgia Real Estate 
Comriliss ion. 

**I Northside's counterclaim was against the Attorney General and his 
subordinates, but the Court treated it as a claim against the United 
States. 

The Court held, in sum, that the claim did not qualify as a 
compulsory counterclaim since it did not arise from the same trans-
action, or as a permissive counterclaim because the suit was really one 
against the United States to which the sovereign had not consented. 
United States v. Faneca, 332 F. 2d 872, 875 (5th Cir. 1964). 
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CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, plaintiff respectfully requests 

that defendants' Motions to Dismiss and for a More Definite State-

ment be denied and that defendants' counterclaim be dismissed with 

prejudice. 

Plaintiff has prepared a proposed Order which is attached to 

this Memorandum. 

Assistant;Onited States 
Attorney 

Department of Justice 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Respectfully submitted, 

1. 
FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

.xl 
ELYStS. GOIDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



... CERT!PICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Elyse S. Goldweber, an attorney for the plaintiff, 

certify that I have served a copy of the attached Notice 

of Motion of the United States to dismiss defendants' counter-

claim, a copy of the attached Memorandum of the United States 

in Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, Hotion for 

Hore Definite Statement and in Support of Plaintiff's Hotion 

to Dismiss the Counterclaim and a copy of the attached 

Hemorandtnn of the United States in Response to the Affidavits 

of Donald Trump and Roy Cohn on the defendants by mailing a 

copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney at the following 

address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

This, the 4th day of January, 1974. 

,',• 
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ELvc·il C' .... u. )1.-Jl\. 

Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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.. FINDINGS OF FACT, 

OF lAW AND PRELININARY TNJUNCTION 

The United States of America filed this action on 

March 14, 1973, pursuant to 42 U.S.C.A. §3613 against the 

Defendant George N. Raymond seeking relief for alleged vio-

lations of Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (the 

Fair Housing Act), 42 U.S.C.A. §3601, The Complaint 

alleges that the Defendant made dwellings unavailable to 

persons because of race and color; imposed different terms, 

conditions, and privileges of rental of dwellings on persons 

because of race and color; and made statements with respect 

to the rental of dwellings which indicate a preference, 

limitation, and discrimination based on race and color. The 

Complaint further alleges that the Defendant's conduct con-

stitutes a pattern and practice of resistance to the full 

enjoyment of rights secured by the Fair Housing Act and a 

denial to groups of persons of rights granted by the Fair 

Housing Act, which denial raises an issue of general public 

importance. The Complaint seeks injunctive nnd affirnativc 

relief. The States also·moved for a in-

j unc cion. On April 12, 1973, the Defertdan_t filed a motion to 
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dfsmiss the Complaint, or in the alternative, for"4 ·a 'mote' 

definite statement. Both of Defendant's motions have been 

denied. 

On July 5, 1973, Plaintiff's Motion for a Preliminary 

Injunction came on for hearing. The'Court has considered the 

. and documentary evidence, and the contentions of 

counsel for both parties. Pursuant to Rule 52 of the Federal 
' Rules of Civil Procedure the Court-makes the following Findings 

• of Fact and Conclusions of Law: 

'· FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Defendant George N. Raymond owns and operates . 
approximately 50 apartment rental units in St. Petersburg, 

Florida. He previously owned and operated approximately 20 

additional apartment units in St. Petersburg, including the 

Florene Apartments. 

2. All of Mr. Raymond's tenants have been white 

persons. 

3. During May 1972, the Federal Bureau of Investiga-

tion, United States Department of Justice, conducted an in-

vestigation of allegations that Mr. Raymond was engaged in 

racially discriminatory housing practices irt violation of the 

Fair Hous.ing Act of 1968. Mr. Raymond was told of the purpose 

I . of this investigation. He consented to being interview=d, 
I 
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'i 
II 
:I 
I 
.i 

I' 
I 

I' 

and furnished a signed statement which was witnessed by Special 

Agents James Delk Leland and John V. DeNeale. Mr. Raymond 

admitted pursuing a racially policy in the opera-

tion of his apartment buildings, as follm.;s: 

My policy is not to rent rnv apartments to 
black people. If I rented to black people I 
would lose tho:; :\·Jhite tenants in my apartment 
house. In addition, with my plan to sell this 
apartment house [located at 516 lOth Avenue 
South,] if I had rented to black Rcople, I 
feel as it I would have lost. 1/3 of my in-
vestment in this particular property. 
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are no black tenants in any of these 
apartments and never has been. If a black 
person wanted to rent nn apartment in one of 
these anartmcnts I would refuse to rent it 

, inasmuch as I ·Hould not "break the color 
line." (Emphasis added) 

' 

4. On July 26, 1971, Mr. Rajmond rented apartillent #4 

at the Florene Apartments, 516 lOth Avenue South, to Bradford 

and Gail Sorenson, a white couple, for a one-year period, 
' 

August 1, 1971, through July 31, 1972. On May 4, 1972, two 

black f'ernales were visiting the Sorensons at 
' I 

Raymond.came to the apartment and asked to speak to Mr. 

Sorenson outside at the garage. Once outside Mr. Raymond 

Sorenson that he wanted the Sorensons to move out of the 

apartment as soon as possible. Upon being asked by Mr. Soren-

son whether or not having two black guests in the apartment 

had anything to do with their eviction, Mr. Raymond replied in 

the affirmative. In his signed statement to the Federal Bureau 

of Investigation, Mr. Raymond admitted this affirmative response. 

Mr. Sorenson returned to his ap.artment and told his 

wife they were being evicted because they had black female 

guests. Mrs. Sorenson left the apartment and met Nr. Raymond 

in front of the building. Mr. Sorenson joined them shortly 

thereafter. When Mrs. Sorenson asked Mr. Raymond why he was 

evicting them, Mr. Raymond told her that it was because they 

had two blacks in their apartment. Mr. Raymond also said he 

was in the process of selling the apartment building (Florene 

Apartments) and that the presence of the black females on the 

premises would decrease the value of the property. Finally, 

Mr. stated tnat another tenant had complained to him 

rcg<lrding the presence of the black females. 

-3-

,I ' od ' " l ; I I ! I I 

I 

·I 

I 
i 

·I 
' i ! 
I 
I 
l 
' 



. 

'I . II 
I, 
'I . 
I 

,4 

Nr. Raymond subsequently sent the Sorenson's 'an 'eviction 

notice nnd they vacated the apartment at the end of May 1972. 

II 5. On May 4, 1972, a white tenant asked Nr. Ray:nond 
t! 
'I II if he was going to rent a vacant apartment at the Florene 
I. 

Apartments to "colored people" and subsequently told him that 

she would leave if "colored people" moved into the apartment. 

In his signed statement to the Federal Bureau of Investigation, 
' 

Z.Ir. Raymond admitted telling her that he "was not going to rent 

to colo'red people." I 

• I . .. 
CONCLUSIONS OF lAW 

1. This Court has jurisdiction of this action under 

28 u.s.c. §1345 and 42 u.s.c.A. §3613. 

2. The Defendant's apartments are dwellings within 

the meaning of 42 u.s.c.A. §3602(b). 

3. U.S.C.A. §3604 (a) and (b) prohibit discrimina-

tion against "any person" because of race or color. Discrimi-

nation against white persons because of the race or color of 

their guests is therefore prohibited. Cf. Sullivan v. Little 

Hunting Park, Inc., '396 U.S. 229, 237 (1969); Walker v. Pointer, 

304 F.Supp. 56, 57-61 (N.D. Tex. 1969). 

4. To prevail on the merits, the United States must 

show that the Defendant has either: 

'I (a) engaged in a "pattern or practice" of resist.:1:1.ce 

II 
to the full enjoyment of the right to equal housing opportunity; 

!I 
11 
II 

or 
II li ,, 

I 
I 

(b) denied the right to equal housing 

and "such denial raises an issue of general public importance." 
I 
i. 

I! 
1: ,: 

42 U.S.C.A. §3613; U.S. v. Bob Lawrence Realty 1 Inc., 474 F.2d . -
115, 122-123 (5th Cir. 1973); U.S. v. Hunter, 459 F.2d 205, 

II 
I' ,: ,, 216-218 (4th Cir. 1972). 
" ·' j: 

" ;, 
!J p 
" 
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., 
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5. To prove a "pattern or practice" of resi·.3tance to 

the full enjoyment of the right to equal housing opportunity, 

the United States must show more than "an isolated or accidental 

instance of conduct violative of the Act, but rather, as the 

term 'resistance'· connotes, an intentional, regular, or repeated . . . 

violation of the right granted by the Act." U.S. v. Hunter, 

459 F.2d 205, 217 (4th Cir. 1972). Extrajudicial admissions of 
' . a racially discriminatory policy are evidence of a pattern or 

practice. Cf. u.s. v. \vest Peachtree TenthCorp.,_437 F.2d 221, 

227 (5th Ctr: 1971); U.S. v. Real Estate Development·Corp., 

347 F.Supp. 776; 783 (N.D. ¥dss. 1972). The Court finds that 

the Defendant's extrajudicial admissions of a discriminatory 
• 

policy (Findings of Fact Nos. 3 and 5) coupled with the eviction 

of a white tenant pursuant to that policy because they had blac. 

guests (Finding of Fact No. 4) constitute a pattern or practice 

. of discriminatory conduct. The incident was not:accidental 

due to the Defendant's own deliberate act (however impetuous 

and regretable); and it was not isolated (due to the admitted 

policy or attitude, corroborated by the absence of any black 

tenants in the past). 

6. With regard to the remedy, "[e]stablished prin-

ciples of equity dictate that in considering whether to 

injunctive relief a court should impose upon a defendant no 

restriction gr·eater than necessary to protect the plaintiff 

from the injury of which he complains." U.S. v. Hunter, 459 

F.2d 205, 219 (4th Cir. 1972). Cf. U.S. v. Bob Lmvrence Realty, 

Inc., 474 F.2d 115,_127 (5th Cir. 1973). In thi3 instance, 

while the Court has concluded that the evidence is suffici2nt 

to establish the Government's claim as all.zged in the Complaint, 

including the element of "pattern or practice," the proof do,;s 

-5-
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II I' , 
·l 
I I . not justify a finding or conclusion that 'has 

I maliciously and denied rights guaranteed by the 

Act or that his present attitude portends a contumacious 

.:1dhcrencc to his discriminatory policy. Cf. U.S. V. West 

Peachtree Tenth Cor_E., 43 7 F. 2d 221, 223 (5th Cir. 19_71). 

Defendant is the proprietor of a small business with offices 

in his own home. He is not the owner of a large 
. 

scale apartment'complex with a supporting staff of numerous 

assist'q.nts to help in manage."TTent. Cf. U.S. v. West Peachtree 

Tenth Corp:·, !supra; U.S. v. Real Estate Development Coro., 

347 F.Supp. 776, 779 (N.D. Miss. 1972). Further, the Court 
., . 

notes Defendant's contrite declaration in his testimony at the 

hearing that he would freely and willingly rent units to any 

applicant without regard to race or color as required by the 

Act. Cf. U.S. v. Bob Lawrence Realty, Inc., supra, at 126. 

Together these factors dictate moderation in framing the in-

junctive decree so that it "impose[s] upon the defendant no 

restriction greater than necessary to protect the plaintiff 

from the injury of which he complains." U.S. v·. Hunter, sunra. 

Accordingly, a preliminary injunction in the form that follows 

is amply suited to tli.e circumstances of this-- case as contrasted 

with the facts in Peachtree which had none of the mitigating 

1' .. features present here. U.S. v. West Peachtree Tenth Co1p., 

I 

I 
d 
II ., 
II 
I• 

II ,, ,, 
II 
II 

. ti 
ii 
;I 

li 
il 
li 

'jl 
.! 
il 
I' 
i' 
;• 

supra, at 228-231. 

PRELIHINARY INJUNCTION 

Pursuant to the foregoing Findings.of Fact and Con-

elusions of Law, it is hereby 

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED by this Court that, 

pending further Order of the Court, the Defendant, George N. 
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ii ·J ,, 
1 ·Raymond, and his agents, employees, successors, persons 

in active concert or participation with him are enjoined 

II 
1. Failing or refusing to rent an apartment to any 

! person because of race or color and from making an 

unavailable to any person because of. race or color; 

2. Discriminating against any person in the terms, 

condi·t_ions, or privileges of rental of ah apartment, or in the 

' provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, 

of race or color; I • 

3··. Making, printing, or publishing, or t:o be 

printed, or published, any notice, statement, or adver-. . 
tisement, with respect to the rental of an apartment, that 

• indicates any preference, limitation, or· discrimination based . . 
on race or color, or an intention to make such preference, 

limitation, or discrimination; 

4. Representing to any person because of race or color 

that an apartment is not available for inspection or rental when 

such apartment is in fact available. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendant shall forth-

with adopt and implement the following affirmative program to 

correct the effects of his past discriminat?ry practices:· 

1. Within ten (10) days of this Decree, Defendant 

shall permanently post a notice, or notices, at places clearly 

visible to rental applicants, stating that Defendant's apartments 

will be rented without regard to race or color. At least one 

such notice shall be posted at each of his several apartment 

'I I, 
" ,. 

complexes. 

2. The Defendant shall fully instruct all 
il 
I ,, 
i! o·f his employees, if any, \vith respect to the provisions of th:.::; 
,. ,, 
·i I. Decree and 'tvith respect to their obligations thereunder. Upon 
p ,, ,, .. 
II 
I) 

!I -7-
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!I 

I 

'I ,, 

I' 
,,I, hiring a new employee, Defendant shall explain the.i of 

this Decree to him and advise him th.:tt he is subject to all the 

requirements contained herein. 

3. In the event that a firm, association, company, 

corporation, or other person is engaged by Defendant to act as 

a real estate agent, referral agency, or othenvise manage or 

promote rentals of apartments for the Defendant, such firm 

association, company, corporation, or person shall be notified 

by Defendant that apartments are rented 'vithout regard to race 

or color. •. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that ninety (90) days after the 

entry of this Decree, and at three-month intervals thereafter, 

for a period of years following the entry of this Decree, 

the Defendant shall file with this Court, and serve' on counsel 

for the Plaintiff, a report containing the name, address, and 

the visually observed race of each person who has, within the 

preceding ninety (90) days: 

(a) made written application for the rental of an 

apartment; and/or 

(b) visited the premises as a prospective tenant 

for the purpose of inspecting an available apartment. 

These reports shall additionally contain: 

1. whether or not the rental of an apartment was 

offered to such person; 

2. whether or not the rental of an apartment was 

accepted by each such person; 

3. the dates on which each of the foregoing actions 

were t.:::tkcn. 

For a period of years following the entry of this 
. ' 

decree, the Defendant shall maintain and retain any and all 
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records "tvhi<;:h ar_e the source of, or contain, any o'f the inforrr.a-

tion pertinent to Defendant 1 s oblig.J.tion to rcp.ort to the Court. 

Representatives of the Plaintiff shall be permitted to inspect 

and copy all pertinent records of the Defendant at any and all 

reasonable times, provided, however, that the Plaintiff shall 

endeavor to minimize any inconvenience to the Defendant from 

the inspection of such records. 
' The Court retains jurisdiction of this action for all 

' purposes, including particularly the purpose of modification 
' I of the terms'and requirements of this Decree in the event tha 

same should prove inadequate to facilitate an efficient and . . . 
objective method of determining Defendant's compliance with 

the statute and the Decree. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that counsel for both parties 

are directed to notify the Court in writing "tvithin ten (10) 

days from the date hereof whether either wishes to present 

additional evidence at the trial of this cause, or whether, 

pursuant to Rule 65(a)(2), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, 

the hearing on the application for the preliminary injunction 

previously held may be treated as a trial of the general issues. 
J.l-5 , . ..._ day ---· 

DONE and ORDERED at Tampa, Florida, this 

of September, 1973. 

United States District Judge 
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I Battisti I c.,T 0 

This is an action brouaht by the Attorney 

on behalf of the United Statea.of America seeking injunctive 

against alleged violations of the Fair Housing 

Provisions contained in VIII of the Civil Rights Act, 

42 USC §3601 et seq., by the City of Parma, a municipal 

corporation established under Ohio la\v. 

The complaint alleges, in substance, 

that the defendant, acting in accordance with its purported 

general policy of substantially excluding blacks from re-

siding within its boundaries, prevented the construction of 

a federally assisted apartment development (under Section 236 

of the )iational Housir:g Act, 12 USC 517152-1) which would 

have offered accorr.modations to a fair percentage of black 

and, further, adopted procedures designed to 

effectively L>lod: zu'? nossi'_,il.it:/ of intcnratt:d 

federally assisted housinq from beir:g built in the City. 

1The effect of the above-described acts, it is alleged, is to 

I 
l 

II ;i 

pcr!J"'t virt U·Jll:' .J.ll-·.;hi te; pcmt.:.la tiOI._ makeup of the 

fer. cl '-1:1 t Cit.y; der-y (·1\·;ellirGs to ;:;J.acl:s purely or accccrt -

··- ' ...... ..;._ 
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rnce; to deny to nrospectivc l;;!1ite 

of racially intecrratcd housirg Durely for racial 

Motives; and irterfere tho rirr1tt ard a!Jility of actual 

and prosnectivc sponsors of assisted housirg from 

assistirr: persons ir. t!1e exercise ard crjo·nn.ent of t'.:"leir 

1. to fair ard non-discrimiratory housinq opportunities. 

The complairt that conduct 

corstitutes a nattcrr of of resistarce to the full 

enjoynert of rig;1ts securec. l>y tl-:.e Fair IIousi:rrr l\ct ard 

by the L'ltirteer-t;1 ancl .i\rercJr.e:rts to t1 .. c Uri tee: 

States Corstitution. 

Defendant has dismiss the Government's 

copplair.t, pursuant to Rule 12(b) on the grounds 

that ti1is Court lacks jurisdiction ard that the 

has failed to state a claim upon relief car he qranted. 

In the alterrative, deferdart !'las filed separate notiofls to 

require the Goverrmert to strike various alleaatiors ir. its 

com.plair t and make others Ji'Ore definite. 

Defe:ndar.t bottoMs its motior. to c1isniss, first, on 

the argument that it is not subject to suit by the Attorney 

General pursuant to 42 USC for the reasor that 

mur.icipalities or political subdivisiors of a state are r.ot 

"persons" aaainst which such a suit may be brouoht. 42 usc 
§3611 provides: 

"Hhenever thE} .i\ttorney r.eneral has reasonable 
cause to 1>elieve al"'y Person or 0roup of per-
sons is enqaged in 3 patterr or nractice OT 
resistance to the full enjoyrnert of ar.y riahts 
granted by t}1is subchapter, or that an? group 
of persors has been denied ary of the rights 
granted by this suhchapter 
raises an issue of general public 
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he roay brirn a civil action ir anv ' . . 
nr i ate r;p i t'8(1 S tat,::.s District Court hy 
filircr \vith it a conplnirt: forth 

facts ard requestirg such prcvertivc 
includirn an anplicatior for a ner-

marent or irjurctior, 
order, or other o-rc:er aaair.st t'1e or 
persons for such patterr or 
practice or of rinhts, as he 
necessary to irsure the full enioynent of 
the rinhts ararted by this suhcha!Jter." 

Ir support of its defendant Places great 

reliarce on the holdinas of the Suprero.e Court ir ''1or roe v. 

36 5 US lG 7 (19 61) and Ci tv of Druro, 

us , 41 40.19 (.Jur.e 11, 1973). These cases 

taker. establish that muricipalities are not "persons" 

within the meaning of 42 USC §1983; ard, accordingly, are not 

amer.able to suit under that statute, even if only declaratory 

or equitable relief is souaht. 1 Defendant urges that 

tvTO cases resolve the issue here ir question. Horroe and 

ty of Ke:roscha, hov1ever, may rot be so broadly vie'.ved. 

Both cases exclusively involved the statutory co:rstruction of 
... 

Section 1983 and were predicated on explicit leaislative 

history peculiar to that statute. In neither case was there 

ar.y suggestion that the construction giver to Section 1983 ir. 

regard to "persons" was to apply to other civil rights 

statutes, particularly one passed nearly one hundred years 

after the initial er ·=tmert of Section 1983. 2 ;1orroe and 

City of Ker.oscha, therefore, are not dispositive of ,,,hether 

---
1) t·1hile the Court in nonroe v. Pape, supra_, at p. 187-192 
seemed to have expressly held that municipalities were rot 
amenable to suit urder Section 1983, the holc1ina was construed 
in several subsequert decisions by lower federal courts to 
disalm·: suits :or dar1aaes but not suits seekir.a only equitable 
relief. See P.o., Schrell v. City of Chica0o, 407 F.2d lnqt 
{7th Ci r. r :- ':'he recert rul irq in 

Stnr:;, c1_is·)cll.::d ar:.'' coul:Jts '::'· --- ... -
the by squarely ruliPq that tU"c"!er r.o c l . ..,...(:· ..... -

I 
I stances may Municipalities suhjcct to under Sec:tior' - . , ,-, r .... 

;n 1.::-::c •.-:::'; orirrir ;1 J.y •:r,·:.r::t.ed u'> 
Rlux Act of 20, 1371, 17 Stnt. 13. . ' 

'"' ... , .. ) .... 

1 o-': the I .. 

-
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:-1unicipalities ''·p0rsors" urclPr Section 3613 of the ra.ir 

Housirrr .:\ct. ':.'hie; Court TYJ.ust resolve t!Elt issu0 by adoptinr. 

a construction of Section 3fil1 \·''1ich orop<:!rly cor·'norts 

its m!r narticular cortext. 

Ir the mearinn or reach of the word 

"nersor" ir. the context of Sectior 3613 of the Fair Ilousipa 

11 it is the exDress c'ut'! of t'1e courts to corstru0 the 
I I larrrua(':o so as to ni ve e f'fr:.>ct to intcrt of 
I 
l 

St2tr:s v .. '":"rucldrrr 1'1ssoc., 311/ FS 534, --------·--- -- . --:::-----·-
(lr:l.t')). leaislative !:istory t:as heer cited clearl'/ 

. 
mar.ifestira ore way or other nuricinalitics were 

meant to be covered hy the Fair J'ct. It is clear, 

ho•.vever, t!1at o;vhen Conaress passed Title VIII of the Civil 

Rights of 1968 its purpose vas to enact lesialation so 

as to deal broadly with those prevalent discrirr'liPatory 

housing practices Hhich were hlockir.cr blacks and other 

racial and ratioPal minorities frore er.joyiro full apd fair 

access to decent and desirable housirg. Irdeed it is 

explicitly stated in 4/. USC 36 01 that t!le purpose underlying 

the Fair Act is "to provide, within constitutional 

ations, for fair housing throughout the United States." 

In light of this expansive purpose, and in light of 

the established caner of statutory construction that civil 

ricrhts statutes such as the one here ur.der construction 

should he read broadly in order to fulfill their :;urposes, 

See Breckerridqe, 403 US 88 {1971); Paul, 

395 US 298 (1969); v. Pic1ley, 465 F.2d 630 (D.C. Cir. 

1972) bane); United St:-ates Heal 

347 F.Supp. 776 OLD. 1972), the v:orn must be 
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construed ir such a manner as to foreclose sinnular loopholes 

in the coverage of the Fair Tiousirg n.ct. 

Defer.dant, ar9ues that as the tern "persor. ., 

is sly de fined by 4 2 USC 3G 0 2 (d) of the Fair I:ous ircr 

Act ard since arc rot specifically mentioned 

\vi thir the U.efirition t:1ere set forth, Connress r:1ust huve 

irtnrdod to 42 esc 

"''Pcrsor' ir.-:1\J._-:t'?:·; r)-(·- ,-;'l- .. 

-· "' 
leaal 

mutual joint-steel: 
trusts, oraari2atiors, 
trustees, trustees in bar.J:ru'Jtcy, 
and fiduciaries." 

The argues that t:'1e term 

in Section 3G02(d) should be read to ercompass not only 

private corporations, hut public ones as vlell. l\ssumil"'q, 

arquendo, that the term 11 corporation" is not to be read so ----- . 
broadly, it is nonetheless clear that the definition of 

"person" as set forth in Section 3G02(d) not meant to he 

all-inclusive. If Congress had meant the definition of 

"person" to l:Je limited to the express enumeration of entities 

in Section 3602(d), it could easily have so stated. Instead 

the lan9uage of Section 3602 (d) indicates only that the term 

"person." should be corstrued to "include 11 what is enuinerated 

therein, and not be linitcd to such "The 

'includes' is usually a tern of enlargemcrt, and r.ot a 

limitation." i".rqosy Hez:-ninan, 4')4 f'.2d 14, 20 (5th Cir. 

1969) quoting States Gertz, 249 F.2d 662, 666 (9th 

Cir. 1957}. This is plainly the case here. 

it is held that a city or municipality 

is a 11 t1E'rS(')fl 11 I·Jithir; t 1
\:" r'1('>(Jrirrr Of 42 esc and is uf'len-

ahl'.:! to suit. See KL!rrc· ·,r Purk !!ol'<'-':" .... . . .-... c 

1.· 

"'"' 

l"'l 



318 F.Supp. 669, 604 1970), aff'd., 

43G F.2d 103 (2d Cir. 11)70) 1 cert. den., 401 US 1010 (1971); 

Uni.ted Ci t_y of_ Black Jack, F.Su?n. ____ _ ------
P.H.:S.O.I!. Rptr. Para. 13,5{)1 (P..D. 1(')72). 

u 

Defendant arques even if it is 

to suit uDder 42 USC the GovernmePt's CO':l!Jlairt 

r.ust be disr.isse<: for failure to state a clair. for 

unc:.er Fair Eousing Dt?:endant urges that sirce it is 

not bein.cr 1:i th discrimination in the sale or rer.tal 

of 42 USC 53504, or in the financinq of dwellincrs, 

42 USC or in providing access to opportunities iP the 

real broJ:erage services, 42 3606, it car Pot 1 as 

a matter of law, be deemed to have violated any 

contained in the Fair Housing l,ct. 3 The Government, o.r. the 
• 

other hand, maintains tl1at the allegations of its 

clearly and squarely charge defendant with discrimin.atory 

housina practices falling within Section (a) as well as 

with violations of Section 3617 of the 

3) In support of this contertion, defendant has cited to the 
Court several remarks by various Government and conqressioral 
figures either iP the course of con0ressional hearincs 
on the Act, or in the course of debate on the floor of 
Conr.:cess prior to tl;e l,ct's !.Jassage. 11·1 
Cong. 2275, 22TJ, 252Q of 2P.Dator 
''O'"'C,"l'"' Sen,+-or arc' <:",_,n,.,tor ,.,'"C1 l·,...,...s, 1

6 • .I C1 '- 1 - c ... '- : : ... - , -...... <..<.. • _{ ' .L •. J - '-1 .t-"' ·- .. ·-- , - ... .:--.> 

be generally as attenpts at settira 
the purposes of the :::'air and t:1e nolicies under-
lying it. focus, as is natural, or need to pass 
legislation proscribing in the housi.r.a sector 
itself. T!1ey do not indicate, hm·1ever, uhat the ir:1pact of 
the legislation was to he on municipalities, nor do they 
to the problems presented by this suit. 

/" -u-

!a--

,... 



t ... 

r·.:hilr; 'it is· true t:1at t 11e allerratiof's of 

r",ov•:-rn:-:1ent's comnla.int do not charge deferdar.t snecifically 

·.·.'i t:1 r0. fusir.0 to sell or rent d\·:ell ir.gs on racial grounds, 

the prohibitior.s contaired in Section 31)04(a) are clearly not 

so limited. Section 3604(a) not only makes it unlawful to 

''refuse to sell or re:rt .• " a dHellin0 for raci3.l reasol"'s, 

"ot!:<=>r.d se !"'al·,e ur av:d.l o-c . ----'! 1Jut also rrCJ.kr>s it url<r.·:ful to 
I. 
II ' 11' 1 a o:.·le 1.r0 to ary pr:rson hecause of race, color, 
I 

!l 

reliaior., or oriqir." added.) This catch-

all may not be easily discounted or de-emphasized. 

Indeed it "appears to be as broad as Congress could have 

made it, and all practices \vhich have the effect of del"'ying 

dwellinas on prohibited grounds are therefore unlawful." 

United States v. Youritas Constr. Co., F.Supp. . -
P • H • E • 0 • H • Rp t r • Par a • l3 , 5 8 2 { • D • C a 1 i f • 19 7 3) • 

The Government further invokes 42 usc §3617 in 

support of its This sectio:r it unlawful 

"to coerce, intimidate, threaten, or interf,re with any 

person in the exercise or of ••• or on account 

of his havina aided or encouraged any person in the 

exercise or enjoyment of any right granted by Sections 3603, 

3604, 3605, or 3606 of this title." 42 USC §3617, althouah 

broadly worded, and seemingly endless in scope, has until 

no\·1 received little treatMent by the courts. 4 

The Government's complaint, hm·1ever, fairly alleges 

that defendant's conduct in barring the construction of 

4} I-': would seem, that Judge Heredi th, in pass i!'g 
on the sufficier.cy of a comnarable to the one here 
at issue in .several resnects, relied oartially on 42 USC 
()3617 in '.;ustai:rira the cornDlaint. S":."e Unit:co:·> v. r'i+:·· -- ·-·· of Black J _ :::k, 

... 

-

r 
I 



< 

assisted housin" interfered the right of 

actual and prorscctivc snonsors of federally assisted housirn 

to assist persors in exercising their riq!1t to equal housina 

opportunities. This allegation seens to fall thin the ambit 

of Section 1617. 5 

It is Hell established that a comi_)lairt should not 

'i tj ... - ;sec! for failure to state a for relief unless 

I it is clear the pl?.intiff car pro_ve r.o state of facts 

in suf>port of its t":at could ertitle hirrt to 
... 

relief. See Co:nle-y:_ v. Gibsor, 355 US 41, 45-Afi (1052); 

.Terkir.s 395 US 411, 4/.1-422 (1969). '!oreover, 

material allegations of tSe complaint are to be taker. as 

adMitted for purposes of evaluatinn the sufficiercy of the 

com?lair.t, and the complaint must he liberally construcn and 1 • 

iP the light favoru.ble to plaintiff. .._Te:rJ:irs 

'' T' • th v. •.·1c.\n1 . er, sunra, )QS US at n. these rules in 

rnird, it would be ertirely inappropriata for this Court to 

dismiss this t summarily. See Kennedy PaL"k IIortes 

5) :Joteworthy too is Section 3615 of the Fair :rousir.g ;\.ct. 
This section provides, ir pertinent part, ttat: 

". • • any lc>:.-J of a state or political subdivision, or 
ot:1er such jurisdictior that IJUrports to require or 
permit any action that \·:ould he a cliscriniratory 
housina practice urc1er this subchapter sl:all to e\at 
extent be invalid." 

In f'rtrk \'ie•.-1 Trein11ts Corn. v. City of 'llc.cl: t.r.:"' ,'.2d 
120 g;-i2f;I(Rt!1 Ci r. 1,., 7"2) , -ar actior c:-u'lll;;; aL··:'!gen 
discriminatory by a municipality was expressly sus-
tained as arisir0 under Sectior 3615. 

-8-
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I 
ll 
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v ('l't•' o-r- r.,c1-,.,, . ..,r,..,,., 'T ,, 5, ........ ..,. fTr;._nc' ._.....__t_,." 
• \..J .'-5 • _ • .... 1 ... .... • , :. t .._ '-' 1 ._, .a.. L __ . ..:: . ._c.: ·:· " • 

Cit;; of :1Llc1: .Tacl:, sunrc=J.; Part: r.crn. v. r::ity ---------------- - -
of ;naci: ,Jack, 467 F.2d 1214 (8th Cir. 107:-n; 

of Prov .• of St. r'arv of v. Ci_ty of r.var.ston, 3 35 F. 

Supp. 390, (?J.D. Ill. 1CJ71). 

tz so correctly • 1 sale, 

IP the last-cited case, 

at parre 390 

"It. is e3pccially in civil ri0:1ts disnutes 
that we ousht wary of 
the case on pretrial notions.ard courts do 
in fact have a predilictior for 
civil ric:r:1ts cases to proceed urtil a con-

ve record is avai laJle to ei 
support or neqate the facts 

AccordiPaly, defen0art's motion to dismiss the 

is denied. Defendant has, in the 

alternative, moved to strike in their entirety paragraphs 

four, five, seven, and ten of the Government's conolaint, 

to strike a portion of'paragranh nine, and for a more defi::1ite 

statement as to paragraphs five, six, seven, eight, nine, and 

ten of the corTtJlaint. These motions \·lithout merit, and 

are denied. 

IT IS SO onnEPED. 

L--:J \ . 
. Battisti 

C ef Judqe 

-9-
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ENTRY a 
MAY 15, 1973 
\'JEST, J. 

) 
' 

•' 

Ul•;:t?ED STl&TES DISJ:'?.J:CT COURT 

'MIDDLE OP LOUISIANA 

'UNITED STATES OP' A!>iERIClio 

VERSLTS 

. GILJ'.,IE G .. t·lA'J:SQ;,.'f, SR., ET AL 

***t't* 

CIVIL ACTION 

lll"lJNBER 73-97 

Thie matter is before the Court on defendants' motion 

for a more dofin.ite atatc.mont. A rcvie\·1 of L"le rcco!.·d inc1icatoa 

that no oral in required on thio motion. 

Since all of the info2.umtion which the defendants seek 
/ 

through thiG motion could more bo obtained by the do-

fendunta through the uso of discovery procedures, and since 

the complaint, on its facG, is couched in language similar to that 

of the statute L!volvod, and Ginco the court concludes that the 

language of tho complaint does, in fact, provide adeguate notice 

of the claim by tho plaintiff: --
IT IS OrJ)ERED that defendants' motion for ·a more dcfinita 

statement he, it i.s;; hereby DENIED. 

.. ;.; .. , ll.ll\), 4' , ..... ''I' 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUvCE 

Douglua H. Gonzales, EDq. 

Gillio G. Watson, Sr. 

Smlptcr B. Davio, III, 

' 
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RE: Civil Action 72-H-993 
United States of Americ2 vs. The Tucker Inc. 

--... 

9/22/72: In view of answer having been filed, Defendant's Motion for 
l-1ore Definite StateH:cnt is denied. Fed. R. Ciw.1ll2{c). Clerk 
·shall notify counsel. COB 

, 
,. 

_.;· 

\Wif H 

t\t\\\ 
.. _ 
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IN THE UNITBD STJ\Tf:S DI[:TniC.r FOR 
'l'IIE NIDDLE DIS'l'RIC'r OF AL:\D!.U•l.\ 

NORTliERJ.'1 DIVISION 

- ......... 

flllt[) 
JUL 1 6 1971 

JANE P. CLER 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
BY _______________ _ 

) DEPUTY CLERl< 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

) 
) 
) 
) CIVIL ACTION N0.3284-N 
) 

PELZER RE.U.,TY co:-1PANY, IUC. , 
ET l.L, 

) 
) 
) 

Defendants. ) 

ORDBR ..,.. ___ _ 
The Defendants', Pelzer Realty Company, Inc. and l•:illiam G. 

Thames, motions to disxaisn, filed heroin on Nay 7, 1971, are now 

submitteC!. Upon consideration of the motions and the complaint, 

it is that said motions be, and the same are hereby, 

denied. 

this the 
'"De / C --day of July, 1971. 

1i E; 
United Gtatcs District Judge 

. ' 
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UNITED DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHETIJ."'l DISTRICT OF AI/1BAVtl\ 

!j 
ll 

CIVIL HIGHTS § . .· 

lM\'l 2 4 7i 

213 U.. S. ,COUHT HOUSE & CUSTOH HOUSE -J:j:::--
MOBILE, AIJ\BAH!\ 36602 l 1 /

' . > . l'c.IJ I'" ... -.. ·'.'' 
-V . --

T.O: 

DATE: HAY 18, 1971 

Mr. c. s. White-Spunner, Jr., P. o. Drawer E, Hobile, Ala. 
Mr. Henry c. Hagen, Housing section, Civil H.ights Division 

U. s. Dept. of Justice, Washington, D. c. 
Mr. William L. Irons, 1300 City National Bank Building, 

'Birmingham, Ala. 35203 .. .. , . 

. ' 1' f I• .,. 

,.! 

36601 

RE: CIVIL ACTION NO. 6451-71 ADM. NO. CR. NO. ----
UNITED STATES OF AHERICA VS. H. 1-iELVILLE DAVIS, JR., ET AL., 

******************************************************************** 

You are advised that on the 18 MAY •· -------- -··- ··- .. · 
19 11 , the follo\'ling action was taken in the above-entitled 

case by . Judge ______ _ 

Motion to dismiss filed by defendants on 2/3/71 and 
submitted on 4/9/71 is DENIED. 

Motion for change of venue filed by defendants on 2/3/71 
and submitted on 4/9/71 is DENIED. ___ . 

• I 

..... 

·, I .. '\ 
\ 

.... 
I • 

I ( 7 
·. · . · .. H 

3 I MAY 21 1971 

L: : n' crv. n1y;'---· . ._ __ . . ... .. . .............. _....._, 

. '' ,. \ \ , -

sxS.tXoR,, CLERK, . 
BY K_-;!Yll ((;:;-)}t(__,J_ __ _ -r-:== 1 ,,'\J\,,-l- tr .r, . .,..,-

I 
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DISTRICT COURT 
NOT\'l'i:z;:{:\I Ol=' OIIIO 

EASTI::4-:>: 
.. . , . 

STA?ZS 0? I 
. . ) 

i 
. I .. , 
·j 

I 

v. : 
! 

.[' 
; . . ; 

( 
' I I 
.. I 
I '. I ' .. 

·) 
Pl . . r..r: ) ...... · ... , ·;. 

. .: ••. ;1 .. ··) 

·- ·-
. .. No. C 69-885 r;·.:; .;.-J ., u 

.. , ..... } . .. ............. -
.... ·'· ·.) · • ... "-''1:.'"0...., · O? .. '""'O" ..... · •••• • • . .. .... , .. i""U'\t."i ••• ..:.. ...... .J.. .. , 

A. n. , 
IRENE et al. , 

, ..... ,, . ..,. • .,.,.i .•. "'' u,, .. .J 

ar.d ) 
) ORDEK 

L&.V.BROS I 

I. ·,.; :. 
. I i ·.1 

. I I . 
t I ; I .. I ... 
; I I: l 

DIS?R!C':' 
i ' . , ' I ; ! 

<; 

J;.s 

JUDGE 

) 
. ) " : 

: I I i , I 
' ' t ! I , . .. 

I .. , I I . 
I • 

. . 
' 

.. 

· · . ' II ' . ; i I· ' I . . 
This cause a= action Has instituted by the ! 

. i I 
I 

under Title VIII of Civil Rights Act of 1968, 
I • 

, ·' l l . 
§3601 ct .sea'.!· ,The A.n. Company 

u.s.c. 
and 

i . ; . 
Irene Michael', 'now move to dismiss the complaint. The 

I 
. • · • i ' I 

motion is denied in its entirety. l 
I I ,, I 

·I 

Two basic issuGs are raised by theodefcncants' rr.otion 
' , 
' j • • 

t.o dismiss. ;one, \vhether or net the dafcndants arc e:<e.npt i 
. : II 

' . 
the·Act 

; I 
. . . • I : 

alleged . ' 
I . I : 

the c.o=nplaint ;;ecausa of the exemption provided to any 
I , . . . 

I ' • ·single family sold or rented. by an 0\vner ·under 42 

u.s.c. S3603(b) not 42 u.s.c. t 
. I ·I . I I • t I ,I 

is unconstitutional as a violation bf the First· 
I. 'I i . ' I t i • • . t 

mh -· t • • • ' t h d t h 1 s1nce. Act oes no ave a 1 
! . i Ji - ; 

I ·' . I • • .r: .c .... • .. .&.... - •• .L. . " • .a.. all . 1 
. ·I . I I ' · • I 

f .&: ' ' I ' I :, • 1' : e 1n certa1n stages. Upon enactilient, 1t 1s app : 

hlc to dwellings{l} which or are I 
• 

I I 
-1 ,. 
' I 

- ' : jl 
1 U • t"" ?\ ..... d. ... 1 . . d . . d II b . 1 . . I • . nccr · •. e ,\c .... , a HCJ. 1:-.g 1s · as any c1ng, I 

..... uc'-•·-c o- ""'o .... •·;- ..... ... o.:: .,\..,:ch occ"""''ed "'S or 11 
.. J J.- ._u...... ' - - '--v •• .. "••• J.J t..l ' 1 
designed o= a residence by li 
o= which is offered :: 
sale the C0;st=uction or thereon oi 

• . ·.... b " .: "' .: - - ..... -·. -- ......... ""\ .... - .... .: """"' .. "" .:: " l 9 u s c l i s""c.. u ...... G ..... '-', ..................... u .. \,.:, o .. po ... ... o ...... \..: .... co.... • • • • : 
s=>Go2 ! i .• It 

•. d p 

.1 
I l 
'.I 

r ; 
!r 
I l 

I 

'. ! 
: I . . ..,..,. ..... ._..,..... .. ,_, __ .......... -...... -... .... --···· .. --...... --.. .... ,.,. .. .. ..... .--.... ··--· .. ,. ....... I 
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• 

I 

.• 

·. 

'· 

' ' 

/ 'I ! /1 ' I 

I. : , •' • ' I ' ' . I . , , , 
. ·. of federal ,C: 53G03 (u) (1). 

I 

.. 

.: ·' . ' 31, 19 G a 1 i.t· to illl other except for I· 

i ; ., u.s.c. (il).(2) •. 
. I I 

One of 
h 

i '; 

i 
l 

.. 

.. 

I -
!-

is for any house sold or rented by an owner. 

42 u.s.c. §3603 (b) (1). .i\ft:cr Dccc:ilbcr 31, 1969 1 the Act 
' ' . : . 

applies· to any 1 si:-iglc-f.:::-::ily house sold o_r rented by an 
: ! : 

II .0\-lner "_.if house is sold or ••• (with) the .usc· in 

. manner of sales o= services of any real estate I . 
I 

I ' ! 
· ! I I : 

broker, agent,:or salesman; '6r of such facilities or services! . . . . I 
\ . • ! : ' I t 

of iny the of selling or renting·dwcllingsJ 
. : I . . • I i ' I ' , . • I 1 

or of. a.nv er:1ployee or _agent of a:--.y such broke:::, agent., sales-: . . . 
: j ': 

roan, or personi •••• 11 42 u.s.c. ·§_3603 (b) (1) (A). 
, ! • I 

. I 
'rxh .... · ' ,_ "-h · th' l-h e 

• 1 

I : • ! 
exem?tion accorded to 'the. sale o:::. rental of a single-f ZJ\\ily 

i I I 

house for of 1969. Particularly, they contend that 
I 

for the of a real cstatd Agent is includJd 

within the fer a house. They claim 
. ' ' • • I . 

that since the·: sale or rental of a 'single-family house 1 with 

I 
. j 
' I . : 

; I i • 
I . • 

the assistance: of a real or agent is • 

1

0 :. 

.o;:-"' 

i ·, . . 
.... \.. • :'1 .(! t' f... 0 .. .• e ecemDer ... ' ' I 

included in the Act 
I I ·. 

31, 1969, the sale o::: ::-en·::.al of such. a house \vi th the aid 
· l I ·I 

f 1 .j.. .... • • • .... 1 1' d . o rea y cxc uae 'Co ._t...-t \..••a 
I .. I ; 

The Court need not thd validity of I! ., I I ac ... the 

contention. ?he G ...... o..L ... 
' - . 

i . 
that the r. ... "-

I 
._ I .. ' • • ._ I I .. .,_ , d cngagec. =egaru to .an ' ""' ... 

t 11 the Lake Lucerne with to all the 
h 

II ,, 
I 
I 

I 

'I 
II '· 

houses i.n the 

to a 

t..P?lica>.lc to 

'l'hc.Cou:::t finds that the • ·j 
house th_e yea;: o!: 1969 is not! 

. I : . . • I 
lane no;: to a as an 1 

I ,, . -· 
I' 
i 

I 

I 
I • 

I 

:1 

I 
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. t 
I 
'I 

" 

I 
i 

.. 
I 

<I' ., 
. r 

' 'il ,. I .. ; : ... . 
.. . . 

. . !l .. 
I: ·'l'hu.s·, I' 

/.... .: J.""',.... L- , • - ,.. no .• 1 ...... allcc:-.::!d the f 
J • i 

·'. 
·the 

I ,. 
·I .. 

I 
l 

·I 
'I 

has 'still 'riJ.:'cltcci a fo:r; relief ag.iinst 

As for the that·is the 
·I 

constitutionaliti! . 
of 42 u.s.c. the·court finds that it is consti-

• 
tutional. The section reads as fcillows: 

"To nake, p:::in t, o:r;, pu!)lish, .or cause to he made, 
printed, o::: any notice, 

with respect to the sale o::: rental of 
a any limitation, 
or based Dn race, color, religion, 
or national c::: an to such 

.t= ., • ...... ""- • ... • • • J.... • .. ... a ... l.on, or · 
I 

!· : 
The Court finds the is not void for 

This section is ·not violative of the First Amenarnent. 
i i 

II I • 

mh -' " r. d · r· . 4- J ' - ' 4- t"n ' 

I 
I 

:J.. e · ae.:cn a:-:. -.:.s c .... -wr con ... en l.:l regara ... o · .. e:L:.: . . 
h. ' • .l.."" . ..... .: ./... . . ; .. , I i • . : .,. 

mo also \·n. ..... c.:. ... r:-.c!" ..... : . ;· 

A d . , d' . t" 1 . t . ccor :Lng_y, ... ... o ne comp a:Ln 

denied in 
.·· . . . l.ts ent:..rety • 

/ 

... ' . :I • ! :! . :; 
I ' I :·I ... 
... .• t i t .. ' 
: t. I ·! ··:i 

-'I ',, 
I i 

. i . ; i 
., . I 

: ( f 
I I 
! I i 
I 
I . ! 
i 
! 
! 

;' . 

• 

. · 

I I 

0 

' . . . 'I . ; i 

L> 
_.,.,._-=.::/ / -''l.·v \. •; v" "- .. "'""' J 

D. 
United District Judge . ' 
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UCl ,:u 3 (!.'/ FH '70 
r· · i• .. , :, 

um:n::) )jJ!;T::xc.r 
c;,;• 

{Q .. ).?.23 .. Civ ... CF 

u•·:zED 

rt'! ; .. rr 
I !:N 1•1: r ii h ·,., 

• ''i/.'f' 'J! . c:··· .. ,, ,.,.r1··,. yc·· '-'J., l.J..v L ··• ··•• Ht ) 
....-- (./' t. ,... - I ;'· 

{ --· I , . .). :::> •- •_-,).. l .. I -· 
l?loinHr.i: ) 

''I>. 

tJ::...'I:.:.l.!l.i\H GOLDIGRO, d/b/a 
lSI .. 

LICA .t'll'i'.It 

l 
) 

) 

Dofcndnnto. ) 
II -·- •• I .... 

\ 
:• 

• '" r . 
! •. .... 

.. 
t ... 13! o • .;:,. , ....... ......v. 1\J ... .: .. 

• 1 

.• ..., .'; ' ·"'\.,.; c'l .. . ":'1"?/) 
: L v J (... • : J\) I lJ 

.. 
SO. DI3T. OF F:..A. 

··· ............ _ .... -:-

The Uni t.;.cj Btotco oC .. cat p1d.ntifi:' £2 .. 1cr1 ,,,,'"' 
L,...,loo,; 

cc,::1pluint in thio cc.rJo on Au::;uot 19, rGc1.al ... 

tic.n 1 in violllt:l'.•m of the Fail.' lio:.Hd.n3 ll.cts- Titla Vl.It t'f tha 

IH.r;.'ht Act of 1963. 42 u.s. c •. 3601 ot ceq., by the cic!:cn(jant the 

opc:r.;;.tion of t\v'O spm:tr.wnt build.S.nJf.l he mms and O?C'-'lltca in 

Florida, 'lnc hll& oovcd thie. Court to c.U.t;td.oo the co::.:plaint: 

Ott th:-cc 

1.. flliluro to jo!.n 1 ll.!:i c.n pdrty, u 

.. 
·-

-_-._'· vho t1us '!- vlct;i.u of tho doi"-n.dant• a raci;.ll 

'· 
... :·. .... -

•. ·- ,J..._ 
;, .... -·. 

\"o 

. .. .. 

2. failure to ctatc a c1M.ta upc11. l.'olicf con b3 

cre.ntcd; and .. -. 
3.. faf.luro to state in t\1e cor..plaint cu££id.cnt fa.ctG to 

cnc.hla tho daL .. :lnr.: ,·.::-ramo en • Dcfon1wtt hao alr;o u:.ovc.:.d ,., .. . I. 

for Stt.To.T.!lry --· ---
. Thir; conoidot"ed tha co::-::>!d.nt, tba cf£5.d[:.'.'itG 

on file l1croin, of'.d tho bd.cfc c.nd m:curuonto of cotmccl, hereby 

d(m:lco nll of· cfc-fcndl\nt 1 o 

Dofondcnt ch:\11 hav6 until 9• 1070 to cnnt.-.or tho ·• ... 
. 

. · · oo· • • . . . \.J.... ' . ...... 

ic GO NOV E' · 1970 
'· . 

• ihfo .. L 7 or Octooor, 1970. ClVlL. HlCHT::; 

. ,. ff{ !\ r C C\ r) r' II 7 .... _.!:; • 

' 
... , • _, l .'· '· ) t· t . . J : •. \ 1 . . ·..., :. ,. ' . . ' l...,.,. 1·'-'-._, ,.., c .... , ... "''' . -·· .......... -- ·--·-··-.... .. QJJ.h.i:' 

•• 

... ., .... 4 ······------.. •• -- .. ...... ··-·· .. - ........ -. ............. ....... --·--
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. 

:JIB:::ucr counT 
!:1 ·::j:;n:cT o:: 

· "' r \1•, ,_ l 
"' f.'l.,: JUJ '> . 

., 1 1(}'•. 
··IIJ t:v,l!DE l .. lJ -x,. . ()<),/ ·\ Y,· I \ i , .... ' 

• I'-_..- ' -·r.';' 

A1'U.li'f.". LIVI310ii UIJCKETED 

tmiTEU STATES OF AHERICA • .. AUc; . 
? J&?a 

VERSUS 
. • 
• • 
• • 

CIVIL 1-CTIQN 13,573 

P;·J:C C0:·1PANY, OF 
GLORGLt\, ct al • • 

ORDFR ----
·rhe de fenc'!ants h1:1vc I;J:.)t:ions to d.i.s-::rl.ss, for a more 

defln:l..tc.st8t,:·:cuc, e.nd to str1.1:.c. to Rnlo 12 o[ UtC! 

Federal Rulca of Civil Procedure:., before this court. 

·This is a ouit brou[;ht by the General on 

behalf of tho United States unclc:r Title VIII of the Civil .::lid:ts 
'-' 

Act of 19.68, /f2 U.S.C. §360.1, ct Eeo. Jurisdiction exists in 

·this court by virtue of 28 u.s.c. §1345. In paragraph 10 of the 

CO'.np1:.:'l.int it is l'.llcgcd in part: 

The defendants follou n policy nnd practice 
f i 1 1• • • • i .. o rnc a nst 

with respect to the snle o£ lots in the 
properties dcscribccl in the prccecding 
para £;ra phs. 

A rcadir13 of the co::-aplnint clearly shows that a clain 

is stated sufficient to pass defcncl.snt:s 1 r.1otion to dismss, anrl 

thnt the allez;ations are clear cnoui)l to m1.able defendants to 

respond. fpnlc_y v. 355 U.S. 41 (1957); and United 

v. · Co.,. 301 F .Sup?. 533 (n.D. Ga. 1969). l urttcr, 

dcfcnclnnts 1 alleged pre-Act discxi::dnation is not "redundant, 

i::J.pcrtincnt, or scondclous t:llltter" subject to a notion 

to r· T (' v rr.,...,,.,."'t .,.J.l"'"L'"l .... 3'>'l u c r.r,') 701\ (1°l") .. L\..'W. -! • ... _' ... .-..::.::.:.., ..J.) .v. UV..J' _, .,·b .. ) • 

According!}, all defendants' arc denied na without ocrit. 

j"he issut•s rr.liscd by t:f:'fcnd.nnts' uotion nrc 
. . . ' I 

c:nd require. no tHsc;..tsDion bcyo:-&cl 't:La t provtdcd in tLc bovc· rr:··;.:.T.t 

F7- ./ -;·-- . .. .·. i I ... / ' r;.·i • ; ·., ... -:,-_-;'· 
I .,. , ' r ..., , . ' ·. ·• ..• : · , .. I I 

L .. :·: ,.,,..,. ! I . ,., '. ....., 1 fl70 ' ::·I tJ : .. I I 



. {/ . 

hrlcf. Follc·,J!ng their anst·:cr discovery in the proper procedure 

for defendants to C!'nploy in lcc.:cnin3 norc ebout plaintiff's alle-

gntions. Diccovery is not to L':! used to dclny £llrthcr procccdinz!P. 

J ... ocal Rule 10 such cball be com:nenccd prompt+Y, 

----_.,.,.. ... purnued dili0cntly and co:npletcd witr:.out unn.eccBsary delay and 

\vi thin four monthr. after the nns\·lOr has been filed •••• " 

So ordered this the 2Sth day of July, 1970. 

/s/ Albert J. Henderson. Jr. 
-Jl-1··1-;c ·-;-;-::---1.. f·ns 0-,, 

' U'·" l-'-" ...... 1...-\t-._. _, Ul...J..-i._.'-"' ,.;. \,oo\..t., 

for the i·:orth2rn l:iGtrict of. Gcorg:i.b. 

---

\ 

--
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• -· .... ;· .. !-" . - ,' 

) 

. '·I .. 

,· ""' . . ., . ...... .... -·· 
I \· 

•! 

' . --: . ::. . ·_< . . :. ·:" . : . . . . i 
/\; . .- ,.- .. ..,: :-.· ·:<·-·· 'l'HIS CAU.;L: is £Jet for hc!f-.ring be£o1.·e tbiz Court 
• • .... ·:: :--'. •• ' ,•" • ·.•• • • • ·• . • • I • • • . ··I 

i·1ny 11, 1970, st 10':00 /· .. H. upon tlotionr; of the 
- .. .. • .,.· J.. • • 

.... · .• :; .. ·: : ... .• 
.... : 

on 

1... .. ........... l"'t ,t:o ....... -i•·r. 
:.1·. -"' ·._:: .. • ....... • • .. -&.\..1.'-.l.., L ,J.,J,.J..Jto"..i .,;J .;..J. t:he cor-Jplnit·.t,- or in the t:ltcrna.tivc - ·. . ·. I !, .... · .. -· ·:: ·. 

· .. .-·_. ·.:- ccrtuin portiona thereof, o;: for definite 
.. -· : . . .'-""·· _._. 

-:;· ·.: •. 
..,. ... -·"' .. 

·'·· 

-
:.· ... -... 

.· .. 

-. 

. :· .. . .. 

.•. 

st:al:cr:Jcnt • In prcp<'lrlltion for thia b£?-arinr; t:;hc Court has 

the coc?lcint u·nd t:hc nnd has 
. . 
. "1"' t· :.t' .-.. -• .-J .v-...... .. '""""·""""' L:.i.,_.::. t 

0:) l";, ·,:·:-> 

O "t.A-:"'; 
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. cn<J. 
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AI,)J''""'"''·-,. ,_h.-.t-1-• ... ..... 

:i r.ort.'!Jf>:.J!1' 

t t .. :-..t.'r.. .. ,._ ...... _ be .and 

to 

; -

·" 1• .l.i,.. 
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I ..... ..1 

.J "-'+\ • 

.• ·:-·. !-·:-:. . .• ;· '.;, .. a-rc hereby deniC:d. The tnctcrinl o·• --11'· a.' l,.. by tbc aotiO!l for n;ore 

.·. ..... JJ .. .. \, .... v .......... i;. l)'t'e proper fol:' 
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\ ... .· . \ . 

... 
IN THE U:<llTED ST!I.'I'ES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

DISTRICT 017 Ht\H.YLAND 

. . 
'\ ' 

·I 

... _ 

' ·c .. , 
. 

UNITED STATES OF ANERICA; ). 
) 
) 
) 

-v .. , ) 
) 

JOSEPH nnd ROSE HILLEll and ) 
UNITED IN\7EST:O:lS 1-f.:\NAGENENT ) 
CORPORli.TIOl·7 d/b/a PENUBROOKE ) 
TERRACE ) 

) 
Defendants. ) . -.) 

.. 

o_ 

-i:·'"l 
:t:"" ' :- :1 
,....._, 
--..: 

nl 
("') 

CIVIL ACTION 
NO. 70-ltO 

ORDER 
....... 

...... l 

J-•" - _, 

J -i ,.' ......... 
. . 

•· 
.· 

' ·' 

(_,,:: ; .• -l 

.. . r·,> 
G'\ r>1 
-'\''"1 0 . ..:.. .. ... 
C::'J 

, This matter came on for·c:. hearing on April 

1970 on the motion of t6e defcrtclahts to dismiss the 

·complainto • .. :. 

The United States commenced this a.ction under the 

.. Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 u.s .. c .. 360f on 

.January 12, 1970, against the and managers of 

Pennbrooke an apartment in Suitland) 

· Mary lando The operative portions of the co:nplaint, 

after allegations of jurisdiction and coverage, rea.d as 

... 

/ 

"The defendants follmv a policy and practice 
of racial discrimination against Negroes 
with respect to the renting of apartments, 
Pursuant· to this raci<Jlly 
policy; defendants have refused 
apartments available to Negroes and have 
made statements respect to the rontal 

! 

.!:.I 

f 

I 

i 
i ·' 

I 

I 
I 
f 
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------
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. • 

. ·; 

.. 
\ 

·•. \ . I 
' I 

__ ,.. .. · 

-. ·' 

.... 

\ 
•I 

of thnt indicate a preference, 
lLnitation, or discrimination bnscd on race. 

I 

·\. 
:\-' 

Defendants have rented 1 of the 404 apartment 
units in the above named building to a Negro 
tenant, and have retained the one Negro 

for the purpose 6£ creating a non-
discriminatory imagce 

.... 

... 

. ' 

.... 

'··; ._. 

The tonduct described in the preceding 
paragraphs constitute a pattern and practice 
of resistance to the full enjoyment of 

_·rights secured by Title VIII of the Civil 
-Rights Act of 1968, 42 U*SeC. 3601 et seq*" 

defendants to dismiss the action on the 
..t 

. grounds that the complaint dqe;;; not comply 1-1ith 
•J 

Section 813 of the Act, 42 U.S.Ce 3613e This section 

, -provides that the Attorney Gener_al, '·7hen he has .. 
- cause to believe persons to have engaged in a pattern or 

-
-practice of resistance to the full enjoyment of any . .· 

I 

rights granted by the Act, may file a complaint "setting 

forth the facts and requesting such preventive relief • • • 

as he deems Decessary " . . . , . 

· The defendants contended, ?:_n additj_on, that the 

.complaint failed to meet the requirements of Rule 8(a)(2), 

Federal Rules· of Civil Procedure, provides for a 

.. "shoi.: and plain statement of the claim," and did not 
/ 

state a claim upon Hhich relief could be granted. 

Rule 12(b) (6), Fed. R. Civ. P. 

- . 
..... 

.·· . \ 
2 

' 
. ' 

.. 

t 

1 

-I 
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/ 

Upon due consideration, the Court finds the 

. . 
\ 
.. \ . 

·.complaint states a claim upon v1hich relief may be granted, 
'. 
(' 

42 and."is sufficient to resist 
.. 

a motion to dismiss. The factual details underlying the 
_,.. . 

broad allegations of the. arc available to 

·-defendants by means of pretrial discovery, Rules 26-37, 

Fed. R. Civ. P.; ·.• · ... 
:-.· 

motion to dismiss is denied. 
.l 

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED this day of 

.. .Aprilt 1970. 

.. 
/ · .. 

I 

Agreed as to form: 

. / I i . . .. ,.cy;( 
HIRL'1.H R. EISENSTEIN 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

I I I 
/, .//I 

I • '\ , l ---· UELSON D2CICEL13Ailll 
Attorney for Defendants 

. .. 

.... ... ;,a, 

...-: 
. \ 

... 

- ... ; 
·.:- ; ... 

. ·: ·.· 

• ·; . '-I() 'll·v .9 \. t·/.• !....-Q.:. . .f 
·t. \ -,.. .. ,·', . / I,....\ I .. • -_.!-,.·.., ... ,... \ 'J.,. ... --- -R. DORSEY \·li'>Ti':INS 

Unitsd State;:; J11dgc 

. 
·.-:· 

.. 
. _.:_--a 
.· 

. ·--

· . 

. 
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' 

il· 

.... 

. 

:. 

..-
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·. 



\ 
\ 

/ 

" 

l 
II 

XU 'J'HE u:H'.i'L':Q STI:.TI.::S DIS'riUC'J.' CCJUl\.'1.' 
FOR TITE DI.S'1'RIC'l' Of' 1·1!\hYLT,J:m 

UNITED S'.rl• TES 03:" bl·A.EI":ICJ\ 1 ) 
..... ) .. 

Pli--..intiff } 
) 

v. ) Civil Action No. 21470 

H. G. SHIT.HY et al., 
) 

Defendants ) 

0 R DE R 

This mai :::er car.10 on for a hearing on April 17! 1970. 

on all defendants' motions to dismiss the action and for nummary 

judgment, and on the moJcion of the defendants H. G. Smit.hy 

Con1pany, Victor and Lydia Carone, and Hrs. Armstrong for 

severance. The motions having been fully briefed, and a full 
.. 

hearing having held in open court, nov! therefore it is 
. !:; ?'.}. .1' 

by the Court ·:·ott day of f>.,fP.tL , 1970, ,--,. 

ORDERED that the motion of dcfendz:..nt H. G. Smithy 

Company to dismiss and in the Cllternative for summary judgment· 

be and it hereby is denied, and it is 

ORDERED tllat the motion of the Chillum Hc-ig:tJts 

corporate dcfcn-<··r:s and Sidney Rothstein to dismiss or in the 

alternative for sununary judgn:.ent be and it hereby is denied, 

and it is 

FURT.EER ORDERED that the motions of H. G. Snithy 
"-

Company, Victor and Lydia Carone, aud Hrs. Le\vis Armstrong for 

a be and they hereby arc denied, and it is 

FURTiir;t:t ORDERED that the motions of c1cfencJ.2.nts 

Victor <:nd Lydi<·. Carone and Hrc. Le-v:is Armstrong to c1i.smi.cs an-:.1 

... ... 

, 

I : ,. 



:1. 

I· in the al tcn1r,t.ivc for sn.m:nnry jndg<n?nt be nnd they m:e 
I 

deuled without prejudice to suic1 defendants to renew their 
""" 

motions for: summary judgment ,,r)1.en the pluintiff hus cor;rplctcd 

its discovery, and it is 

I:'URTHER O:nD1::RED that all defendants shall have until 

May 18, 1970. to answer tl1e complaint. 

/d. y r-1z 1rfl" 
UNI'IED S'l'i.TES DISTIUCT JUDSE 

,. 
" 

__...· 

' 

_, 

I . ·' 

t 



,;. . . 
/ .. ,. ,..; 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARIZOiifA. 

UNITED STATES OF AHERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 
NO. CIV. 70-23-PHX. {CAH) 

0 R DE R 
NANfi.GEf,1ZNT CLEARING, INC., 
a corporation, 

Defendant. 

--------
\ 

The defendant's Motion to Dismiss based on the 

argument that 42 u.s.c. 3613 is an unconstitutional delega-
' tion of legislative authority, that the Court lacks juris-

diction because the cor:1plaint fails t·o allege or shot.v any 

facts or under which the Attorney General is 

authorized to file suit and that complaint fails to 

state a claim upon which relief can be granted, having been 

fully heard in oral and the Court being fully ad-

vised in the matter, ---· 
· IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the 1-!otion to Dismiss 

. is denied. gi!l 
day of April, 1970. DATED this 

j . \ l1 / /sL c A-. /t (A LCI\.€ 
States 

''" 01-IU·IM 

... ,. 

• 

1/ 

I .. 

·- ... - --.-

. f 
! 
\ 

J, 
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UNITED DISTRIC'r COURT CtvtL HIGHTS 
SOUTHERN DISTHICT OF J\l!1BAMA 

213 u. s. COURT HOUSE & CUS'l'OH HOUSE I 7 / < , .. 
· 36602 --v . ,.. 

DATE: MAY 18, 1971 

TO: l.fr. c. s. White-Spunner, Jr., P. o. Drawer E, l·1obile, Ala. 
Mr. Henry c. Hagen, Housing section, Civil RiGhts Division 

U. S. Dept. of Justice, vlashingt;on, D. C. 
Mr. William L. Irons, 1300 City National Bank Building, 

·Birmingham, Ale .• 35203 •' ,·,. 

.• . '. 
? 

I - '-

.! 

RE: CIVIL ACTION NO. 61+51-71 ADM. NO. CR. NO. 

36601 

-----
UNITED STATES OF A11ERICA VS. H. J.fELVILLE DAVIS, JR., ET AL., 

. . 

You are advised that on the 18 dn.y of' · MAY • ------- .... - --- ··- _....,__ ____ . 

19ll , the following action was taken in the above-entitled 

case by . Judge PITTHAN . : 

Motion to dismiss filed by defendants on 2/3/71 and 
submitted on 4/9/71 is DENIED. 

Motion for change of venue filed by defendants on 2/3/71 
and submitted on 4/9/71 is _, 

.LJ s---J -:7} 
"f'lf, ... . 

\ 

\ 
\ 

- ' 

. ·' 

I 
, . 

v .r .... · , · . 

3 I MJ\Y 21 1971 
I
, I 
t! 

(--'- R.A.O. ; D \ 
CIV. 11IGITI;;3' Til\\'-'-"" 

--- • .. ..... ............ 

·. • 'I " ' ,. '· . . . 

.. .. /. CLEnK, 
__ 

/ lJ Clt· 1·1;:. 
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• .. 

. • 

,' . 
Plaintiff, . : 

; ·' ' . 
.. . · .. 

. . . . . . 
., . ' 

' . . - •. v 4 
. 

. . 
70-C:i.v&l9G7 . .- .. 

-'1· -. . . . . .. 
• • : • • .• ' I •:. •. • • • l . • ;.: • • • .: • • 

·JJ..VIN nnd l·!ITCHELL EISEN .. .'." ... ·: .. . :··\.• .. •• 
•• ....,. I ·• ·'"'· ·:.-:.·-:-·. ... . d/b/a G1 J.··'"':l-·· • . ·· •· · , .. · · · , 

• •• .- 4j r. ... J) • ·l· : .i •. -:.··· .. :' . · .. -; 
Do):cndants. : .· .. · -. ·.-. . ·• .. 

' : • •• 4 •• :. • • • • .. • • • • : -:- .. . • ............. _ .. _ .. .., ..... - .. -- .. - ................... _ ............ _X .. .. , .. · .. . 

. . . . . . : . : .. •.· .. ;.):.. , : . ·. . . : .. . . , .-.· . 
AT!P""A""' · 

• .. .• ·.• • • • 1- •· . . . {I .. . .. - .. . 
• . • . .. • . • •. t. 

HIU:CiliY JR. 
Ul ,I1T •0 c•·• -\ • ..,_..,...,..... .., •• -y "' 1', L) J. .l.'JJ r. 1. .1. '·-' .-...._•;t. '-t· 

jo •• •• • • • -. . . .... .. .. .,_ : . . - ...... 
: 

. . · .... ' ... · ;jj' _.. :-- /;' '-/1 .. 

Attorney 'for the United States of 
District of New York 

Dy: l-llCIIAEL C. SILBER.3ERG, ESQ. 

' . . • I 
. ---v--•.. .. -...... ··-·.--..-...... 

• v. Y. • • • ., kncrica .V'-'DISTfi/Ct 

.. Assistant United Attorney 
Of Counsel . · -, : 

·. ,)Y '0• I'" I t: U (1>\ 

\
.Y.::;.• . /7 _, ;. 

JUL 2R . _ .. . 
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&.JI.Jfl'(f\...,...\ \..Jt' • EXAS 

V •. IJAILE:Y·THOMAS 
CLt:HK 

OFt-"ICC OF TIH: Cl..LRK 

Houston, Texas 
May 1971 

Re: CA 71-H-279 United States vs Margurette Jones·, et al 

Mr. Anthony J. P. Farris/ 
United States Attorney 
Houston, Texas 

.. -'' 
/" 

Nessrs.Vinson,Elkins,Searls & Sml+.h 
First City l'ia tional Ban..J.c Bldg 
Houston , Texas 77002 

\ 

·Gentlemen: 

/' 

I 

Judge Carl 0. Bue, Jr. has entered the following 
order in· the above case: . , - ... ------------- ---- --- -- -----------------------

· .u1otion for more def'ini te statement is denied 
since plaintiff's ·complaint is sufficient pursuant to 
Rule 8, F.R.C.P. The information defendant seeks can be 
more adequately secured :-y ordinary discovery methods. 
Clerk 'tvill notify counsel. 

COB" 

\' 

- ' ' 
/ 

' 

Yours very truly, 

V. Bailey Thomas, Clerk 

/. • C"" . 
By W.-tu11/l. Deputy 

Albert E. Anderson 
_.....· 

.. -"'". - ... .. - ...... :":'-· ..... .... ..... 7""'··: --·.,.,;!'.\-.,..- ....... - ... .... : ....... ·- ·,· .... . . ,..,..., .... .... .. ···--- ... -- .... 

... .,,.,.r -·•·• ,..,,_..,... •••·• 
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lN 'liJE' S'i'Nr.::;s. DI STJ\IC'l' .COUllT . . 
OJ ' .. ·); ..... .. 

J .. 
'I • \'..:; 
\ 

.. 

• 

l:'OR '.i'im DIST1UC'i' OF . ..Vl•Nii\ . . .. . 

;. .. 
'J'!UCll, . • .•.. 

S
OP .J.,__ '· . . · 'T'E . . ' . . . 

UNITED v' .• . :. : ·::. ·: ... : _..; . : ·. . ... 

: CIVIL 

. . .. ; .. .. ··. . . 
v. 

IGNATIUS J. CHIRICO, 
doing as 

· SIDD?\LL ili::!\L ESTl\TE 
. CONPi\lrY I 

-; Defendant 
. 

• • _!1- . .· . ;.·· .. -,. = . ... . . .... 

. ::.-.,--·.-·, ··:. :-: . : .:· __ , 

. -·· 

.. .... . .. 

; .. . .. • .. . .: . 
.. ·. . . . ..... .. . . . .. -·. . .... 

• • 
NO. 70-1851 . . ... . 

• !" _ • •. ... .. . . 

. . . ...... . .. 
. . •·. . . 

'· . l . .- . .. . .. ...... -· 
. '. , -- .. j':. · -. • NDtT.·1 l .. 0 RDER 

; _ ... :· . 

. ... ?U·l, J. 

.. . . • 

;,· . 

-·· 
. ' :. 

-.:.·· .. · 

.. · ·.· .. i" • 
... . .... . ._, ... . .. _: .,. 

.• .· . - ......... 
·. ·.- . .August ., J 1970 
•• ·.. l•c=-_) 

. . ; 

This is a suit brought under the Civil Rights 
/'. , . . 

of 42 u.S. c. §3601, et. seq., -by· ·the United States of 
.• 

to enjoin racial discrimination in ·the rental and 

sule of "housing • The comolaint states that defendant . . . .... ' 
follO\<ls a policy of furthering segregation in housing and .· i • ----- -• -·has ):'efused to make available d\vellings and negotia tc for 

. 

.. 
.-.• the or r-ental of housing to Negroes on account of 

-..:.:_-. 
their rCJ.ce. It also alleges that defendant has made state-.. 
mcnts to the cf!3cct that he \·,·ould not r..a'kc 11" . . . , awe • 

to Ncqrocs in at least one white re!:identiZtl area. Defendant . . . 
has moved for a mm .. ·c aef·ini'tc statc::tcnt unccr Fcd.R.Civ.P. 

... , • 
l2(c).rcquc:!";tir;g thnt \·:5.th·\·l1io;il J1c h.:ts £ailed 

. \ 

to ncsot5 a tc and· to v:ho::1 he !;ta tcmcn of r<tcial 

[ } • 1 • •r.• • • , >c.· nam<:o, <nH lnc !>pc:CJ .• occ<t!:Jon!; \·aH::) suc.l 

·c,c:C\lrrcd, lhc 

idcn ti r icd. 
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' I .. 9l:antc:d unlc!:is the cpmplaint is so that the 
,, .. -.:· . ... 

t: cannot frarnc a :responsive to it. l\s . . ' 
... . . .. .. . . . . . i 

··---long as the co:nplu..int notice of the nature of the 

clairns, it is suffi6icnt. ' 2£.£ v. Rc<ldinq 
.. _. 

·Inc., 370 F.2d 795 (3rd Cir. i967) • Complaints . ;; ,.. . .. 
based on statutes '"hich prohibit discrir.d.nation . a 

. : I 
clnss of citizens need only allege that such a 

. - - . . . .' i 
-.pattern of discrimination !1as been follm·:ed by the . . . . . I 

. 
defendant 

·. and the general \·Jay in \vhich he hns fostered such discri:ninatioo. 
• 

I 
I '. United States v. Buildino Construction '.!.'rudes Counci.l of .. . . 

<, -.- St; Louis, 271 F. Supp. 447 (E.D.Ho. 1966); United States v. 
"'.,; :a· _,. 

. ' ..... lnter.1a Brotherhood of Elcctrica 1 i·lorX.er.s, • 

' l 

,_· 233 (S.D. Ohio 196 7) (discrimination in employment under 42 

• u.s.c. et seq.); United States v. Grav, 39 U.S.L.W. ........... 
· .. . ··-

2057 
. ... 

(D_.C.R.I. filed July 14, 1970). Specific instances of 
¥ .. . ;;; 

· (:liscrimina tion relied on by the goveriCucnt may be determined 
"-. .. .. ' . -.-

. . discovery. .. -. .· . . •.· . .- .. 
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o n n E n 
rl 

f .. day of 
\, 

.,. .. 
August, 

I • 
• t 

' 
I 

I 
I ' I 

I. 
I 

,, 

_1970, .it 

•·· 
' '. 

is 

.__:·oRDERED that defcncar1t' s motion 
'; 

for more definite 
I 

state;nent 

is DENIED. 
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UNITJ;n COUI:T 
NOR'TH;:r-;-{ Ol .. C!HO 

nrvr:;ro:r 

-UNITED STATI:S OF Al·ll-:PICA, ) 
) 

Plcdntiff ) t:o. c 70-969 
) 

v. .) 
) 0 R DE R 

t:XCLUSIVB HULTIPLE 1 ) ----
ot al., ) 

) 
Defendants ) 

LAl·!DROS I D.lSTRIC'l' JUDGE 

Upon the ::.otion of tho dcfendu.nts for 

a rnore definite stater;ent is ccniod. As stuted by the 

Court in the case of Unl.t .. States v. nL oh T -, '""r·ncr• r>.,-, ""ltv 

Inc., 313 F.Stlpp. 870 '1970) rcn:,ect to a 

sir.:d.lZ'tr motion: 

•[T]he as it·is in vary 
lan,...U:->"'e O.r:: t' ;.. " .,t_,t,'·'"'o l"'Y(>\'; 'H'1 nn11 tv•·.-l-- i CA ";J {.A.••·) J... ... ... """' Yw'-1 '*'-.--·• ..._ ............. > C .. · .. · .... -.... • .. \..tt....- • .... " ... 

of the clnin by is not suLjcct 
to a t..<otion for uore d.:!fini t-3 Any 
addition.).! ini:orr·:ation to is 

n cnt:i tlcd r:ay be oh t <Iin8 tl lJV use of t::c discovery 
procedure-s provided by the !.ules." 
I d. at 873; s•.}e nlso Uni t·3d v. case Ho. 70-lDSl l\U<J. 12, 197a) 

IT IS SO 

DATED: . / /-// 

. , 
. ...-

----

'.i'}lo"i;:-as-1). r .. 
Unitcd Cistrict Judge 
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I •• • .• I •• /. ... . ' .., • •. I • ,. ,. . . ;........ . . . . , ... ..- \_ 

tiHlTED -, CJ.' THE 
, ... ,_ ' .. 
: . . ... , .-

:;·r.-\T 

/ 
(':0' 

lJgS'J Ei\1\ 
• 

:.:: = ,.'' .- I .•;:. • • I . . .... . ·. . .. '. -· . ' .. ,.. . ·. '· : ·, '; ·.. . .. : . ·.; .,... ....... . .. t . 
U:UTED 01;-. ' !" •• t,•: 

) 
_. 

') 

'I : 
I • # J .... 

........ :--· .·_ .. , ' . . ;·-· . . , - . -. ,.._._ 

I • 

I '-! : )/ . '-(r.--
"' .. . ·Pla i;1.t iff 

. •) 1 .-· 
·i 
I . . 

.• J ·' 
) 

:·\: •. CIVIL ACTION . . [-, ............... ····- --:·-, .... -'Lh ... ! \.i::.. l c...;.; 
v. . I.' I 

·. ARCO, ct al 

Defendants 

. . . ) . . ) 
··; . ) . 

· · iNO. C-70-29 
,. • I 

I. ,• . J.Y.j: !I . \it ... ,, .. .. . 
t • • •· . . . 

t• ..... v .. 
• • I 

' I 
l 

•· .. .: . . CIVIL R:G;-::·rs; .. 
ORDER .. .. . . 

l 
In· this action b!:'ought hy the United States pursuant to . . ' 

't ' . 
Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of· 1968, Lt2 United St:ntc:s . . . . I . j . 

- · Code) §3601, et f:eq., defendants Ro'be:rt F. H.:n.rd, d/b/a Bair' s . .- . . . . 1 i. . ! ... 
Realty Co::1pany, Ed·h'ard Davis, d/b/a Ed·h'ard D.:!vis Realty 

I . I • 

.. . . . .. 
and Cornette Realty, Inc. have moved for a more.definite state-

' i 
i 
I 

-I 

ment of the allegations of c1o:nt>laint, pursuant to 
.-. -· ··-· -- ·-1 

Rule 12 (c) of the Federal Rules of Civil\ . . 

parograph of the Compiaint alleges: 
-: ... -: i .I • 

-"Pursuant to a policy the 
· .·defc.udants have for profit induced and attempted 

to induce the· of certain 
occupied by persons, located in the: Cherokc·e 
Heig!lts subdivision in Ncmphis, TcnncssE·e, to sell 

"those dueJ.lings by regc..rding the. 
entry and prospective entry of into the 
neighborhood. This conduct of the dcf:c::ndants is 

______ · __ · _i1). violation of Section SO!, (e) of the Civil Rights. 
A6t of 1968, 42 u.s.c.J §3604(c) . .. . .:·· 

. ... 
... . . . 

- · Itt the Notions, defendants seek a more def:i.n:i.tc 
-..::.-::;,_ .· 

ment the nr 0f . -

the Cl.lJ.C(;Cd actS and the f!2.!i'IC!S Of n:c pctSOnS 

defcndnnts allegedly induced or to induce to sell thc:i.r. 
.• . . - _, ' 

• I 

./. .. 
'fhc ·};"ot:i.ons m1 for on }::..1·ch i3, 1970, •'i:H: Lh.-. 

' C [ f 1] • 1 • ,.. t' . . . . .... , . ,. . OUrt, Cl .tci· .\.1 . (ll: -._lC J..Sf.\.IC$ 1 <.lS l't!• ·l''-· .. >· 

• . · .. 

i 
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F. ] ' l. r·(' h.\ - t J ] • , .J• t• I,,. 
' J f...- .... 

Rcnlty Cc.:np<•il)', Ech•J.n.l d/b/:.t tdv.•:trd 

l 
pany, <md Conwttc Realty; Jnc • 

arc o\·c·J:l:ulcd. 
.; ,.! 

s.11:.lll 

on or hc:[or.c }i<lrch 30, 1970. 
• ··' 

So_ORDERED 

f 1 f . . . ··' . or a m)t·c c c statc:;:c:1t 
J 

file 
I 
I 
I 

. ! 
. .: 

to the Co:npl.s.i-at 
; .. 

·. 
,- .. -

' •· 

, 

... ·....:· 
h .. · 

- .. .•.•. 

': .... ••• ;or' -

thi.§ _cl.D.y of }1arch, 1970. 
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IN ·THC r fED ST'TES DISTlaCT COURT 
}'OR THL DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

DALlAS D"1.VISION r::-'1 r •. ""l n()'/ 'J ::ry C' ;_· "V ;l\;. , ;:-r., l4 ...... 

(._" ----·rl .. . ---J. / 
/ · ;' ty_ UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 
MRS. DEAN NILES, d/b/a 
DEAN NILES REALTY, et al. 

J. 
l 
l 
l 
l 
l 

CIVIL ACTION NO. CA 3-7243-E 

0 R DE R 

This matter is before the Court upon defendants' motions 

for a more definite statement. The pleading in question is the 

Complaint plaintiff filed under the 1968 Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 

3601 et alleging discrimination in housing. 

After revie\ving the Complaint and the authorities cited 

by both parties in support of their respective positions, the 

Court concludes as follm-:rs: 

With respect to the motions for a more definite statement, 

the plaintiff has provided sufficient notice to the defendants 

of the Government's claims to enable them to a responsive 

pleading. The Complaint, paraphrasing the language of the statute 

.itself, meets the requirements of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure and is not subject to a motion for more definite statement. 

United States v. Bob La\vrence Realtv, Inc., 313 F.Supp. 870, 873 

(N.D. Ga. 1970). The Federal Rules provide ample opportunity for 

defendant to· discover the facts of plaintiff's case fcllmving 

joinder of the issue. 

In consequence of this.Court's conclusions, above, 

defendants' motions for a more definite statement is denied. 

Entered this of September, 1973. 
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IN 'l'HE DISTRICl' OF 'l'HE UNIT'ED STA'l'ES 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF SOuTH CAROLINA 

CH.t-'\RLES':'ON DIVISION ?"" •.. 
4 

' -· 
1..... .. 

Civil Action No. 71-1262 f , ... 
\ t ·' • ; . 

1AH.I.tf< C. rv ...... , c", Jr:., ('.'_!::.: 

UNITED STATES OF AHZRICA, 

Plaintiff, 

. --versus-

J. C. LONG, individGally 
and as Executor for the 
ESTF.TE 0? FRl\.....">\K J. SOT'I'ILE, 
and 'l'HE AGENCY', a 
partnership, 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
} 0 R DE R 
) 
) 
) 
) 
} 
) 
) 
) 

This n;<:<tter is before tr.e· court upon defend?.nts' 

Motio:J. for a More Definite Stateme:1t. The pleading in 

is the within filed under Title VIII of 

the Civil Rights Act of 1968, alleging discri.rnination in 

After reviewing the complaint and the authorities 

cited by both parties in support of their respective positim-.s, 

it is concluded that plaintiff provided sufficient notice to 

the aefenda:1ts of the Govern.":lt::nt. • s claims to enable them t.:o frd:r,e 

a respo:'lsive pleadi::.g. Although plaintiff's complaint .is couched 
' 

in g2neral terr:-.s, and in part follo·.-;s lansuage of the statute, 

f 

·· acquaint th0 ccfE::1dants ·wit:l the character of the v:ic-

lations chargee. Such a pleading meets both the rcquiremonLs 

of the Federal Rules of c:i vil P rocc·dure, Bi..:rr- is v. :1 

361 :r.2d l6Ss, J 7 r: ( .: '- ,_ c .' ,. .... ) -z'-.L .:.. .... ] c 6) • • • t ' 1 .... ._ - . ., ... , • ) ,.. ,... -< c .... • ' ') .; . :J v , .. , _, -' _) , .•. " 

474 (::,th cir. 1S·S5), an:l /.2 u.s.c./\. § 36}3, the st0tutc tt:;d.:·:· \vl1)c·:-. 



·I 
I 

'· 

"' 

.... 

·_ .• ...,.. 

' ' 

.--"' 

··. 

,, 9 
•?'\ 

,. 
" 

.. 

.. . 

. ·1· d L was f1 e • See, conley v. Gibson, 355 u.s. 41 {1957). 

United States v. Gustin BacJn, 426 F.2d (lOth Cir. 1970); 

United States v. Lynd, F.2d 818 {5th Cir. 1962). Moreover, 

since the Federal Rules of civil Procedure provide 

opportunity for the defendants to discover the facts of plain-
...... ':1 • ., ..• 

tiff • s case following the join'der of ·.is·sue and be'cause the de-

fendants have already secured two extensions of time in \vhich 

to frame their responsive pleading it is concluded that the 

defendants should respond to the Complaint in this case within 
I 

fifteen days of the entry of this Order. 

AND IT IS SO ORDERED. 

.... 
\ 

'• 
Aiken, South carolina 

March 31, 1972. 

·. 

'·. 

,,;_ 

• • 

. • 

. . 

I. I .: /' M .. / 
(. ...- ·' . .., I , ' .l •·I - -"'J .. -. ' •· -{ : /"j "-.·_ •• - 1.. ,_ '-l L I.. (1 • \ : - I 
Charles E.· Simons, Jr. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT 

. 

I 
I 

I . I 
.. j 

.aj,• ... 
·:..- I i . ....... /}/1 

• """. .. \., .... ,... / • .I ·.;;.--"',. .· . / ._.,..,.. 
7h ' / /.I ..,/;- . 

:-::·<.fl.·:... / 0'.- .· I t. • /,;1t:/ , . _.. /.1'.· "/-X/ 
__ ·; ___ .. 
r:·-cf .. · ' i .·.;:f!; ·• ... . "'i . 

1 The onl,'/ ruling that w;:,s found which might support a differ.·ent 
conclus::.on i:; contained in the case of United States v. 
_!l:1con, .102 F.,Supp. 759 (D.Kan. 1969); but thu.t ruling by 
Distric': Court was reversed on appeal. 426 F.2d 539 (10L.!1 cir. 
1970). 

'. 
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CLERK, U.S. CUUK, 
IN THE UNITED DISTRICT COURrf»OU.THERN .DISTR!,CI OFt TE/AS 

FILED 
' FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

JUL 2 71973 
HOUSTON DIVISION 

Y. BAILEY. THm,lAS,, CLERK 
m1 a })/uLi.J-ftl tUv 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
} 

v. ) CIVIL ACTION 
) NO. 72-H-993 

THE JIM TUCKER COMPANY, INC., ) 
) 

Defendant. ) 

0 R D E R 

Summary judgment is not a favored resolution of legal 

conflicts, and where there are genuine issues as to material 

facts, viewing the inferences in the light most favorable to 

the party opposing a motion, a motion for summary judgment 

must be'denied. United States y. Diebold, 369 u.s. 
654, 8 L.Ed.2d 176, 82 S.ct. 993 (1962}; Peller y. Columbia 

Broadcasting System, 368 U.S. 464, 7 L.Ed.2d 458, 82 S.Ct. 

486 (1962}; Harvey v. Great Atlantic and Pacific Tea co., 

388 F.2d 123 (5th Cir. 1968). The record is clear that the 

defendant's position is that it has not violated the law in 

the past by in a pattern or practice of discrimination. 

Since implementing an Equal Opportunity Program in mid 1972, 
.. , ... 

alleges the defendant, non-discriminatory practices will be 

even more vigorous in the future with severe actions being 

taken against non-complying employee-agents. On this record, 

concludes the defendant, there is no showing of a substantial 

threat of rec'urrent. future violatio.q.s which is the prerequi-

site to an iniunction. United States v. W. T. Grant co., .. , - - - -
345 u.s. 629,. 633 (1953}; United States y. Oregon State 

' i 
COPY I CEHTI.Fi 

ATTEST: I" 
v. Bl':t EY CLEW( I 

;1/J 1 1 I 
Bv · · I 



Medical Society, 343 u.s. 326, 333 (1952); United States v. 

Hunter, 459 F.2d 205 (4th Cir. 1972). 

Accepting, but not deciding, the defendant's proposition 

of law, it is clear that the "burden is a heavy one" upon the 

defendant to, show that there is no such reasonable expectation. 

w. T. Grant co., supra, 345 u.s. at 633, 97 L.Ed. at 1309. 

The plaintiff disputes the defendant's position with respect 

to both past violations and contends that an injunction is 

necessary, not only to ensure that Mr. Tucker obeys the law, 

but also to ensure that his agents do so. The affidavits and 

materials submitted support inferences favorable to the plain-

tiff, and it appears to this court that genuine issues do 

exist as to facts material to alleged past practices as well 

as to the need for injunctive relief. For these reasons, 

defendant's M')tion for Sununary Judgment is denied. 

There being no prejudice to the defendant demonstrated 

by the plaintiff's somewhat tardy filing (a couple of days) 

of three affidavits, defendant's Motion to Strike Affidavits 

is denied. 

In light of the plaintiff's assurances that interviews 

with agents still associated with the defendant will not be 

conducted unless the defendant grants permission to conduct 

.,such interviews, plaintiff's motion to compel answers to 

Interrogatory 6 is granted. The answers to Interrogatories 

7, 8, 16 and 17 appearing to this court releva{t' to the subject matter. of this action, s Mo;ln! to compel 
Answers is g:r:::mted. For the same 1reason, ;Plaintiff's Motion 

d · · d I 1: k /1/1 /f 1 to Pro uce De J.s grante / C. er WJ. notJ. y 7ounse . 
. / (! DONE at Texasi;::J/K;;;;}/?73. 

• • :.;> v 
carl,..o. Bue, Jr. 
United States District Judge 
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UF ·------------- _________ ·-----·----------·-- --- -··--------- "'/C. Form 0:o. 18 (I>:v. Sc:p:. 

Date 

- -

')'7 •t "' •_::] ·Jtr '() 11 ,.>--,-\. .,. ...... 
"" 1 .i. :-y 1,!, • ,....1 

• .( - ., <( 

.., )'f••·!' ..... !1"'-r jl > ' '· ., I 1 . ! ' ' ,...:'>', .......... /.. ...... ,..., ...,.. .l \:;.._/4!_i,., __ .,. 

FOR TII:.-: 

SOUTIIERt1 DISTRIC'i' OF TEXAS 
·noUS1'mT-D I VTSTCJ::r -----

UNITED STATES OF AHERICA l 
v. 

No. 72-H-993 
THE JIH TUCKER C0(•1PA:t--.'Y, INC. 

TAKE NOTICE that the above-entitled case has been set for pre-trial at 

11 a.m. , on August 31 , 73 , at Houston, Texas 
before United States Magistrate Ronald J. Blask, room 12628, 
515 Rusk, Houston, Texas 

August 2 ' 19 73 

By 

V. BAILEY THm·L!l.S -----------------------------------------, {) (!] / /j . ClerkGv \: -----/. __ __ __ -:---__ -_-_-;-
Rona 0 'Quinn / Deputy Clerk. 

To Nr. Norman P. Goldberg 
Mr. James R. Gough 
Mr; John A. Bailey 
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.1 ,:.11. mot:j_ons, sross cL::ir:1::;, 
be filed ori or before 

amendm-2ats, and ot 

?. t--11 dL:;:over'y f:dll be completed on or before 

3. Jur-y i::;_ i.s not 

4. duration of trial: 

5. Other 

I n ":'., r v-, (:1 ...... .......... ..;_- ...._• 

f. Pre-Trial Order, Eemoranda of L&w and other pretrial material 
ao in Judge 3ue 1 s are to filed with the 
cleri:. 1es3 than 3 business day; ':Jefore trial. 

7. The caze is set for 
oiclock on 

Csll and Trial befor2 Judge Jue at 
The ?Ocition 

of case on the can be assertained by contacting the 
De?uty 

* J .• 
" " ;': 

r> '-t1 ..... < • tl . 0eL ne5otlat1on3 are ere not preaen -Y 1n progress. 
If the cas-2 is settled, .s.nd- such is made prior to 
trLsl 7 settlemc=nt J:,c-,:;erJ will be to Judge 3ue before th'2 
trial date) OR counsel will in court on the dat2 of trial 
to dictate the terms of the settlement into the record and the 

.,, b 1• 0 d 0 • • • d. C£l3e tvL... e r.:;J..::::mJ..:;se at thc:t time, the court ret.s.:t.n:Lng JUrLs lC-
tion for the sole purpose of settlement. A NOTIFICATION 
OF SETTLEN'2t-1T 0Y tJILL NOT obviate the necessity of 
app2arance on the scheduled trial - - - - - _,_ - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
A COFY 0::? :tppJJCEDUP.ES TO BE BY COUI:JSEL IN PREPLPJ,TION OF 
CASE ?OR ?OI..LO'IlnG PB..ET?.L\L HEARING 11 IS .3RIHG TillS 
70P.M FITH YDU TO THE PRETRL\L 

conference held 

H. Lingo U. S. Magistrate 

We agree to and acknowledge the set 
out above, and we have received 

CO?Y of Judge 

for Plaintiff 

r ·'-tO""r "'Y for J-J.,.c,..,nrln.-: .... ....... _ .\.. 1,;.,.. - - '-l-'-=- .J"..:...1l&... 

')' 
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IN 'l'llE UNITED STNi'ES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

JUDGE CARL 0. BUE, JR. 

PROCEDURES TO BE FOLLm·JED BY COlJNSEL IN PREPARATION 
. OF Ci".SE FOR TRIAL FOLLQ\·HNG PRE-TRIAL CON?2RENCE 

I • 

IN GENERAL 

The paramount goal in the trial of a case is to accomplish 

a just result. The following guidelines are designed to assist 

in achieving such a result. If one or more of these procedures 

create a problem for counsel in any case, they will be discussed 

with the court and opposing counsel well in advance of the trial 

date. 

Well prepa:ced trials bring about the fairest and most 

expeditious verdicts. prepared counsel present the evidence 

most fully and clearly and crea·te t:he most complete record for 

appeal, if one becomes necessary. The cour-ts and la\vyers must 

--conserve tha time and minimize the expense of juries, witnesses 

and the parties. They owe a duty to advance the administration 

of justice by the trial an efficient and clear exposition 

of the real issues. The.procedures set forth below are designed 

to expedite the reaching of a just result 'l;li thout impeding in 

any way the ability of a la\vycr, as an advocate, to present his 

client's case fully, fai!lY and effectively: 

. .,. 
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II. 

PROCEDURES TO B!:: l\CCO:IPLTSL-121) 

1. In this court detailed msrnoranda of lav in support 

of each party's position must ba filed with the cicrk at least 

three business days before the trial, unless some other time is 

fixed by the court. This rule must be strictly complied with 

so that ·tho court and tne law clerks can be full v acquainted 

\·lith the case -.:.vhich is to ba tried. Such m2moranda will dovet-:Iil 

\·lith and support the issues raised by the parties in the Pre-Trial 

In cases, counsel should be prepared to argue 

the case upon conclusion of the evidence, ·.r: l.J.. the court feels it 

would be helpful in clarifying the issues. 

2 • The Pre-Trial Order will be filed \-Ji th the clerk along --------- -----------

t·li th the mf'>morarda of at least three business davs. befo:t-e - -----···- ----------.--- ---- -------------------------"-

trial. It should narrov1 the issues for ·the benefit of the court. 

Points of reasonably anticipated to arise during the 

trial should also be set out along \•lith supporting legal authori-··-

ties. The court will review and rule on such questions of 
__.-· 

ac1missibili ty of- evidence and objections before the trial com . .rnence.s. 

The Pre-Trial Order should generally contain the follo1ving matters, 

although the Order should be tailored to the requirements of the 

individual 

{a) rature of the case. 

(b) Specification of issues. 

{c) E'acts stipulated • 
. .,.. 

(d) l'acb.:; in dispute. 

(e) 11 grecd pro;;x)sitions of 

(f) iisputed 

_.,_ 

). 



• 
(g) Such other information or data as the 

attorneys may deem pertinent and helpful. . , 

(h) List of witnesses (except rebuttal witn0sses) and a 
concise but comnlctc summar1T of the substance of 1 

each ¥Jitness' testimony. 

{i) List of exhibits. 

(j) Estimate of time required for trial. 

3. In non-jury cases each counsel will prepare and file 

\'lith the clerk Findings of Fact and Conc1 usions of La\'! 

concurrently with the Pre-Trial Order and a Memorandum of Law. 

These Findings and Conclusions can be amended, if the proof 

adduced at the trial requires it. The legal authorities sup-

porting each Proposed Conclusion of Lat.·;, \>Jhere appropriate, 

should be set out directly under each Conclusion for ready 

l.:o-ferehce by the court. 

In jury cases each counsel ,.;ill prepare and file with 

the clerk 'concurrently \vith the Pre-Trial Order and a Hemorandu:n 

of Law Proposed Charqe including __ ¢efinitior:.s 

to the jury along with supporting authorities, \vhere applicable. 

Proposed Interroqatories to the Jury should be included by counsel 

so as to cover all ultimate fact issues to be resolved by the jury. 

This court has a duty to insure that a proper jury charge is 

formulated and submitted to the jury. Counsel have a duty to 

this court to insure that Proposed Findings and Conclusions 

in non-jury cases and jury charges in jury cases are as 

thoroushly and professionally prepared as possible based on 

the applicable'· lc>.\•1 and the evidence in the case. Such proposals 

of counsel vlill be regularly made a part o£ the record in the 

case aft.c:..: jury has c1n.rcy)d and objections to the 

have heard and ruled upon by the court. '· 
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... 

4. The court is available for conferences with 

counsel at a mutually convenient time prior to the 

if such a conference is necessary or advantageous to the 

th::!re \vill be no contc:tct with couns2l in the cas2 

by the court between the pre-trial conference and the 

docket call of the case. All settlement discussions should be 

fully exhausJcec1 before the date of trial in order to minir::ize 
I 

the expense and conserve the time and effort of the court, the 

parties and their counsel and the jury. 

5. Counsel should notify doctors and expert t..ritnesses 

well ahead of time of the da·te of the trial so tha·t their 

depositions can,be taken if they will not be available. 

6. __ including s_t.etche§, models, diaqr.:'l:-:ts 

. !;>e and rna rked befo:r2 th(! t.rial starts. 

All such exhibits \vill be offered and received in evidence u.::; 

the fi::::-st i tern of business at the trial. At leas.;.: three b_\.:sin·2-?E_ 

days before the trial starts. those exhibits to \-Jhi ch 

are made be nu.llbered, mark2d and tenc12red, and the court 

\rill be notified of the objec·tions in writing acco;tlpanied J.1y 

supporting legal authorities. ;.-;her(."! approp:.:iate T1<e court v;i 11 

rule on the ac1'U.issibili·ty of such exhibits before t11e trial com-

mences, and objections of counsel \'lill be preszrvcd in the record. 

It is the obliga.tion of any party , .. ,ho \vishes to offer exhibits 

to comply wi·th t.his procedure b'{ tendering such exhibits to the 

oth2r party or p:1rtics for examination u.nd app:::-oval or objections 

I 

I 

I r 
ij 

I 
• d" d b ' I as 1n 1catc a In the absence of unusual c1rcu:nstanc .. ;s, 

the court 'l.'lill <l2ny introduction of exhibits '.lJ1ich are not 

pre.:;()ntcd nt to these guidE! lines •. 

-4-

., .. 



!io • 

.. 
• 

7. If a portion of any deposition is to be or 

summarized. counsel will notify opposing counsel and the 

court of his intention, (citing pages ana lines inclusively) 

at least thre8 dc::ys b·:=fo::c the trial starts (unless 

the necessity for using a deposition develops unavoidably 

thereaft-er). Opposing counsel '"ill note his objections promptly 

to such portion or portions of the deposition (citing pages and 

lines inclusively) with supporting authority before the day of 

trial, and the court \•Jill rule on the ol;jections before the 

trial commences. 

8. All trials \·Jill commence at 10:00 a.m. unless counsel 

are notified to the contrary. The noon recess will normally run 

from 12:30 p.m. to 2:00 p.m. In a multi-day trial, the court 

will recess about 4:45 p.m. Counsel should bear in 

mind these hours of cour·t, notify parties to be on time and 

arrange for witnasses accordingly. Th9 court will not recess 

to permit counsel to call a missing witness, unless he has been 

subpoenaed and has f;:.liled to appear 0 In that case, the mat·ter 

will be handled as the interests of justice require including 

the issuance of a bench \·Jarrant, where appropriate. 

9. This court conducts th.9 voir dire examination in jury 

cases. Counsel may sub;uit proposed suestions in .. ,ritinq to be 

.Eropcunded to iurv Punel. These •;1i 11 be sucmi ·tted thr2e 

bttsiness c1ays prior to the commencern·:=nt of the trinl for con-
' • 

sideration by the court and, ':7here appropriate, the court ;,·;ill 
).• 

make every effort to ask such questions of the prospective jurors 

are thought to be relevant. 

'· 
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10 • shall be in a position when the slarts .. 
to nove their respective portions of the case promptly. . ' . 
effort should ba made by counsel to elicit witnesses 

only inforwation is relevant to the issues in the case and 

to avoid cumulative testimony. If counsel wish th9 Mershal or 

Bailiff to sur:u:1on th; \'iitnesses fz:-om the •.1ltness room as needed, 

they should supply a list of witnesses to the courtroom 

before the trial, setting forth the order in which they t.vill ba 

called. 
\ 

11. If counsel require a vieT,.Jbox or other 

equipment in the presentation of the case to the court or jury, 

the courtroom clerk should be before the trial cornmences 

so that proper ar:cange:nents can be made to o'!:>tain such equipment 

in advance, wherever possible. 

12. Administrative and procedural handling of a case, once 

it is activated and a pre-trial hearing is held. will frequently 

require the D:::!puty Clerk and the la'Vl cleJ':ks at the request of the 

Court to be in contact 'I:Jith counsel. As arrna of the cOL'.rt such 

personnel \vill be extended every courtesy and complete cooperation 

by the attorneys \'7ho \·lill ir.u"'tlec1iately return all telephone calls 

and promptly ans\..;er all written cor..t.rnunications rela·tive to their 

-·· case, once they are received. 

13. If any other arise ".vhich are not covered in the 
,....-'-

above procedures. counsel for 

court ·1,.;e ll in advance of the 
b-' 

/ /'• 
with the 

! / 
the par-t;:·ies 

I 

'I I 

trial date. i / 
I ! / 

I : 

.' /.·· / ;· 

L 
._. i 

. /.·,·, :.' . / 
.• / .· /_...-·\ / ' . ,. (! .- . 

/ //: / . //j'·-''\ . 
• / .·. ( • ..' .•,; /.'.'' • I ' ; ( 

;.. .• ./ • . _,• I. t" ·., / jf , 

Jr., 
United States District .. Jucl.qc 
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... CERTIPICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Elyse S. Goldweber, an attorney for the plaintiff, 

certify that I have served a copy of the attached Notice 

of Motion of the United State$ to dismiss defendants' counter-

claim, a copy of the attached Nemorandum of the United States 

in Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, Motion for 

More Definite Statement and in Support of Plaintiff's Notion 

to Dismiss the Counterclaim and a copy of the 

Hemorandum of the United States in Response to the Affidavits 

of Donald Trump and Roy Cohn on the defendants by mailing a 

copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney at the following 

address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

This, the 4th day of January, 1974. 

/ 

__ d ,/J.__f.:tu_"-,,ft_,7,<(___ 
ELYSE S. GOLm-JLBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
C . ·1 R. ' n· · · J.v:L J_gnts 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. Co 20530 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 
r"lt:.EL, 

IN CLERK'S OFFIC:.:. 
'· S. DISTRICT COURT f..i} fU. 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK * JAN8 1914 * 
CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 riME A.M .....•...•.•. -...-........... 

P.M ............ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC., 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM OF THE UNITED STATES IN RESPONSE 
TO THE AFFI,DAVITS OF DONALD TRUMP AND ROY COHN 

HENRY A. BRACHTL 
Assistant United States 

Attorney 
Department of Justice 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. c. 20530 

ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. c. 20530 

@ 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
AND TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC. , 

MEMORANDUM OF THE UNITED STATES IN RESPONSE 
TO THE AFFIDAVITS OF DONALD TRUMP AND ROY COHN 

HENRY A. BRACHTL 
Assistant United States 

Attorney 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Washington 2 D. C. 20530 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NE\v YORK 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
AND TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC., 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM OF THE UNITED STATES IN RESPONSE 
TO THE AFFIDAVITS OF DONALD TRUMP AND ROY COHN 

Ostensibly in support of their pending motions, defendants 

have filed the affidavits of Donald Trump, a named defendants, and 

Roy Cohn, their attorney. The only matters before the Court, based 

on the pleadings hereinbefore filed, are defendants' motions to dis-

miss the action and for a more definite statement and plaintiff's 

motion to dismiss the counterclaim. Since such motions are all 



'· 

addressed exclusively to the pleadings,and require no factual 

elaboration, and since there is no suggestion in defendants' papers 

that they seek summary judgment, the affidavits serve no purpose 

germane to any issue before the Court. The counterclaim seeks the 

nice round sum of $100,000,000 in damages, and since defendants 

announced its filing at a press conference at a major hotel, the 

inference is reasonable if not compelling that the purpose of the 

filing of the affidavits was extrajudicial. Since these affidavits 

accuse the United States and its counsel of misconduct, we think 

it appropriate,in spite of their irrelevancy to the issues directly 

before the to file at least a brief response. *I 

I. Alleged Baselessness of the Complaint 

In an affidavit characterized by what must be remarkable powers 

of extrasensory perception, which enable the affidant to read the 

mind both of the Court and of opposing counsel, Mr. Cohn has stated 

under oath, among other things, that: 

*I There being no specific matter before the Court for which affidavits 
- would be appropriate, we have not responded by affidavit. Most of 

the facts discussed herein are based on the pleadings and associated 
papers previously on file. The remaining facts - primarily those 
dealing with the press release and with notice of the suit to defend-
ants - are true to the best of the knowledge of the undersigned 
counsel for the United States, and, so far as we know, undisputed. 

- 2 -



1. "It appears certain that [the Government] will 
be entitled to no relief." 

2. "The Government has no facts to support the charges. 
If they [sic] did, they would be stated in the complaint. 
This action was brought to coerce the defendants into making 
a settlement and nothing more." 

3. The United States is "merely fishing for facts 
upon which it can base its case. These facts do not exist 
and the Government knows they do not exist." (emphasis added) 

Mr. Cohn has thus sworn not only that the complaint is baseless, but 

that he is personally familiar with opposing counsel's malicious 

state of mind. He claims to know with sufficient certainty to swear 

to it that counsel for the United States deliberately violated the 

provisions of Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Procedure, which 

forbids counsel from signing a pleading which he knows to be false. 

The sole stated basis for Mr. Cohn's certitude that the alle-

gations in the complaint were fabricated by counsel for the United 

States is that plaintiff did not plead evidence in the complaint, 

and subsequently propounded interrogatories to defendants. Even the 

most superficial inquiry would have disclosed to the affiant that 

evidentiary facts need not and should not be pleaded in a complaint 

ofthis nature*/, and that all parties -including plaintiffs- may 

the unanimous line of decisions collected at pages 5-6 and 12-13 
of our brief in opposition to the motions to dismiss and for a 
more definite statement. 
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conduct discovery after filing an action of this kind. Any 

responsible litigant conducts discovery, and there is no basis in 

reason or authority to suggest that a party's propounding of inter-

rogatories to his adversary implies that its case is in any respect 

infirm. *I Simple interrogatories addressed to plaintiff, which 

defendants still have not propounded, would have disclosed to the 

affiant that the United States has evidence of recent acts of dis-

crimination at a substantial number **I of different Trump complexes 

together with substantial additional evidence of discrimination pro-

vided by the Commission on Human Rights of the City of New York and 

by other persons and organizations with knowledge of pertinent facts. 

Accordingly, it is apparent that facts directly contrary to counsel's 

affidavit were readily ascertainable by the affiant but not ascertained 

by him prior to filing the affidavit. ***I 

*I See, e.g. United States v. Procter & Gamble, 356 U.S. 677, 682-83 
- (1958), in which the Supreme Court described how discovery makes 

a trial "less of a game of blind man's buff and more a fair contest." 

**I This number has since been increased by further investigation and 
-- may well rise further as discovery proceeds. 

***/ The very newspaper clippings which counsel attached to his affi-
davit disclose that the City Commission and the Urban League pro-
vided information to the United States, but counsel's affidavits 
disclose no inquiry with these organizations. There has likewise 
been no suggestion of an exchange of informal discovery, which 
would then have been forthcoming, and could have provided defend-
ants with information contrary to the content of Mr. Cohn's 
affidavit. 
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II. Alleged Coercion of Defendants to Settle 

Mr. Cohn's affidavit accuses the Government of attempting to 

bring "unlawful and undue pressure upon the defendants to settle 

this case" by'immediately approaching the defendants to quickly 

terminate the litigation by entering into a Consent Decree dictated 

by the Civil Rights Division." The allegation of pressure, due or 

undue, lawful or unlawful, is completely false. 

A copy of a letter from counsel to plaintiff responding to 

an inquiry by counsel for defendants regarding a possible consent 
*I decree is attached The letter, to which defendants never 

responded, recites that it was sent following a communication by 

counsel for defendants to Mr. James D. Porter, Jr., Chief of the 

Civil Division of the United States Attorney's office. On its 

face, the letter proposed relief customary in suits under 42 U.S.C. 

3613, and makes it unmistakably clear that no ultimatum was intended. 

It relates that "alternative steps" to accomplish the same result 

[equal housing opportunity] may be given appropriate consideration. 

It states that counsel for plaintiff is ready to meet and negotiate 

with counsel for defendants. It explicitly invites counterproposals. 

The letter also makes it clear that plaintiff does not want negotiations 

*I See Ex. 1. 
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to delay the litigation, */ but seeks to achieve equal housing 

opportunity promptly one way or the other. This is still plaintiff's 

position, and it is consistent with the Attorney General's responsi-

bilities under 42 U.S.C. 3613. 

III. "Capitulation to the Welfare Department" 

At page 3 of his affidavit Mr. Cohn swears that the real pur-

pose of this suit is a press release "announcing the capitulation 

of the defendants and the substitution of the Welfare Department for 

the management corporation." In the New York Post of December 12, 

1973, Mr. Donald Trump is quoted as claiming that plaintiff is trying 

to force defendants to rent to welfare recipients ". -. . who do not 

otherwise qualify for our apartments in our buildings." These 

statements suggest that it has been the policy of the United States 

to seek to require landlords, including the Trumps, to waive their 

general rental criteria for persons who are on welfare. This is not 

true, and the falsity of the allegation is apparent from the face of 

pertinent documents, especially the amended consent decree in United 

States v. Life Realty Inc., Civil Action No. 70 C 964, copy attached 

hereto **/ ·-

*I Or, for that matter, dilatory motions addressed to pleadings, where 
- the facts sought to be elicited by such motions can so easily be 

secured through interrogatories. 

See Ex. 2. - 6 -



No proposal has ever been communicated by plaintiff to defend-

anmat all about welfare recipients. The only possible basis for 

defendants' accusations about this is the consent decree negotiated 

with Life Realty Co., which was given to defendants at the request 

of Mr. Abraham Lindenbaum, who was then acting as their counsel and 

asked the United States Attorney's office to provide him with a copy. 

In fact, the letter from counsel to plaintiff to present counsel 

for defendants' dated November 7, 1973 responding to defendants' 

expressed interest in a consent decree, contains no mention of welfare 

recipients at all. */ 

The consent decree in Life Realty Co.--even if it had been 

proposed to defendants as a model for this case, which it was not -

does not require the Life Realty Co. to rent to persons on welfare 

who fail to meet the landlord's standard rental qualifications. On 

the contrary, the decree requires defendants to rent to all applicants 

A copy of this letter is attached hereto. Mr. Cohn is therefore 
in the curious position of having sworn , in effect, 

1. that the United States has brought this suit to 
put unqualified welfare recipients into Trump 
buildings; and yet 

2. that it has sought to bludgeon the defendants into 
signing a consent decree which makes no mention of 
welfare recipients. 
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equally, regardless of the source of an applicant's funds, */ on 

the basis of the rental standards previously negotiated by the 

parties and approved by the Court. In fact, a black woman who is 

also a welfare recipient brought suit against the United States and 

its officers, as well as against Life Realty Co., et al., alleging 

that the consent decree discriminated against persons on welfare. 

The Court found no basis for the suit against the United States. 

Boyd v. United States, 345 F. Supp. 790 (E.D. N.Y. 1972). Accordingly, 

the attribution of this malign purpose to the United States is not 

only inconsistent with the other evil deeds which Mr. Cohn has 

ascribed to us, but also lacks any support whatever in the record of 

this case or of any other case. 

*I If they were unable or unwilling to read the Life Realty decree 
before filing their affidavits, Mr. Trump and Mr. Cohn could have 
contacted the voluble Mr. Samuel Lefrak of Life Realty. Mr. Lefrak 
is quoted in the New York Times of December 13, 1973 as expressly 
denying that the consent decree in Life Realty requires him to rent 
to persons on welfare who do not meet the other objective rental 
standarda Mr. Lefrak's explanation in the New York Times conforms 
to the provisions of the consent decree. 

- 8 -



IV. Notice to Defendants 

The affidavit of Donald Trump alleges that he was "shocked" 

to hear that this suit had been brought, because he had not received 

any "formal connnunication whatever" about the subject matter of this 

action, and because "the first I head about it was on my car radio 

the morning of the 15th," the date the complaint was filed. Mr. 

Trump's words are carefully chosen to make it appear that the suit 

was a complete surprise based on no investigation, and that news of 

it was released to the press without defendants being notified. That 

is quite different from what in fact occurred. 

First, we nomthat, unlike defendants, the United States held 

no press conference in which the "real motivations" of their adver-

saries were discussed, intuitively or otherwise. A simple press 
*I 

release, a copy of which is attached; and which states no facts about 

the Trumps which are not in the Complaint, was released to the press 

shortly after the Complaint was filed and had become a matter of public 

record. The case was certainly one of general public interest, and 

it is both the right and the responsibility of the Public Information 

Office of the Department of Justice to disclose matters of public 

record to the press. Equal housing opportunity would provide little 

practical benefit to anybody if steps to assure it were taken secretly, 

so that prospective beneficiaries could never learn of them. 

";,'(7 See Ex. 3. 
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Even if defendants' allegations that news of the suit was 

released to the media before the defendants were notified were 

true, this would not have been unlawful. Unlike some other civil 

rights statutes, */ 42 U.S.C. 3613 does not require pre-suit notice 

to or negotiations with prospective defendants. See United States 

v. Luebke 345 F. Supp. 179 (D. Colo. 1972). Even though no such 

notice is required, however, it is the general practice of the 

Civil Rights Division to notify defendants of suits, as a matter 

of courtesy, before the media report them, and this procedure was 

followed in the present case. The defendants have seriously dis-

torted the events which occurred when suit was filed by omitting 

critical facts from their affidavits. 

This suit was filed shortly after 10:00 A.M. on October 15, 

1973. Shortly thereafter, Departmental Attorney Judith Wolf tele-

phoned both Mr. Durban of Durban and Tosti, attorneys and statutory 

agents for the defendants, and defendant Donald Trump and advised 

each that the suit had been filed. This was accomplished no later 

than 10:30 A.M., well in advance of any dissemination of the news 

by the media, for the press release was not issued until after the 

case was filed. Mr. Trump expressed no awareness of the suit when 

Ms. Wolf spoke to him. 

*/E.g. 42 U.S.C. 2000c-(6) (school desegregation); 42 U.S.C. 2000e-5(a) 
(employment discrimination suits by private parties). 
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Mr. Trump's affidavit fails to mention Ms. Wolf's telephone 

call at all, except by the artful use of the phrase "no formal 

communication' in denying notice of the suit. By claiming that no 

"formal" conununication was received, Mr. Trump implicitly admits -

as he must - that he received what he chooses to characterize as 

"informal" notice by means of Ms. Wolf telephone call. We submit 

that the presentation of this incident by affidavit without any 

mention of an event which completely changed the character of the 

transaction has the foreseeable effect of misleading anyone who reads 

it. 

CONCLUSION 

Were it not for the extraordinary intimations of impropriety 

in the affidavits submitted by defendants, we would not have burdened 

the Court with material which is so remote from the merits of the 

motions now before the Court. We believe, however, that the foregoing 

discussion conclusively establishes the propriety of the conduct of 

counsel for the United States and the baselessness of the sworn 

changes submitted on behalf of defendants. The existence of substan-

tial basis for the suit will be demonstrated beyond peradventure if 

defendants ever get around to a serious effort to elicit the facts by 

discovery. 

- 11 -



If the entire controversy has any relevance to the issues 

in this case, it is to establish that defendants and their counsel 

made serious but baseless allegations, the insubstantiality of which 

could easily have been discovered by them. 

States 
orney 

Brooklyn, New York 

Respectfully submitted, 

1_ 
FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 

1 !1 c:r. X v-·e 
ELYS S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 

'Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
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EXHIBIT 1 . ' 

T. 11-7-73 Nov 7 1973 

JSP :FES: ESG: cm1r. 
DJ 175-52-28 

Mr. Michael Rosen 
Saxe, Bacon, Bollan and Manley 
39 68th 
New York City, New York 10021 

Re: United States v. Fred C. Trump, Donald Trump 
and Trump Inc. C.A. No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Mr. llosen: 

I am writing to you in response to information 
that Jim Porter has conveyed to me indicating that your 
clients might be interested in negotiating a Consent Decree 
with the United States in the above-mentioned lawsuit. 

Department, while certainly not desiring to delay 
the litigative process is at the same ttme amenable to 
affording the defendants the opportunity to enter into 
a Consent Decree. If a Consent Decree could be negotlated. 
the question whether there have been violations in the 
past need not be resolved, and any such decree would 
ordinarily be entered without adjudication of the merits. 

The specifics of a Consent Decree, of course, depend 
on the specifics of eacn case, and if your clients are 
interested in negotiating a Deeree, it will be necessary 
for U3 to obtain further information in order to formulate 
the details of appropriate relief. llowever, on the.basis 
of the information we have ae a result of our investigation 

l 
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·2· 
prlor to_ the filing of the complaint in this action, we 
believe the Decree should prohibit all discriminatory 
practices and should include, at a provisions 
aueh as those described Let me stress that these 
provisions are not necessarily exhaustive, and that alter-
native steps to aceompli:Jh the same result may be given 
appropriate consideration: 

1. Instructing all employees in detail as to 
their responsibilities under the civil rights lawa and 

ni!'•t-:r•; 

2. Including in all advertising, leases, brochures 
and other .aterials relating to renting of apartments, 
an appropriate fair housing statement, aueh aa the slogan 
and logotype approved by HUD; · 

3. Taking appropriate steps to acquaint blacks 
and Puerto Ricans with their opportunity to live at Trump 
buildings. This might be accomplished by advertising on 
a periodic basis in media which primarily serve the non-
white tha availability of apartments in all 
geographical areas. and by sending vacancy reports oa e. 
periodic basis to local groups which assist bl"k and 

B.ican persons in obtainins housing; 

4. Devising and implementing an affirmative action 
program for the recruitment and hiring of black and Puerto 
&lean superintendents and renting agents; 

S. Devising and implementing objective ancl uniform 
rental atandarda, and procedurea; 

' 6. nacing victims of unlawful discrimiaatory 
practices, as far as possible, in their rightful place 
including financial compensation aa appropriate; 

7. Periodically sending to the court and to this 
Department reports on the implementation of the Consent 
Decree, so that the effectiveneas of the steps taken may 
'be evaluated. Maintenance of appropriate records with 

\ 
1 



rac1a11dentifieation would be necessary to enable us 
to make an appropriate evaluation of the adequacy the 
affirmative action program. 

It would also be necessary, during the discussion 
of a Consent Decree, for our representatives to inspect 
appropriate company records and obtain certain information 
pertinent to relief. 

We will, of course, be happy to meet with you and 
";"OW: to of. Consent Decree v 

consistent with the principles set forth herein, as well 
as any counterproposals which you may have. Please feel 
free to contact me at (202) 739-4132 if you have any 
questions concerning the matters set forth in this letter. 

CCI Mr. J'im Porter 

Sincerely. 

J. STANLEY POTTINGEll 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 
ELYSE S. 

Attomey 
Housing Section 

Assistant United States Attorney 

I 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEH YORK ,, 
- 7 - - - - - - - - - - -

if 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
I 
I 

i Plaintiff . ..... r -against-
... f"• T 

LIFE. REALTY, INC., et al. . . 

Defendants 

X 

- - - - - X 

.-.• 
COHSENT ORDER 

Civil Action 
. 70 C 964 

. 
< 

, . ,. 

I. The Apartment Leasing Corporation of 

(Leasing), \'lhich manages all the bui-ldings l'Thich are listed 

" on Attachment "A" hereto, submits to the jurisdiction of 

: 

- :- ______ :..',-___ -· this-Cour.t;c and. \'Tarrants-·to--the-·Cour_t_ t,hat--it- the povrer 

•' 'j 

·, 

. 
' 

I"} 
J 

and authority to, carry out the of "those 

to J·_ · 
tempt for .. 

-consents to be a party-defenrant to this action, 

ame.ndment of the complaint. Accordingly, IT IS SO ORDERED. 

II. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND 

that the complaini against the following individuals: Sam-

uel J. Lefrak, Anthony Cuccia and Rheba Gelman, is 

aga5.nst them in their personal capacities, with prejudic:e 

to the allegations l'li th respect to the buildings set forth 

in Attachment "A" hereto, predating this Order. 

III. rr IS FURTHER ORDERED_, that Life Rea.lty_, Inc., 

Leasing, their- agents_, employees, successors.:;, e.nd all 

1/ For the purpose C)f this order the term "successors" sh8.l-. 
'be defined as folloi'rs: The successors of Life Rea.lty, Inc. j 
include any person or group of persons 1-1ho in the future mayl 
act as rental agent for any of the buildings in Brootlyn 
rented by Life Realty, Inc. at the time this decree is ent- I 
cred, unless the of any such building shall be I 
changed in a. bona :'ide arms' length transaction. 1 

l<urther, for the purpose of this C:-d-?r the ofi 
Apartment I;easing Corporatio:-1 of America shall i!1c1ucic c.ny ,

1

1 

person or grot.:p of persocs viho in the future may as man·· 

le.r;ing agent fo:- the bui lc. ings in Brooklyn lis ted on Attach- ! 
- f"'1""7 .. -.J.. • ,J... - .. · r.J!"'oi men t }\ unlo:: ,., o oo .... h the o,·rners.J..p c.nd : .... n"' t:,tl!h..H. ()J.: 

"'11Y t:·t·"'h 1)C :t."n l I 1[1, L' • .1..:. i.) ,.; .• ' .. r 1 ... t. 1;-' J. r\ 1_• (_,: •• • 1..1· ... 1,_, .t 1t ,;, .-. .. .,: .. JJ' .. (.! I 

bon(!. fld,: 1 lon;--:Ln .. ction. The 'Hill 
··- 4- "' . .tl•. (-."'), • J 

I f1Ql;J_l'y v!1C p_:_a_} n U: l <:tl.: _·yJ ae.ys p1'.1.0J:' CO 
· ,-Jr ·-] • .. ., 0.('> +·l· 4·1.-.. .. 1 r_, .J ct.: Vt...!\_ ..J 1 c .. ..... . .t ..:.. l· • . ,. 

; 

i ! . 
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. I . ,, ... 
those iri concert or participation \'tith any of theruV, 

. i I . . . : . I I . 
arJ per.manently with regard to the buildings \ 

Bnlooklyn named on Attachment "A" I from: .. r . \ 
I . 

. A •. Representing to any because · 
J •. pf' color, religion or national origin, , . 
1 

• •1 --that any dl>relling is unavailable for inspec- ; 
1 .. · • fact available,; and : : 
;... _T·_ . ti.on. or rental, when such dwelling is in .. 1

1 
.. . 

· . · · :·.B. · Making unavailable or denying any 
to any person on account of race, 

.·.:·color, religion or national origin. 
I 

. .In order t? assure nondiscriminatory assign-

ment of tenants, and to encourage integration of the build-

inga listed on Attachment "A" hereto, Li:fe Realty, Inc. will 
__ . __ .: ___ A-;-=----=Maintaln a date and time-punch 

.-·-·: · its. of:(lce iri Brooklyn, and 
. · ---· · • = '.. -··· .. :stamp every application which is submitted 

.... ______ :_ : 01_- __ --.--- ... :- af$2:f
1
5

1
• OiO with the 

. a e an o n . .,. · . * 
--·-·-- ..••••• ,. --- ... -- ... .:s;:>_.t '·' .'•·.__; 

t. 

.\ 

i 

• 

.-:: .. -:\·.' -

.(,.. ·--'-------=------- ·-' .. 
··· ·· B. · On Wednesday. of each \'reek, com-

pile a list of apa.rtments for which Life 
Inc. is rePtal agent, 

be available for rent, including the size; 
rent, whether utilities are 
included), the address of the building, 
and the probable date '\'Then a ne"' tenant 
may .take occupancy; 

r 

. C. Display such list o:f available 
apartments at all times after it is com-
piled in a prominent place in its Brooklyn 
office, and include on the current weekly 
list all apartments available for rent; 1 _ 

· .. 
D. Eliminate from said list apart-

ments for \'Thich incumbent tenants have 
· ·: reserved orally or in \'Tri ting since its 

· listing, or for \'Thich application with a 
· $25.00 deposit has been received, by 

striking such apartment :from the list. 
application is made for any 

· :apartment appearing upon the the 
application shall be recorded with the n_ame 
and race of the applicant as provided for 
in paragraph E. belo\'T, and date ancl time 
of filing in a daily log, as more fully 
set forth below. · 

E. Maintain for two years from the 
of this decree, as a dally log, 

··all applications :filed (retaining the 
original applications), with the follow• 
ing in:formatlon: 

2/ As used in the remo.inder of thJs OrderJ the terr.1s 11 DC!-
fendant" or "Defcndc-.. nts"J or the nuJned defcnde.nts, include 
·employees) agentsJ successors, and all thoEe act-
ing in concert or participation with any of them. 

- 2 -
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. . 
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i .. 
/ 
I 
I 
i ... ... z' 

""-!" 
. ; .), 
. ... . :-

-·-·--· . -· -· ----··-- --·--··--r 
. 

. 1. The name of the applicant 
and his or her race (Black, vThi te 
or Other) as perceived by the de-
fendants' agents, unless race has 
been voluntarily furnished by the 
applicant on a form such as the one 
attached hereto as Attachment "B"; 

. . 2. The building, the apartment 
applied for, the date and time of 

· filing, whether the applicant was 
· - accepted or rejected and, if the 

applicant was rejected, the reason 
therefor. · 

. i 

'· 

F. Accept applications only for specific 
available units in the Brooklyn buildings 
appearing on Attachment "A" hereto, and will 
not take applications which fail to specify 
a particular unit; 

----------. G. Within thirty (30) days of the 
_____ _._. ____ , ___ entry _of this Order, mail to every tenant 

... _ 
1

_ __ ___ _ in the buildings __ listed on Attachment "A" 

•. 

--· .. -- hereto the first list of available apart-
---- -- ments. to be published pursuant to para-

- --graph B.- above, together \'Tith a statement·· ...... 
-·-- - · -that• such apartments are available on· a 

first-served basis (provided 
.. , that the applicant meets the qualificat)-9JlS 

• I set forth in Part -_r. of this Order), and 
that similar lists may thereafter be viewed 
at Life Realty, Inc. offices at 1790 Flat-
bush Avenue, Br)oklyn, NeH York. · 

V. The,defendants \'Till: 

A. ·Post and maintain in the Life 
Realty, Inc. offices in Brooklyn, in a 
prominent place, \'there it is clearly vis-
ible to all applicants, a sign reading 
as follm·rs : ·, · . 

"UNDER THE FAIR HOUSING 
ACT OF 1968, ALL APARTMENTS RENT-
ED THROUGH THIS OFFICE SHALL BE 

1 · AVAILABLE HITHOUT REGARD TO RACE, 
COLOR, RELIGION OR NATIONAL ORI-
. GIN" . 

B." Through a joint press release \'lith 
·the plaintiff, or othenrise, communicate 
to the general public, including members of 
minority groups, their policy favoring 
integration in housing; 

C. Adopt and i;-apl.sment the follo-.'iing. 
standard procedure for approval of all 
applicants for apa.rtments: -

1. All applicants will 
indicat·e upon their applications: 

· (a) Home address, age,· 
sex, maritai status and name 
of spouse, rel.ative or other 
person who will live in the 
apartment; 

- 3 -
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. .. 

·. 

. 

.......... 

,. 

(b) address 
·of employer3 gross sala.ry, 
. net salary after thholding tax, 
. other income and obligations on 
installment contracts, condi-
tional sales, bank loans, fin-
ance company loans, mortgage 
loans, payrr1ents required to be 
made on judgments, garnishments, 
and all other information show-
ing, on a monthly basis the 
obligations (in of the 
applicant; and the same infor-
mation, together with the age 
for any working spouse or other 
person who will live in the 
apartment; 

' · . . · · · · ·. (c) The name of any bank 
_ ...... ;. · · · ·in which any or all adult appll-

I 

\I; ., . . ' '. 

.... _ ... .:.:;__·· ____ · __ :.-: -'-··::.. cants maintain either a check-
:;·-::·--::-:::lng account or savings account; 

-----------

·. 

• ·---- · · . . : · . (d) Former residence and 
-::-:;_·-:-;·-:-landlord of all prospective · -

. . . · · ..-:. . occupants; _., .:· .... 1":..:.: 
: 4 ________________________ :_ .... ----

. ---. . -- _ .. -- -· ··-- --- - -- - ---. -- .:.._-:'.:.- ·· : ···- · 2. The information· furnished pur-
. ·-' ·suant to paragraphs (a) through (d) 

.-:;..··_above, will re verified by · · 
·and' if it pruves accurate, an appro-
. priate indication will be made on the 
applicatl0n or on an accompanying 
:form as to '\'Thether verification has 

-,, been made; 
·! ,. 

' -;. 

·• 3. I:f the applicant is rejected, 
the reasons for the rejection shall 

:; 

• r: 

; .. ,. 
'· 

• be entered upon the application and 
; • · ·the applicant will be informed \•Ti thin 
.. :five days thereafter of the fact of 

his rejection; 

4. If the information furnished 
by the applicant has been verified 
by defendants, and if he has been a 
satisfactory tenant at his prior 
residence, and if his net income 
per week, after deduction of the 
obligations listed in V. C. 1. (b) 
of this Order on a weekly 
proves to be equal to at least 90% 
of the monthly rental of the apart-

. ment for l'lhich he has applied, no 
further investigation sha.ll be con-
ducted, and the applicant shall be 
cccepted or rejected on the basis 
of information already avaiJ.ablc. ....... No applicant shall be rejected for 
failure to have a checking or sa.vlngs 
account at a conunercial bank, if said 
:failure l'ras truthfully stated by the 
applicant in his applj_cation; 

-
\ 

5. If any item furnished by 
the applicant cannot be verified, 
or if he has proved to be an unsat-
isfactory tenant nt his prior n::si·· 
dence, or if his net 't'TCcl\:J.y :i n:-;o:;;c 

-. -
.. "!:. 
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------· -· --·----C---··-------·-·•·• 1 
"1. 

as defined above is less than 90% 
of the monthly such further 
and additional investigation may 

• be conducted as may be judged nec-
essary to determine the applicant's 
acceptability as a provided 
only that the extent of such addi-
tional investigation may not be 

' l __ . _ . (;}etermined or affected by the appli- i 

VI. 

. national origin. 
cant's color, religion or \ 

A. Within thirty (30) days of the entry of 
\ 
' 

Purdue, Syracuse, North;·Testern and Clarkson Terrace, a 

notice in the form attached hereto as Attaclunent "c", and 

--- ----•--the-defendan"ts -shall carry out the descrlbed 

• !'::. --.·· 

. ---·· .. ·- _.......... -· - . 
:fn said Attachment "c", which is .. made a part or this Order 

I -- -·-

·by reference;-·---------- . 
• " -- t" .- ... ----- . -- -·---· - -- . - ---· 

-l· ---------·--------·· -- - -
B. :Beginning no more than thirty (30) days 

• I __ 

from the entry of- this Order, Lif'e Realty, Inc. }t.i:J.--1 main-

tain in its Brooklyn office a \•Teekly "Special List" to be 

posted on Wednesday_ morning of each \'Teek, shm-ring all those 
. . . . 

apartm_nts to be available in any building on Attach-

ment "A'' (other than those named-in paragraph A. hereof), 

which wilf be available for occupancy no less than four 

lTeeks from the posting date. This special list \'Till spec-

ify the price, size, rental, and whether utilities are in-

cluded in the rent, and the date on \'Thich the apartment \'Til1 

be available ror 

c. The special list described in paragraph 
,. 

B. above shall be available by \'Tri tten application -.;'lith a 

$25.00 deposit untll 5:00 P.l-·I. of each Friday, exclusively 

to tenants of' the seven -ouildings named in paragraph A. 

whose_ occupancy, as determined by lease date, shall 

have conunenced January 1, 1969 and prior to Aue;ust 1_, 

1970. ·After 5:00 P.l-1. on each Friday the a.pa.rtments on·· the 

special list shall be incorporated into the general list 

in Part IV., paraerc:q.Jhs B. and C. of this OrdE.!r. 

- 5 -
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I ... . I , ... ) 

! ' 
.;r: • .... y · .. ·. D, Tenants in the aforementioned seven I 

buildings who apply for any apartment on either the spec.ta 

regular list least four weeks prior to projected 

·1 o_ccupancy, and who qualify for said apartment under· Part V . ... . . ' 
.. j .. c. of-·this Order, will be released from their lease obliga 

. I 
tion and permitted to take occupancy of the new apartment . I 
without any or sacrifice_of security deposit, 

. I 
cept in relation to liability for damage to the apartment 

vacated. 

E. The provisions of Part VI. hereof shall 
: 

after_one year from the first posting pursuant . --. ---·-- --

-
·shall have transferred to other buildings pursuant hereto,,· 

.• :.. .• _»':" ...... ..... . -whichever is, sooner .. -- ----- - - --. 

. .. VII. · A.· '·The "rill, beginning ten ( 10) 
. .,... 

days· after the entry of this Order, maintain the folloHing 
records: ·-

.• 

i 

l. The log of applica. tions 
uescribed in Part IV. above, such 
log to designate tenants trans-
ferring pursue.nt to Part VI. 
hereof; 

2. All applications,.whether 
aricepted or rejected, with accom-
panying credit checks and leases. 
Defendants \'rill keep these records 
available for periodic inspection 
by the plaintiff's representatives 
for t\'ro years from the entry of' 
this Order. 

·B. ·.No less than three months e.nd ten days 

from the entry of thj_s Order, and thereafter at three-

months intervals for tuo years, the defenda.nt.s will 

pare and send to counsel for plaintiff, reports including 

·t}1e follm·r.ing data: The total number of applice.tions re-

ceived, indicating the buJldings for Hhich appl:i.cr;.tJons 

made; the name, address and race of the applicant; 

whether or not the applicant was accepted or rejected and, 

if rejected, the reason for the rejection. Defendants 

ma.y fulfill their obligations 1.mdcr this by 

- 6 -
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forwarding to 

copies of the 

of this Order. 

the plaintiff at the prescribed interval:s 
: t 

log which they. have kept pursuant to Part IV. 

to the foregoing, the defehdant 

_mail_to counsel for part of each rpport, 
.... lz II 

a copy·of each special list as defined in Part VI. B. of . I 
this Order. All notices and reports shall be addressed' 

. " . I . . . . \ 
to Chief, Housing Section, Civil Rights Division, United 

I 
States Department of Justice, Washington, D. c. - 20530. 

VIII. IT IS· FURTHER ORDERED, that whenever any 

future complaint arises under the provisions of this Order, 

except \'There the Goverrunent detertlines that there exists a . ----·---·----- ___________ -._..::- ---- ----- --

1 
f) 

·:·,i .• • 

for emergency relief threatening the· effectiveness of 
- 4- - --· . •· -- -- - - . . . -- .. --- . . --

this decree, shall furnish the defendants 
-- ....... --· -··----· ----- ·-

the name of the person_ \•rho made::_such complaint, and a brief ... 
description of the nature and substance of the complaint, 

including the date of the and the build-.. 
ing l'Ii th respect to which the complaint \•ras made. There-

. . I 

after, the defendant shall have fifteen (15) days fro1n the l 
date notice is received of such complaint and the nature 

thereof, to investigate such complaint, and if the complainv 

is determined by defendants to be valid, to advise the 

Government "rhat steps, if any, have been taken to correct 

tbe conditions leading to the complaint; 'or, if the com-

plaint is determined by defendants to be invalid, ·to ad-. 

the Government of the basis for determining the com-

plaint,to be invalid, before the Government shall apply to 

this Court with any motion for an Order to S}1..0'\'l Cause or 

any other motion to compel compliance with this Order. If 

the G6ver1nnent determines that a situation has arisen 
··. 

threatening the effectiveness of this that 
1 there is a need ·for emergency relief, notice to the defend-

ants shall be by telephone 'i'Tl thou:t the filing of any pa-

pers; and the Court., after consulting oraJ.Jy \'Ilth both 

- 1 -



,.. . 
. : : j i . 

parties by telephone, decide whether an emergency 

exists. If the Court determines that an emergency in fact 

exists, plaintiff may proceed to move for immediate relief 

without necessity for the fifteen (15) days' notice prov.ided 
-rl 

. i I 
I I IX. Two years from the date this decree is ent-

• ... I 

. \I 
ered, or thereafter, the defendants may move to 

I I 
this Order. If the United States fails to interpose any 

objection \'tithin thirty (30) days of the Notice of !.fotion, 

the injunction shall be dissolved and the complaint dis-

missed without a hearing or further Order of the Court. 

::_ - .. No-costs incurre-d pric;>r_ to the date of this 

.. . 

shall be assessed against the defendants in light of 

their agreement to take- the afft-rmative steps d'escribed in 
. -

this Order and in the simultaneous extrinsic agreement 

between the parties to this Order •. 

XI. The Court shall retain jurisdiction of this 

cction a.ll purposes. 

Dated: Brooklyn, Ne\-r York, 
January , 1971. 

.. 
I 

UNrfED DIS'l'Rrcrr JUbG-h:-,-., -
EASTERN DISTRicrr OF NEH YORK 

. .. · 

Without any adjudication of the merits, arid with-

out any admj_ssion by a.ny party e.$ to the existence or ab-

- 8 .. 
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sence of liability, the under&igned apply for 

to the entry of the above Order. 

and conLt 

. . 
· · ·FOR THE PLAINTIFF 

...... 

ETivfARD-Ir.NEAHER 
United States Attorney 

• 

_ -Y---o-r--k----_-_--:... ___ . 
NORSE 

Chief s. Attorney 
··Eastern Distr.: of:.-Nc\'T· York - · .. ·- ·· - ··- -- · 

-+-··-· ·-·- -··,-1 £. &:_6"'ivtt-
'F,RANK E. --. ----
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 

MIRIAM R. EIS-E1{STE1N 
Attorney, Department of Justice . 
RfCHARD L. 
Attorney, Department of Justice 

FOR THE DEFENDANTS 
I 

/,) '1 ,--V df!l!.!)cZ(-?_'A_· _).,.:..:..!. ___ _ 

ANDERSON & ALLEGAERT 
Attorneys for Life Realty , Inc. 

..... .. . - . 

Cit·<-<.., iLo-.... 
A]tt"t>rneys for £lartment 'Leasing Corporation of America 

.t. 
LEc>i-rARn SCHOPFMAN 

Inc. 

' -
Dllii.N SCHOFF'iMN I 
President, Apartment Leasing Corporation of America 

_, 
·-

-,9 -

\ 
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ATTAC:t-:I·EN'r "A 11 

mvNER ADDRESSES IN BROO!ili YN, !IEH YORK 

Amherst Leasing Corp. 
Annapolis Leasing Corp. 
Arcadia Leasing Corp. 
Atlantis Leasing Corp. · 

.. ... r 
.. ·Bel Air Leasing Corp • 
Belt Parki'lay Cons tr. Corp. 
Buick Leasing Corp. 

_Citadel Leasing Gorp. 
Colgate Leasing Corp.· 
Cornell Leasing Corp. 

i 
845 - 43rd Street 
2815 Coyle Street 
3232 Shore Parkway 
3235.&runons Avenue 

2775 East 12th Street 
2625 East 15th Street 
2626 Homecrest Avenue 

1 Prospect Park Southvrest 
4411 Church Avenue 
665.New York Avenue 

Dakota Leasing Company 2425 Nostrand Avenue 
Danbury Leasing Company 388 Avenue X 
Dartmouth Leasing Corp. 4114 Ninth Avenue 
Dela1·rare Leasing Company 7705 Bay Park\·ray 
District Leasing Corp. _ 250 East 38th Street · 

. Dodge Leasing Corp. .. _ -· ____ 950. _ . 
-Dover Leasing -Corp. _ 2375 East 3rd Street 

.. --. ·--- - .. 
__ . _170 East 4.th Street 

------------------------------------------- ·------------------- ---\-

Hampton Leasing 
Harvard Leasi'ng Corp. ·· 
Hollyvrood Leasing Corp. 

Ioi'Ta Leasing Company 

3205 Emmons Avenue 
4190 Bedford Avenue 
2750 Homecrest Avenue 

2401 Nostrand Avenue 

Kings High'i·ray Property Corp. 3900 Kings Highvray 

Life r-1anagemen t Corp. 

Leasine Corp. 
Montauk Leasing orp. 

National Realty Co. 
National Realty Co. 
National Realty Co. 
Na.utilus Leasing Corp. 
Ne,·rport Leasing Company 
North Carolina Leasing Co. 
No;-thl·restern Leasing Corp. · 

Oxford.Leasing Corp. 

Plymouth LeasJng Corp. 
Pontiac Leasing Corp. 

Leasing Corp. 
Leasing Corp. 

Rakrel Realty Corp. 
Ra.kfel Realty Corp. 
Rakfel Realty Corp. 
Regent Leasing Co. 

Stanford Leasing Corp. 
Syracuse Leasing Corp. 

Tri Bulldings 
'l'ri Builcline;s 

Virginia Gardens, Inc. 

\·Tc:3t Point I.ear;inc; Corp. 
Wcctport Corp. 
He the Corp. 
WjGconsj.n Co. 

2021 East 41st Street 

1145 East 35th Street 
3191 Emmons Avenue 

1640 Ocean Park\·ray 
8301 Bay Parkt.·ray 
35 Pierrepont·street 
2790 Bragg Street 

Avenue X 
2501 Nostrand Avenue 
452 East 96th Street 

288 Bay 38th Street 

410 Avenue X 
2611 East 13th St:reet 
2411 East 3rd Street 
450 Rockaway Parkway 

2047 Nostrand Avenue 
2054 Nostrand Avenue 
2064 Nostrand Avenue 
1035 Clarkson Avenue 

1625 Hocktt".·w.y Park\·ucty 
1115 Willmohr Street 

7410 Ridge Boulevard 
7420 

3502 Kings Hit)l',•io.y 

":1?3 }"a..,t O"'=•tlCl J_, Jr'. .. :- -..) t., •• Lo 
co·rJ 1!'\ ._) t..J .J ............. .., 

295 Clinton Avenue 
1201 Ocr c.n _!Jc.r}:\;:;y I 

t, 
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! TTA CH1v1ENT "B" 

TO ALL APPLICANTS: 
I 

In order to promote nondiscrimination in 
, · lr · · 

accot>dance l'li th the Fair Housing Act of: 1968 please 1 
;; •.• . l II 
check o!le of follm'ling as to your race or national I 
originJ IF YOU CHOOSE 'I'O DO SO. • · . 

White -----
Black -----

-Other 
·------- ------------

'" .... 
_,. .. Failure to ans\-ier '\'TilT not· adversely aft:ect your 

of __ __ "'· ..... - -

; 

• (Please Print)--NAME 

. .... ,. 
; . 

• 

:".' 

' 

--
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· ATTAClll·lENT "C" 

TO TENANTS l·lliOSE OCCUPANCY Cm-1NENCED 
'JANUARY 1, 1969 AHD BEFORE_AUGUST 1, 1970: 

Dear Tenant: 
.. f·· l 

. i 

··--

· .. - 'We '\'rould like to offer you on a limited basis. the 
follm·ring opportunity. If you desire to move to other of 1 
our buildings in Brooklyn, we will allm-r you to move 'Hi thout 1 

any penalty except for property damage to your present ·. 
apartment. In addition, if you are accepted for another 
apartment, '\'Te will credit you to'\'Iards the first month 1 s 
rent of the new apartment to the extent of one month's rent I 
of your present apartment. In other \'lords, you \'-Till not 

1

1• 
have to pay the first month 1 s rent on the ne\'T apartment, 
except to the extent that the ne'\·T rent is higher than your 1 present rent. Ho,.mver, if the new apartment rental is less l 
than the rent- you are no·w paying, you '\'Till receive the 
difference between the old monthly rent and the new rent 
·ror -the first in cash, as· well as your first month 1 s 
rent free. . _ . ___ __. __ .. _. . ---- --------· 

_ This offer applies .only to those apartments ·· 
ing on lists Corp., 1790 Flatbush I· 
A venue Brooklyn, New York, for occupancy not less tha.n 
four '\·reeks from the date of application. Thif) __ o.i'fer 
\'Till expire '\·Then the first fifty (50) tenants have trans--
ferred under its terms, and in any event '\'iill expire OifC 
year from the date of this letter. 

' 
If you have any questions regarding thj_s special 

off'er, call Hr. Hc-Ha.rd Jacobs at IL. 9-9021, or Hrs. Rheba 1 

Gelme.n Life Realty Corp., 1790 Flatbush Avenue, Brooklyn, l 
Nevr York, celephone CL 8-9090. 

Very truly yours, 

APARTNENT LEASING CORPOHATION' OF 
Al·IERICA. . 

f 
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EXHIBIT A 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNI'l'ED OF AttiliRICA, 

Plaintiff, CIVIL ACTION NO. 70 C 

-against-

LIFE REALTY, INC., et al., 
AMENDMENT TO CONSENT 
ORDEH OF 1971 

Defendants. 

Upon the report of the parties dated December 6, 1971, 

a copy of which is annexed hereto, the Consent Decree, entered 

on January 28, 1911, in this case is hereby amended so that 

paragraph V, c, 4 shall be: 

....... , 
If the information furniched by 

the applicant has been verified by de-
.-

and if he has been a 

tenant at his prior residence, and. if his 
I o ..... 

.. 
- net income per week, ·after deduction 

the obligations listed in V, c, 1 (b) of 

this Order on a weekly basis, to·be 

equal to at least 90% of the monthly rental 

the apartment for which he has applied 

or his payment of shall be guaranteed 

by a legally enforceable contract by a duly 
. / 

authorized governmerit agency, no further in-

vestigation shall be' conducted, and the appli-

cant shall be accepted or rejected on the 

basis of information already available. 

. . , . .. 

' 1 l 
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.. .. 
J:...)__cont 

No applicant be rejected for failure 

to have a ch6cking or savings account at a 

commercial bank, if said failure truth-

fully stated by the applicant in his appli-

cation; 

Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
December 22, 1971. 

Jack Weinstein 
United States bistrict Judge 

The parties, by their attorl1eys, con:3cnt to the entry 

• of this amendment to the Com;;ent Order . 

For the Plaintiff: 

HODEP.'J.' A • l'·10RSE 

the Defendants: 

GOLDS1rEIN, SIIAr-ms & HYDE 
Attorneys for Defendants 

-··-United States Attorney 
. · 'Eastern District of Ncv1 York By: 

PHANK E. SCH\·/.t:;Lh ·· 
Cl1ief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of 

liENRY A. BHACll'l'L 
Assistant United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 

lUCHAHD L. t·IAS'l'EH 
Attorney, Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 

• 

'i 
'• 
.!. ·; 

'. .. 

• 

kDWARD BRODSKY 
A Member of.the Firm . -·-

/ 

. ./ 

·.· . ... . .. .. 

., 
( 
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EXHIBI'l' B 

Section 604-4.0 -- Code of Lnc City 

of New York provides: 

I I 

( 1) 'l'he Commissioner of Social Serv:Lces 
shall have the power to and may, within the a-

. mount appropriated therefore, enter into a con-
traqt to make to the owner, landlord, lessee, · 
managing agent of, or other person entitled to 
rent and receive rental payments for, housinG 
accommodations whenever (a) a recipient of pub-
lic assistance and care has or failed 
to make rental payment and payment has not other-
\'lise been made, or (b) a housing acco<.i!l1oC.atlon is 
vacant and the owner, landlord, lessee, 
agent or such other person agrees in such contract 

·to hold such housing accommodation vac2.nt and to 
accept as a new tenant a of public as-
sistance and care desit;nated by the commissioner, 
and until such housing acconunodation is occupied 
by and rental payments are 1t1acle by such neH 
tenant; provided, however, that no rental payment 
shall be made in accordance with this provision if 
such housing accommodation remains for 
more than 60 days. 

(2) The commissioner shall not be deemed 
to have assumed the duties of a tenant under lease 
because he has entered into a contract to muke 
rental payments. 

•, ...___ --·-
- ... -- .. 

I 

/ 

; ; 
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EXHIBIT C 

NOTICE TO RECIPI2rtiS 

Before you fill out an application for an apartment 

in a Lefrak building, please cons idcr the follo:·;ring: 

The Lefrak orgnnization treats all ap-
pl'lcants for apartments equally, rcgarc:le3s of 

·race, color, religion or national origin, and 
regardless of whether or not the applicant re-
ceives public assistance. 

The Lefrak organization -v;rill tnke an 
application from a welfare recipient, just as 
from anyone else. The rental st.:m.cia·ccL; \<?llich 
it uses apply to all 2pplications regardless of 
the source of an individual applicant's 
The rental standards include economic standards 
which are as follows: 

/ 

NO APPLICANT WILL BE 
AS A TENANT BY 
HIS NET WEEKLY r::cm,fE IS EQUAL 
TO OR GREATER THAN 90% OF THE 
MONTHLY RENTAL THE APARTNENT 
FOR WHICH HZ APPLIES, 

OR 

THE APPLICANT SECURES A PRIVATE 
GUAHA}."TOR ACCEPTAZLE TO LEFRAK 

OR 

THE APPLICAJ.\i'T 'S PATI-&:NT OF 
SHALL BE BY A LEGALLY 
ENFORCEABLE CmHl'\.CT BY i'>. DULY 
AUTHORIZED AGENCY. 

This means, for example, that if you 
apply for an apartment -;.:hich rents for $175 i)2r 
month, your application cannot be seriously 
sidered unless you receive at least $155 per week 
in benefits. If an apartment rents for $200 per 
month, you must receive at Ieast $180 pe·c \•Jeek ir. 
benefits in order be seriously considered. 
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 15, 1973 

EXHIBIT 3 

CR. 

The Department of Justice filed a civil suit today charging an 
. 

apartment n>anagement firm that cori'trols more than 14, 000 units in the 

New York City metropolitan area with discriminating against black persons 

in the operation of their buildings. 
' 

Attorney General Elliot L. Richardson said the housing discrimination 

suit was filed in U.S. District Court in Brooklyn, New York. 

Named as defendants were Trump Management, Inc., its principal 

stockholder and board chairn>an, Fred C. Trump, and its president, 

Donald Trump. 

The defendants own and manage son1e 39 apartment buildings, 

principally in Brooklyn and Queens. 

The suit said the defendant!? have violated the Fair Housing Act of 

1968 by refusing to rent and negotiate rentals with blacks, requiring different 

rental terms and conditions because of race, and misrepresenting that 

apartments are not available. 

The suit asked for a court order enjoining the defendants from 

practising racial discrimination in the operation of their apartment buildings 

and requiring them to correct the effects of their alleged discriminatory 

conduct. 

.(OVER) 
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Attorney General J. Stanley Pottinger, head of the Civil 

Rights Division, said the suit is the Justice Department's second major 

rental discrimination case in the New York metropolitan area. 

The first suit, involving about 10,000 rental units controlled by 

Life Realty Company, was resolved by a .consent decree ':lllder \\h ich black 

and Puerto Rican occupancy at previously all-white buildings rose substantially, 

Mr. Pottinger said. 

' He also said the Trump case was referred to the Justice 

by the New York City Conunission on Human Rights and was based in part on 

allegations made by Operation Open City, vbich is affiliated with the Urban 

League. 

/ 
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CERTIPICATE OF SERVICE 

F .. 
I, Elyse S. Goldweber, an attorney for the plaintiff, 

hereby certify that I have served a copy of the attached Notice 

of Motion of the United to dismiss defendants' counter-

claim, a copy of the attached Memorandum of the United States 

in Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, Motion for 

More Definite and in Support of Plaintiff's Hot ion 

to Dismiss the Counterclaim and a copy of the attached 

Memorandum of the United States in Response to the Affidavits 

of Donald Trump and Roy Cohn on the defendants by mailing a 

copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney at the following 

address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Nanley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

This, the 4th day of Janu.a:::r, "2.97..+. 

ELYSE: s. 
-' /; ;/ 4 ( , 1,,__(}.!'(_ l lj ;:)_ A:J..c2 -:._,--::__ _. . l _j.L )t.. 

GO 1.:;\;:r: .3ER 
Attorney, Reusing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Departm2ns Justice 
Washington, J. C. 20530 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

--------------------------------x 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP, 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

--------------------------------x 

1N ctm:cs Ofl 1C.'£ 
U. S. O:STRlCT COt.;RT f.'D. N.Y. 

* 1t 

TIME A.M ........................ . 
STIPULIAM.ION· 

Civil Action File 
No. 73 C 1529 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED, by and between 

-· 

the United States Attorney for the Eastern District of New York, 

attorney for the plaintiff, and Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley, 

attorneys for the defendants, that defendants' motion to dismiss 

the complaint and for a more definite statement and Government's 

motion to dismiss defendants' counterclaim is hereby adjourned 

to January 25, 1974. 

Dated: New York, New York 
January 9, 1974 

so 
Dated: New Yorlt 

---·--
S.D .. .t • . ...-

EDWARD JOHN BOYD V 

United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

By 

SAXE, BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY 
Attorneys for Defendants 

-· ... -:r /1 _/., 

By, __ ./. Vv v v t-/.J 
,.-/o 

C0 
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UNITED STA,TES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

------------------------------x 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC., 

Defendants. 

------------------------------x 

73 c 1529 

DEFENDANTS REPLY MEMORANDUM 
OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANTS 
MOTION TO DISMISS COUNTERCLAIM 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

The defendants have moved to dismiss the government's 

complaint for failure to state a cause of action or for a more 

definite statement, and have filed a compulsory counterclaim. 

All of these actions were taken in order to prevent a clear 

abuse of the Federal pleading rules and a trend by the govern-

ment to exert pressure on defendants to settle with them by 

unfair publicity. 

In the instant case, even before the defendants 

were served with the summons and complaint, the radio 

and T.V. newscasters reported the case and the newspapers 

were carrying banner headlines proclaiming that a "major 

landlord is accused of anti-black bias in the city"(N.Y. Times, 

October 16, 1973, p.l), and "U.S. suit against Trump charges 

bias in renting''(Daily News, October 16, 1973). 



The government's memorandum in response to 

affidavits submitted by defendant and his attorneys attempts 

to mask the true purpose of these news releases, claiming that 

their intent was to benefit the public. The practical benefit 

to the public is extremely doubtful since there are no 

facts whatever stated in the complaint. It's only real 

purpose is obviously to pressure the defendants into a 

premature settlement. 

The government's claim that defendants are guilty 

of some wrong by holding a news conference is utterly hypo-

critical. The defendants purpose was to alert the citizens 

of New York, as well as the tenants residing in Trump buildings, 

that the charges against them were unfounded and unproven 

and especially that the government had not won the case; but 

that they had merely filed a complaint. 

The complaint in this case contains not one factual 

allegation and there is no case which permits this. The 

government has attempted to put the burden on the defendants 

to supply all of the facts that they lack. The situation is 

analagous to an indictment in a criminal action which contains 

but one line charging a defendant with arson and then requiring 

that defendant to hire investigators to disprove the charge. 

The government throughout its memorandum of law 

cites to unreported cases. An analysis of each opinion shows 

that not one case supports their argument in opposition to 

defendants motions. The cases break down into two major groups. 
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The first are those in which the government supplied facts 

in their complaint which are totally absent from the complaint 

in the instant action. The second major group contains 

decisions in which there is no discussion by the court and 

so no conclusions may be reached as regards them. There 

are a few cases which do not fit into either of these groups 

and they are discussed separately. A case by case analysis 

as listed in the government's table of contents in the 

"unreported cases cited ..• "follows: 

CASES IN WHICH THE GOVERNMENT'S COMPLAINT CONTAINS 
FACTS TO SUBSTANTIATE ITS CHARGES 

United States v. Raymond, Civil Action No. 73-119 CIV-T-H 
(M.D. Fla. Sept. 5, 1973). 

United States v. Gilman, Civil Action No. 70-Civil 1967(S.D. 
N.Y., July 28,1970. 

United States v. Miller, Civil Action No.70-40(D.Md. April 27, 
1970). 

United States v. Chirico, Civil Action No. 70-1851 (E.D. Pa. 
August 12, 1970) 

United States v. Arco, Inc., Civil Action No. 70-29(W.D. Tenn., 
March 20, 1970). 

CASES IN WHICH THERE IS NO DISCUSSION IN THE DECISION 

United States v. Watson, Civil Action No. 73-97 (M.D. La., 
May 15 , 19 7 3) . 

United States v. Pelzer Realty Company, Inc., Civil Action 
No. 3284-N (M.D. Ala. July 16, 1971). 

United States v. Davis, Civil Action No. 6451-7l(S.D. Ala. 
May 18, 1971). 

United States v. Goldberg, Civil Action No.70-1223-CIV-CF 
(S.D. Fla. Oct. 19, 1970). 

United States v. PMC Development Co., Inc., Civil Action No. 
13578 (N.D. Ga., July 28, 1970. 
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United States v. Palm Beach Listing Bureau, Inc., Civil Action 
No. 70-379-CIV-C (S.D. Fla. May 5, 1970). 

United States v. H. G. Smithy, Civil Action No. 21470 (D. 
Md. April 17, 1970). 

United States v. Management Clearing, Inc., Civil Action No. 
70-23-PHX (CAM) (D. Ariz. April 8, 1970). 

United States v. Margurette Jones, Civil Action No. 71-H-279 
(S.D. Tex. April 30, 1971). 

United States v. Exclusive Mutual Exchange, Civil Action No. 
C-70-969 (N.D. Ohio Nov. 8, 1971). 

United States v. Mrs. Dean Miles, et al., Civil Action No. 
C.A.-3-7243-E (N.D. Tex. Sept., 1973). 

United States v. J.C. Long, Civil Action No. 71-1262 (D.S.C. 
April 3, 1972). 

MISCELLANEOUS CASES CITED BY THE GOVEIDJMENT 

United States v. City of Parma, Civil Action No. C-73-439 
(N.D. Ohio Sept. 5, 1973). 

The motions in this case were based on the defendant's 
argument that municipalities or political subdivisions are 
not persons against whom a suit may be brought and in addition, 
facts are apparently presented in the complaint. 

United States v. Robbins, Civil Action No. 73-848 CIV-JE 
{ S . D. F 1 a. , June 2 2 , 19 7 3) . 

A copy of the decision was not included in the Orders 
given to the defendants. 

United States v.A.B. Smythe, Inc., Civil Action No. C-69-885 
{N.D. Ohio Nov. 24, 1970). 

The motion to dismiss was based on exemptions and 
the unconstitutionality of the statute alleged to have been 
violated. 

United States v. Jim Tucker Co., Civil Action No.72-H-993 
(S.D. Tex. Sept. 27, 1972). 

This was a motion for summary judgment not for a motion 
to dismiss or for a more definite statement. 

IN SUMMARY 
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In the decisions in which there is some discussion, 

it is seen that the government supplied facts in the complaint 

in addition to a mere recitation of the statutes as they have 

done in the instant case. 

POINT I 

GOVERNMENT'S COMPLAINT 
SHOULD BE DISMISSED 

The government's complaint should be dismissed. 

In opposition to this, the government has cited Conly v. 

Gibson, 355 U.S.41(1957), the decision, especially that 

portion quoted in the government's memorandum, could well 

have been cited by defendants in support of their motions. 

In Conly, supra, the court said that they would not 

require a claimant to set out in detail the facts upon which 

he bases his claim, but that it would require "fair notice 

of what the plaintiff's claim is and the grounds upon which 

it rests," (47-48) [emphasis supplied]. 

The government has entirely failed to give 

defendants fair notice of the grounds although they attempt 

to get around the court's direction by claiming it is alright 

if what is lacking is "evidentiary details such as names, 

dates, places, etc." The government must conclude that 

every fact is evidentiary detail since they have totally 

failed to state any facts whatsoever. 

In a recent case, Coopersmith v. Supreme Court 

State of Colorado, (10 Cir. 1972) F.2d 993, the court 

said citing to Conly, 
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"alle ations of conclusions or of 
are not suffic1ent when no facts are a 
by way of the statement o'f the claim." 
supplied) . 

In Burak v. Sprague (E.D. Pa. 1971) 335 F. Supp. 347, 

the complaint was dismissed, the court stating: 

The complaint fails to state a claim on 
which relief can be granted; it fails to 
set forth facts; it sets forth only a series 
of conclusionary charges devoid of factual 
content lacking legal significance. The 
complaint is dismissed." 

A complaint in a case like this must set forth some facts, 

and to merely state vague and conclusionary allegations are 

not enough. Nishiyama v. North America Rockwell (C.D. Calif. 

1970), 49 FRD 288. Shemtob v. Shearson Hammill & Co. 

(C.A.2d, 1971) 448 F.2d 442, Israel v. City Rent & Rehabilitation 

Administration of City of New York (S.D.N.Y.l965) 28 F.Supp. 

908. 

Even in civil rights cases where a claim is nothing 

more than plaintiff's conclusions, unsupported by any factual 

statement, a motion to dismiss will be granted. Scott v. 

Larson, (E.D. Wis.l973) 58 FRD 131), Jones v. Bales(N.D.Ga. 

1972) 58 FRD 453, aff'd (C.A.5th,l973)480 F.2d 805. 

In Sisters of Providence of Saint Mary of the 

Woods v. City of Evanston, 335 F.Supp.396, the court noted 

that it is important to balance the infringed right against 

police power, the determination of which is based on facts 

presented. The government has not presented any facts to 

support these allegations and so the very real possibility 
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of abuse has become a reality. The complaint lacks facts 

to substantiate it, and as if in an attempt gave it 

substance, newspaper reports are released, this is the exact 

abuse the court in Sisters of Providence sought to provide 

protection against. 

POINT II 

DEFENDANTS' FOR A MORE 
DEFINITE STATEMENT SHOULD 
BE GRANTED 

The defendants are entitled to sufficient information 

around which they can frame a responsive pleading. The 

government has failed to supply this, and thus, if defendants' 

motion dismissing the complaint is not granted, then a more 

definite statement is required. Jenn Air Products Co., v. 

Penn Ventilator, Inc., E.D.Pa.l968, 283 F.Supp.591. 

The cases cited by the government in opposition 

to this motion all involve situations where the courts found 

sufficient facts not where they found no facts. 

POINT III 

DEFENDANTS'COUNTERCLAIM 
SHOULD NOT BE DISMISSED 

The government has severely damaged the defendant 

by releasing to the press statements which it knew to be 

untrue before they served the defendant. Rule 13(a) of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure requires a pleading to 

state as a counterclaim any claim. which the pleader has against 

the opposing party. Defendantscounterclaim. The government, 
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by the institution of this action, has subjected itself to 

defendants' compulsory counterclaims, as it admits on page 

18 of the government's memorandum. 

CONCLUSION 

The government complaint should be dismissed because 

of their failure to state any facts in their complaint and 

a more definite statement should be required. The unreported 

cases cited by the government completely fail to support 

their argument. It is mere evidentiary detail that the 

defendants are requesting. 

Respectfully submitted, 

SAXE, BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY 
Attorneys for Defendants 
39 East 68 Street 
New York, New York 10021 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORJ4/ · 
..,.> ..... \'-

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD 
TRUMP and TRUMP MANAGE-
MENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) ___________________ ) 

S I R S: 

D'rT.>"I'• L•.lv·'' u.s. t:J ' '-'' 

;./· . \fl.N 2 4 1914 , , 
CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

T.t.r:: !UL ............ . 
Plt ............. . 

NOTICE OF MOTION TO 
COMPEL DEFENDANTS TO 
ANSWER PLAINTIFF'S 
INTERROGATORIES 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that plaintiff, United States of 

America, will move this Court, before the Honorable Edward 

R. Neaher, District Judge at the United States Courthouse, 

225 Cadman Plaza East, Brooklyn, New York in Courtroom 9, 

on the 25th day of January 1974 at 10:00 o'clock in the 

forenoon of that day or as soon thereafter as counsel can 

be heard, for an Order compelling defendants to answer 
, _________ __....,._-----... --.. --.--...... •' 

plaintiff's inte;J;gga..t,aries propounded and served on or 
""" '"'"'""""'"'"N!"'''·''."..,d'' 

about November 7, 1973 and not yet answered. This motion 

is made pursuant to Rule 37 of the Fed.R. Civ .P. , and the 

grounds therefor are set forth with particularity in plaintiff's 

supporting memorandum. Plaintiff further prays for such 

other and further relief that this Court deems just and proper. 



Dated: January 21, 1974 
Brooklyn, New York 

To: Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan 

and Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Yours, etc. 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 ·a 

. BRACHTL 
United States 

Attorney 
Department of Justice 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

&.ft 
GOLDWEBER 

Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



... 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Elyse S. Goldweber, an attorney for the 

plaintiff, hereby certify that I have served a copy 

of the foregoing Notice of Motion to Compel Defendants 

to Answer Plaintiff's Interrogatories on the defendants 

by mailing a copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney 

at the following address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

This, the 21st day of January, 1974. 

M.LJ' iJ.&G 
GOLDWEBER 

Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF'S MOTION 
TO COMPEL DEFENDANTS TO ANSWER 

PLAINTIFF'S INTERROGATORIES 

CITY OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

Elyse S. Goldweber, being duly sworn, deposes and 

says: 

1. I am an attorney in the Housing Section, Civil 

Rights Division, United States Department of Justice, and 

one of the counsel for plaintiff in United States v. Fred 

C. Trump, et al., Civil Action No. 73 C 1529. 

2. On November 7, 1973, I caused to be mailed to 

counsel for defendants a set of interrogatories presently on 

file with the Court. Defendants have received copies of these 

interrogatories, as evidenced by the fact that they have 

attached copies thereof to their motions and counterclaim now 

pending. 

3. On December 21, 1973, having received no response, 

I telephoned Mr. Michael Rosen, an associate of Saxe, Bacon, 

Bolan and Manley concerning defendants' failure to respond 

to plaintiff's interrogatories. Mr. Rosen indicated to me 

that the attorneys from his firm, Roy Cohn, Esq. and Jeffrey 

Shulman, Esq., handling this lawsuit were out of town and 

would return on January 2, 1974. 

4. On January 4, 1974, Mr. Shulman returned the last 

of several telephone calls which I had placed to him in an 

effort to discuss the unanswered interrogatories pursuant to 

Local Rule 9(f). Mr. Shulman informed me that the defendants 

had no intention of filing any answers or objections 



to the interrogatories until their motions to dismiss, or 

in the alternative, for a more definite statement, were 

ruled on. 

Subscribed and sworn to 

d. 
ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

before me this 18th day of January, 1974. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Connnission Expires: /y; /:Y 7/. 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Elyse S. Goldweber, an attorney for the plaintiff, 

hereby certify that I have served a copy of the foregoing 

Affidavit in Support of Plaintiff's Motion To Compel Defen-

dants To Answer Plaintiff's Interrogatories on the defen-

dants by mailing a copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney 

at the following address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

This, the 21st day of January, 1974. 

xf 
ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
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Of Counsel: 
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Attorney, Housing Section 
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u. s. Department of Justice 
Washington, D. c. 20530 
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United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
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FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC., 

Defendants. 
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Assistant United States 

Attorney 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC. , 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO COMPEL 
DEFENDANTS TO ANSWER PLAINTIFF'S INTERROGATORIES 

INTRODUCTION 

On October 15, 1973, the United States instituted this action, 

pursuant to Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 

3601 et (Fair Housing Act) against the defendants, who operate 

apartment complexes in the New York City area. The Complaint alleges 

that the defendants have engaged in unlawful racially discriminatory 



housing practices and that such conduct constitutes a pattern or 

practice of resistance to the full enjoyment of the rights secured 

by the Fair Housing Act and a denial to a group of persons of rights 

secured by the Act, which denial raises an issue of general public 

importance. See 42 U.S.C. 3613. 

On December 12, 1973, defendants filed Motions to dismiss 

or, in the alternative, for a more definite statement, alleging that 

the Complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted 

and is too vague to enable them to respond. Defendants have also 

filed what purports to be a counterclaim against the United States 

seeking damages in the amount of 100 million dollars. On January 7, 

1974, plaintiff filed a memorandum in opposition to defendants' motions 

and moved to dismiss the purported counterclaim. These motions are 

presently before the court. 

On November 7, 1973, plaintiff served on defendants, by mail, 

a set of interrogatories. On January 4, 1974, no answers or objections 

having been received in the interim, Elyse Goldweber, an attorney for 

the United States, telephoned Jeffrey Shulman, an attorney for the 

defendants pursuant to Local Rule 9(f}, to discuss defendants' failure 

to respond to plaintiff's interrogatories. Mr. Shulman informed 

Ms. Goldweber that the defendants had no intention of filing any 

- 2 -



answers or objections to the interrogatories until a ruling on 

their pending motions. As of January 21, 1974, plaintiff has not 

received any response to its interrogatories, and no motion for a 

protective order has been filed. Accordingly, plaintiff has moved 

this Court for an order compelling defendants to answer the interro-

gatories promptly. 

DISCUSSION 

Plaintiff's 16 interrogatories are designed to determine 

the breadth and scope of defendants' allegedly unlawful discrimina-

tory practices, to ascertain the identity and location of persons 

having knowledge of pertinent facts and to assist plaintiff in 

determining the scope and specifics of any injunctive and affirmative 

relief which may ultimately be awarded. The interrogatories also 

seek to elicit any information on which defendants may rely in 

their defense of the action. Since the defendants have not filed 

objections to these interrogatories, we do not here defend each 

interrogatory against an attack which the defendants have not made. 

However, if defendants' response to these interrogatories includes 

objections as well as answers, and if the Court finds such objections 

timely, plaintiff is prepared to defend each interrogatory which it 

has propounded. 

We observe that defendants have not moved this court for a 
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protective order, under Rule 26(c) of the Fed.R.Civ.P., to excuse 

them from responding to plaintiff's interrogatories within the 

time prescribed by Rule 33(a) F.R.Civ.P. In this connection, Rule 37(c) 

provides that failure to respond 

. . • may not be excused on the ground 
that the discovery sought is objection-
able unless the party failing to act 
has applied for a protective order as 
provided by Rule 26(c). 

Defendants have identified no provision of the Federal Rules, nor 

can they, which would automatically stay the filing of a response 

to interrogatories, until the disposition of pending motions. 

Instead, they have blithely disregarded the Rules. 

Rule 37(d) authorizes the Court to impose sanctions when 

no protective order has been sought. The Rule was amended in 

1970 to remove the requirement that the moving party prove "willful-

ness" in order to obtain sanctions. While plaintiff does not 

presently seek sanctions but only a response to its interrogatories, 

we believe that the availability under the Rules of a sterner remedy 

suggesmthat further unilateral disregard of the Rules by defendants 

should be remedied promptly and defendants should be required to 

address themselves to the factual issues in this case. As stated 

in prior memoranda, we are prepared to 
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disclose all discoverable evidence in response to an appropriate 

interrogatory, and we ask that defendants be required to do the 

same. 

For the foregoing reasons, plaintiff requests that the 

Court grant plaintiff's motion to compel answers to plaintiff's 

interrogatories. 

NRY A., 
t United States 
ey 

Department of Justice 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Respectfully submitted, 

-f 
FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Elyse S. Goldweber, an attorney for the plaintiff, 

hereby certify that I have served a copy of the foregoing 

Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff's Motion on the defendants 

by mailing a copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney at 

the following address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

This, the 21st day of January, 1974. 

J 
ELY S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

. !F 
,, 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

FRED C • , DONALD TRU!1P 
AND TRUMP r-iANAGEMENT INC • , 

Defendants. 
-----------------------------------x 

I l /\. 

0 R D E R 

Civil Action 

No. 73 c 1529 

This cause came on to be heard on January 25, 

1974 on (1) the motion of defendants to dismiss the com-

plaint for failure to state a claim or for a more definite 

statement, (2) plaintiff's motion to dismiss defendants' 

counterclaim for want of jurisdiction and (3) plaintiff's 

motion to compel answers to interrogatories, and it appear-

ing (1) that the complaint states a claim upon which relief 

can be granted and is not so vague or ambiguous that defen-

dants cannot reasonably be required to frame a responsive 

pleading, {2) that this Court lacks jurisdiction of the 

subject matter of defendants' alleged counterclaim and 

(3) that justice \>Jill be served by requiring defendants' 

answers to interrogatories on the terms and conditions set 

forth below, it is 

ORDERED, that defendants' motion for an order 

dismissing the complaint or for a more definite statement 

is denied; and it is further 

ORDERED, that defendants' counterclaim is dis-

missed; and it is further 

ORDERED, that defendants answer the complaint 

on or before February 8, 1974; and it is further 

ORDERED, that should interrogatories be served by 

defendants upon plaintiff on or before February 8, 1974, 

plaintiff answer such interrogatories on or before Feb-

ruary 28, 1974; and it is further 
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ORDERED, that defendants answer plaintiff's 

interrogatories of November 7, 1973 on or before April 1, 

1974. 

Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
, 1974 

DJ.strJ.ct Ju ge 



0; v 
AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 

STATE OF NEW YORK 
COUNTY OF KINGS 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK, ss: 

_____________ , being duly sworn, says that on the _________ _ 

day of_ ________________________ , I deposited in Mail Chute Drop for mailing in the 

U.S. Courthouse, Cadman Plaza East, Borough of Brooklyn, County of Kings, City and 

State of New York, a __________________________________________________________ _ 

of which the annexed is a true copy, contained in a securely enclosed postpaid wrapper 

directed to the person hereinafter named, at the place and address stated below: 

Sworn to before me this 
day of 

AFFIDAVIT OF PERSONAL SERVICES 
STATE OF NEW YORK 
COUNTY OF KINGS 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK, ss: 

___________ ,!Qlf_'rf_!IJI.tl'l'EJL __________ , being duly sworn, says that he is employed in 

the office of the United States Attorney for the Eastern District of New York. That on 

the ___ J_Q_th__ day of _ ______ , he served a true copy of the annexed 
of Settlement and signature 

nrde.r.._wi_th__N_o'tice.im the office of __ _Bac_on_, _ 

attorney _de.f_enQ..a_nt_s _____ herein, located at 39 _ _Ea_s_t __ 6 8_th__st_r_ee_t__,_ _____ _ 

_____________________________ , Borough of _}1anha:t:.t._an_ ____ , City of New York, by 

leaving a ttue copy of same Mth his clerk 7:/;on_•ua•d-offi:. ____ -

Sworn to before me this 
31st day of January 

STELLA B. MAGI'ER 
Notary Public, State of New York 

No. 24-4501884 
Qualified in Kings County 

Commission Expires March 30, l'lrs--
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, "' '" },3 Civ. 1529 

(....... ' .•..•.. •1' 

Plaintiff, ......... , . , . , , 
ANSWER 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants . 

- X 

Defendants, for and as their answer to the complaint 

for an injunction, state: 

1. Deny any knowledge or information sufficient to form 

a belief as to the allegations contained in paragraphs "1", "2" an 

11 4n 

2. Deny each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 

"5" and "6" of the plaintiff's complaint. 

WHEREFORE, defendants demand that plaintiff's complaint 

be dismissed, together with costs and disbursements, and such 

other and further relief as this Court may deem just. 

I 

By \_ -- vI " ><Y i l ¥ I 

By {'·-\_ 

\_ 
Attorneys for Defendants 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

X 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 
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U.S. DlSLfC! C.;·;·., .. 

FEB 8 1974 
73 Civ. 1529 

.. n ......... . 
Plt ............. . 

DEFENDANTS' FIRST DEMAND FOR INTERROGATORIES 
TO PLAINTIFF 

TO THE PLAINTIFF, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA: 

Defendants request that plaintiff answer each inter-

rogatory separately and fully in writing and under oath, in 

accordance with Rule 33 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

If the information requested by any interrogatory is contained 

in documents, papers or records in the custody of the plaintiffs, 

you may so indicate and answer that interrogatory by attaching 

copies of such documents or papers to your answers and by indi-

eating the interrogatory to which those documents or papers are 

deemed responsive. In the alternative, you may answer that 

interrogatory by identifying those or records 

in which the answer is contained and specifying the location of 

the documents, papers or records and making the same available to 

defendant to inspect, copy or photograph. 

These interrogatories call for all information avail-

able to the plaintiff, its employees or agents, with respect to 

the subject matter into which they inquire. If some of the 



information is known or available to a particular employee or 

agent and other information is available to another employee or 

agent, please include in your answers all the information known 

to each employee or agent and please specify which employee or 

agent provided information with respect to each answer: 

1. Please provide all information which supports your 

allegations stated in paragraph "FIFTH" in your complaint for an 

injunction. 

(a) Include in your answer to this interrogatory dates 

and locations of alleged violations and those allegedly responsib 

for the violation and in what manner you learned of the violation 

giving particularly the name of the complainant or informant and 

the date of the complaint to you, what action or investigation 

was taken to verify the complaint, and the results of said action 

or investigation, and in what way it is alleged that each of the 

defendants had knowledge of and/or was involved in such alleged 

violation. 

2. Please give all information in your possession 

which supports your allegations contained in paragraph "SIXTH" 

of the complaint for an injunction. 

(a) Include in your answer to this interrogatory 

dates and locations of alleged violations and those allegedly 

responsible for the violation, and in what manner you learned of 

the violation, giving particularly the name of the complainant or 

informant and the date of the complaint to you, what action or 

investigation was taken to verify the complaint, and the results 

of said action or investigation, and in what way it is alleged 

that each of the defendants had knowledge of and/or was involved 

in such alleged violation. 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a copy of such answer must be 

served upon the undersigned within thirty days after service 

2 



of the foregoing interrogatories. 

Respectfully submitted, 

SAXE,rfACON, .·· 

J / 1 BOLAN & MANLEY 
0 /, , 

, I " f II •1 

By . ' "''>('+--''/\ l { CiJ---- ----
... ' 4 -- .. ,__ ... 

BY ·. Fr-l \<'"v:.:, 1 , "'--14 ' 4 '.Cl""·W '·-l- -At 

i 
Attorneys £or Defendants 
Office and P. 0. Address 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 
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THE CLERK: united States against F.c. Trump, 

D. Trump and Management, Inc. 

MR. BRACHTL: Your Honor, the first matter of 

several to which we'll be addressed this morning will 

be Mr. Cohen's motion, but before we get to that 

I would like to first introduce to the Court Frank E. 

Schweld, who is the Chief of the Housing Section of 

the Civil Rights Division of the Department of Justice,
1 

and Attorney Elyse Goldweber, also of the Housing 

Section of the Civil Rights Division. 

With respect to the matters which are on the 

calendar this morning, there are three concerning this 

case: first, there is the defendant's motion to dismis 

the complaint, or in the alternative, for a more 

definite statement. 

There is, secondly, the plaintiff's motion to 

compel an answer to interrogatories' and, thirdly, 

there is the plaintiff's motion to dismiss the defend-

ant·ts counterclaim. 

With respect to counsel for the government on· 

those several matters, Ms. Goldweber will address the 

arguments with respect to the motion to dismiss, or 

in the alternative for a more definite statement, and 

as we think a necessary corollary to that argument, 
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our argument in support of our motion to compel 

answers to interrogatories. 

At the conclusion of that argument I will have 

a few remarks to make in support of our application 

for the dismissal of the defendant's counterclaim. 

MR. Your Honor, I am afraid that I will 

have to be affirmative and negative with respect to 

this distinguished legal talent from the 

government all by myself on all motions, but I will do 

my very best. 

'l'HE COURT: Well, Mr. I recognize you as 

a big gun, too. 

MR. You are very kind, your Honor. I wis 

it was so. 

Judge Neaher, I guess the best thing to do here 

is start at the beginning. Back in the fall one day 

the Trumps and the Trump organization -- I ought 

to start by telling you the Trump ¥anagement Company, 

which is a defendant, and Frederick Trump and his son, 

Donald Trump, who are associated with Trump Manage-

ment, is one of the largest management and most succesa-

ful and most respected management companies in this 

area, and I suppose in the country. 

One fine day back in the late fall, without 

having been served with any legal papers or any such 
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formality, all of a sudden the Trumps turn on the 

radio and heard themselves being blasted all over, 

pursuant to a press release issued out of the Depart-

ment of Justice in Washington -- not up here -- as 

people who are discriminating, adopting discriminatory 

policies. 

The next day, the bulldog editions of the Daily 

News and the front page of the New York Times emblazone 

the facts for all to see and all to read, and I guess 

some time thereafter the court papers finally turned up 

someplace and we found out what this was all about. 

I noticed in some papers submitted to your Hono 

it is said that somebody made or was supposed to make 

a phone call to somebody in the Trump organization 

simultaneously with the release of this press release. 

But what I am saying now, really, is not actionable by 

us at the moment, except with reference to our counter 

claim which I will come to in a few minutes. I tell it 

to your Honor as the background as to how this whole 

thing started. 

I know that the Eastern District and the 

Southern District and the Second Circuit have had 

things to say about this idea of these press releases 

being handed out in the first instance, but the fact 

is, and the government concedes that they did hand out 
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one and they have been candid enough to attach that 

press release to the papers which are submitted to yo 

Honor. 

The damage done to the Trumps and the defendants 

here was, I suppose, something that is never going to, 

no matter what the outcome of this case, I suppose the 

damage is never going to be completely undone because 

you are never going to catch up with these initial 

headlines. 

When these motions were filed, we had a somewhat 

reserved press conference in which we tried to contact 

the same people, the same representatives of the media 

to whom the government had distributed its press 

release originally, and we acquainted them with the 

papers we were filing in Court and Mr. Trump acquainted 

them with hie position, which is a denial which he felt 

he wanted to have before the thousands of people who 

do business with him commercially and his tenants and 

banks and everybody else, have before them his position 

which is that the charges made and emblazoned over the 

front pages were without foundation. In any event, 

here we are where we should be, in court. 

Now, Judge Neaher, the complaint in this case 

is one of the most unusual things I have ever seen. I 

must admit that in recent years I suppose my practice 
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hal gone from between office matters and trial of crim-

inal cases, and I frankly have not been in a civil 

rights case before and I must say I am amazed and con-

founded by some of the principles of law which the 

government urges apply to this type of case. 

First of all as to the complaint. You have befo 

you a motion to dismiss this complaint on the grounds 

it totally fails to set forth facts sufficient to con-

stitute a cause of action. It is a bare bonea 

And we ask in the alternative, if your Honor disagrees, 

we of course ask you to dismiss the complaint. If you 

Honor should disagree, we ask that your Honor, in the 

alternative, dismiss it with leave to the government t, 

file a complaint with some factual allegations in it 

so that the defendants are on notice with some reason-

able detail as to exactly what proscribed conduct they 

are specifically charged with having committed. 

This complaint which gave rise to all these 

front pages is a very short document. The only facts 

stated in the complaint are the names of the defendant 

Trump Management and Fred and DOnald Trump, and from 

therein, there is a verbdim recitation of the statuto 

language of Title 42, 3602(b) and 3601, which says 

that it is a violation of the Fair Housing Act, and 

enjoinable violation to discriminate because of race, 
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color or creed, and that if discriminatory policies 

are pursued by a landlord, this is proscribed by the 

Fair Housing Act and the government may apply for 

injunctive relief of the Court. 

There is not one specific allegation in this 

very short complaint. They don't even give a year. 

They don't even say between 1968 and 1972 at such-and- ! 

such projects operated by the Trump Organization, 

blacks have been denied such-and-such, or on January 171, 

1973, John Jones, being otherwise fully qualified and 

able to pay the rent, applied and was denied an 

apartment because of his race,whereas the same apartment 

was given to a subsequent applicant, or something like 

that; not one line in this whole complaint. 

When Mr. Trump brought it in to me and I read 

it, I said, •I don't know what to tell you. It has yo 

name and it sets forth verbatim statutory language 

saying you should not discriminate. And there isn't 

one specific act.• I said, •It's akin to a defendant 

being indicted with the statutory section being charge 

and not one specific in the indictment." 

Now, I realize a defendant in a criminal case 

could then come forward and ask the government for a 

bill of particulars, which is a relief the Court would 

grant if a situation existed as I described. In this 

case, something crazy happened, Judge Neaher. After thts 
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complaint was filed and we made the motion to dismiss-

and I don't remember whether it was before we made the 

motion or after we made the motion, and it really 

isn't too material -- but, in any event, after this 

complaint is filed and we set up a rumpus about it 

and said, •we don't know what this is all about. We 

didn't discriminate and we don't know how to tell you 

we didn't because you haven't given us one thing we 

can sink our teeth intoJ you haven't given us one 

location, one name, one fact which we can answer here. 

They said, •oon't worry1 that's going to be 

taken care of.• And then I find out how it will be 

taken care of, they serve us with 16 pages of interrog 

atories and tell us to 90 out and make an investigation 

to find out whether or not we discriminated, to furnis 

them with the answers and when we furnish them with 

the answers, then they will be in a position to , · 

amplify the complaint and tell us whether or not in 

fact the charge which they made on every froftt page 

in this area might have some substance to it or not. 

Now, the third motion before your Honor this 

morning is to compel us to answer these interrogatoriep. 

I'm going to say just a word about them because it 

would seem to me, and I don't think there will be much 

disagreement on that, that the first thing we do is 
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impose upon your Honor for a ruling, after your Honor 

has had a chance to go into this mess we are throwing 

at you, on the sufficiency of the complaint, and if 

your Honor rules it sufficient and does not dismiss it, 

or rules that they should furnish some facts and then 

give them time to furnish facts, once that is cleared 

up; then we get down, I suppose, to the stage of inter 

rogatories and further particulars and all of that. 

Now, this 16 pages of interrogatories they 

served on us to find out whether there is any basis 

for their action has to be the wildest thing I ever 

read in my life. Maybe it is my ignorance of this type 

of proceeding. On page 15, they say, •Please state 

the name, address, race and occupation of each person 

interviewed by you or on your behalf in relation to 

this case. Please state separately the name, address, 

race and occupation of any person not interviewed by 

you or on your behalf, but whom you intend to intervie 

in the future about this case.• 

Well, I have been around a little while and I 

can just picture myself callin9 up some witness and 

sayiing, • I • d like to talk to you about this •. , By the 

way, are you black or white or Catholic, Protestant 

or Jew?• And then making a note of it and then turning 

that over to the government or something like that. 
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That's what this whole darn thing reads like. 

They say, for example, "Please state the name 

and address of each black and Puerto Rican individual 

who has applied for a position of any kind with Trump 

Management in the past three years.• Well, this doesn't 

charge employment discrimination on the part of Trump 

in hiring its management personnel -- it is a fair 

housing proceeding. When I called Mr. '!'rump and read· it. 

to him, he said, •How can I do that? I couldn • t. tell yol 

if the court ordered me to answer it, because I would I 

have thought it highly improper when we employ some-

body to say, 'what is your race1•• 

He said, •I don't know what their race or 

religion is. All I know is, if they have good refer-

ences and they meet the qualifications, they get the 

job, and whoever our personnel people are, do that. We 

dadt ask race.• He said, •And I haven't even seen most 

of these people and I wouldn't know if they are black 

or Puerto Rican or white or Catholic, Protestant or 

Jew,• and he said, •1 would think the most'hproper 

in the world for me to do would be to have questions 

concerning a person's race or religion or something 

like that on employment applications when we give out 

jobs in ar organization.• 

Now, when it comes to the units, oh, they want 
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to know things like, decreases and increases in rental 

2 rates and since January 1, 1968. You are talking about 

3 14,000 units here. When you get down to the question 

4 of the actual 14,000 units, they ask us to tell them 

5 the number of persons per month by race making inquiry 

6 concerning the availability of an apartment between 

7 January 1, 1969 and present. We deny any discriminate 

8 practices, and obviously the Trumps have never permitt-

9 ed, would never dream of permitting an application 

10 which is given out for a broker renting an apartment 

11 to say to a person, •What's your race or religion?• We 

12 would have no way in the world of knowing. 

13 The next thing they ask us to do is to canvass 

14 our 14,000 units and findout -- there are definitely 

15 a number of blacks who live in there, that we know 

16 visibly. I have taken a ride and looked at some of 

17 them and blacks walk in and out and I assume they are 

18 not there for any improper purpose and they live in 

19 the place. But they want us to go, apparently, and 

20 canvass all 14,000 of these units and find out how 

21 many blacks live there and how many non-blacks live 

22 there, and I suppose how many Puerto Ricans live there 

23 or non-Puerto Ricans. 

24 The whole tenor of the thing seems to be 

25 offensive. If they have some proof that the Trumps 

have been discriminating and have applied discriminate 
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pol:Cies and I know there are a considerable number of 

blacks, we represent that to the Court, who live in 

these units -- but if they have some specific proof 

to support a complaint that discriminatory practices 

have been followed, all we ask them to do is not to 

tell us to go out and make an investigation and in so 

doing, note the race of every witness we interview, or 

every person I talk to about it, but ask them to put 

in a proper complaint, which advises us at least of 

the minimum facts, not statutory language, which they 

claim shows some discriminatory action by us so that 

we can meet that charge and say'in tnat building in 

those units or on this application or in this situa-

tion it is not a fact we discriminated, and here's 

what happened. That's all we ask. 

I would respectfully submit to your Honor the 

concept that a barebones complaint, without one fact 

in it, followed on its heels by 16 pages of interroga-

tories telling us to go out and find and conduct our 

own investigation, which would be long, expensive and, 

in many instances, impossible, is not the way in this 

country you do something like this. 

So we therefore askpur Honor to hold the inter 

rogatories in abeyance, and if we ever get to this 

point, we are going to ask leave to make a motion to 
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strike some of these, and ask your Honor to dismiss 

this complaint -- and if your Honor feels that total 

dismissal is not warranted, at least ask them to re-

plead and give us some facts. 

The government cites some cases which they say 

could actually justify a complaint like this. I don't 

think one of them that they cite is of significance 

insofar as this complaint is concerned, a reported 

They have been kind enough to supply us with a pile, 

knowing, I'm sure, the expertise of their Civil Rights 

Division, they have them at their fingertips and they 

were nice enough to mimeograph off for us a list with 

table of contents of the unreported cases. I have 

gone through these and I don't think -- don't find 

one of them that supports a complaint like this. I 

am not going to cite the general lack. 

There are, of course, somethings which say in 

a complaint you don't have to set forth every eviden-

tiary detail. Your Honor has heard to the point of 

boredom that argument every time there is a motion for 

a bill of particulars before you in a criminal case. 

The defendant says, "I don't know anything.• The 

government says, "They want all our evidence.• And 

your Honor strikes a happy balance and says, •well, 

tell them enough so they know of the specifics here 
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they are supposed to meet. But you don't have to tell 

them all your evidence and all of that." Okay. They 

cite this Connelly case with which I have some famil-

iarity, which cuts both ways, of course. It says you 

don't have to tell everything but you have to tell 

something; you have to tell them what they are charged 

with and what they feel someone is supposed to have 

done, and I think that case cuts most heavily in our 

favor. 

Then they go to these unreported cases. Just to 

talk about a few of them and not to be discriminatory 

myself here, I will just take them in the order in 

which they set them forth in their memorandum. They 

start with a case called the Raymond case. It is 

obvious from that case, your Honor, there was a wealth 

of detail.They don't set forth the actual complaint 

so I just have to piece together what the complaint 

might have been and the preliminary pleadings from the 

papers they have here. 

In the Raymond case, your Honor, first of all, 

this was a small situation. They would say, I think, 

less than 40 apartments involved, not 14,000, such as 

we have in this case. What they say there is the land-

lord publicly announced and admitted, "I will never 

rent a place to a black. Forget about it." And, 
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furthermore, when a wHte family entertained some black 

2 friends of theirs, they promptly told the white family 

3 their lease was terminated and to get out of the 

4 place. I can understand a charge like that in its 

5 impropriety and fact that that should have been met. 

6 They go then to this Palmer case, which was 

7 against the City or Township of Palmer, I think, in 

8 Ohio, and there there was a specific charge that the 

9 Township refused to go forward with a housing project, 

10 a specifically enumerated housing poject to be done 

11 with Federal funds, on the grounds that this might 

12 bring about an influx of blacks into a community or 

13 area. The issue there was whether this housing project 

14 should be blocked or not then and the defendant town-

15 ship was specifically so charged and had the 

16 ity to meet the charge. 

17 In the Smythe case, the issue was whether a 

18 single family exemption to this law applied or didn't 

19 apply. 

20 In the Goldberg case, your Honor, they did just -

21 the government did just what it had not done in this 

22 case: they set forth a schedule, a list of properties 

in which claimed have been 
otlil,ltli 'i;,,;;:;;, 

followed and lots. The jssue there was 

23 

24 

25 whether lots were being denied to people because of 
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race, and they set forth a list of lots which were so 

involved. 

As you go through this whole thing, I don't fin 

any case or anything which says that the only facts 

that have to be in a complaint are the names of the 

defendants, and beyond that you just photostat the 

statute and then file a list of interrogatories and 

put the defendant to its proof and shift the burden--

really, your Honor, what this is, is a shifting of the 

burden on the defendant to establish in preliminary 

proceedings, its innocence of a charge which has never 

been made specifically against it. 

(Continued on next page). 
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I don't see what reason, in the name of 

fairness, candor and type of fair play, the Government 

should stand for, that can occasion the Government 

not to be willing in this case to give us some factual 

specifics as to when, where and how they claim there 

has been discriminatory practice in this case. 

Having failed to do so, at this point, we ask 

your Honor most respectfully to dismiss this complaint 

or make them replead in conformity with the practice 

in this District, and, as far as I know, in every 

Court and District in the United States. 

The only other motion -- I have covered the 

interrogatories, your Honor, and I would say we 

certainly do want to be heard on that, as your Honor 

might gather, but I would think we would allaqree 

that is probably appropriately dealt with after we all 

get your Honor's disposition about how this complaint 

should be handled. 

I had a little conversation with the very nice 

representative of the Government, and I don't think 

we will have any problem on that. They have made a 

lllOtioni·to .dismiss our oounter-claim. We have sued for 

a hundred million dollars, which is a possibly --

THE COURT: A tidy sum. 

MR. COHEN: A tidy sum, your Honor, right. 

They say it is 90 percentlogic, or something, than 
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anything that's been sued for in previous cases like 

this, and I am not prepared to dispute them factually 

on that. 

The basis of the suit is that the action in 

bringing the action was unauthori&ed; that it is 

samethiag that goes beyond an abusive process. 

The Qovernment contends that what we are really 

saying is -- here's what they say, they say three 

things, your Bonor -- they say four things, they say, 

first of all, that our pleading is defective in that 

an attorney of record did not personally sign it. 

And they might have me on that. 

If they do, I would be willing to sign a pleadiny, 

and they miqht be riqht about that, and I would be 

willing to siqn it. 

The second objection them make, is that it is 

not timely, that the time to file something like this 

after an answer has been -- after the motion before 

your Honor on the complaint is disposed of, and after 

an answer, if that·becomes necessary, is filed by us. 

But it seems to me they then go on to say we 

have something here which is a compulsory counter-claim 

meaning that it must be asserted at an early stage of 

the proceedings, and I don't know how point two fits 

in with point three. If the fact is there should be 
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made at a later time, we would be agreeable to a 

severance without prejudice on their part to -- when 

we renew it, to raise whatever objections they want. 

Now, they come to number four, which is a basic 

objection, and they say that the Government without 

its consent, which it bas not as yet given, -- I am 

hopeful, of course, in the interest of fair play, they 

probably are going to advise your Honor this morning 

tha·t' they intend, as a matter of fairness, to give it, 

because they have nothing to fear insofar as any damage 

verdict from roar Honor or a jury in this case, because 

their actions have been entirely proper. So I know in 

the spirit of fairness that now prevails, I am looking 

forward hopefully for such a 9esture from the 

Absent that, they say that we would be entitled 

to come in here under the Federal Tort Claims Act, if 

there was an action by the Government officials even 

within the scope of their duties, which results in 

injury and damage to the defendants. 

But they say that there are exclusions from the 

Federal Tort Claim Act, namely, libel, slander and 

abusive process, and they construe our counter-claim 

in this case, to amount to a contention of libel, 

slander and abusive process and therefore, not proscrib 

but not within the permissive features of the Federal 
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Tort Claims Act without first consent by the Government. 

We don't view it that way. We say in a pleading 

stage, what is sauce for the goose is sauce for the 

gander, and in a pleading stage, where we are now, 

that our counter-claim is sufficient under the lack of 

the Federal Tort Claims Act to spell out damage and 

injury, and it cannot be determined that the only damag 

and injury, would be libel, slander or abusive process. 

It might be damage to property and damage to 

reputation, other than by libel and alander, and things 

which are not proscribed by the Act, and which do not 

require the consent of the Government in order to be 

sued. 

However, if they are right on the lack of timeli 

ness in the raising of this issue, we are perfectly 

agreeable to a severance as to that, and as to a renewa 

when, as and if an answer haa to be filed in this case, 

with the reservation of their riqhts, and with an 

opportunity on their part to consult with what I guess 

all of us hope will be an Attorney General with some 

deqree of perMAnence, unlike the one who signed this 

complaint, as to whether the Government would be willi 

to be sued in this action. 

Your Honor has been very patient with me and I 

think that's all I would like to say on these motions. 
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'l'HE COURT: All right. Now, let me hear on 

the matter of the complaint. I take it you are qoing 

to proceed with Miss Goldweber on that? 

MS. GOLDWEB&R: Good morning, your Honor. 

Firstly, I would like to remark that this action is 

a civil action and not a action. The United 

States filed its complaiat in this action on October 

15, 1973, and alleged that the defendants have engaged 

in racially discriminatory conduct with respect to the 

rental of their apartments, in violation of the Fair 

Housing Act. 

The defendants, and if I understand 

argument correctly, have moved this Court to dismiss 

the Government's complaint because it fails to state 

a claim upon which relief can be 

The United States contends to the contrary, 

that its allegations contained in paragraph five of 

the comPlaints specifically state a claim upon which 

relief can be granted by alleqiaq, firstly, that the 

defendants have refused to rent apartments to persons 

on account of their race and color; that they have 

required different terms and conditions with respect 

to the rental of those dwellings on account of a 

person's race and color. 

They have made discriminatory statements with 
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respect to the rental of these dwellings, and that 

they have represented their dwellings were unavailable 

for rental, when, in fact, such dwellings were 

We claim in paragraph six of the complaint, 

that this conduct constitutes both ' pattern or practic 

of racial discrimination in violation of the Fair 

Housing Act, and a denial to groups of persons of 

rights secured to them by the Fair Housing Act. 

For the purposes of a motion to d1saiss, 

plaintiff's allegations in the complaint are deemed 

admitted and the only thing that is contested, is 

plaintiff's right to recover under the law. 

Obviously, if the United States can prove 

at trial, among other things, that the defendants 

have refused to rent apartments to persons on account 

of race and color, then the United States will be 

entitled to both affirmative and injunctive relief, 

pursuant to 42 usc 3613. 

Now, Mr. has said that the other cases 

that we have cited in our brief, specifically pages 

five and six, have all pleaded evidentiary matter. 

I respectfully disagree with him since each and every 

complaint that has been filed under the Fair Housing 

Act by the Attorney General, has been written in the 

same Section of the Government, signed by the same 
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people, and all have been substantially similar, and 

none of them have pleaded any kind of evidentiary 

allegations. 

Also, for the cases where this has been 

discussed, which are referred to on page five of the 

brief, they go on to say that a complaint such as 

this, couched as this one is in the very language of 

the Fair Housing Act, is sufficient because it meets 

the requirements of Rule- 8 of the Federal Rules, 

because it clearly apprises the defendants of the 

nature of plaintiff's claim and the grounds upon which 

it rests. 

Accordingly, the United States respectfully 

urges that defendant's motion to dismiss, would be 

denied. 

THE COURT: I certainly get the purport of your 

motion. I have a few questions that do arise with 

this complaint, and even though, as you point out, this 

is a civil action and not a criminal action, the fact 

is, it is an action brought by the United States 

Government, which does charge a somewhat serious course 

of conduct, which, if true, would be clearly in 

violation of fundamental national policy, which 

certainly imply perjorative inferences, so far as the 

defendants were concerned, and the like. 
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I have looked at your paragraph five and I 

2 realize that under our very liberal notice form of 

3 pleadiaq permitted in civil actions thatin essence 

4 what you seem to say in five, is to the defendant, 

5 •You have violated the law.• And you say# in effect, 

6 •You have violated the law by refusing to rent rentals, 

7 making stateaents and so forth, and so to some extent• 

8 -- how does a plaintiff faoed with such a complaint, 

9 deal with it? There is no allegation, as I see it, 

10 of time or place, and I notice, under Role 9, which 

11 follows Rule 8, that for the purpose of testing the 

12 sufficiency of a pleading, of averment of time and 

13 place or aaterial, and shall be considered like all 

14 other averments, in a material matter. 

15 The reason that I bring that up is because 

16 of other motions now pending before the Court, with 

17 reapect to interrogatories served on the defendants 

18 by the plaintiff, asking for information, dating back 

19 to 1968, which I take it, was even the year of the 

20 enactaent of this Act. 

21 MS GOLDWBBER: Right. . 
22 THE COURT: And yet there is no statement of 

23 time or place in this pleading, which would enable 

24 a defendant perhaps to challenge interrogatories that 

25 qo back to 1968, as not being consistent with the 

causes of action pleaded. 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Por example, while I asswae that the Government 

does not make this eharqe in a capricious way and 

undoubtedly believes it has the proof or will certainly 

be able to prove these allegations, I do have some 

doubt, despite the array of authority which you have 

cited to me, and which I have examined, that I find 

it difficult to assimilate this case to Connelly-Gibson 

type situations which involved a small band of neqro 

workers, who felt theasel ves discriminated aqainst 

by their union. 

While tbe Court does not set forth the exact 

allegations, the case is reminiscent of others that 

Mr. Cohn pointed out in your supplemental appendix of 

opinions, such as preventinq the construction of one 

apartaent house or dealinq with a situation of not 

permittinq colored people to visit white people in a 

particular building, have a certain definitionabout 

them that make it possible for a defendant so charqed, 

let us say, to deal with them in a reasonable manner. 

I am raising this not capriciously 

either, because we have many aa.inistrative aqencies 

cominq before this Court, and a very recent case prouqh 

by the Securities and Exchanqe Commission, seeking the 

same kind of relief that you seek, that is to say, 

affirmative injunctive relief, in which, when you look 

at the complaint, no defendant could complain about it 
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because it tells him very definitively what he is 

being charged with, in effect, having violate the 

Securities Exchange Act, specifically, definitely, 
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and this, as I say, may be doing more than is required. 

But all I aa pointing out is that I think 

Mr. Cohn's coaplaint about the complaint is not altogether 

without basis. I am not certain that it is an answer 

to say that he can get all these particulars by interr-

ogatories when part of his job is to resist your 

interrogatories on the basis of the complaint that 

sets no time liait, does not give any particulat 

location of building, or what nature of statements were 

made or what particular practice. 

so I do think a problem is presented here, and 

I am wondering whether the Government in fairness to 

a defendant, doesn't have more of an obligation than 

does the private litigant versus the private litigant, 

to inform someone it sues in this manner -- and as I 

say, sues in this particular area, which, although not 

criminal, might well be because we know there are 

criminal statutes, that persons who conspire to deprive 

others of civil rights, may well be charged criMinally, 

under 18 US 241, for example. 

That includes invading a psychiatrist's office 

and looking in his file -- you just saw that in the 
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paper yesterday. So I must say that many of these 

cases you cite, I feel do not perceive the problems 
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in an area such as New York City, where you are 

dealing with a landlord of not one hundred apartments, 

but fourteen thousand apartments, a far flung, wide-

spread organization; that something in the way of a 

definition should be conveyed in the Government's 

initial pleading, so that proper interrogatories might 

even be served on that basis, and issues more readily 

brought into sharper focus. 

Ar the moment, as I see it, this is a very 

broad, undefined picture, of a pattern, and the 

defendant is saying "I can't even see the pattern." 

MS. GOLDWEBER: I would like to respond to that. 

THE COURT: I understand and I am perfectly happ 

to have you do so. 

Do you feel or don't you feel··-there is some 

justice to the complaint that in this type of situation 

there ought to be a more definitive depiciton -- and 

I am not saying evidentiary facts -- but something 

that says beginning at such and such a time, in buildintts 

. located at so-and-so -- they might even be separate 

causes of action, I don't know whether that would be 

required -- so that the proof could be dealt with in 

terms of more definitively stated claims that appear in 
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this document. 

As I say, I would be perfectly willing to supply 

you with the latest SEC production, to illustrate what 

I mean when I say that this would not bring about the 

sort of contrOYersy we have here,since it so clearly 

lays out for the defendant in that case, what they 

have done wrong. 

MS. GOLDWEBER: Well, your Honor, in this case, 

I respectfully have a bit of a different interpretation 

I think, first of all, one of the defendants, Donald 

Trump, and defendant's counsel, they have both filed 

affidavits with this Court, denying that there was any 

discriminatory conduct on the part of any of the defen-

dants, to their knowledge, and the Government's charges 

are totally unfounded. 

THE COURT: Of course, that is all conclusory, 

isn't it? It is conclusions opposed to 

I deny what you say, but I frame my denial in an 

affirmative way, rather than in a negative way. 

MS. GOLDWEBER: I understand that, but I seem 

to believe that if they had done that, then they would 

have been able to answer the complaint and that's all 

they would have to do. 

THE COURT: From the standpoint of dealing, let• 

say, with your interrogatories, how can they successful 
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object to interrogatories going back to 1968, if they 

don't know whether or not you may be seeking a broader 

scope of information, time-wise, chronologically, than 

would be demanded by the allegations of your compaint? 

I don't say that those are necessarily limiting 

of discovery, but very often, Courts will, when 

confronted with objections, to interrogatories, look 

at the complaint in terms of time, and, for example, 

one of the things that occurs to me, doesn't a statute 

of limitations ever run against a claim such as this? 

MS. GOLD WEBER: We are not a1loved to prove 

racial discrimintation, based on things that happened 

prior to the effective date of the Act, but we can 

bring in evidence to 

THE COURT: I can understand the probative value 

of prior conduct, on issues of intent and design, and 

so forth: I understand that. 

That is a different question. 

We are getting into the area of evidence, and, 

of course, I understand that discovery is designed to 

enable parties to call upon the parties -- call upon 

the other parties to produce information, even leading 

to the discovery of evidence, as well as evidence, in 

order to support a claim or defense against a claim. 

These are commonplace. I am sure you understand 
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When you are talkin9 about a large, complex, 

fourteen thousand apartments -- and again, where it 

does occur w the Court that there are certain laws 

which prohibit inquiries directed to race, for 

example, I don't believe in its employment policy--

I am not passing on it -- Ivas suprised to see that 

interro9atory in this case, I will be frank to say 

that, but I believe it would be against the law to 

require in an employment situation as to the race 

of any particular person. I believe so. That is my 

understandin4J. 
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MR. SCBWELD: Could I say one thinq about that, 

your Honor. We have done a lot of employment work. 

THE COUR'l': Yes. 

MR. SCHWELD: The Zqu&l Employment Opportunity 

Commission requires each eaployer of over 15 or 20 

eaployees, I believe, to keep a racial census because 

it has helped the EPOC in eaforciriq !itle 7. 

THE COURT: That is now a new policy since the 

enactment of that Act, as I recall it. But, for 

ex.-ple, here in New York, it was against the law for 

any employment agency to inquire as to the race of any 

person trying for a job. I understand that supremacy 

de111ands that the Federal law take precedence, but there 
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may be, and I don • t know when the Equal Employment 

Opportunity Act -- is this under regulations of the 

Commission? 

MR. SCHWELD: Yes, your Honor, pursuant to 

Title 7, which we have had since '64. 
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THE COURT: I don't know when these regulations 

were adopted. They may be comparatively recent. 

MR. SCHWELD: I don • t mean to interrupt my 

colleague, your Honor, but it has been about seven 

or eight years ago, at least. 

THE COURT: It is that long ago? 

Jal. SCBWBLD: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: I see. There are problems such as 

that that may crop up in terms of the way this case 

appears in the light of what I have seen in the papers 

before me. I am simply mentioning these things to 

point out again the interests that can be served by 

some attempt at definition rather than simply a charge 

that you have violated the law, which is the way I have 

to read this complaint. 

MS. GOLDWEBER: I think there are two separate 

issues that are involved here. In response to the 

interrogatories, in which we ask for fairly detailed 

information, if your Honor will still entertin defendan •s 

objection that they could file with their answers to 
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these interrogatories, then we will be prepared to 

defend each and every interrogatory, and if your 

Honor felt at that time that we did not defend it 

well enough, then the defcmdants would not be ordered 

to answer that interrogatory. 
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The fact is we have sued people, filed complaint 

across the country against a lot of defendants who 

are in control of many units, ten, twelve thousand 

units, and in all of thoae complaints, as I said before 

they were very similar to this, and in the Raymond 

complaint, which Mr. Cohen referred to, it did not 

allege specific facts in the complaint, and none of 

the ca.plaints have. 

The fact which is not really at issue here today 

is that we ask for we allege employment relief in 

the complaint, and we inquire about it in the 

interrogatories. Well, there have been three cases tha 

have held that employment relief, once the Government 

has proven a Fair Housing ease, and the Court has 

ordered relief, they have been entitled to also get 

employment relief as an incident to the housing 

affirmative relief they have been able to obtain. 

We are certainly ready and willing, if we are 

served with interrogatories, or depositions are taken 

of our witnesses, to give any kind of proper evidence 
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that we don't object to to the defendants, to apprise 

them more clearly of what is happenin9. 

I believe that because they have filed these 

affidavits denyinq it, that they can just deny the 

complaint, and their motion for more definite statement 

which requests specific facts, as to the names, dates 

and persons involved in the alleged violations of the 

Fair Housing Act, is just the kind of thing that a 

motion for more definite statements should not be 

utilized for. 

(Continued on next page.) 



Js I 
THE COURT: Well, I understand that interroqatories 

demanding in terms of specifity, and that aiqht 2 are 

3 
have been better remedy for defeDdants to seek. 

4 
I think, however, what concerns me is that you 

5 
get a complaint like this followed by a fairly 

exhaustive demand for interrogatory answers by the 
6 

Government, that is on the part of the Governaent, 
7 

8 
there is no tiae period, no time frame possible to 

determine from the face of the complaint as to whether 
9 

such an request going back six years would 
10 

be justified, at least in the first instance, without 
11 

some more of a showinq that what was asked for was 
12 

13 
truly relevant to the issues that were going to be 

litigated. 
14 

MS. GOLDWEBER: Could I suggest that one thing -
15 

the Court's purpose is served as well if the defendants 
16 

knew he filed a denial, general denial to the complaint 
17 

and then filed with this Court, either a motion for 
18 

protective order to give them further time to object 
19 

or an answer to the interrogatories, and then filed 
20 

their answers or objectioas, and then each specific 
21 

thing that is contained in that interrogatory, so we 
22 

would understand exactly what everyone was objecting 
23 

to, and it wouldn't be just sort of a vast array of 
24 

things, but we would know specifically what interroga-
25 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

36 

tories the defendants don't feel was relevant and the 

United States would be able to try to defend that 

specific interrogatory or however many there are. 

'l'HE COURT: As I say, I recognize that the 

purpose of the rule was to try to do away with the 

unnecessary focussing on pleadings and papers and 

get down to the merits of the claim. I heartily believ 

in and will endorse that principle. I would be inclin 

here to give the defendants an opportuaity to serve 

upon the Government a set of interrogatories seeking 

definition, without depriving the Government of any 

opportunity to object to anything about those that they 

might think should be objected to, and I would, in 

effect, deny the motion to dismiss the complaint with 

that understanding, that you will have an opportunity 

within 

What would be a reasonable time in which you 

could put together something like that? 

MR. SCHWELD: You mean to answer them or to 

file them? 

THE COURT: To file them. How much time would 

it take to file them? 

MR. SCHWELD: Mr. Cohn says 45 days to file 

them. I would think we could file them informally 

if we write down what he wants to know and then answer 
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them in twenty days. 

THE COURT: could you get up a set in two weeks? 

MR. COHN: Sure. 

THE COURT: Two weeks. I am fe)iating out to 

you, this is not intended to be an exhaustive draft 

upon the GovernmeDt, but rather a preliminary attempt 

to obtain some more definition of .atters, let us say, 

covered in five. I think that seems to be the sensitiv 

paraqraph of the complaint, as a starter. That would 

be, of course, without prejudice to further interrogate 

work or discovery work of one kind or another as time 

goes on. 

I would deny the motion to dismiss the complaint 

on that basis. 

MR. COHN: That would be a very fair dispositio , 

your Honor. Within two weeks, we will file in effect, 

interrogatories cast in the form of a Bill of Particula s 

to try to define some of these things. 

MR. SCHWELO: Does that include the more 

definite statement motion, your also? 

THE COURT: Yes. It would dispose of that as 

well. Obviously, yes. 

With respect to the Government • s deaand for 

interrogatories, I would, assuming that Government is 

willing, extend a reasonable period of time to the 
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defendants to object, because, apparently, they have 

been operating on a misunderstaD4ing here as to 

how the Federal procedure operates. 

I would expect that, to the extent possible, 

any interrogatory not objected to, would be answered 

within a reasonable time, so that there wouldn't be 

a complete delay in proqress. 

In other words, I assume you will make a 

selection of those interrogatories that you feel you 

have a good objection to, and you urqe that, and that 

as to others, an attempt will be made to answer them. 

Now, let me pointout to you, I believe it to 

be the rule, that you don't have to answer something 

you can't answer. You are at liberty to atate that. 

There is also a problem of burden which you 

may consider raising, that is to say the making of 

revelations, but it may be that you will then be faced 

with the Government's demand for productions, the right 

to inspect and copy your records. 

may be an alternative, since the Government 

has its resources, and I take it you would contend that 

s resources are somewhat limited. 

MS. GOLDWEBER: We have made that offer in the 

interrogatories, that if defendants didn't want to 

all this information, we would, at their 
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convenience come in, and inspect their documents. 

MR. COHN: YourHonor, I think we all get your 

reasoning, and I think it is a very fair disposition 

on the matter. Should we try to agree on an order 

fixing time liMits? 

THE COURT: Could you work that out? 

MR. COHN: Sure. I don't see why we can't. 

We will take the two weeks suqgested by your Honor, 

and consider that a firm date by which we serve 

interrogatories on the Government. They will want how 

lon9' to answer? 

THE COURT: Why don't you work those things out? 

MR. COHN: We will work those out and submit 

an order to you that will provide for that. 

A certain period of time after they answer the 

interrogatories, so we have a little better idea what 

this complaint -- what periods of time this compleint 

covers, and all of that, then shortly thereafter we 

will answer those interrogatories we can, and move 

against those, we don't think we ought to answer. 

What does this do to a formal answer to the 

complaint, may that be deferred? 

THE COURT: No. I would S11tJ9est that you answer 

the complaint as best you can. However, I would sugges 

that you don't include your counter-claim, because I am 
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going to dismiss it. 

MR. COHN: We won't include the counter-claim. 

THE COURT: I have to say that there are simply 

too many hurdles in that counter-claim, not the least 

of which is, no matter how you slice it, Mr. Cohn, it 

still comes out as a claim of tortuous conduct. 

It certainly fits squarely, in my judgment, with n 

the fraaework of the Federal Tort ClaiMs Act --

MR. COHN: Wlaich would require consent 

THE COURT: Yes, it would, under 2680. It is, 

in Ill" judCjJJilent, an accepted type of claim, and if the 

party consented to be sued within the framework of 

that Act, as I say, I think wolald be. 1Rl8tillq time 

and paper, and diverting yourself from what I consider 

to be the real issues you have to meet if you do so. 

The Court is very mindful of the importance of 

the interests involved here to both sides, the Governme t 

-- the Attorney General has a job to do, and it is not 

discretionary, it is imposed by law. 

If your clients are violating the law, it is, 

it is his duty to take action. On the other hand, 

if you believe they are not, it is your duty to do 

something about it. 

I am giving you that opportunity. 

MR. COHN: I appreciate it very much. I think 

we all understand the purport of your Honor's views, an 
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we will try to draft an order covering all these things 

and submit it to your Honor. 

THE COURT: Fine. Is there aaytbi.nq\that has 

not been covered here? 

MR. BrtACHTL: Just one question with respect 

to the dismissal of the counter-claim. Do you wish 

an order? 

·-nm COUJrl': That could be included. Whatever 

order you submit could include that. If you wish it 

separately, I see it as sort of an anomalous document, 

it sort of walked into court, it wasn't an answer, it 

was a counter-claim. 

MR. COHN: What we will do probably is just omit 

it from an answer, and they don't have to do anything. 

MR. BRACHTL: We would suggest, your Honor, that 

would be appropriately amended, and because the counter 

claim cannot be asserted except in a pleading, and, hen e, 

the pleadinq which has been asserted, contains no --

THE COURT: I think Mr. Cohn gets the point. 

It drops out of the picture entirely, and he will 

serve a proper answer to the existing caaplaint the 

best he can. But he will have the opportunity to frame 

the questions in preliminary interrogatories, if you 

want to call them that, to give you an opportunity so 

that you may amend your answer if you think that is 

called for. Do you understand? 
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MR. COHN: Perfectly, your Honor. 

MR. BRACHTL: We will submit a short form order 

with respect to the dismissal. 

MR. COHN: Why don't we agree on a total order 

and just submit it? 

MR. SCHWELD: We have an order which you might 

conwider signing on the motion 

MR. COHN: Why don • t we submit one order? 

I think we are looking for another press release 

or something ,.._ 

MS. GOLDWEBER: No, we are not. 

THE COURT: I have your proposed order here. 

I would believe that--the order ought to encompass what 

we have discussed here this morning. If you wish a 

separate order on the counter-claim, that is immaterial 

So far as you are all here together, the counter 

claim stands dismissed. 

MR. COHN: May we do this, could we have an 

understanding from here on in -- and I think we will 

probably get agreement to this -- that they stop puttin 

press releases and try this case in court? 

THE COURT: Mr. Cohn, having served as a 

United States Attorney -- and I think you were an 

Assistant -- you know that the Government, unlike a 

private litigant, does have to keep the public informed 
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I must say that I have to agree that I think 

the document they issued was most chaste, and under 

the Circumstances, it is just one of the things that 

you have to grin and bear when you are a litigant. 

On the other hand, there is such a thing as 

fair trial as well as free press, and consequently, 
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I would hope that the Government will not be putting 

out anything which will '*Pair or prejudice the rights 

of these defendants to a fair trial of the issues 

involved in this case. 

MR. COHN: They have indicated to me by a 

nod there will be no press release. 

MR. SCHWELD: Wait a minute. He said the motion 

about a definite statement. I think your Honor is 

with what you do when a judCJlllent comes out 

in a case, your Honor: it is usually released to the 

press when a eomplaint is drawn, but I think, as your 

Honor said, this was extremely chaste. 

THE COURT: You don't have to apologize. 

MR. SCHWELD: I am not. 

MR. COHN: I indicate we are qoing to try this 

in court and not in the press. Is that fair? 

MR. SCHWELD:. It is fair. 

MR. BRACHTL: But it is not a limitation upon 

informing the public. 
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MR. COHN: Prior to a determination. 

Are you planning any press releases on any 

of these proceedings? 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. COHN: You are not planning further press 

releases, is that right? 

MR. SCHWELD: If there is a judgment in the 

at some time, it will be given to the press. 
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As to the judgment whether the counter-claim has been 

released, I don't know whether the public information 

will press release that or not. I am not going to 

give any assurance they woa • t. When they brouqht 

this hundred million dollar counter-claim, they 

definitely wanted mentioned that it was dismissed. 

MR. COBN: I want it mentioned that the 

stated that we have the opportunity, if you are going 

to start this again these people have to rent, your 

Honor, and do business in this community. If_, they are 

going to start parading around, stating that the 

counter-claim is dismissed or something, I am 

to have to start with the fact that your Honor has 

given us leave to file interrogatories against the 

complaint, which was not --

THE COUR'l': Let me put it this way, Mr. Cohn. 

Unfortunately for your clients, because they are so 
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large and well known, they become objects of newsworthy 

interest. For all I know, the press is here right now. 

But I do think that so far as the Government is 

concerned, it understands at this point, now that the 

matter is in litigation, it has announced what has 

occurred and I assume it will await that blessed day, 

one way or the ot:her, ,.when they win the lawsuit, as 

they confidently think they are going to do, you see, 

and that we won't have any intervening communiques 

between opposing capitols. 

MR. COHN: That's fine, your Honor. 

MR. BRACHTL: All of this must be in context, 

of course, of the continuing interest of the press, 

and inquiries which are made, which require, I think, 

as a public obligation, a response. 

THE COURT: Mr. Brachtl, if your fellows upstair 

would apply your ttae and attention to the prosecution 

of the business of the office and let the press ferret 

it out, that would perhaps resolve the problem. 

MR. COHN: One further thing, I would appreciate 

it, if your Honor would hold the orders and sign 

everythinq at the same tiae. 

THE COURT: When I see new orders come in, I wi 1 

take •are of them. 

One thing I would remind you of, and in this 
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District and in the Southern District, too, we have 

a local rule, where objections to interrogatories are 
2 

made, it is the responsibility of the lawyers to first 
3 

try and iron out their differences, and only plague 
4 

the Court, which has enough to do in this District, 
5 

so much larger than the Southern District, and with so 
6 

many fewer Judges 
7 

MR. COHN: But by their competence, they make 
8 

up in quality for what is lacked in quantity. 
9 

THE COURT: '!'hank you, Mr • Cohn. But that won't 
10 

get you anywhere. 
11 

You are under obliqation to try and discuss the 
12 

matter 
13 

MR. COHN: As long as they promise not to talk: 
14 

about a consent decree, we will have a meeting. 
15 

MR. SCHWELD: We love to litigate the case, your 
16 

Honor. 
17 

MR. COHN: Thank you for your time. 
18 . . . . . . . . . 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR TriL . E. , ...... 
lfl CrriC: 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK u. s. o1::;r'iJCI CliJf\J E.O. ru. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

) 
) 

* MAR6 
Tltv:t il. :. 

1974 

) CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 
) 
) 

* 

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

PLAINTIFF'S ANSWERS AND OBJECTIONS 
TO DEFENDANTS' FIRST INTERROGATORIES 

Defendants. _______________________ ) 
The United States of America, plaintiff herein, by its 

undersigned attorney answers the interrogatories served on it 

by the defendants and sets forth below the factual elements of 

the allegations of discrimination contained in paragraphs 5 and 

6 of the complaint by providing the names of persons who have 

knowledge of information relevant to the subject matter of the 

claim. The evidence which supports paragraph 5 of the complaint 

also supports paragraph 6. 

Answer to Interrogatory Number 1 and Number 2 

The defendants through their agents or employees have made 

apartments unavailable on account of race in the following ways 

which are presently known to the plaintiff: 

(A) Several black persons have been advised by 

agents of defendants, on account of race, that apart-

ments were unavailable when apartments were, in fact, 

available; the defendants have quoted different terms 

of rental to certain black persons from those quoted 

to white persons; and statemen$were made by agents 

of the respect to the rental of dwell-

ings which indicated a preference on account of race. 



The following individuals have provided information with regard 

to the above: 

Fontainebleau Apartments 
8855 Bay Parkway 
Brooklyn, New York 
160 units 

1. On July 22, 1972, Ms. Henrietta Davis, black, (10 

Plaza Street, Brooklyn, New York) tried to obtain an apartment 

at the Fontainebleau. The superintendent, believed to be Ken 

Fici, told her he had no authority to accept applications for 

rental. Muriel Salzman,awhite tester from the Urban League, 

(2820 Ocean Parkway, Brooklyn, New York) went to the Fontainebleau 

directly after Ms. Davis and was told by the same superintendent 

that she could immediately rent either one of two available apart-

ments. */ 

Beachaven Apartments 
Sheepshead Bay 
Brooklyn, New York 
1200 units 

2. On July 31, 1972, Godfrey Jacobs, a black tester from 

the Urban League, (2401 Nostrand Avenue, Brooklyn, New York), came 

to the Beachaven in response to an advertisement of a vacancy. The 

rental agent, believed to be Mr. Levy, told him that no one-bedroom 

apartments were available at Beachaven. Later on July 31, 1972, 

George Sim Johnston, white, employed by the Urban League, (131 

East 69th Street, New York, New York) was shown a one-bedroom 

apartment at this complex which the rental agent told him could 

be rented immediately. 

*I All of the persons with relevant information to this set 
forth in plaintiff's answers to defendants' interrogatories were 
interviewed by Elyse S. Goldweber, a Departmental attorney, unless 
otherwise specified. 
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3. In December, 1972, Beverly Best, black, (2681 West 

Second Street, Brooklyn, New York) after being telephonically 

advised by an agent identifying himself as Mr. Rosenberg that 

a one-bedroom apartment was available was told by said agent 

upon her arrival the following day at the Beachaven, that no 

apartments were available for rental. Ms. Best was treated 

rudely. Ms. Best filed a complaint with the New York City 

Human Rights Commission and was subsequently admitted to tenancy. 

Phyllis Kirschenbaum, (1833 Ocean Parkway, Brooklyn, New York) 

a white tester who dealt with the same agent a few days after 

Ms. Best, was offered a rental application for a one-bedroom 

apartment. 

4. On March 10, 1973, Muriel Silberberg, black, an em-

ployee of the New York Human Rights Commission, (52 Duane Street, 

New York, New York) was told by the rental agent at Beachaven 

who identified himself as Paul Ziselman that no one-bedroom apart-

ments were available. Later on the same day, the same rental 

agent at Beachaven volunteered to Phyllis Spiro, white, an employee 

of the Urban League, (150 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York) that 

although he had no one-bedroom apartments available at that time, 

a one-bedroom apartment would be available as of April 1, 1973. 

Mr. Ziselman also acknowledged to Ms. Spiro that he followed a 

racially discriminatory rental policy at the direction of his 

superiors, and that there were only very few "colored" tenants 

at the Beachaven. 
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Lawrence Gardens 
3301-3315-3223 Nostrand Avenue 
Brooklyn, New York 
160 units 

5. On March 10, 1973, Ms. Silberberg, black, an employee 

of the New York City Human Rights Commission, was also told by 

the rental agent at Lawrence Gardens who identified himself as 

Mr. Limani that there were no one-bedroom apartments available 

for rental. Later that day, Ms. Spiro, white, an employee of 

the Urban League, was shown two vacant one-bedroom apartments by 

the rental agent at this complex. 

Shorehaven Apartments 
1483-93 Shore Parkway 
Brooklyn, New York 
1100 units 

6. On July 22, 1972, Henrietta Davis, black, (10 Plaza 

Street, Brooklyn, New York) was told by the rental agent at the 

Shorehaven, believed to be Mr. Sarnell, that no apartments were 

available, but that she should try to obtain an apartment at Patio 

Gardens. Ms. Davis was not similarly encouraged to apply at any 

other Trump buildings, most of which are believed to be substan-

tially all-white. Patio Gardens is substantially integrated, and 

Mr. Sarnell encouraged Ms. Davis to apply there by relating that 

a black judge had recently become a tenant. 

Highlander Hall 
164-20 Highlander Avenue 
Jamaica, New York 
165 units 

7. On April 21, 1973, Annette Gandy, black, (164-20 High-

landAvenue, Jamaica, New York) went to the above apartment complex 

in response to a newspaper advertisement indicating that studio 

apartments were available. The superintendent, who identified 

himself as Mr. told Ms. Gandy that there were no vacancies 
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and the apartments that had been advertised in the newspaper had 

already been rented. 

On April 23, 1973, Monique Golden, a white tester from 

the Urban League, (170-25 Highland Avenue, Jamaica, New York) went 

to the above complex to inquire about renting a studio apartment. 

The same rental agent indicated that he had three vacant studio 

apartments in the building and offered Ms. Golden an application. 

On April 24, 1973, Ms. Gandy filed a complaint with the New York 

City Human Rights Commission and was subsequently admitted to 

tenancy. 

Kendall Hall Apartments 
41-10 Bowne Street 
Flushing, New York 
165 units 

8. On February 6, 1970, Mr. and Mrs. Ronald Bunn, black, 

(41-10 Bowne Street, Flushing, New York), applied for an apart-

ment in response to a New York Times advertisement. The super-

intendent, who identified himself as Mr. Spitrey, told the Bunns 

that there were no 3 1/2 or 4 1/2 room apartments available. On 

February 7, 1970, Ralph Stein, white, (134-54 Maple Avenue, Flushing, 

New York) was offered an application for a 3 1/2 room apartment. 

On April 9, 1970, Mr. and Mrs. Bunn filed a complaint with the 

New York City Human Rights Commission and were subsequently ad-

mitted to tenancy. 

Westminster Apartment 
405 Westminster Road 
Brooklyn, New York 
165 units 

9. On February 26, 1972, in response to a newspaper adver-

tisement of a vacancy, and on March 18, 1972, Alfred Hoyt, black, 
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(11728 Wilshire Blvd., Los Angeles, California) was told by Mr. 

Cannon, who identified himself as the superintendent, that no 

two-bedroom apartments were available for rental. On March 19, 

1972, Mrs. Sheila Hoyt, Mr. Hoyt's wife, who is white, was offered 

an application to rent a two-bedroom apartment at this complex. 

Mr. Hoyt filed a complaint with the New York City Human Rights 

Commission and the Hoyts were subsequently admitted to tenancy. 

* "1( 

In addition to the foregoing, plaintiff is aware of seven 

complaints of alleged discriminatory practices by the defendants 

filed with the New York City Human Rights Commission. To date, 

only two of these additional seven complainants have been located: 

(a) During the summer of 1960, Harriette 

Bolling, black, (77-79 Columbia Street, New York, 

New York) was told by the rental agent at the 

Shorehaven Apartments that she could not rent an 

apartment at that complex because blacks were not 

being admitted. Ms. Bolling filed a complaint with 

the New York City Human Rights Commission and was 

admitted to residency. (Interviewed by Special Agents 

Robert F. McCarthy and Michael J. Hayes). 

(b) In early 1964, Mrs. Mae F. Brown, (163-17 

130th Avenue, Jamaica, New York) was told there were 

no vacancies at the still uncompleted Wilshire Apart-

ments, Mrs. Brown subsequently filed a complaint with 
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the Commission and was offered an apartment, which 

she declined. (Interviewed by Special Agents Edward 

F. DeRosa and John Aherne). 

The following complainants have not been located by plaintiff: 

(a) James Chestnut - Last known address was 
166-05 Highland Avenue, Jamaica, New York. 

(b) Charles Hall - Last known address was 
89-31 16lst Street, Jamaica, New York. 

(c) Mrs. Carl Nickelson - Last known address 
was 2064 Cropsey Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. 

(d) Lorraine Haynes - Last known address was 
2611 West 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York. 

(e) Robert Edward Harris - Last known address 
was 2064 Cropsey Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. 

* 
(B) 1. Defendants' comptroller, Mr. Stuart Hyman, 

Mrs. Williams and Ms. Sophie (LNU) at Trump Management 

Inc. have instructed a former superintendent at Ken-

dall Hall, Mr. Thomas Miranda (39-89 50th Street 

Woodside, New York) to attach a separate sheet of 

paper to every application submitted by a prospective 

"colored" renter. On this separate sheet of paper, 

Mr. Miranda was instructed to write "C" in order to 

indicate that the prospective tenant was "colored." 

2. Mr. and Mrs. Harry Schefflin, last known 

address 33-24 Parsons Blvd., Whitestone, New York, 

have advised counsel for plaintiff that they were 

Frank E. Schwelb and Elyse S. Goldweber 
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employed in a general rental capacity at the Briarwick 

Apartments during the fall of 1973. This building 

was purchased by the Trumps during the late summer 

of 1973, and was substantially integrated at the 

time. The Schefflins advised that Mr. Fred Trump 

and other agents, including Mr. Wiss, wanted them 

to rent only to "Jews and Executives" and discouraged 

rental to blacks. They advised that a racial code 

was in effect, blacks being referred to as "No. 9." 

It appears that Mr. Schefflin was discharged by the 

defendants after working for them for a few months. 

(C) The following persons have been interviewed 

by representatives of the Department of Justice and 

have indicated that the defendant Trump Management 

Inc. does not always follow objective rental criteria 

in the renting of apartments, but often makes rental 

decision based on the subjective impression of the 

rental agent: 

1. Guido Lara: (2650 Ocean Parkway, Brooklyn, 

New York) Complex: Ocean Terrace Apartments. Mr. 

Lara advised that only 1% of the tenants at this 

complex were black. (Interviewed by Special 

Agents R. Patrick Welch and Robert F. Kaminski). 

2. Vikentije Besu: (2727 Ocean Parkway, 

Brooklyn, New York) Complex: Lincoln Shore 
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Apartments. At the time Mr. Besu was inter-

viewed by the FB4 there were no black tenants 

at the Lincoln Shore Apartments. (Interviewed 

by Special Agents R. Patrick Welch and Robert 

F. Kaminski). 

3. Walter Rohr: (580 Flatbush Avenue, 

Brooklyn, New York) Complex: Patio Gardens. 

From visual observation and tenant interviews 

by Departmental attorney, Elyse S. Goldweber, 

Patio Gardens is approximately 40% black. 

(Interviewed by Special Agents Robert A. 

Scigalski and Jeffrey C. Satchwell). 

* * * * 
The foregoing constitutes the information presently avail-

able to plaintiff to the effect that defendants have engaged in 

a "pattern or practice" of racial discrimination in housing and 

have denied equal housing opportunity to a group of persons, such 

denial raising an issue of "general public importance." 

Plaintiff objects to so much of the interrogatories as 

seeks disclosure of the identities of "informers," on the ground 

that such information (once the evidence of discrimination has 

been disclosed) is irrelevant and that disclosure of the identities 

of informants interferes with the free flow of information to the 

Attorney General. United States v. Northside Realty Associates,/·_/,.-
........ 

324 F. Supp. 287, 296 (N.D. Ga. 1971), Wirtz v. Continental Finance 

and Loan Co., 326 F. 2d 561 (5th Cir. 1964). Except insofar as 
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disclosure has been made herein, plaintiff further objects to 

so much of these interrogatories as seeks to inquire into what 

action plaintiff took to verify the complaint, on the grounds 

that: 

1. The Attorney General's determination that reasonable 

cause exists to bring the action is not judicially reviewable; 

United States v. Northside Realty Associates, 474 F. 2d 1164, 

1168 (5th Cir. 1973); United States v. Bob Lawrence Realty, 

474 F. 2d 115, 125 (5th Cir. 1973). 

2. This Court has dismissed defendants' spurious counter-

claim, which alleged in substance that the action was brought 

without cause. 

- 10 -
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A F F I D A V I T 

CITY OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

I, Elyse S. Goldweber, being duly sworn, deposes and 

says: 

1. I am an attorney in the Housing Section, Civil 

Rights Division, United States Department of Justice, and one 

of the counsel for plaintiff in United States v. Fred C. Trump, 

et al., Civil Action No. 73 C 1529. 

2. I am informed of the facts of this case and I have 

prepared and signed Plaintiff's Answers to Defendants' First 

Interrogatories. 

3. Those answers are true and correct to the best of 

my information, knowledge and belief. 

Subscribed and sworn 
to be fore me this /}Jjti 
day of February, 1974. 

'I / f&._Q _ __.. 

My commission expires: 

Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on February 1974, copies 

of the foregoing Plaintiff's Answers and Objections to Defen-

dants' First Interrogatories were placed in the United States 

first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Jeffrey A. Shuman, Esq. 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

[(l"frg J 4-ecLwel>-?£. 
ELYS S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
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DEPOSITION UPON 
ORAL EXAMINATION 

il FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
:1 TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. , 

Civil Action 
No. 73 C 1529 
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I' 
'• PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that plaintiff UNITED 
H :i 
;jOF AMERICA will take the deposition of defendant TRUMP 
'i ,, 
:)MANAGEMENT, INC. as an adverse party upon oral examination, 
;! 
:!by the officers, agents and employees and at the dates and 
! ' il times set forth in the Appendix hereto, at the office of 

!i 
:i the United States Attorney, 225 Cadman Plaza East, Fifth 
:1 
!! Floor, in the Borough of Brooklyn, City of New York, pur-,, 
'I II suant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before a :· 
d 
i H Notary Public or before some other officer authorized by 

I· 
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!I law to take depositions. The oral examination will con-,, 
li 

!! tinue from day to day until completed. You are invited to ,, 
I! 
'! 
<i attend and cross-examine. 
!1 
11 Dated: ,, 
!: 
I 
il 

Brooklyn, New York 
March j'l , 1974 

Yours, etc. 

EDWARD JOHN BOYD V 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 

HENR A. BRACHTL 
As stant u. s. Attorney 
22 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 
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lj 
j)SAXE, BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY 
!!Attorneys for Defendants 
1,39 East 68th Street 
!INew York, New York 10021 
il il 
'I :11. 
li q 
il 
il 

Fred c. Trump 
Chairman, Trump Management Inc. 
March 22, 1974 2:15 p.m. 

Donald Trump 
President, Trump Management Inc. 
March 22, 1974 10 a.m. 

Mr. Stuart Hyman 
Controller Trump Management Inc. 
March 25, 1974 10 a.m. 

Ms. Sophie Friedwald 
Office Manager, Trump Management Inc. 
March 25, 1974 2 p.m. 

Ms. Marrazzo 
Resident Manager: 
April 18, 1974 

Ken Fici 

3901 Nostrand Avenue, Brooklyn 
10 a.m. 

Superintendent: Fontainebleau Apartments, 
8855 Bay Parkway, Brooklyn 
April 18, 1974 2 p.m. 

Mr. Levy 
Rental agent: Beachhaven Apartments, 
Sheepshead Bay, Brooklyn 
April 18, 1974 4 p.m. 

Mr. Abe Rosenbery 
Rental Agent: Beachhaven Apartments, 
Sheepshead Bay, Brooklyn 
April 19, 1974 10 a.m. 

Paul Ziselman 
Rental agent: Beachhaven Apartments, 
Sheepshead Bay, Brooklyn 
April 19, 1974 2 p.m. 

Mr. Limani 
Superintendent: 
April 19, 1974 

Lawrence Gardens, Brooklyn 
4 p.m. 

ii 
1111. Mr. Lou Sarnell 
11 Rental agent: Shorehaven Apartments, Brooklyn 
\! ii April 22, 1974 10 a.m. 
;i 
1112. 
II 
'I ;, 
l , 

Mr. Zeller 
Superintendent: 
April 22, 1974 

Rene Canon 
Superintendent: 
April 22, 1974 

Highlander Hall, Brooklyn 
2 p.m. 

Westminster Apartments, Brooklyn 
4 p.m. 

A P P E N D I X 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
I EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
I 
il il - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X ,, 
il UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
II 

Plaintiff, 

- against -

i! FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
ii and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. , 
il 
fl _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ X 
,I 
i1 S I R S ,I 
·,I 

NOTICE TO TAKE 
DEPOSITION UPON 
ORAL EXAMINATION 

Civil Action 
No. 73 C 1529 

II I 
;I PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at 2:15 p.m. on the 22nd 

!!day of March, 1974, at the Office of the United States 
!j 

!!Attorney, 225 Cadman Plaza East, Fifth Floor, in the 
'I !I 
i!Borough of Brooklyn, City of New York, plaintiff UNITED 
I 
/I STATES OF AMERICA will take the deposition of FRED C. TRUMP 
•I 

II l;as an adverse party upon oral examination, pursuant to the 
:I 
jiFederal Rules of Civil Procedure, before a Notary Public 
·I II 
\lor before some other officer authorized by law to take 

/!depositions. The oral examination will continue from day 
H 
lito day until completed. You are invited to attend and 
'i 

II cross-examine. 
I' II i! Dated: Brooklyn, New York il March 19, 1974 
!I II 
!J 
:j 
:i I, 
:I q :l :I 
!I ,, 
il 

!i 
II 
H 
,I 

n 
H 

Yours, etc., 

EDWARD JOHN BOYD V 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

ENRY A. BRACHTL 

York 

•! 

ii II 
; 

Assist t U. s. Attorney 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

il 
II il TO: 
!I SAXE , BACON , BOLAN & MANLEY , 
11 Attorneys for Defendants 
11 39 East 68th Street 
:! New York, New York 10021 
" 'I 
'I 
li 
I' ,I q 
!i 
i! 
l 
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Defendants. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at 10:00 a.m. on the 22nd 

il day of March, 1974, at the Office of the United States 
d I• !I Attorney, 225 Cadman Plaza East, Fifth Floor, in the 
II 
:1 Borough of Brooklyn, City of New York, plaintiff UNITED 
:I 
ij STATES OF AMERICA will take the deposition of DONALD 
q 

!I TRUMP as an adverse party upon oral examination, pursuant 
:1 
H to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before a Notary 
il 
1 Public or before some other officer authorized by law to 

il take depositions. The oral examination will continue from 

il day to day until completed. You are invited to attend and 
H 
!I cross-examine. 
II ij 
'i Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
:I March 19, 197 4 
ii ·I 
[i 
:j 
il 

:I' I 

H il 
:I 
il 
" " •I 
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II 

I 
lj 
!I 
!I 
I 
ii 
!! ii TO: 

Yours, etc., 

EDWARD JOHN BOYD V 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

York 

By: ----7U--/IA/r..-...... {? 
RACHTL 

Assista u. s. Attorney 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

il iJ SAXE, BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY, ESQS. 
!I Attorneys for Defendants il 39 East 68th Street 
ii New York, New York 10021 
:I 
II 
!l 



Ulfrt.ED S'tAIJ.'BI OP AIIBR.ICA, 

PlaintiEf, 

- against -

i i t- t.:.. ! .. 
IN CLERK'S OFFiCE 

. 5. DISTR:CT COURT E.D. N.Y. 

- -* X 1\.PP d.... 197 4 * 
"IME .............................. . 

n ,, 
ftlPULA'PION 

!'RED c. TJUJMP, DONALD ftOMP and 
TROMP HARAGEMBl!l'l' I INC. , 

CiYil Action 
Mo. 73 c 1529 

Defendants. 

rt IS BBUDY ftiPULA'l'ED AND AGREED by and between 

the undersigned counsel the parties that the depositions 

of defeadanta to be takerl \lpoll oral examination by plain-

tiff in accordaaoe witb notices 4ate4 and served March 19, 

1974 are, at 4efenclanta• request, adjO\lrfted to the dates 

and times aet fortb in the attacbtKI SChedule. 

Datedt Brooklyn, Nw York 
March 19, 1974 

SO OHDERED: 

EDWARD JOHN BOYD V 
United states Attorney 
Eastern D1atrict of Mew York 
A""ney for Plaintiff 



1. Donald Trump, indivi.dually and as 
President, Manaqement Inc. 
March 27, 1974 9 a.m. 

2. Fred c. Trump, individually and as 
Chairman, -trump Manaqeaent Inc. 
March 27, 1974 2#15 p.m. 

3. Mr. Stuart Hyman 
controller, Truap MaDaq81118nt Inc. 
April 18, 1974 10 a.m. 

4. Ms. Sophie Friedwald 
Office Manaqer, Trump Management Inc. 
April 18, 1974 2 p.m. 

5. Ms. Marrasso 
Resident Manager' 3901 Noatran4 Avenue, Brooklyn 
April 18, 1974 4 p.m. 

6. Ken Fici 
Superintendent: Fontainebleau Apartments, 
8855 Bay Parkway, Brooklyn 
April 19, 1974 10 a.m. 

1. Mr. Levy 
Rental a9entt aeachhaven ApartJilenta, 
Sheapshead Bay, Brooklyn 
April 19, lt74 2 p.m. 

8 • Mr. Abe RoaenbeJ!'g' 
Rental Avants BeacbbaYen Apartments, 
Sb.eepahea4 Bay, Brooklyn 
April 19, 1974 4 p.m. 

9. Paul liaelman 
Rental aqent: Beachhaven Apartments, 
Sheepahead Bay, Brooklyn 
April 22t 1974 10 a.m. 

10. Mr. Liaani 
Superintendent; 
April 22, 1974 

Lawreaoe Gardens, Brooklyn 
2 p.m .. 

11. Mr. LOU Sa:rnell 
Rental aqent: Shorehaven Apartments, Brooklyn 
April 22, 1974 4 p.m. 

12. Mr. Zeller 
Superintendent' K1qhlan4er Ball, Brooklyn 
Adjourned witthout date 

13,. Rene CAnon 
Superintendent: Westminster Apartments, Brooklyn 
Adjourned withOut date 

SCHEDULE _____ ...... __ __ 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
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v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, et. al., 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF'S 

HENRY A. BRACHTL 
Assistant United States 

Attorney 
Department of Justice 
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MOTION FOR SANCTIONS 
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Department of Justice 
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FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF 

NEW YORK 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, et. al., 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF'S 

MOTION FOR SANCTIONS 

HENRY A. BRACHTL 
Assistant United States 

Attorney 
Department of Justice 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

FRANK E . S CHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 

ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 



INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

The United States has moved this Court for appropriate sanc-

tions pursuant to Rule 37 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 

because of defendants' continual, unexcused, and almost total failure 

to make discovery and to comply with the orders of this Court. De-

fendants have wholly ignored two deadlines - one set by the Federal 

Rules, a later very generous one agreed to by the parties and ordered 

by the Court - to answer interrogatories, and have filed neither 

objections nor any protective motions with respect to them. In spite 

of continuous efforts by plaintiff to schedule discovery as to accom-

modate the convenience of defendants' principal counsel, Roy Cohn, 

Esq., only one abbreviated deposition has been taken to date. More-

over, Donald Trump, president of defendant, disclosed in that deposition 

that defendants have had the practice of destroying company records 

to save space, and that he was unaware of any orders to his employees 

to discontinue this practice since the litigation began or since 

plaintiff's interrogatories were served on him. Accordingly, plain-

tiff has been almost totally frustrated in its attempts to conduct 

this litigation expeditiously in compliance with 42 U.S.C. 3614, and, 

half a year after the complaint was filed, the suit has gone nowhere. 



Defendants' noncompliance as to plaintiff's interrogatories 

has included, among other things, blithe disregard of this Court's 

very generous Order of February 5, 1974 granting defendants an un-

usually long time to answer, and we believe that meaningful sanctions 

would be appropriate. Nevertheless, courts abhor forfeitures, and 

we do not press the Court to preclude defendants from defending in 

the merits without one last chance. Accordingly, we ask the Court to 

enter an Order barring defendants from asserting any defense with 

respect to matters which are the subject of unanswered interrogatories 

unless defendants come into compliance as to all of their discovery 

obligations immediately. 

HISTORY OF THE CASE */ 

The Complaint in this action was filed on October 15, 1973. On 

December 12, 1973, after no fewer than three stipulated extensions, 

defendants filed motions to dismiss and, in the alternative, for a more 

definite statement. They further asserted a patently frivolous counter-

claim against the United States seeking damages in the amount of 100 

million dollars on the basis of claims explicitly barred by the Federal 

Tort Claims Act. On February 5, 1974, defendants' motions were denied 

and their counterclaim was dismissed. 
I 

On November 7, 1973, plaintiff served on defendants, by mail, 

a set of interrogatories. These interrogatories were neither answered 

nor objected to within the thirty days prescribed in the Federal Rules 

*I Elyse Goldweber, one of the attorneys for plaintiff, has sworn in 
the attached affidavit that the history that follows is true. 
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of Civil Procedure. Instead, they were ignored. On January 21, 1974, 

after having sought informal compliance pursuant to Local Rule 9(f), 

the United States served a motion to compel defendants to answer 

interrogatories. On February 5, 1974, this Court, after disposing 

of defendants' motions and entered an Order implementing 

an agreement of the parties as to when various interrogatories were 

to be propounded and answered. Defendants were directed to propound 

initial interrogatories to plaintiff on or before February 8, 1974. 

Plaintiff was directed to answer the interrogatories in 20 days. 

Finally, defendants were directed to respond to plaintiff's original 

interrogatories, filed four and a half months earlier on or before 

April 1, 1974. Plaintiff was reluctant to agree to this unusually 

generous time frame for defendants to respond to interrogatories which 

they had previously ignored, but consented nevertheless in the hope 

that the case would then proceed expeditiously. Unfortunately, this 

did not happen. 

Plaintiff complied fully with its obligations under the fore-

going Order and, on February 28, 1974, served detailed answers to 

defendants' interrogatories which disclosed alleged discrimination 

at seven of defendants' buildings, */as well as a number of extra-

judicial admissions of a discriminatory policy. Such proof easily 

meets the standards for relief in cases under 42 U.S.C. 3613. See, 

*I At his deposition, Donald Trump testified that defendants did not 
own the part of the complex involved in one of the incidents. 
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e.g. United States v. Pelzer Realty Co., 484 F. 2d 438 (5th Cir. 

1973}, cert. den. U.S. (April 15, 1974} (refusal to sell 

to two blacks is a pattern and practice}; United States v. Reddoch, 

P.H. E.O.H. Rptr. Para. 13,569 (Conclusions of Law Nos. 11, 13-15} 

(S.D. Ala. 1972}, aff'd per curiam 467 F. 2d 897 (5th Cir. 1972} 

(discriminatory instructions and admissions are a pattern and practice}; 

United States v. Gilman, 341 F. Supp. 891 (S.D. N.Y. 1972} (pattern 

and practice found as to large operator of apartments based on two 

incidents at a single building}. April 1 passed, however, with not 

a word from defendants in response to plaintiff's interrogatories. 

On April 11, 1974, pursuant to Local Rule 9(f}, Elyse S. Gold-

weber, an attorney for the United States, telephoned Jeffrey Shuman, 

an attorney for the defendants to discuss defendants' failure to 

respond to plaintiff's interrogatories. Mr. Shuman informed her that 

the defendants were not in the process of answering the interrogatories 

and were unsure of when they would begin answering them. He stated 

that they might possibly do so some time in May, 1974. As of the date 

of this motion, plaintiff has not received any response to its inter-

rogatories, and no motion for a protective order has been filed. 

Plaintiff's difficulty in securing answers to its interroga-

tories has been compounded by its inability to bring the defendants, 

their agents, and their counsel, into any room for any length of time 

sufficient to take appropriate depositions. After extensive efforts 
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by plaintiff to accommodate counsel for defendants, who first agreed 

on and then cancelled depositions which were scheduled for March 22 

and 25, 1974, an agreement was reached to depose both Donald and Fred 

Trump, the two named defendants, on March 28 and 29. Two Depart-

mental attorneys travelled to New York on March 27, but learned on 

arrival that Mr. Cohn, the lead counsel for defendants, would be 

available only for about two hours on the morning of March 28th and 

for about two hours on the afternoon of the 29th. One abbreviated 

deposition was taken during that ttme. !/ An attempt was then made, 

and a stipulation reached, scheduling additional depositions for 

April 17 through 22, including that of defendant Fred Trump, but 

counsel for defendants advised Ms. Goldweber on April 15, on 48 hours 

notice that these depositions would have to be cancelled too. After 

being advised that plaintiff would apply for sanctions, **/ Mr. Cohn 

offered to hold depositions on April 23 and 24. While Mr. Schwelb 

had to reschedule a trip to Texas, plaintiff immediately agreed to 

these revised dates, subscribing to the ditty that beats 

eternal in the human breast." Within hours of the new agreement, 

!1 Plaintiff's counsel suggested that progress could be made if only 
junior counsel, Ms. Goldweber and Mr. Shuman, participated in depositions 
while Mr. Cohn was unavailable. Even though the two juniors were class-
mates, Mr. Cohn declined this offer, but generously advised plaintiff's 
senior counsel, Mr. Schwelb, that he could do as he chose. 

See Attachment "A." 
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however, Mr. Cohn cancelled the depositions scheduled for April 24, 

citing imperative business which would take htm to Europe, back to 

Mew York, and to St. Louis in less than a week. This left htm 

only one day for a case dealing with rights to which Congress has 

accorded "the highest national priority." Trafficante v. Metro-

politan Life Ins. Co., 409 u.s. 205, 209 (1972). 

Plaintiff also proposes to conduct discovery pursuant to 

Rule 34, F.R.Civ.P., and hopes soon to inspect and copy pertinent 

records. Mr. Donald Trump and his attorney were fulsome in their 

assurances that this would be permitted. Since defendants have not 

responded to interrogatories seeking a description of their records, 

and since Donald Trump disclaimed detailed knowledge of these records 

during his plaintiff has been hampered in serving a 

proper request pursuant to Rule 34. 

!f Mr. Trump described certain employees, including Stuart Hyman, as 
being the persons with this and other pertinent information. Mr. 
Hyman is among those who were scheduled to be deposed on April 18 
pursuant to stipulation, but whose depositions were cancelled on short 
notice by counsel for defendants. 
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ARGUMENT 

As related in our introduction, Congress has decreed that 

this kind of case be "in every way expedited." 42 U.S.C. 3614. In 

view of the national priority given to equal housing opportunity, 

Trafficante, supra, these cases, like employment discrimination 

suits, are "pregnant with an urgency" which precludes the kinds of 

delays to which defendants have been subjecting this litigation. 

United States v. Ironworkers Local No. 1, 438 F. 2d 679, 681-82 

(7th Cir. 1971), cert. den. 404 U.S. 830 (1971); see also United 

States v. Gustin Bacon, 426 F. 2d 539, 543 (lOth Cir. 1970); cert. 

den. 400 U.S. 832 (1970). The right to equal opportunity is a 

"warrant for the here and now," and not for some distant hereafter. 

Watson v. Memphis, 373 U.S. 526 (1963). While we appreciate that 

any litigant is entitled to counsel of his own choice, and while 

the United States is prepared to make any reasonable accommodation 

to counsel's schedule consistent with the statutory directive of 

expedition, it is obvious that, on defendants' current schedule, 

we will be lucky to have a case of this magnitude resolved by 1984. 

It is particularly in cases like this one that the procedures outlined 

in the Federal Rules must be followed, so that each party can enjoy 

its full procedural and substantive rights in orderly fashion. 
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Accordingly, in the light of the record of consistent, unexcused 

noncompliance, the sanctions prescribed in Rule 37 are particularly 

appropriate. 

Rule 37{d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure provides 

in pertinent part that 

if a party • • • fails to serve answers or 
objections to interrogatories submitted under 
Rule 33, after proper service ••• the court 
• • • may make such orders in regard to the 
failure as are just • • • • 

The Rule cites as examples any action authorized under paragraphs 

"A", "B" and "C" of Rule 37{b){2), which include 

(A) An order that the matters regarding which 
the order was made or any other designated facts 
shall be taken to be established for the purposes 
of the action in accordance with the claim of the 
party obtaining the order; 

{b) An order refusing to allow the disobedient 
party to support or oppose designated claims or 
defenses, or prohibiting him from introducing 
designated matters in evidence; 

(C) An order striking out pleadings or parts 
thereof, or staying further proceedings until 
the order is obeyed, or dismissing the action 
or proceeding or any part thereof, or rendering 
a judgment by default against the disobedient 
party. 

- 8 -



These sanctions are authorized even without a pre-existing 

Order compelling discovery, where, as here, a party has inexcusably 

failed to answer or object to properly served interrogatories and 

where no protective order has been sought. Moreover, "the failure 

to act described in this subdivision may not be excused on the 

ground that the discovery sought is objectionable unless the party 

failing to act has applied for a protective order as provided by 

Rule 26(c)." See Rule 37(d). While we do not see how defendants' 

repeated noncompliance, at least to the interrogatories, can be 

described as other than willful, the 1970 amendment to Rule 37(d) 

eliminated the requirement of "willfulness" as a condition precedent 

to the imposition of sanctions for failure to answer interrogatories. 

Presently, the only relevance of "willfulness" is "in determining 

the severity of the sanction chosen by the Court.'' 4A Moore's 

Federal Practice, 2nd Ed., para. 37.05, p. 37-95. In deciding 

the issue of severity, the Court might consider that these 

sanctions would be applicable even if defendants had not ignored 

this Court's Order of February 5, and must be even more appro-

priate since they have ignored it. Cf. Rule 37(b). 
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Sanctions under Rule 37(d), in cases involving inexcusable 

failure to answer interrogatories, have included dismissal and 

entry of default judgment. Weiss Noodle Co. v. Aprile, 272 F. 2d 

923 (6th Cir. 1959) (unconditional default for failure to answer 

interrogatories); Brookdale Mill, Inc. v. Rowley, 218 F. 2d 728 

(6th Cir. 1954) (unconditional dismissal for failure to answer 

interrogatories); Sivelle v. Maloof, 373 F. 2d 520 (1st Cir. 1967) 

(unconditional default for failure to answer interrogatories); 

Hesse v. Brunner, 172 F. Supp. 284 (S.D. N.Y. 1959) (conditional 

default judgment for failure to answer interrogatories); See 4A 

Moore's Federal Practice, 2nd Ed., para. 37.05, p. 37-102 and cases 

cited therein. Some courts have imposed as the proper sanction 

a prohibition against the introduction of certain evidence relating 

to the issues as to which the opponent has failed to make discovery, 

Life Music, Inc. v. Broadcast Music, Inc., 41 F.R.D. 16 (S.D. N.Y. 

1966); Bernat v. Pennsylvania RR, 14 F.R.D. 465 (E.D. Pa. 1953), 

and have designated that certain facts, with respect to such 

issues, be taken as established. McMullen v. Travelers Ins. Co., 

278 F. 2d 834 (9th Cir. 1960); Life Music, Inc. v. Broadcast Music, 

Inc., 41 F.R.D. 16 (S.D. N.Y. 1966). 
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It appears from the foregoing that litigants have forfeited 

unconditionally their rights to litigate on the merits for non-

compliance no more sustained than that of defendants in this case. 

Accordingly, we think the Court has the authority to strike 

defendants' answer and enter default judgment without any further 

opportunity for defendants to respond. Nevertheless, in the 

interest of fair play, plaintiff has no objection to defendants 

having another brief opportunity to come into compliance before 

more draconian measures striking their defenses are made absolute. 

We believe that if the interrogatories are answered immediately, 

and depositions taken without further dealy, the case can still 

be litigated on the merits. 

While plaintiff does not presently seek a forfeiture, but 

rather an ironclad assurance that defendants will make discovery 

immediately, we believe that the availability under the Rules 

of the sterner unconditional remedy, suggests that further 

unilateral disregard of the Rules by defendants should be dealt 

with promptly and finally. Defendants should be required to make 

full and complete discovery now; failing that, they should be 

held to be in default. 
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We wish to observe, in connection with defendants' obliga-

tions now, that their failure to make timely objection, or indeed 

any objection, to plaintiff's interrogatories waived their right 

to do so even if any objection were substantively well taken, 

see Rule 37(d), quoted at p. 9 , supra. As the court said in 

Davis v. Romney, 53 F.R.D. 247, 248 (E.D. Pa. 1971), in which the 

defaulting party was far more diligent than the Trumps have been in 

this case, 

The passing of the forty-five day period with-
out any objection being made to the questions set 
forth in the interrogatories clearly must be con-
sidered a waiver by the defendants of any objec-
tions they might have had. Cephus v. Busch, 47 
F.R.D. 371 (E.D. Pa. 1969). Regardless of how 
outrageous or how embarrassing the questions 
may be, the defendants have long since lost 
their opportunity to object to the questions. 
If they feel that the questions are unfair they 
have no one to blame but themselves for being 
required to answer them now. If discovery rules 
are to have "any effect or meaning, the failure 
to serve such objections within the time pre-
scribed * * * should be considered a waiver of 
such objections." Bohlin v. Brass Rail, Inc., 
20 F.R.D. 224 (S.D. N.Y. 1957}. The plaintiffs' 
patience in agreeing to wait for answers beyond 
the forty-five day period cannot be considered 
as a stay or an extension of the time for filing 
objections. Sturdevant v. Sears, Roebuck and Co., 
32 F.R.D. 426 (W.D. Mo. 1963). 
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CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, plaintiff prays that its motion 

for sanctions be granted, with the defendants being provided the 

opportunity described in the motion to come into compliance by 

(1) fully answering all 

(2) making themselves and their agents 

promptly available for deposition; and 

(3) providing the Court with an assurance 

of full future cooperation. 

In the event that defendants fail to take these steps, we ask that 

the answer be stricken and the defendants be precluded from contesting 

the allegations of discrimination . 

We further suggest that, if the defendants come into prompt 

compliance as to the immediate controversy, the Court set a 

schedule for future discovery which both permits each party to 

prepare fully and ensures compliance with the expedition provisions 
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of 42 u.s.c. 3614. The schedule will then be clear, and any 

attorney on either side !/ who is unable to meet this schedule 

will then be required to withdraw or delegate accordingly. 

NRY A. 
Assista United States 

Attorney 
Department of Justice 
Brooklyn, Mew York 11201 

Respectfully Submitted 

c(_ II J/ '1,1 7j J/\.4 1 V?v c . ·· 
FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 

-J. 
ELY E S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 

!/ Mr. Cohn is not alone in being busy. Mr. Schwelb is in charge 
of the Housing Section's entire litigation program and active 
in many of the cases.67 fair housing suits or amicus partici-
pations were initiated by the Housing Section in 1973 alone, 
and earlier and later cases remain open. 
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7. 

ATTACHMENT A 

April 16, 1974 

S;-:,; Dnecm, Bolan· & Manley, Esqs. 
39 6Jth Street 
Nev.r York, York 10021 

Hc:y H. Cohn, Esq. 

Re: United States v. Fred c. Trump, et al. 
U.S.D.C., E.D.N.Y. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dt;'D :... 

We are sorry to learn from your associate Jeffrey 
Sclln;-nan, Esq. you v.Jill not honor your commitment to 
prc-c:ncc previously designated officers, agents and employees 
o:!: ," in the above v.cti.on for depositions on April 17, 
18, 19 and 22, 197 4, not-vd. ths·tanding your written stipulation, 
by ! :r. GcliHnan, so by the Court on April 1, 19 7 4, 
ar::J ·thE) oral rc•ryresentation of Mr. Cohn of your firm to 

counsel on l:etrch 29, 1974. To avoid obviously· 
fut:iJ(.;: 't.ve have cancelled our request for a 

to record the deposi ticms on those dates. 

We regret, too, that defendant has chosen to 
viclt!.t.c the Court.' s or.Je;r of February 5, 1974 ,.,hich ordered 
deft:;1dants to ansuer plaintiff • s interrogatories on or 

Arril 1, 1974. 

t.;c 'i'iill, of course, apply for appropriate 
defenaants. 

Very truly yours, 

JOliN BOYD V 
United Statea Attorney 

. /} By: 

TI!:NRY A. DRACI1TL 

cc: 'J:ho .r:onorable Ed.';.;a.rd R. Ncaher 
District Judge 

22!) J?l.aza 
nroe::;;..lyn, York 11201 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
u 

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF a \_t:·foH\C£ 
CL, coURI t.D. N .. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, et. al., 

Defendants. 

NEW YORK 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

u.S. D\SIR•C' ic 
1< 

......... . 
1\M£ 1\.M........ .. .... T ... 

p ,,, 

CIVIL ACTION 
NO. 73 C 1529 

MOTION ARD ROTICE OF 
MOTION FOR SARCTIONS 

_______________________ ) 

SIRS: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that plaintiff, United States of 

America, will move this Court, before the Honorable Edward R. 

Meaher, District Judge at the United States Courthouse, 225 

Cadman Plaza East, Brooklyn, New York in Courtroom 9, on 

the 3rd day of May, 1974 at 10:00 o'clock in the forenoon 

of that day or as soon thereafter as counsel can be heard, 

for an Order striking the Answer herein and precluding 

defendants from contesting plaintiff's contention that 

defendants have engaged in a pattern and practice of discri-

mination within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. 3613, and have 

denied equal housing opportunity to groups of persons, which 

denial has raised an issue of general public importance, 

aleo within the meaning of 42 u.s.c. 3613, unless defendants 

(1) Pile complete and responsive answers to all 

interrogatories heretofore propounded to them 

by plaintiff within ten days of the entry of 

this Court's Order; and 



.. 

(2) Provide and adhere to a firm schedule of 

availability for the defendants 

and their agents heretofore noticed for 

deposition; and 

(3) File with the Court an assurance that they 

will proceed with and respond to discovery in 

accordance with the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure and any Orders which may be entered 

by this Court in relation thereto. 

This motion is made pursuant to Rule 37 of the Federal 

Rules of Civil Procedure; and the grounds therefor are set 

forth with particularity in plaintiff's supporting memorandum 

and in the attached affidavit of Elyse Goldweber. Plaintiff 

further prays for such other and further relief that this 

Court deems just and proper. 

Dated: April /q<AA, 1974 
Brooklyn, New York 

To: Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan 

and Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Yours, etc. 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

HENRY A. BRACHTL 
Assist t United States 

Attorney 
Department of Justice 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

,d li.ct 
ELY S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



. --
AFFIDAVIT 

CITY OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

Elyse S. Goldweber, being duly sworn, deposes and 

says: 

1. I am an attorney in the Housing Section, Civil 

Rights Division, United States Department of Justice, and 

one of the counsel for plaintiff in United States v. Fred 

C. Trump, et al., Civil Action No. 73-C-1529. 

2. I have prepared the factual statement in plain-

tiff's Memorandum for Sanctions and have personal knowledge 

of the facts contained therein. It is true to the best of 

my knowledge and belief. 

Subscribed and sworn to 
before me this N?"L.k day 
of April 1974. 

My Commission expires: 



FJLED 
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT 

COURT f.D. N., 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK* 1974 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) _________________________ ) 

JIMEA.M ................................. . 
P.M ................................ . 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 CIV 1529 

PLAINTIFF'S REQUEST FOR 
PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS 

Plaintiff hereby requests, pursuant to Rule 34 of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, that defendants produce and 

permit plaintiff to inspect and copy the documents and records 

listed and described in Attachment A to this request. 

It is requested that the aforesaid production shall 

commence on the 12th day of June, 1974, at 10:00 a.m. at the 

main office of defendant Trump Management Inc., 2611 West Second 

Street, Brooklyn, New York, and that the aforesaid production 

shall continue as such other offices of Trump Management Inc. as 

necessary to inspect and copy the requested documents and records, 

and that the documents and records shall remain available until 

such inspection and copying can reasonably be completed. 

Inspection, copying and photographing will be performed 

by or under the supervision of an attorney of the United States 

Department of Justice. 

Respectfully submitted, 

&_ ;). 
SCHwELB 

ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorneys, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 



ATTACHMENT A 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS SOUGHT TO BE 
PRODUCED FOR INSPECTION AND COPYING 

All deeds, contracts, leases, application forms, va-

caney lists, correspondence, memoranda, ledger sheets, accounts, 

cancelled checks, W-2 forms, journals, receipts, waiting lists, 

and other written records, books, documents, and writings in the 

possession, custody, or control of the defendant, or any firm, 

association, company, corporation, or other business entity of 

said defendant Trump Management Inc. */ which contain, constitute, 

or in any way reflect any of the following information since 

January 1, 1968: 

1. The names and addresses of all apartment buildings, 

residential lots and all other dwellings owned and/or managed 

by or through said defendant for any period of time since January 1, 

1968, in New York and elsewhere. 

2. A. The address and apartment number of each dwelling 

available for rental by or through said defendant for 

any period of time since January 1, 1968; 

B. The size and rental range of all dwellings 

available for rental for any period of time since 

January 1, 1968; 

For the purposes of convenience, the word "defendant" as used 
in the remainder of this Request, shall include defendant Trump 
Management Inc. or any firm, association, company, corporation, 
or other business entity of said defendant, or any agent, or 
employee of said defendant, and shall include Fred Trump and 
Donald Trump. 

'!::!:._/ For purposes of convenience the word "dwelling" as used in the 
remainder of this Request shall include any apartment, house, 
building lot, or any other dwelling as that term is defined in 
42 u.s.c. 3602(b). 



C. The dates each apartment was available for 

rental since January 1, 1968. 

3. A. The name, address, race, and date of 

inquiry of each prospective tenant who has 

inquired regarding the rental of a dwelling; 

B. The preferences expressed by the prospective 

tenant regarding a particular apartment building, 

dwelling size, date of occupancy, and/or rental 

rate; 

C. The information provided by each prospective 

tenant in satisfaction of the qualifications and 

criteria to be met by prospective tenants; 

D. The results of any credit, employment, prior-

landlord, or personal background checks or verifications 

made in deciding whether to accept or reject each 

prospective tenant; 

E. The name of the person with whom the prospective 

tenant dealt; 

F. The name of the person whom processed the 

application of the prospective tenant; 

G. The address and apartment number of each 

dwelling shown to the prospective tenant; 

H. Whether the prospective tenant submitted 

an application to rent a dwelling, and if not, why 

not; 

I. The name, address, race, and dates of 

occupancy of tenants and the forwarding addresses 

of former tenants; 

- 2 -



J. If the prospective tenant was not accepted 

as a tenant, the reason for his rejection; and 

K. If there were no vacancies at the time of 

the prospective tenant's application any memoranda 

which would reflect whether the applicant's name 

was put on a waiting list. 

4. A. The qualifications or criteria taken into 

account in deciding whether to accept or reject 

applicants; 

B. The credit, employment, prior-landlord, 

or personal background checks or verifications 

made in deciding whether to accept or reject appli-

cants; 

C. The policy or practice of the defendant 

regarding the rental of dwellings to black persons; 

D. The instructions given to the defendants 

employees or agents regarding the rental of dwellings 

to black persons; and 

E. The instructions given to any real estate 

company, rental agency, or other such company engaged 

to refer prospective applicants to the defendant 

regarding the rental of dwellings to black persons. 

5. All written instructions, memoranda of oral 

instructions, correspondence, or other written records or 

documents to agents or employees of said defendant or to other 

persons, organizations, or agencies concerning the procedures 

and standards to be followed by such persons with respect to 

- 3 -



the rental of dwellings to any person, including black persons, 

and the treatment to be accorded prospective tenants of dwellings, 

including black prospective tenants of dwellings since January 1, 

1968. 

6. All documents or papers containing any reference to 

race between or concerning said defendant or its previously 

referenced tenants since January 1, 1968. 

7. All correspondence, agreements and other documents or 

papers, or communications which make reference to the Fair Housing 

Act, or to discrimination or nondiscrimination in rentals. 

8. All advertisements placed by said defendant in news-

papers, magazines, trade publications, brochures, radio, television, 

and other publications or media which advertised the availability 

of apartments for rent by or through said defendant since January 1, 

1968. 

9. All records, payroll reports, contracts, W-2 forms, 

cancelled checks and other documents which contain the name, 

address, race, position and date of employment of any rental agents 

or other employee employed by the defendants at any time since 

January 1, 1968. 

10. Copies of all EE0-1 reports furnished to the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission by the defendant, and of all 

other documents reflecting the race or national origin of defen-

dant's employees. 

11. All correspondence between defendants and the New York 

City Commission on Human Rights or with any other agency with civil 

rights responsibilities, other than the u.s. Department of Justice. 

- 4 -



12. All correspondence, documents, memoranda and papers, 

formal and informal, reflecting or alleging racial discrimination 

in housing by defendants or any of them, such documents to be 

produced irrespective of the merit or lack of merit of the alle-

gation and irrespective of the formality or informality of the 

complaint. 

- 5 -



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Elyse S. Goldweber, an attorney for the plaintiff, 

hereby certify that I have served a copy of the foregoing 

Request for Production of Documents on the defendants by 

mailing a copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney at the 

following address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan and Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
Nev7 York, Ne'v York 10021 

This the 6th day of May, 1974. 

ELY E S. GOLDWEBER 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 



JDP:HAB:sm 
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• JLt.LJ 
IN Cl EP.,'<'S OFHCE 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

U.S. DISmiCf COURT E.O. N.Y. * MAY 3 0 1974 * ------------------------------------x 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, TIME A.M ................................. . 

r.M ................................. . 
Plaintiff, NOTICE TO TAKE 

DEPOSITION UPON 
ORAL EXAMINATION -against-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
TRUMP MANAGEMENT, 

Civil Action 
No. 73 c 1529 

Defendants. ------------------------------------x 
S I R S: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that plaintiff UNITED STATES 

OF AMERICA will take the deposition of defendant TRUMP 

MANAGEMENT, INC. as an adverse party upon oral examination, 

by the officers, agents and employees and at the dates and 

times set forth in the Appendix hereto, at the office of 

the United States Attorney, 225 Cadman Plaza East, Fifth 

Floor, in the Borough of Brooklyn, City of New York, pur-

suant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before a 

Notary Public or before some other officer authorized by 

law to take depositions. The oral examination will con-

tinue from day to day until completed. You are invited to 

attend and cross-examine. 

Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
May 30, 1974 

By: 

Yours, etc., 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

BRACHTL 
Assis nt u. s. Attorney 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 

-1-



TO: 

SAXE, BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY 
Attorneys for Defendants 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

1. Ms. Marrazzo 
Resident Manager 
3901 Nostrand Avenue 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 18, 1974 - 10:00 a.m. 

2. Mr. Ken Fici 
Superintendent 
Fountainbleau Apartments 
8555 Bay Parkway 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 18, 1974 - 2:00 p.m. 

3. Mr. Levy 
Rental Agent 
Beachaven Apartments 
Sheepshead Bay 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 18, 1974 - 4:00 p.m. 

4. Mr. Paul Ziselman 
Rental Agent 
Beachaven Apartments 
Sheepshead Bay 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 19, 1974 - 10:00 a.m. 

5. Mr. Limani 
Superintendent 
Lawrence Gardens 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 19, 1974 - 2:00 p.m. 

6. Mr. Lou Sarnell 
Rental Agent 
Shorehaven Apartments 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 19, 1974 - 4:00 p.m. 

7. Mr. Zeller 
Superintendent 
Highlander Hall 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 20, 1974 - 10:00 a.m. 

8. Rene Canon 
Superintendent 
Westminster Apartments 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 20, 1974 - 2:00 p.m. 

9. Mr. Abe Rosenberg 
Rental Agent 
Beachaven Apartments 
Sheepshead Bay 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 20, 1974 - 4:00 p.m. 

A P P E N D I X 
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Ff LED 
IN ClH!K'S mFtCE 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT O]gfijiCf courn E.D. N.Y. 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK* JUN 5 1974 * 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

) 
v. ) 

) 
FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC., ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

) 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -x 

TIME A.M., ............................... . 
P.M ................................. . 

CIVIL ACTION No. 73 C 1529 

DEFENDANTS' FIRST ANSWER 
TO INTERROGATORIES 

The defendants, answering the interrogatories propounde 
by the plaintiff, state as follows: 

l. The sole shareholder in Trump Management Inc., 

hereinafter referred to as "T.M.I.", is Fred C. Trump. He ac-

quired such interest on June 24, 1969. 

2. T.M.I. was incorporated in Queens County, New 

on April 22, 1969; Fred C. Trump, 8814 Midland Parkway, Jamaica 

Estates, New York, is President; Donald Trump, 8814 Midland 

Parkway, Jamaica Estates, New York, is Vice-President; Matthew 

J. Tosti, 8620 Avon Street, Jamaica Estates, New York, is Secretar 

The duties of each officer are set forth in standard New York cor-

porate printed by-laws. 

3. The supervisory roles of Fred C. Trump and Donald 

Trump were explained in detail in their respective examinations 

before trial conducted by the plaintiff. 

Fred C. Trump and Donald Trump own an interest in 

Starex City, a moderate-income housing development consisting of 

approximately 6,000 units located in the East New York section of 

Brooklyn, New ln a low-income racially integrated neighbor-

hood. The Trumps have no managerial control over this complex. 
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The renting process has just begun and the apartments have not 

been rented to date. However, it is expected that an extremely 

high percentage of the apartments would be rented to blacks. 

5. This information has previously been supplied to 

the Department of Justice by the following communications: a 

letter to the attention of Thomas F. Drumm., at the Department 

of Justice in Washington, D.C., from Matthew J. Tosti, dated 

October 11, 1972, and a subsequent memorandum from Tosti to Miss 

Elyse S. Goldweber at the Housing Section of the United States 

Department of Justice, Washington, D.C., dated March 15, 1973, 

With regard to 5 0., no records are maintained in con-

nection with the race of employees. However, the remaining ln-

formation requested is being compiled by Stuart Hyman and will 

be furnished to the plaintiff. 

6. The defendants have never had in effect any policy 

which discriminated against non-white applicants. 

7. Annexed as Exhibit I. 

8. Defendants have never had a policy not to employ 

negroes or members of any racial or ethnic group. 

9. No information available. 

10. The executed leases and applications of tenants 

who were accepted are located in the T.M.I. office at 2611 West 

Second Street, Brooklyn, New York, under the supervision of 

Stuart Hyman. 

11. No information available. 

12. The defendants posted the H.U.D. housing poster 

in all of their rental offices. Defendants have told the respect 

ive superintendents orally that T.M.I. absolutely does not allow 

any discrimination in renting. Detailed responses to this questi n 

are contained in the examinations before trial of Fred C. Trump 

and Donald Trump. 

2 



13. This information is being compiled by Stuart Hyman 

and will be supplied to the plaintiff as soon as possible. 

14. This was answered in detail in the examination be-

fore trial of Stuart Hyman. 

15. No information available. 

DATED: New York, New York 

May 15, 1974 

3 

SAXE, BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY 
Attorneys for defendants 
Office and Post Office Address: 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 



EX'l:IBIT I 

BLACK and PUERTO RICAN EMPLOYEES 

c. Flores J. Garcon S. Terry: 

A. Serapio P. Taylor J. Brown 

J. Bennett H. Culbrehda A. Countil 

A. Cambell H. Rodrigues L. Cordero 

c. Echavarria J. Williams F. Lorenzo 

J. Maldonado 0. Curtis D. Alvarez 

M. Perez Jr. M. Adams A. Hampton 

M. Perez Sr. A. Alphonzo v. Matos 

L. Perez R. Robinson M. Matos 

w. Martinez L. Bidal v. Gregaria 

s. Vasquez A. Andersen w. Reyes 

A. Diaz H. Solar Monurle 

s. Diaz R. Garcia T. Logan 

E. Aquino c. Pradera A. Clemens 

R. Nieves A. Fuentes c. Roles 

M. Marquez R. Garcia E. Iglesia 

R. Delgado v. Rodiguez E. Mosely 

J. Rivera M. '..Jilson Perez 

F. Alvarado R. Joyner J. Alicea 

G. Rosado G. Lara H. Dolphin 

c. Gouzalez Salastro D. Banks 

P. Alvelo Perez H. Witherspoon 

R. Cardona Kastro J. Brownhill 

J. Nunez Pablulla F. Santiago 

J. Medina Y. Augiston H. Dunlap 

M. Tilghman D. Lugo A. Green 

0. Jenkins L. Vega J. Herlero 

J Raso R. Urena D. Reyes 

I. Pedro Matos J. Grullion J. Garcia 

Jose Luis De Jesus H. Quel J. McLean 

c. Comrie R. Munog L. Hurls ton 

I. Butler A. Escalante J. Sandi ego 

w. Parma M. Hunt w. Spruill 

s. Boston v. Jerome R. Bullock 

A. Magana N. Nelson T. Leach 

W. Sanders R. Yocono R. Condon 

A. Clanton R. Rodrigues c. Litvak 

J. Wyatt J. Betancourt J. Rosado 



ADUllESS REPJ.Y TO 
UXITI-;U STATES ATTORNEY 

XUMUlo;R 

JDP:HAB:jdp 
F#730959 

BY HAND 

of J/ustirc 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NBW YORK 

FEDERAL BUILDING 
BROOKLYN, N.Y. 11201 

June 13, 1974 

Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Attention: Scott Manley, Esq. 

F11 r:- 0 · IN ··- ._, 
(J, S. DJ Cl' t:,.'('S OfF/(;£ srn.c 1 en• ,,rt E 

. I D. "'y * JUN 141974 * 
Re: United States v. Fred C. Trump, et al. 

Dear Sirs: 

U.S.D.C., 
Civil Action 

As you know, Attorneys Donna F. Goldstein and Norman 
Goldberg of the Civil Rights Division, U.S. Department of 
Justice, Washington, D.C., and Assistant U.S. Attorney Henry 
A. Brachtl of this Office with others from our staff, appeared 
at the offices of defendant Trump Management, Inc., 2611 W. 
2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York, at 10:00 A.M. on June 12, . 
1974, to commence inspection and copying of records required 
to be produced under the Government's request pursuant to 
Rule 34, F.R. Civ. P., served upon you as counsel to defendants 
on May 6, 1974. 

At that time, employees of Trump Management, Inc., 
including Stuart Hyman, Controller, expressed complete surprise 
at the visit of Government counsel, professed never to have 
been advised of the appointment, and declined to produce the 
requested documents for inspection. 

No objection to the Government's request for production 
- either formal or informal - has been previously made by or 
on behalf of defendants, no application for a protective order 
has been made, and no notice of intended non-compliance with 
the request had been given, though minimal professional courtesy 
would have required as much .• 

In response to our telephone inquiry to your office 
for an explanation, we listened later in the day to your 
letter, read by your secretary, offering to discuss today 
the breadth of the request for production and proffering the 
possibility of some production of documents at your office 
on Friday, June 14, 1974. 



To: saxe, Bacon, et al. - 2 - June 13, 1974 

We find your proposal to begin negotiations over the 
breadth of the Government's request for production now- thirty-
five days after service of the request, one day after production 
was to begin and after Government counsel have travelled from 
Washington, D. C. for the inspection - entirely unacceptable. 

We write now in a final effort to secure, without judicial 
assistance, the Government's right under the Federal Rules of 
Civil Procedure to inspect and copy the designated records and 

· documents. 

We are willing to commence the inspection at 9:00 a.m. 
tomorrow, Friday, June 14, 1974. The inspection is to proceed 
in all other respects in accordance with our May 6, 1974 
request, i.e., with the production of the documents designated 
in the request at the office of Trump Management, Inc., 2611 
w. 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York, and other offices of Trump 
Management, Inc., as necessary. 

If you accept this accommodation, please advise by 
telephone call to the undersigned at this Office, (212) 596-3563 
or 596-3562, before 3:00 p.m. today, Thursday, June 13, 1974. 

If you decline our offer, or do not respond, we shall 
very promptly move the Court - once again - for sanctions and 
an order appropriate in the circumstances. 

Depositions of Trump Management, Inc. employees are to 
recooonence next week on June 18, 19 and 20, 1974. We received 
yesterday your letter declaring that the s9heduled dates are 
not convenient for you and that, therefore, neither defendants' 
counsel nor witnesses will appear. You did not suggest alter-
native dates. Unless you supply proposed alternative firm 
dates .for the depositions before 3:00 p.m. today, we shall 
also apply to the Court for an ordered schedule with conditional 
sanctions so that these much delayed depositions may proceed. 

Very truly yours, 

Assis ant U. s. Attorney 

f:s/ 
DONNA F. Attorney 
Civil Rights Division 
U. s. Department of Justice 

.. 



To: Saxe, Bacon, et a1. - 3 -

Copy: Hon. Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
United States Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

(BY HAND) 

, . , ... 

June 13, 1974 

-· 
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• Jaw, .:.Jo1·1 1 tl-1-t' dPfendan ts hcViO< not fil0c any >?xc;opti.ons 

to any of and I do b0liPVP that.had 

they filed tilA 0XCAption to many of in terrogai:.ories 

t!H?y would have madt-:' questions that ·.vould have bpen 

rath·"'r sticky, and 1 what is thf' d.a-

fendant's •.• ol1, let mi? ask one 'l'hc>r:? is also 

in the pap;?rs, for thP of depositions. 

In a. conv.::.rsation I had y.::.-sterday with Lr. Coht;n, \11'ho 

on fact when I charged him with not doing his 

in tl--:;.is ca.sc, and ;1e said yes, !1a.vr pro--

duct7d five 1 sevc•n or pfloplc for ti ons. Is 

th2t correct diss 

;nss .;.;;:: 11 1 I would like to !Je 

heard on that. t,;p tried to schedulf-' .•• 

l·.ii\.GIS?P,ATE CATOGGIO; Did you havE fi.VP 

depositions? 

JIISS lie di.d hav-:::> fi VP depositions. 

Cl\.'l'OGGIO: i"fc..s i.t se;ven or five·? 

i-J.ISS It i.s fi • •• but .. uncl:-r Vf' ry 
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circumstances, Your Eonor. 

.... ClSOGGIO: .Uut you ha.Vt? 

thPrn. 

GOLm\EBER: \·7t:=t had 

Ei1.GIS'l'P..il.'i'I.::: CNl'OGGIO: l.lrigllt, wh.-::r; arE> t.ho 

d<?posi tions? 

•,ve 11, wE ha.v.:' one wi. tness, 

the ot.h<>r four a.re being f±led. 

Ci:..'l'OGGIO: 1\lri.gh t, now, is it 

your intention to file thl?m? tciith court clE"rk? 

GOLmJEBEF..: Yes. 

HR. Bli .. l\CETL: Your may I intPrj<"ct ••• 

"L''\GIS'l'PJ\TE Cl\!..:.'OGGIO: You nar.-tE' is? 

liP.. £;R2\CII'.l:'L; Ilenry Drach tl. 

l!.l'I.GIS'IFA'l'E Cl':.TOGGIO: Go 

ERll.CI:TL: that thP 

were in all ins tanct:>s they? In othPr 

'i.·JOrds, tht: depositions cornplPtccl? 

rlll.GIS'J..'HNi'.L CA'l'OGGIO: I<iss •• 

11ISS (ina udir) • 

Al\.GIS'l'R;;.'.L'E Cl\.TOGGIO: :'·1iss Goldvie-l:H? r shakPs 

hf'r hPad anC. inclicc.tes that .she ::1as ••• 

i.iiSS ':i:'hose daposi t.i ons corc1plc-ted. 

CN;.'OGGIO: TI1cy •t:rern fil{;.'d? 



o • 
. ' "lTHDJ...;i-JTIFL ... IJ; 'I'hey w::'rc fi.leli. 

:JF.i-;c:r..:'L; I stand 

CA'I'OGGIO: 1\lri.ght. 

I think WP should say tha.t 

g•.:-tting ..• 

•·.ti ... GIS'l'.;;U.;.'.J..'E CA'l'OGGIO: Your name? 

J·:K.. SCHL'I:LL: 

SCihlr::LL: That getting thosP depositions 

ta.ken .•• producf'd sorn-: adv•"'nturr-s, tl1P like-s of which 

But W(' .did g0t. a. lot of 

(inaudible) . 

But you hav? the depositions. 

Those sir. 

; iiSS GOLD,I:SBLE: YPS sir. 

1\.l ri qh t, .:. s tha.t '>ll::e rc 

tJ<" arP l.lm:, do you norr d;,posi tons? !:oH 

r.1.any? 

::our Ii:onor, then:: ' . .V<'" r"" 

. 1 . t' 1 ap,tJrOX.l.l•1a y n.:.n;::· o .ne r peop <'' who ••• 

for depositions und0r th0 
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no long·'r -.:ork for t.b.i.s th·"'r•"'for,·•, t 11"":/ 

waul{ not 0P to 

Yes. 

GOLDhEBLR: Also, I first con-

tacted i.lr. Colin about c: .. rrar:.9i!'VJ s d;"'posi ti.ons 

at his re.1ucst, and a.s &. courtesy to 3"1i.m, I a.0rr·::-d, 

I not notice. •:·v+:"ryone that I \·•c:ntr:d for ... osi.t.:on 

a.t thv.t: ti:>''· 

elev;·n or v::·ol.:Jlc, c.nd th.:.:.n Cov;-·rn;'Tnt could 

':'lotic.?: for a.c:d.:tion21 pcopL:: i.f it \·.'<:•.:::. n':""Cf'SSc.ry. 

at trii.s point to sevPral. 

I Con't •. I don't •..• 

Our is to try 

to g::·t t:·d;:; c<::.se Lov:..nq. .Jo1 1, can .l ! i.c:·.n l:':t shc: C an:y 

vou l1<1V<"' any ••• 

.1. :10;)." so, Your LOr,or, on tlF• 

•=-ntir.:- t.hi.ns fi.rst. I 
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ha.d a. coupl:.: of i.J;_,yond n:J.' control. 

Hr. Colin \.Tcmt0L. to llsr.:, but i10 is in f::.t. Louis 

a y<' ar and a. f cowm:. .. "n t to try this cas:::'. 

Ci\'l'OCGIO: 

th::> 1:·ar:uc:.b? of t.h::o statub ... is tl1at. the court 

c::·OGGIO: And the court 

has to it pref.::rPnCt0·, I say t:w• lawy·?rs hav·? to 

It is a hard thing for anyono 

judicial authority to say, ana I an not forgPtting that 

I practiced law for many yPars ... but Irving 

ah,'ays ..• Judg(' Irving Kaufrctan ... US'c'O to rf'rdnc1 la.1::yers, 

if you ar? too bus], say so. If JOU cannot handle the 

cases that you l1a.vn, sc.:y so. 

[·Jf' ll, I am not sa.yi nq nr. Colin 

is too busy, I arn m1"r0ly saying ..• 

CJ\.'I'OGGIO: ·.Jf'•ll, it Sf'(nns ••• it s:.·H?ms •• 

I1P .• lih.JLLY; Iic' is in St. Louis ..• 

Ci\.':::'OGGI0: it SP!"f'!S that .•• 

Ar. Colin on thn telephone. could him. I 

gav0 I··lr. Colin a real that h':"' bf' hpr..::-· today 



') . . . 
and he LS not and he is always, I havP most 

liJ.--.. • I LLY : liE 11, just Vf'!ry 0ri P fly. 

poi.nt ilGn:· is tho.t \lt? arr.- anx:ous, ,'ir. Colin is just 

as the Government is. Not this casP is on 

llE' •••• this was pur ... :-ly 

i.rnpossi0h> at the tim"" that the inb·:rrogativ0s were 

iD.poseG., and tlH:> dPposi.tions to (inaudi.blE) to prepare 

wi tnessf's the fi VP major \ii.tnsssc-s already 

bC:>en complC"t.?ly C::.0posed. Can I finish And 

0ccsic1c>s the fact that fivC" lT.ajor vJi tnesst''S in this 

case havP been Th'? v<::ry sam'? qu?sti.ons 

a.ksed .:.n a forlT' i.n i.ntr--rrogatorL"!s, WP.r('> 

also askpd orally and put forth to witnesses. 

Dut, would ••. \lP would like is a fpw days, po.-.sibly ten 

days to complet.o ans\\'Prs to the i.ntf'rrogatory stat!"-

1n0nts, that v;c couldn't rn.Pc!:anically hanC:lf> both rEspond-

who cJ.idn' t aln"'ady t(>s ti fy at sa:r10 timfl. (i.naudib le) 

that the five Dajcr h0ads of the 

Trump Organization, who had alrt:ad:.,r b·?en d•:-posed to anm·it?r 

in te rrog a tori'? s . 
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d.t\.GIG'l'PJ\TE Ch'l'OGGIO: 'h•ll, if you ask me 

to make a I would say that if you got i.n an-

swers to intrrrogatories, you :)robably 

obviat"! tl1P nE:•ed for dPposi tions. 

l\re you \villing to allow that as a r:;ossib:.lity, 

oh, 

LiiSS I ... th2rc is no 

way I could answar that. I dont know what kinci of 

answars to e1t int?rrogatories I woulJ 

,.:.AGIS'I':Rl\'1':;.:; C.l\'l'OGGIO: 

questi.on. 

j>liSS 

thfl nan""s of the pAople 1d0rc •• 

Cl\.'.L'CGGIO: 

YPs, that is a 

Y-.::s •• • 

One other point I would likf 

to interrogatoriPs sPrved six 

ago. 

i 11\.C IS 'I' I(l.\'l'E Cl\'i'OGGI 0 : I knm,; that. I s ai c1 

You know. 

That isn't six rDn t11s thouc:;l:.. Is it? Or is it? 

:.;;,GISTEZ'!J.'E C.i\'EOGCIO: Oll , I s c.-: • 

Alriiflt, noN mP 
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... 

of th"' .:..nforrc.ation, :.nt·:::>rro<:;2torir>s ar-e ••• ar·"' 

n:ally rougl1. lrP you ctt all on thPm? 

russ \Jell, I f·2'Pl the' 

t1-:;•f .... h2.v·..:: \'lai.vr;•d tlH".:..r objection and ••• 

... 'E Cl,TOGGIO: t,;.:->11, that i.s a good, 

Und( r the old rul:·• I 

vioulc1 s a.i.O. .:Jut uncJr·r tlF' ••• · • .;i th-

t.i.ons to, of a not.i.c,• of tJv-:i r oL j"' ct.i 2.+:. 

tJH· practical to i.:..otll partir's. 

no11. (Xl, i.s the old rul · ... that 1 s ri9ht th<.4,t is 

]l.lr.i<:;ht, so \·in had botl1, the 

serv.:..c0 of th: interrogatori.0s anC au6its in this cas0. 

a copy of and if any, with-

TlH"Y :.. t fro:r:1 tr.>n c-:ays, aftr-r 

th0 of th0 

dl"'fi:::nd.ant r;-,al sc:rv"' answ<-.'r::: or o0j.r;>ct.:..ons w:. thin forty-

aftc:•r st-rvi.c:"' or sumrnons of conplc.: nt upon 

'.i:.'h? court maj nllm1 a shorb:-r or a 

r tint". cJO\,' tl1at l<li.ght giV•:· US 2.Ut.hori ty to rm-

I c1on 1 t knm,T. lind. 
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in a casP of this character, I would a 

that possioly th0 court rnisht oLjections, I don't 

but any\>.i ay , in ordP r to nov'? th,., c a.s P c>.he e.d , 

and to, to ... and in fairness, I think it would La 

if til? Gove3rnr:t<"'nt in regard ··"'la.stic wi.th r?-

sp<.'ct to some of \·lhich 

real dillies. the f2.rst pl'}c.s? state thn 

namt"',, rae•?. and adcJ.r?ss of all who mm stack, 

that's &.lrigh t. Or havP o.ny ot::-wr ovm?rSllips 

enter0d dirPct or indirect, oh, in top rnanag0ment, Inc. 

It's a family r:lanagemt>nt, or 

corporation, Your Honor. 

CATOGGIO: I know, I knm,'. And 

the date they acquired such .•. or supposed, 

th<"re is a Lank loan th2t th<' company has 

haw·· some of ass0ts, I arr. just look-

i.ns at tlw first of the intnrrogatori:"'s. you .. :rant 

to kno\v thE ract:' of i"Vcrybody 'dho works in First 

City bank or PVf"!:ry stockholder i.n thP First 

City Bank? S::hese interrogatories ar? so 

;_;,roe.d that tlE'Y allow for somt"' possib::li.tit=:'s. 

l':ISS GOLD·.n:.;BER: Your I>onor. mean a. 

su.0stantial typ<? of interf'st, and that .i.nt.:;rrogatory 

could Le if they did have bank loans, it is 
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CA'l'OGGIO; ·, ... Jell, alright. I just 

\·vanted to .:;ay that if they gi.v"' you a substantial 

Okay. nr. J/ianl9y, it is your proposal that 

ten days you \vill ::1.avP some k.i.nc:t of c:msvJt"'rs .•. 

1·1R. l11:...JLEY: That 1 s right., Your Eonor. 

CI,'l'OGGIO; sav tPn ·' 
days from 'Ionday. Inst<"ad of days today. 

(J.E. Y::>s, ten days frorcc 

Hould :.:;e fins:. 

i·;AGISTR"\TI: Cll.'l'OGGIO: That would ruak£:i. t t.hP 

15th of January ••• no of Ilay. rl'h(' 15th Of j'.jay o T·/ouldn It 

it? 

16 til of 2 I a y • 

i:·1.i>.GIS'lT..i"\.'I'E CA'l'OGGIO; 16th of 

. .-'\.T:;..; Cli.'l'OGGIO Is that for 

the Govt:'rnmcnt? 

Your Honor, ',•rould it be 

possiLlc tl1at thnr0 could kind of conditional 
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s a.nctions impos.:.'d, .uut :.. t v.'oulc1 ;.;e li ftpd c:ts soon as •• 

CATOCGIO; I could only 

I could not irnnosr:d c.n.J r•:>s tr:: cti.ons, or s a.ncti.ons 

cyst'"'lf. 

do, I u.ndc•rstc-nd that. 

\!bat is th0 poi.n t, Your Ho-:1or? 

Is point to punish tll.:> de t, or to r:i.v<' th£ 

JCS, until th•' 16th of l'c.l, a.nsi·J,...,r ti1c- intPrrosator:'.,.,s 

tions v:ould coL:.? in to play. 

goins to it thet I not to Po.kP 

::my 

thnn they do run :.nto 6ifficulti0s :.n 

can r;0t i.nto a pr of h;ro or t:lrl"'·:"' rconths you 

ancJ you trv ... , and t.hen you g•?t 

slack p<::"riod.s ••• it rna.y D<:" that. \·it? ha.v·"" ju::;t gotten :-.:r. 

Colin and :tan ley's fi.rr, i.n a tht'V r..r' 
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ur: to tf1·:-ir :ooD.rs :.n2. lot of 1·:ork anc: :Ln 2 co1.nlt 

r2.ght. 

in advancF until you I 

- 11 1 t ' ·, n 1 ,; JUSt. S 0._'/ • • 

. :'}:lj s-o e:.rough d lot 

of l•10t.i.ons anc? ... 

alleged of racial ane 

victiLs, +- .. , -, t-
.... .l ... U ..... 

not of adr.:issi.on rr."d r.:rwnp individually 

... 

Jr son (inaudibl2) 
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CArCCGIO: not on 

r:L'o • •• to c:.n -; . . 
S S 

c:mythins that saJ. You to :12.ve thi?f'} rn a 

BI0\.CllTL: r:anag·."rial. 

CATOGCIO: IIana.crf'r.i al. ',in 11 ll0 1 

it is than 

ti v:- ca.pcci ty. 

··.ass \:7.-.11 1 2.n thin<J 

hF-r0 i.s . .. 

!lhGIS'l'fuYI'L: CI30GGIO: \ir>ll 1 just lY"'cause· 

b1<"' ruan is i.n of c. Lousr- and out. thr a.sh 

jarrPls and th0 LarrPls ... 

I::.uL'? 4 3 1 Your ilonor 1 peop 1-.'" who run the> 1 1 \-Jho run th(: 

YGS 1 can hP can 

contract for th2 lancllord? 

Your Lonor 1 an 

hal:)}?(' ned. duri.ng thr- tions. 

'l'run;l) 1 t;1ey i ndi ca.tE>d c:uring thcd.r d<"posi tions tha.t 

didn't have :-:1uch control at all ovf"r tl1c appli-
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cati.ons. And a.ll thi.s control that '.vho ;)ncan1r• a 

h:nant, and \vho v1ill Lecomr• a h•nclant was r·c:ally in 

a nunw2r of Fair llousi.ns_r Lc.wsui ts th2t hav"' 

hPld. that thf' C!.uty of an mvn':"r of a_;)uildin<J or a real 

Psta.t<? company, th.:>i.r dut:! to comply <.vi.th Fai.r 

1Iousi.ng Act is ::1on -de lo.ga:;,h'. cannot dE' lag ate 

that to anyone. J-mc: that th::."Y li.abl::: for tlw a.ction 

of thc·i.r und•.'r r:rspond,-;;at Supc·rior. 

tl1A iP.petus of thn. Fair ;iousin<J l\ct v10uld con:c 

to nausrh t if the p'::rsons for a large 

could continu0 as we allPged 

ate and no one \.•7oulc1 be· held accountable for that. 

Oi. th any kind of to c:ba_n(:!" p?.:ttcrn. 

i 1.T1.GIS'IEi\.'l'L Ch'I'OCGIO; You n::-can Ilayor 

would 00 liaiJlP if sor:,boC.y a ci. ty hous.i.ng 

d<.'vr?lopm·:>nt b<? ••• wc:.s c1Lscrirrinc3.tory? Is the:;;t 

would •• is tl1a.t vhat .You arr" taH.:.in<J c:.;)out? 

'J:'he c: .. ty \IOUld De liable: • 

• thr: r·:· wa.s just a c2.se of Otaro vs. 

'l'h;< City, 'l'hc City ;.lousing t:mthori.ty, ancl held 

the City :::rousing J:.uthori ty :1ou knm;, J..J•?o rt"'spons.:.-
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vwuldnt, ri<Jllt.? I th·.:- !"'.c:.yor .•. 

'.Jrll, th·"' ·:i.ty :iOusi.ng 

ty part of ti1"' r:,aj'Ot's as:er.cy. 

to aG.CJUately. 

li ty of any oth0r. 

•vhat. you 

\v·an t to C.o nO\/. Co you v.'c.nt to •.:ai.t to 3""0 

hE' gi vr>s you :(lefor:? you c:.pproach ar..y r:1or.-:• 

d•.•posi tions? 

That \·JOUld 0('- ••• alrig·ht, 

..• 

C..:\':'OGGIO: we nakn 

a s chr>dul:.,. 

v.rould a. so 

that, you E:W•?, sowf'' of t:-1'"' rJroblems \·1:!. th thE case, and 

I don't want to say this ha.r3hly, but Nr. Colin is 

fror,., th.:.• court, tll•:::n ilr. Colin would t:·1?n ablr> to 

plan ,:.nough c?h':"ad of tim!? to rt-sponsi.bi.li ty in t.Lis 

casP consistt->nt \'ii th his oth."'r obli.ga.ti.ons. Such as 

like dPpositions arP to La wi.thin days. 
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hnO. thnn th<""Y could ta;;:,a dr->posi ti.ons of our v.i tnesse<s 

the ti.rP" of the in terrog?torie s. 

Another si:>:ty days to con·pletP the r>"'cord i.nsp,::ction 

any suppl.-?nt•:>ntal interrogatoriPs. r:·:wn 

on? would t!1eir oL li.gations i.n t:1P casP. .i\nc1 

if I:r. Colin at ttl.at tiLE· iJOulC: conti.nuo to bf.? too 

l.>usy, he ••• anothPr attornr-'y could take cv.;;r. 

II1\GISrl.1 F:A'l':C I see ... thc:re was •.. 

I di.Ci. come across a list of thF people to be dcpost:·u. 

Do you hc.ve that handy? 

diSS GOLDiJEi3Eil: 

CA'IOGGIO: You did such 

a schedu? 0eforr>. 

Would this help you? 

21ft_GISrl'HATE CNI'OGIO: Yes, that \vas it. i:J0\·1 •• 

o;, y.r:>s, i. t. is right on t.he> top. Finr. 1\.lright, 

now, let's go through that li.s t. Donald 'l'rurr:p, has 

his bf;en 

; .. 11\GISTiiJ\'I'.C C\'l'OGGIG: F'r?d 'I' rump, tak,?n? 

:IJ:SS GOLD\:i._;:3:SR: Yt' s. 

.. GIS'l'I..J\'l'.C Cl':.'.i.'OGGIO: Stc:wart Jiyrnan? 

EISS Yes. 
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I 1,;\GIS':;.'FJ\T:L CNrOGGIO: Fr."'d':lald? 

I1IS[J GOLD'JL:.JEE.: Yes. 

Cl'..TOGGIO: i 1s. (phonE> ti-c) 

:nss of the rr;;s t of thPm 

werP take.n, Your 

i'uiGISTF...:Yi.'l: Cl\TOGGIO: l::ut that i.s only four 

taken? 

21ISS GOLD\iEBEE: thf'r<'"' v.JcUJ a fi-fth, 

who wasn't on this list. 

AAGIS'i'RA'l'E CP .. 'I'OGGIO: iJho h"?? 

iliSS It v;as a. And 

'.l.'rurtt.f'S produc(O?d her Lecaus€' ::.. t was .Pas.:.er for 

ti1em, and it was alright. 

CA'l'OGGIO: a managnr of 

th0irs? 

2JISS GOLCl.J.CB:LI:: Sne was what call•::\d 

an a Section Shr> tlv.: appli.cations 

tht"y \\'t-n: su1Jm.:..tt0d. 

di:..GI S'l'l?.Jl.'l':C CJI..TOCGIO: Alright. L·Jr. l:an ley. 

Do you J:1aVE' tl1c li.s t ).)e fore you? 

Ili\.. Your IIonor. 

CATOGGIO: Can you shovl it to ::r. 
Do you ]mov; anythi-nc; aLout tlh::> availa:)ilit:l 

of any of thesP pPople? 



- too much, Your Honor. I 

\;uold (inaudibl·?) . I ac not of thesa 

still workins for tlv::. '..:'rump Organization, I think. 

But if tl1ey ar1"n' t the people who r"main.?d hor%inc; for 

th':"' Trunp Orc:;o.ni za.tion, tl:v":y '.-10Uld h•:" I vJ?..s a.bout to 

say very avai.la}Jlt-. 

i::l:..GIS'J:TA'ri: C.l\TOCGIO; J'l.lri..gh t. Paint ()ne. 

:'lill you onf' v?f'?k a.C::.vis"' Gow---rnm,:--nt of 

who of thc•sf• pFople taking nu:r·u.J,?r five> dmm through 

thirt.oen of th"' li..st that for::-n part of thP st.ipulati..on 

of 1, 1074. of th0sc ar@ still under 

the cr,:ploy of t:1r Organizations. B.J.' that I r1can 

:L\.JLLY: Your llonor. 

c1i.c1 I 

Jnc• Your J.Ionor. 

that ••• FridaJ lOth? 

Y·"S, Your nonor. 

I it 

to you until th2 13th. 0j' >lay 13th. 
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'1y3P 1£, Your Ponor. 

CA'l'()GCIO: r·:i ss ... 

:IISS COLfUEBJ:::I:; 

; ll:.G I S'l' FJ;.'i'L CA'LOGCI 0: Cop:!.,:"s to 

..-Jracht 2.nci. •• 

I don't tll:i..nk that n cr:1 s s 

:tour Iron or. 

to ; J.l.". .Gracll t, and 2. copy to nr· 

I just \:ant to 1 cl" ar tl1at this \?On' t 

..lo ••• no. 

rr-' 'jard to 

So, an(:i. on 

you;will answ0r all 

Y('S, Your iionor. 
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or mann•"'r. 

Your i.ionor, KC l:cp(' tl12.t 

those answ0rs try to sorcwhat to 

tlv.' c1uestions. 

r:_::;,CIS'lFll'lT: C7:..TGGGIO: ,;011, .i.f an 

tor] is too it dFf<='·c:.t.s :'.ts own purpcsf'. 

hL_;s GOLD\JL.:JER: ,.·Jell, I don • t thin};: thc.t ti:K'Y 

are really. :lost of t!'1f' 

i.nformation in ... 

CA'l'OGGIO; That's wh0n I 

pared interrogatories, I short. in-

tr:.rroc:;atory, not 

interrogatory is, the less good it is. Own or ha.vr-

any inter,.::st in •.. tlH:.:y'r{? 0ad i.n my Oj;;.inion. 

cmything 0ls0 you v,'ant to >ianley with? 

"Ih. i..1I·:J\CiiTL: I don't think so. I think on<:> 

t11ing vli th tha.t is .•• vlhat I :?..n 1d nd :_s this. That 

;-.ven i.f havt.:" s0nt out til(' r::ost obvious long ones, 

Dut I do tl1in!\: tl"lat thPJ hav.-c 0.:1 o::.·lisation to do ... to 

us rneaninsful a.nsw0rs as to thr .:..nforr:-ation 

(inaudiblr:) • 

I an d?pending on 



the facts and •.• 

32 I don • t :-:;.novJ i. f I hav•? a. 

duty to };:nevi 1 J.:>ut ha<1 tlH'Y b20n acc2ptal::-lr: ••. v.:hi.ch 

i ••• undi:C'r tac- rules, til('Y !:1av0 an obli.gati.on to kno'"' 

and to find out. 

IL"\GIS'IP.l\.TE CNl'OGGIO: Yes. 

s2e what we get. :Jm,·, all I trying to c1 o is 

to i.mprt:>ss on ··lr. i1anl<>y and Iir. CoLin thc:.t thPy 

nust n:ov·? this thin9 and ••• b0cause thPy arP bui ldi.ng 

up a r<"cord whf'·rt" they an:" i nvi troub l.P. Don't 

let that happen. 

IlE. SCII\JELL: Your :Ionor, just t\.;o points 

that I vish to rna.ke for th0 Govf'rnm.:'nt, and fi.rst 

of all, both thE· ord,.,r rr:qui.rin<J subjr•ct to 

the I:Jy Apri 1 1st, and th"" stipulated 

schedule of d2positions to DC taken orders of 

the court. 

Ci\TOGGIO: Yes. 

':L'hus 1 we are nov., :i.n a p;:>rioC::. 

of S(•cond-round ordr>rs, and to a.ffPct sc>.mc rf'sul ts 

undC"r thos·? ci.rcumstancps, I ui.sh to th;::' 

Governrctr.>nts • the.t cond.:.tiona.l :>ancti.ons would 

your rt=>port and r>?corJn\"ncla.tions to the Court, that 



/.5. 

"' you ri?quest for a P"<JUla tion that st::ch cor, d.:_ tioni?C: 

s.:mctions b:" and bE- grantEd. 

'11\GIS'l'I\1'{.;:'::.::; Cl'.'fOCGIO: ;1011 I ••• 

l·l:i:Z. 

CA.TOGGIO: \':•:-11, i.t is C:.iffi.cult 

v.rhat :z'ou an·· aski.ng i.s the court to impos:" sa.nction on 

time VJl1;zn lle is a too busy ••. busi"'r tha.n wc>.nts 

to lJe • imd that at a 'dlH:>n a judg<:' fi.nds !1i.rr1-

self too busy. The juc1gr ir3 not to take it today 

what is sood for onn is good for 

IEZ. SCH\':LLL: '.i.'hr> othnr :i.tf'rr, Your llonor, 2..s 

I our i"'Ot.ion to .i.nclud.!., a r:·.>qu""'st for an ordr·r 

including costs of t.::'iis rr·Dtion, \vhi.ch bo approp-

riatP and ask thosG costs 

and '.Jf-1 vwuld :.J:" to sui.Jrd.t the affi.davi ts rr-srarc.-

ing couns0l' s ti.J-:;-_., a.nd :·' xpt?nses ;,·ri. tl1 rr>spect to t.'lis 

11, tha.t is c. d.i ff2.-

cult onr'. If ••• if ti12 d0frndant's produce 

our ·,.Jill ,..J" a lot. t;tc>.n 

L2t's not the want 



• 
/6. 

if tlv'y con 1 t conply 

On your 

lin0, a.lri.gh t? 

thoughts to 1lr. Colin, o.ncl anyon2 ('lS<' :i.n your offic.:' 

Honor. 

T'hc'y c2.n 1 t fool arounc:.. It can 1 t. 

Can you do that? 

"-''"S, Your donor. 

dow, 

you vrry ruch, Your 

Thenk you, Honor. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * 

by :;.:;astern '.::'ran[,;cri.pt.i on Sr-rvi.cc· 
Junf- /4, 1974 
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v. 

FRED C. 

• '1 
,. y 

t 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT ,\ :·r ( 
':'·I 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF "\"" 
JUL 12 1974 

STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

TRUMP, ET AL., 

Defendants. 

NEW YORK Tifv'1= /\.:J .... ,.,,, .. , .. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

PJ.1. .............• 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

NOTICE TO TAKE DEPOSITIONS 
UPON ORAL EXAMINATION 

To: Roy Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 E. 68 Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Please take notice that commencing on the 30th day of 

July 1974, the plaintiff, United States of America, will take 

the depositions of the agents and employees of Trump Management, 

Inc., whose names are set forth on the time schedule attached 

hereto as Appendix A, at the office of the United States 

Attorney, 225 Cadman Plaza East, Fifth Floor, in the Borough 

of Brooklyn, City of New York. These depositions will be upon 

oral examination pursuant to Rule 30 of the Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure, before an officer authorized by law to admin-

ister oaths and take testimony. The oral examination will con-

tinue from day to day until completed. 

Also, pursuant to Rule 30(b)(l) of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure, Documents designated in Appendix B attached 



hereto are being subpoenaed to be produced by deponents at the 

taking of this deposition. 

Dated this ?70 of July, 1974. 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
United States Attorney 

DONNA GOL TEIN 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG 
Attorneys, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



' ' 
'· 

APPENDIX A 

To Notice to Take Depositions Upon Oral Examination 

To: Roy Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

1. Ms. Minerva Gilbert 
res. 3000 Ocean Parkway 

Brooklyn, New York 
emp. Trump Management, Inc. 

2611 W. 2nd Street 
Brooklyn, New York 

2. Ms. Margueritte Marrazzo 
res •. 2457 Grogg Street 

Brooklyn, New York 
emp. Trump Management, Inc. 

2611 West 2nd Street 
Brooklyn, New York 

3. Mr. Skender Fici 
Superintendent 
Fountainbleu Apartments 
8855 Bay Parkway 
Brooklyn, New York 

4. Mr. Guido Lara 
Superintendent 
Ocean Terrace Apartments 
2650 Ocean Parkway 
Brooklyn, New York 

5. Mr. Louis Sarnell 
Rental Agent 
Shorehaven Apartments 
8850 19th Avenue 
Brooklyn, New York 

6. Mr. Walter Rohr 
Superintendent 
Patio Gardens Apartments 
590 Flatbush Avenue 
Brooklyn, New York 

Tuesday, 
July 30, 1974, 
9:00 a.m. 

Tuesday 
July 30, 1974 
12:30 p.m. 

Tuesday, 
July 30, 1974 
3:00 p.m. 

Wednesday, 
July 31, 1974 
9:00 a.m. 

Wednesday, 
July 31, 1974 
12:30 p.m. 

Wednesday 
July 31, 1974 
3:00 p.m. 



7. Mr. James T. Green Thursday, 
Superintendent August 1, 1974 
Westminster Hall Apartments 9:00 a.m. 
405 Westminster Road 
Brooklyn, New York 

8. Mr. Daniel Borth Thursday, 
Superintendent August 1, 1974 
Kendall Hall Apartments 1:00 p.m. 
41-10 Bowne Street 
Flushing, New York 

9. Mr. Joseph Zecher Thursday, 
Superintendent August 1, 1974 
Trump Village Apartments 3:00p.m. 
2940-3000 Ocean Parkway 
Brooklyn, New York 

10. Mr. Milan Mitijevick Friday, 
Superintendent August 2, 1974 
Wexford Terrace Apartments 10:00 a.m. 
86-75 Midland Parkway 
Jamaica, New York 

11. Mr. Raymond E. Travis Friday, 
Superintendent August 2, 1974 
Wedgewood Hall Apartments 1:00 p.m. 
2580 Ocean Parkway 
Brooklyn, New York 



APPENDIX B 

To Notice to Take Depositions Upon Oral Examination 

To: Roy Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

The documents*/ set forth below are being subpoenaed 

from the following agents and employees of Trump Management, 

Inc., to be brought at the time of each employee's deposition: 

Mr. Skender Fici 
Mr. Guido Lara 
Mr. Louis Sarnell 
Mr. James T. Green 
Mr. Daniel Borth 
Mr. Walter Rohr 
Mr. Joseph Zecher 
Mr. Milan Mitijevick 
Mr. Raymond E. Travis 

1. All completed leases, applications and records of 

payment of deposits in the possession, custody or control of 

the deponent. 

2. All records, cards, waiting lists or other forms 

of documentation in the possession, custody or control of the 

deponent which contain the names, addresses and dates of con-

tact of any prospective tenant or any individual who has 

applied, sought to apply or made inquiry concerning residing 

at an apartment building owned by the defendants. 

3. All written documents, correspondence, forms or 

other writings in the possession, custody or control of the 

deponent which contain instructions, advice or stated or 

Documents previously made available to the government pur-
suant to the May 6, 1974, Request for Production of Documents 
need not be reproduced here. 



suggested policies or practices with respect to the rental of 

apartments or the processing of applications at the defendants' 

buildings. 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Donna Goldstein, an attorney for plaintiff, hereby 

certifies that I have served a copy of the foregoing Notice 

to Take Depositions upon Oral Examination on the defendants 

by mailing a copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney at the 

following address: 

This 

Roy Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 
CJTb / day of July, 1974. 

DONNAGOLEfN 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



NPG:jfb 
DJ 175-52-28 

Mr. Roy Cohn 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan Manley 
39 E. 68 Street 
New York, New York 10023 

Re: United States v. Fred c. Trump, et al. 
C.A. No. 73 Cl529 

Dear Mr. Cohn: 

Pursuant to Magistrate Catoggio's order of 
August 8, 1974, we have set forth below the remainder 
of discovery that is necessary for us to complete 
that phase of our preparation of this lawsuit 

1. Depositions: 

a. Ms. Carol Falcone 
b. Mr. Thomas l'f_1randa 
c. Mr. Louis San1ell, Supt., Shorehaven 

(deposition previously postponed) 
d. Al Weber, Superintendent 

Edgarton Hall 
e. Mr. Henry Neher, Supt. 

The Belcrest Apts. 
f. Mr. w. Volz, Supt. 

Winston Hall 
g. Mr. Jqhn Raymond, Supt_. 

Nauti1us .J\pts. 



- 2 ... 

We are planning to notice these depositions for 
August 22-23, 1974. If this date is unacceptable to you, 
please contact us by Wednesday, August 14, 1974; otherwise, 
notices shall be sent out accordingly. • 

2 o Request for Production of Documents 

We are sending under separate cover a request for 
production of the following documents that have not previously 
been produced: 

a. Currer1t tenant applications and leases for the 
following buildings: 

lo Chelsea Hall 
2. Nautilus Hall 
3. Ocean Terrace 
4. Lincoln Shore 

b. Receipt books or other documents which contain 
records of payment of deposits for the rental of apartments 
for each of defendants' buildings situated in the' New York 
area. 

We propose that this production take place at 
your office on Monday, August 26, 1974. If this date is 
inconvenient to you, please provide us with an alternative 
date that is not inconsistent with the discovery deadline set 
by Magistrate Catoggio. 

We are also sending under separate cover a request 
for the following documents relating to the operations of 
defendants• apartment buildings in Norfolk, Virginia,*/ 
(Hague, Pembroke, Oces.na.ire and two smaller buildings}: 

Current tenant applications and leases 
lmployee payroll records 
Waiting-lists 
Rejected applications 

'!/ See paragraph 3 of the Complaint which states that the 
defendants operate dwellings nin the New York area and elsewhereo" 



We are proposing that the docmnents be made available 
at the Oceanaire on August 29, 1974. If this date is 
inconvenient to you, please advise us in advance of 
that date so that 't.ve may make new arrangements. 

I look forward to hearing from you by August 14, 
1974, to confirm the schedule set forth above. 

Sincerely, 

J. STANLEY POTTINGER 
Assistant .Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 

NORMAN P. GOLDBERG 
Attorney 

Housing Section 

cc: The Honorable Vincent A. Catoggio 
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I' 
II I! 
I' 
l 
! I UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
j EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
! 
il - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 
II' I !j UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
il 
il 
II" 

II 
II 
I FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 

Plaintiff, 

- against -

I TRUMP MANAGEMENT' INC. ' 
II II- _________ :e:e:d:n:s __ X 

II s I R s 

NOTICE TO TAKE 
DEPOSITION UPON 
ORAL EXAMINATION 

Civil Action 
No. 73 c 1529 

n 
U. S. DISTf? 1c 1 • 01 fiCE 

cown E. D. N Y * AUG 2 1974 * 
TIME A.M ...... .. 

P.M ........ :::::::::::::::::::::::::: 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at 4:00 P.M. on the 8th day II 

II 
!I of August, 1974, at Room 290, 225 Cadman Plaza East, in 

I' I ,j the Borough of Brooklyn, City of New York, the plaintiff 

II in the above-entitled action will take the deposition of 
I• 

II CAROL R. FALCONE as a witness upon oral examination, pur-
l' 
I 
1 suant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before the 
I 
lj' Honorable Vincent A. Catoggio, United States Magistrate, 

II or before some other officer authorized by law to take 

II depositions. The oral examination will continue from day 

Jl to day until completed. You are invited to attend and 

II cross-examine. 
II !l Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
!I August 2, 1974 II 
li I, 
i' j! 

II 
d li 
I !I 
I 
I 
! 

II ;! 
il 
II 
II q 
!I 
I 
I 

Yours, etc. , 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

York 

I 
TO: 
SAXE, BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY, ESQS. 

! Attorneys for Defendants 
'I 39 East 68th Street 
1j New York, New York 10021 
n 
il q 

!I v 
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.I 
I 

I 
I 
!I 
ij 

II 
il 
!i 
1
1,· UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
11 EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

!I - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 
ii il UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
I' 
II II 
!I 

Plaintiff, 

- against -II •I 

ll FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
ll TRUMP MANAGEMENT , INC . , 
I, 
II li Defendants. 
., 

!Is IRs 
!! 

- - X 

U, S. u VI, ""--'L 
' ( -' ! 

. ) 1\ Y, * AUG2 1974 
iiME A.M., ....... . p ... , ...... . 

. M .... .. ·-----
* 

NOTICE TO TAKE 
DEPOSITION UPON 
ORAL EXAMINATION 

Civil Action 
No. 73 c 1529 

li :I PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at 10:00 A.M. on the 9th day 
I· 

of August, 197 4, at Room 409, 90-04 l6lst Street, in 

:1 Jamaica, Borough of Queens, City of New York, the plaintiff 
'I 

!I 
!I 
I 
I 

I 
!, 
ii 
ij 
!I 

II 
!I 
II 
l! 
!I 
'I !I i! 
:1 
II 
il 
'I il 
i! 

II 
!I 

in the above-entitled action will take the deposition of 

THOMAS MIRANDA as a witness upon oral examination, pur-

suant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before a 

Notary Public, or before some other officer authorized by 

law to take depositions. The oral examination will continu 

from day to day until completed. You are invited to attend 

and cross-examine. 

Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
August 2, 1974 

Yours, etc., 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

York 

By:./_.· 

II 

il BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY, 
il Attorneys for Defendants 
1139 East 68th Street I New York, New York 10021 

ESQS. 

:I 
II II 
'I. ! 
!I 
" ,I 

e ;y 
I 
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a II 
I' il q 
II 

!! 
!I 
il 
II 
Ji II 
!I 
/j UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT li EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
lj 
ll - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
rl 

II UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
!i 
\I 
H 
:i 

Plaintiff, 

NOTICE TO TAKE 
DEPOSITION UPON 
ORAL EXAMINATION 

i! - against - Civil Action 
No. 73 c 1529 

'I 
11 FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
II TRUMP MANAGEMENT I INC . I 

II 
II_ 
il 
il S I R S 

Defendants. 

- - X 

II 
II 
" 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at 3:00 P.M. on the 9th day 
i! !l of August, 1974, at the Office of the United States 
II 
jl Attorney, 225 Cadman Plaza East, Room G-80, in the 
il 
1
1
i Borough of Brooklyn, City of New York, plaintiff UNITED 

!I STATES OF AMERICA will take the deposition of DONALD 
q 
II TRUMP as an adverse party upon oral examination, pursuant 

I to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before a Notary 

'1 Public, or before some other officer authorized by law to 
!I 
il ii il 
:1 
li 
II !i 
J! 
:I 
!I 
!I 
!I 
II 
II 
!! 
!i 
:I 
!I 
" !I 
;I 
II 
II 
11 
'I ll 
:i 
II ;I 
II 
!I 
.i 

ij 

take depositions. The oral examination will continue from 

day to day until completed. 

cross-examine. 

Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
August 2, 1974 

You are invited to attend and 

Yours, etc., 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

) 
By://' / y I -( -<;· .· /.- / .- / 

S , OR 
--Assistant U. 

Chief, Civil Division 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 i! 

ji 

ll BACON, BOLAN & MANLEY, ESQS • 
Jj Attorneys for Defendants 
\! 39 East 68th Street 
ll New York, New York 
!! 
:I 
!j 

10021 
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,, 
d 
IJ . 

I' 
!I :I 
!J 

ii 
I; n 
!I il ,. 
H 
'ill UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
'I ll ·! - - - - - - - - - -
-I II II UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
!I 
!I 

A.M ................................. . 
.P.M ................................. . 

H ;l 
Plaintiff, 

NOTICE TO TAKE 
DEPOSITION UPON 
ORAL EXAMINATION 

,, 
II :; :I :; 

- against - Civil Action 
No. 73 C 1529 

d FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
i! II TRUMP MANAGEMENT ' INC . ' 
q 
1
1 Defendants. il q 

!I - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 
ij 
!IS I R S H 
;1 
" 11 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at 10:00 A.M. on the 12th day 
H ll !: of August, 1974, at the Office of the United States Attorne , 

!I 900 Ellison Avenue, in Westbury, New York, the plaintiff 
n 
1i H in the above-entitled action will take the deposition of 
•I 

il PAUL ZISELMAN as a witness upon oral examination, pur-n 

!I suant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before a 
il ij Notary Public, or before some other officer authorized by 
L 
illaw to take depositions. The oral examination will continu 
1! 
11 from day to day until completed. You are invited to attend ,I 
II 
H and cross-examine. ;\ 
'I 

!! Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
ii August 2, 1974 
li 
:( 

i! ,I 
tl 
!i ,, 
;I !: 

n 
11 
'I il 
II ., 
!I 
il TO: 
II SAXE , BACON , BOLAN & MANLEY , 
!1 Attorneys for Defendants 
:1 39 East 68th Street 
d 
!J New York, New York 10021 
I :i ,; 

!l 

Yours, etc., 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

ORTE , R. 
Assistant U. S. Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

ESQS. 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK ------------------------------------X 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

- against -

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. ------------------------------------X 
MISS: 

II\! Cl.t;ir· _£:.;. 0 
U. S, UIStJliCf''c:S OffiCE · r * . N.Y. 

JUL * 
.TIME AM 1 

P.M ............. """··J; . ............... .. .... . 
.... ····· 

Civil Action No. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

NOTICE OF MOTION 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that upon the annexed affidavit of 

ROY M COHN, the affidavits and statements attached as exhibits 

hereto and upon all the proceedings heretofore had herein, the 

undersigned will move this Court on the 16th day of August, 1974, 
II' l R$$4 M 

in the Federal Court, Cadman Plaza E., County of Kings, City 

and State of New York, at 10:00 o'clock in the forenoon of that 

day, or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard, for an order 

finding DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN, Esq., Civil Rights Division of the 

Department of Justice, guilty of contempt of the court, and for 

a cease and desist order against the said DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN and 

any and all other agents of the U. S. Government, ordering the 

said parties to cease and desist from making any express or 

implied threats upon any potential witnesses in this proceeding, 

including, but not limited to, former employees of the defendant, 

TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. 

Dated: New York, New York 
July 26, 1974 

- 1 -



Respectfully, 

TO: DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN, Esq. 
Civil Rights Division 
c/o Henry Bracthl, Assistant 
U. s. Attorney 
United States Department of Justice 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK ---------------------------------------X 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

- against -

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP, 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. ---------------------------------------x 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) ss.: 
COUNTY OF NEW YORK) 

Civil Action No. 
73 c 1529 

AFFIDAVIT 

ROY M. COHN, being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I am senior partner in the firm of SAXE, BACON, 

BOLAN & MANLEY, attorneys for the defendants, and make this 

affidavit in support of defendants' motion. 

2. The investigation of this case for the Justice 

Department was initiated by Miss Elyse Goldweber of the Civil 

Rights Division, Department of Justice. At all times that she 

was in charge of the said investigation, Miss Goldweber pursued 

her duties with diligence, but observed legal and ethical 

strictures. 

3. At some time during the investigation, Miss Gold-

weber was replaced by one DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN, Esq. Commencing 

with her entry upon the scene, the investigation, which had 

been conducted within the boundaries of legal propriety, turned 

into a gestapo-like interrogation. Former employees of the 

defendants contacted them to complain that Miss Goldstein had 

berated them with threats of jail and accusations that they were 

- 1 -
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"lying" and had been "taped" by the government while working for 

the defendants. Statements of some of these witnesses describing 

what happened have been obtained and indicate a course of conduct 

requiring action by this Court. (We attach as Exhibit I the 

affidavit of Carol R. Falcone, formerly employed as a clerk by 

Trump Management, Inc.; as Exhibit 2 we attach the affidavit of 

Thomas Miranda, formerly employed by the defendant; as Exhibits 

3 and 4 we attach the witnessed statements of Paul and Paula 

Ziselman, formerly employed as rental agents by the defendant.) 

Miss Goldstein's harassment, abuse and disregard for the rights 

of these prospective witnesses has interfered with, and continues 

to interfere with, the orderly and proper conduct of this case. 

4. On or about June 12, 1974, Miss Goldstein,by-

passing counsel, literally descended upon the defendant with 

representatives of the Civil Rights Division and Student Interns 

demanding entry into the offices of Mr. Donald Trump, officer of 

the defendants' corporation, and production of defendants' 

records. When informed that Miss Goldstein and her associates 

should contact our offices they persisted in their demands, and 

only after contacting the United States Attorney for the Eastern 

District of New York were we able to get them to leave the 

defendants' offices. (See attached letter of Scott E. Manley, 

Exhibit 5.) 

5. In order to be as helpful as possible to Miss 

Goldstein and her associates, we provided them with over fifty 

(50) boxes of defendants' files, which were conveyed to our 

offices and were completely open to them. We were informed by 

Miss Goldstein that this investigation would take only a very 

- 2 -
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II II ,, 
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j, 
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"short period" when in fact she and her associates spent from 

two to 

thereby 

work. 

three weeks 

completely 

examining the defendants' files in our offices,, 

disrupting the functioning of our firm's legal 

6. The conclusion to be drawn from this conduct is the 

correctness of our allegation that there is no case here and 

that there was none when the well-publicized charge was made. 

Having made such a serious legal charge and having accomplished 

a publicity blast, the plaintiff is now attempting to build a 

case by illegal means and to lend artistic verisimilitude to 

its unsupported complaint. 

7. I have been informed by representatives of the 

defendant of the recent activities of Miss Goldstein, badgering 

and threatening past employees of the defendant, and submit 

that her tactics are completely out of character for a repre-

sentative of the United States Government. 

WHEREFORE, I respectfully request that the defendants' 

I motion by granted in all respects. 

II 

Sworn to before me this 

;f day of July, 1974 

Notary Publ1c · 
. 

'l-IAROLI? N<;W york 
NotarY PubhC.;1.887n20 t _ . 

No .. J "' coun Y -nt 
,, .. e IV\inch 30, 191l' ¥ 

c_omrois.sion __ -------
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WILLIAM PREISSi 
Noterv Public, St,te of New Vor!C 

No. 8431925 , 
. Qualified in Queens Couni'f ' 
Commission Expires ,March 30, 



July 22nd, 197 4 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

I, Thomas Miranda, residing at 3989 - 50th 
Street, Woodside, New York, N.Y. 11377 seek 
protection from the harassment of the U. S. Depart-
ment of Justice and specifically Ms. llinna Goldstein. 

Despite the fact that I have stated on numerous 
occasions that I have never discriminated or have 
never been told to discriminate while working for 
Trump Management, and although I have no great 
liking for Trump Management, I have constantly and 
persistently been called upon by Ms. Goldstein to go 
against Trump Management, even though, if I did, I 
would be lying. 

Additionally, she stated that if I did not cooperate 
with her and in effect "lie" in order to help her in her 
ambitions and winning her case, " I will be thrown into 
jail". 

I can no longer tolerate this persecution and am 
asking for the immediate ceasation of any further dealings 
with Ms. Goldstein. 

I refuse to change my testimony in that I will not 
lie under any circumstances regardless of Ms. Goldstein's 
unyielding threats. 

Additionally, I would like to add that I am a pan ish 
speaking Puerto Rican hired directly by Mr. llina d Trump. 

Sworn to before me this 
22nd day of July 197 4 z_ 

Thomas Miranda County of Kings 
State of New Yor/-7 

_. Wl!IIA"U -
N'olsrv Public, State of New Yor!C 

No. 8431925 
Qualified in Queons Count! · 

Commiiiion Expires March 30, 197f> 

£xttt BiT Z 



TO IT CO}ICFRN: 

100 Jedwood Place 
Valley Stream, L.I., N.Y. 
July 19th, 1974 

I, make the following true and 
correct statements of my own free will: 

I was formerly employed by Trump Management on a part-
time basis as a rental agent at Beach Haven Apartments, 2611 W. 
2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York. During my period of employment 
I personally never discriminated against any prospective tenants 
regardless of race, color or creed. 

Additionally, I have never been instructed by any 
superior of the Trump Office, nor was it ever. suggested or 
stated to me in any way, manner or form to follow a racially 
discriminatory rental policy while I was employed by this 
company. In fact, during such employment I rented many apart-
ments to minorities, including blacks. 

Despite the above mentioned, I was visited by a 
representative of the Justice Department who stated that an 
"FBI Agent" would be back to continue the interrogation. These 
statements were made in a threatening manner and I strongly resent 
and object to it. I was especially harassed and intimidated 
by a Donna Goldstein and in my opinion, her unethical conduct 
in itself should be a matter of investigation. 

// 



TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

100 Jedwood Place 
Valley Stream, L.I., N.Y. 
July 19th, 1974 

PH-\} LA fy 
I, Zis"elman hereby make the following 

statements of my own free will, which are true and 
correct. 

I was formerly employed by Trump Management 
on a part-time basis as a rental agent at Beach Haven 
Apartments, 2611 W. 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York. 
During my employment under no circumstances did I ever 
discriminate, nor was I ever told to discriminate by 
any superior of Trump Management against any person 
regardless of race, color or ir.ing the ren. tal 
of an apartment. I , ) · , 

{ / ( // _/! / ·'?,,4"' , / 
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. 39 EAST 66"' STREET t:7 . 

JOHN GODFRE"l' SAXE 
f:OGE:RS H. E!ACON (1919-l'i>SZ) 

ROY H. COHN. 
scoTl' E. r.JANI..i!:"l' ""D t>;OIA>o.>.) 
MICHAEL. R052:N 

DANIEL .J. ORISCOL.L 

1-l.>.ROL.t:l SCHWARTZ 
l-.lEL.VYN RUSIN 
.JEFFRC::Y A. SHU NAN 

:t-lEW YOR.t\, NF;W' "':(OBI-( 10021 

(212) 47Z-J.<IOO 

.-

... 

THOXAS A. BOLhN 
COVU!'E:I-

·•. LORIN OUCK.MAH 

. :_ 

.· 

June 13r -1974 

BY HAND 

· Heriry ·A. ·Bracthl, Assistant UoS .. At·torney 
·nonna F. Goldstein, Attorney-Civil Rights 

. ·-Division . · 
United S·l:ate·s · Departmen-t of \'Justice 
Federal Building 
Brooklyn, .New York 

-· ·.· 

Dear Mr •. · Brac·i:.hl : 

I ·am ·in receip·t of your lett:er. dated. t:odi';"y 'i·lhich. 'i•18S 1•7.::3.-t:-. 
ing .for me at my office .upon my re-l.:Ul:Tt Lcorn t:he C"ohe'n: \r, 
Cdhen ·trial ·this afternoon. 5 : 0 0 

i-Je :stand . ready ··to let you begin inspecting and copying :i:'<?.cordH ·. 
in u.·s.:A.: v. Trump tomorrm1· 14 r as per· my 
ment \V'ith Miss Goldstein reached over the- t.(:;!J.ephone on 
du.y.. :t-r'nile I. 1::he 'i.:hat. led t.o youx 
dr21scend:Lng upon the. Trnmp· o-ffic<-:.:;f,: \•-?.it.h. J::l.ve 

·wec1nesci'ay ba?-9"i"0g on ·the door:::> un_d dema.nd::L!lg {:.() be: 
· allowed to swann. haphazardly ·through aLL of: t:.be' TJ::urop files 

a.nd to totally disrup-t ·Chei:;::- daLLy bus:Lne::-:s. :cout .. :Lne 1 I do not: · 
feel t.b.a·t there is any point is t.he a:cg1jj;nerd: a.ny 
ther. I tvould assmn.e that your :i.;:: t.he. as oux.s 
in .this matter, namely; o:cde:cly ·pJ:e.-'·tria.l d.:i.:::-:-
covery so as to enable both sides to . cont.inue prej?arinq :tor 
a fair trial in t.his · 1}.\'lv;a:cd e:r1d 1 _\,Te look 
'i.vard ·to \>Tith you Friday xno:cn:i.!'J9 at. cnu: off:Lces. 

Miss .Goldstein and I agreed t.hat t)!c v:rouJ.c1. ·t:akc.. 
placo at. my offices ins·tew.c1 of r.rrump so u.s ·to no·l: ha:ve :·t:o un-
necessarily ·totally disrup-t t.h2 'J::r:tunr) 
·l:::in.e6 I \·muld. asstw.a. U1a·t by your CJ.crl,cJ.nd in .ymJJ:- J.si:te):- Lo 
i tspect t:he materials a·t Trnm9 offices ·UJ.at:. His;:;; .Goldsi:ein :ne-
(rf-. 'Q J...'nr:_..r,rto-. yo" o·"' r)--11- , • ., .. ,'l ''(j'"!'(>(>)"'i(')'j·'- J .. (.) S-\y('· .('('[ L .. ,. _, ;:; .. Lt.,.,.. 1: . ._ w. ..J.C \. L...__._. .•• ... - \ - .l- . l-J.. .-..) ) L.L(JJ_}i .. 

£x. Ht8r/· S" ;·I,; a:;::-e to provide you '\·lith OV\:3):- 1,000 files· Friday on 
.It bo·th old and curren·t Jce.nan.ts of Trump. J..:cc<:n1sc '.h:-urnp Cr.:.nno·t: 
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function at all with all of its current leases and files out of 
its ofi:ices, vre \..Jill have to out a schedule v7hereby as soon 
as you have completed inspecti:-'.g and copying ·this very substan-
tial amount of material that ·t.his material \vill be returned to 
the office· and. additiona.1 material ·Hill _be r::en'c to our 

· offices for your inspectiono 

With regard ·J:.o ·the deposi·tions o:C further Tx:·ump personnel ten..:_ 
atively scheduled· to begin on Sune.l8, I.alJ.:·eady have advised 
the Governmen·t that this dab3 is :br.possible o.s both Mr.. Cohn 
and myself .tvill still be on trial before Justice . Gon1ez in t.he 
Supreme Court of the· State ·of Ne·w York in Cohen v. ·Cohen and :. 

·Judge absolutely refuses. ·to hear any application for 
. even a half-day ··adjournment i-n. that .· I will supply you. 
·with. alternate dates. as quickly as possible and I am sure '\•70 
. can come to an solut:.iou \·Jhich \vill nei theJ: delay 
the matter unnecessarily for .yon ·nor· prejudice the. r:Lghb::: of ·. 
the defendants ·by denying ·them ·the right to counsel 1n ... t.:hese 

. I liJOUld. respectf·nliy -t:ha.t is complete.ly 
unfair on your part ·to set: 'fo:r::.ch in 3che vmy of 
3:00 deadlines to respond or t8lse in.. vievi of the fact. that 
you are comple·tely ·a'\'rare of bo·th 1·11:. · Cohn. and myself being 
on trial. before Judge· Gomez f:t:om 9:00 to 30 daily.. we· 
·are completely ready ·to coopera:te in. discovery; ·all vle 
quire is a li t.tle time in vihich ·to assemble! ma tt;e:r.' in vie.\•1 

. of our ex-tremely heavy prese:r..d.: litigatior,_. eeh.edule. . . . 

Finally r . I sincerely "t'lish t:.hat o:t least f:com Jch::Ls point for- ' 
\'lard., tha·t t.·re could attempt t.o cooperate in a.J.J. of 
these mat·terso. If your goal :;b:; to expedit:e e.ncl to 
prepare for a fair for both sides as is ours, I th:i.nk. .. · 
that. this end \.oJonld be better seJ:-vect by coc>pe:ca·t:i.on and ob-
. serva·tion of the basic courte;:J.ies :normally bet.v_reen. . 
priva-t.e counsel in litiga·tion insb?u.d. of eorrt:imJ.a.l Jchrea.t:s 

· ·b]. t.ha Government: and its t:rea:tip.q t:he rules of civil p:co-. 
cedure as some kind of undevia:U.ng Bible v:hich cannot benci 

timetables for even a fe":f;t to p:cornot.e t.he e11d.n .of: 
··.just: ice;, 

SEN/a.p 
cc: Honu n.. Nsahe:c 

·unt.ed St:;;:1:tes D:i..s·trict ,Judge 
Uni i::ec1 S·ta·tes Courthouse· 

Ca.d..-.ctc:m Plaza B?..st 
Brooklyn, Ne'.v- York 11201 

Honorable Vincent Catoggio 
United States Magistrate 
United States 
Eastern District of NAw 
225 Cadman Plaza East 

. Ve:x:y t::culy yours r 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

F' , 
u tNc{rf;-. ED · S. DJ5rlli •\K S OFFi0 
F&lR THt;C7 COURr'' E ..,.-- E. D. tV y 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK AUG 5 1974 * 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

) 
Plaint iff, ) 

) 
v. ) 

) 
FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. , ) 

) 
Defendants. ) ________________________ ) 

TiME A.M 
P.t.l.·.· .·.·.·.· .·.· .·.· .· ...• 

.... 
CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 (EN) 

RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES 
TO DEFENDANTS ' MOT ION OF 
JULY 26, 1974 

The United States of America, plaintiff, responding 

on its own behalf and on behalf of its attorney, Donna F. 

Goldstein, to defendants' ''Notice of Motion" seeking an ad-

judication of contempt against said attorney and a "cease and 

desist" order against the United States, alleges as follows: 

1. The United States denies each and every allegation 

of improper conduct by Donna F. Goldstein or by any other 

representative of the United States in connection with the 

interviews of Carol R. Falcone, Thomas Miranda, Paul Ziselman, 

Paula Ziselman, or any other prospective witness or other 

person in this case. 

2. The United States alleges that said allegations of 

improper conduct, including allegations of threats and other 

devices to influence the testimony of prospective witnesses, 

are false and scurrilous, and consequently constitute an 

abuse of the processes of this Court. 

WHEREFORE the United States prays as follows: 

1. That expedited discovery be had with respect to 

the allegations of misconduct by the United States and its 

attorney; 



2. That depositions taken during said discovery be 

supervised by a master; 

3. That a full evidentiary hearing be held before 

this Honorable Court on August 16, 1974, as prayed for in 

defendants' Notice of Motion; 

4. That following the evidentiary hearing, the alle-

gations of misconduct by the United States and its attorney 

be stricken as scandalous, in accordance with Rule 12(f) of 

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and the motions for con-

tempt and a cease and desist order be in all respects denied; 

and 

5. That following this evidentiary hearing, this Honorable 

Court determine whether there has been an abuse of its pro-

cesses and, if so, enter any appropriate disciplinary or other 

Order. 

The United States further prays for such additional 

relief as the interests of justice may require, together with 

the costs and disbursements of this proceeding. 

JAMES PORTER 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 

Respectfully submitted, 

Deputy Assistant Attorney General 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, Chief 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG, Attorney 
Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD ) 
TRUMP and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, ) 
INC. , ) 

) 
Defendants. ) _________________________ ) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 (EN) 

REPORT OF THE UNITED STATES 
TO THE COURT ON THE STATUS 
OF DISCOVERY 

In accordance with the instructions of the Honorable Vincent 

Catoggio, United States Magistrate, plaintiff, United States of 

An1erica, submits its report on the status of discovery in this 

action. On May 3, 1974, Magistrate Catoggio made reference to the 

obligation of defense counsel as well as the Court to expedite the 

action in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 3614, and rebuked defense counsel 

for not having done so. 

I. DISCOVERY IN PROCESS DELAYS AND DIFFICULTIES 

A. Depositions 

Prior to the hearing of May 3, 1974, plaintiff encountered 

substantial difficulties in taking any depositions because of 

defense counsel's continuous cancellations and rescheduling. 



This activity resulted in a substantial waste of the time and . 
resources of counsel for plaintiff, as described in detail in 

plaintiff's memorandum in support of its motion for sanctions, 

dated April 19, 1974, at pp. 4-6. Several notices of depo-

sition were outstanding at the time of that hearing, but 

plaintiff agreed to postpone these until defendants had answered 

the interrogatories propounded to them in November of the previous 

year. Abbreviated and incomplete answers to these interrogatories 

were finally provided on May 16, 1974. (See pp. infra). 

Thereafter, plaintiff attempted to reschedule depositions, as 

follows: 

1. On May 28, 1974, Ms. Donna Goldstein, a new attorney 

for the plaintiff, replacing Ms. Elyse Goldweber, telephoned 

Mr. Scott Manley in order to advise him that the plaintiff was 

noticing depositions for June 18-20, 1974.!/ In deference to 

Mr. Cohn's busy schedule, Mr. Manley was provided with an oppor-

tunity to propose alternative dates within the next few days. 

2. Between May 28 and June 3, Ms. Goldstein telephoned 

Mr. Manley on at least three occasions to discuss the contemplated 

depositions. Mr. Manley proposed no alternative dates on the two 

!f These depositions were noticed on May 30, 1974. 
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occasions he was reached, and failed to call back in response 
. 

to the message left on the third call. 

3. On June 5, 1974, Ms. Goldstein sent a special delivery 

letter to Mr. Manley indicating that the government intended to 

proceed with the depositions as noticed, since no alternative 

dates had been offered. 

4. On June 11, counsel for the plaintiff received a 

letter from Mr. Manley dated June 6 cancelling these depositions 

on the grounds that they conflicted with Mr. Cohn's schedule, 

but promised to suggest alternative dates the following 

5. Counsel for plaintiff periodically visited the offices 

of defense counsel between June 14 and June 28, 1974, as a part 

of the records inspection described below. On June 26, after 

an inquiry by counsel for plaintiff, Mr. Manley stated that firm 

dates for the taking of depositions would be provided no later 

than July 2, and that in no event would these dates be later 

than the third week in July. 

6. Having heard nothing from defense counsel by July 3, 

Ms. Goldstein telephoned Mr. Manley and was told that he still 

could not provide firm dates for the scheduling of depositions. 

*I This letter included a list of those employees scheduled to 
depose who were no longer employed by the defendants. This infor-
mation, which plaintiff had been attempting to secure for many 
months, was to be given to the plaintiff no later than May 13, 
1974, at the direction of Magistrate Catoggio at the May 3 
hearing. 

- 3 -



Mr. Manley promised, however, to call back on July 8 with . 
recommended dates. 

7. Mr. Manley did not call back on July 8, or for that 

matter, thereafter. On July 9, plaintiff served notice on 

defense counsel of the scheduling of depositions of eleven 

agents of Trump Management for July 30 - August 2, 1974. 

Subpoenas were served on each of the prospective deponents. 

8. On July 26, 1974, Mr. Cohn, by telephone, advised 

Mr. Goldberg that the eleven scheduled depositions would have 

to be taken on July 30-31 only, since his schedule could not 

permit him to attend at any other time. Yielding to these 

time strictures, plaintiff took the depositions of eight 

agents on July 30 and 31, 1974. The first attempt to take 

these depositions had been made on 19, 1974. 

B. Inspection of Defendants' Records 

On May 6, 1974, plaintiff served and filed a Rule 34 

Request for Production of Documents on defense counsel Roy 

On May 15, 1974, Mr. Scott Manley, an associate of Mr. Cohn, 

telephonically requested that plaintiff's former attorney Ms. 

Elyse Goldweber forward to him a copy of the Request, saying 

that he knew nothing about it. This was done immediately. 

!f See Appendix A. 
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On May 28, 1974, during the course of one of their 

discussions about the scheduling of depositions, Ms. Goldstein 

reminded Mr. Manley of the proposed records inspection. 

Mr. Manley again stated that he knew nothing about the proposed 

inspection, and requested that Ms. Goldstein forward him another 

copy of the Request, which she did on the same 

On at least two occasions between May 28 and June 3, 

Ms. Goldstein telephonically reminded Mr. Manley that repre-

sentatives of the plaintiff would travel to New York on June 12, 

1974, to inspect records as noticed. At no time during these 

conversations did Mr. Manley express any objection to the 

inspection or indicate that the records would not be made 

available at the designated time and place. Defendants also 

filed no objection to the records inspection, nor did they 

suggest any alternative site or date, or any limitation on what 

the United States would be permitted to inspect. 

On June 12, three attorneys for the United States and 

two law clerks arrived at 10:00 a.m. at the offices of Trump 

Management, 2611 West 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York, in accor-

dance with the notice of records inspection. The Trump 

and employees present expressed surprise at their arrival. 

!1 See Appendix B. 
- 5 -



Mr. Stuart Hyman, controller of Trump Management, asked 

Mr. Henry Brachtl, Assistant United States Attorney, into his 

office. The other attorneys, Norman Goldberg and Donna 

Goldstein, and the assistants,Frank Phillips and Larry Rogers, 

law clerks at the United States Attorney's office, remained in 

the anteroom of the Trump offices. After approximately ten 

to fifteen minutes, Mr. Hyman·-askeli the remaining representatives 

of the United States into his office and stated that he had not 

been informed that a records inspection was scheduled. He further 

stated that be could not produce any records until he contacted 

defendants' counsel and that he had been unable to reach counsel. 

Ms. Goldstein placed a call to Mr. Manley from Mr. Hyman's 

office. Mr. Manley was not in and a message was left to have 

Mr. Manley contact Ms. Goldstein at the United States Attorney's 

office. Plaintiff's representatives then left the Trump Offices 

and returned to the United States Attorney's office. Contrary 

to the allegations in Mr. Roy Cohn's affidavit, there was no 

banging on doors, overreaching, or other improper conduct by 

any of the representatives of the United States. Mr. Cohn was 

not present at the Trump offices, nor were any calls placed to 

the United States Attorney's office by defendants or their counsel 

complaining about the conduct of representatives of the plaintiff. 

- 6 -



On June 12, 1974, at approximately 11:30 a.m. Mr. Manley 

telephoned Ms. Goldstein at the office of the United States Attorney 

for the Eastern District of New York and, for the first time, 

expressed his objections to Plaintiff's Request. He claimed that 

he had communicated these objections earlier. Ms. Goldstein informed 

him that no objections had been transmitted, either formally or 

informally, and that if defendants would not permit a records inspec-

tion to begin, as noticed, plaintiff would have no recourse but to 

apply to the Court once again for appropriate sanctions under Rule 

37(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. After some negotia-

tions between counsel, plaintiff was authorized to begin inspect-

ing defendants' records on Friday, June 14, 1974, at the law offices 

of defense counsel. 

When plaintiff's representatives arrived at these offices on 

the morning of June 14, Mr. Fanelli, a clerk to Mr. Manley, handed 

them a letter from Mr. Manley which characterized their conduct at 

the offices of Trump Management on June 12, as "descending upon the 

Trump offices with five stormtroopers • banging on the doors and 

demanding to be allowed to swarm haphazardly through all the Trump 

files and to totally disrupt their daily business routine." (See 

Letter of Mr. Manley dated June 13, 1974, a copy of which was sent 

to this Court.) Counsel for plaintiff responded by a brief letter 

of June 14 denying the veracity of these rhetorical flourishes. 

- 7 -



From Thursday, June 13, 1974, until the completion of the 

records inspection, counsel for plaintiff communicated almost 

exclusively with Mr. Fanelli since neither Mr. Cohn nor Mr. Manley 

was then available. On Tuesday afternoon, June 18, 1974, after 

2-112 days of records inspection, Mr. Fanelli informed counsel for 

the plaintiff that records would not be available for inspection on 

the following day, June 19. However, Mr. Fanelli did give assurances 

that records would be available on Thursday and Friday, June 20 and 

21, beginning at 10:00 a.m. 

On June 20, however, the records were not made available at 

10:00 a.m., as agreed. At 11:30 a.m., Mr. Fanelli informed 

plaintiff's counsel that the automobile carrying the records had 
*I broken down and that records would not be produced until 2:00 p.m.-

Records were inspected on Thursday afternoon, June 20, and Friday, 

June 21. On June 19 and 20 alone, plaintiff's two counsel from 

Washington lost a day and a half of their time for no purpose as a 

result of these cancellations. 

!I When the records arrived on Thursday afternoon, the driver of 
the automobile, Mr. Simon Wiss, recounted to plaintiff's counsel 
the many errands he had to run for Trump Management by auto that 
morning, and extolled the virtues and dependability of the auto-
mobile carrying the records. 

- 8 -



On Friday, June 21, 1974, Mr. Fanelli indicated that additional 

records could not be available for inspection until Wednesday, June 

26, 1974. Counsel for plaintiff returned to Washington, D. C. and 

travelled back to New York to complete the records inspection on 

June 26, 27, and 28, 1974. Thus, during a period of thirteen work-

ing days, records were made available for a little over seven days. 

Not only time but travel money could have been saved had these 

interruptions not occurred. 

* * * * 
We are reluctant to belabor the Court with the foregoing 

details. We believe, however, that while each item individually 

may be relatively minor, the total impact has been to waste a large 

amount of the time and money of counsel for the United States. 

While it is petty harassment, it seems to us harassment none the 

less, quite out of keeping with Magistrate Catoggids Jirections 

of May 3. Moreover, in view of the repeated effcrts to deal with 

defense counsel about this records inspection, the allegations in 

defendants' papers that the United States tried to "by-pass" counsel 

are without foundation in fact. 

- 9 -



'II. "DEFENDANTS' FAILURE TO PROVIDE DISCOVERABLE INFOR}IATION 
RE0UESTED BY PLAINTIFF 

A. Defendants' Answers to Plaintiff's Interrogatories 

Plaintiff's First Interrogatories to defendants were pro-

pounded on November, 1973, and were not answered or objected to for 

more than six months. On May 16, 1974, after two Orders of this 

Court directing defendants to answer the Interrogatories, defendants 

finally submitted their response. That submission consisted of 

slightly more than two pages.*/ In response to at least three 

interrogatories, defendants indicated that responses would be forth-

corning by the following week (letter from Scott Manley of May 16, 

more than ten weeks since that promise was made, plain-

tiff is still waiting for defendants to complete their answers. 

As noted below, the information defendants have failed to provide 

goes to the heart of the case. 

While this memorandum is not intended to be a substitute for 

a renewed Rule 37 motion dealing with the deficiencies of defendants' 

*I The unusual brevity and incompleteness of these responses may 
be explained, in part, by the fact that on May 15, 1974, one day 
before the interrogatories were due, defendant Donald Trump called 
former Departmental attorney Goldweber and indicated that he had 
only recently heard about his obligation to answer the interroga-
tories and wanted to know if there were any penalties for filing 
untimely answers. Ms. Goldweber referred Mr. Trump to his counsel. 

See Appendix C. 
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responses to Interrogatories, and while we wish to reserve our right 

'to file such a motion in the future, we believe that a brief examina-

tion of some of defendants' responses should be brought to the 

Court's attention. 

(a) Interrogatory 5, requests 16 items of basic 

information for each apartment complex owned or managed 

by defendants. The information sought includes a racial 

breakdown of the tenant force of each building. In 

response, defendants referred to two documents which 

defendants claimed to have previously furnished to 

plaintiff. One of those documents had in fact been 

furnished to plaintiff. Plaintiff has no record of ever 

having received the other, which is purported to be a 

memorandum to Ms. Goldweber dated March 15, 1973. The 

document that was furnished to plaintiff merely con-

tains a list of the Trump buildings and their super-

intendents as of October, 1972, almost two years ago. 

In eight months, defendants have surely had the 

time to write to their superintendents and to 

provide racial occupancy information in at least 

approximate form, particularly since Donald Trump 

characterized the racial makeup of Trump buildings 
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in an affidavit December 11, 1973, but they have 

made no attempt to do so. Statistical information 

of this kind is, of course, important in cases of 

this kind. See United States v. Real Estate Develop-

ment Corporation, 347 F. Supp. 776 (N.D. Miss. 1972). 

Defendants have an obligation to secure such informa-

tion from their superintendents. City of Philadelphia 

v. Westinghouse Electric Corp., 205 F. Supp. 831 

(E.D. Pa. 1962). 

(b) In response to Interrogatory 7, which requests 

the name, address, race, job title, job location and 

dates of employment for each and every employee of 

Trump, the defendants attached Exhibit 1 to their 

Answers. That Exhibit, however, contains only the last 

name and first initial of black and Puerto Rican 

employees of the defendants - facts insufficient to 

locate them for interview - and none of the 

other requested information was provided.*/ 

Plaintiff has subsequently secured some of this information during 
the inspection of defendants' records. The identities of former 
employees, of course, constitute critical information. See United 
States v. Youritan Construction Corp., 370 F. Supp. 643 (N.D. Calif. 
1973), and cases there cited, holding that proof of discriminatory 
instructions to employees meets the Attorney General's burden of 
proof. 
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The names of black tenants (Interrogatory 11), 

complaints about racial discrimination (Interro-

gatory 13) and the identities of tenants who 

secured apartments after complaining or threaten-

ing to complain about racial policies (Interroga-

tory 14) have never been provided by defendants. 

B. Failure to Produce Rejected Applications 

In Plaintiff's Interrogatories to Defendants served on 

November 7, 1973, plaintiff first requested that defendants 

furnish certain information relating to rejected applicants. On 

March 28, 1974, defendant Donald Trump testified, on deposition, 

that there was no particular policy with respect to either retaining 

or destroying these records and that some of these records may 

still exist. (Dep. p. 33). Mr. Trump also stated that some of 

these records may also have been destroyed since the Interrogator-

ies were propounded (Id., p. 99), so that defendants' capacity to 

answer those interrogatories calling for information as to rejected 

applicants was impaired, if not destroyed, by their own conduct. 

During the 
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. 
'taking of this deposition, Mr. Cohn did, however, provide a measure 

of assurance that his clients would preserve all relevant records, 

including those pertaining to rejected applicants. (Id., pp. 99-100). 

During the June 1974 records inspection and after repeated 

requests for the production of rejected applications, plaintiff was 

provided with a copy of a memorandum from Mr. Stuart Hyman, comp-

troller of Trump Management, stating that "effective March 28, 1974" 

there were no rejected applications.*/ Whatever the meaning of 

Hyman's memorandum, it taxes credulity to suggest that between 

March 28, 1974 - the day that the defendants are supposed to have 

stopped destroying these applications - and June 28, 1974, the 

defendants, who have 2500 - 3000 vacancies a year (Hyman Dep. p. 73) 

and who have repeatedly testified through their agents that appli-

cations are closely reviewed, have not rejected a single applica-

Defendants now go even further than Mr. Hyman's memorandum and 

claim that there have never been any rejected applications. Minerva 

Gilbert, office manager for the past seven years, who has the 

See Appendix D. 

On July 3, 1974, we sent a letter to Mr. Manley reiterating our 
concern that none of the rejected applications had been produced and 
requesting that the defendants furnish us with an explanation for 
the reproduction of these documents prior to this hearing but no 
explanation has been forthcoming. 
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responsibility for approving or rejecting applications, testified 

during the depositions taken on July 30 and 31 that she cannot 

recall ever having rejected a single application for tenancy. 

Each of the six superintendents*/ \vhose depositions were taken on 

July 30 and 31 likewise stated that even though they accepted 

applications from anyone, they have never had an application 

rejected by the main office. The six superintendents whose deposi-

tions were taken were also served with subpoenas directing them 

to bring certain documents including ''records of the payment of 

deposits in the possession, custody or control of the deponent." 

Only one superintendent produced these records (Raymond Travis), 

the others st3ting that no such records existed. 

Mr. Travis, superintendent at Wedgewood Hall Apartments for 

the past five years, also produced a book of receipts which he 

described as having been supplied by the main office when he was 

first hired as superintendent. Mr. Travis tesitfied that he was 

instructed to give a receipt to each applicant when a deposit is 

submitted with the application. A number of these receipts are 

marked "refunded." \.Jhile early in his deposition Mr. Travis stated 

that he has never had an application rejected, he later explained 

*I Mr. Skender Fici, Mr. Guido Lara, Mr. Walter Rohr, Mr. Daniel 
Borth, Mr. Joseph Zecher and Mr. Raymond Travis. 
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'that'""refunded" signifies applications which were rejected by 

Ms. Gilbert. In Mr. Travis' receipt book alone, which is used for 

an apartment complex of only approximately 94 units, there were 

at least six such "refunded" receipts since the date of service of 

plaintiff's interrogatories in November 1973 requesting such infor-

mation. Accordingly, it is apparent that rejected applications 

exist but that information about them has not been made available 

to plaintiff. 

CONCLUSION 

While some progress has been made in discovery following 

the hearing before Magistrate Catoggio, defendants remain in sub-

stantial noncompliance with their responsibilities in relation to 

discovery. Some of the noncompliance involves material critical 

to the disposition of this case, while other conduct has been of 

a harassing and disruptive nature. Even aside from the false and 

scurrilous charges assembled by defendants against one of plaintiff's 

counsel,*/ there has been sufficient resistance to the orderly 

conduct of discovery to warrant consideration of a new motion 

*I On or about J,uly 26, 1974, defendants noticed a motion for a 
contempt citation against Ms. Goldstein. While we generally avoid 
the argument by inflammatory rhetoric which has characterized 
defense counsel's submissions, we can only say that, for reasons 
set forth in our other papers filed herewith, these charges are 
utterly fantastic. 
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for sanctions after present discovery proceedings have been 

completed. 

JAJ.'1ES PORTER 
Assistant United States 

Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 

Respectfully submitted, 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

NORMAN P. GOLDBERG 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

/' 

DONNA F. GOLfiSTEiN 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



T. 5-6-74 

JSP:FES:ESG:cmk 
DJ 175-52-28 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 

APPENDIX A 

Saxe, Bacon, Bolan and Hanley 
39 E3st 68th Street 
New York, York 10021 

Re: United States v. Fred c. Trump, et al., 
Civil A(.!tion 73 C 1529 

Dear Roy: 

Please find enclosed two copies of Plaintiff's 

B.equeat for Produc:tion oi Documents. 

ce: Records 
Chrono 
Goldweber. 
Trial File 
Hold 

Sincerely, 

J. STAs.'t1..EY POTTINGER 
Assistant Attonley General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 
ELYSE S. COLDWEBER 

Attorney 
Housing Section 
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APPENDIX B 

T. 5/28/74 
JSP:tx;:mlp 
DJ-175-52-28 

MAY 2 81974 
• 

Scott Manley, Esq. 
·Bacon, Slolan & I:.Snley 

39 East 68th Screet 
New York, New York 10021 

Re: United States v. Fred C. Trump, et al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Mr. Manley: 

In response to our telephone conversation of May 28, 
1974, please find enclosed a copy of Plaintiff's Request 
for Product ion of Rr.heduled t•; co-mmence on 
June 12. Altr.J, ;;lease nor.:.e the at:t:;;ac:h.ed proposed 
schedule for continuit'lg dcpoait.h.:ms of tbe azents and 
employees of 1"rump Hanagement, Inc. Fon'lll notice will 
be forc.heoming. These depositions had been previously 
eeheduled.for April 18- April 22, 1974. 

... K. for your cooparation in ttds matter. I 
look forward to hearing from you aooa to confiTDl the 
attached discovery schedule. 

ce: Records / 
Chrono 
Ms. Goldstei 
Trial_File 
Henry Brachtl 

Sincerely • 

J. POTTINGER 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 
DONNA GOLDSTEIN 

Attorney 
Housing Section 



APPENDIX C · .. 

YJ/U»n/, !?Jc,fan/ f?C vf;{.FU/.'"'j:t (/ 
· · 39 EAST G8TH STREET · · .. ; ,.. ,. 

'· • ;:, f\:. 
7' ' , ) ... . .... ;,. .. 

NEW YORK.'NEW YORK 10021 J /!' . 
.JOHN GODFREY SAXE (1909·195Jl 
ROGERS H. BACON (1919 ·1962\ 

ROY M. COHill ' 

i.-.:· C212l 472- t400 A. BoLAN 
DOCKr- COUNSEL . - -r-,_D -I C.· 

SCOTT E. MAN LEY ITT EO ILLINOIS AND INDIANA) 

MICHAEL ROSEN 

DANIEL .J. DRISCOLL 

HAROLD SCHWARTZ 
MELVYN RUBIN 
.JEFFREY A SHUMAN 
LORIN DUCKMAN 

Miss Donna Goldstein 
United States Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

MAY 2? bt4 
May 16, 1974 CIVIL. RIGHTs 

Re: United States v. Fred C. et al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Miss Goldstein: 

Enclosed please find a copy defendants' 
ans\vers to plaintiff's interrogatories. .It is my under-
standing speaking with Miss Gold\·::e::;:r that you are 
taking her place on this case since she has left to work 
in New York. 

As you will note from our :c.r..:s;-:; . ..;ers, most of the 
information requested by the Governmen:': i . ..n the interroga-
tories already has been supplied in the fiv::'.! examinations 
before trial which you already have ca::;:."7' et::d. \\fe could 
not make specific reference to page due to the 
fact that the transcripts have not cor.pleted. You 
will no+:::: u·J.at there are three questio::s rEquiring detailed 
in-F:..-..rmation from records, which Stuart ::::-;-:.::ia:rn has been compil-
ing and hopes to complete next week. re '\'llll supply you 
with this information as soon as Mr. completes same. 

SEM/ew 

cc: Hon. Vincent Catoggio 
United States.Magistrate 
Eastern District of New York 
United States Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Scott E. Manley 

.. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that I have on this date mailed copies of 

the following documents, postage prepaid, to: 

Roy Cohn, Esquire 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

1. Response of the United States to 
Defendants' Motion of July 26, 1974 

2. Supporting affidavits 

3. Order to Show Cause (proposed) 

4. Memorandum of the United States 

5. Plaintiff's Interrogatories to Defendants 

6. Report of the United States to the Court 
on the Status of Discovery 

_, 
August 5 , 1974 

Plaintiff 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR TpE I L E D 
p.; f: 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK U. S Dr::r:rcT COU:H E.D. 
"'J,Y 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) __________________________) 

AUG 6 1974 

.A-11. ...•.•...•...• 
P.r.l ..............• 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE 

The United States having applied to this Court by affi-

davit for an Order to Show Cause, and it appearing that a hear-

ing is scheduled before this Court on August 16, 1974 to deter-

mine motions involving alleged misconduct by one of the 

attorneys in this action, which alleged misconduct is denied; 

and it further appearing that expedited discovery is necessary 

and appropriate, so that this motion may be expeditiously 

determined in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 3614; and it further 

appearing that the nature of the respective parties' allegations 

justifies judicial supervision of depositions relating to the 

pending motion; and the Court having considered the pertinent 

submissions, 

NOW, THEREFORE, upon the affidavit of FRANK E. SCHWELB 

and for good and sufficient reason, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that defendants show cause, if any 

there be, in the chambers of this Court at 225 Cadman Plaza, 

Brooklyn, New York, on August 1974, at l Oo f..M., or as 

soon thereafter as counsel may be heard, why 



(1) defendants should not be required to 

answer plaintiff's interrogatories with respect 

to the pending motion within five days of 

service thereof; and 

(2) the depositions with respect to this 

motion should not be conducted under the 

supervision of the Court. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that service upon counsel for 
.. 

defendants shall be done by no later 
() .. , I •oO P. IV\ 'J 

than LP 1 · , and that this shall constitute 

good and sufficient service. 

IT IS SO ORDERED this Jilt_ day of August, 1974. 

United States District Judge 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
} CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 (EN) 
) 
) 
) MEMORANDUM OF THE UNITED STATES IN 
) SUPPORT OF THE ENTRY OF AN ORDER 
} TO SHOW CAUSE 
) 
) _________________________) 

On or about July 26, 1974, defendants filed a Notice of Motion 

seeking an adjudication of contempt against Donna F. Goldstein, a 

Department of Justice attorney assigned to this case, and a ''cease 

and desist" order against the United States. In five affidavits 

including that of defense counsel Roy Cohn, defendants allege that 

Ms. Goldstein has, among other things, threatened and sought to 

influence the testimony of prospective witnesses in this case. The 

defendants have requested a hearing on this matter on August 16, 1974. 

The United States has filed a response supported by affidavits 

of Frank E. Schwelb, Chief of the Housing Section, Civil Rights 

Division, Department of Justice, and of Ms. Goldstein denying each 

and every allegation of improper conduct. In preparation of the 



hearing on August 16, 1974, the United States has noticed the 

depositions of several of the affiants who have made accusations 

against Ms. Goldstein, as well as of defendant Donald Trump. Brief 

interrogatories have also been served on counsel for the defendants 

to determine the pertinent details of any alleged incident of mis-

conduct by plaintiff's attorneys. In addition, the United States 

has applied for an Order to Show Cause why 

(1) defendants should not be required to 

answer plaintiff's interrogatories with respect 

to the pending motion within five days of service 

thereof; and 

(2) the depositions should not be super-

vised by an officer of the Court. 

A. Defendants Should Be Required to Respond to the Interrogatories 
Within Five Days of Service. 

Rule 33(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure vests the 

Court with discretion to shorten the time permitted for responding 

to Interrogatories. In this case, defendants have made serious 

accusations against the United States and, in particular, against 

one of its counsel, Donna F. Goldstein., They seek to bring the 

matter on for hearing on August 16, 1974. The United States is 

entitled to take the depositions of several persons who have infor-

mation about these charges and to otherwise prepare for the hearing, 

and cannot do so unless their identities are disclosed. 
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Defense counsel Roy Cohn in his affidavit indicated that only some 

of the persons who had complained of attorney Goldstein's behavior 

had signed statements for submission with defendants' pleading. In 

order to prepare for the hearing and assure that Ms. Goldstein's 

rights are fully protected, plaintiff is entitled to advance know-

ledge of the purported case against her. Plaintiff's interrogatories 

are brief and can be responsively answered in a short time, and 

there is no reason why an immediate response cannot be forthcoming. 

B. The Depositions Should Be Supervised by an Officer of 
this Court. 

The basic thrust of defendants' motion is that plaintiff's 

counsel have unduly influenced the testimony of prospective witnesses. 

Plaintiff contends, however, that the allegations are false and have 

the effect of preventing the expedited consideration of the case 

which the statute requires. 42 U.S.C. 3614. The affidavits of two 

of plaintiff's counsel -- Elyse Goldweber and Donna F. Goldstein --

disclose that at least one of the prospective deponents Thomas 

Miranda -- has on two separate occasions expressed fear of reprisal 

from defendants if he should testify to the discriminatory practices 

of which he is aware. Magistrate Cattogio has found the defendants 

to have been in noncompliance with discovery procedures. 
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With the issue herein being whether either side has used 

unlawful tactics vis-a-vis witnesses, it is imperative that their 

sworn testimony be given without interference or pressure from any 

source. Accordingly, the depositions should be conducted before 

an officer of this Court. 4 Moore's Federal Practice §28.02, p. 

1915; Fisher v. Harris, 61 F.R.D. 447 (S.D. N.Y. 1973); Shapiro v. 

Freeman, 38 F.R.D. 308 (S.D. N.Y. 1965); see also First Iowa Hydro 

Elec. Coop. v. Iowa-Illinois Gas and Elec. Co., 245 F. 2d 613 (8th 

Cir. 1957), denied 355 U.S. 871 (1957). 

JAMES PORTER 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 

S P.TtiRNER --
Deputy Assistant Attorney General 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, Chief 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG, Attorney 
Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., ) 

) 
Defendants. ) ________________________ .) 

To Counsel for the 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

PLAINTIFF'S INTERROGATORIES 
TO THE DEFENDANTS 

The following interrogatories are addressed to you 

pursuant to Rule 33 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 

and you are required to answer each interrogatory separately 

and fully, in writing, under oath, and to serve copies of 

your Answers on counsel for plaintiff within the time to be 

prescribed by the Court. The United States is applying to the 

Court for an Order that your time to respond be shortened to 

five days from the date of service. 

1. Please state the name and address of each person 

known or believed by counsel for defendants, by the defendants 

or any of their officers, agents, or employees to have any 

information with respect toanyalleged misconduct engaged in 

by Donna Goldstein, Esquire, or by any other representative of 

the United States in connection with the above-styled case. 

2. With respect to each person identified in response 

to the preceding interrogatory, please provide the following 

information: 



(a) The nature of the alleged misconduct 

by a representative of the United States alleged 

by such person; 

(b) The time and date upon which such mis-

conduct took place; 

(c) The names and addresses of all persons 

who witnessed or who may have information about 

the incident; 

(d) The means and date by which such inforrna-

tion was brought to the attention of the defen-

dants or their counsel; and 

(e) A full description of the alleged 

wrongful conduct by the representative of 

the United States. 

JAMES PORTER 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, Chief 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG, Attorney 
Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -X 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, AFFIDAVIT OF 
PERSONAL SERVICE 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP , DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Civil Action 
No. 73 C 1529 

P" f f !f'!l'» '""'· .. i'. }' 
Defendants. u.s. · 

- - - - - - - -X 

* AUG 7 1974 
STATE OF NEW YORK 

ss. : 
COUNTY OF KINGS 

JOHN HUNTER, being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

I am employed in the Office of the United States 

Attorney for the Eastern District of New York. 

On August 6, 1974, at 12:00 Noon, I personally 

served an Order to Show Cause dated August 5, 1974, and 

related documents, on the offices of Saxe, Bacon, Bolan 

and Manley, Esqs., attorneys for defendantsherein, located 

at 39 East 68th Street, New York, New York, by leaving a 

certified copy of said Order and copies of said related 

documents with Phyllis Goldman, a secretary in said office, 

and receiving a signed receipt therefore. 

Sworn to before me this 
6th day of August, 1974. 

EVELYN SOMMER 
·Notuy ftublic, Stdte of New York 

No. 24-4502158 /. 
Qualified in Kings County 

Commiuion hpires March 30, 19 7 j 

(-llzu aJ;r 
JOHN HUNTER 



UNITED 

FRED C. 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF 

STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

TRUMP, ET AL., 

Defendants. 

NEW YORK 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

AUG 19 1974 
TiME 1\.M ... 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73o.r.(; ..... .............. 

NOTICE TO TAKE DEPOSITIONS 
UPON ORAL EXAMINATION 

To: Roy Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 E. 68 Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Please take notice that commencing on the 22 day of 

'I 

August 1974, the plaintiff, United States of America, will take 

the depositions of the present and former agents and employees 

of Trump Management, Inc., whose names are set forth on the 

time schedule attached hereto as Appendix A, at the office of 

the United States Attorney, 225 Cadman Plaza East, Fifth Floor, 

in the Borough of Brooklyn, City of New York. These deposi-

tions will be upon oral examination pursuant to Rule 30 of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before an officer authorized 

by law to administer oaths and take testimony. The oral 

examination will continue from day to day until completed. 

Also, pursuant to Rule 30(b)(l) of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure, Documents designated in Appendix B attached 



hereto are being subpoenaed to be produced by deponents at 

the taking of this deposition. 
rt this /( of August, 1974. 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
United States Attorney NORMAN p. ' COLDBERG 

Attorneys, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



APPENDIX A 

1. Ms. Carol Falcone 
2771 Stillwell Avenue 
Brooklyn, New York 

2. Mr. Thomas Miranda 
39-89 50th Street 
Woodside, New York 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Mr. Louis Sarnell 
Rental Agent 
Shorehaven Apartments 
8850 19th Avenue 
Brooklyn, New York 

Mr. Al Weber 
Superintendent 
Edgerton Hall 
178-10 Wexford Terrace 
Jamaica, New York 

Mr. Henry Neher 
Superintendent, The Belcrest 
162-15 Highland Avenue 
Jamaica, New York 

Mr. W. Volz 
Superintendent 
Winston Hall 
178-60 Wexford Terrace 
Jamaica, New York 

Mr. John Raymond 
Superintendent 
Nautilus Apartments 
1230 Avenue Y 
Brooklyn, New York 

Thursday, August 22, 
1974, 9:30 a.m. 

Thursday, August 22, 
19 7 4 , 1 : 00 p.m. 

Thursday, August 22, 
1974, 3:00 p.m. 

Friday, August 23, 
1974, 9:30 a.m. 

Friday, August 23, 
1974, 11:00 a.m. 

Friday, August 23, 
1974, 1:00 p.m. 

Friday, August 23, 
1974, 3:00 p.m. 



APPENDIX B 

The documents*/ set forth below are being subpoenaed 

from the following agents and employees of Trump Management, 

Inc., to be brought at the time of each employee's deposition: 

Mr. Louis Sarnell 
Mr. Al Weber 
Mr. Henry Neher 
Mr. W. Volz 
Mr. John Raymond 

1. All completed leases, applications and records of 

payment of deposits in the possession, custody or control of 

the deponent. 

2. All records, cards, waiting lists or other forms 

of documentation in the possession, custody or control of the 

deponent which contain the names, addresses and dates of con-

tact of any prospective tenant or any individual who has 

applied, sought to apply or made inquiry concerning residing 

at an apartment building owned by the defendants. 

3. All written documents, correspondence, forms or 

other writings in the possession, custody or control of the 

deponent which contain instructions, advice or stated or 

suggested policies or practices with respect to the rental of 

apartments or the processing of applications at the defendants' 

buildings. 

*I Documents previously made available to the government pur-
suant to the May 6, 1974, Request for Production of Documents 
need not be reproduced here. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Donna Goldstein, an attorney for plaintiff, hereby 

certify that I have served a copy of the foregoing Notice 

to Take Depositions upon Oral Examination on the defendants 

by mailing a copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney at the 

following address: 

Roy Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

ck: 
This IS day of August, 1974. 

DONNA N 
Attorney, Ho sing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT THE 
' AUG 20 1974 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
TU:l:: A.M .... · · · · · · · · · • 

H\.. ............ . 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 CIV 1529 

) 
v. ) 

) PLAINTIFF'S REQUEST FOR 
FRED C. TRUMP, et al., ) PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS 

) 
Defendants. ) 

) 

Plaintiff hereby requests, pursuant to Rule 34 of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, that defendants produce 

and permit plaintiff to inspect and copy the documents and 

records listed and described in Attachment A to this request. 

In accordance with the discovery deadline set by 

Magistrate Vincent A. Catoggio on August 8, 1974, it is 

requested that the aforesaid production shall commence on 

the 29th day of August, 1974, at 10:00 a.m. at the rental 

office of Ocean Air Apartments, 725 East Chester Street, 

Norfolk, Virginia and that the aforesaid production shall 

continue at such other offices of Trump Management, Inc. as 

necessary to inspect and copy the requested documents and 

records, and that the documents and records shall remain 

available until such inspection and copying can reasonably 

be completed. 



Inspection, copying and photographing will be performed 

by or under the supervision of an attorney of the United States 

Department of Justice. 

HENRY A. BRACHTL 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Eastern District of N.Y. 
225 Cadman Plaza 
Brooklyn, New York 

Respectfully submitted, 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG 
Attorneys, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



Attachment A 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS 
SOUGHT TO BE PRODUCED FOR 

INSPECTION AND COPYING 

The records and documents listed below are requested 

for the following apartment buildings owned managed 

by Trump Management, Inc.: 

1. The Hague Apartments, Norfolk, Virginia 

2. Pembroke Apartments, Norfolk, Virginia 

3. Ocean Air Apartments, Norfolk, Virginia 

4. Any other apartment buildings owned and/or 

managed by Trump Management,Inc. in Norfolk, 

Virginia. 

A. Tenant files containing leases, applications, 

receipts of payments, correspondence or any other documents 

relating to the tenancy of all individuals residing at the 

apartment complex since January 1, 1969. 

B. All applications for tenancy which have been re-

jected or which have been cancelled, since January 1, 1969. 

C. All waiting lists or other forms of documentation 

containing the names of individuals who have expressed an 

interest at living at the apartment complex since January 1, 

1969. 

D. All written instructions, memoranda of oral in-

structions, correspondence, or other written records or 

documents to agents or employees of said defendant or to other 

persons, organizations, or agencies concerning the procedures 

and standards to be followed by such persons with respect to 



the rental of dwellings to any person, including black persons, 

and the treatment to be accorded prospective tenants of dwel-

lings, including black prospective tenants of dwellings since 

January 1, 1969. 

E. All correspondence, agreements and other documents 

or papers, or communications which make reference to the Fair 

Housing Act, or to discrimination or nondiscrimination in 

rentals, including correspondence, documents, memoranda and 

papers, formal and informal, reflecting or alleging racial 

discrimination in housing by defendants or any of them, such 

documents to be produced irrespective of the merit or lack 

of merit of the allegation and irrespective of the formality 

or informality of the complaint. 

F. All records, payroll reports, contracts, W-2 forms, 

cancelled checks and other documents which contain the name, 

address, race, position and date of employment of any rental 

agents or other employee employed by the defendants at any 

time since January 1, 1968. 

G. All receipt books or other documents maintained 

since January 1, 1969, which contain records of payment of 

deposits for the rental of apartments. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Norman P. Goldberg, an attorney for the plaintiff, 

hereby certify that I have served a copy of the foregoing 

Request for Production of Documents on the defendants by 

mailing a copy, postage prepaid, to their attorney at the 

following address: 

This the 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan and Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

____ / ____ day of August, 1974. 

') /' o Oo \\ 

GOLDBERG ) 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR COIJ!"?l E.D. N.Y. 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK '7r AUG 2 01974 * 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

TIME A.l\1 ................................ .. 
P.l\tl ................................ .. 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 CIV 1529 

PLAINTIFF'S REQUEST FOR 
PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS 

Plaintiff hereby requests, pursuant to Rule 34 of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, that defendants produce and 

permit plaintiff to inspect and copy the documents and records 

listed and described in Attachment A to this request. 

In accordance with the discovery deadline set by 

Magistrate Vincent A. Catoggio on August 8, 1974, it is re-

quested that the aforesaid production shall commence on the 

26th day of August, 1974, at 10:00 a.m. at the law offices of 

Saxe Bacon, Bolan & Manley, 39 E. 68 Street, New York, N.Y., 

and that records shall remain available until such inspection 

and copying can reasonably be completed. 

Inspection, copying and photographing will be performed 

by or under the supervision of an attorney of the United 

Department of Justice. 

HENRY A. BRACHTL 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Eastern District, N.Y. 
225 Cadman Plaza 
Brooklyn, N.Y. 

Respectfully submitted, 

DO F. GOLDSTEIN 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG 
Attorneys, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 



Attachment A 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS 
SOUGHT TO BE PRODUCED FOR 

INSPECTION AND COPYING 

1. Current tenant files containing applications for 

tenancy, leases, correspondence between the tenant and the 

defendants or their agents, receipts of payments, or any other 

documents maintained by the defendants or their agents which 

relate to the tenancy of present tenants at the following 

apartment buildings owned by the defendants: 

a. Chelsea Hall Apartments 

b. Nautilus Hall Apartments 

c. Ocean Terrace Apartments 

d. Lincoln Shore Apartments 

2. Receipt books or other documents which contain 

records of payment of deposits for the rental of apartments, 

maintained since January for each of defendants' buildings 

situated in the New York metropolitan area listed in Attachment B. 
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NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10021 

JOHN GODFREY SAXE (1909-19531 
ROGERS H. BACON (1919-1962) 

ROY M. COHN 
SCOTT E. MANLEY (ADMITTED ILLINOIS AND INDIANA) 

MICHAEL ROSEN 

DANIEL J. DRISCOLL 

HAROLD SCHWARTZ 
MELVYN RUBIN 
JEFFREY A. SHUMAN 
LORIN DUCKMAN 

Hon Vincent Cattagio 
United States Magistrate 
Federal Court House 

(212) 472-1400 

August 20, 1974 

225 Cadman Plaza East - 2nd Floor 
Brooklyn, New York 

THOMAS A. BoLAN 
COUNSEL 

FILED 
IN ClEP.J.<'S OFFICE 

U. 5. DISTRIC I COURT E. D. N.Y. 

ic SEP 5 1974 * 
TIME A.M ................................ .. 

P.M ................................. . 

Re: U.S. v. Trump - Civil Rights Case 

Dear Judge Cattagio: 

Following the helpful conference with Your Honor, 
and your direction that discovery and depositions be completed 
by September 1, 1974, the Government has done the following: 

1. Noticed seven more depositions of employees and 
former employees. 

2. Made new demands for production of large quantities 
of records. 

3. In plaintiff's letter of August 12, 1974, for 
the first time since the filing of the complaint in the fall 
of 1973, it has now attempted to enlarge it by indirection to 
all units operated by the defendants in Norfolk, Virginia and 
surrounding areas - and demanding production of extensive 
records down south from these buildings nowhae before cited 
in this case - in the complaint or in the answers to interroga-
tories and bill of particulars furnished by the Government at 
the specific order of Judge Neaher, who found the complaint 
far too general, and directed specification of locations, dates, 
details, etc. of the charges of discrimination. 

A ten page response to Judge Neaher's order filed by the Govern-
ment on February 28, 1974, listing said locations and dates in 
detail - at no point mentioned directly or indirectly any units 
outside the Eastern District, or specifically, any units in 
Virginia. To attempt on the eve of conclusion of discovery 



Hon. Vincent Cattagio 
Page Two 

in a priority case to suddenly ring in locations never before 
alleged despite Judge Neahen's order seven months ago to name 
locations, is improper and unfair. 

To expedite this matter, and even though plaintiff 
has already deposed 13 of our officers, employees, maintenance 
men, etc. - and even though the new seven depositions sought 
include those of former employees, and those whose statements 
could not legally bind us - we are willing to and hereby agree 
to all seven depositions; and to have them completed before 
September 1, 1974. As to the records, even though the new 
demands happen to include a series of records we already pro-
duced and others which are not relevant - again to expedite, 
we hereby agree to the production of all requested records -
also before September 1, 1974. 

The only item with which we are completely unwilling 
to comply is the production of records and information about 
some units in Virginia and elsewhere in the country outside 
the Eastern District, for the grounds previously stated. To 
document this in detail: The complaint was filed October 15, 
1973. We moved to dismiss or to make more definite and certain 
on the grounds it told us nothing. On January 25, 1974, Judge 
Heahen heard argument. The minutes containing his comments and 
rulings are attached to this letter as "A" for Your Honor's 
convenience. We particularly refer Your Honor to pages 25 -
28, wherein Judge Heahen indicates that "location of buildings" 
must be specified (p.27) and pointed out the defendant's diffi-
culty in meeting these charges because of the number of units 
involved "in New York" (p. 28). The Government's furnishing of 
locations and details pursuant to these directions of Judge 
Neahen came on February 28, 1974, and are also attached to 
this letter (as "C") along with our demand ("B"). At no point 
in the ten pages is a single location outside the Eastern Dis-
trict mentioned - and now, only days before conclusion of dis-
covery, they seek for the first time to ring in units far away 
from this District, which would result in considerable delay 
and prejudice to the defendants in this priority case. 

We agree to all seven new depositions, and to produce 
all requested records for all locations set forth in the Govern-
ment's response to Judge Neahen's order. We ask Your Honor to 
exclude the attempt to expand this case to never before cited 



Hon. Vincent Cattagio 
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buildings in other areas of the country. 

Respectfully yours, 

" 1 ,'£ I ' I t / / :. -.. 1rv 1 . '\./). 'L;/(._ 
Roy M. Cohn 

RMC:sb 
cc: Donna Goldstein 

Civil Rights Division 

Donald Trump 



ADDRESS REPI,Y TO 
UXITED STATES ATTORNEY 

AND REFER TO 
1:!\'ITIAI,S AXD NU:\IDEU 

JDP:HAB:sm 
File No. 
730959 

:!flcpartmcnf of 3Juzticc 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 
EASTERN DISTIUCT OF NEW YORK 

FEDERAL BUILDING 
BROOKLYN,N.Y.ll201 

FILED 
August 20, 1974 IN OffiCE 

lJ. S. I cor !Rl ED. 1\'.Y. 

Honorable Vincent A. Catoggio 
Magistrate, u. s. District Court 
Eastern District of New York 

ic SEP 5 1974 * 
TIME A.M ................................. . 

P.M ................................. . u. s. Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Re: United States v. Fred c. Trump, et al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

D/J Ref.: JSP:DFG 
175-52-28 

Dear Magistrate Catoggio: 

On August 13, 1974, the plaintiff in the above styled 
lawsuit noticed a Request for Production of Documents under Rule 
34 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. This records inspec-
tion was to commence at apartment buildings owned by the defen-
dants in Norfolk, Virginia, on August 29th in accordance with 
the discovery deadline which you directed at the August 8th meeting 
in your office. 

I have been informed by Mr. Cohn that he intends to com-
municate to you by letter defendants' objections to any production 
of documents dealing with apartments outside of New York City. 
We believe that the complaint and related case law show that plain-
tiff is entitled to such discovery. Therefore, it is respectfully 
requested that a decision on this issue not be made until plaintiff 
submits a brief supporting its position. 

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 

Very truly yours, 

J. STANLEY POTTINGER 
Assistant Attorney General 
Civil Rights Division 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Attorney, Housing Section-/ 



/JJdact/n/, YJp/cwv f¥ 
39 EAST GEl'"" STREET 

NEW YORE(, NEW YORK 10021 

JOHN GODFREY SAXE 11909·1'>53) 
ROGERS H. BACON (1919·1962) 

(212) 472-1400 
THOHAS A. BOLAN 

COUNSEl. 

ROY M. COHN 
SCOTT E. MANLEY (ADMITTED ILLINOIS AND INOIANA) 

MICHAEl. ROSEN 

DANIEL J. DRISCOLL 

HAROLD SCHWARTZ 
MELVYN RUBIN 
JEFF"REY A. SHUMAN 
LORIN DUCKMAN 

./ 

1' 
!!a y :L6 , 

Miss Donna Goldstein 
United States Department of Justtce 
Hashington, D. Ca 20530 

Re: United States v. Fred Trump, et al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Hiss Goldstein: 

/ 

Enclosed please find a copy of defendants' 
answers to plaintiff's interrogatories. It is my under-
standing from speaking with Miss Goldweber that you are 
taking her place on this case since she has left to -vvork 
in Ne\'f York. 

As you will note from our most of the 
information requested by the Government in the interroga-
tories already has been supplied in the five exam.inati.ons 
before trial '"''hich you already have completed. lve could 
not make specific reference to page numbers due to the 
fact that the transcripts have not. been completed. You 
will note that there are three quest_ions requiring detailed 
infornation from records, w·hich Stuart Hyman has been c:on1pil-
i.ng and hopes to co:r::rplet.e next week"' We wicll supply you 
Hith information as soon as £-ir. Hyman completes same. 

SEH/ew 

cc; Eon. Vincent Catoggio 
United St:ates Nagistrate 
Eastern District of New York 
United States Court."l-lous e 
225 Plaza East 
Brooklyn, Nt:'" York .. 11201 

Very truly yours, 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK IN cu:;c S OH ;i'E 
-· 5. DI.Sl i<iCI COUR1 LD. :\i.Y. 

r· 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) \ ,, 1974 * 

FRED 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

C. TRUMP, et al. , 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

PLAINTIFF'S SUPPLEMENTAL 
ANSWERS TO DEFENDANTS' 
INTERROGATORIES 

The United States of America, plaintiff herein, by its 

undersigned attorney hereby supplements its Answers to Defendants' 

First Interrogatories. Plaintiff states that, while these 

Answers include all information presently available to it, 

some additional investigation based on records made available 

by defendants and on information recently furnished by the 

Urban League is continuing as expeditiously as possible. The 

Answers will be further supplemented as soon as such information 

has been secured and assembled. 

Supplemental Answers to 
Interrogatories 1 and 2 

The following information constitutes evidence that de-

fendants through their agents or employees have made apartments 

unavailable on account of race in the following ways: 

1. The following information constitutes evidence of 

a discriminatory policy engaged in by the defendants in their 

operation of buildings outside of the New York area. 

(a) On May 21, 1974, Mr. Ellis W. James (white) 

Head of Tidewater Fair Housing at 1802 N. Lakeland, 

Norfolk, Virginia, provided a Departmental representative 

with the following account: 



In or about July 1971, Mr. and Mrs. Joseph 

Jones (black) informed James that they had been 

denied an apartment at the Oakdale Apartments in 

Norfolk. In early July, 1971, James and his wife 

went with Mrs. Jones to the complex. Mrs. Jones 

went into the office alone and spoke with the 

manager, Mrs. Morgan, about renting an apartment 

which had been advertised in the morning newspaper. 

Morgan stated that no apartments were available 

and indicated that an apartment might become 

available on August 3, 1971. Morgan indicated that 

Jones could submit an application if she so chose. 

James and his wife immediately went into the 

office and spoke with Morgan about renting an apart-

ment. Morgan stated that an apartment would be 

available in about a week and that they could rent 

the apartment immediately. In response to a 

question about the racial composition of the complex, 

Morgan stated that there was one black officer 

residing in the complex. 

(b) In June 1973, Mr. Richard Foard (black) 

furnished the Norfolk office of the FBI with the 

following information of alleged discrimination: 
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Foard, who was assigned to the Naval Force 

Station in Norfolk, stated that in mid June, 1973, 

he went to the Ocean Air Apartments in Norfolk to 

apply for a two-bedroom apartment. Foard stated 

that he decided to apply there after learning from 

Mr. Eugene Sorel, a white male, that he had just 

obtained an apartment at Ocean Air for a reasonable 

price. At the rental office, Foard was advised 

to return in July or August and submit an application 

at that time. Foard was also told that he would 

have to return at that time to see the model apartment. 

2. The New York Urban League furnished plaintiff with 

information about several tests conducted by the League to 

determine the racial practice at various buildings operated 

by defendants. Most of the tests indicate that racial dis-

crimination is practiced at the respective buildings at which 

the tests were conducted. In the interest of fairness, we 

summarize all of the "tests" so that interested parties may 

draw their own conclusions. 

(a) Belcrest Hall 
166-05 Highland Hall 
Jamaica 

Ms. Stephanie Bush, a black employee of 

the Urban League, went to the Belcrest on July 

12, 1974, to inquire about renting a one-bedroom 

apartment. Mr. H. Neher, the superintendent, 
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advised Bush that a one-bedroom rented at 

$280.00 and would not be available until 

October. Neher suggested that Bush contact 

Kraham Realty Co. *I which would find her 

an apartment. 

Ms. Susan Bernstein, a white employee 

of the Urban League, applied for an apartment 

at the Belcrest a short time after Bush left 

the building. Bernstein, was shown an apart-

ment, told that the apartment rented for 

$250.00, and that the apartment would be 

available on September 1. 

(b) Saxony Hall 
87-15 165 Street 
Queens, New York 

On July 12, 1974, Ms. Bush went to Saxony 

Hall to inquire about renting a one-bedroom apart-

ment. Bush spoke with Supt. Kurt Marscheider about 

renting an apartment and was advised by him that 

none were available and that he did not know 

when one would become available. 

*I Kraham Realty Co., is presently the subject of a complaint 
brought by the New York City Commission on Human Rights alleging 
difference in treatment of home seekers based on race, and the 
"steering" of home seekers to different areas based on race. 
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Ms. Bernstein went to Saxony Hall a 

short time after Bush left the building 

and spoke with Marscheider about renting 

a one-bedroom apartment. Bernstein was 

shown a one-bedroom apartment, given a 

business card and told to call back in 

a week, at which time Marscheider would 

know when an apartment would be available. 

(c) Clyde Hall 
87-06 166 Street 
Queens, New York 

On July 24, 1974, Ms. Bush went to 

Clyde Hall to inquire about renting a one-

bedroom apartment. Bush spoke with a 

woman who stated she was the superintendent. 

The woman advised her that there were no 

vacancies and none would be available for 

six months. 

Ms. Bernstein went to Clyde Hall a short 

time after Bush left the building. Bernstein 

spoke with a woman, who stated that she was 

the superintendent, and was advised by her that 

only a studio apartment was immediately available. 

The woman advised Bernstein that a one-bedroom 

apartment would be available as soon as the 

estate of the recently deceased tenant of that 

apartment had been settled and the apartment 

had been painted. She stated, however, that the 

other "empties" in her building would have to 

be filled first. The woman added that because 
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there were so many "empties" in her 

building, that the apartment rentals 

were being handled by another Trump agent 

in the Trump building across the street, 

but that the same apartment could be 

rented from her at a less expensive price. 

(d) Edgerton Hall 
178-10 Wexford Terrace 
Queens, New York 

On July 9, 1974, Ms. Bush went to 

Edgerton Hall to inquire about renting a 

one-bedroom apartment that was advertised 

in the New York Times. Bush spoke to a 

doorman who said that the superintendent 

was on vacation and that there were no 

vacancies. The doorman gave her the name 

of the superintendent so that she could 

periodically check on vacancies. The 

following morning, at about 9:30a.m., Bush 

returned and the same doorman as she met on 

the preceding day advised her that the 

superintendent was out. Bush returned that 

afternoon at about 2:30p.m., at which time 

she met the superintendent. The superintendent 

informed her that he had just rented a one-

bedroom apartment and that another one would 

not be available until the middle of August. 

The superintendent stated that he had a vacant 
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two-bedroom apartment. Ms. Bush was 

not shown an apartment. 

Ms. Bernstein went to Edgerton Hall 

on the morning of July 9, 1974 and spoke 

with a doorman. The doorman advised her 

that the superintendent was out for the 

day, but that there was a vacant one-bedroom 

apartment. Ms. Bernstein returned the 

following day at about 2:00 p.m. and met the 

superintendent identified as Mr. Weber. 

Weber advised her that he had a one-bedroom, 

studio, and a four-room apartment available. 

Bernstein was shown a one-bedroom apartment 

and was told that the apartment would be 

available for August 1 at $250 per month. 

(e) Winston Hall 
178-60 Wexford Terrace 
Queens, New York 

On July 9, 1974, Ms. Bush went to 

Winston Hall to inquire about renting a one-

bedroom apartment that had been advertised 

in the New York Times. Bush spoke to the 

superintendent, Mr. Volz, who told her that 

a one-bedroom apartment had been rented on 

Saturday, July 6, 1974, and that there were 

no other vacancies. 
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Ms. Bernstein went to Winston Hall a 

short time after Bush departed to inquire 

about renting a one-bedroom apartment. A 

man who identified himself as the superintendent 

stated that he had just completed showing 

an available one-bedroom apartment to a 

woman and suggested that a studio apartment 

was also immediately available at $195-200 

per month. The superintendent then showed 

the studio apartment to her. 

(f) The Highlander 
164-20 Highland Avenue 
Queens, New York 

On July 12, 1974, Ms. Bush went to the 

Highlander to inquire about renting a one-

bedroom apartment that had been advertised 

in the New York Times. At the building, 

Bush met a maintenance man who told her that 

he thought a studio apartment was vacant. 

Bush then met the superintendent and asked 

for a studio or one-bedroom apartment. She 

was told that a 4 1/2 room apartment was 

available at $390 per month, but that there 

were no vacancies in a studio or one-bedroom 

and that none was likely to become available 

until January or February. 
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Ms. Bernstein went to the Highlander 

shortly after Ms. Bush left the building. 

Bernstein spoke to the superintendent and 

was told that there was only a 4 1/2 room 

apartment available at $370 per month. 

Bernstein was told that there were no vacancies 

at the present time, but that vacancies usually 

occur in September. 

(g) Sussex Hall 
166-05 Highland Avenue 
Queens, New York 

On July 12, 1974, Ms. Bush went to Sussex 

Hall to inquire about renting a one-bedroom 

apartment. Bush spoke with the superintendent, 

Mr. Pajumae, who advised her that only a junior 

3-room apartment was available at $210 per month. 

Pajumae advised Bush that she could fill out an 

application and that she would be advised in about 

one week as to whether her application had been 

approved. 

Ms. Bernstein went to the Sussex shortly 

after Bush had left the building. Bush asked 

to rent a one-bedroom apartment and Mr. Pajumae 

advised her that a one-bedroom was available at 

$260 per month. 
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(h) Coronet Hall 
172-70 Highland Avenue 
Queens, New York 

On July 9, 1974, Ms. Bush went to 

the Coronet to inquire about renting a one-

bedroom apartment that had been advertised 

in the New York Times. Bush spoke to the 

superintendent who advised her that a studio 

was presently vacant and that a one-bedroom 

renting at $270 per month would be available 

on August 1. 

Ms. Bernstein went to the Coronet shortly 

after Bush left the building. Bernstein was 

advised that a studio apartment was presently 

vacant and that a one-bedroom would be available 

shortly. 

(i) Wexford Hall 
86-75 Midland Parkway 
Queens, New York 

On July 12, 1974, Ms. Bush went to Wexford 

Hall to inquire about renting a one-bedroom apart-

ment that was advertised in the New York Times. 

Bush spoke with the superintendent who advised 

her that he had available for rent a 3-room 

apartment at $250 per month and a 3 1/2-room 

apartment at $270 per month. Both apartments 

were shown to Bush. 
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Ms. Bernstein went to Wexford Hall a short 

time after Bush left the building. The super-

intendent advised her that he had available for 

rent a 3-room apartment at $250 per month and 

a 3 1/2 room apartment for $270 per month. 

Bernstein was shown both apartments. 

(j) Wilshire Hall 
182-30 Wexford Terrace 
Queens, New York 

On July 12, 1974, after first dealing with 

a non-rental employee who indicated that dis-

crimination against non-white applicants is or 

has been practiced at the Wilshire by the 

superintendent (who takes applications in the 

rental agent's absence) Ms. Bush spoke with 

Mr. Joseph Consalro, the rental agent, to discuss 

the possibility of renting a one-bedroom apartment 

at the Wilshire. Mr. Consalro advised Bush 

that he had a 1-bedroom apartment available for 

$295.00. A New York Times advertisement indicated 

that the apartment rented at $275 per month, but 

Consalro explained that the one-bedroom advertised 

in the newspaper was on the first floor and had 

already been rented. 
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Ms. Bernstein went to the Wilshire on 

July 12, 1974 and spoke with Mr. Consalro 

about renting a one-bedroom apartment. Consalro 

advised her that he had a one-bedroom apartment 

available for $295 per month. 

(k) The Essex 
143-11 Barclay Avenue 
Queens, New York 

On July 24, 1974, Ms. Bush went to the Essex 

to inquire about a one-bedroom apartment that was 

advertised in the New York Times. Bush spoke with 

a non-rental employee who advised her that there 

were vacancies, but that the superintendent was 

not on the premises. Bush returned later that day 

and spoke to another non-rental employee who advised 

her that the superintendent was still out. This 

employee told her that discrimination is practiced 

at the Essex through misrepresentations to blacks 

that no apartments are available. Bush returned 

on August 2, 1974 at about 3:00 p.m. and spoke 

to a woman identified as Ann. The woman advised 

Bush that there was a vacancy, but that she would 

have to return on another day between the hours of 

10:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. to speak with the 

renting agent, Mr. Graham. 
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On August 2, 1974, shortly after Ms. Bush 

departed from the Essex, Ms. Bernstein went to 

the Essex and spoke with a woman residing in 

the Moltzen apartment. The woman advised her 

that there was a vacant one-bedroom apartment, 

but that she would have to return on another 

day between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. 

to speak with the renting agent, Mr. Graham. 

3. Mr. Peter Connan, a former employee of defendants, 

was superintendent in late 1972 and early 1973 at the 

Westminster Apartments, then a virtually all-white building, 

after the death of his father, the previous superintendent. 

He advised that the Trump office staff, including Minerva 

Gilbert, wanted to know the race of the applicants whose 

applications were submitted to the central office, and that 

this information was provided. On one occasion he overheard 

Mrs. Gilbert tell the superintendent of another building, 

identity unknown, that he should have told a black applicant 

that there were no vacancies, instead of forwarding his 

application. Mr. Connan advised that his father, while 

superintendent, kept a sham lease and check to be shown to 

black applicants. One black was admitted to residency only 

after he had been falsely told that no apartment was available 

and shown the sham lease, and only after the actual existence 

of a vacancy was demonstrated by the offer of an apartment 
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to the black applicant's white friend. Connan submitted 

at least three applications of blacks to the Trump office, 

but defendants did not rent to them. 

4. The defendants have, throughout this proceeding, 

made false, misleading and reckless statements, including: 

(a) The affidavits filed in connection 

with their counterclaim; as outlined in 

plaintiff's memorandum response thereto; 

(b) The affidavits filed in connection 

with the spurious attack on the integrity 

of one of the counsel for plaintiff; and 

(c) Statements relating to the supposed 

nonexistence of records. 

(d) Disruptive tactics during discovery 

which have been previously outlined to the 

Court in plaintiff's report thereon. 

Plaintiff proposes to adduce evidence of the foregoing to show 

consciousness of guilt and guilt on the part of defendant's. 

5. On August 20, 1973, Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Laitman, 

tenants at 3901 Nostrand Avenue who had recently vacated 

their apartment, wrote a letter to Mr. Trump at the offices 

of Trump Management Company charging that they had been denied 

the right to sublet their apartment because the prospective 

subleasee was black. A copy of this letter is appended hereto 

as Attachment A. 
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Donna 
Attorpey 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 
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AFFIDAVIT 

CITY OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

I, Donna Goldstein, being duly sworn, deoose and say: 

1. I am an attorney in the Housing Section, Civil Rights 

Division, United States Department of Justice, and one of the 

counsel for plaintiff in United States v. Fred C. Trump, et al., 

Civil Action No. 73 C 1529. 

2. I am informed of the facts of this case. The fore-

going Plaintiff's Supplementary Answers to Defendants' Interro-

gatories are true and correct to the best of my information, 

knowledge and belief. 

Attorney, ousing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this )I of September, 1974. 

// r • /) ·-;T/i 
(//)_J!g__A..-·A-;{... LJA 4 

NOTARY PUBLIC . 

My Commission 
If 7 7 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on SeptemberS, 1974, copies 

of the foregoing Plaintiff's Supplementary Answers to 

Defendants' Interrogatories were placed in the United States 

mail, postage prepaid, addressed to counsel for the defendants: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

f.l / 
! ) / 

DONNA 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF F I L E 0 
IN Off iCE 

U. S. LD. 

't 

) CIVIL ACTION '152'9 

NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

"· 
FRED C. TRUMP, ET AL., 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

APPLICATION OF THE UNITED 
STATES THAT DEFENDANTS' 
MOTION FOR SANCTIONS BE 
HEARD, DENIED WITH PREJUDICE 
AND STRICKEN AFTER HEARING Defendants. ________________________ ) 

SIRS 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that plaintiff, United States of 

America, will move this Court, before the Honorable Edward 

R. Neaher, District Judge at the United States Courthouse, 

225 Cadman Plaza East, Brooklyn, New York in Courtroom 9, 

on of October, 1974 at 10:00 o'clock in the 

forenoon of that day or as soon thereafter as counsel 

can be heard, for an Order denying with prejudice defendants' 

motion for sanctions, filed on July 26, 1974, on the 

grounds that the matters contained therein are unsupported 

by fact and are sham and false. 



' 

The grounds for this Application are set forth 

with particularity in plaintiff's supporting memorandum and 

in the attached affidavit of Frank E. Schwelb. Plaintiff 

further prays for such other further relief that this Court 

deems just and proper. 

JAMES PORTER, Chief 
HENRY A. BRACHTL, Attorney 
United States Attorney's 
Office for the Eastern 
District 

Civil Division 

Respectfully submitted, 

fkJ C 
FRANK ·E. SCHWELB, Chief 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG, Attorney 
Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF 

NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 
) 
) 

v. ) 
) AFFIDAVIT 

FRED c. TRUMP, ET AL. , ) 
) 

Defendants. ) 
) 

WASHINGTON ) 
) ss 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I am the Chief of the Housing Section of the Civil 

Rights Division, Department of Justice,and in supervisory 

charge of the above-styled litigation on behalf of the United 

States. I make this affidavit in support of our request that 

an early hearing be had on defendants' motion for sanctions 

against the United States and Ms. Donna Goldstein, that after 

a hearing an Order be entered denying said motion, that the 

motion and supporting affidavits be stricken, and that the 

Court impose such sanctions as may be appropriate for any 

abuse of its processes. 

2. On or about July 1974, defendants filed with 

this Court a Notice of Motion praying that Donna Goldstein, 

one of plaintiff's counsel in this action, be adjudged in 



contempt of this Court for alleged coercion and threats 

against prospective witnesses, and that the United States 

be ordered to cease and desist from such alleged unlawful 

conduct. The Notice of Motion was purportedly supported by 

the affidavits of Carol R. Falcone and Thomas Miranda, 

former employees of defendants, and by the signed but un-

sworn statements of two former employees, Paul and Paula 

Ziselman. Also attached to the motion is an affidavit by 

defense counsel, in which he purports to describe a number 

of events at which,to the best of my knowledge, he was not 

present, and which did not occur in the manner described 

by him. 

3. On or about August 5, 1974, plaintiff filed a 

response, together with affidavits, denying each and every 

allegation of misconduct and requesting expedited discovery 

and an early hearing on the motion. 

4. On August 8, 1974, this Court directed that 

expedited discovery be conducted in preparation for a hearing 

to resolve defendants' charges. This Court also directed 

that Magistrate Catoggio supervise the taking of certain 

discovery depositions. 

5. On August 8, 1974, in accordance with the Court's 

direction, counsel met ·informally with Magistrate Catoggio 

for the purpose of scheduling the taking of the proposed 

depositions. At that meeting, defense counsel withdrew his 

- 2 -



' . 

request for a hearing on his motion but refused to withdraw 

the motion and the attached affidavits in which, among other 

things, Ms. Goldstein is accused of unprofessional conduct. 

As a result of this action, the charges against Ms. Goldstein 

remain on file, subject to being revived at any time at defense 

counsel's caprice. 

6. Subsequently, plaintiff noticed the taking of 

depositions of Mr. Miranda and Ms. Falcone for August 28, 1974. 

In view of the serious nature of the charges against Ms. Goldstein, 

and my conviction that they are completely false, I had planned 

to take the depositions of her principal accusers personally. 

Without notice to plaintiff, defense counsel produced Mr. Miranda 

for deposition two days ahead of schedule. I was not in New York 

on August 26, since more routine depositions had been scheduled 

for that day and were scheduled to be taken by younger attorneys 

assigned to this case. As a result, the deposition of Mr. Miranda 

was taken outside my presence. I did take the deposition of 

Ms. Falcone on August 28, 1974. 

7. For reasons set forth in our attached memorandum, 

I am satisfied that the allegations against Ms. Goldstein are 

false, and that they were filed, at least, with reckless dis-

regard of the which facts were readily available to 

defense counsel. I have full confidence in the integrity and 

professionalism of Ms. Goldstein and of the propriety of her 

conduct in this case. 
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8. I believe that defense counsel's action in 

declining to withdraw these charges leaves them unfairly 

hanging over Ms. Goldstein's head, as a possible permanent 

cloud on her professional reputation. In addition, I 

believe that the continued pendency of such charges can only 

have the effect of making it more difficult for Ms. Goldstein 

to carry out her professional responsibilities in connection 

with this case. Accordingly, the charges should either be 

withdrawn, with prejudice, or evaluated by this Court based 

on the evidence. Even though a hearing on this matter would 

necessarily be unpleasant for Ms. Goldstein, since she has in 

my view done nothing to warrant any challenge to her integrity, 

it is preferable to the prospect of allowing charges I believe 

to be false and scurrilous to hang over her professional career 

indefinitely. 

9. For reasons set forth in our memorandum I believe 

that defendants have used disingenuous tactics in this case 

to a degree which warrants a strong adverse inference 

against them on the merits of the case. Accordingly, and in 

order to facilitate Ms. Goldstein's participation in the 

trial, we request that this matter be scheduled for hearing 

in advance of the trial of the main case. 
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10. No previous application has been made for the 

relief here requested. 

/C , _y r 
0 

[ ,, 

l_. jJ;u_,J'(_,, ,[_ 
FRANK E. SCHWELB 

to before me this .;tJ = 
day of September, 1974. 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 
) 

v. ) 
) MEMORANDUM OF UNITED STATES IN 

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., ) SUPPORT OF ITS APPLICATION TO 
) DENY DEFENDANTS 1 MOTION FOR 

Defendants. ) CONTEMPT WITH PREJUDICE 2 FOR AN 
) EARLY HEARING 2 AND TO STRIKE 

On July 26, 1974, defendants filed with this Court a 

of Motion" seeking an adjudication of contempt against Donna F. 

Goldstein, a Department of Justice attorney assigned to this liti-

gation, and a "cease and desist" order against the United States. 

In affidavits filed with Defendant's Notice of Motion, including 

that of defense counsel Roy M. Cohn, Ms. Goldstein was alleged to 

have threatened prospective witnesses and to have attempted by other 

improper means to influence their testimony in the forthcoming trial 

of this case. Ms. Goldstein and other representatives of the United 

States also accused of conducting themselves in an unprofessional 

manner while in the process of attempting to conduct a records in-

spection at the offices of the defendants. The United States filed 

a response, together with affidavits by three of plaintiff's counsel, 

denying each and every allegation of improper conduct as false and 



scurrilous and requested expedited discovery and an early hearing 

on the issue. On August 8, 1974, this Court granted plaintiff's 

request for expedited discovery in connection with this issue and 

directed that Magistrate Catoggio supervise the taking of the 

scheduled depositions. 

Subsequent to the hearing on August 8, 1974, Magistrate 

Catoggio met with attorneys for both parties for the purpose of 

scheduling the proposed discovery. At that meeting, defendants 

withdrew their request for a hearing on the contempt charges, but 

refused to withdraw the underlying pleadings, which contain the 

allegations of misconduct by Ms. Goldstein. 

Even though defendants' pleadings lie dormant in the file, 

plaintiff believes that the charges contained therein continue to 

hang over Ms. Goldstein. They can be resurrected at any time at 

defense counsel's caprice, and leave a shadow over her reputation 

which will remain there until removed by adjudication or withdrawal 

with prejudice. The accusations also interfere, practically as well 

as psychologically, with plaintiff's preparation of the case and 

impose unwarranted burdens on Ms. Goldstein's ability to participate 

fully and effectively at the forthcoming trial. Plaintiff has ac-

cordingly taken discovery depositions of Ms. Goldstein's principal 

accusers and now requests that this Court schedule a hearing on the 
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merits of defendants' motion and at the conclusion of that hearing 

deny defendants' motions as sham and false. Plaintiff asks that 

this matter be resolved promptly, and in advance of trial. If it 

is established, as we believe it will be, that the allegations of 

misconduct are false and were filed with reckless and malicious 

disregard of the truth, then that fact is admissible against de-

fendants on the merits as an indication of defendants' consciousness 

that their case, if truthfully presented, is weak. See .pp. 17-18, infra. 

DISCUSSION 

I. THE FACTS 

A. Counsel for Plaintiff Did Not Threaten or 
Harass Prospective Witnesses 

The two persons who have made serious allegations of un-

professional conduct against Ms. Goldstein are Mr. Thomas Miranda 

and Ms. Carol Falcone,!/ both former employees of defendants. 

*I Two other persons, Mr. & Mrs. Paul Ziselman, submitted af-
fidavits, but neither of the affidavits in our opinion contained 
allegations of unprofessional misconduct against Ms. Goldstein. 
We do wish, however, to preserve our right to call them to testify 
at any hearing on this matter if we believe that such action is 
necessary to resolve this controversy. 
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They allege in separate affidavits that Ms. Goldstein threatened 

and harassed them in an effort to induce them to testify against 

their former employer, Trump Management Co. While neither has yet 

been subjected to cross-examination by plaintiff, the testimony 

that they have given on deposition, combined with other evidence 

already in the record, seriously discredits their allegations. 

Nor are the witnesses the only persons at fault. While 

defense counsel saw fit to file his own affidavit attesting to the 

truth of the allegations made against Ms. Goldstein by Mr. Miranda 

and Ms. Falcone, each of these witnesses testified on depositions 

that counsel never met, spoke, or otherwise communicated with him 

or her until the day of their depositions. The filing of such 

inflammatory charges by counsel against another attorney without 

any inquiry into then· truth or falsity is, at least, unusual. 

(1) Ms. Carol Falcone 

*I In her affidavit of July 19, 1974,- Ms. Falcone charged that 

Ms. Goldstein had engaged in unprofessional conduct in a number of 

*I Although the affidavit bears a date of July 19, 1974, Ms. Falcone 
swore that she,in fact,wrote it several days later. She also swore 
that every word in it was her own, and that it was written without 
assistance in spite of some striking similarities in language to 
earlier submissions on behalf of defendants. 
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significant ways. In the deposition that followed, however, Ms. 

Falcone withdrew or substantially modified many of the allegations 

that she had previously leveled at Ms. Goldstein. While even 

the "softened" accusations will be shown to be false, and while 

a full airing of Ms. Falcone's charges must await the hearing 

and adversary cross-examination (which we carefully avoided on 

deposition), a comparison of her affidavit and deposition!/ 

is instructive at this juncture to enable the Court to make a 

preliminary appraisal of Ms. Falcone's testimony. 

1. Affidavit - 'Ms. Goldstein harassed and 

accused me of lying and withholding in-

formation and then threatened that I would 

be held for perjury and thrown into jail." 

Deposition - Ms. Falcone testified that 

Ms. Goldstein never directly accused her of 

lying nor did she, in fact, threaten to have 

her thrown into jail. Ms. Falcone did testify 

that Ms. Goldstein asked her whether she knew 

What the penalty for perjury was, and that 

Ms. Falcone construed this question, in the 

Counsel have not yet been furnished with copies of the 
depositions, but we believe that the transcripts thereof will 
fully support our references here. 
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context in which it was asked, as an accusation 

of perjury and a threat to be sent to jail. 

Ms. Goldstein will testify that the subject of 

perjury was never mentioned. 

Ms. Falcone also testified that the interview 

ended amicably. Even if Ms. Goldstein had mentioned 

the penalties for perjury - and she did not - the 

filing of an affidavit that Ms. Goldstein threatened 

Ms. Falcone with imprisonment, when the affiant will 

testify to no more than she did, is at least reckless 

disregard of the truth. 

2. Affidavit -"[Ms. Goldstein] accused me of not 

legitimately owning my own business and stated that 

the money I used for its purchase was illegally 

obtained,which it was not. " 

Deposition - Ms. Falcone acknowledged that 

Ms. Goldstein never accused her of obtaining funds 

for her business in an illegal manner. She stated 

that Ms. Goldstein remarked during the interview 

about the fact that Ms. Falcone owned her own establish-

ment even though she was young and had apparently earned 

low wages from Trump. Ms. Falcone inferred from this, 

and from nothing else, that she was being charged with 

having illegally obtained money to finance her business. 
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3. Affidavit - "I was interviewed by a Ms. Donna 

Goldstein, attorney for the Civil Rights Division 

of the Justice Department and £y another attorney on 

the morning of July 19, 1974, at my place of business 

in connection with the Civil Rights suit against my 

former employer, Trump Management." She also 

referred later in the affidavit to her interrogators 

in the plural. 

Deposition - Ms. Falcone testified that only 

Ms. Goldstein interviewed her about the suit 

and that no other attorney was present. Ms. 

Falcone did say that another attorney had called 

her several days beforehand for the purpose 

of arranging an interview. 

The foregoing description of some of the discrepancies in 

Ms. Falcone's testimony, given under oath*/ on two separate occasions, 

is not intended to be exhaustive or necessarily dispositive of 

the matter. We believe, however, that this discussion does shed 

light on the insubstantial basis for the serious charges made 

against Ms. Goldstein. At the hearing on our motion, we expect to 

establish that none of the accusations directed at Ms. Goldstein 

are true and that the entire affidavit should be stricken as sham 

*I On deposition, Ms. Felcone was unwilling to answer, clearly and 
unambiguously, whether or not she knew she was under oath when she 
signed the affidavit. 
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and false. We will also ask that the appropriate inferences be 

drawn against defendants for the use of such tactics. 

(2) Mr. Thomas Miranda 

The principal accusation of misconduct made by Mr. Miranda 

against Ms. Goldstein is contained in his affidavit in which he 

states the following: 

"[Goldstein] stated that if I did not 

cooperate with her and in effect 'lie' 

in order to help her in her ambitions 

and winning her case, 'I will be thrown 

into jail. "' 

On deposition, Mr. Miranda reaffirmed this allegation. He acknow-

ledged that his dealings with Ms. Goldstein were friendly, but he 

described her as "tough" on the job. 

In this litigation, both parties have at different times 

sought to rely on Miranda's ability to tell the truth and it is 

necessary to explain Miranda's role in this litigation in order to 

assess the validity of his recent charges against Ms. Goldstein. 

About one year ago, attorney Elyse Goldweber, who was then 

employed by the Department of Justice and assigned to this case, 

interviewed Mr. Miranda as part of plaintiff's preparation of this 

litigation. The nature and substance of that interview are described 

in an affidavit submitted by Ms. Goldweber in connection with these 
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proceedings. According to Ms. Goldweber, Mr. Miranda provided 

information to the effect that defendants engaged in racially dis-

criminatory practices. He also indicated that he was deeply 

concerned that he might be physically harmed by the defendants if 

they became aware that he had furnished damaging information to the 

Department of Justice. Subsequent to that interview, plaintiff, as 

part of its obligations under the rules of discovery, furnished 

defendants, in response to their interrogatories, with the infor-

mation provided by Mr. Miranda including his identity. Mr. Miranda 

was notified by letter that this had been done. A copy of that 

letter is attached to Ms. Goldweber's affidavit. 

During July of this year, Ms. Goldstein reinterviewed Mr. 

Miranda, since he was considered to be an important witness in this 

litigation and had not been contacted in several months. During 

that interview, Mr. Miranda, while expressing apprehension about 

becoming a witness in this action, provided additional information 

about defendants' discriminatory practices. A few days later, how-

ever, Mr. Miranda reversed direction and executed an affidavit 

effectively retracting the statements he had previously furnished to 

the two government attorneys, and accusing Ms. Goldstein of improper 

conduct. 

In his recent deposition, Mr. Miranda flatly denied that he 

had furnished to plaintiff any information unfavorable to defendants' 
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position in this litigation despite affidavits to the contrary by 

Ms. Goldweber and Ms. Goldstein. In this connection it is note-

worthy that defense counsel does not challenge Ms. Goldweber's 

veracity. Mr. Cohn's affidavit states that "At all times that she 

was in charge of the said investigation, Miss Goldweber pursued 

her duties with diligence, but observed legal and ethical 

strictures." 

The positions taken by Mr. Miranda and the two government 

counsel are, of course, irreconcilable. Obviously, if Mr. Miranda 

initially told Ms. Goldweber about racially discriminatory practices 

engaged in by the defendants, then the statements in his affidavit 

and deposition are false, and Ms. Goldstein did not make alleged 

threats designed to induce false testimony. The determination of 

whether Mr. Miranda made these statements turns largely on an 

assessment of the credibility of the witnesses. 

In view of the requirements of Rule 11 of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedures, relating to the signing of pleadings, one 

would ordinarily assume that defense counsel had reason to believe 

that Mr. Miranda was telling the truth and that counsel for the 

United States were lying. As previously stated, however, defense 

counsel never interviewed Mr. Miranda, and had never met him until 

August 26, 1974, more than a month after the affidavit was filed. 
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The only information which defense counsel had as to Mr. Miranda's 

veracity was the following excerpt from the deposition of defendant 

Fred Trump., at which counsel was present: 

Q. Do you have any knowledge of instructions that 

were given to any of your managers to attach a 

piece of paper in order to flag the main office that 

the prospective tenant was a black person? 

A. That is such lie, and by our friend, Mr. Miranda, 

who has been lying him, has taken 

home money, but hasn't produced ••• (Fred Trump 

Dep. p. 37) 
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B. Counsel for Plaintiff did not Engage 
In Unprofessional Conduct During a 
Records Inspection 

In his affidavit of July 29, 1974, defense counsel 

asserts that 

On or about June 12, 1974, Miss Goldstein 

counsel, literally descended 

upon the defendants with representatives of 

the Civil Rights Division and Student Interns 

demanding entry into the offices of Mr. Donald 

Trump, officer of the defendants' corporation, 

and production of defendants' records. (emphasis 

added) *I 

His affidavit further asserts that Ms. Goldstein and her colleagues 

ignored requests to contact the offices of defense counsel and 

that defendants were unsuccessful in getting plaintiff's 

representatives to leave their offices until defendants contacted 

the United States Attorney for the Eastern District. 

The affidavit also refers to a letter addressedm 
United States Attorney Henry Brachtl from Mr. Scott Manley, co-
counsel for defendants, which accuses plaintiff's representatives 
of "descending upon the Trump offices with five storm troopers 
•••• banging on the doors and demanding to be allowed to swarm 
haphazardly through all the Trump files and to totally disrupt 
their daily business routine." 
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These allegations against Ms. Goldstein, as well as 

against other representatives of plaintiff, in fact, bear 

virtually no resemblance to what actually took place on the 

morning of June 12th or the events leading up to that morning. 

The fact that neither counsel for defendants was present at 

the offices of defendants or accessible by telephone at the 

time when plaintiff's counsel arrived to inspect records may, in 

large part, explain the inaccuracies of the charges, but it 

does not excuse them. 

Even though plaintiff has previously described in its 

report of the United States to the Court on the Status of 

Discovery its position on these allegations, we take the 

opportunity again to set forth briefly, together with supporting 

documentary proof,the actual sequence of the events involving 

the proposed records inspection of June 12th. 

On May 6, 1974, plaintiff served and filed a Rule 34 

Request for Production of Documents on defense counsel Roy 

Cohn. (See letter of May 6, 1974, addreased to defense counsel ' ' 

and signed by Ms. Goldweber, attached as Appendix A). Another 

copy of the request was mailed to defense counsel Scott Manley 

by Ms. Goldweber pursuant to his telephone request on May 15, 1974. 

A third copy of the request was sent to Mr. Manley on May 28, 1974, 

following a telephone conversation between him and Ms. Goldstein 
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in which Mr. Manley stated that he knew nothing about the 

proposed inspection. (See letter of May 28, 1974, addressed 

to Mr. Manley and signed by Ms. Goldstein, attached as Appendix B.) 

Ms. Goldstein, in the course of two additional telephone 

conversations between May 28 and June 3, reminded Mr. Manley 

that plaintiff was planning to inspect records on June 12 at 

defendants' offices. At no time during these conversations did 

Mr. Manley express any objection to the inspection or indicate 

that the records would not be made available at the designated time 

and place. Moreover, defendants filed no objection to the records 

inspection, and did not suggest any alternative site or date, or 

any limitation on what plaintiff would be permitted to inspect. 

Plaintiff's representatives arrived at the offices of 

defendants on June 12th at the designated hour for inspection and 

were met by a group of Trump employees who expreksed surprise at 

plaintiff's visit. Initially, Mr. Stuart Hyman, controller of 

Trump Management, met solely with Mr. Henry Brachtl, Assistant 

United States Attorney. Ten to fifteen minutes later, Mr. Hyman 

met with the other representatives of plaintiff, including attorneys 

Norman P. Goldberg and Ms. Goldstein, and informed them that he 

was unaware of the · scheduled records inspection and that no 

records could be produced until he contacted defense counsel. 
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Ms. Goldstein attempted, without success, to reach Mr. Manley by 

telephone and left a message for him to contact her at the United 

States Attorney's office. Plaintiff's representatives then left 

the Trump offices and returned to the United States Attorney's 

office. 

About one hour later, Mr. Manley telephoned Ms. Goldstein 

at the office of the United States Attorney to inform her for the 

first time that he had objection to the inspection. Mr. Manley 

stated that these objections had previously been made to plaintiff 

whereupon Ms. Goldstein responded that no such objection had been 

transmitted and that, if defendants would not permit the in-

spection to proceed, plaintiff would file an appropriate motion. 

After some negotiations, defendants agreed to allow the inspection 

to begin on June 14, 1974, at the offices of defense counsel. 

It is apparent even from this brief discussion, and the 

attached documentation, that plaintiff did not bypass defense 

counsel in its efforts to inspect defendants' records pursuant 

to a properly noticed request. Moreover, contrary to the affidavit 

and letter of defense counsel, there was no banging on doors, 

overreaching or other improper conduct by any of plaintiff's 

representatives. No calls were made to the United States Attorney's 

office by defendants or their counsel complaining about the conduct 

of representatives of the plaintiff. 
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We are prepared to call at the hearing on this matter 

each of the representatives of plaintiff who has some knowledge 

of these events in order to refute defendants' charges. 

II. THE LAW 

While defendants' motion may simply be denied on the 

grounds that there are insubstantial facts to support it, there 

is additional authority under Rule 11 of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure for the striking of pleadings which are 

found to be sham and false. Rule 11 states: 

The signature of an attorney constitutes 
a certificate by him that he has read 
the pleading; that to the best of his 
knowledge, information, and belief 
there is good ground to support it; 
and that it is not interposed for delay. 
If a pleading is not signed or itis 
signed with intent to defeat the purpose 
of this rule, it may be stricken as 
sham and false and the action may 
proceed as though the pleading had not 
been served. For a willful violation 
of this rule an attorney may be subjected .. 
to appropriate disciplinary action. 
Similar action may be taken if scandalous 
or indecent matter is inserted. 

That Rule is to be construed as imposing an affirmative obligation 

on the attorney filing the documents that he has in good faith 

made the determination that there is good ground to support the 

facts contained in the pleadings. Freeman v. Kirby, 27 F.R.D. 

395, 397 (S.D.N.Y. 1961). The evidence suggests that this 

obligation was not fulfilled. Counsel who disregard this Rule 
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are to be held "strictly accountable." United States for the 

Benefit of Foster Wheeler Corp. v. American Surety, 25 F. Supp. 

225 (E.D.N.Y. 1938). The sanctions provided in the Rule 

provide not only for the striking of a pleading found to be sham 

and false but also for such disciplinary or other action as 

may be appropriate. 

* * * * 
If the Court finds, after hearing, that defendants' 

allegations of unprofessional conduct against plaintiff's cousel are 

sham and false, plaintiff will ask not only that this Court 

strike those pleadings containing such allegations but that it 

draw appropriate unfavorable inferences against defendants at 

the time of the presentation of their cases on the merits. To 

quote Professor Wigmore 

[A] party's falsehood or other 
fraud in the preparation and 
presentation of his cause, his 
fabrication or suppression of 
evidence by bribery or spoliation, 
and all similar conduct, is 
receivable against him as an 
indication of his consciousness 
that his case is a weak or 
unfounded one; and from that 
consciousness may be inferred 
the fact itself of the cause's 
lack of truth or merit. The 
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inference thus does not apply 
itself necessarily to any specific 
fact in the cause, but operates, 
indefinitely though strongly, against 
the whole mass of alleged facts 
constituting his cause. Wigmore on 
Evidence, §278 (3rd Ed. 1940) 

That principle set forth,in Wilson v. United States, 162 

u.s. 613, 620 (1886),has been consistently followed by federal 

courts. See e.g. Holt v. United States 272 F.2d (9th Cir. 1959) 

Andrews v. United States, 57 F.2d 723 (5th Cir. 1946). Accordingly, if 

the Court concludes that defendants made spurious claims against 

plaintiff's counsel which disrupted plaintiff's preparation of its 

case and misled the Court, as well, we submit that the propriety 

of drawing an inference as to the weakness of the defendants' 

case would be particularly appropriate. 

CONCLUSION 

Fore the foregoing reasons, we respectfully request 

that this matter be set down for hearing in advance of the trial, 

*I This episode is merely the most striking example of conduct 
by the defense of the kind condemned by Wigmore, and not the 
first. In that connection, plaintiff invites the Court's attention 
to our Memorandum of the United States in Response to the 
Affidavits of Donald Trump and Roy Cohn, filed on January 7, 1974, 
and to the Report of the United States to the Court on the Status 
of Discovery, filed on August 25,1974. 
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that the defendants' motion be dismissed with prejudice as 

sham and false, and that appropriate sanctions be ordered as 

the Court deems just and proper. 

JAMES PORTER, Chief 
HENRY A. BRACHTL, Attorney 
United States Attorney's 
Office for the Eastern 
District 

Civil Division 

Respectfully submitted, 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, Chief 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG, Attorney 
Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 
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2. Pursuant to the agreement made by counsel of the 

United States in open court on October 24, 1974, we submit 

the following list of names which represents those persons 

who were contacted in connection with the investigation 

and preparation of this action: 

Miriam Abrams 

Casper Aloi 

Cosmo Aloi 

Shirley Ames 

Corinthia Anderson 

Lola Anderson 

Carmen Baceret 

Jose R. Barros 

Peter Baybak 

Victor Baybak 

Susan Bernstein 

Beverly Best 

Vikentije Besu 

Luiz Betencourt 

Kalman Biczo 

Theodore Bogart 

Harriette Bolling 

Carl Bonekoskey 

Rene Bouchard 

Gerard Breitner 

Donald Brofman 

Mae F. Brown 

Maxine Brown 

William V. Buffa 

Mr. & Mrs. Ronald Bunn 

Stephanie Bush 
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Joseph Calcaterra 

Doreen Cameron 

Alfred Cardilli 

Regis Cardillo 

Martin Celnick 

Lawrence Ceraula 

Michael Cheng 

Andrew Cirelli 

Ruth Clarke 

William Clay 

William Cloonan 

Nafi Coker 

Peter Connan 

Ismail Dahbali 

Henrietta Davis 

Marie Davis 

Glen G. Day 

Oscar G. Deagustini 

John DeMark 

Edward Dier 

Charles Duryea 

John Egeland 

Rufus Ensley 

Selma Epstein 

Janice Evans 

Carol Falcone 

Diane Falcone 

Victor Falcone 

Theresa Farina 

Skender Fici 
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Elizabeth DiFiore 

Max Fischer 

Richard Foard 

Jack Fogler 

Marva Forde 

Linda K. Friedman 

Anita Furman 

Edwardo Galdames 

Mary Gallager 

Annette Gandy 

Edgar Gelar 

Rhoda Glasser 

L. Goldberg 

Monique Golden 

Dina Goldfarb 

Morris Goldfarb 

Adolfo Gomez 

Benny Gonzales 

James Gordon 

Patrick Dennis Green 

Max Greenbaum 

Hyla Greenberg 

Frank W. Greene 

Allan Gross 

Mabel Gruber 

Josephine Gugliotta 

Ernestine Guzman 
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Virginia Hallem 

Lucy Hanna 

Herbert Heller 

Mr. & Mrs. Ricky Helms 

Donald Herman 

Robert Heusel 

Sara Heyman 

Mr. & Mrs. Alfred Hoyt 

Ann Hurley 

Stuart Hyman 

Clara Jacobs 

Gustav Jaeckh 

Carolina Kanguat Jivi 

George Sim Johnston 

Charles Jonap 

Ellis W. Jones 

Margaret Jones 

Rose M. Jones 

Nettie Kerstein 

Harry Kreitzer 

Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Laitman 

Guido Lara 

Henry Lawson 

Adelfa Leal 

Joan Legeno 

Anthony F. Licari 

Ray LiMani 

Nicholas Luttendodt 
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Dora Mabunda 

John Mare 

Charles W. Martin 

Mary Massa 

Gary M. McCaskill 

Peter Menza 

Youn Minn 

Thomas Miranda 

Charles Mitchell 

Geraldine Mitchell 

Esther Monasch 

Lillian Morales 

Robert Morrison 

John Mosby 

Sheila Moskowitz 

Alan Newman 

Gertrude Olin 

Wilma Parker 

Robert L. Patterson 

Yolanda Perez 

Julius Reinheimer 

Thomas Randazzo 

Joseph Reed 

Frank Regina 

Julius Reinheimer 

Gertrude Robinson 

Walter Rohr 

Chauncey Roles 

Abraham Rosenberg 
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Robert Rosenblaum 

Erruna Rossinsky 

Albert Rossland 

Andrew Rossner 

Muriel Salzman 

Louis Sarnell 

Ruth Sarver 

Dominic Scaglione 

Mr. and Mrs. Harry Schefflin 

Helen Schnitman 

Marcia Schwartz 

Charles Sedita 

Louis Sforza 

Martin Shaechter 

Sarah Shah 

Pearl Shaw 

Muriel Silberberg 

Otis Simpson 

Gloria V. Sloley 

Herb Smith 

Phyllis Spiro 

Frank Stern 

Jeanette Strauss 

Simone Taha 

Meilech Teitelbaum 

Matthew Tosti 

Anthony Tringo 
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L. Warkol 

Olga Wusits 

J. Hugh Watkins 

Edward Watson 

Arlene Weiler 

James Gordon White 

Robert H. White 

Bill Wiedmann 

Pauline M. Williams 

Helen Wrenne 

Abraham Wybinow 

Stephen Zaffarano 

Mr. and Mrs. Paula Ziselman 

Frank E chwelb 
Norman • Goldberg 
Donna F. Goldstein 
Attorneys, 
Civil Rights Division 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
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D3 1/5 - 5 . - 8 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20530 

Honorable ',d:; . R. 
Ui:litt.:d States Ji:.otric:.: L:ourt 

District ol N0w York 
.. 5 Ca.dman PLr:d •:a;.:; t 

Brooklyn, New York 
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N0\1 c, l 1974 * 
SEP 1 71974 

tnitcd States v. Frc:d c;. Trump, ei: al. 
Civil c\c tion No. 73 C 15:.9 

Ncuhcr: 

On September 11, 1974, we received copy of a l2tter 
uent by Hr. Roy to NagL;tr.::ttc in \vhich h2 st:lte;,; 
th:1t he has re·,ue:.; i::.:d that the above-captioned :.:>uit be placed 
on the trial cJlendar. our responding letter to Magictratc 

(a copy is indicates, ';vc b·-'lic.:vc 
i:herc are im_Jort<:ut matt12r::.; remaining outstanding .vhich need 
to be [)Cttled thL. i;: ;:let ::=or trial. 

For exumple, dei.encL:u:.ts have mc::de objections to plc:d.L-
tL.J:'.s 13th Rccu:.::st .:or Production o::: Document:::;. 1'hc-: 

no·;v :n'lliting a determination by r·l·::l8istra.te C:<ttoggio 
to the permissibility of this discov0ry. 

;v::: intend, in the very near S:uture, to :'::..le ;1 motion to Strike 
defendants' July Notice ot Motion and Supporting 
which seek action against plaintl2f's counsel ior 
alle:gcd mif:conduct. IiS you mc:lY rfJC'lll, on ..:mgu::.;t 1:3, 
atter the hearing on plaintiif's Order to Show SJuse, th0 
p::trtle:c; m·.; t \vith Judge: Ca toggio. that tl.rtt,_: the de:.:: encL:hlts 

to contempt motion from thL ce::lenda.r, 
but to agree to <1 full uithdr.l\>Jdl with udice. 



PL1in1:i.;_:: th .. :.l: <..LllovJing l::hiL dot:.::.on i.:o rem:lin in it::., 
pr-=::::l:nt ;;tate oL lirnbo only :.:;crvc:c to J:urt: . .tcr c:: oud the 
in this additionally unduly th2 repu-
tation of one with charges &hich we nrc 

i.:o prove arc toi.:e::.lly ·:vithout 

'fhc St<.:;tc;:; ;rnts ,•llJ. curly and cx 1)editious trlc.1l 
' h o • l • • h l o ' r• ' r .. , (' ., 1..n t lS c:.1se ln zecplng t 1c u. u. c. 
3613. in fact, this could Qlre2dy 6cen tried 
had it not been Ior the continued delays and dilatory tactics 
occasioned by the and their counsel. Eowcvcr, 
do not believe that with these outstanding issues ocill 
unre::.:olveG, this ca::;e i::; now re;Jdy to be s•:::t ::or trial. J.'h .. .:r2-
iore, .Je urge that this case not be placed on the 
trial calcnJur until the resolution o; these open m3tters. 

kesrcctfully yours, 

..J • S'L\NLSY PO'.l"LLN•:-:m;. 
Assist3nt Attorney Cen0ral 

Civil Rights 0ivision 
f' 

1 ') '\ 

;J y: \ (;,Ji kJO 
NCm.i'L\N P. GOLDBERG 

.. \.t torn2y 
Housing Sc,ction 

cc: The Honorable Vincent ii. 

Roy M. Gohn, Es4uire 
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'; "'- L. L,... 
CLERK'S OFFICE JSP:FES:DFG:car 

DJ 175-52-28 tJ S, D:STWCT COURT E,D. N.Y. 

Honorable Vincent A. Catoggio * NO\IG/ 1974 
Magistrate, United States District Court * 
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadnmn Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 .. 

Re: United States v. Fred C. Trlmp, et al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Judge Catoggio: 

We have just received a copy of Mr. Roy Cohn's 
September 5, 1974, letter to y9u in which he contends that 
our response to defendants' objections to plaintiff's Request 
for cf Documents iu c.usc •aa 
so untimely as to render the isr;ue "academic." While we 
hesitate to burden you with additional correspondence on this 
matter, we believe the letter raises issues requiring a short 
response. 

On August 20, after being informed by the United States 
Attorney's office that Mr. Cohn had _objected by letter to our 
request to inspect records in Norfolk, Virginia, we delivered 
a letter to you which advised that we intended to respond 
fully to these objections. You may recall that on September 3, 
I advised your Honor by telephone that I was on that date 
mailing, by special delivery, plaintiff's response. During 
that conversation, it \·las my impression that the matter 
remained open for determination. 

Despite Mr. Cohn's assertion that the issue is now 
"academic," we believe that Plaintiff's outstanding Request . 
for Production of Documents, noticed on August 13, 1974, 
remains .:ictive and survives the .September first discovery 



.. 

,, 
deadline. lndeed, if plaintiff's September third response is 
deemed to be untimely because it comes after the discovery 
deadline, defendants would succeed in defeating what would 
otherwise be permissible discovery by making informal objections 
at the eleventb hour. 

Mr. Cohn also indicates that he has asked Judge Neaher 
to fix an early trial date. We have, as yet, received no 
notice from the defendants, either formal or informal, that 
they have requested that this case be put on the trial calendar. 
Howeve;, we will be contacting Judge Neaher to advise htm 
we believe there are certain matters remaining outstanding in 
this lawsuit which need to be settled before this action is 
set for trial. These include our request to inspect records 
in Norfolk, Virginia, and a forthcoming motion which we intend 
to to have defendants' July 26 notice of Motion and 
supporting Affidavits, which seek to have plaintiff's counsel· 
held in contempt of court, stricken from the record. 

Ragpectfully yours, 

J. STANLEY POTTINGER . 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

. By: 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Attorney 

Housing Section 

cc: Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
Roy M. Cohn, Esquire 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20530 

Addreoo Reply to the 
Division Indicated 

and Refer to lnitiala and Number 

DJ 175-5: <.8 

t A. Catoggio 
HagL.;trat<::, DL'trict .:ourt 
. District of H•.:tv York 

Cadmau Plaza 2aLt 
llrooklyJ, New York 

,. .. ,n 

lt-.J c: d;< S 
u.S. D:SL E.Il N.Y . 

* NO\/G l 1974 * 
Rc: UQitGd States v. Fred C. Trump, ct al. 

Civil Action No. 73 C 

Dear Judge Catoggio: 

lv,v._ jus i.: received a copy of Nr. Roy Cohn 1 s 
S.c.:ptr:::mbc;r 5, 1974, letter to you iu which he contends thai.: 
our response to defeilda11ts 1 ooj -.:ctions to plaintiff' E'· Request 
for Production of Docum-2nl:;:_; the: abovc-c:1ptioned ca::c 
so untimely as to render th:.. issue "academic. 11 \'Je 

hesitate to you l.·lith udditional corrcspond•c:l,c;.;: on thi::; 
matt2r, tht: l:c'ttt::r i:;suQS re(juiring a short 

Ot1 .c-\ugust ::0, by tl1:= lJ11itcd St.:-ttcs 
1 ;:.1 office that Hr. (;ohn had obj c:cted by lett'O.:r to our 

. ' . f lk 'J • . . d 1 . ' to 1ospect recoras 1n Nor·o , 1rg1n1a, we c 1verea 
a to you which advised that we intended to r0spo0d 
2ully to these obj ectior:s. You may recall that on 3, 
I advised your Honor by telephone that l was 011 that date 

by special delivery, plaL.tiff 1 s response. During 
that conv,:;rsation, it was my impression that the mnttcr 
remained opea for determLnation. 

Des 1)itc Hr. Cohn 1 s asscrtio;1 that the is sure: is dOW 
":icademic, 11 we believe that Plainti:cf' s outstanding Requ:::st 
for Production of Documeot:::, noticed on ,August 13, 1974, 

c:tctivc and survivc:s the September first discovery 
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de::t.Jlinc:. indc'ed, if plainciLc 's September ::hird e J.EJ 
deemed to be untimely it comes actor the . .::ry 
de:1dline, 'vould ;_;uccec::d in defeating <vhat c'JOuld 
ot::hcnvise be pcrmi.:;;sible discovery 0y making informal cb} 

the eleventh hour. 

l'1r. c:ohn al;:.;o indicates l:h:J.t he has asked Judge £-h.:t.lhcr 
to fix an edrly trial date. We have, us yet, received no 
notice l:rom the de:LenC:.:-Jntc, eiL:her for:n:Jl or infornn.l, that 
they have that be put on the trial c2lcndur. 
however, we will be contacting Judge Neaher to advise him thac 
00 believe there are certain mJtters remaining in 
this lawsuit which need to be settled before this is 

lor trial. These our request to in3pect records 
in Norfolk, Virginia, .::md ::t forthcoming motion ;-vhich -.ve intend 
to file to have defendants' July :6 notice of Motion snd 
supporting Affidavits, which seek to have plaintiff's counsel 
held in contempt o£ court, stricken from the record. 

Rc3pcct£ully yours, 

J. STANLEY 
As3istant General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: *\ G . - - . 
DONNA 

,\.ttorney 
Section 

cc: Honorable 2dward R. Neaher 
Roy M. cohn, 
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(212) 472-1400 THOMAS A. BoLAN 
COUNSEL 

ROY M. COHN 
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Honorable Vincent A. Catoggio 
Magistrate, United States District 
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Court +:. 

Re: United States v. Fred c. Trump, et al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Judge Catoggio: 

On August 14, 1974 Your Honor fixed September 1, 1974 
for the completion of all discovery in the above entitled matter. 
The Government noticed a bunch of depositions in addition to the 
13 they had already taken, and requested a volume of new records 
pertaining to the buildings involved. 

We promptly advised that we would object to none of 
the depositions and would supply all of the records. The only 
exception, which we set forth in a letter to Your Honor dated 
August 20, 1974, was our objection to the attempt to ring in 
some buildings in Norfolk, Virginia which were never mentioned 
during its pendency until 10 days before the conclusion of 
discovery. We received no objection to our letter of August 
20, 1974, stating that we would supply all of the witnesses 
and records requested except for the extention to the Norfolk 
buildings, and assumed that that ended the matter. We went 
ahead and completed the depositions and produced the records. 

The date for conclusion of discovery passed on Sep-
tember 1, 1974. Now, on September 5, 1974, I received in the 
morning mail a reply to our letter of two and a half weeks ago 
(August 20, 1974), raising the Norfolk issue again. 



1971! 

Very truly yours, 

-1li It • 
United States Magistrate 
J'3f.tfl:'te.:rn .Dlstrict o:t .Nm'l Y::-n:•k 
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20530 

SEP 3 1974 

Honorable Vincent A. Catoggio 
Magistrate, United States 

Dit;trict Court 
District of New York 

Cadman East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Re: United Stater v. Fred C. Trump, et al. 
Civil No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Judge CAtoggio: 

This h; in to Mr. Cohn's letter to you dated 
August ?0, 1974, in which he objected to plaintiff's 
for Production of Documeots from apartmer.t buildingr; mvned by 
the defendants in Norfolk, Virginia. Since he proceeded inform-
ally by letter, we are doing the s.:1me, rather than filing a formal 
motion. 

Mr. Cohn's objection appears to be based essentially on 
two grounds: relevancy timeliness. Specifically he con-
tends that the is not entitled to any discovery with 
respect to apartment buildings in Norfolk, VirginL'"', because 
the United Stater made no allegations of discrimination in 
Norfolk either in its Complaint or in its A.1swers to Interro-
gatories. He further argues that the ree:uest is untimely 
because it comes on 11 the eve of conclusion of discovery. 11 He 
believe that such documents are properly discoverable and that 
the issue of lack of timeliness has been inequit2bly raised, 
since any lateness was directly created by defendants' con-
tinuous pos and delays during discovery. 

Before directly dealing with defendants' specific objec-
tions, we respond to defendants' repeated contention that plain-
tifJ should have had its evidence before bringing this lawsuit, 
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rather than relying on discovery. As plaintiff's answers to 
interrogatories and its forthcoming supplemented answers will 
indicate, the United States has a substantial amount of evi-
dence, quite independent of discovery, indicating discrimina-
·tory housing practices. Before filing a Complaint under 42 
U.S.C. 3601 et seq. the Attorney General must have "reasonable 
cause" to believe that the defendants have engaged in a pattern 
or practice of di::;crimination. If defendants believe that 
such reasonable cause does not exist, the appropriate remedy 
would have been a motion for summary judgment which would have 
tested the credibility of their oft-repeated 
Defendants having failed so to move, each party is entitled 
to discovery, both to discover additional evidence and to 
prepare to meet its adversary's case. Considering that the 
Trumps control in excess of 12,000 units, our discovery has 
been modest in comparison to what occurs, for example, in the 
typical case. 

To support the allegation that the United States is not 
entitled to information with respect to buildings outside of 
New York City, defendants represent that Judge Neaher found 
plaintiff's Complaint too general. In fact, on January 25, 
1974, Judge Neaher denied defendants' motion for a more definite 
statement and directed the defendants to seek its specifications 
through interrogatories. lt is also alleged that plaintiff 
has heretofore made no mention of buildings outside New York. 
This too is incorrect and we respectfully direct your Honor's 
attention to paragraph 3 of the Complaint which states that 
the defendants own and operate apartment buildings in "New 
York City and elsewhere 11 (emphasis added) and to page 29 of 
the Deposition of Donald Trump, where plaintiff attempted to 
obtain information about these very buildings now in dispute. 
Nr. Cohn at that time objected to the pursuit of the issue, 
based on his 11reading 1

' of the Complaint contrary to its terms. 

Even if our attempt to inspect Norfolk records were a 
"fishing expedition," that would not be controlling, for "no 
longer may the time-honored cry o£ fishing expedition serve 
to preclude a party from inquiring into the facts underlying 
his opponent's case." Hickman v. Taylor, 329 U.S. 495, 507 
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(194J). In any event, this is no fishing expedition. Our 
forthcoming supplemental answers to interrogatories will dis-
close alleged at Trump's Norfolk properties. 

We will not burden your Honor with citations for the 
incontestable proposition that the discovery rules are to be 
liberally applied, and that discovery extends not only to 
matters that are admissible in evidence but also to those that 
may lead to the discovery of adrnisf:ible evidence. The Corn-
plaint alleges that defendants have engaged in a 11 pattern and 
practice of discrimination." If defendants were to introduce 
evidence, for example, that their Norfolk operation is fully 
integrated, that it affirmatively advertises to attract blacks 
into a white area, etc., that evidence would surely be receiv-
able. For that reason alone, plaintiff is entitled to dis-
covery to prepare for it. 

Conversely, if plaintiff's discovery in fact discloses 
discriminatory practices at apartments outside New York City, 
that evidence would be admissible toward proving such a 
"pattern or practice." In the debates on the 1964 Civil 
Rights A.ct, Senator Humphrey remarked that: 

"there would be a pattern or practice if, for 
example, ... a chain of motels or restaurants 
practiced racial diE'.crimination throughout all, 
or a significant part of its system. 110 Cong. 
Rec. 142JO (June 18, 1967). 

Defendants' assertion that discovery may not be secured 
outside the parameters ot: the specific discriminatory incidents 
listed in our answers to interrogatories, prepared before dis-
covery began is inconsistent with the very purposes of dis-
covery, for the Rules are designed to enable the parties to 
discover all pertinent facts. This is particularly true in 
Civil Rights cases, in which "statistics tell much and courts 
li;::ten," United States v. Youritan Construction Corp., 370 
F. Supp. 643 (N.D. Calif. 1973) and cases cited, and the overall 
statistical picture is therefore critical. In Burns v. 
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Chemical Corp., 483 F. 2d 300 (5th Cir. 1973), a suit brought 
under the Equal Employment Opportunity Act, Title VII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000e statute 
almost identical in respects here pertinent to the Fair 
Housing Act, the district court had limited plaintiff's 
discovery to only those employment records relating directly 
to the specific incidents of discrimination 'tvhich had pre-
cipitated the lawsuit. The Court of Appeals for the Fifth 
Circuit reversed, holding that this limitation was an abuse 
of the district court's discretion. The court allowed full 
discovery of records relating to the employment of all of 
the defendants' employees, stating: ---

Our 'tvide experience with cases involving 
racial discrimination in education, employment, 
and other segments of society have led us to 
rely heavily in Title VII cases on the empirical 
data which show an employer's overall pattern of 
conduct in determining whether he has discriminated 
against particular individuals or a class as a 
whole. (Emphasis added), 483 F. 2d 300, 305 
(5th Cir. 1973). 

If a defendants' overall practices are relevant in a suit 
on behalf of an individual plaintiff, they are even more 
relevant in a pattern and practice case, in which admis-
sibility is very broad. Evidence of a pattern and practice 
can go back "many many years." Kennedy v. Lynd, 306 F. 
2d 222, 228 (5th Cir. 1962) cert. den. 371 U.S. 952 (1962). 
Moreover, if the United States proves its allegations, it 
will be entitled to broad injunctive relief. Louisiana v. 
United States, 380 U.S. 145, 154 (1965). The Court of 
Appeals for the Fifth Circuit has recently held that injunc-
tive relief may be available as to all of defendants' 
operations upon a showing of discrimination only at some of 
them. Brennan v. Fields, 488 F. 2d 443 (5th Cir. 1973). 
If the other complexes are relevant to relief, it is surely 
imperative that sufficient facts be discovered to ensure 
that the relief fit the operation. 
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We would like to briefly address ourselves to defendants' 
ironic claim that plaintiff's request is untimely. First, the 
request came on the date specified by your Honor. Second, 
without burdening your Honor with the long list of cancellations 
and delays occasioned by defense counsel during discovery, we 
earnestly request that you consider our prior submissions on 
this question particularly pp. 4-6 of plaintiff's Memorandum in 
Support of its Motion for Sanctions, and our recent Status Report 
on discovery. These passages show that the experience encoun-
tered by you at the original hearing on discovery, when defense 
counsel showed up several hours late, was no aberration. It is 
because of the delays here described, and our attempt to secure 
discovery in an orderly and logical pattern, that we have only 
now requested records inspection as to complexes outside New 
York City. In the Status Report we address ourselves to defen-
dants' failure to answer several of the United States' interroga-
tories even after two motions to compel. If these interrogatories 
had been answered, some of the information we are now seeking 
would be unnecessary. At the January 25 hearing, Judge Neaher 
stated that if the defendants were to find the United States' 
interrogatories burdensome, "you will then be faced with the 
Government's demand for production; the right to inspect and 
copy your records." (Tr. p. 38). 

The United States has attempted to meet the discovery 
deadline which you set at the August 8 meeting in your office 
by moving swiftly to apprise the defendants of the remaining 
discovery we wished to secure. We think the defendants must 
now accept their share of the responsibility for this Request 
coming on the "eve of conclusion of discovery." The United 
States therefore respectfully requests that defendants be 
required to produce the requested documents. 

cc: Mr. Roy Cohn 

Sincerely, 

J. STANLEY POTTINGER 
Assistant Attorney General 

. 
By: .A . . . , 

DONNA GO STEIN 
Attorney 

Housing Section 

Attorney for the Defendants 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
'-','(,. 

NOV 7 1974 EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

---------------------------------x T!f\1E 1\Jl. ...... · · · · · · •: 
P.r.l. ............. •· 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

-against-
73-C-1529 

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 

---------------------------------x 

United States Courthouse 
Brooklyn, New York 

October 24, 1974 

B e f o r e : 

HONORABLE EDWARD R. NEAHER, U.S.D.J. 

DANIEL D. SIMON 
OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 
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United States Attorney 
for the Eastern District of New York 
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NORMAN GOLDBERG, ESQ. 
Assistant U.S. Attorneys 
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Attorney for Defendant 
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MR. SCH1i'7ELB = f-1ay I make a few ooening remarks, 

your Honor 

MR. COHN: Before he makes his opening remarks, 

we are ready to ao forward, however, there are three 

witnesses we hope to call that couldn't be here today, 

but I would like the conclusion of this mornina's hear-

ing to ask your Honor to give us another date. 

But we are ready, your Honor. 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, in relation to that, 

as you know, we asked Cohn to answer some interrocra 

tories. And he gave a representation here in open 

Court that these would be the \d tnesses. 

I -- He has not answered the interroaatories 

further nor would he tell me on the telephone on Friday 

or Thursday who the witnesses are he cares to call. 

HR. COHN: It is very simple. The witnesses 

whose affidavits we have attached to these very papers. 

r'm. SCHWELB: The Zisselmans? 

MR. COHN: There are two we propose to call. 

And the third one is a man named Dan Bronfman. 

MR. SCHWELB: Just a few opening remarks, your 

Honor, as you know, this matter arose when rather casua ly 

and matter of factly mv colleage, Mr.Cohn, filed some 

affidavits which accusec my colleaaues in the Civil 

Riahts Division, Mr. Brachtel, of staqina a gestapo 
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raid on the Trump office and bypassing counsel. He 

claimed that Miss Dona Goldstein, a young and promisin 

attorney, had engaged in criminal and unethical conduct 

which included threats to witnesses about perjuring 

themselves, and wire tapping, or talkina to people, 

and that we wiretapped the Trump offices and we knew 

from wiretaps that they were lyinq and all kinds of 

terrible things. 

And unlike the defense counsel we do not treat 

this as a minor matter, but with the areatest of seriou -

ness. 

We determined to lay out the facts before the 

Court in an evidenciary hearing so that the Court could 

make up its own mindaas to whether these charges had 

any merit to them. 

Your Honor will recallthat we immediately pro-

pounded interrogatories and the Court signed an order 

to show cause to get an immediate response to those 

interrogatories. 

'ft1e also took depositions of a couple of the pro-

posed witnesses. And then we went before Maaistrate 

Catoggio -- and I don't know if vour Honor has been in-

formed about this -- and Maaistrate Catogqio suggested 

to Mr. Cohn that he withdraw this entire thinq. And 

Mr. Cohn said he wouldn't withdraw it. He would iust 
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drop it from the calendar. But that would leave the 

charges hanging over Miss Goldstein indefinitely. Tha 

is not acceptable to us or not acceptable to me as 

Miss Goldstein's supervisor. 

I do not want one of our attornevs to be so un-

fairly treated. I do not want a cloud over her head 

in her professional life -- for the remainder of her 

life without being heard. 

So now therefore I ask for an evidenciary hear-

ing and want to have it today. 

Now, with respect to the storm trooper raid busi 

ness which Mr.Cohn had in his affidavit and the letter 

from his colleague, Mr. Manley, I think we can establis 

by the testimony of Miss Goldstein and Mr. Brachtel, 

and by documentary proof, that this affidavit about 

something at which neither Mr. Cohn or Hr. Manley was 

present, that that didn't happen like anythincr that 

was represented there and we will be able to show as 

a matter of fact, to use Judge Wisdom's phrase, that 

that count about storm troopers and qestapo raids re-

calls the eery atmosphere of never-never land. 

And with respect to the allecration acrainst Miss 

Goldstein personally, the discovery and the depositions 

of these witnesses disclose a number of crross con-

trasts and extraordinary circumstances. 
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Mrs. Falcone in her affidavit says that two 

attorneys intimidated her in her affidavit, abused 

her, and on her deposition she said it was onlv one, 

Miss Goldstein. A lot of conclusions were based on 

inferences. 

In her affidavit, for example, she said that 

Hiss Goldstein accused her of dating Mr. Trump 

MR. COHN: Your Honor, I hate to interrupt but 

is this summation? If it is an evidenciary hearing 

why don't "'e hear "VThat the witnesses say without .hav-

ing !'1r. Schwelb, before they say it, tell your Honor 

what it is 

MR. SCHWELB: I am outlining my proof, your Hono • 

THE COURT: Well, he says he is outlining his 

proof. Of course I have read the affidavit already sub 

mitted which I assume you are summing up? 

MR. SCHWELB: All right, your Honor, I will 

shorten it. 

Nm,, with respect to Hr. Miranda I iust wanted 

to state that he testified on deposition that he ran 

from Mr. Trump and said he didn't want-- that is Donal 

Trump -- to be involved with his lousy case, and that 

the proof much of his testimony was to the effect 

that what he didn't like about Miss Goldstein was that 

she was tryinq to compel him to be involved in a case h 
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didn't want to be involved with. 

Now, both of these witnesses said pleasant good 

byes. Mrs. Falcone it will be shown had -- I am sorry 

-- Miss Goldstein had coffee and cake with him at the 

conclusion of these terrible intimidations that she 

performed. 

And I think it will be shmm that that is not 

the kind of conduct -- the kind of reaction you have 

to somebody who is saying this kind of thing. That 

wasn't all discovered. 

Now, your Honor, we have become accustomed in 

this case to events and circumstances which have oc-

casionally made me rub my eyes in astonishment that 

they are happening. 

For example we had a hundred million dollar 

counterclaim filed by defense counsel in this case 

MR. COHN: Excuse me. Your Honor, does this bea 

on the contempt motion before your Honor today? 

THE COURT: I do not think it really has a direct 

bearing. I will qive you an opportunity, Mr. Schwelb, 

if you feel it is necessary, to sum up in these matters 

at the end of the case. 

MR. SCHWELB: All right. 

THE COURT: Now, before we go any further I 

realize that you have some witnesses available here and 
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are ready to put them on. 

Is it still your desire, Mr. Cohn, to pursue 

this matter on a litigated basis or are you open to 

the suggestion made by the magistrate or have you con-

sidered the position that you should completely with-

draw these charges? 

MR. COHN: The magistrate never suggested that 

we completely withdraw your Honor. I think what we all 

felt, including Mr. Schwelb, before he had fifth 

thoughts on this, is that what we would do is put the 

motion over until after trial, and then I thought it 

was indicated that probably as these pre-trial things 

have a way of doing, when the actual battle takes 

place and that the trial is over, they usually aet 

worked out and disappear. In other words, we were not 

aoing to press -- it is our motion -- and we were not 

going to press our motion at all at this point . 

And Judge Catogqio resolved it by saying he 

would request that it be marked off the calendar, and 

that he felt that that would be the way to dispose of 

it and to get on to the facts on the trial of the case. 

That is still our positon. We are perfectly 

willina to have the motion marked off the calendar with 

out prejudice to renew it at a future time which of 

course would not prejudice the rights of either party. 
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THE COURT: tvell, that is not the way Mr. 

Schwelb sees it. And I must say that there is some 

good reason evidently because the charges were to have 

this young attorney held in contempt, and froro what 

appeared on the basis of the affidavits would perhaps 

be a rather iqreqious conduct. 

So it is not quite as simple as lettinq it hang 

over as a cloud or a sort of Damacles over thehead of 

someone. And under the circumstances I :hink we will 

have to go forward. 

MR. COHN: Your Honor, I miqht say that the 

motion is made in complete good faith. As a matter of 

fact facts supportive of it become increasing in volume 

rather than diminishing. 

We are perfectly ready and prepared to qo forwar 

on the motion on an evidenciary hearing. 

MR. SCHWELB: Let me just say that in conclusion 

of \V'hat I wanted to say here your Honor is that the 

depositions disclosed that Mr. Cohn had never met Mrs. 

Falcone until her deposition was taken. 

THE COURT: I am aware of those facts. 

MR. ANd that Mr. Trump -- the only 

thing that they could have known about Mr. Miranda was 

that 11:r. Trump, Sr., testified that he was a liar. And 

he was interviewed for five to ten minutes by Don Trump 
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and not at all bv Mr. Cohn. That is essentially what 

I have your Honor. 

THE COURT: Well, all right, why don't you call 

your first witness. 

MR. SCHWELB: I think it is Mr. Cohn's motion 

your Honor. 

MR. COHN: I have no answer to make. I would 

rather have the witnesses speak for themselves. All 

I would do, and I know the Court has read the motion 

papers. The substance of the motion is that a serious 

charge v,ras made in the complaint in this case and 

interrogatories directed by your Honor to make those 

charges specific as to date and location were furnished 

I believe, in January or February of 1974. 

At sometime thereafter Miss Goldstein came into 

the case. And from then on it took a new turn in which 

tactics of investigation and conduct toward witnesses 

were pursued which constitute an abuse of the process 

of this Court. 

First witness we would call is Miss Goldstein. 

G 0 L D s T E I N, called as a witness having been 

first dulv sworn by the Deputy Clerk testified as follo 

DEPUTY CLERK: Hhat is your full name? 

THE WITNESS: Dona Goldstein. 

MR. SCHWELB: I think it is understood that he 
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is calling her as an adverse witness. 

THE COURT: I suppose it would be adverse to 

the motion obviously. 

DIRECT EXA11INATION 

BY MR. 

ment? 

COHN: 

Q 

A 

Q 

Miss Goldstein where are you employed? 

Department of Justice, Washington. 

In what particular section of the Justice Depart 

A I am employed in the Housing Section of the Civil 

Rights Division. 

Q For how long a period of time have you been em-

ployed in the Housing Section of the Civil Rights Division? 

A This December will be two years. 

0 So thatwould make it December, 1972, is that 

right? 

A Correct. 

Q And did there come a time when you were assigned 

a case involving the Trump Management Company? 

A Yes. 

Q When were vou assianed to the Trump case? 

A May, 1974. 

{Continued on next paae.) 
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TlR2 2 Q Before that time had the work that the sub-
DDS:QM 

3 stance of the work you were assigned to do been handled by 

4 another lady named Elyse Goldweber? 

5 A That is correct. 

6 Q In effect you took over for Miss Goldweber, is 

7 that right? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q May of 1974? 

10 A Mr. Goldberg and myself took over. 

11 Q You and Mr. Goldberg? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q All right, had you had any connection with the 

14 Trump case before that? 

15 A No direct connection. No official connection at 

16 all, but because I worked in the same office that Miss Gold-

17 weber worked in I was aware of the case. 

18 Q Had you discussed it with Miss Goldweber from 

19 time to time? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q You had a general idea of what it was about? 

22 A A general idea. 

23 Q But would it be fair to say you were not into 

24 the specifics very much? 

25 A That is correct. 
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2 Q After you were assigned to the case in May of 

3 1974 did you familiarize yourself with the legal file in the 

4 case? 

5 

6 

A 

0 

Yes. 

And did you discover that a complaint was filed 

7 by the Housing Section of the Civil Riahts Division charging 

8 the Trumps with practicing discrimination -- practicing dis-

9 crimination respect to units in Brooklyn and Queens? 

10 A I was familiar with the case prior to that. I 

11 knew the complaint and I knew the specifics of the complaint. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1973? 

Q 

A 

Q 

You knew a complaint had been filed about Octobe 

Yes. 

Did there come a time when you learned that 

Judge Neaher had directed the Government, the Housing Section 

of the Civil Riqhts Division, to answer certain interrogatorie 

propounded by the defendants? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And those interrogatories -- called for the 

specification of various items of that charge including when, 

where, and what location, under what circumstances it was 

alleged by the Government that these discriminatory acts took 

place? 

Are you familiar with that? 
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2 A I was familiar with the interrogatories propoun 

3 by the defendant, yes. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Were you familiar with the answers to the inter 

rogatories filed pursuant to the Court's order by the Civil 

Riqhts Section? 

A 

0 

Yes. 

did you become familiar withthe interroga-

tories and the answers thereto? Prior to May, 1974, or there-

after? 

A I believe I read them prior to May and of 

course when I became personally involved in the case I read 

them again. 

Q Is it fair to say that vour understanding was 

that the interrogatories propounded and the answers given were 

for the purpose of putting the defendants on notice as to 

that which they were being charged in this complaint? 

A I am sorry, but could you restate that. 

MR. COHN: Would you read the question please? 

(Record read.) 

MR. SCIIWELB: Your Honor, I object to the form 

of the ouestion for the followino reasor.: I think that 

the trouble that the witness may be having is is he 

asking her are these the final answers, the only thinq 

that we would refer to in the case until the end of the 
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case; or was this proof that we had available at that 

time. If he would phrase his question to identify whic 

of those two alternatives he is referrinq to it would 

not be objectionable. 

MR. COHN: Of course that anticipates my next 

7 few questions. 

8 BY HR. COHN: 

9 But did you have difficulty in understandinq 

10 the question? 

11 A Yes I did. Also, Mr. Cohn, I didn't answer 

12 those interroqatories. 

13 

14 

15 

Q 

0 

When you took over the case --

MR. COHN: Withdrawn. 

Your recollection is that you had read both the 

16 interrogatories and the anst.,ers thereto before you took over 

17 the case? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1'\. 

() 

Yes. 

And after the case was assiqned to vou in Mav, 

1974, you looked at them again, is that. riqht? 

A 

0 

Yes. 

Well, "''hat 1:rras your understanding as to the 

purpose of interroqatories and the responses thereto? 

A Ny understanding of the purpose of the interroga 

tories, as in any case, is to -- the interroqatories asked for 
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2 the SPecific acts of discrimination that occurred which were 

3 known to the plaintiff at the time the interrogatories were 

4 answered. And I believe that is the purpose and effect of 

5 the interrogatories. 

6 0 And following the filing of the interrogatories 

7 certain depositions took place, is that correct? 

8 

9 

10 tions 

11 

A 

0 

That is correct. 

And during what period of time did those deposi-

MR. COHN: thdrawn. 

12 Q Those depositions were all taken by your office, 

13 weren't they? In other words, the defendants noticed no depo-

14 sitions. The depositions were noticed by the Civil Riqhts 

15 Division of various officers of the defendant and various 

16 employees, and a considerable number were taken over a period 

17 of time. Can you give us the period of time over which these 

18 depositions \"lere taken? 

19 A lAJ'ell, Mr. Cohn, I believe that some depositions 

20 were taking prior to my becoming involved in the case. I can' 

21 tell you the exact period of time that these were taken. I 

22 was present and took some depositions I believe during June 

23 July. 

24 Q All riqht, let's take that. You were present at 

25 some depositions that were taken durinq June and July, is that 
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2 right? 

3 

4 

5 

6 

A 

0 

Yes. 

Hiss Goldstein, as a result of an examination 

of the alleqed incidents -- hy the way, were there about twelv 

incidents of discrimination set forth in the answers to in-

7 terrogatories? noes that seem about riqht? 

8 A That may be correct. Frankly I haven't read 

9 the answers recently so that I am not that familiar with the 

10 exact number at the moment. If I could look at it I can tell 

11 you. 

12 MR. SCHWELB: I wonder if I may interpose an 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

objection as to form. By "incidents of discrimination" 

does he mean it is an admission of an extra judicial 

admission of discriminatory policy, or what does he 

mean? 

HR. COHN: I mean numbers put on by the civil 

Rights Section 1 through 12 citing specific instances 

under your Honor's direction of they claim to be 

acts as of discrimination over a fourteen year perioo 

in the Trump office. 

THE \rHTNESS: I do not believe that that is how 

the interroqatories were ans\v-ered. 

MR. COFm: The answers that you submitted (in-

dicating). 
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2 BY MR. COHN: 

3 0 Miss Golnstein, did there come a time 

4 after you reviewed the answers to the interrogatories with 

5 these instances of discrimination, and I suggest to you we 

6 will find in a minute they were twelve over a fourteen-year 

7 period in some fourteen thousand apartment units, when you 

8 examined them and when you listened to the testimony at the 

9 der.ositions you concluded that there was no case? 

10 Is that a fact? 

11 A That is not a fact, Mr. Cohn. That. is not any-

12 thing near it. 

13 Q Did you conclude that an entirely new investiga-

14 tion was called for concerning not events charged inthe com-

15 plaint but events that were taking place after both 

16 the complaint was filed and his Honor's direction that we 

17 be given specifics of the charges that were made? 

18 A No, Hr. Cohn, I think you are misconstruing our 

19 conduct --

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Please, Miss Goldstein. 

MR. SCHWELB: Will you allow her to answer. 

MR. CO!lli: I think the answer was no. 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, could Mr. Cohn be in-

structed to allow this witness to answer his very probi g 

questions. 
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THE COURT: Well, what is the state of the 

record, Mr. Simon, the last two questions and answers. 

{Record read. ) 

THE COURT: All right, that is the answer. 

6 BY r.m. COHN: 

7 Q Miss Goldstein, didn't you initiate a new in-

8 vestigation of the Trumps? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

No. 

Sometime following l>1ay, 1974? 

No, what we did --

MR. COHN: No, ma'am, your lawyer will have his 

chance to get up if he feels I haven't covered it ade-

quately. 

But if I say did you initiate a new investiga-

tion and if you tell the answer is no I accept that. 

MR. Your Honor, excuse me, but I thir"k 

that she wanted to explain her answer and has the right 

to do so. I would appreciate Mr. Cohn being instructed 

not to interrupt her in the middle of answers. 

THE COURT: I suppose that since Miss 

Goldstein is in the role of an adversary witness, Mr. 

cohn is entitled to conduct his direct examination as 

in_the nature of a cross-examination. 

Now, so far we really have a statement from Miss 
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Goldstein that she did not conclude that there was no 

case. Right? 

And as I understand it this last answer was no 

she didn't conduct or consider that a new investiqatio 

was necessary. Is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: Well, what I understand Cohn's 

question to be was did I initiate an altogether new 

investigation. My answer was no. And I was goinq to 

10 explain that but he didn't give me a chance. 

11 BY HR. COHN: 

12 Q Well, let me draw upon your words now that I 

13 have them . 

14 Did you conclude that in the answers furnished 

15 to the interrogatories propounded by order of this Court a 

16 number of the alleged twelve instances of discrimination were 

17 invalid and mistaken onthe part of vour Section? 

18 

19 

A 

invalid? 

Did I conclude that a number of instances were 

I had understood one incident to be part of a 

20 complex -- I understood one of the instances to be part of an 

21 apartment complex that they no longer owned. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Do you mean that there was a mistake? 

MR. SCWNELB: I'm trying to be helpful here but 

there is one problem. Now one doesn't ordinarily exarni e 

an attorney about his work product. And that is what 
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the examiner is doing. I understand she is an adversar 

witness but some point we have to have an end and 

I suggest that that is now. 

MR. COHN: I think if Mr. Schwelb did not talk 

so much, your Honor, with great respect, we would have 

an end. 

THE COURT: l-1r. Cohn, I would have to say I am 

perplexed. 

r.m. COI-IN: May I explain your Honor? 

make an offer of 

May I 

THE COURT: I didn't mind your eliciting from 

her her connection with the case, oriqinal familiarity 

with the case, but it seems to me that we are now qoinq 

into what I certainly regard as strictly matte s 

with respect to the conduct of litigation. 

They do not seem to me to have any relevance to 

the issues framed by your motion. 

MR. COHN: Well, your Honor, in the nature of 

an offer of proof, whatever your Honor might wish, the 

I am going -- and if counsel bears with me I do r:ot 

think it will take long to get Where I am going, is 

this, there carne a time when the civil Rights Section 

fopnd that these twelve instances they supplied in the 

answers to interroqatories were out the window, that 
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there was no case, and that in certain cases they actu-

ally found wrong buildings which the Trumps didn't even 

own, and at that point Miss Goldstein set upon a course 

of conduct of using undercover agents, intimidating 

witnesses, and trying to build an entirely new case 

not involving these specifics. And that in the course 

of that committed the acts which are set forth with 

specificity in this contempt motion. 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, I move to strike sub-

ject if he is not able to prove it. I move to strike 

that as not proper remarks, as inflamatory and improper 

and scandalous. 

THE COURT: Well, of course I merely view it as 

a lawyer's argument, you understand, statements made 

to the Court, you know, in an attempt to explain some-

thing. 

I thought that this case was all about certain 

charges of specific conduct in connection with either 

the taking of depositions or preparation for the 

taking of depositions, or examination of records. I 

certainly didn't think that we were going into anything 

that had pertained to the merits of the case. 

I thought that was to be reserved for a future 

date when we vmuld get down to the merits of the case. 
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What we are really considering here are the 

merits of the charges made aqainst this witness. And 

I understand your desire to probe into motivation and 

so forth. I think until we know what the real facts 

are with respect to what did or did not take place, 

the incidents which formed the basis for your motion, 

we are going to get nowhere because I am lost right 

now. 

MR. COHN: All right, your Honor. 

(Continued on next page.) 
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2 THE COURT: I understood this to be in the natu e 

3 of a collateral hearing on some charges of misconduct. 

4 r.m. COHl\l: No problem in that at all. If ,-our 

5 Honor looks up paragraphs one and six of my affidavit 

6 in support of this motion I think it spells out just 

7 what the allegations are. 

8 Your Honor, in using the term motivation, of 

9 course that is exactly ,.,hat I am getting at. Ther1e 

10 carne a time when they felt this original complaint was 

11 out the window and embarked on a series of totally irn-

12 proper tactics in the guise of a pre-trial period 

13 which was set forth with some specificity -- examples 

14 are set forth in the papers supportinq this motion be-

15 fore your Honor. And I would be very glad to turn to 

16 specifics right now. 

17 T.HE COURT: tvell, I would have to have a consid-

18 erable demonstration that that was the case. My 

19 lectionof the events here is that that occurred within 

20 the regular framework of the progress of the litigation 

21 that had begun. 

22 Now whether that litigation has merit or not: is 

23 something to be determined. It may be thatyou would be 

24 making all the statements to the Court at some point, 

25 I don't knmv, when we have a full exposi tior. of whalt th 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Goldstein-direct 25 

facts are with respect to the allegations of the com-

plaint. T'llhat we ·are concerned here, as I see it .. 

are allegations made aqainst the witnesses. And that 

is something quite collateral, to my way of thinking, 

and I 't•Tould like to get dm..,n to some proof on that 

score. 

Now, I don't knm ... , exactly what your further 

plan is with respect to Miss Goldstein but it 

certainly seem to me that we ought to get down to some 

of these specifics that you said in your affidavit in 

paragraph 

MR. COHN: Paragraph one and six in my affidavit, 

your Honor, state in general terms our complaint concer -

ing the manner in l'lhich Miss Goldstein has been con-

ducting this investigation which we say is violative 

of the rights of the defendants, of the perspective 

witnesses, and is totally improper pre-trial procedure. 

And I 't'lill turn to specifics right this minute 

your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. 

22 BY MR. COHN: 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

0 

Do you know somebody named Stephanie Bush? 

Yes, I do. 

Did you send Stephanie Bush in as an 
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2 agent into Trump buildings in July of 1974 

3 

4 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

11. 

Q 

No. 

-- in other words two months aqc. 

1\Jo, I did not. 

Did you discover that Stephanie Bush had been 

7 sent into Trump buildings as an agent concealing 

8 her identity in July, 1974? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

MR.·SCHWELB: I object to the terrr "undercover 

agent." If you want to know about Miss Bush she is 

a tester for the Fair Housing Group. 

Q Do you know a tester for the Fair Housing Group 

13 by the name of Stephanie Bush? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

tvhen did you meet Miss Bush? 

I believe it was in August of 1974. 

Does she work for the Urban Leaoue? 

Yes, she does. 

THE COURT: Am I mistaken? I believe that this 

occurred after the events which form thebasis for your 

motion. 

MR. COHN: Oh, no, I think it came before. 

THE COURT: It came before? 

MR. COHN: Oh yes. Specifically your Honor, I 

think that Miss Bush, according to my infcrmati6n, was 
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2 contacted at the Urban League by the Civil Rights 

3 Section, according to my information, in June of 1974. 

4 That Miss Bush set about on her testing campaign there 

5 at the beginning of July, 1974. 

6 In fact it was one of the factors motivating the 

7 bringing of this motion. 

8 HR. SCIH\IELB: If your Honor please, there is not 

9 one word about Miss Bush in Mr. Cohn's motion. We 

10 propounded interrogatories with respect to that and 
I 

11 he didnt mention it and I move to preclude that. 

12 MR. COHN: Your Honor, I do not think it is pre-

13 cludable. I think there is enough in the general alle-

14 gations where I was not required to set forth the 

15 name of every witness to whom this has been done or 

16 every tactic which Miss Goldstein has done. 

17 Now, \'lith reference to a motion to preclude that 

18 Mr. Schwelb says I don't knwo what the remedy on a 

19 motion to preclude is -- if it is surprise I should hav 

20 told him today, I do not think it is. But if he says 

21 it is I am perfectly willing to pass on to something 

22 else and give him an opportunitv to do whatever he sees 

23 fit. 

24 MR. Interrogatories call for all the 

25 information that had to do with Miss Goldstein's conduc • 
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He didn't list that. Miss Bush will probably be calle 

as a witness at the trial a month from now and you wil 

be able to determine in full detail what the results 

of the testing by a black and white tester were from 

Trump buildings, and they weren't very favorable to 

1\fr • Trump • 

MR. COHN: You see, your Honor, that gets down 

to the basics here. Are we trying this case based upon 

a complaint here on vour Honor's direction that we be 

advised of the specifics or are we trying it on Miss 

Goldstein's fashioning of a completely new investigatio 

covering not the events charged inthe complaint but 

covering events that allegedly occurred right while the 

pre-trial on the original complaint was taking place. 

That is one of the things which we regard as 

extremely serious in this matter. But after we have 

been given specificity and told what to meet and go out 

and start doing it are. and are actually in depositiona 

process, to have undercover or testing agents, or how-

ever they want to denominate them, sent around day afte 

day to Trump buildings trying to trap somebody into 

saying and doing something which can have no relevancy 

to the original charges in the complaint and the speci-

ficity your Honor directed "'e were entitled to have, I 
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think it is totally improper as a tactic and covered 

by the purport of this motion by paragraphs one and six 

of my affidavit, and that it is totally improper -- tha 

it constitutes totally improper conduct on the part of 

a Government attorney in the middle of a pre-trial and 

an existing complaint when specifics have been given 

and a framework of issues drawn under a Court order, 

and they are subjecting the defendants to undercover 

agents going in and out of their buildings, lying 

as to who they are and where they are from --

M:R. SCHWELB: Your Honor, I appreciate Mr. Cohn' 

low key presentation. But our answer to interrooatori s 

were amended to disclose the additional testimony. 

It has nothing to do with the charges. 

THE COURT: Perhaps I owe you an apology for 

asking a question which has provoked so much debate. 

I started off by sayinq wasn't this a recollection of 

something happening in August after the motion and now 

I find this motion was dated July 26, 1974. 

HR. COHN: Yes. 

THE COURT: So it did happen after. 

MR. COHN: No, she just said it. I am goinq to 

prove it happened weeks before this motion. 

THE COURT: Nell, her answer, as I understand it, 
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it this way -- I think that would be the key witnesses 

that we should he concentrating on here. I don't know 

what other witnesses Mr. Cohn may have. But unless 

these pertain to events that occurred prior to making 

this motion I will rule it all irrelevant. 

MR. COlf!\1: I have your s ruling. 

8 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

9 BY MR. COHN: (CONTINUING) 

10 Q Miss Goldstein to your knowledge did an under-

11 cover did a tester named Stephanie Bush go around to Trump 

12 buildings on July 9, 1974, some weeks prior to the making of 

13 this motion. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Honor. 

A 

MR. SCHWELB: Objection as to relevancy your 

THE COURT: Well, do you know or do you not know 

I am aware that a testing was conducted by the 

18 New York Urban League and that that testing was conducted in 

19 early July, and that the information about that testing was 

20 provided to my office, to the Department, I believe sometime 

21 after the events occurred. 

22 vllien do you say you first learned of this 

23 Stephanie Bush going around to the Trump buildings in this 

24 capacity? 

25 A Do you \vant an exact date? I don't have an exac 
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Didn't you speak to someone in the Urban League. 

Oh, I met with Hrs. Betty Hoeber at the Urban 

5 League. Mr. Goldberg and I met with Hiss Hoeber. 

6 

7 

8 

0 

A 

() 

't'Jhen did you first meet with Hiss Roeber? 

I believe it was in June. 

Yes. Well, you are sure it was in June, aren't 

9 you, t-1iss Goldstein? You don't have any doubt about that, 

10 do you? 

11 It was before Miss Bush started marching around 

12 to the Trump buildings, wasn't it? 

13 A It was before testing, yes, definitely, when I 

14 met Hiss Roeber. 

15 0 When you told his Honor you didn't meet Miss 

16 Bush until around July, you are not quite sure -- I am sorry -

17 around August and you are not quite sure but it was around 

18 August, the fact is you had met Miss Bush's superiors back in 

19 June r had you not? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

MR. SCHVJELB: He is misquoting the testimony. 

MR. COHN: I '"ill withdra\-v the question. 

Did you meet Miss Bush's superiors in June? 

I met Betty Hoeber then, yes. 

Who is Betty Hoeber? 

I don't know what her title is, but Betty Hoeber 
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2 is the director of the Open Housing Center which is an arm 

3 of the New York Urban League. 

4 Q Did you discuss with Betty Hoeber the sending 

5 of agents around to Trump buildings? 

6 A Did I discuss with her? Miss Hoeber stated that 

7 she might send some testers. 

8 The Urban League had provided us with some infer 

9 mation and their clients were a number of the people have 

10 listed incur interroqatories. 

11 Miss Hoeber '\'las interested in the case and indi-

12 cated that she might do some more testing. They weren't 

13 agents of ours in any way. 

14 Q Did you ask Mrs. Hoeber to have the testing? 

15 Can you answer that yes or no? 

16 A I don't believe I asked Miss Hoeber to do the 

17 testing. 

18 THE COURT: I was just about to ask you is it 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

far to say that some of the information involved in the 

allegations of the complaint were predicated on informa 

tion supplied by the New York Urban Leaque? Is that 

so? 

THE WITNESS: In the ori.ginal complaint? 

THE COURT: Well, I realize you were not in the 

case originally. But did you learn that at any time 
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2 

3 

4 

that the Urban League group had supplied information 

which 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

5 BY MR. COHN: 

6 Q Now, who initiated the meeting with Mrs. Roeber 

7 in June, you or Mrs. Roeber? 

8 A I don't recall. 

9 It's part of my job we meet with representatives 

10 of fair housing groups on a regular basis. 

11 In fact I believe I met with Mrs. Roeber not 

12 for the purpose of discussing Trump, but to discuss another 

13 project that she was doing -- that the Open Housing Center 

14 was doing in New York, about a conference they were planning 

15 on having, I believe -- it may not have been that conference -

16 but at another project, and it was during my meetinq '""ith her, 

17 I believe, we talked about it possibly. 

18 Q Did you tell Miss Roeber inwords or in substanc 

19 that your Section pursuant to an order of the Court had al-

20 ready furnished ans\..rers to interrogatories setting forth the 

21 acts which you claim were committed in tr:is case, and that the 

22 case was as of June, 1974, in the depositional, pre-trial 

23 stage? 

24 A I don't know whether the depositional stage is 

25 any different than the normal discovery stage of litigation. 
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Q I will take it any way you want. 

A I don't recall whether I specifically told Miss 

Hoeber that we had answered interrogatories. It is possible 

that I stated that we provided -- the first answers to inter-

rogatories were provided before I became involved in this 

case, and she may have known, Miss Hoeber, I have no idea. 

I have no recollection of whether or not I said 

anything. I may have mentioned the answers to interrogatories 

I have no recollection of it. 

(Continued on next page.) 
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tl/4 2 Q Did you ask Miss Haber to keep quiet the 
3 fact that you had knowledge of her sending this undercover 
4 agent around in July of 1974? 
5 A Are you talking about the tester? 
6 Q Yes. 
7 A Did I ask Miss Hober to keep quiet? 
8 Q The fact that she and you had discussed the 
9 sending of this agent around? 

10 A I may have indicated to Miss Haber that I was 
11 not asking her to do this. 
12 

Q Did you say in words or substance to Miss Haber 
13 it might not be the right time at this point to be sending 
14 agents around to the truck buildings because we have already 
15 presented our case, but if you do it on your own, that is 
16 your business and I would be very happy to receive any 
17 information that you can give us? 

18 A I don't believe that would be a correct 
19 statement of anything that I would have said to Miss Hober. 
20 Q Well, I don't want what you would have said. I 
21 want your recollection of what you did say. 
22 A I didn't say to Miss Hober that we have already 
23 presented our case and it wouldn't be appropriate for me to 
24 -- because we presented our case it wouldn't be appropriate 
25 for me to do the testing. What I may very well have said 
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to Miss Hober is that I would not initiate any testing. That 

if the Urban League wished -- They had indicated that they 

had a plan on testing and I said I wasn't going to initiate 

any testing and get the Department of Justice involved in 

any testing. 

Q And having said that, did you receive infor-

mation from Miss Hober from time to time thereafter, 

specifically in and about the middle of July concerning the 

reports of this lady who was marching around the truck 

buildings? 

MR. SCHWELB: I object to the characterization. 

MR. COHN: I will withdraw the words "marching 

around". 

Q (continuing) who was presenting herself at 

various buildings involved in this case? 

A Yes, I did. I received information from the 

Open Housing Center. And I would like to --

Q Is there any difference between the Open 

Housing Center and the Urban League? 

A It is an arm of the Urban League. 

Q An arm of the Urban League? It is a private 

is that correct? 

A I have no idea. I guess it may be. 

Q Now, just one last question on this point: 
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I used the word undercover agent, and you 

corrected me and used the word tester. 

Let me ask you this: 

To your knowledge, when this lady, Stephanie 

Bush,went to these Trump buildings at the beginning of July, 

1974 and thereafter, did she identify herself as coming from 

the Urban League? 

A I don't believe that she did. 

Q And in fact, the impression would you ag.ree 

-- the impression would you agree with me that the last 

thing she wanted superintendents to know was that she came 

from the Urban League? 

MR. SCHWELB: It calls for a conclusion of 

somebody else and a mental operation. But I think we 

all know what testers are for. 

THE COURT: Well, I think so. I do not see 

how this witness can invade somebody else's state of 

mind. All right. 

Q To your knowledge, did Miss Bush ever tell 

one Trump employee that she was connected with the Urban 

League based upon any reports that you have received from 

Miss Bush whenever you met her, or from Mrs. Rober, whenever 

you met her, or from anyone else connected with the open 

housing or Urban League? 
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MR. SCHWELB: Now, your Honor, this calls for 

a hearsay answer. Furthermore, we will stipulate and 

we will concede and we will be happy to tell Mr. Cohn 

that when testers go to test a building, they don't 

identify themselves as testers because if they did, 

the test wouldn't work and it wouldn't give a 

representative example of the conduct they are trying 

to determine, and in this case did determine. 

Q Well, before --

MR. COHN: Strike that. 

Q At the time you had this conversation with Miss 

Hober 1 in which this testing was discussed in June of 19741 

did you consult with any of your superiors in the Justice 

Department as to the propriety of this? 

MR. SCHWELB: Objection. Work product. 

THE COURT: I do not think it has relevance to 

what we are trying to determine here. 

Q Now 1 during this same period of time 1 namely 

following your entry into this case in May of 1974 until 

July 26th, 1974, which I would fix under his Honor's ruling 

as the parameter of this motion, certainly 1 did you have 

occasion to make up a list of former Trump employees whose 

names were not set forth in the information supplied to us in 

February, 1974 in answer to our interrogatories? 



1 

5 2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

40 

A I am afraid I am confused by the question. 

Q Are you really? Maybe I can restate it if you 

are confused. 

At the time of your entry into the case, there 

had already been furnished to the defendants interrogatories 

containing specific incidents and the names of witnesses. 

Do you recall that? 

A Are you talking about the original answers to 

interrogatories? 

Q I am talking about answers to interrogatories. 

A Right. 

Q You are clear about that? 

A Yes. 

Q After you came into the case, which was some 

months later, did you make up a list of former employees of 

the Trump organization which were not mentioned? 

MR. SCHWELB: This is some more work product. 

I wish you would get to the incidents that she spoke 

of --

MR. COHN: I have no interest in their work 

product. I am getting right to the incident. 

Q Did you make up such a list? 

THE COURT: I will allow that question. 

A We conducted a records inspection in June of 
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1974. At that records inspection we did make a list of 

Trump employees, present and former, from payroll records 

that were produced pursuant to notice of records inspection. 

Q About when was this? 

A In June, 1974. 

Q Did you turn this list over to the FBI? 

A Did I turn that list over to the FBI? No, I 

did not. 

Q Did you turn the information from that list 

over to the FBI? 

A Pursuant to information I received from that 

list I requested, as in the normal course of our conducting 

litigation investigation, I asked -- made this request that 

the FBI conduct certain interviews. 

People we request to be interviewed, some of 

those names were from the list that we secured from 

the records inspection. 

Q Now, would it be fair to say that the FBI 

agents conducted these interviews under your direction? 

Were you the person in charge of the Justice Department? 

A No, not really. 

Q Under whose direction did they conduct it? 

A I may have -- some of them -- there have been -

there is a lot of paperwork involved. My name may be on it. 
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Mr. Goldberg's name may be on it. All our requests are 

reviewed and finally sent out by Mr. Schwalb or two of his 

deputies. 

0 Did you request the FBI to contact a lady 

Carol Falcone? 

A I believe I did, yes. 

0 Do you have any doubt about that? 

A I believe she was on the list that I sent out. 

A number of requests were sent out. 

0 A number of anything might have happened. All 

I want to know is, as you are sitting in that witness chair 

were you the one who told the FBI to interview Carol Falcone? 

A I advised Mr. Goldberg. I believe we both --

I don't know which one she was on. One of us did. 

Q Were you aware of the fact that sometime before 

the FBI appeared, if the evidence is so going to show, at Mis 

Falcone's home at 10 o'clock at night, you were the one. who 

told the FBI to go? 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, first of all I object 

to that entire tone which is unnecessary, and, second, 

the question is so.confusing that I would object to 

the form. 

MR. COHN: I will be glad to withdraw it. 

0 Could you tell us simply, did you tell the 
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FBI to go to interview Carol Falcone or did you have 

knowledge that any of your colleagues told the FBI to go 

to interview Carol Falcone? 

A Either myself or my colleagues requested that 

the FBI conduct an investigation or to interview certain 

former employees. and Miss Falcone was one of them, Mr. 

Cohn. 

THE COURT: I think that has been answered. 

MR. COHN: The answer is yes. 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, will he stop testify-

ing, please? The presence of the witness is highly 

superfluous if he tells us what the answer is. 

MR. COHN: If I could get straightforward 

answers, your Honor 

THE COURT: I think the answer was straightfor-

ward, Mr. Cohn. 

Q Now, did you tell the FBI that you wanted to 

talk to Miss Falcone? 

A What I believe I said was that after I had 

interviewed Miss Falcone I contacted the FBI, or Mr. Goldberg 

contacted the FBI to inform them that we had already contacte 

Miss Falcone and it would be unnecessary for them to do so. 

Q Do you want to give me the chronology of this? 

Is it, as I understand from your last answer, that you told 
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the FBI not to get to Miss Falcone? That you, independently 

of the FBI, tried to reach Miss Falcone? That you reached 

her first and then called the FBI and said, we have located 

her, or whatever it might be, and it is not necessary for you 

to do anything? Is that a fair statement? 

A I object to the phrase, "get to." 

Q Other than the phrase, "get to"? Reach? 

Locate? Find? 

A We requested the FBI to interview Miss Falcone. 

I interviewed Miss Falcone. I then contacted the FBI to 

tell them that I had interviewed her and that it was 

unnecessary to contact her as well. 

Q Before you interviewed Miss Falcone, did it 

come to your attention that FBI agents had gone to her home 

and at hours after 9 o'clock at night1 

A Absolutely not. 

Q When did you first hear about this, if you 

did? 

A At the deposition of Miss Falcone, with referen e 

to this hearing -- prior to this hearing. 

Q That was the first you knew that her mother, 

her uncle, had been visited by FBI agents at hours 

A Absolutely. 

MR. SCHWELB: Excuse me •. It calls for 
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innumerable hearsay answers and I want to object to 

it. 
THE COURT: Well, I think we are straying again. 

So the FBI went there and what? 

Q So the FBI went there. You say it didn't 

come to your attention until the deposition? 

A That she had been visited at 10 o'clock at 

night by any FBI agents, that is correct. or at any time 

at night, that is right. 

Q Did you give to the FBI any ground rules --

MR. COHN: I withdraw that. 

Q Did you have any reason to believe Miss 

Falcone was anything other than a former Trump employee? 

That she was involved in anything herself? 

A No, the only information 

Q That's an answer. 

Did you give the FBI general instructions on 

what hours these witnesses should be approached? 

A I didn't give them instructions. 

Q You do not ever outline the perarneters of 

investigation? 

A I outline the questions to be asked, 

information to be received. The FBI is a very professional 

organization and it never to my attention that they 



1 

11 2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

46 

ever conducted themselves unprofessionally. 

And certainly it is not my business to give 

instructions to the FBI. That is generally done 

elsewhere, as I understand it. 

Q Well the fact is you are saying you didn't, in 

this case? 

A I merely sent out a request through our office. 

Q With whom were you dealing in the FBI, 

involving Miss Falcone, specifically? 

A Are you asking me who the special agent of the 

FBI was? 

Q Yes. Would this refresh your memory? You said 

you contacted somebody to say you had located Miss Falcone. 

A I don't recall whether I personally made the 

contact or whether Mr. Goldberg made the contact. 

Q And do you recall who was contacted in the 

FBI? 

A We had been working together on it. I know 

who in New York had been conducting the investigation and 

who may have been contacted, And Mr. Schwalb -- if he has 

no objection, I will mention it. 

MR. SCHWELB: No, your Honor. 

THE WITNESS: Mr. Terrence Cox. 

THE COURT: He is a special agent? 
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THE WITNESS: A special agent in charge of 

this case, yes, sir. 

THE COURT: In New York? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, that is correct. 

THE COURT: He was doing it or in charge of 

it, is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: From what I understand, that 

would be correct. I don't have much contact with the 

FBI. 

Q Well, did you have much contact with Miss 

12 Falcone? 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

I interviewed Miss Falcone. 

On how many occasions? 

One occasion. 

How long did the interview last? 

About a half an hour to 45 minutes. 

{continued next page.) 
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About 30 to 45 minutes? 

About that. 

Where did that take place? 

In her place of business, the Hero Hut. 

48 

That is a place where they sell hero sandwiches 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

I would assume. 

10 

11 twelve. 

12 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

13 were there? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Right. 

About what time of the day was it? 

I believe I arrives at approximately quarter to 

Was the lunch business in progress while you 

There was some. It was not very crowded. 

What time do you say you left there? 

I would think at the latest about 12:30. 

Did you have occasion to discuss the perjury 

18 laws with Miss Falcone? 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

No. 

Did you tell Miss Falcone in words or in 

21 substance that --

22 

23 Q 

MR. COHN: I withdraw that question. 

Did you question Miss Falcone concerning her 

24 work for the Trump organization in prior years? 

25 A Yes. 
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Q After she described her duties did you suggest 

to her that she wasn•t telling the full truth concerning that. 

A I believe at one point in one specific question 

5 I asked Miss Falcone to refresh her recollection, on a 

6 specific point that I found it hard to believe, and would 

7 she refresh her recollection. 

8 Q When you use the words that you found it hard 

9 to believe, did you tell her that there are perjury laws 

10 which say you can go to jail for up to five years? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Absolutely not. 

You deny that categorically? 

Totally. 

Now, did you ask questions dealing with 

15 Miss Falcone•s personal life? 

16 A No. I asked her if she was married -- her age, 

17 her occupation. I may have asked her whether she was 

18 married. that would be the personal questions I would have 

19 asked her. 

20 Q Did you ask her if she dated Donald Trump 

21 when she worked for the Trump Organization? 

22 

23 

A 

Q 

Absolutely not. 

Did you ask her where she could have gotten 

24 the money to open the Hero Hut? 

25 A I hate to be repetitious, but no. 
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Q I don't think it is repetitious. I think it 

is the first time I asked that question. 

Did you tell Miss Falcone in words or in 

substance that there were records of phone calls that took 

place at the Trump office and therefore you knew what she was 

telling you was not true? 

mind. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

No, Mr. Cohn. That would never have crossed my 

Now, do you know somebody named Mr. Miranda? 

Yes. 

By the way, I don't think I asked you to fix 

the date of your interview with Miss Falcone. 

A I believe it was Friday, August -- was it the 

19th? I believe it was Friday, August 19th. 

that. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

No, it was not August, was it? 

was it July? Wait, I'm a little confused on 

I know it was July. 

Then it was July 19th. Then it was Friday, 

July 19th. My dates are wrong. 

Q Now, did you have occasion to interview a man 

named Thomas Miranda? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Had you previously asked the FBI to locate 
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Mr. Miranda for you? 

A No. We knew where Mr. Miranda was. We had 

already spoken to him. 

10 

11 

12 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Did you call him? 

Yes, I telephoned Mr. Miranda. 

Where did you telephone him? 

I telephoned him at his home. Where was I? 

Where was he when you telephoned? 

At his home. 

Can you remember when this was? 

It was most -- I believe it was Tuesday of the 

13 same week of July 19th. So it would be July 16th perhaps. 

14 

15 home? 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

Q 

18 working then? 

19 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

A 

About what time of the day did you phone the 

Midday. 

Did you have knowledge about where he was 

Yes. 

Where was he working then? 

Well, he was a superintendent of the apartment 

22 building that he lived in. This phone number, his telephone, 

23 would be his working and home number from what I believe it 

24 to be. 

25 Q Now, was a meeting between you and Mr. Miranda 
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set up? 
A Yes. 

Q Did you go to his home? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Anybody else present? 

A His wife. 

Q How long were you there? 

A About two hours. 

Q You were there about two hours? 

A Correct. 

Q Did you ask for another interview after you lef ? 

A No. 

Q Did you say in words or in substance to 

Mr. Miranda that you did not feel he was giving you the 

whole story? 

A No, Mr. Miranda -- No, I did not. Mr. Miranda 

was at first reluctant to speak with me. He never gave me 

a different story. He told me he didn't want at first to 

discuss the matter. But I never indicated to him that I 

felt he was giving me a story that was incorrect or 

incomplete. 

Q Did you tell him that you didn't have to 

discuss the matter? 

A I indicated -- Mr. Miranda -- he told me he 

didn't want to become involved in this lawsuit. That he 
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2 was frightened. 

3 Q Did you at that point advise him of his rights 

4 and tell him he didn't have to talk to you? 

5 A Mr. Miranda was, from what I understood, a 

6 friendly witness --

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

MR. COHN: First I would like you to answer 

this question. 

THE WITNESS: May I finish? 

MR. COHN: I don't mind you finishing subject t 

his Honor's instruction. Will you answer my question? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

A Did I give Mr. Miranda his rights? No, I 

14 didn't. He, as I said, was considered to be a friendly 

15 witness. He had provided information to us. 

16 Q After the man you thought to be a friendly, 

17 witness had said that he didn't wish to talk to you, did you 

18 advise him of his rights not to talk to you? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, just a minor objec-

tion, but the implication in that question is that 

Mr. Miranda was being charged with a crime and he 

wasn't. I did not want this question to be under-

stood as being he was entitled to some Miranda 

warning. 

THE COURT: Just because his name was Miranda. 
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MR. SCHWELB: I missed that. I am sorry. 

Q I'm not asking you for your mental processes. 

I'm asking if you had told Mr. Miranda that you do not have 

to talk to me now if you dn't wish. 

A No. 

Q How much longer after he told you he didn't 

wish to did you remain there? 

A I remained there for a few hours. Mr. Miranda 

talked to me and told me why he did not want to get to talk 

to me. 

Q Did you help jog his memory --

MR. COHN: I withdraw that question. Did you 

help bring about a change in his position by telling 

him he could go to jail? 

A No. 

Q Did you use the word jail in talking to 

Mr. Miranda? 

A No. 

Q Did you make any threat to Mr. Miranda? 

A No. 

Q Did you tell him there were bigger people 

in the Department of Justice that he was going to have to 

deal with? 

A No. 
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MR. SCHWELB: May I get that back again? 

MR. COHN: May the record show I am giving 

Mr. Schwelbe back his Ziesselman statements. 

Q 

Ziesselman? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Do you know two people named Paul and Paula 

Yes. 

Did you interview them? 

Yes. 

When? 

I I interviewed them after I interviewed 

Mr. Miranda later. in the afternoon of the same day. It was 

during that week. Sometime during the middle of that week. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Where did you interview them? 

At their home. 

Was that in Valley Stream? 

I believe it is on Long Island and I think it 

was Valley Stream. I would have to see their address in the 

phone book. 

Q Did you state at or about the conclusion of the 

interview that you were not satisfied with Mr. Ziesselman's 

statement to you? 

A 

Q 

No. 

Did you tell him that unless he was able to 

furnish more information that you were going to send the FBI 



1 

2 

3 

4 

Goldstein-direct 56 

agents back to them? 

A No, what I said to Mr. Ziesselman was that I ha 

requested, as I had to Miss Falcone, that the FBI contact 

5 them and interview them. And that now that I had contacted 

6 them, that I would try to get in touch with the FBI to let 

7 them know that I had seen them so that the FBI wouldn't come 

8 to see them. If by chance, I said to them, I miss the FBI 

9 and they came, not to be concerned or frightened. They were 

10 coming pursuant to a request from me for the same kind of 

11 interview that I had already conducted. 

12 Q 

13 the FBI? 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

That was the context in which you referred to 

That is correct. 

You didn't say it in what we might call a 

16 threatening context? 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

No. 

And the Ziesselmans, if they so interpreted 

19 that, your testimony would be mistaken? 

20 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

Did you know a man named Mr. Herbert Heller/ 

Do I know a Mr. Heller? No, I believe he is 

23 a former employee that the Bureau did contact. 

24 Q Did you make a phone call to Mr. Heller at 

25 midnight at a summer resort at which he was vacationing? 
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What? 

Did you make a phone call? 

No. 

Did anyone else to your knowledge? 

I have no knowledge of such phone call. 

57 

Is this the first you heard of such a suggestio ? 

Yes, absolutely. 

Did you ask the FBI to locate Mr. Heller for yo ? 

I believe Mr. Heller's name was on it -- was on 

one of the FBI requests that we sent out, yes, although I 

don't think it was on the one that I prepared because I don't 

have any recollection of it. 

Q Did the FBI ever report back to you that they 

had called Mr. Heller at five minutes after midnight? 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, first of all, this is 

outside the scope of the affidavit, and, secondly, I 

have no idea what time he is talking about. 

Q 

A 

THE COURT: Is this pre-motion or after motion? 

THE WITNESS: I have no idea. 

When did you ask the FBI to contact Mr. Heller? 

I don't know that I have 

MR. SCHWELB: There is something before the 

Court, your Honor, I object to that as outside the 

scope of the motion. Further I think your Honor has 
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ruled that if it happened afterwards it is irrelevant. 

MR. COHN: I would like to find out when it 

happened. 

THE WITNESS: I don't know. 

Q When to your best recollection, as the person 

7 in charge of this case, did you ask the FBI to locate 

8 Mr. Herbert Heller? 

9 A I am trying to explain the operation -- of the 

10 FBI operation I don't know. 

11 Q In the dim past I too have a knowledge of FBI 

12 requests. But can you tell me your best recollection as you 

13 sit on the witness stand .now as to when you asked the FBI to 

14 contact Mr. Herbert Heller. 

15 

16 

17 

A 

A 

Well --

MR. SCHWELB: If you know. 

(Continuing) I don't know. I don't think 

18 Mr. Heller was on the list that I prepared. I don't know 

19 which FBI list his name was included in. It may have been 

20 in June. It may have been in March. It may have been in 

21 August. It might have been in September. I have no idea. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Do you know a man names Mr. John Brofrnan? 

Yes. 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, this is outside the 

scope of the four witnesses that he talked about that 
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we asked in the interrogatories about. I very 

particularly wanted to know all the charges against 

this young lady that he had. He said that is all he 

had. I don't think he can go and meander around the 

world, although if he does he does. 

THE COURT: Well, now, is this something you 

believe is antecedent to your motion? 

MR. COHN: I will have to ask her. It is no 

secret. I can state it in the form of a statement or 

an offer of proof. What I have is on the basis of 

phone calls made by people who were called either 

by Miss Goldstein,or associates, or FBI agents, called 

or visited 

THE COURT: I would say if they were called by 

the FBI this wouldn't be helpful here. This witness 

couldn't possibly tell. She is not vicariously 

responsible for anything the FBI does-in my judgment. 

MR. COHN: Except for this, your HOnor, I would 

suggest that the person -- that as your Honor well 

knows better than any of us in this courtroom -- the 

FBI is an investigative arm. It is not the Department 

of Justice and it operates under programs given to it-

THE COURT: Well, it happens to be part of 

the Department of Justice. 
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MR. COHN: Of course. 

60 

THE COURT: Although for many years its director 

didn't recognize that. 

MR. COHN: At various times. It's my part 

thank goodness, but your Honor, whatever it might be, 

the fact is we are going to raise the question here 

after your Honor hears the testimony from the witnesse 

as to whether there is any obligation on the part of 

the person in charge of the case to see that certain 

standards, particularly during the discovery period, 

and dealing with employees and former employees of 

the defendant, whether certain standards of ethicality 

and decency are not to be observed in the course of 

such an investigation. 

MR. SCHWELB: We will stipulate that we asked 

the FBI to contact these people. If he wasnts to 

charge some FBI agent with contempt or whatever else 

he wants to charge them with, I suggest he name them 

and we will propound interrogatories and identify him 

and let the FBI agent be here and not put it on 

Miss Goldstein. 

THE COURT: Well, I also assume again if these 

people were in the employe of your client -- I have 

the impression that they were former employees. 
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THE WITNESS: Oh, yes. 

61 

MR. We don't interview their managing 

agent without counsel present, your Honor. 

THE COURT: So of course, as an old-timer like 

yourself, you are well aware that the Department of 

Justice judicially makes use of the FBI in investiga-

tion of civil cases. It is not all criminal investiga 

tion work, although the popular notion is the G-man 

as a crime buster. They are trained investigators 

and the only investigators that the Department has. 

And they do precisely such tasks as this. 

MR. COHN: And the Urban League. 

THE COURT: Well, it is the Attorney General's 

responsibility to bring cases when he feels or that 

he has information that should be brought forth and 

also under our statute they call on the FBI for aid 

in the necessary trial preparation. So, as I say, I 

do not think these FBI requests are helpful here. 

Now, so far as this Don Brofman, do you know 

him? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do. I interviewed 

Mr. Brofman a few weeks ago. 

MR. SCHWELB: It was after the motion. 

THE WITNESS: After the motion. I didn't 
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MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, I will reserve any 

further examination until our case in chief. 

THE COURT: All right, you may step down. 

(Witness excused.) 

MR. COHN: Imll Miss Falcone. 

C A R 0 L B A L I S T R E R I , called as a witness, 

having been first duly sworn by the deputy clerk of 

the court, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COHN: 

Q 

A 

Miss Falcone, what is your full name? 

My name is carol Balistreri. When I was with 

Trump it was Carol Falcone. 

Q Now, I think we know from some testimony in 

the courtroom that your business is conducting a Hero shop. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

New Hyde 

Q 

A 

Q 

Park. 

Yes. 

Called the Hero Hut? 

Yes. 

Where is that located? 

It is located at 253 Jericho Turnpike in 

Does it have a telephone? 

Yes, it does. 

Is the phone listed with Information? 
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Yes, it is. 

Is tehre any secret about it? 

No. 

Now, did there come a time 

64 

MR. COHN: I will withdraw that question. 

Did you work for the Trumps at any time? 

Yes, I did. I worked for three and a half year • 

What was the general nature of your duties? 

I was a clerk. 

Now, did there come a time when you met a lawye 

12 named Donna Goldstein? 

13 

14 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, I did. 

You saw her here in Court this morning? 

Yes. 

Before you met Donna Goldstein did it come to 

17 your attention that somebody from somewhere wanted to see you 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

What happened? 

They came to my home looking for me. 

What time? 

About 9:00 o'clock. And I wasn't there. 

Nine o'clock when? 

In the evening. 

Who was that? 
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MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, is this based on 

something somebody told her or her own knowledge? If 

it is not her own knowledge I would object. 

Q Was this something discussed between you and 

Miss Goldstein when you met Miss Goldstein? 

A Yes. When she came to my store I told her 

there were FBI agents looking for me at my home. And I told 

her I didn't know exactly whether there was two or one. I 

said there was two or one. And someone came at 10:30 at 

night. They said they were from the FBI, speaking to my 

uncle. 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, is this based on 

what her uncle told her or what she knows? 

Q I am interested in what you told Miss Goldstein 

when you first met her. 

THE COURT: I will perrnit,the witness to 

testify what she told Miss Goldstein for a limited 

purpose with respect to state of mind. 

MR. SCHWELB: The testimony that she is telling 

Miss Goldstein rather than what she told 

THE COURT: I am not accepting it as a part of 

the truth thereof. Do you understand? 

MR. SCHWELB: Yes sir. 

THE COURT: All right, go ahead. Is it 
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Mrs. Balistreri? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

65 

Q In any event I think you just answered us that 

you told Miss Goldstein that FBI agents had been at your hous 

and seen your uncle at 10:30 at night? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Right. 

On how many occasions? 

Twice. 

Did you say anything to Miss Goldstein on how 

you could be located? 

A I told her they should have just called my 

store. 

Two gentlemen also went to my store and they 

spoke to my husband. My husband said that it just happened 

she is not here but she is here every day. 

me. 

MR. SCHWELB: Is this something you related to 

Miss Goldstein or is that something that you related 

to the outside world? 

Q 

A 

THE WITNESS: He said to Miss Goldstein. 

You said to Miss Goldstein? 

I told her how many people had been looking for 

THE COURT: Well, did you understand that an 

FBI man came to your store? Is that what you are saying? 
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THE WITNESS: No, two gentlemen. My husband 

didn't tell me who they were. He said two gentlemen 

came looking for you. 

Q 

THE COURT: You told this to Miss Goldstein? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

And I think you said that I am right here 

practically every day? 

A I told her, I said, I am here every day. They 

keep saying they are looking for me; they are looking for me. 

I am here. 

you." 

Q 

A 

She said, "Well, that's why I came to speak to 

How long did she stay? 

She came about 20 after 11:00 and she left 

about 5 or 10 to 2:00, somewhere around there. 

The only reason I remember the time is it was 

lunch hour in the Hero shop and that is our busy time. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Was she there more than a half-hour? 

Definitely it was more than half an hour. 

Your recollection is it was around from a 

22 little before 12:00 to around 2:00 o'clock? 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

Yes, before 12:00. 

Now, did she ask you any questions about your 

duties with the Trump Organization? 
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A Yes, she did. She asked me what my duties 

were there. How long I worked. Who my friends were. 

Q All right, let me stop you there. When she 

asked you about how long you worked for the Trump Organizatio 

did she ask you to describe your duties? 

A Yes, she asked me to describe my duties and I 

said -- I described them for her. 

Q 

A 

you did? 

Briefly what did you describe? 

I said I typed, I filed, I did clerical work. 

She said in three and a half years that is all 

I said that's all I did. 

She said I worked in other offices and during 

three and a half years I knew more than that. 

I said well, I am sorry, I just didn't know mo 

than that. That is all I did there. That was about it. 

Q Was the word perjury used at any point during 

19 the interview? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yes. She said to me she said when I said 

this to her -- she said remember , do you know what the char e 

is for perjury. 

So I said no, I didn't know. 

She said you know, she said, it is one to five 

years. 

I said oh, that's nice. You know, I didn't 
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know what she was trying to bring out. I said I am telling 

you what I did there. And that was the end of it. 

Q 

A 

Q 

What you told her was the truth? 

That was the truth. That's what I did. 

Now, you are quite clear about her talking 

about perjury being one to five years? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, did she ask you any personal questions in 

relation to your employment by Trump? 

A Yes. She said to me how old are you. 

I said I am 28. 

She said do you own this place? 

I said yes, I own this place. 

She said a young girl like you? 

Then I said to her, Miss Goldstein, I said, I 

am 28, yes. I worked since I am 17 years old. I have saved 

every penny that I made and that is how I own this place. 

If you think in any way that I got the money from, you know, 

Trump or anything, if that is what you are trying to say? 

She said, no, I just wanted to know how a girl 

could own a place like this. 

Then she asked me about my friends, who my 

friends were. 

Q I want you to go into all the questions that 
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she asked you about different friends of yours. But I do 

want to ask you did she ask you about any personal relation-

ship you had with Donald Trump? 

there? 

A Yes. She said were you single when you worked 

I said yes, I wasn't married. 

She said do you know Donald Trump? 

I said yes, I worked for 

She said did you ever go 

I said no, I did not. 

Did he ever ask you out? 

I said no, he did not. 

him. 

out with 

MR. COHN: Nothing further. 

him? 

MR. SCHWELB: Can I have about a two-minute 

recess? 

THE COURT: Let's have a ten-minute recess. 

MR. COHN: What's your pleasure about time 

today, your Honor? 

THE COURT: As far as there are witnesses to 

go, except what I will do is I will probably have to 

adjust the lunch hour because I have a matter on at 

2:00 o'clock. That will probably take a half-hour. 

It's a juvenile hearing. 

MR. COHN: That \"lOUld help me. 
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THE COURT: So we will work it out so that the 

lunch hour will be stretched over. 

(Short recess.) 

(After recess.) 

C A R 0 L B A L I S T R E R I , called as a witness, 

having previously been duly sworn, resumed the stand 

and testified further as follows: 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SCHWELB: 

Q Miss Falcone, just for the record, you appeared 

at your deposition taken just a few weeks ago, did you not? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes I did. 

And you testified at the deposition? 

Yes. 

Didn't you testify at the deposition that every 

word of this affidavit was your own? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, I did. 

And that nobody helped you write it at all? 

No. 

And that you testified that it was in your 

own handwriting and that nobody could -- in that case nobody 

could say that you just signed it, is that right? 

MR. COHN: Your Honor, if it is just preliminary 

I don't mind. But if it is going to be on something 
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particular I would rather have him say were you asked 

this question and did you givethis answer. 

MR. SCHWELB: It is very summary, your Honor. 

Well, let me ask it differently. 

Q 

MR. COHN: That is what I am worried about. 

THE COURT: All right. 

Let me ask it differently. Did you in fact 

9 write it in your own handwriting that nobody could say you 

10 just signed it? 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Now, was it also true that your best recollec-

13 tion of the interview with Miss Goldstein was at the time 

14 that you wrote that statement rather than at the present time. 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

N·ow, you were given an opportunity to look at 

17 your affidavit before the deposition, weren't you? 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

You testified that it was all true and no 

20 errors, didn't you? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And now 

MR. COHN: Of course, your Honor, if he wants 

to talk about the deposition I would prefer to have 

him say were you asked this question and did you give 
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this answer. 

THE COURT: All right. 

Q Now, in writing your affidavit, Miss Falcone, 

did you try to be fair? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

You tried not to exaggerate? 

I didn't exaggerate. You know, I wrote down 

what she had said to me and what I said. 

Q Now, I believe that you stated in your affidavi 

that " ••• I was interviewed by Miss Donna Goldstein, attorney 

for the Civil Rights Division of the Justice Department and 

by another attorney on the morning of July 19, 1974 at my 

place of business in connection with the civil rights suit 

against my former employer, Trump Management." 

Now, were you interviewed on that occasion by 

Miss Goldstein and another attorney? 

A 

Q 

No, just Miss Goldstein. 

MR. SCHWELB: Thank you. 

And now later on in your affidavit you said, 

" ••• that in fact made me feel I was a criminal being held on 

a criminal charge ••• " Was that only Miss Goldstein? 

A Miss Goldstein was the only one that questioned 

me. 

I meant when I said it that because they carne 
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looking for me at such odd hours and that they, you know, as 

they were all trying to reach me when I was right there at 

my place. That is what I meant by it. 

Q Is it your testimony that somebody other than 

Miss Goldstein tried to make you feel like a criminal? 

A 

she did. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

No one treated my unfairly except I felt that 

The others all were nice to you, were they? 

Very nice. 

And they treated you fairly? 

Polite and fairly. 

Q I think you testified today that Miss Goldstein 

came at about a little before 12:00 o'clock and left at about 

2:00? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

In your affidavit you testified that she was 

there three and a half hours. 

A 

Q 

Approximately three, three and a half hours. 

Well, in your affidavit it says, " ••• which 

lasted approximately three and a half hours." That isn't 

right, is it? 

A Yes, it is right. It is approximately three 

hours and maybe ten minutes, or three hours and seven minutes 

Q Three hours and ten minutes? 
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A About that. From about a quarter after 11:00 

until about a quarter after 2:00 or ten to 2:00. Around that 

time. 

Q Now, in your affidavit you stated that " ••• she 

accused me of dating Donald Trump in front of my husband ••• " 

Actually did she ask you, according to you, 

whether you dated Donald Trump, is that right? 

A \'lell, if someone said to you do you date 

Donald Trump I guess that is accused. 

Q 

you mean? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

You guess that is accused. And is that what 

I assume that is what she meant. 

That is your assumption. 

It is my assumption. 

MR. SCHWELB: Thank you. 

Now, Miss Goldstein asked you a number of 

questions, did she not, about the racial composition of 

different buildings? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

She asked you how many blacks and how many 

22 whites there were in each of them? 

23 A She said what do you think the denominations 

24 were. How many do you think were black and how many QO you 

25 think were white. And I said I didn't know. 
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Q And you inferred from those questions, did you 

not, that she was accusing you or Trump of discrimination? 

A Well, if you had asked me a question like that 

I would assume that you meant that did we have as many blacks 

as whites. And I said I didn't know how many of which, you 

know, were in the-building. 

(Continued next page.) 
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GR/rp 1 1 Balistreri - cross - Schwelb 
2amrl 2 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

3 BY MR. SCHWELB (Cont'd): 
4 

Q And you took from that that she -- she was ac-
5 cusing you of lying about that? 

6 MR. COHN: What? 
7 THE WITNESS: Excuse me? 
8 MR. COHN: I don't understand. You took from 
9 that she was accusing you of lying? 

10 MR. SCHWELB: About the racial composition of 
11 the building. 

12 Q Did she ask you a lot of questions about it? 
13 THE COURT: Do you understand the question? 
14 I 

15 

16 

17 It was poorly phrased. 
18 

Q Now, at the conclusion of your discussion with 
19 Miss Goldstein -- strike that, please. 
20 

At the beginning of your discussion, you had 
21 a very friendly conversation, didn't you? 
22 

A Yes. I was polite to her. 
23 Q She was polite to you? 
24 

A Yes. 
25 
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And you offered her a cup of coffee? 

Yes. 

And she had it? 

Yes. 

And you discussed manicures, I think? 

77 

She was discussing manicures. She was looking 

8 at her nails and said, "I just had a manicure." 

9 Q 

10 business? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

18 rude to her. 

19 

And you said you couldn't in your line of 

Yes. 

That was the tone of conversation? 

At the beginning. 

When you left, you said, "Goodbye"? 

I said, "Goodbye."· 

And she said "Goodbye!'? . 

Yes. She was in my place and I wouldn't be 

MR. SCHWELB: I have no further questions of 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

this witness, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Any redirect?, · 

MR. COHEN: May I have just a second? 

{Continued on next page.) 



78 
1 3 Balistreri - redirect 

2 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

3 BY MR. COHN: 

4 Q ' Just one. Did Miss Goldstein say anything to 

5 you on the subject of the Government having information 

6 about what went on in the Trump organization from --

7 MR. SCUWELB: Objection, your Honor. Beyond 

8 the scope of the direct. 

9 MR. COHN: I think it probably is. I was 

10 wondering if I could have your Honor's permission 

11 to ask it as an omitted question. I suppose possibly 

12 Mr. --

13 THE COURT: We will see. I'll give you an 

14 for some recross. 

15 MR. SCHWELB: All right. 

16 THE COURT: Go ahead. I'll let you ask the 

17 question. 

18 BY MR. COHN: 

19 Q Did Miss Goldstein say anything to you about 

20 any information -- about how the Government knew what was 

21 going on in the Trump organization? 

22 A Yes. She said to me, she said, "You told me 

23 that you answered the phone, did you?" 

24 I said, "Yes, I answered the phone. " 

25 She said, "Did you notice when you answered the 
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phone if anyone that was on the phone was Negro?" 

I said, .. I really didn • t know the difference 

in the voices." I said, "Why?" 

She said, "Because you know," she said, "There 

are tapes, .. she said, "And we can prove that every 

incident when a Negro would call, in the background 

you would say, • Shoo, shoo, • or 'Hang up on them.'" 

I said, ''I never did that. I never even heard 

of it." And that's what she said about the tapes. 

I said, "Are you saying that I did this on 

the tapes?" 

She said, 11 Well, you did answer the phone." 

I said, "I didn't always answer the phones." 

She said, "Do you know of anyone who did this?" 

I said, 11 I do not know anything of this. What 

17 you • re trying to bring out to me? 11 

18 MR. COHN: I have nothing further. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. SCHWELB: I don • t think any cross on that 

particular allegation is necessary, your Honor. 

MR. COHN: Well, you --

THE COURT: You may step down. 

MR. COHN: All right. 

(Witness excused.) 

MR. COHN: Mr. Miranda, with your Honor's 
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2 permission. 

3 THOMAS MIRANDA, called as 

4 having been first duly sworn by the Clerk of the Court 

5 testified as follows: 

6 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

7 BY MR. COHN: 

8 Mr. Miranda, do you know Donna Goldstein? Q 

A 

10 You saw her here in Court this morning? Q 

A 

Q 12 did there come a time when she came to your 

13 home? 

A 

Q 

A 16 That's right. 

Q 17 About how long was she there? 

A 

19 And when she came in, did you have any discus-Q 

20 sion with her about on the subject matter of whether you 

21 wanted to talk to her or not? 

22 A Never. She didn't mention that to me. 

23 Q Did you tell her you did not want to be involve 

24 in this? 

25 A I told her I don't want to be involved in this. 
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Q Did she tell you at any time that you did not 

have to answer her questions? 

A 

Q 

Never. 

Now, did she ask you questions about discrimina 

tion in any of the Trump buildings? 

A 

Q 

She asked questions of discrimination, yes. 

And did she say anything to you about whether 

or not she was satisfied with your answers? 

A In the beginning she was not satisfied with 

my answer, that's right. 

Q 

A 

What did she say to you? 

she told me that -- she threatened me 

with the question of higher authority or jail or whatever it 

is. 

MR. SCHWELB: I don't understand the witness, 

your Honor. 

BY MR. COHN: 

Q 

MR. COHN: May the answer be read, your Honor? 

MR. SCHWELB: Can he go more slowly? 

THE COURT: Let's hear it. Read it back. 

(Question read.) 

That was in connection with which answers, 

24 Mr. Miranda? 

25 A In connection with the question I refused to 
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2 be cooperative in relation with this case. I don't want to 

3 be involved. 

4 Q Did she press you to say that there had been 

5 discrimination at the Trump buildings? 

6 A 

7 building, yes. 

8 

9 

Q 

A 

Well, precisely that -- discrimination Trump 

What did you tell her? 

No. 

10 Q After you had told her there was not, did she 

11 keep pushing you on it? 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

About what point of the interview was the term 

14 "jail" used by her? 

15 A Well, put it this way. Maybe in the beginning 

16 of the conversation that we have. 

17 Q 

18 that correct? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

A 

By the way, you yourself are Puerto Rican; is 

I am Puerto Rican. 

How long did you work for the Trumps? 

Two years. 

MR. COHN: I have nothing further, your Honor. 

23 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

24 BY MR. SCHWELB: 

25 Q Mr. Miranda, you filed an affidavit in this 
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case earlier, did you not? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

wasn't it? 

A 

Q 

is that right? 

A 

Q 

If I file an affidavit in this case? 

Yes. 

To whom? 

You signed a paper which is an affidavit? 

I signed a paper when? 

And that affidavit was written in legal tenns, 

Yes. 

You don't understand the legal terms very well; 

That's right. 

Youwere given a chance to make changes but you 

ddn't know how to make changes on a document in legal terms; 

is that right? 

A I don't think so. I don't think that they even 

mentioned ti1at to me. I saw the affidavit was in good terms 

and good looked all right and I signed it. 

Q You didn't write it, did you? 

A No. 

Q \'lho write it? 

A Somebody in the office. 

Q What office was that? 

A Trump office. 
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Miranda - cross 

Thank you. 

Now, when .did you first meet Mr. Cohn? 

Mr. Cohn? 

'This gentleman here, Mr. Roy Cohn. 

84 

A Mr. Roy Cohn? I met him over here when I 

came first for a hearing in the lobby. 

Q 

A 

Q 

For the deposition; is that right? 

Deposition. Whatever you call. 

So you had not met him when you signed your 

affidavit, had you? 

A 

Q 

No. 

Now, did you know that as a result of your af-

fidavit, Miss Goldstein could get in ver serious trouble? 

MR. COHN: Your Honor, I object to that. 

Did he know with respect to his affidavit 

Miss Goldstein could get into serious trouble? 

I don't think that's a proper question. 

THE COURT: I think that objection is well take • 

l-1R. SCHWELB: If I understand the ground for 

the objection, your Honor, I could.--

THE COURT: You might inquire whether anyone 

explained to him why the affidavit was being asked --

sought, etc. 

Q Did anybody explain to you why the affidavit 
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was being taken? 

A If anybody -- well, is quite difficult to answe 

that question. 

Q Did anybody explain it to you? 

A The result of the -- the affidavit? 

Q Did anybody explain to you --

A No. 

Q what would be done with the affidavit? 

A No. 

Q Now, I think this -- did you go to Mr. 'l'rump's 

office after Miss Goldstein came to see you? 

A 

following day. 

Q 

A 

Q 

I don't remember if it was the same day or the 

Sometime after? 

Yes. 

You told Mr. Trump, didn't you, you -- that 

Miss Goldstein had interviewed you about this case and it was 

his case and not your case? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I --

You didn't want to be involved in his lousy cas ? 

That's true. 

Now, he's a very busy man, is he not? 

Mr. Trump, yes. 

So he spent only about five or ten minutes with 
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2 you; is that right? 

3 A 15 or 20 minutes, more or less. 

4 Q Didn't you testify that it was five or 10 minut s? 

5 A Five, 10 minutes. I don't follow the time. 

6 Q A short time? 

7 A A short time. 

8 Q Now, do you think your affidavit is a fair 

9 summary of everything that happened between you and 

10 Miss Goldstein? 

11 A In this particular case I was looking for prote -

12 tion. 

13 

fOls. 14 (Continued on next page.) 
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Trump 
2am2 2 CROSS-EXAMINATION 
gr/nc 

3 BY MR. SCHWELB: (Cont.) 

4 Q What kind of protection? 

5 A You see, I'm a minority. I have been harassed 

6 many, many, many times in this city. And I need protection 

7 when they mention the question of in other words, higher 

8 authority or somebody else, I was a little scared. 

9 Q Let me just ask you whether you put in your 

10 affidavit you gave a fair picture of everything that 

11 happened at your house that day? 

12 A If I put a fair picture of everything that 

13 happened in my house? 

14 Q Right. 

15 Between you and Miss Goldstein. 

16 A It's very difficult. In the first place 

17 because I didn't have it for me to right at the moment, 

18 the second, because it happens a long time ago. 

19 Q All right. 

20 Mr. Miranda, isn't it true that Miss Goldstein 

21 called you --

22 THECOURT: Hold it just a minute. I know the 

23 purpose of this was to give him an opportunity to 

24 read it. 

25 MR. SCHWELB: I'm sorry, your Honor. I was 
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going to take it step by step but I'll withdraw it. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

THE WITNESS: This is all right. 

Q Now, Miss Goldstein first contacted you by 

telephone, did she not? 

A 

Q 

That is right. 

And she was very polite when she set up the 

meeting with you, was she not? 

A 

Q 

was she? 

rude. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

She was very polite. 

And when she was at your house she wasn't rude, 

Well, I was not cooperative,she was a little , 

Now, Mr. Miranda, --

She was all right. 

You say 

You see, she has her own purpose to be there to 

get some information in relation with discrimination in 

Trump buildings. 

Q 

A 

Right. 

Right? So in the position that she is, I don't 

mind, in other words, that she has to do her job properly. 

But that doesn't mean that she has to use words of higher 

authority or something like that. 
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The words were higher authority? 

89 

Yes. Somebody higher in the Department of 

Let me just ask you first, isn't it true that 

6 youtestified and isn't it true that you think she is a nice 

7 girl? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A nice girl. 

She wasn't rude to you in her words? 

A nice girl. Doing her job. 

Her job was to interview you about the Trump --

Yes. 

The agency? 

Yes. 

At the end of her doing her job, she asked 

16 you-- you-had coffee and donuts with her, did you not? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Rico 

good 

A 

Q 

and the 

A 

Q 

bye and 

A 

Q 

Yes, if I remember. 

You had a very friendly discussion about Puerto 

problems of Puerto Ricans, didn't you? 

Yes. 

And at the end of it you said good bye and she 

everything was very friendly? 

Of course. 

As a matter of fact, you -- she is welcome 

to come to your house again, isn't she? 

aid 
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Anytime. 

Thank you. 

90 

4 Now, it's true, isn't it, Mr. Miranda, that 

5 you told her that you didn't want to be involved in this case 

6 that that's Mr. Trump's case? 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

I don't want to be involved. 

All right. She told you, did she not, that if 

9 necessary, you might have to be subpoenaed? 

10 A She mentioned something about it. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

All right. 

Is that what you mean by the higher authority? 

No. 

What do you mean by the higher authority? 

Higher authority means FBI, police. That's 

what I mean, higher authority. 

Q She said that the FBI might interview you, is 

that what she said? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

She mentioned something like that. 

Is that what you considered threatening? 

That's what I considered threatening. 

Thank you. 

23 Now, during the course of your -- of Miss 

24 Goldstein's presence at your house, did you have occasion to 

25 talk to your son? 
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A I called my son. 

Q Now, didn't you call your son for advice as to 

whether to give information to her? 

A Yes. 

Q ANd he advised you to give information to her, 

didn't he? 

A No. In other words, she talked with my son. 

They have a short conversation. 

Q 

A 

You talked to him, too, didn't you? 

Yes, I did. 

Q And wasn't the subject of your conversation 

with him whether you should give information? 

A The subject of the conversation was in relatio 

with that but when I took the phone after she finish, my 

son told me to make my own judgment. To do it or not. 

Q All right. 

Now, Mr. Miranda, would it be fair to say that 

the main problem about Miss Goldstein's visit to your house 

was she was trying to get you involved in the case and you 

didn't want to be involved in the case? 

MR. COHN: Your Honor, I object to that. 

MR. SCHWELB: Cross-examination, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Yes, I think it is fair cross-
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6 Miranda - cross/Schwelb 

2 
examination. 

3 
Do you understand the question? 

4 
THE WITNESS: Make the --

5 
THE COURT: Read it back. 

6 
MR. SCHWELB: I'll rephrase it, your Honor. 

7 
Q You were annoyed because she was trying to get 

8 
you involved in the case and you didn't want to be involved 

9 
in the case; is that right? 

10 
A That is right. 

11 
Q Okay. Now, Mr. Miranda, do you know Ronald 

12 
Bunn and Agnes Bunn? 

13 
A No. 

14 
Q Weren't you talking to Mr. Bunn in this court-

15 
room today? 

16 
A Oh. 

17 
Q A black gentleman in the courtroom today? 

18 
A Yes. 

19 
Q Do you know him? 

20 
A Yes. 

21 
Q For how long have you known him? 

22 
A For two years. 

23 
Q And a nice fellow? 

24 
A Very nice fellow. 

25 
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Q Truthful? 

A Truthful. 

Q Now, didn't you have a conversation with 

Mr. Bunn or with Mrs. Bunn about having to return a deposit 
6 of a black woman and tell him that you didn't want to have 
7 to return that deposit, that Mr. Trump ought to return the 
8 

9 

10 

11 

deposit? 

A 

Q 

A 

I dont recall that. 

You recall it? 

No, I don't remember that. I never did it. I 
12 don't recall. I don't remember doing and talking with this g y 
13 in relation with that. I never did. 
14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Now, is it that you don't recall or you didn't 

do it? 

A I don't do it. 

Q So you do recall? 

A I didn't recall. 

MR. COHN: He recalls he --

A In other words, everything that is in particula 

for the business of the--- of the company, I work. I never 

. discuss this matter with the tenants. I consider this someth ng 

that we discuss with the office or --

Q Well, do you have any idea of what incident 

I'm talking about with respect to a tiack woman? 
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MR. COHN: Your Honor, that's objected to as 

beyond the scope of direct examination and beyond 

the scope of this hearing. 

THE COURT: I think it is. It is getting, 

moreover, into the merits of the case than the merits 

of this particular 

MR. SCHWELB: Here is the problem: If I may 

be heard briefly on that? The problem is that 

Mr. Miranda's testimony --

THE COURT: The problem is very apparent. 

MR. SCHWELB: Pardon? 

THE COURT: The problem is very apparent. 

MR. SCHWELB: All right. All right, your Honor. 

BY MR. SCHWELB: 

Q Now, did you have --- did you meet anybody 

else from the Department of Justice before you met Miss 

Goldstein? 

A 

her name, no. 

Q 

A 

First,yeah -- was another girl. I don't rememb r 

Was it Elise Goldweber? 

I think this is the name. 

Have you seen her in the courtroom today? 

Yes. 

Q 

A 

Q Is it the young lady wearing glasses in the third 
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in the right-hand side? 

you? 

not? 

A Yes. 

Q All right. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

When she came to your house, she polite to 

Very polite. 

And pleasant? 

Pleasant. 

And she asked you questions, also, did she 

Yes. 

Q And there were similar questions to the ones 

Miss Goldstein asked you? 

A More or less. 

Q And both of them asked you whether you had 

any information about discrimination by Trump, didn't they? 

A Yes. 

Q And you had a long chat with her and were 

friendly with her also? 

A And isn't it a fact, MR. Miranda, that you 

told Miss Goldweber that racial markings were placed on 

pieces of paper attached to applications? 

A No. 
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Q You didn't tell her that? 

A No. 

Q Did you tell that to Miss Goldstein? 

A No. 

Q Did you ever tell anybody or tell any of 

Justice Department people that -- about an incident of 

possible discrimination with any black family? 

A No. 

96 

the 

Q Did you ever tell anybody that you had been 

told that the management preferred Jews? 

A No. 

Q Did you tell them that they wanted to keep your 

place white? 

A No. 

Q You didn't tell any of those people any of 

those things? 

A Any of those things. 

Q Now, I think you testified that the affidavit 

was written by somebody else? 

A Yes. 

Q And Miss Goldstein is welcome in your house 

at any time? 

A Yes. 
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MR. SCHWELB: Thank you. No further questions. 

THE WITNESS: All right. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COHN: 

Q About what point of the interview was the 

word "jail" used by Miss Goldstein, do you remember? 

A Quite difficult but I think -- I believe it was 

in the beginning of the conversation. 

Q Sometime before you telephoned your son to ask 

what you should do? 

A Before, before. 

MR. COHN: I have nothing further, your Honor. 

MR. SCHWELB: I have nothing further, your 

Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. 

You may step down, Mr. Miranda. 

MR. COHN: May I have just a second, please, 

your Honor. Your Honor, that's all we have with 

the exception of the testimony of Cecilmans who we 

could not get today. 

I will not call Mr. Brovman in view of Miss --

subject to confirmation of Miss Goldstein's statement 

that that incident took place after the date of our 

motion. That's it. Then we will rest. Subject to 
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the --

MR. SCHWELB: Could I have about a three-

minute conference with Mr. Cohn? 

We may be able to resolve this ·.and unclog 

the calendar. 

THE COURT: Yes, certainly. 

(continued next page.( 
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MR. SCID1ELB: Your Honor, I might say that no 

excuse has been furnished by defendant for not produc-

ing his witnesses. 

MR. COHN: I'll qive a qood excuse. 

Mr. Schwelb has sent marshals around and I know 

your Honor's patience gets a little tried with all of 

this because it is not in the direct issue here. 

Miss Falcone had the pleasure of three different 

sets of marshals going around at hours up to 12:20 in 

the morning, serving three subpoenas, two of them with 

incorrect dates, one of them which she had to change 

in longhand calling for her to be here on October 29th, 

next week, instead of today, when I had told -- said, 

and she had explained she was available on a phone call 

to be over in this courtroom whenever her testimony 

was desired. 

MR. SCHWF.LB: This has something to do with the 

Zisselman's? 

MR. COHN: Yes. As far as the Zisselman's are 

concerned, I tried to treat them with as much courtesy 

as I could. When your Honor had a calendar problem, I 

had a calendar problem, and the Court of Appeals, the 

date had to be changed. I contacted the Zisselman's who 

had switched around their programs and could not come 

today. 
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I said to them, "If I subpoena you, could I get 

you?" They said "Now that you have told us that, you 

cannot get us with a subpoena. We just can't be there. 

We can come on a few days' notice." 

Mr. Schwelb has made a proposal I might be able 

to agree to. 

We have these affidavits of the Zisselman's. 

He apparently suggesting that we take -- I thought the 

first affidavits and stipulate that they would so testi 

fy. Now I think he's having second thoughts and only 

wants one of the affidavits, and not the other. 

MR. SCffivELB: Your Honor --

MR. COHN: If his offer is both, I accept it. In 

order to expedite and conclude this hearing, I would 

stipulate that if the Zisselman's were here, their tes-

timony would be in accordance with these affidavits. 

r.-m. SCHWELB: Let me take a couple of minutes on 

that, your Honor. I never offered him anything. I 

suggested that might be a possibility, to save some tim . 

That's all. 

Let me study it right now and we'll determine it 

THE COURT: All right. 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, I will stipulate as 

to Mr. Cohn's proposal, that Mr. and nrs. Zisselman 

will testify in accordance ,.,i th their affidavits. They 
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weren't affidavits. They were signed statements. 

MR. COHN: Should I have them marked now, your 

Honor? Or read them in or have them marked? 

THE COURT: You can have them marked as vour 

exhibits, if you wish. 

MR. COHN: Thank vou. 

Paul and Paula Zisselman. 

THE CLERK: That's Paul marked defen-

dant's Exhibit A in evidence. 

(So marked. ) 

THE CLERK: The other one is Paula Zisselman 

marked Defandant's Exhibit B in evidence. 

(So marked. ) 

MR. COHN: We rest, vour Honor. 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, I move at this time 

to dismiss the contempt proceedings against Miss Gold-

stein and aqainst the United States, the proceedings 

for an order against the United States, on the arounds 

that the defendant didn't make anything approaching the 

kind of proof required, if the Court considers the 

credible evidence heard .. 

THE COURT: All right. May I see that? They 

haven't been marked yet? 

THE CLERK: Yes, your Honor. 

THE COURT: no you want to be heard, Mr. Cohn, 
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I think it's -- it's an abuse of power on the 

part of the Government and I think it's violative of 

the rights of a defendant, first of all, when there is 

a case in progress, a case containinq a serious charqe, 

a charge which the defendant stoutlv resists. 

When there has been an order of the Court which 

further expands the complaint and clarifies the issue 

by putting the defendants on notice, what they are to 

meet, \<Then it's a priority case for trial and after 

those stages, when the Government -- when with the 

knowledqe and I would submitfue collaboration of the 

Government, the Urban or any other aaency, is 

permitted to and does send in a -- and furnish informa-

tion to the Government periods outside the time inthe 

complaint or the particulars filen an undercover teste 

around the Trump buildinqs, '!:lith a lot of attendant 

circumstances that is improper conduct onthe oart of 

a prosecutor. 

I would ask your Honor's leave on that to sub-

mit a little law. IT won't take me very long because 

I've been through that issue in another forum on dif-

fering circumstances recently. 

The second phase ofthe motion, your Honor, is 

this. As is apparent from the testimony before you, 

this did not come --we probably haven't scratched the 
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who sends the boys out to do the job. I think that 

supervision and control should certainly extend to 

telling them to call witnesses within -- this is a 

civil r.ial-,ts case and these former employees are not 

being charged with murder 1 and I think that there is 

certainly ground rules of courtesy and hours which not 

telling them not to go around to homes at 10:00, 11:00, 

12:00 at night, which -- I just think that the better 

housekeeping job can be done by 

MR. Is he entitled to make references 

in this closing argument to things completely outside 

the record, that in my judgement are not true and have 

nothing to do with his original motion and didn't happe 

in relation to anything he complained about? 

MR. COHN: Your Honor --

MR. SCHWELB: I object. 

(Continued on next page.) 
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N.R. COHN: What is not in the record? 

MR. SCHWELB: About what these FBI agents 

went in the middle of the night. 

THE COURT: I would have·to agree with Mr. Sch elb, 

that outside of a request by his office -- section, 

to the FBI to conduct such a request. I find no 

evidence in the record that anything of the nature 

of Gestapo tactics was permitted by the FBI in doing 

the tasks assigned to them. 

I consider that an extraordinary charge to 

make about an agency which, in my view, has always 

acted in respect even of criminal, with the utmost 

politeness and respect for the rules and laws of 

this country. 

MR. COHN: Let me say this, Judge Neaher. 

As far as the FBI is concerned, nobody has bee 

a better friend of the FBI than I have. I agree 

with you completely. I have 1
1

wri tten that publicly, 
I 

magazines, books, newspaper and I think 
I 

they consider me such. 

But I will say this tol, your Honor. I think 
I 

it is way out of line, in a civil rights' case, 
I 
I, 

for agents to be at potential', witnesses' homes. 

THE COURT: Well, I will have to take judicial 
I 

I 

notice of the fact that the Bureau of 
I 
! 



1 2 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

111 

Investigation is precisely that. It investigates 

not only the ivolations of the laws of the 

United States but it acts as the investigating arm 

of the Department of Justice in purely civil matters. 

And this is the first time it has ever been brought 

to my attention that anyone has charged an FBI agent 

or agents in a civil matter with some kind of conduct 

that could be described as storm trooper or Gestapo7 

type conduct. 

MR. COHN: Your Honor. 

THE COURT: I have found no evidence in the 

record to sustain such a charge and I think the 

charge is utterly without foundation. 

MR. COHN: Your Honor, we're going ,from A to 

B here. The charge in this contempt proceeding is 

against the FBI. 

THE COURT: !understand. 

MR. COHN: I have never brought a charge 

against the FBI in my life. I have personal reasons 

why I haven't and I never would. My relationship 

is much too close. 

THE COURT: There is no evidence in this record. 

MR. COHN: Fine. 

THE COURT: Other than the making of a request 

in regular course to the FBI, giving names of persons 
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the department wishes to have interviewed in connec-

tion with a particular matter. 

MR. COHN: Okay. 

THE COURT: The FBI is supposed to be well 

trained, professional, and the assumption or presump-

tion would be that based-upon their own schedule of 

assignments and work to be done, they went out, 

perhaps late in the evening, because their agents 

are oftentimesrequired to work late in the evening 

in order to get matters performed, 

people aren't even approachable during the daytime 

hours. No one at home and so forth. However, 

whatever the time, as I say, there is nothing here 

that in my judgment would warrant any contempt or 

other action by this Court on the basis of the proof 

shown here. 

It is perfectly :obvious that some former 

employees were approached, were interviewed or 

attempted to be interviewed. Presumably for one rea-

son or another, they did not turn out to be willing 

witnesses, which is understable in some certain situa 

tions such as one of this kind. But I hardly find it 

a basis for critisizing the actions of the plaintiff' 

attorneys. 

I feel that nothing here would amount to any 
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reason why this Court should condemn· them or punish 

them or censure them for what was done here. And 

that is my ruling in this matter, and I therefore 

grant the Government's motion to strike this applica-

tion from the record. 

MR. COHN: All right. 

Your Honor, may I have two points? 

THE COURT: In toto. 

MR. COHN: May I have two points on that? 

I'd like it -- I'd like the point clarified concernin 

the FBI. That that allegation was not made. 

argue. 

THE COURT: Mr. Cohn, you and I don't have to 

MR. COHN: Okay. 

THE COURT: It is unnecessary, I assure you. 

MR. COHN: Okay. Fine. 

THE COURT: Now, what I am interested in is, t e 

progress of this case, I remember referring it to the 

Magistrate for purposes of discovery specification. 

Is this going along or --

MR. COHN: The Magistrate ruled that at that 

time that all discovery would terminate by September 

1974. 

He commented in making the ruling, he though 

there had been -- a priority case under the statute 

and he thought there had probably been too much 

, 
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discovery already. 

There had been 13 depositions taken at that 

time. He gave the Government -- we took no deposi-

tions. We engaged in no discovery. 

He gave the Government a period of weeks to 

schedule more and gave them some ground rules about 

the facts of not calling a lot of ex-employees who 

.. didn 1 t -- couldn 1 t understand the law behind the 

defendants. He was more interested in what would be 

admissible in a Courtroom and all of that. 

After having set the ground rules, the Govern-

ment then noticed another bunch of depositions, I 

think six or seven or eight, something in that number. 

All of those except one witness who was excused by 

the Government, sick or something, were by 

us, exactly as noticed by the Government, and we 

now have some, I believe, 20 depositions, all of 

which have been completed and the -- and were complete 

prior to the cut-off date of September 1st. 

In addition thereto, Judge Catoggio ordered 

certain records to be turned over. We had turned some 

over once before and we turned them over again, plus 

additional records and all of that was completed by 

September 1, 1974. 

The only item that could conceivably be regarde 
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New York or elsewhere? 

MR. SCHWELB: Almost all of the New York, 

I think. 

MISS GOLDSTEIN: Yes. 

MR. COHN: I'm going to ask your Honor for 

two rulings here. I heard what your Honor said 

about the contempt motion. I might respectfully dis-

agree, which I guess is my prerogative and I know 

your Honor has the ball when it comes to making a 

decision. 

Be it a civil case, and let's assume a .civil 

case is even more than a criminal case, I have never 

seen anything like this in a discovery period. I 

don't think I should be met with phone calls every 

day about undercover agents going around to the 

buildings while I'm trying to get this case ready. 

MR. SCHWELB: I object to that for the .eightee th 

time, your Honor. 

MR. COHN: Your Honor, they didn't -- they 

didn't prepare this before they filed the complai t. 

They're doing it now and I'm paying for it. 

What I'm interested in is responding to your 

Honor's inquiry. Are we going to trial November 25th? 

How much longer are we going to get hit by them with 

new areas, new things, not mentioned in the complaint 
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and not mentioned in the interrogatories, based upon 

which we have or have not taken our discovery, based 

upon which 20 depositions and carloads of records 

have been turned over? 

When is there going to be -- when Judge Catogg o 

ruled that the end came, September 1, 1974, I do not 

understand why in October, 1974, this your Honor 

having set a trial date, it is a statute requirement 

in a priority case, why we're still talking about 

these things. 

MR. SCHWELB: Can I answer why we are, your 

Honor? 

THE COURT: All right. 

MR. SCHWELB: I think your Honor will recall 

that we had considerable difficulty in discovery. 

Discovery was to be over by September the 1st. That 

was a ruling that Mr. Catoggio -- Magistrate Catoggio 

made. 

Part of that discovery was to look at their 

records which got us the names of their former 

employees. We asked for them late in -- the fall of 

1973. We never got them. 

Now, finally, we've gotten them. For that 

reason I think that your Honor would agree with us 

that it is our responsibility to interview them, to 
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determine what facts they have. And we've inter-

viewed them. 

As soon as we get information we supplement 

our answers to interrogatories. It is our responsi-

bility to do it. 

Mr. Cohn is talking about this case being in 

a hurry, and we're delaying it, is something 

that boggles the mind. 

If you recall the fate of the interrogatories, 

the fact that they didn't answer them, they didn't 

object to them. Then after they did answer them, 

they answered them about a page and a half. 

I come I've come up here any number of time 

to be met with a proposition that depositions can't 

be held. Mr. Cohn is in Cohn against Cohn, Jones 

against Jones, or whatever it is he's in. He's the 

only attorney who can represent them. 

With due respect, we want to move as quickly 

as possible and we've asked to move as quickly as 

possible, but we do discovery and get names,we have 

a right to interview them and use them so the Court 

can have the entire truth. And that's what we're 

trying to do. 

With the new information, I believe that we 

have an excellent case when we started with admission 
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of discriminatory policy, with incidents about 

seven or eight definite buildings and with statements 

by their agents how they don't want to rent to blacks, 

we had some former employee proof. 

Now, as a result of discovery which often 

happens, we've got a great deal more. We want to gi 

it to your Honor. 

'l'HE COURT: I understand that you want to 

prepare your case thoroughly but I think Mr. Cohn 

has a point about there having to be some cut-off 

date, when he can feel confident that the matter has 

come to an end. as far as trial preparation is con-

cerned. You understand? 

MR. SCHWELB: Yes, your Honor. I think he's 

entitled to that. 

THE COURT: It's very unsettling to believe th t 

you're dealing with a case that is shaped like this, 

only to find that it is now grown to something like 

this (indicating). 

MR. SCHWELB: You see --

THE COURT: At the last minute. 

MR. SCHWELB: Your Honor, with respect, that 

date, as to when the cut-off must come, must bear 

some relation to when we were given our rights of 

discovery. 
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We've moved with considerable dispatch in 

looking at his records. 

THE COURT: The whole purpose of referring it 

to the Magistrate, though, was to make sure that all 

these matters could be ironed out and I had the 

impression from what you said a little while ago 

that these had been. 

Did I misunderstand? 

MR. SCHWELB: I think -- I didn't realize we 

were in conflict except I advised your Honor, because 

I think I have a responsibility, too. 

We have additional interviews and we want to 

amend our answers to interrogatories. 

THE COURT: They are not deposition matters? 

MR. SCHWELB: We don't want to take their 

depositions. In other words, we've interviewed a 

number of people. ·A number of those people have 

additional evidence to what we had before. 

We want to -- we have not yet disclosed that 

to Mr. Cohn because we only just recently got it and 

the reason we just got it is because we had an 

investigation by the FBI based on the records he gave 

us, I think, in August. I may be wrong. 

THE COURT: August of '74? 

MR. SCHWELB: Yes. And I may be wrong about 
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the date. I'm not positive. But in any event, it 

takes a certain amount of time for them to interview 

these people and we're move -- I give your Honor 

my word that we're moving with the utmost dispatch 

on it. 

MR. COHN: Maybe I could clarify this. 

Our position simply is going to be this. 

We're trying this case based on the allegations of 

the complaint, as clarified by the answers to the 

interrogatories filed in answer to your Honor's 

direction. 

I am going to object just as strenuously 

as Mr. Schwelb did when I tried to get over and your 

Honor upheld him over July 26th on this contempt 

motion this morning, to anything that comes after the 

dates charged in the complaint in this case. 

In other words, the complaint in this case 

does not charge what Miss Busch from the Urban League 

says someone indicated to her about a current situati n 

in July, 1974. 

The complaint in this case charges up to 

October, 1973, and that's what I am prepared to meet, 

based upon the specifics, all of which relate to 

events prior to the date of the filing of the complai 

So I am going to object at the trial to the admission 

• 
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of anything that goes beyond the charge made in this 

complaint which is all we are called upon --what we 

are called upon to meet in this case. 

I think what Mr. Schwelb is saying to your 

Honor is this. He wants to file supplemental interro 

gatories. 

MR. SCHWELB: Answers to interrogatories. 

MR. COHN: Answers to interrogatories, to 

expand what he says he now has. so that when the day 

of the trial comes, he will try to offer those in 

evidence. 

I don't care if he does that, if he wants to 

serve me with any supplemental anything, without 

delaying the trial and without taking more deposition • 

God bless him, let him do it. 

THE COURT: Are more depositions contemplated? 

MR. SCHWELB: Not by us. 

MR. COHN: No objection to that at all. 

At the trial I will my right to object 

to the offering of any proof. 

THE COURT: I would · suggest in that case 

that both of you pay some attention to inform the Cou t 

on legal authority with respect to that. 

MR. SCHWELB: We will do that. 

THE COURT: Ordinarily I would view this as 
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any equity type action, where the complaint would 

speak as of the time and injunction was to be granted 

if one were to be. That's not a pre-judgement. 

I am simply saying that --

MR. COHN: Of course not. 

THE COURT: It isn't like the normal situation 

where you're dealing with the legal rights and re-

lations growing out of something that occurred in 

the past, a breach of contract or that sort of thing. 

This is a -- well, I suppose it's in a certain 

sense civil enforcement of a statute type ligitation, 

where the claim is pattern of discrimination, and I 

suppose to the extent that the Government proves it, 

whether it be by evidence which was developed after 

the complaint was filed or evidence which they had in 

their possession before it was filed, they're talking 

about, of course, a past pattern of discrimination. 

But what they consider an pasttern 

of discrimination which is why they're asking or will 

ask I'm sure for a form of injunctive relief. 

So I suggest therefore that you have that in 

mind if your going to make a point of it at the trial 

so that I'll have the benefit of your--

MR. COHN: Thank you. I would have very much 

in mind the fact that there is nothing about a civil 
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rights case that a -- raises it to some kind of 

position over ordinary litigation and litigants to th 

point that -- that I have to meet evidence up until 

a date months after the filing of a complaint and 

evidence of which I have not been advised and given 

the opportunity to meet. 

I think -- and I understand your Honor wants 

law on that. I hope .we will be able to furnish it. 

Maybe I'm wrong. I find out every day I'm wrong on 

things. 

THE COURT: As I said, I prefer not to delay 

the trial of this case. If we have to suspend the tr al 

to give you an opportunity to interview some of these 

people, we may have to do that. I don't know. 

MR. COHN: Could I aSkyour Honor -- through 

your Honor's good offices now, when does Mr. Schwelb 

intend to give me his -- the final statement he talke 

about? 

MR. SCHWELB: We certainly -- your Honor, 

we'll certainly give them a substantial one this comi g 

week. I'd like to consult with my operating counsel 

here as to whether the thing is over. 

I believe that the FBI investigation is either 

over or almost over. We have a substantial number 

that we got in -- last four or five days, that we 
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want to amend. 

We will give that to them next week. If there 

is an 

THE COURT: Answers to interrogatories? 

MR. SCHWELB: Yes. We find -- to supplement 

the answers as the case goes along. 

With respect to the question of the legal 

question posed, of course, there are many cases that 

hold that equity looks to the future and that's the 

essence of tbat. 

Just to respond to one --

MR. COHN: I am not prepared to argue it now. 

MR. SCHWELB: Just to respond to one point 

that Mr. Cohn made, Congress has said in Traficante 

against Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, 

the Metropolitan Life 

Insurance Company, 409 u. S. 205, at page 211, that 

the right to equal housing opportunity has been ac-

corded the highest national priority. 

Thank you, your Honor. 

MR. COHN: Your Honor --

MR. SCHWELB: One other word about this and 

that is, could we have our costs of this motion that 

have just denied? 

MR. COHN: Costs? 
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THE COURT: Well, I think I'll let it stand. 

MR. COHN: The final word? I don't dispute 

anything that --

THE COURT: The Government never has to pay 

costs so I even things up by denying them costs 

now and then. 

MR. SCHWELB: I thought this particular motion 

had a particular characteristic but I abide by your 

Honor's ruling. 

MR. COHN: Your Honor asked us for law. We 

will furnish it to you. 

In response to Mr. Schwalb's last statement, 

I think a charge of violation of the civil rights 

laws is seriously when the people against whom it 

is made do not violate the civil rights law and 

that's why it is interesting in this case that it is 

the defendant who has been asking for the priority 

trial date, not the Government. 

We are ready to meet it and no matter what 

Mr. Schwalb wants to file next week, we're .not going 

to ask for a minute's delay in this trial. 

THE COURT: All right. 

MR. SCHWELB: Thank you. 

MR. COHN: Thank you. November 25th, that wil 

be this Courtroom? 

THE COURT: November 25th is still the date. 

* * * * 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

NOV 14 1974 

CIVIL ACTION NCh .: 7 J . cry 9 
l "i i . i ' • • • • 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., ) SUPPLEMENTAL ANSWERS TO 
DEFENDANTS' INTERROGATORIES ) 

Defendants. ) 

The United States of America, plaintiff herein, by 

its undersigned attorney hereby supplements its Answers to 

Defendants' First Interrogatories. 

Supplemental Answers to 
Interrogatories 1 and 2 

1. The following information constitutes evidence 

that defendants through their agents or employees have made 

apartments unavailable on account of race in the following 

ways: 

(a) Mr. Kalman Biczo, 588 West End Avenue, 

New York, N. Y. a former employee of defendants, 

was superintendent at Laurence Gardens in 1971. 

Biczo states that at or about the time a black 

tenant was being evicted, the superindent at 

the Trump apartment building opposite Laurence 

Gardens, believed to be Laurence Towers, whose 



name was Frank (last name unrecalled), advised 

him that he would be better off not renting to 

blacks, indicating that when you rent to blacks 

you run into trouble. A short time later, 

Biczo was relieved of rental responsibilities 

at Laurence Gardens and these responsibilities 

were assigned to Frank. 

(b) Mr. and Mrs. Harold Zimmerman (current 

address unknown). Mr. and Mrs. Zimmerman who 

are caucasion are former tenants at Kendall Hall 

Apartments. The Zimmerman's moved from Kendall 

Hall early 1970. At or about the time they were 

planning to move from Kendall Hall, Mrs. Spitrey 

who was the wife of the Superintendent and who 

served as a rental agent, told the Zimmermans 

inform their neighbors, Mr. and Mrs. Walarsky, 

that they were moving, since the Walarsky's had 

black friends who were interested in renting at 

the apartment house. 

Respectfully submitted, 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Attorneys, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



AFFIDAVIT 

CITY OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

I, Donna Goldstein, being duly sworn, depose and 

say: 

1. I am an attorney in the Housing Section, 

Civil Rights Division, United States Department of Justice, 

and one of the counsel for plaintiff in United States v. 

Fred C. Trump, et al., Civil Action No. 73 C 1529. 

2. I am informed of ·the facts of this case. The 

foregoing Plaintiff's Supplementary Answers to Defendants' 

Interrogatories are true and correct to the best of my 

information, knowledge and belief. 

Attorne , Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

and sworn to before me 
this /f L/-of November 1974. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission expires: 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on November 11, 1974, copies 

of the foregoing Plaintiff's Supplementary Answers to 

Defendants' Interrogatories were placed in the United States 

mail, postage prepaid, addressed to counsel for the 

defendants: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

EIN 
Attorne Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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NEW YORK. NEW YORK 10021 

..JOHN GODFREY SAXE (1909-19531 
ROGERS H. BACON (1919-1962) 

(212) 472-1400 THOMAS A. BOLAN 
COUNSEL 

ROY M. COHN C' . . 

i''' r r SCOTT E. MAN LEY (ADMITTED ILL'NOIS AND 

MICHAEL ROSEN November 16 , li §ryQL: •. ; . J. 
.,.i·\"' q 

DANIEL J. DRISCOLL 

HAROLD SCHWARTZ c,.- .. , . ' 1 ,·_:, :.,! 
MELVYN RUBIN '-' ! .• ' i .J . 
JEFFREY A. SHUMAN 
LORIN DUCKMAN 

Hon. Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
United States Court House 
Foley Square 
New York, New York 10007 

Dear Judge Neaher: 

TiME A.IVI.. ••••••••••.•• 
..••••••.•••••• 

c__. l 

When we last appeared before Your Honor, it was 
brought to Your Honor's attention that the case now bore 
stamped resemblance to the original allegation contained 
in the complaint and to their specification by the Civil 
Rights Section's responses last January, 1974, amplifying 
the complaint by listing the specific locations and inci-
dents already called upon to me at the trial. Extensive 
depositions of the people involved in the listed incidents 
and others in the Trump management were taken - all by the 
government, none by us, as we were anxious to expedite this 
trial. Discovery was terminated by Magistrate Cattagio on 
September 1, 1974, and we moved the case for trial by com-
municating with Your Honor's chambers. 

However, thereafter, the government served a whole 
new set of amended or additional answers to the ten month 
old answers to interrogatories. From these it appeared that 
right during the taking of discovery, the government was 
going around trying to bolster its case by the use, among 
other techniques, of undercover tester agents of the Urban 
League, in an attempt to entrap (albeit substantially un-
successfully) certain employees of the defendants. 

This new slew of answers to interrogatories and 
alleged incidents obviously produced an entirely new list 
of alleged incidents, some within a few weeks of the Sep-
tember set of new answers to interrogatories. Nevertheless, 
we persisted in our attempt to have this case disposed of 
promptly. 



Hon. Edward R. Neaher 
November 16, 1974 
Page Two 

When we appeared before Your Honor in October, 
we were told, for the first tirne 6 that the government in-
tended to file still another set of answers to the January, 
1974 interrogatories, containing still additional incidents. 
We advised the Court that without a cut-off date it would 
be impossible to have the prompt trial to which we are all 
entitled, and to have substantial justice done with an oppor-
tunity on our part to meet allegations - which we thought 
governed the period to the date of the filing of the corn-
plaint - in a monitoring current spy network operating 
around our units. 

It was then and there represented to Your Honor 
that a final set of new answers would be submitted the next 
week. They were not. Some time after the promised date 
there was submitted an entirely new list of answers con-
taining previously uncharged and unspecified alleged incidents. 

This letter was supposed to end here, but after 
I started preparing it, and on yesterday, November 15, 1974, 
we received still another new set of allegations and speci-
fications. 

In view of this amazing conduct on the part of 
the government, we now have no choice but to reluctantly 
request Your Honor to adjourn the trial date of November 25, 
1974, which was fixed at our instance and opposed by the 
government, and to ask for the re-opening of discovery so 
that we may examine witnesses involved in incidents of which 
we have been notified since the date discovery was ordered 
concluded - September 1, 1974. We also request that Your 
Honor formally fix the November 15, 1974 additional alle-
gations by the government as the final cut-off date prior 
to trial for the filing of such new allegations, so the 
period between now and whatever the trial date Your Honor 
sees fit to fix after November 25, 1974, may be used for 
the preparation of a case of which we have been notified, 
and can be prepared to meet. 

If Your Honor feels a conference is required as a 
result of this letter, we are, of course, available at your 
convenience. 

1 

{I) tlif;it<' 
: Roy j-1. Cohn f 

sb 
cc: Mr. Frank Schwelb 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 

- --X 

- - X 

' j. I 

.. ,. ' '. 

·' 

SUPPLEMENTAL 
Al\'llNE-R'S""TO DEFENDANTS I 

INTERROGATORIES 

Civil Action No. 
73 c 1529 

The United States of America, plaintiff herein, by its 

undersigned, submits the following supplementary answer to de-

fendants' interrogatories. 

1. On or about June 14, 1972, George Sim Johnston, 131 

E. 69th Street, New York, N.Y., an employee of The Urban League, 

conferred with Mr. Louis Sarnell, a rental agent employed by 

the defendants at the Shorehaven comples. Sarnell informed 

Johnston that the neighborhood was safe, in part, because there 

were no blacks in the immediate area or words to that effect. 

Sarnell also indicated that "people who make trouble" implying 

blacks, were kept in a specific area in the community and that 

at Shorehaven, Johnston would be safe from those persons. 

2. On or about July 31, 1972, Godfrey Jacobs, 2401 Nostran 

Avenue, Brooklyn, N.Y., a black tester from the Urban League 

spoke to Mr. Abe Rosenberg, a rental agent of the defendants 

at the Beachaven complex to inquire about renting a one-bedroom 

apartment that was advertised in the New York Times on or about 

July 24, 1972. Jacobs was told that nothing was available. A 

few minutes later George Sim Johnston, white, inquired about 

renting a one-bedroom apartment and was shown the apartment 

and informed that he could rent it. 

Dated: Brooklyn, N.Y. 
November 20, 1974 

NO N P. GOLDBERG 
Attorney 
Depaprtment of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 



V E R I F I C A T I 0 N 

STATE OF NEW YORK 
ss. : 

COUNTY OF KINGS 

I, Norman P. Goldberg, being duly sworn, depose and say: 

1. I am an attorney in the Housing Section, Civil Rights 

Division, United States Department of Justice, and one of the 

counsel for plaintiff in United States v. Fred C. Trump, et al., 

Civil Action No. 73 C 1529. 

2. I am informed of the facts of this case. The fore-

going Plaintiff's Supplementary Answers to Defendants' Interro-

gatories are true and correct to the best of my information, 

knowledge and belief. 

Sworn to before me this 
1974 

EVSLYN SO:viMEQ 
•Noterv P"bi,c, Stdt" o' :\lew York 

No. 24-4502 I 58 
ir, Ki.cqs County . / 

Commission Expires Much 30, 19 ) l 

NORMAN P. GOLDBERG 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT .:r ' 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 1974 

UNITED STATES OF Alv1ERICA, ) 
) 
) 
) 

.............. . 
P.M .............•• 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. et al., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) _______________________ ) 

CIVIL ACTION 
NO. 73 CIV 1529 

SUPPLEMENTAL ANSWER 
TO DEFENDANTS' 
INTERROGATORIES 

The United States of America, plaintiff herein, by its 

undersigned attorney hereby submits the following supplemental 

answer to defendants' interrogatories. In addition, plaintiff 

submits a correction to an answer previously submitted. 

Supplemental Answer 

Mr. Saul Blate, 49 Nixon Court, Brooklyn, New York, is 

a white tenant currently residing in the defendants' :Oeachaven 

Complex. So<netime in late 1970, Hr. Blate went to the defen-

dants' Beachaven rental office to inquire about moving to a 

larger apartment. While at the office, the rental agent, name 

unknown, observed through a window some black people walking 

near the office. The agent stated to Blate that "we" do not 

want to rent to blacks or words to that effect. The agent then 

proceeded to pull the \d.ndow shade down indicating to Elate that 

he wanted to gtve the appearance that the office was closed. 



··-
Corrected Answer 

Reference is made to Item l(i) contained in Plaintiff's 

Supplemental Answer served on November 4, 1974. The portion 

of the Answer referring to a discriminatory statement made by 

Carlos Zeller to Adolphe Gomez should be changed as follows: 

According to Gomez, Zeller informed Gomez that Trump 

Hanagement did not want to rent to blacks. Zeller further 

advised Gomez that when blacks inquired about renting apart-

ments Zeller informed them that there were no vacancies in 

order to implement the defendants' discriminatory policy. 

Respectfully submitted, 

NORMAN P. GOLDBERG j 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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CITY OF WASHINGTON 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

AFFIDAVIT 

) 
) ss 
) 

I, Norman P. Goldberg, being duly sworn, depose and say: 

1. I am an attorney in the Housing Section, Civil 

Rights Division, United States Department of Justice, and one 

of the counsel for plaintiff in United States v. Fred C. 

Trump, et al., Civil Action No. 73 C 1529. 

2. I am informed of the facts of this case. The 

foregoing Plaintiff's Supplemental Answer to Defendants' 

Interrogatories is true and correct to the best of my infor-

rnation, knowledge and belief. 

NO N P. GOLDBERG 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
11-u of November, 1974. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on November (), c-( 1974, copies 

of the foregoing Plaintiff's Supplemental Answer to Defendants' 

Interrogatories were placed in the United States mail, 

postage, prepaid, addressed to counsel for the defendants: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan 

& Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 

- - - X 

NOTICE TO TAKE DEPOSITION 
UPON ORAL EXAMINATION 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 

S I R S 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at 10:00 A.M. on the 12th day of 

December, 1974 at the Office of the United States Attorney, 225 

Cadman Plaza East, in the Borough of Brooklyn, City of New York, th 

plaintiff in the above-entitled action will take the deposition of 

Adolphe Gomez, as a witness, upon oral examination, pursuant to 

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before a Notary Public, or 

before some other officer authorized by law to take depositions. 

The oral examination will continue from day to day until completed. 

You are invited to attend and cross-examine. A Spanish interpreter 

will be present. 

Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
December 4, 1974 

Yours, etc. 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
Att,0rney for (;_ 

A. BRACHTL . 
Ass' tant U.S. Attorney 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 
(212) 596-3563 

TO: 

Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley, Esqs. 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, N.Y. 10021 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

TIME A.M .. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaint iff, ) 
) 
) 

............ , 
P.M ........ . 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C . TRill1P , e t a 1 . , ) 
) 

Defendants. ) ________________________) 

CIVIL ACTION 
NO. 73 CIV 1529 

SUPPLEMENTAL ANSWER 
TO DEFENDANTS' 
INTERROGATORIES 

The United States of America, plaintiff herein, by 

its undersigned attorney hereby submits the following supple-

mental answer to defendants' interrogatories. 

Supplemental Answer 

On or about August 17, 1972, Mr. Godfrey Jacobs, a 

black male who is associated with the Open Housing Center, went 

to the Trump apartment complex located 3323 Nostrand Avence, 

Brooklyn, to inquire about renting a studio or one-bedroom 

apartment, which had been advertised in the New York Times on 

that day. Mr. Jacobs was informed by the rental agent that 

neither was available for rent. 

Hr. George Sim Johnston, III, a white male associated 

with the Open Housing Center, went into the rental office of 



3323 Nostrand Avenue, Brooklyn, a fe'i:J minutes after Jacobs 

departed in order to inquire about renting a studio or one-

bedroom apartment. Johnston \vas informed that the apartments 

were available for rent. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



CITY OF WASHINGTON 

DISTRICT OF COLUNBIA 

AFFIDAVIT 

) 
) ss 
) 

I, Donna Goldstein, being duly sworn, depose and say: 

1. I am an attorney in the Housing Section, Civil 

Rights Division, United States Department of Justice, and one 

of the counsel for plaintiff in United States v. Fred c. 
Trump, et al. , Civil Action No. 73 c 1529. 

2. I am intormed of the facts of this case. The 

foregoing Plaintiff's Supplemental Answer to Defendants' 

Interrogatories is true and correct to the best of my infor-

mation, knowledge and belief. 

( /... (·-·, 
' 

Attorney, Hdusing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this I rl tL day of December' 1974. 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on December f7, 1974, copies 

of the foregoing Plaintiff's Supplemental Answer to Defendants' 

Interrogatories were placed in the United States mail, 

postage prepaid, addressed to counsel for the defendants: 

Mr. Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan 

& Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

./) (- / 

Attorney, ousing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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The Honorable R. Neaher 
Judge 

.Eastern District of New York 
225 Plaza E. 
BrooklynP York 10023 

U.S. v. Fred C4 Trumpp et al. 
Civil Action No. 73C1529 •. ,--. __ 

Dear Neaher: 

FEB ') . . 
f..;:._. i . .J / J 

............ . 
Pf.1 ............. . 

..,. 
> 

I am wr.i.ti.ng t:o request an early conference with the 
Court so that a consent which has been agreed Upon in 
principle_. can be entered as soon a.a 

As the Court is awarep the parties have agreed to a 
eettlemant of the above-styled action on the terms contained 
in the of executed on JB.n.uary 20,. 

lU1d suhmitt:ed to the Cuurt on 21, and the 
proposed consent decree which is attached thereto, which may he 
modified only as described in the memorandum. 'lne I!lemorirtdua 
provides that the parties shall seek the assistance of the 
Court t:o resolve any as to muaning_, and that all 
provi.aiona not in diapute as to meaJ;Ii.ny shall be contained :l.n 
t.heir entirety in th.e final consent de;. 

Because of the delays previously Oi'lcountered in this 
ac.tiont ·including the postponement: of t\-;O trlal dat:ea 'JI and the 
requ1rcmant for expedition contained in 42 u.s.c. the 



#' 

' 

- 2 

·, . 

Memornndum of Unde:rstantHng conta:b:ls 3 timeta.hle fur final 
examJ.tion of the decree.. Uuc'.ter the terms of mt-:morandum, 
if no final decree han· .executed by February l4;t 1975 nt:he 
part.i .. 2a aha11 then seek t:he of the C<.lurt t:o reflolvc 
any dispute arising solely out of as tcr the 
meaning of any proposed change referred to in the of 

H · 

, . ' Shortly after the execut!on of the Memorandum of Under-
to defense counsel·a proposed 

consent decree contair1ing the provisions agreed upon. 
Several attempts to contact Mr A Golm.t both before and .after the · 

14 ha·va gone and, no decree has 
therefore been executed.. Accordingly 1 we are w-titing t:o t:"equest 
that a meeting t··lith t:h.e Court be scheduled in accordance with 
the provisions of the l•iemorlllldum of Understanding;, t:hat the 
settlument can be made :fi.n.al and t:he consent: decree promptly 
entered... Thank you for yo.ur cQnaideration. 

Sincerely., 

J. STANI.EY PO'I'TTh'lCER 
ABaiatunt Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 
/' {j j) 17 I}(J 1 /l/J..--k "'"". . iJ 

FRANK I!;. SCH.WELB 
Chief 

.1-ioUilng Section 
• 
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'· . 

If#--.. 

lbe l:lvnorable Edward R. Neaher 
tltst:t"ict Ju(jge 

.kstarn District of New- York 
225 Cac:ban Plaza E .. 

:New York 10023 

Re: u.s. v. Fred c. Trump. et al. 
Cjvil Action No, 73Cl.S29 

Dear .Judge Neaher: 

I am writing to request an early conference with the 
Court so that a consent decree. wblch baa been agreed upon in 
principle. can be eutered as aoon aa possible. 

As the Court is the parties have agreed to a 
settlement of the above-styled action on the terms contained 
in the Memorandum of Understanding, executed on January 20. 
1975 aod submitted to the Court on January 21, and the 
proposed coasunt decree which is attached thereto, which may be 
modified only as described in the me110randum. 'lhe -.emorandum 
provides that the parties shall seek the assistance of the 
Court to resolve any disagrsementtrF as to and that all 
proviai.ons not in dispute as to mea:gin.g aba11 be contained in 
their entirety in the final coosent decree. 

Because of the dalays previously encountered in this 
action, ·including the postponement: of two trlal dates,. and the 

for expedition contained in 42 u.s.c. 136147 the 



0 0 

Memorandum or Undarstand.i.ng contains a timetable fi.nal 
mr:ecution of the Under t:he terms of 
if no final decree has been executed by February 1975t "tb.e 
parties shall then the assistance of the Court: to resolve 
any dispute arising sololy out of disagreement as ttf the 
meaning o£ any proposed change referred to in the Memorandum of 
Understanding." 

Shortly after the eJtecution of tbe Memorandum of Under-
Plaintiff forwarded to defense counsel·a propoaed 

consent decree containing the provisions ag7:eed upoQ.. 
Several attempts to contact Mr.. Cobn7 both before and after the · 
February 14 deadline ?t have gone no decree baa 
therefore been executed. we are wri.ti11g to request 
that a meeting with the Court be scheduled 1n aecordanee with 
the provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding. so that the 
settlement can be made final and t:he consent: decree prQilltJt:ly 
entered. 1hank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely it 

J. STANI..EY POT'l'INGER. 
ABsistant Attorney General 

Civi.l l.ligb.ts Division 

By: 
/' u .9 -; n nn ... •• 1 ... 

FJlANK F;. SCHWELB 
Chief 

Hml.sl.ng Section 



LEWIS ORGEL 

CLERK 

UNITED STATES COURT 
.OFFICE OF THE CLERK 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

U. S. COURT HOUSE 

BROOKLYN. NEW YORK 11201 

February 20, 1975 

I<.o::l !·1. (OJ:";.':l, E S<J. 
Sax..;, llacon, Dolan & Hanley 
39 6bth Stroot 
Now :tork., ... >J. Y. lOO.t: 1 

Re: 

Dear Sir: 

USA -vs- Fred c. Trump at al. 
73 c 1529 

I enclose a copy of the memoranQum and order of 

II on . __ _ , U.S.D.J. filed 

herein on ___ ..Fe.b.l:uaJ:¥ 20, .1..9.1.5__ __ _ in the 

above entitled matter. 

• 

Encl. 
cc: E. Schwelb, ·• 

U • S • Attorney ·- B • 1' • ! • · • 

By: 

Very truly yours, 

Lewis Orgel 
Clerk of Court 

Thomas-3. costello--
chief Deputy Clerk 

- ·- - ............ ,.. __,_ 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
- - - - - - - -
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
TRUMP MANAGEMENTS I INC. I 

Defendants. 

-x 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -x 

MEMORANDUM ORDER 

73 c 1529 

u.S.:. 
""" FEB ' 

T!MC 11 . · 
P.i,\ ... 

Pursuant to a letter from plaintiff's counsel dated 

February 18, 1975, requesting the scheduling of a meeting 

with the court in accordance with the Memorandum of Under-

standing, dated January 20, 1975, and filed with the court 

in the above-captioned action, and good cause appearing 

therefor, it is 

ORDERED that counsel for the parties appear in 

chamber& Room 252, at 10:00 a.m. on March 5, 1975, for the 

purposes as set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding. 

Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
February 20, 1975 

U. S. D. J. 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20530 

Addr- Reply to t:.e 
Divioion ladicated 

aad Ref• to laitiala aad Number 

JSP:FES:dcr 
DJ 175-52-11 

Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
New York, New York 11201 

MA'l B 1975 

J !- -· ;; __ ,., 
! ;'' 1 f= 1: : '' :, 

U. S. DIS I;<; Cl COLLt i : 

II 

r:1 AY 1 

TIME ......... · · · · · · 
PJ.1 ........... · · · • 

Re: United States v. Fred C. Trump, et al., 
C.A. No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Judge Neaher: 

We are writing to you to respond to your law clerk's 
inquiry about the status of this case and to request the 
assistance of the Court once again to implement a settlement 
of the above-styled lawsuit, previously agreed to by the 
parties. Despite painstaking and time-consuming efforts by 
my colleagues and myself to complete the settlement through 
telephone conversations with Mr. Cohn and lengthy conferences 
with his clients, we have been unable to reach a final resolu-
tion of this matter. 

As the Court is aware, on January 20, 1975, the parties 
executed a Memorandum of Understanding, attached hereto as 
Appendix A, incorporating a proposed Consent Order and specifi-
cally outlining the terms of a settlement. That Memorandum is 
on file with the Court. It was only because of the execution 
of this document, and the representation contained therein that 
the lawsuit had been settled, that the plaintiff agreed to the 
adjournment of the second trial date of January 27, 1975. In 
fact, in the Memorandum the parties agreed to the entry of 
the Consent Order on or before February 24, 1975. In addition, 
the Memorandum provides (starting on the bottom of page 3): 



- 2 -

If no final consent has been executed by February 
14, 1975, the parties shall so inform the Court. 
The parties shall then seek the assistance of the 
Court to resolve any disputes arising solely out 
of disagreement as to the meaning of any proposed 
change referred to in the Memorandum of Under-
standing. All other provisions in the attached 
Consent Decree and those not in dispute as to 
meaning in the Memorandum of Understanding shall 
be contained in their entirety in the final 
Consent Decree. 

On February 4, 1975, a copy of a proposed Consent Order 
(attached hereto as Appendix B) based on the settlement out-
lined in the Memorandum of Understanding was forwarded to 
Mr. Roy Cohn, defendants' counsel. We were unable to contact 
Mr. Cohn to agree on the terms of a settlement, and we wrote 
to this Court on February 18, 1975, seeking a conference. The 
Court scheduled a conference for March 5, 1975, which was later 
cancelled by reason of the Court's illness. 

Thereafter, Mr. Cohn forwarded to this office a proposed 
Consent Order which omitted many of the major provisions of the 
settlement terms agreed to in the January 20th Memorandum. (A 
copy of this proposal is attached hereto as Appendix C.) On 
March 14, we wrote Mr. Cohn a letter, a copy of which is attached 
as Appendix D, indicating that we believed the terms of the set-
tlement had been fixed by the Memorandum of Understanding filed 
in this Court and that we therefore found the defendants' pro-
posal completely unacceptable. On April 15, 1975, after we had 
again encountered substantial difficulties in finding anyone 
with whom to deal, defendant Fred c. Trump, and his colleague 
Mr. Irving Eskanazi came to Washington to meet with counsel for 
plaintiff, !/ without their counsel but with his consent, to 

*I This meeting took place only after Mr. Cohn twice cancelled 
-;cheduled conference calls between him, defendant Donald Trump, 
and counsel for the United States which were supposed to resolve 
the controversy once and for all. Subsequently, Mr. Cohn ad-
vised counsel that defendant Donald Trump would come to Washing-
ton to negotiate, but his father and Mr. Eskanazi came instead. 
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discuss the terms of the final Consent Order. Despite our 
often stated position that we had negotiated in good faith the 
terms of a settlement which we considered binding on the part-
ies by the signed Memorandum of Understanding, all three coun-
sel for plaintiff spent half a day with Mr. Trump and 
Mr. Eskanazi, and Ms. Goldstein spent the remainder of the day 
with Mr. Eskanazi, working out what we understood to be a final 
settlement. It was the understanding of all concerned that 
Mr. Trump and Mr. Eskanazi were negotiating for all defendants. 
A meeting was arranged for April 23 to take place in New York 
for the purpose of executing the settlement and on April 19, 
1975, a last proposed Consent Order which set forth the precise 
understanding between Ms. Goldstein and Mr. Eskanazi, was sent 
to Mr. Cohn. A copy of that document is attached hereto as 
Appendix E. 

On April 22, Mr. Cohn informed us by telephone that he 
now wished to make new changes in the terms of the settlemento 
These proposed changes were represented to us as being "minor", 
and, despite some misgivings, a meeting was scheduled in New 
York for May 2, 1975 for the purpose of working out these minor 
changes and executing a final consent decree for presentation 
to this Court. On May 2, 1975 Ms. Goldstein met with Mr. Fred 
Trump and Mr. Irving Eskanazi at the law offices of defendants' 
counsel. Mr. Cohn was again not present. Defendants proposed 
several new changes, and several were conditionally agreed to by 
plaintiff even though they were inconsistent with the Memorandum 
of Understanding. Defendants also made new proposals, however, 
which in our judgment would have changed the character of the 
settlement and seriously impaired the effectiveness of the 
Decree, and to which we were unable to agree. 

Specifically defendants now propose to delete 
previously agreed to, dealing with the inclusion of fair housing 
statements in advertising [see III A(3) p. 8 of Appendix B (the 
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Proposed Consent Order pursuant to the Memorandum of Understand-
ing) and Section IV A(3) p. 8 of Appendix E (the Proposed Con-
sent Order drafted pursuant to the April 15 meeting)], and with 
affirmative steps to ensure equal employment opportunity (see 
III C p. 11 of Appendix B *I and IV C p. 10 of Appendix E). In 
the Memorandum of Understa;ding agreed to on January 20, 1975, 
(Appendix A) and in the settlement negotiated with Mr. Trump and 
Mr. Eskanazi (Appendix E), the Injunction, including the affir-
mative provisions, applied to all of defendants' properties in 
New York City. **I The reporting provisions (part V, p. 15 
Appendix B, and-part VI, p. 17, Appendix E) were to apply to 
fifteen properties. Defendants now propose, contrary to 
the explicit provisions of prior agreements, that the affirma-
tive provisions of the Decree (see part III of Appendix B and 
part IV of Appendix E) apply only to those properties listed in 
the reporting provisions. This proposal is inconsistent with 
what has been previously settled and makes the decree far less 
effective in ensuring the full enjoyment of equal housing oppor-
tunity. While we have, at defendants' request, agreed to anum-
ber of changes in the January 20th Memorandum of Understanding, 
even though defense counsel had then represented it to be a final 
settlement, we cannot agree to the three most recent proposals. 
Defendants apparently take the position that without these new 
alterations, all three at odds with what they have previously 
signed, they will not execute a consent decree as they have 
previously committed themselves to doing. 

*I At the May 2 meeting, plaintiff conditionally agreed to de-
lete III C(l) of the decree. 

**I See Brennan v. Fields, 488 F. 2d 443 (5th Cir. 1974) for the 
-propriety of relief at complexes other than those at which the 

alleged discrimination occurred. In Fields, nationwide relief 
was granted, whereas here, we negotiated affirmative provisions 
applicable only to New York, and not affecting defendants' pro-
perties in New Jersey, Maryland and Virginia. 

Reduced to fourteen at subsequent meetings. 
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In light of the foregoing, we are now requesting the 
Court's assistance in accordance with the provisions of the 
Memorandum of Understanding quoted at the beginning of this 
letter. We believe that we have exhausted all reasonable 
avenues towards securing a final consent decree short of re-
questing the assistance of the Court. The United States 
agreed to a second postponement of the trial in this case, 
which is required by statute to be expedited, 42 U.S.C. §3614, 
solely on the representation that the terms of a Consent Order 
has been agreed to by the defendants. Now, nearly four months 
later, it appears that the defendants do not consider them-
selves to be bound by prior agreements, including the Memoran-
dum of Understanding filed in this Court. 

The January 20th agreement specifically states that all 
provisions not in dispute as to meaning 11shall be contained in 
their entirety in the final Con'sent Decree." Accordingly, we 
respectfully request that the Court exercise the authority con-
templated by the Memorandum of Understanding, and 

(1) resolve the three issues separating the parties 
by evaluating the present positions of the parties 
as against the Memorandum of Understanding; and 

(2) enter an Order pursuant to that Memorandum of 
Understanding, either by issuing a document in the 
form of Appendix "E" as the Court's Order, or by 
entering an Order based on the Memorandum of Under-
standing and the initial proposed Consent Order 
attached thereto (Appendices A and B). 

We are, of course, ready to meet with the Court and with 
defense counsel at the Court's convenience to resolve this mat-
ter, and we hope that this litigation can be completed without 
further delay. In view of the constant attempts by defendants 
to renegotiate what has already been settled, and in view of 
defense counsel's consistent unavailability, we do not think 
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that further negotiations without the assistance of the Court 
would be any more productive than the many dozens of attorney-
hours already spent. Once a settlement in substance has been 
reached between counsel which provides for resolution by the 
Court of any difficulties in completing the settlement, then 
we believe that the parties are required to utilize the machi-
nery for resolution by the Court of disputes as to the meaning 
of the Understanding, and are not free to disregard prior com-
mitments. 

In the event that the Court should think it inappropri-
ate to require the defendants to comply with their prior agree-
ments, then we must reluctantly request that the case be 
scheduled for trial at an early date. In this connection, the 
Memorandum of Understanding includes a list of witnesses for 
each side, and only four witnesses - the two Trumps, Althea 
Gibson, and one NAACP representative - are eligible to testify 
for defendants. Accordingly, substantially all of plaintiff's 
case will be uncontradicted. Since the case was, for all prac-
tical purposes, settled once, it would seem to be an unnecessary 
expenditure of time and resources to go to trial. Nevertheless, 
if the defendants are not to be bound to their prior bargains, 
we will be ready to proceed. 

cc: Mr. Roy M. Cohn 
Mr. Henry Brachtl 

Sincerely, 

J. STANLEY POTTINGER 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 
FRANK E. SCHWELB 

Chief 
Housing Section 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
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FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP and 
TRUMP MANAGEMENT I INC. I 
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The court having received correspondence from coun-

sel in the above-captioned case concerning the Memorandum of 

Understanding and Proposed Consent Order filed therein, and 

it appearing that a conference with the court concerning the 

progress of settlement of the action is necessary, such a 

conference is hereby scheduled for 3:00p.m., Wednesday, June 

4, 1975, in Courtroom No. 2. 

SO ORDERED. 

U. S. D. J. 

Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
May 19, 1975 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 
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FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 
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) 
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CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 TIME /\.M ............ · · · 

P.M ............ ··• 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT 
OF PLAINTIFF'S REQUEST 
TO ENFORCE A SETTLE-
MENT AGREEMENT 

On January 20, 1975, counsel for the parties in this 

lawsuit executed a ''Memorandum of Understanding" containing 

the provisions for settlement of the case. The Memorandum 

was intended as a settlement agreement and contains such 

language as: "Plaintiff agrees to a continuance solely on 

the basis of the representation that this case is settled in 

principle along the lines stated herein." (Emphasis added) 

Para. 1, p. 1. Because defendants' counsel, Mr. Roy Cohn, 

was about to leave the country for a matter of weeks, the 

Memorandum was signed, but the formality of executing a final 

Decree was postponed until mid-February, 1975. No final 

Decree has been executed, and plaintiff now seeks to have the 

settlement enforced. 

It is well established that a settlement agreement 

entered into voluntarily "cannot be repudiated by either party 

and will be summarily enforced by the Court." Cunnnins Diesel 



Michigan, Inc. v. The Falcon, 305 F. 2d 721, 723 (7th Cir. 

1962); see also All States Investors, Inc. v. The Bankers 

Bond Co., 343 F. 2d 618 (6th Cir. 1965) 382 

U.S. 830 (1965); Kelly v. Greer, 365 F. 2d 669 (3rd Cir. 

1966); CA ANON Venezolana de Navagaceon v. Harris, 374 F. 

2d 33 (5th Cir. 1967). 

The January 20th Memorandum contemplates the later 

execution of a Consent Decree. However, the memorandum clearly 

and specifically outlines all provisions to be contained in the 

final Decree. The anticipation of a subsequent document in no 

way affects the binding nature of the Memorandum as a final 

settlement. Even an oral agreement to compromise a lawsuit 

and to later enter into an accord may be a valid contract 

although not reduced to writing. Autera v. Robinson, 419 F. 

2d 1197 (D.C. Cir. 1969), Kelly v. Greer, supra. In cases 

where there is only an oral agreement, the crucial question 

to determine whether a binding contract exists is "whether 

or not the parties intended to be bound and regarded the 

contemplated written agreement as a memorial of a prior contract 

or whether they intended only to be bound upon the execution of 

a written, signed contract." Pyle v. Wolf, 354 F. Supp. 346, 

352 (D. Ore. 1972). No such question exists here. The 

Memorandum contemplates that the final decree shall contain 

all the provisions contained in the memorandum and that the 

only matters left open were to be disputes as to the meaning 

of language and not as to material portions of the settlement. 
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Since the final decree was intended to simply "memorialize" 

the prior agreement, the agreement can stand alone as a 

settlement of this lawsuit. 

Subsequent to the execution of this Memorandum, 

defendants indicated concern about various provisions of the 

settlement, and plaintiff agreed to numerous changes in order 

to effectuate a final Decree. However, defendants have continued 

to seek changes in substantive provisions,claiming that these 

provisions were beyond the scope of what the Court would Order. 

While plaintiff believes that each provision of the settlement 

represents appropriate relief in a case of this kind, once 

a settlement is agreed to by the parties, it is irrelevant to 

consider what a court would order after a trial on the merits. 

As the Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit stated in 

J. Kahn and Co. v. Clark, 178 F. 2d 111, 114 (5th Cir. 

1949): 

Where the parties, acting in good faith, 
settle. a controversy, the courts will 
enforce the compromise without regard 
to what the result might, or would have 
been, had the parties chosen to litigate 
rather than settle. 

* * * 
An agreement of the parties settling a 
disputed liability is as conclusive of 
their rights as a judgment would be if 
it had been litigated instead of 
compromised. 

In view of Mr. Cohn's intended absence immediately 

after the signing of the Memorandum, it was impossible to 

draft and execute a Final Decree at that time, and a provision 
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was inserted providing for the Court to resolve any 

disagreement as to the meaning of the language of the 

memorandum. The parties had not then consulted the Court 

as to its readiness to resolve any such disagreement 

as to the meaning of the language, and, accordingly, 

a provision was added specifying that if such disputes 

could not be the parties will proceed to 

trial and will be bound to the witness lists incorporated 

in the Memorandum. Should the court be unable to resolve 

the differences between the parties as to the meaning of 

the Memorandum of Understanding - and we believe that the 

Court can easily do so - then the plaintiff is prepared 

to proceed to trial pursuant to the last provision in the 

signed Memorandum. 

*I In view of the very limited character of the questions 
left open for resolution, all dealing with meaning of 
language rather than substance the possibility was 
recognized by all parties to be extremely remote. 
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CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, we believe that the 

Memorandum of Understanding should be enforced and a 

decree entered in accordance therewith. 

Respectfully submitted, 

FRANK E. S 
NORMAN P. OLDBERG 
DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Attorneys, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on June 1975, copies 

of the foregoing Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff's Request 

to Enforce a Settlement Agreement were hand delivered to 

counsel for the defendants at the following address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 K 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

OSTEIN 
Attorney ousing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 c 1529 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT 
OF PLAINTIFF'S REQUEST 
TO ENFORCE A SETTLE-
MENT AGREEMENT 

On January 20, 1975, counsel for the parties in this 

lawsuit executed a ''Memorandum of Understanding" containing 

the provisions for settlement of the case. The Memorandum 

was intended as a settlement agreement and contains such 

language as: "Plaintiff agrees to a continuance solely on 

the basis of the representation that this case is settled in 

principle along the lines stated herein." (Emphasis added) 

Para. 1, p. 1 •. Because defendants' counsel, Mr. Roy Cohn, 

was about to leave the country for a matter of weeks, the 

Memorandum was signed, but the formality of executing a final 

Decree was postponed until mid-February, 1975. No final 

Decree has been executed, and plaintiff now seeks to have the 

settlement enforced. 

It is well established that a settlement agreement 

entered into voluntarily "cannot be repudiated by either party 

and will be summarily enforced by the Court." Cummins Diesel 



Michigan, Inc. v. The Falcon, 305 F. 2d 721, 723 (7th Cir. 

1962); see also All States Investors, Inc. v. The Bankers 

Bond Co., 343 F. 2d 618 (6th Cir. 1965) 382 

U.S. 830 (1965); Kelly v. Greer, 365 F. 2d 669 (3rd Cir. 

1966); CA ANON Venezolana de Navagaceon v. Harris, 374 F. 

2d 33 (5th Cir. 1967). 

The January 20th Memorandum contemplates the later 

execution of a Consent Decree. However, the memorandum clearly 

and specifically outlines all provisions to be contained in the 

final Decree. The anticipation of a subsequent document in no 

way affects the binding nature of the Memorandum as a final 

settlement. Even an oral agreement to compromise a lawsuit 

and to later enter into an accord may be a valid contract 

although not reduced to writing. Autera v. Robinson, 419 F. 

2d 1197 (D.C. Cir. 1969), Kelly v. Greer, supra. In cases 

where there is only an oral agreement, the crucial question 

to determine whether a binding contract exists is "whether 

or not the parties intended to be bound and regarded the 

contemplated written agreement as a memorial of a prior contract 

or whether they intended only to be bound upon the execution of 

a written, signed contract." Pyle v. Wolf, 354 F. Supp. 346, 

352 (D. Ore. 1972). No such question exists here. The 

Memorandum contemplates that the final decree shall contain 

all the provisions contained in the memorandum and that the 

only matters left open were to be disputes as to the meaning 

of language and not as to material portions of the settlement. 
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Since the final decree was intended to simply "memorialize" 

the prior agreement, the agreement can stand alone as a 

settlement of this lawsuit. 

Subsequent to the execution of this Memorandum, 

defendants indicated conc,ern about various provisions of the 

settlement, and plaintiff agreed to numerous changes in order 

to effectuate a final Decree. However, defendants have continued 

to seek changes in substantive provisions,claiming that these 

provisions were beyond the scope of what the Court would Order. 

While plaintiff believes that each provision of the settlement 

represents appropriate relief in a case of this kind, once 

a settlement is agreed to by the parties, it is irrelevant to 

consider what a court would order after a trial on the merits. 

As the Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit stated in 

J. Kahn and Co. v. Clark, 178 F. 2d 111, 114 (5th Cir. 

1949): 

Where the parties, acting in good faith, 
settle a controversy, the courts will 
enforce the compromise without regard 
to what the result might, or would have 
been, had the parties chosen to litigate 
rather than settle. 

* * * 
An agreement of the parties settling a 
disputed liability is as conclusive of 
their rights as a judgment would be if 
it had been litigated instead of 
compromised. 

In view of Mr. Cohn's intended absence immediately 

after the signing of the Memorandum, it was impossible to 

dt·aft and execute a Final Decree at that time, and a provision 

.. 3 -



was inserted providing for the Court to resolve any 

disagreement as to the meaning of the language of the 

memorandum. The parties had not then consulted the Court 

as to its readiness to resolve any such disagreement 

as to the meaning of the language, and, accordingly, 

a provision was added specifying that if such disputes 

could not be the parties will proceed to 

trial and will be bound to the witness lists incorporated 

in the Memorandum. Should the court be unable to resolve 

the differences between the parties as to the meaning of 

the Memorandum of Understanding - and we believe that the 

Court can easily do so - then the plaintiff is prepared 

to proceed to trial pursuant to the last provision in the 

signed Memorandum. 

*I In view of the very limited character of the questions 
left open for resolution, all dealing with meaning of 
language rather than substance the possibility was 
recognized by all parties to be extremely remote. 
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CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, we believe that the 

Memorandum of Understanding should be enforced and a 

decree entered in accordance therewith. 

Respectfully submitted, 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG 
DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Attorneys, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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I hereby certify that on June 1975, copies 

of the foregoing Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff's Request 

to Enforce a Settlement Agreement were hand delivered to 

counsel for the defendants at the following address: 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 F. 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

F. GOtDSTEIN 
Attorney ,Ut'ousing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

U. S. DISTRICT COURT £.0. N.Y. 

_ -fX JUN l 0 1975 * 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, TIME ............................... . 

P.M ...... oa&ER·"'i'O SHOW CAUSE 
Plaintiff, 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -x 

Civil Action No. 
73 c 1529 

Upon the application of the United States and 

the affidavits filed in support thereof, and good cause 

having been shown, it is hereby 

ORDERED that the defendants herein show cause 

before this Court, in Courtroom 2 of the United States 

Court I.Iouse, on June 10""-, at I 0 a.m., or as soon there-

after as counsel may be heard, why 

(1) a permanent injunction should not be 

entered herein pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding 

submitted to the Court herein on January 20, 1975, and the 

subsequent commitment by defense counsel; 

(2) assessing costs against defendants and thei 

counsel in an appropriate amount for unnecessary time and 

expenditure incurred by counsel for plaintiff herein. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that service upon counsel 

for defendants shall be mq.de by 

later than June 1975, '3.· 00 f./'f:. and that this shall 

constitute good and sufficient service. 

IT IS SO ORDERED this day of June 1975 

EDt.VARD R. NEAHER 
United States District Judge 
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F. 730959 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 

- - X 

- - X 

Civil Action 
No. 73 C 1529 

PLAINTIFF'S 
APPLICATION FOR 
ORDER TO SHOW 
CAUSE 

The United States of America, plaintiff, respect-

fully moves this Court for an Order requiring defendants to 

show cause, if any there be, why 

(1) a permanent injunction should not be entered 

pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding 

mitted to the Court on January 20, 1975, and the subsequent 

commitment by defense counsel; 

(2) why costs should not be assessed against the 

defendants and their counsel, see 28 u.s.c. §1927, in an 

appropriate amount for unnecessary time and expense 

incurred by counsel for plaintiff herein. 

Plaintiff further prays for such other relief as 

the interests of justice may require. 

The application is based on the affidavits of 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN and FRANK E. SCHWELB and the attachment 

thereto. The legal basis therefor is set forth in the 

plaintiff's memorandum herein filed on June 4, 1975. 

Re 
' / /) / 

Attorneys 
U.S. Department of Justice 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 
- - - X 

STATE OF NEW YORK } 

COUNTY OF KINGS 
) ss. : 
} 

Civil Action 
No. 73 C 1529 

AFFIDAVIT 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, being duly sworn, deposes and 

says: 

1. I am the Chief of the Housing Section, Civil 

Rights Division, Department of Justice, and in supervisory 

charge of this litigation on behalf of the United States. 

2. I am familiar with Ms, Goldstein's affidavit 

of this date and its contents are true to the best of my 

knowledge and belief. The contents of my letter of May 8, 

1975 to the Court attached to her affidavit are also true. 

3. At about 5:35p.m., after I had waited in Mr. 

Cohn's office since about 4:15 p.m. {the revised time for 

our appointment) I asked his secretary to contact him, for 

me, which she did. I advised him that the decree was 

satisfactory to Mr. Eskenazi. Mr. Cohn related that he 

was in a conference with about eleven people on another 

matter that he could not leave the conference at that time, 

that he was going to Bermuda for the weekend and would be 

back on Monday; that we could not get the consent decree 

signed this week; and that I should leave it at his office; 

and he would get it signed "next week" after showing it to 

his clients. He then said he could talk no longer and 

hung up. 

4. My colleagues and I have been attempting to 

implement the Memorandum of Understanding for about five 

months, but our attempts have been frustrated by our com-



,, 
plete inability to get the elusive Mr. Cohn into a 

for the very short time needed to complete the job. Based 

on these experiences, some of which are set forth in my 

letter to the Court dated May 8, 1975, I have reluctantly 

concluded that this matter cannot be expeditiously resolved 

without the assistance of the Court. I have reached this 

conclusion because prior "settlements" have been agreed 

upon with defendants, and submitted to them for their 

signature, but in each case defendants and their counsel 

have asked for "one more conference" or have made some 

request, which has always resulted in additional delay 

but has never produced the promised final decree. These 

constant variations and changes have taken up an inordinate 

amount of my own time, which is spread "pretty thin" any-

way since it is my responsibility to supervise all fair 

housing litigation for the United States throughout the 

country, and even more of Ms. Goldstein's time and Mr. 

Goldberg's time. These delays - the most extraordinary 

in my seventeen years at the bar - have occurred throughout 

this case despite Magistrate Catoggio's clear warning to 

defendants, on the record, that counsel's conduct must be 

by 42 U.S.C. §3614, which requires that cases of 

this kind be "in every way expedited." 

5. In view of the foregoing, we ask that this 

Court tolerate no further delaying tactics of any kind; 

that our application for an Order To Show Cause be granted, 

and that this Court promptly enter an Order which implement 

the settlement previously negotiated and signed by the 

parties and set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding 

of January 20, 1975. 

Sworn to before me this 
6 tr:day of Ju':" 19 7? , 

AM' 0 
EV&L YN SOMMER 

\tilotfery Public, State of New Y 
.. No. 24 4502158 

ar,, Qualifiecl in Kings County 
Comnlluie• Expires March lO, 19 7 7 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

- - - - - - X 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

- against -

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 

- - - - - - - X 

STATE OF NEW YORK 
ss 0 : 

COUNTY OF KINGS 

AFFIDAVIT 

Civil Action 
No. 73 c 15 

I, DONNA GOLDSTEIN, being duly sworn do hereby depose 

and say: 

1. I am an attorney for the United States Department 

of Justice, and one of counsel for plaintiff in United 

States v. Fred c. Trump, et al. 

2. On 1975, Norman Goldberg, another of 

plaintiff's counsel, and I negotiated the settlement of 

this action by executing a Memorandum of Understanding 

with defendants' counsel Roy Cohn. The memorandum outlined 

the provisions to be contained in the final decree which was 

to be executed by February 24, 1975. 

3. to the execution of the agreement, and 

despite numerous efforts by counsel for plaintiff, we have 

not been able to meet with counsel for defendants to sign a 

final decree. The details of some of these efforts, over 

a period of five months, to implement the agreement are set 

forth in the Hay 8, 1975 letter of Mr. Frank Schwelb, which 

is attached hereto. 

4. By an Order dated May 19, 1975 this Court 

scheduled a conference on this matter for June 4, 1975 at 

3:00P.M. At approximately 10:00 a.m., while I was filing 

a legal memorandum in this action, I was approached by 



Mr. Roy M. Cohn, counsel. for the defendants, who was in the 

company of defendants Fred Trump and Mr. Donald Trump and 

Mr. Irving Eskanazi, an agent of the defendants who had 

previously participated in the settlement negotiations. 

Mr. Cohn informed me that he had understood the conference 

to be at 10:00 a.m., and that he would not be available at 

3:00 P.M. as the Court had directed. Accordingly, this 

fact was made known to the Court while it was engaged in 

the trial of a criminal matter. During conversations with 

Mr. Cohn prior to being heard by the Court, he and I again 

reached agreement on the terms of a final Decree, and the 

Court was so advised. Mr. Cohn requested that I have a 

Decree typed in final form and we agreed to meet at his 

office at 4:00 P.M. the next day, June 5, 1975, at which 

time the Decree would be executed. 

5. My colleague, Hr. Frank Schwelb, \'lho is the Chief 

of the Housing Section of the Civil Rights Division, United 

States Depari:ment of Justice, had arranged to come to 

New York in time for the 3:00 P.M. conference and for the 

principal purpose of completing the resolution of this 

lawsuit. 

6 • On 5 , 19 7 5 Mr • Schwe lb and I arrived at r1.r . 

Cohn's offices at the agreed time (earlier changed to 4:15 

P.M.). Mr. Cohn, however, did not appear. At approximate! 

5:35 P.M. Mr. Schwelb, through Mr. Cohn's secretary, 

contacted Mr. Cohn, who apparently was in conference else-

where. This conversation is described in Mr. Schwelb's 

accompanying affidavit. 

7. At approximately 5:40 P.M. I telephoned Judge 

Neaher's law clerk Mr. David Brown and advised him of what 

had occurred. 

- 2 -



8. Mr. Schwelb, Mr. Eskanazi and I left Mr. Cohn's 

offices at approximately 5:45 P.M. 

,. 
/ 

Subscribed and sworn to before 
me thi§ 6th day of June, 1975. 

//\,; '1 0 ' ,.. '\ 
,. EVILYN SOMME!It 

alofary Pultlic:, Stata of New York 
• . No. 24-45021 58 
. in Kings County 
'C.111miaaio11 E:xpir•s Much 30, 19 77 

- 3 -



T. 5/8/75 

JSP:FES:dcr 
DJ 17.5-52·11 

Honorable Edward &.. 
United Di&triet Judge 
Eastern VV: t:rict of York 
22S cadaao Plaza East 
Bew York. New York 11201 

ae: United StatQ& •· Fred c. Trump, at al., 
c.J., No. 73 c 1529 

Dear Jad&e Beaher: 

We are writing to you to to your law clerk's 
iaquiry about tha &t.atua of thig cas:.e nnd to requ--st thP. 

of th . ..: Court onc<J again to implem:ent a "(;ttl·dneot 
of the above-styled law,uit, previously to by the 
parties. Oe:;pite and tim .. c-ffort8 by 

colloagaes and to 
tcl<llpboaa c:onvl.!rf';ations with Mr. Cohll .and confere.acea 
with his eli :nts, we bavw un.able to r: acb a fin.r.l 
tioo of this; matter. 

As Court aware, oa January 20, 1975, the 
execut:.;:d a M.:morandum of UnderstandiD.!h d ber!t.tO as 
i pp ndi.x A, a proposed and 
cally outlining ttl•-· of a Tb.1t M:moraatlum i;; 
on fil(· \tith th:! Court. It 'tl•e only of tb·J 
of and th' r· prr.-s: ntation tb, r in th.nt 
the b.3.d b· •'"D d, that tb<' pl.?:intiff to th<.s 

of s:' conJ tri.1l of .Jenuary 27, 1975. In 
fa-ct, in th.:: M th "- pnrt1 :!:. Erg&.: d to the - ntry of 
th;,:; Con.,:t:nt Ord . .::r on or o, for"'' F bruary 24, 1975. In aJJition, 
the provi:.h:s (; tarting on tht-: of 3): 

cc: Records 
Chrono 
Schwelb 

t__-Goldstein 
Goldberg 

I Trial File 
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If llO firtal consent bas f:'Xccut .. .!d by 
14, 1975. tha shall so infer. thu Court. 
The p.arties then Jh.' ;k th(2 aa&iatance of 
Court to any disput,!s arising .-;olely out 
of disagrcc.·at.:·nt as to tb.:; m.-,;.aning of any proposed 
change r f ··rr::d to in the M:·morandum of 

lll oth,;r ions in th: attached 
Coas;>.:nt and those not in dispute as to 

in th>i! of Understanding 6ball 
be contained in c:ntiroty 1A thi.> final 
CoD£...:>Dt 

On FebrtUtry 4, 1975, a copy of a COD!!£nt Order 
hf·r . .::to as Apt"-'ndi.x B) oa th\"? out• . 

lin•Jd in Memorandum of was forwarded to 
Mr. Roy Cohll, def12:ndants' h'e wc.re unable to contaet 
Hr .. Cohn to 011 the! terms of a a-ettlt:ment, snd we wrote 
to this. Court on February Us, 1975, .sc(:k.ing a 
Court • conf-·r nee- for March S, 1975, which was later 
c:ancttlled by r,:atiOD of th•:: Court't ill.nt.>eb .. 

Thereafter, Mr. Cohn forwarded to this office a 
Order omittr;d awny of major of the 

tE-rms to in tb · January lOth t-kmorandum. (A 
copy of proposal 1• z;ttacb:l'd b.::r:!tO af} fippendix c.) On 
March 14, t:e wrot·d Mr. t"':ohn a a copy of is attach(";d 
as Appendix D, indicating that 't!e th-- o£ the 

had b"'''"n fix(·d by th.:• Kcmorandua of filed 
in thiA Court and 'ti;B th-;;refor..: fouad th.; dtrf•.·ndant.s • pro• 

comph.tely unaccept4lble. On April 15. 197" 4 eftcr w•: had 
agaia , ncount:_r.od difficulties in fin\.ang anyone 
with whom to fr,.d C. TrtJm?, end hin. collt:a&u-e 
Mf• Irvit.l& E/· k..1naz1 catra::o to i;.·: hint·:-ton to n"L::Iit £or 
p * witnout th.::ir but wit.b hiz, coo.,.\.!ot, to . -
!7 ''l"hio;: m. · tin3 tool.< ph\c. only aft,::r Mr. Cohn cnncalLd 
scb;•dul d call::. b-.;tw:t'Nl him, l.lonald Trumo. 
aad coun· • 1 for tb.· Unit,-::d Statea which ow0r;.: ;·.uppos(:-d to 
th:-· controv...;rt'Y once and for all. Sub -rqu ntly, t'.r. Cohn ad• 

COUQ':.;:l tbitt Dol'lald Trump k•ould COr&l'it to t.:'achlng-
tOQ to but hir;: and Mr. E kanaz.1 cam.;, 



.. 

diseues the of the ftoal CoiUkne Order. our 
often !tated po!!ition that we had ill good faith the 
term£ of a rettlement which binding on part• 
1es by the !ignt"'d M morandum of all threa c:oun• 
scel for plaintiff balf a day witb Mr. Trump aad 
Mr. end )-L. Gold.':tein !!pt:nt tho of the day 
with Hr. '"'orkln)} out understood to bd 8 final 

It wag, the of all concarn4d that 
Mr. Trump and Mr. Er,kanazi l.t.ere ll;.:gotiating for all cie£ ... "'1\d.vnts. 
A meo?ting was arranged for April 23 to tak.:;; in York 
for of ·i:xecutina th<i: r.·ettl:.:m,nt and oa April 19, 
197S. a la!t Con c.nt lrihieh !'¢t. forth the 
W'ld-:'r:-.tsnding b !-1o. and Hr. was ,,ent 
to Mr. Cohn. A copy of that docuawnt is attaeht'!d •• 

E. 

Oll April 22, Mr. Cohn info.rm-;;:d us by tele-phoae: that 
aow wisbs::d to mak:.: new in the t!.!rms of the a:,ttl•m!;at. 
Th.tl!s:e propoaed ch.nng;:,5 were to &if being "min.oru, 
and. FODk a me:.::ting w•s ecbeduled ln Hew 
York for lie.y 2 • 1975 for th2 purp.o::e of \ti'Otking out m'inor 

end ,·xecutin& a final for pr,.s!'.:ntation 
to thiF Court. On May 1975 .. Gold::tein m;t Hr. 
Truaap and Mr. Irving E!:!k:>nazi at thl;1 law of 
coun;·.;tl. Mr. Cohn vas not l>ef :nda.ntc propoe43!d 

new end ! cv(: ral were conditionclly to by 
plaintiff though w•.:;rc.• inconri!.:t>::nt with H: DlOrandum 
of u. el$0 madG nzw howcy;;r, 
which in our judgm:ent would cb.artgt:·d tb · of 

and l"criou:· ly imp<> ired th·:: <:d::i .. :cti v .. of tb-: 
11cd to wbicb w unable to agree. 

Sp"'cific.ally d::f",ndants aov propotte to d.alete .• 
to. with of fair 

t.tat-,rz: .• iA advt::rtif:ing Ill A(:;) p. 8 of » (th:": 
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Order pursuant to tb·= M mot·aadum of Understand-
ing) end Section IV A(1) p. 8 of Appendix E (the Con• 
sent Ord-er drafted purr.uant to th-:l Apr! 1 15 , and t.;ith 
affirmative t'teps to ure •:•1ual opportunity 
III C P• 11 of B '!;/ snJ IV C p. lD of l:pp•adix E). In 
th.: .-)f ci to on Janu;;ry .:.cu, 1J75, 
(A?P· o-.:ix l) in tiP .. cttl Kknt "t.;ith Hr. 'l'rWilp a.ad 
"tr. !slulnazi E), the Injunction,. including th-a affir• 
.:..ativ.e provL;ions, ap!lli-2d to &11 o.f \.hf,:ndant$ • ia 
N :w York City. !!!I l.'h<:.' r .-port in; (part V, p. 15 
.Appendix B, end part VI, p. 17, E) to e:pply to 
fi ft;:: .. 'n prop.· rti ·; ·:;. *.t* I D:' f· r • contrary to 
th'.t exl'licit provi'· of prior a;:.rr. m.::nts •' th-st tfl;.:: 

provi iOQi.. o.f v .. C:C0<:::' c; •..: p.r .. rt Ill of .B nnd 
part IV of }.pp.:!ndix £) apply only to ia 
th r, porting ;>rovis I his pro?o.:.n 1 is incoal>ir.t•·;nt with 
what haf. b.:cen pr- r '-ttl d end mr1k.::s th. far 
cfft,ctive in full •:njoym,:nt of ·.qual op?or-
tunlty. t.hilf.:- hav::.:, d: f nd.antro:' r<·r;tPr:t, agr·:<.'d to a nu...'"!l-
b,:r of i.n th · . :Oth n of IJnJ, 

n 612f::n::·: CCHl.n: .,1 b....'lc r,cpr it to a final 
we csn.not to th;.' thrc•' most rcc.:::nt prcpor.:&lt. 

Dt-f.;:ndant!' &pp&r, ntly ... th·c· pu."". ition tbn.t 1-1itho'tt th::t.:c n. w 
alt·< D 11 thr -:-,: at -.;ith Nhat th::y hav-a ly 

they \llill not Er.ecut.;: a con!. am th :·y have 
pr.:vious.ly lves to doing. 

!/ th;? May 2 QL:'ting, plaintiff conditionally agreed to de• 
lcte III t{l) of 

**I Br.·nnt!!'l v. F{ 468 F. 2d 4.:\3 (5th C!r. 1974) for th:1 .... -· proprLty c•1: r li:.t. z;t oth r then thOSi:- Ctt ;.:hich th-:.: 
allq:t,.'d diFcriCJin;:!tion occtu:r,!d. In J.:i .. ..;l_;L:.,, nDtiomlit!.: rt:li_f 
US£ sr.Dnt.d, h r,,, "-'·.' proVL;ions 
applicable only to ci:w and not aff: • pro-
perti-.:,; in lh:w J l'i3.rylend end Virginia. 

t:o fourteen at 
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1a li&ht of the for.gof.Dg, we ar ... -· DOW rttquestlog th.a 
Court 1 n in accordance with th;, provif ioa..t: of the 

of Under.::tanJi.ng GUOtt:?d at the bll'ginning of thit1 
lf;ttcr. We \':·;:: hay;.! all reaE.onable 
aVi:DU a a final coot: '-'Elt d::crc>! fj·hort of re• 

the of CouTt. United St.ates 
sgr.: :d to .a ft!Cond po; tp.::.m.:.;m..,nt of th trial in this 

ir d by . to .X?· 42 §J614, 
on th? r. pr..: hl;!ntat1on that the ti::rms of a ConF· ,.:nt Order 

bas agreed to by rlef ·ndantB. Now, four months 
l.at:;;r, it appears th.at the cief·.;ndants do not consid•:r 

to b.:.:' bound by n-rior including the Mcmoran• 
dum of Understanding filed in Court. 

The J.r.nuary ::·oth ·:m:.·nt r:p cifica!.ly · tStff' thst all 
provi:.:ionc. not in di.-. .ac to rn 11f"hall b.;. contained in 
th:,ir catir"-tY io th,? fiMl Con.,;_;;nt we 
r..::r,p .. ctfully r,·,;u t th£lt th,; Court thv authority co:a-
t· mplat;.;d by th.: ,H,-:morandum of and 

(1) thr: thr<;!f> pl'rtl.e 
by ..::valu' tin; th. pr :; .nt por;iticnr of th.: 
QS Mt:morandum of UndQ:rstandiag; md 

(2) an vrd1:!r pursuant to that M..:morandwa of 
Unde-rsUndin:;-;, ith-:·r by t:uins a in the 
form of ·:::It a& th"": Court's or by 
ent • i:ln CnLr ba! ed on th"-· IL•nornn(!t.mll of Under• 

and thi; initial Con£ at. Ord•lr 
attached I. and B). 

arf" • of. r:::ady to Court .and with 
<it tb::, Court's convc:,ni net" to thit 1!\Bt• 

t!r, and {,•:.> bop.· that thi· litig1.1tion can bi:: 
furth·..:·r (!,.lay. In vi. \II of th con· tant ett· rr.pt'' by d:,f n-:amt::' 
to r;;:,ncgotist·.' wh<it h.::Hi alr · ·..:ttl.d:l, and in vi•::w of 
d.;f n":.-:t r. cone: 1. unavailability • \iii! do oot think 
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that: fartb\?r without the of the Court 
would any ?reductive than thu many doz(!nJ of llttorni:·y-
bours alrenoy rp::nt. Cnc.:: a s.;;:ttl{;ute--ne ill has 

which provides for r<:l!oluttOD by tb:-: 
Court of .;lDY difficulties in completing the i:ettl,:acnt, th..:n 

b.::li.:'V':- that th·!! aru to utilize the machi-
Q(.·ry for r ,::oluticn i;;y th<3 L.ourt at dL .. at:: to th,:; Dht.nl.n.g 
of Und .. :rtttanding, and ar"' .not fre;;\11 to prior com-

ln the that the Court think it 1napprop-r1• 
at<: to r th;: d:' £ ·.n:?.n.nts to comply th:.:ir prior at;:,r:.:e• 
&i2Dt5, t• lu::tant ly r t that th-2 c br! 
rch.:clul:: d for trial ut r:arly dat:,!. In conni:CCion' 
M;.;:moraDdwa of Und2:retanJing includes a li:•t of for 

side, and cnly four witn;;.:S.HlS • two Trt..Ulll)s • 
Cib:on. sad one riAl· CP r.:pr,·r::.'ntativa - ar.; "'li.;:;ible to t .r:tify 
for ub: tantially all of plaint.l.tf' f, 

will be uncoatl:'.ndict.::d. Since th.: eaE;e was, for sll pr..e.c• 
tical s t-·tt:l d once, it .'.-e:::.u to be an unn ·c.:':: sary 

ncitur .: of tin:: r ourc:.: to go to tri«Jl. N V'- rth: l· r.:.t:, 
if th.._, d ar:;• aoc: to b .. bound t.o their prior bargsinaa, 
vt: will be rvady to 

cc: Mr. Roy K. Cohn 
Mr. Brachtl 

J. ST/ NI..EY 
Jttorncy G· neral 

Civil Riihts 

By: 
E. SCH'r.ELB 
Lhief 

Houn1ng S<&·ct1oa 
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NITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

----------------------------------------X 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

- against -

RED C. TRUMP, et al., 

Defendants. 

. . 

----------------------------------------X 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) SS.: 
OUNTY OF NEW YORK) 

AFFIDAVIT 

Civil Action No. 
73 c 1529 

ROY M. COHN, being duly sworn deposes aria:··says: · 

1. Agreement has been reached on the substance of all 

revisions in the consent decree, and the minor language modifi-

will be made later today. 

2. These constant applications to the Court by the Civil 

Section are assuming the aspects of paranoia. Without 

the Court with a minute by minute recital, Mr. Eskenazi met 

ith Miss Goldstein and Mr. Schwelb at the appointed time at my 

and solved the very few remaining problems. I did not 

of court at the DeGiarde habeas corpus proceeding before 

Grumet until late afternoon, and had to stop at another 

conference on the way uptown. I called in and was told by 

. Eskenazi that things were worked out except for the actual 

ignatures, and I was not needed. 

3. I asked to have a copy left for me and my clients 

suggested it be signed this week. Mr. Schwelb came on the 

hone in hysterics and kept repeating the same tling, which was 

everything was agreed upon and when could it be signed. I 

him this week after I had reviewed the final draft with my 

I arrived at the office and found that Mr. Schwelb had 

eft, which was fine. Mr. Schwelb fails to state in his affidavit 



hat he returned to my office about an hour after he had left, 

into my office, to which I had returned, had a brief exchange 

f pleasantries, said nothing about any dissatisfaction in the 

igning of the papers this week, and then left. 

4. The business about costs is absolutely ridiculous. 

e have gone so far to appease Mr. Schwelb that Mr. Fred Trump 

nd Mr. Eskanizi themselves went to Washington to work out the 

anguage for the decree rather than inconvenience Mr. Schwelb and 

iss Goldstein by having them come to New York. 

5. It is respectfully submitted that a date convenient 

o the Court be fixed for the signing of the decree by the parties, 

nd the acceptance thereof by the Court. 

worn to this 9th 
ay of June, 1975 

/' ./· J 

ANN TURCHIANO 
Notary Public, St1t" of New York 

No. 
in Nc·:v Ymk r:ounty 

Comm:s5ion rY.arcl1 30, 1977 
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CIS:HAB:ec UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
F. # EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

- against -

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

- - - X 

Defendants. 

FILE:) 
1!\: c: ERK·s ()'liCE 

U. S. COURT E.D N.Y 

:Jf * JUN 1 0 1975 

TIME A.M .........•...•• 
P.M .............•• 

CONSENT ORDER 

Civil Action 
No. 73 C 1529 

- -f? J 
This action was instituted by the United States of 

America on October 15, 1973, pursuant to the Fair Housing 

Act of 1968, 42 u.s.c. §3601 et seq. 

The claim of the United States is that the defendants 

.. 

have failed and neglected to exercise their affirmative and 

nondelegable duty under the Fair Housing Act to assure com-

pliance by their subordinates, with the result that equal 

housing opportunity has been denied to substantial numbers 

of persons and that defendant's subordinates have failed 

to carry out their obligations under the Act. 

Defendants vigorously deny said allegations. 

Accordingly, without adjudication of the merit and 

without any admission as to the existence or absence of 

liability, and in order to resolve this matter without 

further protracted litigation, the parties hereto are 

prepared to resolve this case by the entry of a Consent 

Decree. 



• 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the execution 

of this Agreement by Trump Management, Inc., is in no way an 

admission by it of a violation of the prohibition against dis-

crimination as set forth in the Fair Housing Act of 1968, or 

any other applicable statute, rule or regulation. 

Irrespective of the merits of the complaint, however, the 

principal officers of defendant Trump Management, Inc., are 

prepared to affirmatively assume and carry out the responsibility 

for assuring that their employees will comply with the Act and 

will promote equal opportunity. Accordingly, the parties are 

prepared to resolve this case by the entry of the following 

Consent Order. 

I. 

It is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that in 

consideration of their affirmative assumption of responsibility 

contained in part III herein, the complaint against Fred C. 

Trump and Donald J. Trump is dismissed against them in their 

personal capacity, with prejudice, as to all allegations 

contained therein, and predating this Order. 

II. 

INJUNCTION 

It is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that the 

defendant, its officers, agents, employees, successors, and 

all persons in active concert or participation with any of 

them, are hereby permanently enjoined from: 

- 2 -



GENERAL INJUNCTIVE PROVISIONS 

1. Refusing to sell or rent, refusing to negotiate for 

the sale or rental of, or otherwise making unavailable or denying 

any dwelling to any person on account of race, color, religion, 

sex or national origin. 

2. Discriminating against any person in the terms, 

conditions, or privileges of sale or rental of a dwelling, or in 

the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, 

because of race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

3. Making, printing, or publishing, or causing to be 

made, printed, or published, any notice, statement or advertise-

ment with respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling that 

indicates any preference, limitation, or discrimination based 

on race, color, religion, sex or national origin, or an intention 

to make such preference, limitation or discrimination. 

4. Representing to any person because of race, color, 

religion, sex or national origin that any dwelling is not avail-

able for inspection, sale or rental when such dwelling is in 

fact so available. 

5. Influencing the residential choice of any person on 

account of race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

6. Coercing, threatening, or interfering with, or 

attempting to coerce, threaten or interfere with any person 

in the exercise or enjoyment of the right to equal housing 

opportunity protected by the Fair Housing Act of 1968, or in 

the exercise or enjoyment of the right to assist others to 

secure equal housing opportunity. 

- 3 -
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7. Engaging in any act or practice which has the purpose 

or the effect of denying or abridging the right to equal housing 

opportunity protected by the Fair Housing Act. In this 

connection, defendants shall not, in determining the income 

qualification for rental of any person, family, or other 

group of persons, fail or refuse to fully count a woman's 

total income, including salary, wages, alimony, support 

payments or other income from whatever source received. 

III 

ASSUMPTION OF RESPONSIBILITY BY 
PRINCIPALS OF TRUMP MANAGEMENT 
INC., AND TRAINING PROGRAM FOR 

AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES 

Trump Management Inc., controls many thousands of rental 

units in the New York area and elsewhere, and its activities 

therefore have a major impact on housing opportunities. The 

company therefore occupies a position of leadership in the real 

estate community and can, by its example, influence the activities 

not only of its own agents and employees but also of many others. 

The Fair Housing Act prohibits conduct which is discriminatory 

in its effect, regardless of motivation, and violations of the 

Act can result from thoughtlessness and lack of information, as 

well as from deliberate discrimination. 

- 4 -



Accordingly, it is ORDERED as follows: 

A. The principal officers of Trump Management, Inc., 

shall forthwith 

(1) thoroughly acquaint themselves personally 

on a detailed basis with all of the obligations of 

the defendant under the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 

as amended and as judicially interpreted; under 

state and municipal civil rights laws; under 

pertinent Regulations and Guidelines of the 

Department of Housing and Urban Development and 

other appropriate agencies; and under this Order; 

(2} Take steps to assure that their principal 

assistants and officers similarly familiarize 

themselves with their obligations; and 

(3} Personally undertake to assure that the 

training program set forth herein is successfully 

carried out. 

B. Within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Decree, 

the Defendant by its principal officers, shall conduct and 

complete an educational program for all employees with rental 

or employment responsibilities, who have contact with pro-

spective tenants, provide information to the public about 

rental, or accept or process applications for rentals, or who 

are engaged in any manner in the employment process, to inform 

them of the provisions of this Decree, and their duties under 

the Fair Housing Act of 1968. Such program shall include: 

- 5 -



(1) Furnishing to each such agent and employee 

a letter summarizing the terms of this Decree and 

of the Fair Housing Act as it applies to the 

employee. 

(2) Informing each such agent and employee, 

in person or by general meeting, of the provisions 

of this Decree and of duties of the Company and 

its agents and employees under the various 

applicable Fair Housing Acts. Each such agent 

and employee shall be advised that his failure 

to comply with the provisions of this Decree 

shall subject him to dismissal or other disci-

plinary action, and to sanctions for disobedience 

of this Order. 

(3) Securing a signed statement from each such 

agent that he has read the letter mentioned above 

and received the instructions described in the 

preceding paragraph and forwarding a copy of each 

such signed statement to plaintiff. 

Each new agent and employee shall be instructed in 

accordance with the procedures set out above and shall be 

required to sign a statement to the effect that he has been 

so instructed and will comply with such instructions within 

ten (10) days following the initial date of employment. 

Copies of all signed statements will be furnished to plaintiff 

upon execution. 

- 6 -



IV 

AFFIRMATIVE PROGRAM 

It is further ORDERED that the defendant shall forthwith 

and for a period of two (2) years following the entry of this 

Order take the following steps to adopt and implement an 

affirmative program aimed at ensuring compliance with the Fair 

Housing Act of 1968: 

A. Notification to the Community of Defendant's 
Nondiscriminatory Policy 

1. Notify the Open Housing Center of the New York 

Urban League, 150 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York, in writing, 

with copies to counsel for plaintiff that apartments owned or 

managed by the defendant are available to all qualified persons 

without to race, color, religion, sex or national originJ 

T Q'S ,·:do, d. 
Included in such letter shall be a full synopsis of the rental 

standards and procedures outlined in Part V, below, and a 

general statement of present and anticipated vacancies in Trump 

apartment buildings in the New York Metropolitan area. The 

parties shall agree on the text of an appropriate letter prior 

to its mailing. Subsequently, defendant shall mail to the Open 

Housing Center a copy of its weekly Central Listing of vacancies 

described infra in Part V of this decree. This mailing shall 

be done on the day the list is made. epen Ile1:1siHg= €eHter 

may, ewn discretion, forWaid espies of the above-

l meHtiened letter and weekly :!ist of vacancies -t:e any -aRS. all 
, 
\\ per!5ons er erganj zations with an interest in equa-l. 

'·.._; v 
hotlsin(;J opportunities .. 

*/ The defendant's obligations to implement each provision of 
this Order for affirmative action shall begin ten (10) days 
following the entry of this Order, unless otherwise 
specified herein. 
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2. Post and maintain fair housing signs in a form 

aproved by the Secretary of the Department of Housing and 

Urban Development (HUD) in all offices of the defendant 

where there is rental activity or public contact. 

3. Implement an advertising program aimed at informing 

the nonwhite community of defendant's nondiscriminatory rental 

1 . Th d f d h 11 k . po 1cy. e e en ant s a Mt2v.::yor '·J ") 

a. Include, in all .,. I in FHiws- 1\ 
--

telephone directories, radio, television 

and other media, and on all billboards, signs, 

pamphlets, brochures, and other promotional 

literature the words "Equal Housing Opportunity" 

and the fair housing logo. These words and the 

logo shall be prominently placed and easily 

legible. In addition, all advertising 

placed by the Company or its agents shall conform 

to the practices recommended in the Department of 

Housing and Urban Development advertising guide-

lines, as published in 37 Fed. Reg., pp. 6700-02, 

on April 1, 1972. A copy of these guidelines 

is attached as Appendix "B" to this Order. 

*I See the pertinent HUD regulation, 37 F.R. 3429 (a copy 
attached hereto as Appendix A) . 

* */- -- with newspaper advet. t±sing shall 
crr=e:tg:ht (O) lines o:f priM---Gr--

moo: e. lJef-e-:naa.rre--shall coHt-iH-Ue .:i:ts present advert i sj ng po·li.s;.:i..es, 
and sha.ll not change zespegt to 
-efie s1ze and ef adveFt:isin«!J-by shoL tening or by otl:usrw.i£e 
changing its ·poitey·'9fi -d±sple:y aas t:o avoid:---tJle-re-
quiLement· of oppartuni ty statement. 

*-41 In radio and television advertising, the words "equal 
housing opportunities" shall be used and shall be easily 
audible. 
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(b) Q cr+ 1-ev..QAcL-e 
¥r:.A_ Cl c:/J --zlLe_ 

: I u 
.t;, .J'_<X-fj tt+1 
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Allocate a reasonable proportion of its 

advertising budget to advertising in media 

directed primarily to the black and Puerto 

Rican communities. The parties have agreed 

that the placement of monthly 15 line display 

advertisements, one in the black and one in 

the Puerto Rican press, together with the 

allocation of 10% of defendant's radio adver-

tising budget to black-oriented and Spanish 

language stations, shall meet the requirements 

of this provision. All advertisements of 

Trump buildings in minority media shall ad-

vertise a full cross-section of Trump buildings 

with vacancies, and shall not stress or give 

undue emphasis to buildings with substantial 

minority occupancy. **/ 

4. Provide written notification to each firm, association 

company, corporation, or other person or organization engaged 

by defendant to act as referral agency, apartment locating 

service, credit checking company, or management company that 

apartments owned or managed by the defendant are available to 

all qualified persons without regard to race, color, religion, 

sex or national origin. Each such notification shall also 

advise the recipient of defendant's objective standards and 

procedures for rental. 

*I The parties agree that the placement of such advertisements 
in the Amsterdam News and El Diario will satisfy this requirement. 

**/ If the listed apartments do not include all Trump buildings 
with vacancies, the buildings listed shall be rotated with each 
ad so that the same apartment buildings are not continuously or 
disproportionately advertised under this subsection. 
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B. Program of Providing Listings for Minority 
Apartment Seekers 

For two years after the entry of this Order, defendant 

shall notify the Open Housing Center of the New York Urban 

League, 150 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York, 10003, of every 

fifth available apartrr1ent in each apartment building owned 

and/or managed by the defendant which has a black tenancy of 

less than ten at least three days prior to placing 

that apartment on the open During this three-day 

period, the Open Housing Center shall have the opportunity 

to refer qualified applicants to the defendant for the purpose 

of renting the apartment. All applicants referred by the 

Open Housing Center shall provide the defendant or its repre-

sentative with an appropriate identification which will serve 

to advise the defendants that such applicant has been referred 

by the Open Housing Center pursuant to this subsection. After 

three days if no qualified applicant referred by the Center 

has filed an application seeking to rent the apartment, the 

apartment may be placed on the open market to be rented in 

defendant's normal business custom without regard to race, 

color, religion, sex or national origin.***/ 

C. Affirmative Employment 

The defendant shall recruit, hire, assign, promote and 

transfer employees and agents without regard to race, color, 

*f The requirements of this provision need not be followed for 
apartment buildings which presently have or in the future reach 
a black occupancy rate of 10%. For these apartment buildings, 
apartments shall continue to be rented without regard to race, 
color, religion, sex or national origin. 

**I The three-day period shall begin when notification has 
beenmmpleted and the Open Housing Center has received, either 
in person, by telephone, or by mail, the listings. For 
purposes of this Decree, rental on the open market shall mean 
rental to any person not referred by the Open Housing Center. 
***/ This provision shall not apply to Trump Village. 
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religion, sex or national origin and will endeavor to place 

blacks and other nonwhite persons in supervisory and pro-

fessional positions as vacancies for which they are qualified 

arise. 

Pursuant to this program, the defendant shall take 

the following steps: 

1. Display an equal employment opportunity poster 

in a prominent place clearly visible to prospective agents, 

employees, and applicants for employment in each office of 

the defendant where applications for employment are taken. 

*/ This poster shall be in the form, size and prominence 
approved by the United States Department of Labor and the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. 
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2. Notify in writing, each labor union representing 

any part of defendant's work force of the terms of Part IV(C) 

of this Decree and that prospective employees are to be referred 

without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

In recruiting and hiring nonwhite employees, the defendant 

shall not require that nonwhite persons recruited or 

hired possess qualifications for any job or position more 

exacting than those which were in effect with respect to white 

employees before the institution of this action. 

v 

IMPLEMENTATION OF OBJECTIVE RENTAL 
STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 

In order to assure nondiscriminatory selection and 

assignment of tenants and to assure equal opportunity in 

housing at each building owned or managed by Trump Management, 

Inc., defendant agrees that the following standards and 

procedures shall be uniformly applied at all of its properties 

in determining whether or not to rent to an applicant. 

A. Standards 

1. Income 

One week's gross income from all sources 

must be at least equal to one month's rent, except in the 

following circumstances: 

(a) The applicant(s) have outstanding auto-

mobile payments, or other fixed debt in excess 

of $50.00 a month, with a remaining debt period 

in excess of four (4) months, or 

*/ The following standards shall not be applicable to Tysens 
Park which is subject to other federal regulations imposed 
by §22l(d) of the National Housing Act. 

**/ This shall include alimony, child support, public 
assistance payments, or guarantor's assurances on behalf 
of public assistance recipients, wife's income, part-time 
employment, pensions, etc. 
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(b) The family composition is in excess of 

three (3) persons. 

In either circumstance (a) or (b) above, one week's net 

income must be at least equal to one month's rent. 

If an applicant does not meet the foregoing income 

standards, he or she may still qualify for rental if: 

(a) He or she secures a guarantor who can 

verify funds sufficient to meet the financial 

obligations of the guarantors fixed monthly 

payments for hi.s or her residence, as well as 

the applicants rental, based on the defendant's 

income standards. 

(b) If the applicant is willing to post 

three (3} months security deposit or will supply 

six (6) months rent in advance. 

(c) If a tenant switches from one Trump 

building to another Trump building and if that 

tenant has met his obligations to Trump Management, 

Inc., in the past. 

2. Occupancy 

Not more than two (2) persons in a one-bedroom 

apartment. Not mere than four (4) persons, two (2) adults 

1. Application Procedure 

'*f Except that ehildren under ten --o:fH-age tnay--
different sexes. 

*+I These procedures are substantially based on defendanes 
past practices, as described during discovery. 
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a. Applications for tenancy will be received at the 

apartment building or complex where the tenant is applying 

for an apartment. Applications shall be received by Super-

intendents or rental agents authorized by the defendant to 

accept applications, and instructed in the requirements of 

this Order and of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 

3601 Applications shall be accepted from all persons 

to apply and the superintendent or agent shall make 

no subjective judgment on the acceptability of a prospective 

tenant, unless said prospective tenant is: 

(i) visibly and objectively drunk 

and disorderly; 

(ii) visibly and objectively under 

the influence of drugs; 

(iii)abusive towards the superintendent 

or rental agent; 

or there is, 

(iv) a visible and objective indication 

that the applicant will not maintain his or 

her apartment *ith sufficient care and 

cleanliness so as not to intrude on the 

rights of other tenants. In order to satisfy 

this criteria, defendant or its agents shall 

contact the applicant's former landlord to 

ascertain the manner in which he or she had 

maintained the rented premises. In no event 

shall the subjective impression by a super-

intendent of the manner of dress or style 

of grooming disqualify an applicant. This 

sub$ection shall apply solely to cleanliness 

criteria. 
-14-



b. The superintendent or rental agent shall review 

the application for completeness and shall require a security 

deposit of one month's rent and a W2 form (or reasonable 

substitute therefor) from all applicants. The agents shall 

then submit the deposit, W2 form and application, for review 

and determination to one of the defendant's two main offices. 

No superintendent or rental agent shall have the authority to 

make a determination on the acceptability for tenancy of an 

applicant except as outlined in B(l) (a) (i-iv) above. 

c. Applications shall be reviewed and a determination 

of acceptability shall be made by the Section Managers employed 

in the defenant's main offices. 

d. If conducted, a uniform credit check and/or 

employment check shall be conducted with respect to each 

applicant. The standards of acceptability based on credit 

and employment shall be uniformly applied without regard to 

race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

e. Each applicant shall be informed wherever possible 

within ten (10) business days whether or not he or she has 

been accepted for tenancy. If an application can not be 

processed within ten (10) days, defendant shall notify the 

applicant of the reason therefor, but in no event shall an 

applicant not be informed of the disposition of his application 

beyond twenty (20) days from the time he or she applied. If 

rejected, the applicant shall be informed of the reason for 

rejection, and of the specific objective standard he or she 

has failed to meet. 

*/ Applicants who have not been accepted for tenancy pursuant 
to V(B) (a) above need not be informed of the reasons for the 
defendant's decision not to accept his or her application. 
However, defendants shall still note the reason for non-
acceptance in its records and its reports to plaintiff pursuant 
to Sections VI and VII herein. 
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2. Providing Rental Information to Apartment 
Seekers 

a. Defendant shall maintain at its central offices 

at 2611 West 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York and 2064 Cropsey 

Avenue, Brooklyn, New York, a Central Listing, to be compiled 

on a weekly basis, of each currently vacant or available 

apartment in the New York area, and of each apartment expected 

to be vacant or available in the New York area within the next 

thirty days. This list shall include the type of apartment, 

the number of rooms, the monthly rent, and the date of avail-

ability and shall be shown to all persons inquiring about 

available apartments. Defendant shall also maintain at each 

of its buildings a similar list of the apartments vacant at 

that building by type of apartment available and a notification 

that complete lists of all available apartments in the New 

York area are available for inspection at defendant's main 

offices located at 2611 W. 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York and 

2064 Cropsey Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. 

b. Apartments which are available for rental and listed 

on the apartment availability list (2(a) above) shall be shown 

to all interested inquirers by an authorized agent of the 

defendant. 

c. Inquirers shall be uniformly informed of the quali-

fications for rental, including the income, security deposit 

and W2 form requirements. 
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d. No waiting list*/ will be maintained at any of the 

defendant's offices or apartment buildings nor shall there be 

any preference for persons referred by present tenants. 

Rental will be on a first-come, first-served basis when 

apartments are available for rental. 

VI 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

It is further ORDERED that three (3) months after the 

entry of this Decree, am thereafter three (3) times per year 

for two years the defendant shall file with the Court and 

serve on counsel for t:he plaintiff a report containing the 

following information for the following apartment buildings 

owned and/or managed by the defendant: 

1. Argyle Hall 

2. Westminster Hall 

3. Fontainebleau Apartments 

4. Lawrence Gardens and Lawrence Towers 

s. Sea Isle Apartments 

6. Bachaven Apartments 

7. Shorehaven Apartments 

8. Belcrest Apartments 

9. Highlander Hall 

10. Saxony Hall 

11. Clyde Hall 

12. Edgerton Apartments 

13. Winston Hall 

14. Sussex Hall 

*I Since this is defendant's present practice and it is non-
.l:t?o plaintiff inte'r. po 
l>-,"-JrUrl-1-[p V:/lQJ.{.e_ :s·k\c.l.lt b-e ,.fyOYY) 'j=>f"Ot. I";,Cl7J.... 

1'\-'-Y\t:jl 1)5-€ Cl_ d)CCi fv4 
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a. The number of persons, by race*/ (as visually 

observable) making inquiry in person about the availability 

of terms of rental of an apartment during the preceding reporting 

period and the number by race, that: 

1. made inquiry; 

2. were offered an application; 

3. filled out an application; 

4. submitted an applicant with deposit; 

5. were accepted for occupancy; 

6. were rejected; 

7. withdrew applications; 

8. had applications pending at the end of the 

reporting period. 

This report may be forwarded to plaintiff on a form similar 

to the sample form attached hereto as Appendix C. 

b. A report reflecting the applications for tenancy 

submitted during the preceding reporting period, including 

the following information for each person: submitting an 

application: 

1. name, address, business and home telephone 

number, and race; 

2. date of application; 

3. whether a deposit was received; 

4. date notified of acceptance or rejection; 

5. weekly income of applicant and monthly rent 

of apartment sought; 

For purposes of this Decree, all notations of race shall 
be as visually observable. 
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6. if accepted, apartment chosen; 

7. if rejected, reason therefor; 

8. name of person or persons who decided to 

accept or reject the application; 

9. if neither accepted nor rejected, status 

or disposition of application. 

This report may be forwarded to plaintiff on a form similar 

to the sample form attached hereto as Appendix D. For each 

rejected nonwhite applicant, the report shall include a 

detailed statement of the reason(s) for rejection and 

supporting information. 

c. A list of vacancies during the preceding quarter, 

including the date the apartment was placed on the market !1 
and the date each apartment was rented or otherwise committed 

for rental. 

d. Reports filed pursuant to this Order shall also 

include the current statistics with respect to the race of 

tenants in each apartment building owned or managed by the 

defendant, and an account of the steps taken during the 

preceding reporting period to implement the program outlined 

in Sections I and II above, including: 

1. Copies of all letters sent to apartment locators 

and credit checking companies, Fair Housing groups, 

and labor unions pursuant to Parts III and IV of 

this Decree. 

!f Including where appropriate, the date the Open Housing 
Center was contacted concerning the apartment's availability 
in accordance with Part III above. 
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2. Representative copies of all newspaper advertise-

ments placed in the Amsterdam News and El Diario 

pursuant to this Order and the date of each 

advertisement. 

3. The name, race, position and office assignment 

of each rental agent, superintendent and main office 

employee employed as of the date of the entry of this 

Order, an assurance that the educational program 

required by Part II has been conducted, and copies 

of all signed statements obtained in accordance 

with Part II of this Decree. If any rental agent 

refuses to sign such a statement the defendants 

shall include a full statement of all pertinent 

circumstances and of any action taken by them in 

relation thereto. 

VII 

RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the defendant for two 

years following the entry of this Decree, make and preserve the 

following records for all apartment buildings owned or managed 

by them: 

1. The name, address, telephone number and date and 

time of contact of each person inquiring in person about the 

availability or terms of rental of an apartment therein, 

and the size of apartment sought, if known. 

:/ This may be accomplished by maintaining a guest register 
at each apartment building owned by the defendants. 
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2. A detailed record of all action taken on each 

application and the reasons for such action, including 

all steps taken by the defendant in ascertaining the 

acceptability for tenancy of the applicant and the name 

of the employee who took such steps or who approved or 

rejected the application. 

3. All records which are the source of, or contain 

any of the information pertinent to defendant's obligations 

under this Order. Representatives of the plaintiff shall be 

permitted to inspect and copy all pertinent records of the 

defendant at any and all reasonable times, provided, however, 

that the plaintiff shall endeavor to minimize any inconvenience 

to the defendant from the inspection of such records. 

VIII 

It is further ORDERED that for a period extending two 

years from the entry of this Decree, the defendant shall, at 

least twenty (20) days prior to the event, report to counsel 

for the plaintiff: 

1. Any new ownership or management interests in 

residential property, acquired by the defendant. 

2. The divestment through transfer or sale, of any 

ownership or management interests in residential property. 

IX 

It is further ORDERED that for a period of two years 

after the entry of this Decree the defendant shall advise 

counsel for plaintiff, in writing, of all complaints, from 

*/ For purposes of this Decree, "complaints" shall mean any 
information which comes to the attention of the defendant or 
its officers from whatever source received, which indicates 
a possible denial of equal housing opportunities under the 
Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. §3601 et seq., or a potential 
violation of this Decree. 
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whatever· source, received by the defendant regarding equal 

opportunity in housing at properties owned and/or managed by 

Trump Management, Inc. In"addition, plaintiff shall, for a 

period of two years after the entry of this Decree, notify 

the defendant of all complaints received by the plaintiff. 

Except where the plaintiff determines that there 

exists a need for emergency relief threatening the effective-

ness of this Decree, the plaintiff shall afford the defendant 

fifteen (15) days from the date notice of such a complaint is 

received to investigate the complaint and provide plaintiff with 

an explanation of the information contained in the complaint. 

If the complaint is determined to be valid by either party, 

plaintiff shall recommend what steps it believes to be 

necessary to correct the conditions leading to the complaint, 

and shall afford the defendants an additional seven (7) 

days to effectuate appropriate steps to remedy the conditions 

leading to the complaint and to overcome any continuing effects 

of the alleged discriminatory actions before applying to the 

court for a motion to compel compliance with this Decree, or 

any other additional judicial relief. 

X 

Each party shall bear its own costs. 
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The Court shall retain jursidiction of this action 

for all purposes. 
·tl L .. , 

ORDERED this day of , 1975. 

The undersigned apply for and 
consent to the entry of this 
Order: 

For the Defendants: 

EDWARDR.NEAHER . 
United States District Judge 

For the Plaintiff: 

RbY M. COHN 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

sing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
WasHhgton, D. C. 20530 

A/vio 
U 1/1 T C: rf r ( ''If: ·'/ 
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Attorney 
n District of New York 



37 F.R. 342.9 
Feb. 16, 1972 

A'PPENDIX A 

ijules and Regulations 

. Title 24.-HOUSING AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Chapter 1--:-0ffice of Assistant Secre-
tary for Equal Opportunity, Depart-
ment of Houslng and Urban Devel-
opment 

A-FAIR HOUSING 
[Doclcet No. R-72-165) 

PART 110-FAIR HOUSING POSTER 
The purpose of this regulation is to 

require the display of a fair housing 
poster by persons subject to sections 804-
806 of the Civil Rights Act of·l968 and to 
pre'scribe the content of this poster. 

Notice of a proposed amendment to 
Title 24 to include a new Part 72 was 
published in the FEDERAL REGISTER on 
August 4, 1971 <36 F.R. 14336). <Under 
the reorganization of Title 24 published 
in the FEDERAL REGISTER on December 22, 
1971 <36 F.R. 24402>, the fair housing 
poster will become new Part 110.> Com-
ments were received from 
20 interested persons and organizations 
and.consideratlon has been given to each 
comment. 

Some comm:mts with respect to pro-
posed § 72.10 criticized the coverage of 
the proposed regtllation as too broad, 
while other comments· objected that the 
coverage is too n':lrrow, and various sug-
gestions were made. for changes in cov-
erage. Comment'> were directed not only 
to what dwellings should be included 
but also. to the stage at which. the. re-. 

··quirement should take. effect: and the 
.. 'persons to whom it should apply. In 

response to the comments, §.72.10Ca) 
(now § 110.10 <a> and .<bl l has been 
i·evised to clarify the extent oCcover-
ag-e, to broaden coverage to the extent 
appropriate and to eliminate .unnecessary 
burdens where the requirement can ap-
propriately be narrowed or eliminated. 
Under § 110.10 <a l and <bl, display of 
tl1c prescribed poster at a single-family 
d.\velling is not required unless the dwell-

. · ing is being offered for sale or rental in 
· conju.nction with the sale or rental of 

other dwellings; however if. a real estate 

!·.•." 



broker or agent is handling the sale or 
rental he must display the poster at any· 
place of business where the dwelling is 
being· offered for sale or rental. With re-
spect to all other dwellings covered bY· 
the Act, the poster must be displayed at 
any place of business where the dwelling 
is offered for sale or rental; in addition, 
the poster must be displayed at the dwell-
ing, except that in the case of a single-
family dwelling being alTered for sale or 
rental in conjunction with the sale or 
rental of other dwellings, e.rr.. a sub-
division, the poster may be di';ployed at 
model homes instead of at each of the 
individual dwellings. Finally, in the case 
of dwellings other than a single-family 
dwelling not being offered for sale or 
rental in conjunction with the sale or 
rental of other dwellings, the poster must 
be displayed from the beginning of con-
struction through the end of the sale or 
rental process. 

:several comments suggested revisions 
in the language of the poster described 
in proposed § 72.25. Such suggestions in-
cluded rewriting the poster in terms of 
the individual's rights rather than the 
Act's prohibitions, adding additional 
prohibitions contained in the Act, em-
phasizing the nature of penalties for 
failure to post, 11nd listing the HUD area 
office instead of the regional office as a 
location to which to send complaints. 
The new § 110.25 adopts the suggestion 
with regard to the area offices in that 

· the poster will provide for insertion of 
the address of the regional or area office 
as appropriate. It has been decided that 
instead of lengthening the content of the 
poster by adding additional prohibitions, 
the poster should be made shorter and 
easier to understand by briefly hiP."h-
lit?hting the major prohibitions. In addi-
tion, the Equal Housing Opportunity 
logot.ype and slogan have been inserted 
at the top of the poster. 

A comment by the Federal Home Loan 
Bank Board <FHLBB> recommended 
exempting from this regulation any per-
son subject to a regulation of the FHLBB 
requiring that person to post a poster 
substantially similar in content to the 
poster described in HUD's regulation. A 
similar comment was made by the Board 
of Governors of the Federal Reserve Sys-
tem with respect to entities subject to 
supervision by any of the four Federal 
financial regulatory agencies. The De-
partment will authorize a person subject 
to the jurisdiction of a Federal financial 
regulatory agency to ut.ilize a poster pre-
scribed in a regulation .by such· agency, 
and approved by the Department, in-
stead .of the poster prescribed by HUD. 
However, all of the other requirements of 
Part 110 will remain fully aP!llicable re-
·gardless of whatever sanctions the regu-
latory agency prescribes for failure to 
comply with its :regulation. This provi-
sion is set forth in 110.25(b). The 
quirement, set forth in § llO.lOCc>, that 
financial institutions post .and maintain 
a ·fair housing poster will not be effective 
until May 1, 197.2, in order to allow time 
for the Federal financial regulatory 
agencies to .issue appropriate -regulations. 

·proposed § 72.30 stated that a failure 
to display the poster .as required would be 

(' 

deemed a discl'iminatoi·y housing· prac-
tice, i.e., an act unlawful under sections 
804, 805, and 806 of title VIII, and 
facie evidence of a violation of these sec-
tions, as applicable. There were com-
ments favoring this provision and a com-
ment st.at:ng t11at such a provision was 
beyond the Department's authority r:>n 
the ground that title VIII prescribe·: the 
specific acts of discrimination which are 
unlawful. There was also a comment re.c-
ommending that failure comply should 
subject a person to suspension from 
eligibility for FHA insurance. 

The Department believes that it has 
the aut.hority to require a fair housing 
poster, and that proposed 72.30 does not 
prescribe a new violation not provided for 

3429' a 

in title VIII. Rather, the section provides 
an appropriate evidentiary mechanism 
for ·assisting in the determination of 1<-
whether a violation of title VIII has oc- .,if 
curred. For purposes of clarity, the provi- • 
sion has been combined with pro- '. ;: 
posed § 72.35-complaints-into a new ·,;. 
§ 110.30-Effect of failure to display -... 
poster-and the combined te:l):t short.., ·;;: 
eneil. Under § 110.30, when a person .i; 
claiming to have been injured by a dis-
criminatory housing practice files a com- ,, 1 
plaint pursuant to Part 105-Fair Hous- ·::.' 
ing, a failure to display the reqt)ired •l' 
poster shall be deemed prima facie evi-
dence of such practice. 

The c.omment with respect to applica-
'tion of additional sanctions is rejected, iJ. 
since such sanctions as well as others are ;{ 
provided in the Affirmative Fair Housing 
Marketing Regulations published 
ary 5, 1972 <37 F.R. 75>, for failure to 
make the posting required at FHA proj- . 
eet sites by § 200.620(f) of that regula-
tion. Although Part 110 is applicable to · 
some persons who are not covered by 
the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing 
regulations, the Department considers 
that the insertion in Part 110 of the sanc-
tions propo_sed in the comment is not 
appropriate. 

Accordingly, a new Part 110 is added 
to Title to :read as follows:·. 

A,....Purpose and Definitions· 
Sec. 
110.1 Purpose. 
110.5 Definitions. 

Su.bparl for Display of Posters 
110.10 Persons subject. 
110.15 Location of posters. · 
110.20 Availability of posters. 
110.25 Description of posters. 

_Su.l>p.a•l 
110.30 Effect of failure to display poster. 

AUTHORITY: The provisions of this 110 
are Issued under section 7(d) of·the pepart-
·ment of Housing and Urban pevelopment· 
Act of 1965 (.42 u.s.c. 353.5 (d) ) . 

Svbpart 
§ JlO.l P\UlpOSC. 

The reg11lations set Jorth in this part 
contain the proced1,ues established by 
the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
velopment with respect .to the l;lisplay o.f 
a fair housing poster by persons subject 
to sections 80<1-806 of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1968; 42 u.s.c. _3604-3606. 

. , ... ··. 



plementary advertising campaign that is. 
directed at other groups, or the use by a de-
veloper of racially mixed models to adver-
tise one of the developments and not others. 

o. Policy ima practicflli gufdelines. The 
following guidelines are offered as suggested 
methods of assuring equal opportunity in 
real estate advertising: · 

1. Guidelines tor use of. logotype, state-
ment, or slogan. All advertising of residential 
real estate for sale or rent can contain a.n 
Equal Housing Opportunity logotype, 
ment or slogan as a means of educating the 
homeseeking publlc that the property Is 
available to all regardless of race, 
color, rellgion, or national origin. Table 1 
(see appendix) indicates suggested sizes for 
the use of the logotype. In all space advertis-
ing whloh 1B less than 4 column Inches of e. 
page in size, ·the Equal Housing Opportunity 
slogan should be us·ed. The advertisement 
may be ·grouped with other advertisements 
uncter e. caption which states that the hous-
ing Is _a.ve.Uable w all without regard to race, 
ci>lG,r, rellglon, or national origin. Alterna-
tively, 3-5 percent ot the advenisement copy 
may be devoted to e. statement of 1!he equal 
housing opp6rtunity pollcy of the owner or 
agent. Table 2 (see appendix) contains copies 
of the sUggested Equal 'Housing Opportunity 
logotype, statement and slogan. 

2. Guidelines tor use of human models. 
Human models 1n photographs, dra.'Wlngs, or 
other graphic techniques may be used to 
indicate ra.cla.l inclusiveness. If models are 
used in display advertising campaigns, the 
models should be clearly definable as reason-
ably representing both majority and 
groups 1n the metropolitan area. Models, If 
used, should indlOalte to the general publlc 
that the houslpg Is open to all Without re-
gard to race, color, religion, or natlo.nal 
origin, and is not for the exclusive use of one 
euch group. 

3. Guidelines for notification of Fair 
Housing Policy. (a) Employees. All publishers 
of adver'tlsements, advel'tlslng agencies, a.nd 
firms engaged In the sale or rental of real 
estate should provide e. printed copy of their 
nondlscrlm1natory policy to each employee 
anct oflicer. 

(b) Olfents. All publishers of advertise-
ments .and advertising agencies should petit 
a ciopy their nondiscrimtnatton pollcy in a 
conspicuous place wherever persons come to 
place advertising and should have copies 
avallable for all firms and persons using 
their advertising servtces. 

(c) Publisher'S notice. All publ1Bhers are 
encoure.gect to publish at the beginning of 
·the real estate advertising section a notice 
such as that a;ppearing in Table 3 (see 
appendix). 

Effective date. This statement of PQlicy 
shall be effective May 1, 1972. 

GPO 930·389 

SAMUEL J. SIMMONS, 
Assistant Secretary 

tor Equal Opportunity. 

- \' 
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APPENDIX 

The folloWing three tables may serve as e. 
guide for the use of the Equal Housing O.P· 
portunity logotype, statement, sl9g1m, and 
publisher's notice for display advertising: 

'fABLE I 

A simple formula can guide the real esta:te 
advertiser in using the Eq1,1al Housing Oppor-
tunity logotype, statement, or slogan. If other 
logotypes are used IIi'the advertisement, then 
the Equal Housing Opportunity logotype 
should be of a size equal to the largest of 
'the other logotypes; If no other logotypes 
are used, then the folloWing guldellnes can 
be used. In all Instances, the type should 
be bold display face and no smaller than 
8 points. 

Size of 
Approximate size of Logotype 

advertisement in inche8 
% page or larger________________ 2 x 2. 
lfs page up to % page___________ 1 x 1. 
4"oolumn inches to % page______ % x %. 
Less than 4 oolumn Inches,______ (1). 

1 Do not use. 

TABLE II.-n.LUSTRATIONS OF LOGOTYPE, 
STATEMENT, AND SLOGAN 

Equal Housing Opportunity logotype. 

EQUAL HOUSING 
OPPORTUNITY 

Equal Housing Opportunity statement: 
We are pledged to the letter and spirit of 

U.S. policy for the achievement of equal 
housing opportunity throughout the Nation. 
We encourage and support an aflirmatlve 
advertising and marketing program In which 
there are no barriers ta obtaining housing 
because of race, color, religion or national 
origin. 

Equal Housing Opportunity slogan: 
"Equal Housing Opportunity." 

TABLE ni-ILLUSTRATION OF PuBLISHER'S 
NOTICE 

Publisher's notice: 
All real estate advel'tised in th1B newspaper 

1s subject to the Federal Fair Housing Act of 
1968 which makes It Ulegal to advertise "any 
preference, limitation, or dlscrlm1natlon 
based on race; color, rellglon, or national 
origin or an intention to make any such 

11m1tatlon, or discrlmlnatlon." 
This newspaper Will not knoWingly accept 

any advertising for real eBtate which 1B in 
violation of the law. Our readers are hereby 
Informed that all dwellings advertised In th1B 
newspaper are available on an equal 
opportunity basis. 

(FR FUed 3:..Sl-72;8:46 am] 



37 F.R. 6700 
4/1/72 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Office of Assistant Secretary for Equal 
Opportunity 

[Docket No. R-7Z-108) 

ADVERTISING GUIDELINES FOR FAIR 
HOUSING 

Notice of of Policy 
In order to facilitate and promote 

compliance with the requirements of 
Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 
and particularly section 804(c) thereof 
(42. U.S.C. 3601, 3604<c>) regarding· 
not1ces, statements or advertisements, 
the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development has prepared guidelines to 
indicate graphic and written references 
that are appropriate for the preparation 
publication, and general use of 
ing matter with respect tO the sale or 
rental of a dwelling as defined by the 
Act. 

Notice of a proposed statement of pol-
icy Was published in the FEDERAL REGIS-
TER on May 21, 1971 (36 F.R. 9266). Com-
ments were received irom 26 interested 
persons and organizations and consid-
eration has been given to each comment. 

Several comments observed that the 
proposed policy statement was at times 
unnecessarily limited to the field of 
newspaper advertising. In response to 
the comments, the policy statement has 
been revised in several places to clarify 
that the guidelines apply to advertise-
ments in all media, including, e.g., tele-
vision and radio, as well as to advertising 
agencies and other persons who use 
advertising. 

Several organizations suggested addi-
tional catchwords connoting a discrim-
inatory effect for .inclusion in section 
A-3. That section h:is been expanded to 
include several additional terms which 
may have a discriminatory effect when 
used in a discriminatory context. 

In response to other comments, sec-
tion A-6 has been revised to clarify how 
directional references could be employed 
in a discriminatory context with an 
ethnically, as well as a ractally, discrim-
inatory effect. Also, section A-7 has been 
added relating specifically to designation 
of religious, ethnic or racial facilities to 
identify an area or neighborhood. 

A number of comments indicated that 
human models or Equal Opportunity ad-
vertisements can and have been used 
selectively to promote the development 
of racially exclusive communities. A new 
section C-4 has been added in order to 
meet this specific problem. The previous 
human models section has been clarified 
by revision and reorganization in the 
new section C, in light of comments 
which indicated confusion or uncer-
tainty surrounding the use of human 
models. 

APPENDIX B 

In response to publishers' comments, 
Table I has been simplified and refer-
ences to mh1imum type sizes limited to 
a recommendation that the type should 
be bold display face and no smaller than 
eight points. 

A number of organizations suggested 
the inclusion of a publisher's notice to 
appear with real estate advertising. A 
suggested notice has been ·included as 
Table ill, in lieu of the provision in the 
proposed guidelines for direct notifica-
tion to all fums or persons using the 
advertising services of a publisher. This 
provision was removed in light of objec-
tions that such notification would be 
unworkable or would impose great hard-
ship since a large volume of real estate 
advertising is placed by a great number 
of persons on a nonrecurring basis. 

Finally, a number of minor editorial or 
organizational changes have been made 
in order to. clarify or simplify the 
advertising guidelines. 

Several organizations suggested that 
the make specific.· reference 
to the roles of other enforcement agen-
cies, including the Department of Justice 
and local agencies. These comments sug-

that the guidelines specify that 
they do not alter or affect conciliation 
agreements or court orders obtained by 
these agencies, as well as by the Depart-
ment. Such a disclaimer appears to be 
unnecessary, since there is nothing in 
the guidelines to -indicate an intent to 
alter or affect agreements or orderll ob-
tained by the Department and other 
agencies. 

This document is issued pursuant to 
section 7(d), Department of Housing and 
Urban Development Act, 42 U.S.C. 
3535(d). 

The statement of Policy reacts as 
follows: 
PUBLICATION GUIDELINES FOR COMPLIANCE 

WITH TITLE VIII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT 
OF 1968 

POLICY STATEMENT 
Section 804{c) of title VIII of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3604{c), makes 
it unlawful to make, print, or publish, or 
cause to be made, printed, or published any 
notice, statement, or advertisement, with 
respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling 
{any building, structure, or portion thereof 
which is occupied as, or designed or intended 
for occupancy as, a residence by one or more 
familles, and any vacant land which is of-
fered for sale or lease for the construction or 
location thereof of any such building, struc-
ture, or portion thereof) that indicates any 
preference, limitation, or discrimination 
based on race, color, religion, or national 
origin, or an intention to make any such 
preference, limitation or discrimination. 

These advertising guidelines are being 
issued for the purpose of assisting all adver-
tising media, Advertising agencies, and all 
other persons who use advertising to make, 
print, or publish or cause to be made, printed, 
or published any classified or display adver-
tisement with respect to the sale or rental of 
a dwelling by the owner or his agent, in 
compliance with tile requirements of title 
VIII. 

Conformance with these guidelines wtll be 
considered in evaluating compliance with 
title vm in connection with· investigations 
by the Assistant Secretary of advertising 
practices and policies under the title. 

A. The use of words, phrases sentences 
and visual aids which have a 
effect. The fol19wing words, phrases, sym-
bols, and forms typify . those most often 
used in residential real estate advertising 
to convey either overt or tacit discriminatory 
intent. Their use should therefore be avoided 
in order to eliminate their discriminatory 
effect. In a complaint under title 
VIII, the Assistant ·Secretary will normally 
consider the use of these and comparable 
words, phrases, symbols, and forms to in-
dicate possible violation of the title and to 
establish a need for seeking resolution· of 
the complaint, if it is apparent from the 
context of the usage that discrimination 
within·the meaning of the Title is likely to 
result. 

1. Words descriptive of dwelling, land-
lord,. and tenant. White private home, 
ored home, Jewish home. 

2. Words indicative of race, color, reli-
gion, or national origin. Negro, Hispano, Mex-
ican, Indian, Oriental, Black, White, WASP, 
Hebrew, Irish, ·Italian, European, etc. 

3. Catch words. Restricted, ghetto, disad-
vantaged. Also, words such as private, in-
tegrated, traditional, "board approval". or 
"membership approved" if used in a dis-
criminatory context. 

4. Symbols or logotypes. Symbols or logo-
types which imply or suggest race, color, 
ligion, or national origin. 

5. Colloquialisms. Locally accepted words 
or phrases which imply or_suggest race, color, 
religion, or national origin. 

6. Directions to the real estate for sale or 
rent (use of maps or written instructions). 
References to real estate location made in 
terms of racially or ethnically significant 
landmarks such as an existing Black de-

velopment {signal to Blacks) or an existing 
development known for its exclusion of mi-
norities {signal to Whites). Specific direc-
tions given from a racially or ethnically 
significant area. 

7. Area (location) description. Use of re-
ligious, ethnic, or racial facUlties to de-
scribe an area, neighborhood, or location. 

B: Selective use of advertising -media or 
content wtth discriminatory effect. The se-
lective use of advertising in ·various media 
and with respect to various housing devel-
opments or sites can lead to discriminatory 
results and may indicate a Violation of title 
VIII. 

1. Selective geographic impact. Such selec-
tive use may involve the strategic pla.cement 
of billboards, brochure advertisements dis-
tributed within a Umited geographic area 
by hand or in the mall, or advertising in par-
ticular geographic coverage editions of ma-
jor metropolitan newspapers, or in lor.al 
newspapers which are mainly advertising ve-
hicles for reaching a particular segment of 
the community, or in displays or announce-
ments only -in selected sales offices. · 

2. Selective use of equal opportunity slo-
gan or logo. Such selective u10e may involve 
using the equal opportunity slogan or logo 
in advertising reaching some geographic 
areas, but not others, or with respect to 
some properties but not others. 

3. Selective use of,human models. such se-
lective advertising may also involve the use 
of human models primarily in media that 
cater to one or ethnic segment of the 
population tbat Is not balanced by a com-



§ ll0.5 Definitions. 
(a) "Department" means the Depart-

ment of Housing and Urban Develop-
ment. 

(b) "Discriminatory housing practice" 
means an act that is unlawful under sec-
tion 804, 805, or 806 oftitle VIII. 

(c) means any building, 
structure, or portion thereof which is 
occupied as, or designed or intended for· 
occupancy as, a residence by one or more 
families, and any vacant land which is 
offered for sale or lease for-the construc-
tion or location thereon of any such 
building, structure, or portion thereof. 

Cd) "Family" includes a single individ-
ual. 

(e) "Person" includes one or more in-
dividuals, corporations, partnerships, as-
sociations, labor'organizations, legal rep-
resentatives, mutual companies, joint-
stock companies, trusts, unincorporated 
organizations, trustees, trustees in bank-
ruptcy, receivers and fiducialies. 

(f) "Secretary" means the Secretary 
of Housing and Urban Development. 

(g) "Fair housing poster" means the 
poster prescribed by the Secretary for 
display by persons subject to sections 
804-806 of the Civil Rights· Act of 1968. 

<hl "The Act" means title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 
et seq. 

<i) "Person in the business of selling 
o'r renting dwellings" means a person as 
defined in section 803(c) of the Act. 
Subpart E-Requirements for Display 

of Posters 
§ 110.10 P<'rsons Rtthjcct. 

<a> Except to the extent that para-
graph <b> of this section applies, all per-
sons subject to section 804 of the Act, 
Discrimination in the Sale or Rental of 
Housing, shall post and maintain a fair 
housing poster as follows: 

<1) With respect to a single-family 
dwelling <not being offered for sale or 
rental in conjunction with the sale or 
rental of other dwellings) offered for sale 
or rent9.1 through a real estate broker, 
agent, salesman, or person in the business 
of selling or renting dwellings, such per-
son shall post and maintain a fair hous-
ing poster at any place of business where 
the dwelling is offered for sale or rental. 

C2) With respect to all other dwellings 
covered by the Act: 

(i) A fair housing poste1: shall be 
posted and maintained at any place of 
business where the dwelling is offered for 
sale or rental, and 

<iil A fair housing poster shall be 
posted and maintained at the dwelling, 

that with respect to a single-
family dwelling being offered for sale or 
rental in conjunction with the sale or 
rental of other dwellings, 'the fair hous-
ing poste1; may be posted and maintained 
at the model dwellings instead of at each 
of the individual dwellings. 

<3) With respect to those dwellings 
to which subparagraph <2) of this para-
graph applies, the fair housing poster 
must be posted at the beginning of con-
struction and maintained throughout 
the period of construction and sale or 
rental. 

(b) This part shall not require posting 
and maintaining a fair housing poater: 

(i) On vacant iand, or 
(ii) At any single-family dwelling, uri-

less such dwelling 
(a) Is being offered for sale or rental 

in conjunction with the sale or rental 
of other dwellings in which circum-
stances a fair housing poster shall be 
posted and maintained as specified in 
paragraph <a) <2) (ii) of this section, or 

<b> Is being offered for sale or rental 
through a real estate broker, agent, sales-
man, or person in the business of selling 
or renting dwellings in which circum-
stances a fair housing poster shall be 
posted and maintained as specit\ed in 
paragraph Cal (1) of this section, 

(c) All persons subject to section 805 
of the Act; Discrimination in the Finane- · 
ing of Housing, shall post and maintain 
a fair housing poster at all their places 
of business which participate · in the 
financing of housing, 

(d) All persons subject to section 806 
of the Act, Discrimination in the.Provi-. 
sion of Brokerage Services, shall post 
and maintain a fair housing poster at all 
their places of business. 
§ 110.15 Location of postel'S. 

All fair housing posters shall be promi-
nently displayed so as to be readily ap-
parent to all persons seeking housing 
accommodations or financial assistance 
or brokerage services in connection 
therewith as contemplated by sections 
804-806 of the Act. 
§ 110.20 Availability of poetcrs. 

All persons subject to this part may 
obtain fair housing posters from the De-
partment's regional and area omces. A 
facsimile may be used if the poster and 
the lettering are equivalent in size and 
legibility to the poster availabie from the 
Department. 
§ ll0.25 Description of poSlcrM. 

<a> The fair housing poster shall be 
11 inches by 14 . inches and shall· bear 
the following legend: 

EQUAL HOUSING 
OPPORTUNITY 

we Do Business In Accordance With the 
Federal Fair Housing Law 

(Title VIII of the Civil Right!! Act ot 10118) 
IT IS ILLEGAL 

TO DISCRIMINATE AGAINST 
ANY PERSON BECAUSE bF RACE, 

COLOR, RELIGION, OR NATIONAL ORIGIN 
• In the sale or rental of housing or residen-

tial lots. 
• In advertising the sale or rental of hous-

Ing. 

3430 

• In the tl.nanolng ot housing. 
• In the provlalon of real estate brokeraae 

services. 
• Blockbusting Is also Illegal. 
Anyone who feels he has been discriminated 
aga.lnst should send a complaint to: 
U.S. Department ot Housing and Urban De-

velopment, Assistant Secretary tor Equal 
Opportunity, Washington, D.C. 20410 

or 
HUD Region or 

[Area omce stamp] 
<b> The Assistant Secretary for Equal 

Opprirtunity may grant a waiver permit-
ting the substitution of a poster pre-
scribed by a Federal 1\nancial regulatory 
agency for the fair housing poster de-
scribed in paragraph (a) of this section. 
While such waiver remains in etrect, 
compliance with the posting require-
ments of such regulatory agency shall be 
deemed compliance with the posting re-
quirements of this part. Such waiver shall 
not -affect the applicability of all other 
provisions of this part. 

Subpart C-Enforcement 
§ 110.30 Eft'ecl of failure lo diMplay 

poster. 
Any persotJ, who claims to have been 

injured· by a discriminatory housing 
practice may file a complaint with the 
Secretary pursuant to Part 105 of this 
chapter. A failure to display the fair · 
housing poster as required by this part 
shall be deemed prima facie evidence of 
a discliminatory housing practice. 

Effective date. This part shall be ef-
fective February 25, 1972, except for 
§ 110.10<c> which shall be effective 
May 1, 1972. 

SAMUEL J. SIMMONS, 
Assistant Secretary 

tor Equal Opportunity. 
[FR Doc.72 2262 Filed 2-15-72;8:45 .am] 



• • • ' ' APPENDIX C 

TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. 

DATE: ____________________ __ 

RE: Rental Analysis Report 

THE BREAKDOWN OF PERSONS BY RACE MAKING INQUIRY IN PERSON 
ABOUT THE TERMS AND AVAILABILITY OF APARTMENTS 

FOR THE PERIOD OF _________________ TO ______________ __ 

AT 

WHITE BLACK SPANISH OTHER 

MADE INQUIRY 

WERE OFFERED AN APPLICATION 

FILLED OUT AN APPLICATION 

SUBMITTED DEPOSIT WITH APPLICATION 

APPLICATIONS WITHDRAWN 
BEFORE PROCESSING 

APPLICATION ACCEPTED 

APPLICATIONS WITHDRAWN 
AFTER PROCESSING 

APPLICATIONS REJECTED 

APPLICATIONS PENDING END OF PERIOD 

TOTAL 
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APPENDIX D 

APPLICATIONS FOR TENANCY .. 
• AT APARTl'-1ENTS 

' 
.. 

IF 
' DATE APPLI- SIZE, TYPE OF DEPOSIT REJECTED IF NA!·IE OF , 

.& DATE OF s APT. DESIRED MONTHLY DESIRED REC'D REASON ACCEPTED, ENPLOYEE 
' )DRESS, BUS Il\"ESS OF APPLICA- WEEKLY (Brs., Fur- RENTAL DATE OF AND AND DATE DATE ACT 

RACE PHONES INQUIRY TION INCOME nished) R.A.TE OCCUPANCY DATE NOTIFIED NOTIFIED 
' \ 

. 

. 

' 
... 

: 
.. 
. ... 

• 
.. 

. I 

' 

' . .. -
• 

' ' - -
If. two or more. single persons are applying for one apartment, please so indicate. 

': 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

UCJ 29 1975 

TRUMP MANAGEMENT , INC • , ) 
) 

Defendant. ) 
SUPPLEMENTAL 
ORDER 

T/r.7[ n '1 .. .. . .. . . . 
....... 

_______________________ ) [-·M .. 
- ·- _j.IJ 

• u•-

On the application of the plaintiff, the United States 

of America, and after conference with the Court on September 

24, 1975, it is hereby ordered that Part V(A)(2) of the 

Consent Order in this action filed on June 10, 1975, is 

hereby amended as follows: 

(a) Occupancy 

Not more than two (2) persons in a one-

bedroom apartment. For a two-bedroom apartment 

defendant shall, in a uniform manner, adhere to 

its past practices with respect to occupancy. 

No applicant shall be denied tenancy solely on the 

grounds. that q.e\ or _has 
..... G }<' Y.N 

1 
I've ........ v-k._ rl\ _-r-r-,. 

ORDERED this of ' 1975. 

EDWARD R. NEARER 
United Staces District Judge 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
f : (_) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

- against - 73 c 1529 

FRED C. TRUMP, et al., : 

Defendants. : 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 

u. s. Court House 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 10, 1975 
10:00 A. M. 

13 B e f o r e : 

14 HON. EDWARD R. NEAHER, 

15 
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24 

25 

U. S. D. J. 

BURTON SULZER 
OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 
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A p p e a r a n c e s : 

DAVID G. TRAGER, ESQ., 
United States Attorney for the 
Eastern District of New York 

By: HENRY BRACHTL, ESQ., 
and 

MS. DONNA GOLDSTEIN, 
Assistant u.s. Attorneys 

ROY COHN, ESQ., 
Attorney for Defendant 

10 Also Present: 

11 FRED TRUMP 
DONALD TRUMP 

12 IRVING ESKANAZI, ESQ. 

13 
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THE CLERK: Civil hearing, United states versus 

Fred Trump, et al. 

THE COURT: I must say, Mr. Cohn, that this case 

seems to be plaqued with unnecessary problems, and I 

think the time has come when we have to bite the 

bullet. 

MR. COHN: We have everybody in court, your 

Honor. Would you like to hear from them one by one? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. COHN: With his Honor's permission, Fred, 

could you tell Judge Neaher -- you have the final docu-

ment that was proposed at the end of last week, you 

have read that, and I believe you have a couple of 

general observations that you would like personally to 

give to Judge Neaher in view of the fact the Government 

brought on this application this morning, rather than 

giving us the opportunity to go over this -- your Honor, 

if we could --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: If I may, I have to object, your 

Honor, to the tenor of this. 

THE COURT: I don't think this procedure is in 

order. If Mr. Trump wants to say something to the 

Court, he can take the stand and be sworn and give his 

statement under oath. 
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MR. COHN: That would be fine, your Honor. 

THE COURT: But this is a government motion and 

I assume the Government wants to be heard. 

I will give Mr. Trump -- I will give you an op-

portunity of course to be heard. No one is going to 

go away from here feeling he hasn't been heard. But 

as I say, my own knowledge of the history of this 

case leaves me in a state of puzzlement because I 

understood from all the papers that had heretofore 

been submitted that there had been a memorandum of 

understanding that had been executed by all the part-

ies, and -- that is so, isn't it? 

MR. COHN: The memorandum of understanding, 

your Honor, was not a 20-page decree. It recited 

some principles and then provided in the event it 

could not be reduced to decretal form that was satis-

factory to both sides, we then were back where we 

were. 

We have gotten the opposite direction, we have 

gotten to the point where we are like 99.99 per cent 

finished, and I think unfortunately it is just a 

question of a little bit of lack of patience such as 

last Thursday which stops us from getting there 100 

per cent. 

We have a document which is very close to a fin 1 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

5 

document. It is an important thing to everybody con-

cerned, and it is not the kind of thing you can just 

shove down somebody's throat. 

They have come very, very close -- all that we 

are apart on at this point is minor language problems 

that if I could have gone over this with Fred Trump 

and Donald Trump in these oouple of days we probably 

would have solved those as well as we have solved 

everything else. 

But this motion has precipitated into here and 

we are very glad to have this forum because everybody 

is here -- I have nothing to add on the motion. 

I submitted an affidavit explaining our position 

on it, and I assume your Honor does not want either 

side to repeat what we have already said in our papers. 

So we are ready. We have everybody here and if we can 

solve those final few problems we have got a decree. 

THE COURT: You say you submitted an affidavit? 

MR. COHN: Yes, your Honor, yesterday. 

THE COURT: I don't recall seeing it. 

MR. COHN: It was sent out to the clerk's office 

yesterday afternoon. 

THE COURT: You say in this affidavit that a 

date convenient to the Court be fixed for the signing 

of the decree by the parties and the acceptance thereof 
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MR. COHN: Your Honor, frankly, it was not in 

form to be signed -- there are some minor language 

changes, which are very minor; for example, one point 

which Mr. Fred Trump is going to make to your Honor, 

which I think the Government inserted inadvertently, 

would have required children of opposite sex to occupy 

a small bedroom after they had passed an age that would 

be permissible from any standpoint, and a couple of 

little things like that. 

If we had been able to work these things out 

after we reviewed it --

Honor? 

THE COURT: May I have a copy of the decree. 

MR. GOLDSTEIN: The most recent decree, your 

MR. F. TRUMP: Off the record, Judge, we can 

sign this this morning. You call the shots, we change 

them, initial it and sign it. We want to get through 

with this. 

THE COURT: I am sure the Government does, too. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: If I may take a few minutes of 

your time, your Honor 

THE COURT: Let me hear from the young lady and 

perhaps that will expedite matters. 
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MS. GOLDSTEIN: We have 

THE COURT: I have read your application. I 

understand your feelings in the matter. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Our concern is as happened many 

times before that a recitation of the facts that have 

come heretofore in this case is often not as we have 

understood them, and only so that the Court may have 

what we would think would be a better understanding 

of what has happened in this case, I would state that 

the memorandum of understanding clearly set out the 

provisions to be contained in the decree. 

We believe what was left open was simply to 

memorialize --

THE COURT: Was a copy of that, by the way, 

submitted in the papers? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: I have an additional copy, if 

you would like to see it. 

THE COURT: You have a copy? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Attached to the memorandum is 

the consent decree initially submitted by the plaintiffs 

The memorandum makes certain revisions in the consent 

decree and states that all other provisions are to be 

contained in their entirety in the final decree. 

Very little, if anything, is left open in the 

memorandum of understanding, and essentially the next 
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decree was to memorialize the settlement, all the terms 

of which had been agreed upon. 

THE COURT: This document? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That is about the fifth one. 

THE COURT: You are familiar with this one? 

MR. COHN: That is --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That was submitted last week. 

MR. COHN: That was submitted by the Government 

on Thursday, your Honor, after the conference we had 

in this courtroom on Tuesday. That is the final. 

THE COURT: Which left me with the impression 

that everything had been settled, based on your state-

ment 

MR. COHN: I think it was --

THE COURT: and Miss Goldstein's. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Mr. Cohn represents that minor 

things have always been left open, and they are merely 

minor revisions that we are talking about. 

Since the signing of the memorandum, not minor 

revisions but defendants have attempted to renegotiate 

in toto large portions of the consent decree, entire 

provisions which have been agreed to in the first 

memorandum. 

Initially, the United States, while hesitant --

and I believe the correspondence between the parties in 
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this matter will bear that out very hesitant to re-

negotiate, in order to proceed to execution we have 

changed various portions. 

We have been brought to the well so many times 

in this last five months that promises now that we are 

about to be able to drink the final drink leaves me a 

little skeptical, and that is why we are here today, 

to ask the Court's assistance for close supervision so 

that if the Court will not today enter this decree 

summarily, then for close supervision so that it may 

become a reality in the near future. 

THE COURT: I am going to assure you you are goin 

to have my undivided attention to the accomplishment of 

this decree. 

What I would like to get down to is this, as I 

understand it we have here this memorandum of under-

standing, which I do recognize is to some extent a 

statement of principles, although I suppose certain 

specific provisions are made --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Specific provisions are contained 

because it essentially adopts the attached consent 

decree. 

THE COURT: All right. But now we have some-

thing which presumably is final or so close to the edge 

that --
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MR. F. TRUMP: One hour, Judge, we will be out 

of here. 

THE COURT: What are we talking about? 

MR. COHN: In other words, you want to address 

yourself to the final document that they produced on 

Thursday? 

THE COURT: I want to address myself to the final 

document to find out what point of difference there is. 

MR. COHN: Do you want Mr. Fred Trump to testify? 

THE COURT: Let me see for a moment. We will 

hold that. Maybe we can accomplish this more quickly 

than I had thought. 

Has anyone got a marked copy of this consent 

order? 

MR. COHN: We have a memorandum, your Honor, with 

the language changes we would want. 

THE COURT: Have you seen that? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We have not seen that. Mr. Cohn 

was not --

THE COURT: Give one to Ms. Goldstein and one to 

me and maybe one to Mr. Bracht!. 

Are you going to be a participant here? 

MR. BRACHTL: Yes, your Honor. 

THE COURT: It might be useful. 

Let's turn to page 7-A, item one. 
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1 MR. COHN: That, your Honor, on page 7-A-1 would 

2 refer to -- under A, the third line, "Apartments owned 

3 or managed," and it would say "Apartments owned or 

4 managed .•• "-- I suppose it would say "New York City 

5 properties owned or managed by the defendant, exclusive 

6 of Tysen' s Park and Trump Village.'' 

7 The reason for that is, of course, Trump Village 

8 is a Mitchel-Llama project, and I think -- Tysen's is 

9 a federal project and I think we are all agreed that 

10 the same effect is accomplished with reference to them 

11 without requiring additional record keeping and things 

12 like that. 

13 MS. GOLDSTEIN: We have exclqded Tysen's and 

14 Trump Village from particular provisions which would 

15 affect their 9bligations under the federal statutes 

16 that they were constructed under, such as tenancy 

17 requirements, objective criteria for accepting tenants 

I 

18 and things like that. 

19 These provisions they are talking about are 

20 simply provisions to notify the community of vacancies, / 

I 

I 

21 and I see no reason why two particular projects, while 

22 federally funded and. state project, should not be in-

23 eluded in the provisions that notify the community as 

24 to vacancies. 

25 These were, previous to coming in today -- all 
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these had been agreed upon on numerous occasions. 

THE COURT: May I inquire, is Tysen's Park and 

Trump Village managed by Trump? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: owned and managed. 

MR. COHN: Yes. These are the two buildings, 

your Honor, one is under state supervision under the 

Mitchel-Llama Act; Tysen's is already under federal 

supervision. 

I think we had all agreed that it was unnecessary 

to have them in this. 

Now, apparently what Miss Goldstein --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: One project does have a racial 

composition, which is virtually white and would be an 

important project to include under the decree. 

We might go through these. I don't want to hold 

up settlement on minor points, you know, but you re-

negotiate and renegotiate so many times. 

MR. FRED TRUMP: Why don't you exclude them, 

Donna. We are giving you a lot of buildings. It's 

burdensome so far as the money is concerned, also. 

MR. COHN: Mr. Fred Trump wanted to tell your 

Honor, on 23 points which the Government made here, 

we have given almost totally, and some of them are 

very much against everyone's better judgment, in an 

attempt to get this done. 
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Mr. Trump himself and Mr. Eskanazi, an attorney 

who has been very constructive working with us, have 

gone to Washington rather than have the folks come up 

here to try and hammer this thing out. 

THE COURT: Miss Goldstein, is there anything 

about the status of those two, Tysen's Park and Trump 

Village, which would insure that the availability of 

nondiscriminatory housing message would come through 

other agencies or anything of that sort? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: There presently is not. There 

are no requirements that I am aware of and no civil 

rights enforcement by the state and federal government 

with respect to the operation of these kinds of projects 

We are talking about two very different kinds 

of projects. Tysen's Park is in Staten Island and 

while not large it does have a significant minority 

population, as we understand it. 

MR. F. TRUMP: Over 30 per cent. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: I had understood it to be approxi 

mately eight or ten per cent. But unlike what we have 

alleged to exist at other Trump properties. 

Trump Village, however, is very representative 

of what we allege to be the reputation of the Trump 

properties in the community, and of the racial composi-

tion of the Trump properties. It is an exclusively 
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We have agreed to exclude it from certain pro-

visions which would be offensive to the regulations 

that it was set up under. They have to give certain 

preferences in tenant selections to veterans and other 

groups because it is a state Mitchel-Llama project, 

and they have accepted in the decree provisions that 

would interfere with that; however, it is a very 

desirable project. 

THE COURT: Would there be created some false 

impression about their availability in the light of the 

exceptions you have later agreed to? 

In other words, if, on the one hand, you say 

I realize this is simply to notify the Open Housing 

Center that these are available to all qualified persons, 

and so forth --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: No, your Honor, I don't think 

that would open. 

THE COURT: That somebody would then go to Tysen's 

Park or Trump Village and say "We have been told some-

thing" and then --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That would simply place these 

people in the same position that thousands of New Yorkers 

are in. 
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Trump Village does have a waiting list. 

MR. ESKANAZI: My name is Irving Eskanazi, your 

Honor. This would probably clear up the matter. 

As far as Trump Village is concerned, there has 

not been, for a good number of years, any advertising 

whatsoever because there is an extensive waiting list 

which is supervised by the State Department, as far as 

when the people first entered their names 

kept in the proper order, et cetera. 

they are 

Therefore, listing vacancies with Open Housing 

would not accomplish anything but merely give the people 

who inquired at Open Housing the opportunity of joining 

the waiting list. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Then all that we would be doing 

is, the decree requires only to provide vacancies that 

exist. 

Excepting Trump Village under the circumstances 

that have just been discussed would really serve no 

purpose. If there is no vacancy then they shall not 

be included. Advertising requires them, that when they 

do advertise vacancies they advertise in a certain 

manner. To include' it blanketly from the decree would 

give a message to all those that read it that Trump 

Village does not subscribe to the same equal opportunity 

requirements as the rest of the Trump properties, and 
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that is misleading. 

MR. COHN: We are not talking to Judge Neaher's 

point, which seems to be very cogent. 

You have agreed to exclude these two from what 

would be meaningful provisions of the decree that would 

apply to other buildings because we all recognize that 

it is under state and federal regulation already. 

Having excluded them, if you stick them in back 

at another point and have these notices sent to Open 

Housing, it will in effect mislead 

THE COURT: What would be a specimen of one of 

these special provisions respecting these two? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Footnote 3 on page 10. 

There is a provision in the decree whereby for 

buildings with insignificant numbers of black and 

Spanish tenants that a certain -- the Open Housing 

Center shall be given a three-day jump to fill an 

apartment. Because Trump Village has to give prefer-

ence to certain tenants and does have a long waiting 

list, we eave excluded it from that provision. 

We have excluded Tysen's Park on page --

THE COURT: Let me ask this, where does it say 

they are excluded? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Third footnote. This provision 

shall not apply to Trump Village. On page 12, footnote 
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one, the part where it goes through the objective rental 

criterion standards for determining the eligibility of 

tenants. 

Footnote one excludes Tysen's Park because it is 

subject to other federal regulations with respect to 

tenant eligibility. Those are specific exclusions. 

We did not wish to make a blanket exclusion that 

would appear to the public to be taking large projects 

outside of the requirements of the equal housing --

the equal housing opportunity requirements that the 

defendants were agreeing to. 

I don't see how it serves any function on proper-

ties that --

MR. COHN: If we are dealing with a cosmetic 

problem, how about this: Instead of mentioning them 

by name, saying apartments owned or managed by the 

defendant, parentheses, with the exceptions noted in 

the footnotes on page 10 and page 12. If they are 

worried about 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Someone who is going to read it 

is going to read it wrong. 

MR. COHN: What prospective person wants to go 

and rent an apartment for $175 a month and is going 

to come and read a 30-page consent decree? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We don't want to be unreasonable 
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your Honor, but --

MR. F. TRUMP: We have discussed this for days 

and days. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We want a decree to be entered 

and we don't to be unreasonable. I suppose that partly 

one of the reasons that I have retained the position I 

have today is that provisions have been -- we have 

spent days upon days renegotiating this decree and each 

time we sit down new provisions need to be changed. 

THE COURT: Suppose, if one can be very neutral, 

I understand your point and I think there is merit to 

the Government's point here. 

Suppose one were simply to say, without regard 

to race, color, as hereinafter provided. You don't 

mention -- you understand? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: I am not following you. 

THE COURT: That apartments owned or managed by 

the defendant are available to all qualified persons, 

without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national 

origin, as hereinafter provided. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: The only problem is the defendant 

are under an injunction, a general injunction that all 

their properties, regardless of the type of properties 

they are, and whether they are excluded from affirmative 

provisions -- they are under a general injunction to mak 
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apartments available to all qualified persons. 

THE COURT: I did not say they were not. I just 

said that they are available as hereinafter provided. 

Do you understand? 

Then whatever the difference is with respect to 

Trump or Tysen's will be governed by the more particular 

provisions hereinafter provided, if that makes the diff-

erence. 

Do you understand? 

MR. COHN: It seems like a perfect solution. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: It appears to me that putting 

that in would make it appear that Trump Village and 

Tysen's were not included in the general injunctive 

provisions which require them to make it available to 

all -- I may not understand you, but it seems to be 

a little misleading in terms of 

THE COURT: Well, in 10, what do you say, you 

say under 3 --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We don't 

THE COURT: You say this provision, which is the 

triple asterisk, shall not apply to Trump Village, but 

which provision do you mean? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: The entire provision B that 

requires them to hold a property off the market for 

three days. But not the provision that requires them 

to --



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

20 

THE COURT: All right. So my point is, as here-

inafter provided simply means that if someone goes to 

Tysen's Village then you turn not to the first sentence, 

which is the general blanket cosmetic approach, which 

I am attempting to preserve for you, and at the same 

time to satisfy these gentlemen that they are not in 

some way losing the benefit of whatever is provided 

more specifically in 10 and 12. I don't want to over-

bear you on that. I am simply a mediator here attemptin 

to satisfy both sides because personally I do think it 

is important that you should not say on page 7 that 

except for Trump Village and Tysen's Park everything 

else is available. 

I am simply saying all are available as herein-

after provided. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That's fine, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Do you understand my point? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That's fine. 

MR. COHN: On the same page --

THE COURT: Where would we put that? 

MR. COHN: After the words "national origin." 

THE COURT: " ••• are available as hereinafter 

provided to all qualified persons, or are available to 

all as hereinafter ••• " 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Without regard to race, color, 
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religion or national origin, as hereinafter provided. 

THE COURT: May I mark this copy? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Yes, you may, your Honor. 

THE COURT: The mechanical details should wait. 

I know they are a problem but I am trying to say to 

you it might be that the Government, having recognized 

the special exceptions will apply, it may be realized 

also in some difference in treatment with respect to 

record keeping I would expect that to be so, I don't 

know, and that is what we are talking about here. Do 

you understand? 

MR. F. TRUMP: We were thinking they would be 

excluded because they are under restrictive -- highly 

restricted now. We don't pick the people. 

THE COURT: I don't think either from your 

standpoint, and certainly not from the Government's, 

that it would look well for you to be attempting 

let us say -- I don't know much about Tysen's Park, 

but Trump Village, being a large and prominent --

MR. F. TRUMP: How many units in Trump Village, 

Donna? They are co-ops. We have nothing to do with 

3,000 families. 

THE COURT: It is partly co-op? 

MR. F. TRUMP: Three thousand were co-op and 880 

are rental. 
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THE COURT: It is all Trump Village? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: 880 apartments are a significant 

number of apartments to New Yorkers. 

MR. F. TRUMP: On those two buildings, forget 

about it, the State takes care of everything. They 

select 

MR. COHN: What Judge Neaher is saying, nobody 

is disagreeing with any of that, we are saying by call-

ing special attention to them there in the opening 

sentence instead of on pages 10 and 12, where the 

exceptions are noted, you might be creating --

THE COURT: The details -- if you are interested 

in conserving expenditure of funds, which is under-

standable, if that is a major point here, I don't 

believe the Government would be unreasonable when you 

are not called upon to deal with the vast majority of 

housing that is involved here. 

MR. COHN: If they are, I assume you are going 

to retain jurisdiction at the foot of the decree and 

we will come to you? 

THE COURT: If any difficulties come up we will 

try to iron them out. 

MR. COHN: The next point, we agreed to forward 

the statement of vacancies to the Open Housing Center. 

That was all right. We agreed to that after a lot of 
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discussion. 

Then they go ahead and put in language saying 

the Open Housing Center, having received it, may at its 

own discretion forward copies of the above-mentioned 

letter and weekly list of vacancies to any and all 

persons or organizations with an interest in promoting 

equal housing opportunities. 

What permeates the whole decree is a limitation 

as to numbers of groups, of do-good groups which are 

to be involved in this process, because we all agree, 

without impugning their motives in any way, it leads 

to an enormous volume of confusion, of extra work for 

superintendents, the office in processing applications, 

and we have selected the Open Housing Center, the Urban 

League, we have agreed to advertise not in every paper 

but in certain selected papers, on a sort of rigid basis, 

which both sides have agreed to. 

We don't mind notifying Open Housing, but if ther 

is an indiscriminate right to flood every organization 

with copies of lists of our vacancies, it is just going 

to not accomplish anything but a total amount of con-

fusion. 

First of all, really chaos, and by the time they 

get our our experience has been, as I understand, 

because we have done some of this before, by the time 
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they get through distributing it has all become obsolete 

anyway: Places are rented, and the superintendents, 

the clerical help go crazy. 

So we want some kind of a break on however this 

is to flood forward once we comply with the provision 

they want, which is to notify the Open Housing Center, 

and not have something in here which says at its own 

discretion forward copies to any and all persons and 

organizations with an interest in promoting equal housing 

opportunities. 

I think that is what that is about. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Just to put this in perspective 

and get a little history of that paragraph, our initial 

memorandum of understanding stated that there would be 

approximately three or four groups to which this inform-

ation would be sent. 

After the decree had been entered, and when Mr. 

Eskanazi and Mr. Trump, in April or May, I don't remember 

when, came down to finish off the consent decree, and I 

spent the entire day with Mr. Eskanazi, it was agreed by 

Mr. Eskanazi, and I believe this was his suggestion, that 

rather than have the paper work of sending them constantly 

to four groups, why not send them to Open Housing Center 

24 and let them distribute it. 

25 So at his suggestion, and to eliminate the need to 
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send them to more than one group, this was put in. 

If the defendants wish to go back to three 

specific groups to send this to, we will be more than 

happy to make the provision. This has gone through 

much negotiation since then and this has not been 

brought up as a sticky-wit, so I am a little confused 

at this late stage of the game to have them now want 

to change it. 

THE COURT: You are concerned because of the 

gradual broadcast of these vacancies, if they are, and 

the lapse in time, that you will be flooded with people 

coming to the apartments which are no longer available; 

is that right? 

MR. COHN: That is one concern. 

The second concern is this: We think the noti-

fication to the Open Housing Center does it. They see 

the people directly. That accomplishes it and why do 

we have to have a proliferation now to give a bow to 

three other or five other or ten other -- the Open 

Housing Center, this is its function. 

THE COURT: In addition to the Open Housing, what 

would have been the other groups you had in mind, what 

would they add to it? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We were -- there are a number of 

fair housing groups in the area, in the metropolitan 
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area: The Human Rights Commission is a possible source. 

Various other groups have housing -- we never 

sat down and worked out the specific groups. There are 

other groups similar to the Open Housing Center. Open 

Housing Center is one operation, has one small office 

and a very limited staff. 

If the Open Housing Center initially, because 

they don't have the resources to have the impact on 

the community to distribute this literature, does --

THE COURT: Are there not certain advertising 

provisions that do also come into play? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That is correct, your Honor. 

THE COURT: I can understand your position here 

but, on the other hand, as a practical matter, I can 

also understand that if these things are dispatched 

over the city it will generate a lot of activity for 

the management dealing with people who get there long 

after the apartment has been rented. 

I can see what it really means is a long flow 

of inquiry, mail and so forth, which may not really 

accomplish the Government's purpose. It may even indee 

cause people to expend monies to travel to these places 

and everything else, all in vain. 

On the other hand, isn't it enough to, with the 

other advertising provisions and so forth, to eliminate 
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this sort of broadcast --

Is this a standard provision, by the way, or 

was this tailored --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Notification to groups? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: There are two kinds of notifica-

tion in here: One is absolutely standard; the other 

one is done frequently, depending on the size of the 

operation, the nature of the volume and the need in 

the community, but it is done frequently. It is not 

uniform. One of them which notifies the community of 

the general equal housing opportunities pursuant to 

this decree, and the terms of the decree, is fairly 

uniform; otherwise the impact of the decree would 

significantly_be less. 

THE COURT: This distribution by the Housing --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: The term of list of vacancies, 

this is done in a significant portion of our decrees, 

but not necessarily in all the decrees. 

MR. COHN: Unfortunately, your Honor, the ones I 

have seen do not have them, which is a problem that I 

encountered. Your ·Honor put his finger right on it. 

There are pages of subsequent provisions requir-

ing detailed listings, advertising in El Dario, 

Amsterdam News, so on and so forth. 
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beginning and they selected the Open Housing Center 

and --
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THE COURT: Let me ask you, though, as a practica 

matter 

MR. COHN: I have an idea 

THE COURT: Once the Open Housing Center gets 

this information, what is to stop them from dispersing 

it anyway? 

MR. COHN: I don't know what is to stop them, 

but I don't want to encourage them. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That's okay if we take it out. 

The Open Housing Center can operate at its own discre-

tion. 

MR. COHN: Your Honor, how about the --

THE COURT: Remember that one. You won that one. 

MR. F. TRUMP: They can use their own discretion, 

she said, which is the same as what is in there. We wan 

exclusively for them --

THE COURT: What is coming out? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: The last sentence, "The Open 

Housing Center may at its own discretion ••• " 

THE COURT: That's out. 

MR. F. TRUMP: Thank you, Judge. 

MR. COHN: The next page -- I don't think there 
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1 should be any problem with 3-A. Is there? 

2 Can we handle the problems with Tysen's and 

3 Trump Village? 

4 MS. GOLDSTEIN: If Trump Village has no vacancies 

5 and they will not be in this, you need to only advertise 

6 buildings with vacancies so that that is a pink elephant 

7 it is not going to exist. 

8 THE COURT: As I understand it, they will be 

9 advertising only if there is a need to advertise. 

10 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Pursuant to their present policy. 

11 THE COURT: If you do advertise then you conform 

12 to this. I don't really see any problem with this at 

13 all. 

14 MR. COHN: Include in all advertising with refer-

15 ence to New York City buildings -- they are not going 

16 to argue about that. 

17 MS. GOLDSTEIN: New York City. That includes 

18 the five boroughs. 

19 MR. COHN: We can deal with that, Judge. 

20 Let us talk about Tysen's for a second, if we 

21 can. 

22 (Counsel con.fer, off the record.) 

23 MR. ESKANAZI: Miss Goldstein mentioned even 

24 before that the two buildings are completely different 

25 in nature. There is a difference as to the number of 
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minority people living in Tysen's, but even if we take 

Miss Goldstein's figure and she said ten per cent, one 

of the -- it happens to be a little higher, but one of 

the distinctions in the agreement is even if we list 

with Open Housing, they want us to list and hold for 

three days 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Only properties with less than 

ten per cent minority. 

MR. ESKANAZI: This one meets the criteria. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: It will not be included in that 

provision because it does have a significant population -

MR. COHN: They want to know how do we say that 

it is not included because of that. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That is a different provision. 

MR. COHN: How do we in this provision -- I think 

they are viewing this from a standpoint -- they have 

to be careful because if somebody is generous as you or 

I -- there might be future problems here as to what that 

means. I think they want to make sure --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Why should Tysen's be excluded? 

MR. COHN: Because you have just said Tysen's 

22 is in fact excluded now because Tysen's has over the 

23 minority percentage, which results in the exclusion. 

24 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Tysen's is, by operation of the 

25 provision, excluded from provision B on page 10. I made 
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no statement with respect to its inclusion or exclusion 

from the advertising provisions on page B. 

Our understanding was that all properties, all 

advertising when done would fall within certain regula-

tions prescribed by the Department of Housing and Urban 

Development. 

MR. COHN: Suppose Tysen had 70 per cent blacks, 

minority, okay, but they had a vacancy. Under your 

reading of this, would the advertising --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Under the advertising provision 

which follows the HUD Guidelines, all advertising, if 

done we are not requiring you to advertise if you 

have no vacancies, we have not telling you which 

building to advertise, we are requiring that you follow 

the advertising procedures you use now and that all 

advertising, simple three-word statement, "equal 

housing opportunities," be included, as required by 

the HUD guidelines. 

THE COURT: I am having a problem understanding 

your problem here, I must say, on this one. 

In other words, as I understand it, if you do 

advertise either generally or with respect to any 

particular building, your advertising has to comply 

with this. But that as I understand it without re-

lationship to the question -- for instance, is it 
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likely that you would be advertising for Tysen's, for 

instance? 

MR. ESKANAZI: Yes. I think the point is, your 

Honor, that the premise of this whole hearing supposedly 

the whole case is based on the fact that the Government 

is looking to achieve integration in areas where it does 

not exist. 

Now, in Tysen's Park it does exist. It is recog-

nized and admitted by Miss Goldstein. It is also a 

unique project in that it is the only one we own that 

is supervised by the Federal Government. 

MR. COHN: That is the footnote on page 12. 

MR. D. TRUMP: This advertising, while it's, you 

know-- I imagine it's necessary from the Government's 

standpoint, is a very expensive thing for us. It is 

really onerous. Each sentence we put in is going to 

cost us a lot of money over the period we are supposed 

to do it. 

Tysen's Park, where Miss Goldstein does admit 

there live a large percentage of minorities, while she 

uses the figure ten per cent, I can attest to the fact 

that it is maybe in excess of thirty per cent. I don't 

see why we have to go through the expense of adding 

these lines to every newspaper where we advertise in 

the New York Times, the Staten Island Press, or the 
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different papers, because, quite honestly, it is very 

expensive. 

MR. F. TRUMP:: I have the New York Times today. 

There are 2,100 ads. We have about ten ads in here, 
:!'"' 

or eight ads. 

We would have to, after signing this decree, put 
•' 

"equal housing oppor'tuflity" underneath each of our ten 
t 

. ¥j 
' .. ' ;. ,,. 

aqs. They ads, like one-inch, twelve 
· ..... •. 

ten linesr. eight lines, but we would have ten 

and we would have to put in this ten different places, 

the 2,100 -- there isn't one other advertiser in the 

New York Times who does that. I think it is discrimina-

tory against us; it is expensive and it makes us appear 

foolish and we will be the laughing stock of the real 

estate industry. 

I think that should be left out altogether. 

THE COURT: These ads, what do they look like? 

MR. F. TRUMP: "Equal housing opportunity ... 

MR. COHN: Mr. Trump has now gone on to the next 

point, which requires on ads of more than eight lines 

of action print that "equal housing opportunity" be 

displayed. 

He is telling your Honor that this is a discrimin-

atory provision because if you go through the whole paper 

you won't find one other builder or developer who is 
' 
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required to do that. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, the HUD advertising 

guidelines, given significant weight by a number of 

courts in these cases, by practically all courts in 

these cases, require the use of "equal housing oppor-

tunity" and in certain circumstances what is called 

the equal housing opportunity logos, which is for 

display ads which the defendants do not use. 

Papers throughout the country -- if you pick up 

the Washington Post, if you pick up almost any large 

city newspaper, the use of "equal housing opportunity" 

is a frequent occurrence. 

MR. D. TRUMP: Not for an eight-line ad. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: An eight-line ad is not consid-

ered in the industry as a small ad. 

MR. F. TRUMP: We were not convicted. We would 

win this case if we fought it. 

THE COURT: Don't be too sure of that. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: An eight-line ad is not consid-

ered a small ad. 

In fact, an eight-line ad is considered a signi-

ficant size ad. We generally do it in three or more 

lines, but agreed to increase it to eight lines for the 

defendants. 

The Washington Post, the Boston papers, the 
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Philadelphia papers, this would not appear at all un-

usual. 

What the defendants are saying, since no other 

apartment owners follow the guidelines, we should not 

be obliged to. 

Perhaps what they are speaking to is need for 

greater enforcement by the Civil Rights Division, 

something that the Civil Rights Division, since it carne 

into this case -- we are very concerned about the fact 

that the classified advertising in New York City in no 

case includes this. 

However, this is a situation where we have 

alleged that the defendants discriminate, have even 

engaged in a pattern in practice of continual discrim-

ination against blacks in New York City; that they 

have developed a discriminatory image in the city. 

We have never entered into in a case of this 

kind a consent decree without requirements that the 

HUD guidelines be followed and the defendants have 

agreed to this on a number of occasions. 

The first memorandum of understand contained 

this. The second one --we have never, and at all time 

have made it very clear to them that this was an 

integral part of the decree. 

Now, at the more than eleventh hour we again are 
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renegotiating what we have indicated was one of the 

more significant parts of the decree. 

THE COURT: Let me ask you this, you say in addi-

tion to all advertising placed, and so forth, that it 

shall conform to the practices recommended in the HUD 

advertising guidelines. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That would be with respect to 

when a logo would have to be used. 

THE HUD guideline states that all ads should have 

equal housing opportunities. We have limited it to 

eight. With respect to the use of a logo, which the 

HUD guidelines talks about in terms of display ads 

which are generally known as ads that are bordered 

and set off, and then the logo consists of the outline 

of a house with an equal sign, and it is known in the 

community as equal housing opportunity logo. 

With respect to that we just said, in addition, 

that is additional to the eight-line requirement all 

other ads will just conform to the guidelines prescribed 

by the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

MR. F. TRUMP: We don't have any display ads. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Fine. We are not requiring 

you to use them. 

MR. F. TRUMP: We are the only ones in the New 

York Times that would have that. I think that is 
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terrible and it certainly is discriminatory. 

MR. ESKANAZI: To give you an idea of lineage, 

the publishing business, they classify fourteen lines 

as equal to an inch, so when we speak of eight lines, 

we are saying any ad that would be just over a half 

inch in size or more, which would be requiring that. 

So if we advertise fourteen buildings, we would have 

that fourteen times. 

MR. D. TRUMP: That means fourteen lines, and 

it is very expensive. 

MR. COHN: The plain fact, and this is probably -

everything looking down our list of problems, this is 

probably the problem because the others are very, very 

small. This is a basic one because itis awfully hard 

to say to people when you pick up the newspapers and 

go through two thousand ads a day -- we have been doing 

it for over three months now since this provision was 

proposed and we have yet to find one -- why them? 

Because they are cooperating here and taking a 

consent decree, why should they be singled out for 

treatment that is harsher and which would put them in 

a completely unique position, cost them a great deal 

of money, accomplish next to nothing as a practical 

result, and just make them the guinea pigs in a way 

that I can't tell clients it's not discriminatory 
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when they have read probably a total of 300,000 ads and 

have yet to find one which does what they are being 

asked to do here. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: I have not done a survey the 

defendants claim they have done, but I have 

MR. F. TRUMP: Two thousand ads. 

THE COURT: I have to take a quick look at the 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: I have participated, going on 

three years, in these decrees, and we have never entere 

into one that does not contain this. 

They are not in the same position that the other 

property owners in that newspaper are in that they have 

been charged with a serious violation of the Civil 

Rights Act, which they have agreed to settle by consent 

MR. F. TRUMP: There is never an ad in. we 

have checked it for three months and there is not one. 

MR. D. TRUMP: We haven't found one in any other 

paper in New York. 

MR. COHN: Looking at all this language, as I 

say, this is the last big problem, and if you look 

down the list, there just isn't anything, but this is 

an awfully basic one. 

If these people, who, as Mr. Trump keeps pointin 

out, there wasn't a trial, and a consent decree is in 

the spirit of just that, and I think they have gone so 
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is the most important. 

We have tried to take a composite here and do 

something in every regard. If we advertise in the 

Amsterdam News and El Dario we hardly are advertising 

something that is in a discriminatory fashion. 

We are yielding to the Government here and put-

ting in ads in minority papers themselves. 

On top of that, to make us the only people in 

the history of New York City, when we have gone over 

300,000 ads and have yet to see this on the part of any 

other builder or developer, it just seems grossly unfair 

and discriminatory. 

MR. BRACHTL: Your Honor, it appears to me from 

the citation to the HUD regulations that the date of 

those regulations postdates the Lefrak decree, which is 

regarded a significant decree in this area, which may 

explain that difference with respect to that decree. 

MR. GOLDSTEIN: We have been following these 

guidelines. 

MR. BRACHTL: It seems to me that when the purpose 

of this decree is to assure affirmative action, that 

advertising really is at the heart of the decree. 

THE COURT: I can understand that. 

The Qnly thing that bothers me a little bit was 

I never thought of advertising in the sense of the tiny 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

39 

far, as you go through this decree, the notifications, 

the lists of vacancies, it is --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Advertising is the most signifi-

cant thing they do. They advertise. They do a great 

deal of advertising. Their average ad is approximately 

fourteen or fifteen lines, as has been represented to 

me. 

This is the most effective way to reach the publi • 

A person who is looking for an apartment in New York 

goes to the newspapers. Open Housing Center can do 

just so much. They have limited clientele and very, 

very limited resources. We are not dealing with a large 

operation. 

As I say, there has been not one decree entered 

in a Title 8.suit by my office that has --brought by 

my office -- that has not contained provision following 

the HUD guidelines and requiring the use of equal 

opportunity --

MR. F. TRUMP: Lefrak does not do it. 

MR. COHN: It just isn't there. Nobody has this. 

Judge, every point we talk about, about notifi-

cation, Miss Goldstein says this is the most important. 

when we leave this she is going to tell us that the 

Open Housing Center is the most important. Then El 

Dario and the Amsterdam News and the minority press 
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ads saying that a particular apartment or two or three 

is available. I have always thought of advertising, 

indeed, it might be said to be something like this, for 

instance, a long blurb about a whole building advertis-

ing availability, generally. 

Even on this page, Starrett City, where we know 

from passing it by on the Parkway that it is a huge 

complex, unquestionably with many apartments available 

MR. F. TRUMP: That is very important to us, that 

equal housing, and there is one thing after that --

THE COURT: Let me say this, I think I can see 

where in multiplying these tiny ads with these extra 

lines it could conceivably be a very expensive item. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: The defendants' ads are not tiny. 

A 14-line ad is not considered tiny in the industry, your 

Honor. 

THE COURT: I don't know whether they are all --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: The ads that I have seen of the --

MR. P. TRUMP: One-inch is fourteen lines. 

MR. D. TRUMP: It is a very small ad. 

THE COURT: They get fourteen lines in one inch? 

Off the recot:d. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, perhaps we could work 

out a rotating proportion, that is, every other ad, to 

cut the expense in half. 
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MR. D. TRUMP: Will you pay for the expense, 

Donna? 

MR. BRACHTL: We have heard much about the expens , 

and I was wondering what the number of ads is that ex-

ceeds eight lines, what the total advertising budget is 

and what the cost is of inserting these three words in 

each ad. 

MR. COHN: We can tell you something about that 

right now, but I want to say that it almost seems that 

by insisting on this you defeat your own purpose. 

If I picked up a newspaper and was looking for an 

apartment, if I were in a minority group and I saw ten 

ads or eight ads out of over two thousand which said 

"equal housing opportunity," or something, and not one 

other did, I almost assume that the others all do 

not have equal housing opportunity and I was confined 

to these eight or ten. 

That is the last impression they want to create 

because their point is that everybody is bound by this. 

MR. BRACHTL: We will take the risk. 

MR. COHN: If a minority person is looking and 

sees eight or ten have this logo and 1990 don't, it is 

almost going to seem that the others do not observe the 

law insofar as this is concerned. 

If you read this, Judge Neaher, in line with the 
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other provisions of this decree where you had the ad-

vertising equally in minority newspapers, the furnish-

ing of lists to the Urban League, the record-keeping 

system, the constant notification system to add to all 

of that the fact that in every relatively small ad they 

have got to be the one person in the history of the 

City of New York to do this in the form of a consent 

decree seems grossly unfair. 

MR. BRACHTL: Mr. Cohn, you have digressed from 

my question. Now if you would respond to the inquiry 

about the --

MR. COHN: I don't think you were here -- cost of 

the ad? When we talked about the lineage, you were not 

here. I think that Donna is familiar with that. 

There are, I suppose, more than most people, we 

do run some larger ads. This logo would not be in at 

all. It would be in some. That's the way it would be. 

MR. BRACHTL: Expense was put forth as the primary 

objection, and I am curious about the expense. 

MR. F. TRUMP: We would be the laughing stock of 

the industry if we were the only ones that had 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: I don't think the defendants are 

in a position to say they will be the laughing stock of 

the industry. 

THE COURT: You might be commended. 
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New York City is a little behind 

other cities in the use of advertising. I don't believe 

this will continue for very long. 

You won't find too many other cities in situation 

like this. You pick up the Washington Post and it is a 

common occurrence. It is not -- the other defendants 

have not been subject to a suit under Title 8. 

The HUD guidelines are very explicit and it is --

this provision is considered to be the most effective, 

and one of the very most important in a consent decree 

of this kind. 

To say that they are going to be the laughing 

stock I think is simply not the question here before 

the Court. 

MR. COHN: Are these other ads all in compliance 

with HUD regulations which don't have the logo? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Apparently not. 

MR. COHN: Apparently there is a custom and usage 

which has been recognized on the point of every builder 

and developer. 

Your Honor pointed to Starrett, which is a good 

example. It is not done and the Government has never 

asked them to do that. 

In a decree here and in a period of over three 

years since this regulation was specifically promulgated 
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So we are now asked to have this and it is --

45 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We are negotiating the resolution 

of a claim, Mr. Cohn, a claim by the United States of 

a continuing practice over a long period of time of 

racial discrimination which has caused most Trump prop-

erty in New York to be virtually all white. 

MR. F. TRUMP: We deny that. 

MR. D. TRUMP: You should even be allowed to say 

that. 

THE COURT: How long did you have in mind that 

this requirement would endure? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Two years. 

MR. ESKANAZI: If we refer ourselves to the HUD 

guidelines, there is language in there, and I think the 

spirit of the HUD guidelines is such where they want to 

avoid what Donna is asking us to do. They mention in 

language they don't want advertising made where you 

single out a particular group. 

I think if two thousand ads in the Times don't 

say anything, in twelve of ours it will say "equal 

opportunity," we are more or less putting up a red 

flag saying we will take minority groups -- the others 
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may not, but we will. 

The HUD guidelines specifically --

MR. BRACHTL: That is to be applauded. 

THE COURT: Not necessarily. That is the whole 

problem with schools and everything else. 

MR. ESKANAZI: It can be overdone. 

MR. BRACHTL: I gather, however, at least the 

expense claim is no longer put forth. 

THE COURT: You probably ought to grab the appli-

cants that read the New York Times. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: What Mr. Eskanazi brings up about 

the HUD guidelines, it is practice of the defendants 

to take certain properties and only use them there. 

You find large developers which operate proper-

ties which have a sufficient black population and some 

with almost white, the slogan and the logo may be run 

only in his properties in which he is trying to appeal 

to minority groups; that is a term of art in the industr 

and it is called stealing, and that is what the HUD 

guidelines are aimed at. 

THE COURT: Is there any way, looking over at 

the next provision·with respect to the black and Puerto 

Rican communities monthly 15-line display ad$, is it 

possible to solve this by having them place at some 

periodic interval a larger ad for Trump buildings, or 
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what have you, in which this would appear? 

This might even get Starrett to do it, figuring 

this is a good --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Trump owns a significant portion 

of Starrett. 

MR. D. TRUMP: We are limited partners in that, 

really nothing to do with it. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: It can be perhaps handled by 

increasing the number of ads and the size of ads in the 

black and Puerto Rican press, or 

THE COURT: I was thinking that in addition to 

the black and Puerto Rican -- of course, it says in 

media directed primarily toward --

MR. F. TRUMP: Anyway, to leave those ads out is 

really repulsive. The New York Times is the greatest 

minority newspaper, and to 

MR. D. TRUMP: Anybody looking for an apartment 

in New York is going to pick up the New York Times, 

whether black or Puerto Rican. 

THE COURT: Would you object to the requirement 

that on, say, whatever this is, a monthly basis for the 

next two years you insert some kind of large general 

ad which included this equal housing opportunity and 

fair housing logo? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: I have another alternative, your 
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Honor. 

How about having them, as we do with the other 

provisions, advertise equal housing opportunities for 

properties with say a black percentage occupancy, per-

centage of less than 15 per cent? 

MR. COHN: We might have an answer. 

THE COURT: Is it possible to do that? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: They have to keep records, in any 

event. They will have the records available --

THE COURT: What I am trying to say is, here we 

seem to be concerned with the development of individual 

apartments that come on the market and an ad goes in, a 

little ad. 

MR. F. TRUMP: It is one in that building, two 

in this building, nothing big. 

THE COURT: All I am saying, actually I am not 

altogether sure that I would ever construe this require-

ment as fitting within the confines of something an inch 

high, honestly I wouldn't. Perhaps I don't live in 

Washington. I have daughters there and I go there and 

I see the Washington Post a couple of times a year. 

The next time I go there I am going down to look and 

see if they are there. 

It is obvious that nobody else here will have it 

in, but I think there is something to be said, the 
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1 defendant is in a lawsuit, claims have been made, in 

2 requiring them to place some kind of advertising in a 

3 paper such as this or in the Sunday Real Estate, maybe 

4 in the sunday papers. 

5 MR. COHN: Would this solve it? This whole 

6 decree is cast around quarterly reporting. Suppose we 

7 take a large ad quarterly --

8 MS. GOLDSTEIN: That is three times a year, your 

9 Honor. 

10 MR. ESKANAZI: Two inches, three inches, four 

11 inches, and rotate so each time we throw an ad like 

12 that it would be a different building, so eventually 

13 we would reach all our buildings. 

14 
THE COURT: Three times a year is not very much. 

15 
MR. ESKANAZI: Four times a year. 

MR. COHN: Let's say every ad over five inches 
16 

I 17 or six inches. 

we have many ads over five inchesr 

I 
18 

MR. D. TRUMP: 

19 
I would say. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: May I make one additional point, 
20 

21 
your Honor? I know we are stretching your patience 

considerably. 
22 

THE COURT: I am an exceedingly patient man. 
23 

I am really interested in trying to work out something 
24 

here which I think is going to be realistic and not 
25 
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1 just because it is acceptable to the defendant. I 

2 really shrink at the thought that this statement would 

3 appear in those tiny little ads. 

4 Remember landlords in this city have many burdens, 

5 there is no question about that, and that is one of the 

6 big problems about this city. What I am trying to say 

7 is I really think there ought to be at least a monthly 

8 ad here of some sort. 

9 I was thinking -- I don't know whether you do 

10 this or not, something that would be visible to the eye, 

11 three or four-inch ad, or whatever it is. I don't know 

12 whether you do that. 

13 MR. F. TRUMP: You want one a month, Judge? We 

14 will put three or four buildings together and say it 

15 once a month. 

16 MR. COHN: Judge, we will do that. 

17 

18 

THE COURT: Can't we insure that the buildings 

rotate? I don't know whether it is possible --
I 

19 

20 

choosing!, 

I 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: How many buildings are we 

one building to be advertised? 

21 
MR. ESKANAZI: I think it should be up to us, 

22 
as many as we see fit: two, three, four. 

23 
THE COURT: Subject to your surveillance, wouldn' 

24 
it be? If you have a complaint about it you make the 

complaint. In other words, the idea is that it will, 
25 I 
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1 

the advertising will apply to all their buildings, I 
2 

take it, and to comply with the spirit of this I think 
3 

all of them at one time or another in a revolving way 
4 

should turn up in these ads. 
5 

MR. D. TRUMP: Could we do this, once a month 
6 

we will take a certain number, not just a big blank 
7 

ad that says "Trump Equal Housing," but once a month if 
8 

we take it on a rotating basis, you have twelve months, 
9 

and if we could take three or four buildings, put them 
10 together and then at the bottom of that, we will take 
11 three or four Queens buildings, three or four differen 
12 Brooklyn buildings, and over the period of twelve month 
13 we have covered all of our buildings, and then some, 
14 and probably we will go over some two or three times. 
15 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Can they be a display advertise- I 

I 
16 ment 

17 MR. D. TRUMP: They are expensive. Nobody uses 
18 that. 

19 MR. ESKANAZI: This is a misunderstanding as to 
20 the terminology or definition of display, because I 

21 think you will see that in the next point when they I 
22 talk about El Dario or Amsterdam News, where they speakj 

talking about somethin 23 of 15-line display ads, they are 

24 of one inch. 

25 I think the Government speaks in terms of display 
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1 ad as merely signifying a black line around the ad. 

2 MR. D. TRUMP: If we can do that I think it would 

3 be satisfactory. 

4 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Can we agree to a size? 

5 MR. COHN: Three inches? 

6 MR. ESKANAZI: Three inches or more. 

7 THE COURT: We will say at least three inches. 

8 MS. GOLDSTEIN: What Mr. Brachtl and I have been 

9 considering is the significant decrease in the number 

10 of properties and impact that this provision would 

11 incur, decrease in terms of frequency, impact, number 

12 of properties that it will cover as opposed to the 

13 provision that the defendants signed, agreed to solely 

14 on the consideration of putting off a trial date and 

15 that would have been part and parcel of each subsequent 

16 agreement. 

17 The defendants have agreed to this provision. 

18 They now come into court and say to your Honor it is 

19 unreasonable. I think even considering the equities, 

20 the defendants had reached a settlement agreement and 

21 this provision was included. It is not an unreasonable 

22 provision. 

23 
I wonder whether there could be this compromise, 

24 
however, from going to every-day ad to one add once a 

25 
month, which would only cover a small percentage of 
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1 their buildings. 
2 MR. BRACHTL: Perhaps a flat percentage, perhaps 
3 50 per cent; in other words, all offerings considered as 
4 a unit, the offer of one apartment in one newspaper on 
5 one day. If 50 per cent of those offerings are units 
6 included with the logo -- not the logo, but the recita-
7 tion of "equal housing opportunities," then -- otherwise 
8 what we are describing here is a reduction from daily 

9 coverage to twelve times a year, once a month; and, 

10 further, to reduce from what appeared to be a fair number 

11 of ads each day to just three or four once a month, which 

12 means that we will have a reduction in the coverage or 

13 the exposure in this advertising program down to about 

14 one per cent. 

15 THE COURT: Don't you think you get more visibi-

16 lity with a larger ad? That certainly attracts my atten-

17 tion. 

18 The first time I glance at the paper I look at 

19 the large ads. 

20 MR. BRACHTL: In whatever manner the defendants 

21 would wish to connect the recitation, the equal housing 

22 opportunity recitation with specific ads, would be up 

23 to them, but the requirement would be that 50 per cent 

24 of these advertising units, that is one apartment being 

25 offered on one day, would have to be either 
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in a block or individually with this recitation. 

If they wish to block all of their ads together, 

if they wish to diminish their advertising from seven 

days a week to one day a week, whatever their advertisin 

is, 50 per cent of the units offered, considering a unit, 

as I say, the offer of an apartment on a day, would have 

to be associated with either in a block or separately 

with this recitation of "equal housing opportunities," 

unless they cut their advertising costs any way they 

wish to. 

MR. D. TRUMP: We have to pay for that extra line. 

MR. F. TRUMP: Then we are the only ones in there. 

MR. D. TRUMP: You can't really block them to-

gether anyway in most cases because in most cases if you 

notice it is in the specific borough and location, such 

as Luna Park, let's say, Forest Hills, they are all in 

different locations. 

If we own ten buildings in Brooklyn, they are 

going to be four or five inches apart, or maybe twelve 

inches apart, in an entirely different column; in the 

Luna Park section, the Brighton Beach section. 

MR. BRACHTL: If that is true, then there will be 

difficulty conforming to your program. 

THE COURT: The difficulty in consolidating in one 

25 ad would be in a particular section at a time; that is 
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Brooklyn one time, Queens, whatever. 

MR. D. TRUMP: We are willing to do that. 

MR. BRACHTL: That means about once a year Brook-

lyn, for example, would have three or four apartments 

advertised with the equal opportunities. 

MR. COHN: How does this read, with reference to 

advertising for New York City buildings, the words 

"equal housing opportunity" and the fair housing logo 

shall appear in an ad to run once a month, of a minimum 

of three inches in the New York Times, and specific 

apartments shall be advertised and the buildings adver-

tised shall be rotated on a sectional basis so that all 

Trump New York City buildings shall be covered in such 

ads over the course of a year at least once, one or 

more times? 

MR. F. TRUMP: We were just talking about, not 

the logo, we were just talking about the line "equal 

opportunity." 

THE COURT: You can't put a logo? 

MR. F. TRUMP: That would make a display ad out 

of it. 

MR. COHN: We are talking about the words "equal 

housing opportunity." 

THE COURT: I don't know what the newspaper 

are. 
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1 MS. GOLDSTEIN: I suppose every newspaper is 
2 different. 
3 MR. F. TRUMP: If you put the logo in it is con-
4 sidered a display ad. 

We are talking about equal housing opportunity. 5 

6 We were not asked to put a logo in because that is a 
7 larger ad. 
8 MR. COHN: Then we would agree that the words 

9 "shall be prominently placed and easily legible," 

10 meaning the words "equal housing opportunity," shall 

11 be -- with reference to advertising for New York City 

12 buildings --

13 THE COURT: You would have to modify A 

14 MR. COHN: I was going to strike out A from the 

15 word "include" down to the fifth line, the word "liter-

16 ature." Then start as follows, "With reference to 

17 advertising for Trump New York City buildings," then 

18 go back, the words "equal housing opportunity," then 

19 insert, "shall appear in an ad to run once a month, 

20 of a minimum of three inches in the New York Times. I 

Specific apartments shall be advertised and the building's 
I advertised shall be rotated on a sectional basis so thal 

all Trump New York City buildings are covered in such 

21 

22 

23 

I 
24 ads at least once in the course of a year." 

Then go back, these words, "shall then be 25 
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prominently placed and easily legible." 

MR. BRACHTL: What it also does, it deletes 

"telephone directories, radio, television ••• " 

MR. ESKANAZI: We don't use that. 

MR. D. TRUMP: Frankly, you can include that. 

MR. COHN: You want to include it? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: The parties in all their settle-

ment talks and agreements heretofore -- this was not 

envisioned. It renders the provision minute in terms 

of impact. 

MR. COHN: You have El Dario, you have the Amster-

dam News, direct minority advertising; you've got va-

cancy lists being supplied to the Urban League, Open 

Housing Centers. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: You know, if we are going to 

decrease it from all the properties, I would think that 

the defendants could place such an ad 

MR. COHN: We have agreed on a monthly basis. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: I am talking about a weekly 

basis. 

MR. F. TRUMP: This is why we couldn't get to-

gether. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We had gotten together. We 

have signatures --

MR. F. TRUMP: One more item and we are through 
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MR. D. TRUMP: You have the whole New York Times, 

what do you want? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: The defendants put their signa-

tures to a document which included this provision. 

MR. COHN: That isn't so. 

MR. D. TRUMP: I never signed any document. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Mr. Cohn signed it. 

MR. COHN: You-always push without giving these 

people a chance to read what they are doing. 

You want them to know what they are doing and you 

want them to understand it and they want you to under-

stand it. You can't be intelligent about something 

you don't read. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: They enter into contracts daily. 

THE COURT: My suggestion would be to eliminate 

the word "newspapers" in A andto have really a new B. 

MR. COHN: Good idea, Judge. 

THE COURT: With the thought that -- which I 

consider a distinct advance so far as is apparent to 

the Court from looking at one of the major papers, it 

would be looked at in terms of housing or apartment 

availability, and to have a larger than normal size ad 

appear regularly on a periodic basis characterizing 

Trump as an equal housing opportunity landlord or 

management, building management, apartment management, 
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and provide what you have here somewhere in the footnote, 

double asterisk, to take that up and make that all part 

of B before you come to the next one, which I would make 

C, dealing with the black papers. 

That might even say that under B, all advertising 

I suppose you cover all the New York papers, the Times --

MR. F. TRUMP: Just the Times. 

MR. COHN: That is the only one used. 

THE COURT: So maybe if that is the only one --

MR. COHN: Refer to it specifically? 

THE COURT: I don't know. I suppose they want to 

make sure that in case you change your policy, if you go 

to the Daily News --I don't know what else is around 

MR. COHN: Times or comparable publication. 

THE COURT: I think to make B 

MR. COHN: B would read something like this 

THE COURT: It says the defendant shall, A, includ 

in all advertising I would strike out the word 

"newspapers" so it would be in telephone directories, 

whatever --you have no objection to that? 

MR. COHN: No. 

THE COURT: Then B --

MR. COHN: That would run down to the bottom of 

the page? 

THE COURT: Then B would be, include in all 
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newspaper advertising at least once a month an ad of a 

certain size --

MR. COHN: Minimum of three inches. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: A monthly ad, which is twelve 

times a year -- we are going from 365 times a year to 

12 times a year? 

MR. BRACHTL: For three to four units to be select 

ed by the defendants? Can this not be done on a weekly 

basis? 

THE COURT: It is totally unrealistic. 

MR. D. TRUMP: Will you pay for it? 

THE COURT: I'm trying to give you something that 

people will see in large letters in a newspaper that is 

the major source of advertising and in which I find no 

other ad containing this legend. 

If that is not a distinct advance for the Govern-

ment, I don't know what is. If you want to litigate 

this case over that, then I am ready to go. You might 

not even win that at the end of a final decree. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We understand, your Honor. 

THE COURT: So I suggest that you phrase along 

those lines as has been indicated here that the group-

ing of buildings in a particular section-- buildings or 

apartments, whatever it would be, and it would be at 

least a three-inch ad which I would say would be 
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substantial in size and in which "equal housing oppor-

tunity"might even be a two-line or three-line basis, 

so that you can see it. 

The logo, I gather, is not possible in this 

newspaper --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Not unless it becomes a display 

advertisement. 

THE COURT: I don't know what you mean by a 

display advertisement. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Blocked off. One of these 

squared-off ads. 

MR. D. TRUMP: It also makes it a very expensive 

ad. 

MR. COHN: It couldn't run in the regular real 

estate column. 

THE COURT: I agree. That is usually done for 

new housing, isn't it? 

MR. F. TRUMP: That's right. 

THE COURT: You are not talking about new hous-

ing •. 

MR. BRACHTL: Might we specify that such an ad 

be run on the third Sunday of each month? 

MR. COHN: Why not. 

MR. BRACHTL: The purpose behind it is simply 

that the day of the ad is an important one. 
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THE COURT: Make it the first Friday if you want. 

MR. BRACHTL: With regard to when it is that 

people are preparing or at least 

MR. COHN: That might be a problem, for this 

reason, apparently they don't control when the vacancy 

arises and when they are going to place ads. 

It might be on Friday once, it might be on Sunda 

another time. I think people who are looking for an 

apartment don't look once a week. 

MR. F. TRUMP: The supers are not around on 

Sunday in the summertime. 

MR. D. TRUMP: It might very well be on a Sunday 

but I don't know if we should put it in specifically 

for Sunday. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Sunday is the biggest day for 

looking for housing --

THE COURT: You want to limit it to Sunday? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: If we are considering from the 

Government's standpoint the greatest impact, a Sunday 

advertisement is clearly a greater impact than a Wednes 

day advertisement. 

MR. F. TRUMP: It gets lost on a sunday because 

it is twice as much. 

MR. D. TRUMP: Believe it or not, you have twelv 

pages of apartment advertising. 
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MR. F. TRUMP: If you want it on a Sunday, you 

have it. 

MR. BRACHTL: May we suggest 

THE COURT: This is a sunday paper here, I see. 

MR. ESKANAZI: I think, your Honor, if you do 

grant the Sunday, I think it should be one Sunday a 

month, but not a specific Sunday, for the simple reason 

that it makes it hard because of vacancies, we may not 

have enough to throw in an ad of that size. 

THE COURT: You don't care as long as it appears 

once on Sunday a month. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Statistically, there will be 

more people looking for an apartment, I believe, by the 

third or fourth week --

THE COURT: Maybe there is a technical problem 

from their standpoint. 

MR. BRACHTL: Maybe we can write the decree so 

as to provide that the Government can provide the day. 

we have not having experts 

THE COURT: I don't think that is realistic. 

MR. D. TRUMP: One Sunday a month, Judge. 

MR. BRACHTL: Not a day for their discretion. 

I am asking that it be made in our discretion. 

THE COURT: I don' t understand. It seems to 

me that it is very -- they indicate that they cannot 
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1 
control the space allocations of newspapers. They can 

2 
take an ad for a Sunday, I take it, and then it will 

3 
go in on some Sunday in that month. 

4 
MR. ESKANAZI: No, your Honor. 

5 
MS. GOLDSTEIN: It has to be in by Thursday night 

6 
of the week before. 

7 
MR. Because these people are not 

8 
experts in housing, I might point out that the third 

9 
or fourth Sunday would be a horrible time, and we are 

10 aware of our vacancies in the last week of the preceding 
11 month and perhaps the first or second Sunday would be 
12 the best time -- we never know. 

13 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Do your leases generally run on 

14 the first of the month? 

15 MR. ESKANAZI: All of them do. 

16 MR. COHN: Would this be something that you had 

17 in mind as regards to B 

18 THE COURT: Let's see, the defendant shall, B, 

19 shall advertise -- put it this way, advertise at least 

20 one Sunday a month. 

21 MR. COHN: How about with reference to newspaper 

22 THE COURT: You have three there. We don't want 

23 to change it all. 

24 The defendant shall, A, -- and this is a mandator 

25 direction --
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MR. COHN: A is just the way it is. 

THE COURT: B will begin "shall advertise ••• " 

MR. COHN: The defendants shall advertise not 

less than once a month. 

THE COURT: At least one Sunday in every month or 

shall -- well, or shall -- insert in a newspaper of 

general circulation, such as the New York Times -- how 

about that? 

MR. ESKANAZI: Fine. 

MR. COHN: Yes. 

THE COURT: (Cont'g) -- newspaper of general 

circulation, such as the New York Times, at least one 

Sunday in every month, and an advertisement of at least 

three inches in length, advertising available apartments 

in a particular section 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: With a rotating provision. 

THE COURT: On a rotating basis, and shall in-

clude in-- what would you say -- larger type of some 

kind, the words "equal housing opportunity" --we can't 

say the logo, apparently. 

MR. COHN: No. 

MR. F. TRUMP: At the foot of the ad. 

THE COURT: At the foot of the ad. All right. 

MR. COHN: And shall contain at the foot of the 

ad the words "equal housing opportunity." 
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THE COURT: I don't know what kind of type you 

call it. It may be a sized type. 

MR. COHN: In caps. 

THE COURT: In at least something typed -- type 

size-- "equal housing opportunity." 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Are we to specify the minimum 

number of properties to be included in the advertising? 

THE COURT: They may want to put a bigger ad in. 

What's wrong with that? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That's wonderful. I am talking 

about the minimum number of apartments to appear so 

that it is not one apartment. 

THE COURT: If it is at least a three-inch ad, 

you have to -- I can't see them as a practical matter 

just putting one apartment in a three-inch ad. I think 

some discretion -- they will utilize the space. Their 

business economics would demand that they not throw 

their money away on white paper. 

I am leaving it up to their good faith and your 

surveillance. If a problem develops we can resolve 

it at that time. Let's see how it works. 

MR. COHN: Fortunately, we are now on page 12, 

paragraph two. 

The second full paragraph, beginning "The re-

cruiting and hiring nonwhite employees." That the 
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defendants shall not require nonwhite persons to possess 

qualifications more exacting than those that were in 

effect with respect to whites before the institution 

of this action. 

We are asking that that be eliminating, pointing 

to the fact that on page 10 we agree affirmatively to, 

even though this complaint in this action raises ab-

solutely no questions about employment, this is not 

an employment case or an antitrust case, it is a 

civil rights rental case, but nevertheless we are will-

ing, because we do it, to say to agree to an affirm-

ative employment program, saying that we shall hire, 

without regard to race, color, religion, sex or nationa 

origin, and will endeavor to place blacks and other 

nonwhite persons in supervisory and professional posi-

tions as vacancies for which they are qualified arise. 

We don't feel that in this apartment decree, 

rental decree, we should be required to put in that 

second paragraph on page 12, subdivision two. We don't 

see that it adds anything that is not already in what 

we have agreed to in page 10. 

MR. BRACHTL: It adds quite a bit, your Honor. 

It adds a requirement that employment requirem.ents and 

qualifications not be raised at least with respect to 

nonwhite applicants for jobs; that is, not be raised 
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over the standards and qualifications which were in 

force at the time that this action commenced. 

MR. COHN: We will give it to them. I don't 

understand it, but we will give it to them. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Page 13. 

MR. COHN: They have agreed to our request. 

THE COURT: What is it on 13? 

68 

MR. COHN: That is the thing that Mr. Trump was 

talking about before, the children of the different 

sexes over ten years old. 

MR. F. TRUMP: We have two-bedroom apartments, 

Judge. They are small and built under FHA specifica-

tions, 100 square feet, the second bedroom. We rent 

those to couples. In Jamaica Estates we have probably 

1700 families in a dozen different buildings. Three 

of them have more than 15 per cent blacks, but these 

people, their children are married, they sold their 

home, they move in with us, we say carefree living and 

they take the second bedroom; there are no children in 

there, for instance, and -- the Wilshire, 220 families, 

there are six children in the whole building out of 

220 families. 

We have 40 per cent two-bedroom, and they want 

to tell us that we must put up to two children in each 

bedroom. That building would have 160 children where 
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our pattern is --

MR. COHN: How would you like to do it, can 

you tell the Judge? 

MR. F. TRUMP: We want to follow the same patter 

that we have. Whatever the vacating family from a two-

bedroom has as far as children are concerned, we will 

put the same exact family in there. We don't want to 

have two children of opposite sex sleep in a little 

bedroom where the most you could get in is a double bed 

You have a girl and boy ten years old. The next year 

they are eleven and then twelve and they are in a 

single bedroom. It's bad housing and we have not done 

it. We would be changing our pattern that we have 

established over twenty years. 

If that could be changed to say a two-bedroom 

should have the same occupancy as the vacating tenant -

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Then you would be forced to 

rent to two children --

MR. F. TRUMP: Even Patio Gardens, which is 

all colored, we don't have children. 

THE COURT: I'm not sure of those changes. 

MR. F. TRUMP: They say two children of the 

opposite sex to occupy -- up to two children of the 

opposite sex to up to ten years of age --

THE COURT: It is really the footnote. 
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MS. GOLDSTEIN: We have already stated that five 

is okay with us. 

MR. F. TRUMP: We don't want the two children 

where there is an adult building with a beautiful lobby 

and carpeting in the halls. 

MR. COHN: How do you want to word it exactly? 

MR. F. TRUMP: A two-bedroom should have the 

same occupancy as the vacating tenant. 

MR. COHN: The defendant shall not be required 

to use as a leasing standard for a vacated two-bedroom 

apartment anything --

MR. F. TRUr-1P: Any higher census than presently 

vacating the apartment. 

MR. ESKANAZI: I have a ,uqgestion that would 

make it easier. Under 2, Occupancy, not more than 

two persons in the one-bedroom apartment; not more than 

three persons in a two-bedroom apartment. 

MR. F. TRUMP: That is no good. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That's fine with us. 

MR. COHN: Maybe they will want to do it in a 

certain case. 

MR. F. TRUMP: If we have six children and 200 

families or 150 families, we certainly don't want one 

if 150 families have 60 two-bedroom, we don't want 60 

children in there; they would ruin the lobby and ruin 
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the building. 

They'd bring ten children from around the corner 

and they -- it is unfair to have children in the build-

ings because they are adult buildings. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: You can turn these into adult 

buildings. 

THE COURT: I don't think there is a dispute, but 

it is the phrasing that troubles me a little bit. 

There are some laws about there used to be 

laws about restricting people with children from rentin , 

were there not? 

MR. F. TRUMP: It is unfair to the children to 

put them in an apartment. It is unfair where you say 

you can't do this --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: A lot of people have no other 

alternative, though. 

THE COURT: I don't think the Court can sign a 

decree which violates local law with respect to --

MR. F. TRUMP: Would you say two children not 

over four years, Judge, babies, you don't put a ten-

year-old boy with a ten-year-old sister. 

THE COURT: I agree with everything you say. 

MR. ESKANAZI: Why say two when we said they 

will even give you one only. Let's restrict it to one. 

MR. F. TRUMP: I would like to say as the 
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vacating tenant had. 

MR. COHN: This should not be a restriction 

against you, this should be the minimum you have to live 

up to. 

If you want to make an exception they will be 

pleased. 

THE COURT: There is nothing wrong, is there, wit 

not more than two persons in a one-bedroom apartment? 

MR. F. TRUMP: Then we would have to rent to two 

children if they did come around. 

THE COURT: Wait a minute. You are not focusing 

on something. You under Occupancy, not more than two 

persons in a one-bedroom apartment. 

MR. F. TRUMP: Fine. 

THE COURT: Are these beyond two-bedroom apart-

ments or is that your maximum? 

MR. F. TRUMP: We go to two-bedroom arrangements: 

that is the maximum. 

THE COURT: What you want to say is in two-

bedroom apartments 

MR. F. TRUMP: Same occupancy as the vacating 

tenant had. 

THE COURT: Same occupancy as the two-bedroom --

MR. D. TRUMP: It says not more than. You can't 

rent to more than -- to solve this, make it on the bottom 
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instead of ten-year-old, make it five-year-old and end 

up doing it that way. 

MR. COHN: Make it four years old. 

THE COURT: You don't seem to understand, as 

your son is pointing out, this is really telling you 

you can't rent to more than four persons in a two-

bedroom apartment. You can't stuff five, six, seven, 

and you don't have any desire to. 

MR. COHN: You shall not be required 

MR. F. TRUMP: Rent to more than two children 

in a two-bedroom. We want to maintain the pattern 

that has been set in the building. 

MR. D. TRUMP: You can do that. You can rent 

to two adults. 

THE COURT: It says you shall not be required 

to rent a two-bedroom apartment to more than four 

persons, including not more than two adults and includ-

ing no more than two children. 

MR. F. TRUMP: Now we have two persons in a 

two-bedroom -- in all our two bedrooms you have two 

persons. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: As long as the decision to ac-

cept someone without children is made on that basis 

rather than grounds impermissible and which violate 

the injunction. You have certain leeway in your 
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rental decisions. 

THE COURT: The problem is the ten years down 

in the footnote, isn't it? 

MR. D. TRUMP: If you made that five I think the 

whole problem would be solved. 

MR. ESKANAZI: Can we say in a two-bedroom 

apartment, we refer to the double asterisk below, and 

that says procedures are based on defendants' past 

practices described in discovery? 

Mr. Trump's past practice has been to rent these 

apartments to people similar to the ones he has had 

before. 

MR. COHN: How do you word that? Could we put 

a comma after the word "discovery" in footnote two, 

including the procedures are substantially based on 

defendants' past practices, as described during dis-

covery, including a policy of favoring vacating census? 

MR. F. TRUMP: If a couple moves out of a two-

bedroom you put another couple in. If a couple with 

two childre move out you put a couple with two children 

in, but not that we are bound to every two-bedroom 

MR. COHN: Including a policy 

THE COURT: Why don't we say, not more than two 

persons in a two-bedroom apartment -- defendant, whateve 

it is, defendants shall follow their customary procedure • 
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MR. F. TRUMP: As far as census is concerned. 

MR. ESKANAZI: What he means is the numbers, 

occupancy. 
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THE COURT: Is that something that is a term of 

art in your business, census? 

Honor. 

MR. F. TRUMP: Yes. Census per apartment. 

MR. BRACHTL: It is somewhat your 

THE COURT: It is not necessary. 

MR. ESKANAZI: It is not necessary. 

THE COURT: For a two-bedroom apartment 

MR. F. TRUMP: To follow past practices. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: These procedures are substan-

tially based on defendants' past practices described 

during discovery. 

MR. F. TRUMP: You don't need the opposite 

section. 

MR. ESKANAZI: We can throw out the first aster-

isk completely. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: As long as you agree to five, 

we prefer to leave that. 

THE COURT: It is just fixing it up here. The 

first sentence stays. The next would be for a two-

bedroom apartment defendant shall follow its existing 

practice, and then maybe that could be the one foot-
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note, these procedures are substantially based on such 

procedures -- the limitation on children will be five 

years, is that it? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Children of different sexes. 

THE COURT: And where children 

GOLDSTEIN: Where it says, and two children 

of the same sex, asterisk --

THE COURT: It could all be consolidated into 

one note. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Yes. 

THE COURT: Up in the text for a two-bedroom 

apartment defendant will follow its past practices of 

occupancy. 

And then an asterisk, and then you can say 

these past practices were described during the dis-

covery. That's what you want to refer to, is that it? 

Except that children -- that Where two children 

are involved of opposite sex, they shall be under five 

years of age. Is that the point? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: There is one slight problem 

MR. F. TRUMP: Why would you say it at all, 

Judge? It is superfluous. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: The one problem which I hesi-

tate to bring up is that with respect to occupancy, I 

don't think the past practices as described during 
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1 

discovery were at all uniform. 
2 

The second asterisk about past practices as 
3 

described during discovery talks about application pro-
4 

cedure. That was fairly uniform. 
5 

THE COURT: The Government's desire is not to 
6 

stuff more people in a two-bedroom --
7 MS. GOLDSTEIN: As long as it is uniform and 

8 objective we don't really care. 

9 THE COURT: You want to say for a two-bedroom 

10 apartment defendant shall adhere in a uniform manner to 

11 its past practices? 

12 MR. F. TRUMP: It shall not exceed the vacant 

13 occupancy --

14 MR. ESKANAZI: If your past practice was to rent 

15 -
to people, you continue to rent to people. 

16 THE COURT: I said in a uniform manner. So this 

17 is to be revised. Adhere to past practice. 

18 MR. COHN: On page 17-D. 

19 MS. GOLDSTEIN: No problem with that. 

20 MR. COHN: We have no problem on our next point, 

21 17-D, and no waiting list. 

22 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Added tothe asterisk. 

23 MR. COHN: At the bottom of the page, Judge 

24 Neaher, we say Trump Village shall be excepted from 

25 this provision prohibiting the use of a waiting list. 
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THE COURT: Trump Village shall what? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Trump Village shall be excepted 

from this provision prohibiting the use of a waiting 

list. 

MR. D. TRUMP: Can I get this straight, your 

Honor? It seems a little bit difficult for me to under-

stand. You have a waiting list. What we are saying 

now is that we have no waiting list, so somebody comes 

in looking for a three-bedroom apartment, a qualified 

tenant comes in for three months, four months looking 

for a three-bedroom apartment, a superintendent meets 

the person, knows the person, likes the person, wants 

to rent the person an apartment. Finally a three-

bedroom apartment becomes available. Somebody walks 

in just by chance and theoretically then that person 

would have the right --

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We understand that Trump Village 

has a waiting list. 

MR. D. TRUMP: I am talking about our other 

buildings. 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: That is the procedure described 

throughout discovery, that it is a first-come - first-

served-no waiting list being maintained, and no call-

backs are done, and therefore to maintain a uniform 

procedure 
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MR. COHN: You don't want to restrict yourself -

THE COURT: You don't want to raise problems 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We are following what we under-

stood to be your practices. 

THE COURT: Trump Village shall be excepted 

from this provision -- is that correct? 

MR. F. TRUMP: That was a nice half day's work, 

Judge. 

MR. COHN: Something we fell apart on here is 

press release. We had first suggested --

THE COURT: Have we solved this? Is it to be 

signed? Do you have an original to be signed? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: We have an original that needs 

some minor changes. 

THE COURT: I want them to sign the original 

right now. 

MR. COHN: Can we sign our original right now, 

Judge? 

THE COURT: Mine is not fully marked. I have 

notes indicating what is to be done. You sign the 

original and I will not sign. I will only sign when 

I am satisfied that the new inserts conform to what 

has been said here, then it will become final. 

I want the clients to sign the back page on 
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the understanding that the signature carries with all 

the changes we've discussed. 

I will sign that decree only when I am satisfied 

that those changes conform. 

MR. COHN: As to a press release, we wanted no 

press release. They objected to that. Then we decided 

in view of the history of this, we suggested a joint 

press release. They wouldn't go for that. So there 

is that provision 

THE COURT: What was done with Lefrak? 

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Essentially, your Honor, we 

don't do anything about press releases. We have a 

public information office that takes simply the decree 

and writes out an informational release. We have 

given 

MR. COHN: They will say what they want and we 

will say what we want. 

THE COURT: I am sure 

(Time noted 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE INJ:" Q 
lJ, S D! CL£f?K•s 0 .. 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK . . STf?fcr cou::ICEJ '\... * " t.a. 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. , 

Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) _______________________ ) 

i1"1ME: A.M, 1978 .lf 
CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C ---· 
MOTION FOR SUPPLEMENTAL RELIEF 

The United States of America, plaintiff herein, respect-

fully moves this Court for an Order granting supplemental relief 

against the defendant Trump Management, Inc. (hereinafter some-

times referred to as Trump). In support of its motion, the 

United States alleges: 

1. On October 15, 1973, the United States filed its com-

plaint in this action, alleging violations of the Fair Housing 

Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 

et and prayed that the Court enter an Order enjoining the 

defendant from future violations of Title VIII, and directing 

it to take such affirmative steps as might be necessary to cor-

rect the effects of its past discriminatory practices. 

2. On June 10, 1975, this Court entered an Order, by 

consent of the parties, permanently enjoining Trump and those 

in privity with it from engaging in any discriminatory practices 

prohibited by the Fair Housing Act. The defendant was also 

ordered to implement an affirmative program to promote equal 

housing opportunity. The principal officers of Trump Manage-

ment, Inc. were ordered to acquaint themselves personally and in 

detail with Trump's obligations under the Order and the various 

fair housing laws, and to assure themselves that their subordi-

nates similarly understood their responsibilities. 



3. Trump and its officers and agents have failed to 

comply fully with this Court's Order of June 10, 1975. Speci-

fically, they have 

(a) Made apartments unavailable to black persons 

on account of race; 

(b) Discriminated against black persons in the 

terms and conditions of rental of a dwelling on 

account of race; 

(c) Made statements with respect to the rental 

of dwellings that indicate a preference, limita-

tion, and discrimination based on race; and 

(d) Represented to black persons because of 

race that dwellings were not available for in-

spection and rental when such dwellings were in 

fact so available; 

in violation of paragraphs 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Part II of this 

Court's Order. 

4. In conformity with Part IX of this Court's Order, 

plaintiff has notified Trump of complaints which have come to 

its attention and has given Trump a reasonable opportunity to 

correct the violations. While Trump has, in some instances, 

accommodated the needs of individual complainants, it has not 

taken adequate action to prevent future violations, and racially 

discriminatory conduct by Trump agents has occurred with such 

frequency that it has created a substantial impediment to the 

full enjoyment of equal opportunity. 

5. Further relief, including additional affirmative 

action and a substantial extension of the decree, is necessary 

in order to ensure nondiscrimination in the future and to cor-

rect the effects of past noncompliance. 

- 2 -
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WHEREFORE, the United States prays that, upon a hearing, 

this Court order 

1. that the injunction in this case be extended for 

such period of time as may be needed to ensure the full enjoy-

ment of equal housing opportunity; 

2. that additional affirmative relief be granted to 

ensure realistic opportunity to nonwhite citizens to rent dwell-

ings at predominantly white buildings, including provisions 

such as those contained in Part IV of this Court's prior Order, 

as well as additional steps designed to provide a free and in-

formed residential choice for all persons without regard to 

race, color, religion, or national origin; 

3. that individual victims of discrimination be compen-

sated for any injury caused by unlawful conduct on the part of 

Trump or its agents; and 

4. that Trump be required to continue to report to the 

Court and to the United States. 

Plaintiff further prays for such other and further re-

lief as this Court may deem just and proper, including the costs 

and disbursements of this proceeding, including reasonable 

counsel fees. 

David G. Trager 
United States Attorney 

Assistant U. S. Attorney 

DrewS. Days, III 
Assistant Attorney General 

Frank E. Schwelb, Chief 
Housing and Credit Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

Harvey L. Han Attorney 
Brian F. Heffe 'an, Attorney 
Housing and Cre it Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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Address Reply to the 
Division Indicated 

UNITEH STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

WASIIJN(;TON, D.C. 211530 

and Refer to Initials and Numbec 

DSD:HLH:mop 
DJ 175-52-28 

Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
United States Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

f:V. 

Re: United States v. Trump Management, Inc. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Judge Neaher: 

On Monday, March 6, 1978, the United States filed 
a Motion for Supplemental Relief in the captioned case. 
This letter is intended to bring you up to date on the 
developments in this matter and also to attempt to arrange 
for a pre-hearing conference with you and opposing counsel. 

As you know, the United States initially filed this 
lawsuit on October 15, 1973, alleging that the defendant 
was conducting its apartment rental business in violation 
of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 u.s.c. 3601 et 
After considerable delay, a Consent Order was entered on 
June 10, 1975, The defendant was permanently enjoined 
from discriminating in the rental of housing and required, 
among other things, to implement an affirmative program 
of compliance with the Fair Housing Act and report period-
ically, to the Court and this Department, concerning its 
rental operations. The affirmative provisions of this 
Order expired on September 10, 1977. 

A copy is attached for your convenience. 
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In our pending motion, filed March 8, we allege 
inadequate compliance with the order and seek extension 
and expansion of certain of its provisions. 

We hope that the motion can be resolved by the 
parties without the necessity for a hearing. Should such 
a hearing be necessary, however, it will probably assuae 
the proportions of a full-blown trial and occupy two days 
or more. Plaintiff will want to conduct a fair amount 
of discovery before the hearing, and we anticipate that 
defendant may wish to do the same. 

After consulting with Mr. Homer LaRue, Assistant 
United States Attorney, we have concluded that an 
expeditious procedure would be for counsel to meet with 
the Court to discuss the motion and the best manner of 
proceeding. We understand that a tentative date of 
April 10, 1978 has been set for this meeting. Although 
this time is agreeable to us, it appears that Mr. Cohn, 
defense counel, will be out of the country on that date 
April 17, 1978, however, is agreeable to both parties. 

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 
If the Court believes that the matter should be handled 
otherwise, we will of course proceed as the Court may 
direct. 

By: 

Sincerely, 

Drew s. Days, III 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

y L. Handley 
torney 

Housing and Credit Section 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., ) 

) 
Defendants. ) ________________________) 

To Counsel for the 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

PLAINTIFF'S 
TO THE DEFENDANTS 

The following interrogatories are addressed to you 

pursuant to Rule 33 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 

and you are required to answer each interrogatory separately 

and fully, in writing, under oath, and to serve copies of 

your Answers on counsel for plaintiff within the time to be 

prescribed by the Court. The United States is applying to the 

Court for an Order that your time to respond be shortened to 

five days from the date of service. 

1. Please state· the name and address of each person 

known or believed by counsel for defendants, by the defendants 

or any of their officers, agents, or employees to have any 

information with respect to any alleged misconduct engaged in 

by Donna Goldstein, Esquire, or by any other representative of 

the United States in connection with the above-styled caseo 

2. With respect to each person identified in response 

to the preceding interrogatory, please provide the following 

information: 



(a) The nature of the alleged misconduct 

by a representative of the United States alleged 

by such person; 

(b) The time and date upon which such mis-

conduct took place; 

(c) The names and addresses of all persons 

who witnessed or who may have information about 

the incident; 

(d) The means and date by which such informa-

tion was brought to the attention of the defen-

dants or their counsel; and 

(e) A full description of the alleged 

wrongful conduct by the representative of 

the United States. 

JAMES PORTER 
Assistant u.s. Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 

.. 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, Chief 
P. GOLDBERG, Attorney 

Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 



IN THE llliiTED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF A}ffiRICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. , ) 

) 
Defendants. ) _______________________ ) 

CIVIL ACTION 

RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES 
TO DEFENDANTS' MOTION OF 
JULY 26, 1974 

The United States of America, plaintiff, responding 

on its own behalf and on behalf of its attorney, Donna F. 

Goldstein, to defendants' ''Notice of Motion" seeking an ad-

judication of contempt against said attorney and a "cease and 

desist" order against the United States, alleges as follows: 

1. The United States denies each and every allegation 

of improper conduct by Donna F. Goldstein or by any other 

representative of the United States in connection with the 

interviews of Carol R. Falcone, Thomas Miranda, Paul Ziselman, 

Paula Ziselrnan, or any other prospective witness or other 

person in this case. 

2. The United States alleges that said allegations of 

improper conduct, including allegations of threats and other 

devices to influence the testimony of prospective witnesses, 

are false and scurrilous, and consequently constitute an 

abuse of the processes of this Court. 

WHEREFORE the United States prays as follows: 

1. That expedited discovery be had with respect to 
.. 

the allegations of misconduct by the United States and its 

attorney; 



.. 

' ' 

2. That depositions taken during said discovery be 

supervised by a master; 

3. That a full evidentiary hearing be held before 

this Honorable Court on August 16, 1974, as prayed for in 

defendants' Notice of Motion; 

4. · That follm\ling the evidentiary hearing, the alle-

gations of misconduct by the United States and its attorney 

be stricken as scandalous, in accordance with Rule 12(f) of 

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and the motions for con-

tempt and a cease and desist order be in all respects denied; 

and 

5. That following evidentiary hearing,this Honorable 

Court determine whether there has been an abuse of its pro-

cesses and, if so, enter any appropriate disciplinary or other 

Order. 

The United States further prays for such additional 

relief as the interests of justice may require, together with 

the costs and disbursements of this proceeding. 

JAMES PORTER 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 

Respectfully submitted, 

:JAMES P. T RNER 
;eputy Assistant Attorney General 

FRANK E. SCffivELB, Chief 
P. GOLDBERG, Attorney 

Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) _________________________ ) 

AFFIDAVIT 

WASHINGTON ) 
) ss 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I am the Chief of the Housing Section of the Civil 

Rights Division, Department of Justice and in supervisory charge 

of the above-styled litigation on behalf of the United States. 

I make this affidavit in support of our request that an Order be 

entered herein directing expedited discovery and designating 

an officer of this Court to supervise depositions with respect 

to defendants' motion to hold one of plaintiff's attorneys in 

contempt and for a cease and desist order against the United 

States. 

2. On or about July 26, 1974, defendants filed with 

· this Court a Notice of Motion praying that Donna Goldstein, 

one of plaintiff's counsel in this action, be in 

contempt of this Court for alleged coercion and threats against 



prospective witnesses, and that the United States be ordered 

to cease and desist from such alleged unlawful conduct. The 

Notice of Motion is purportedly supported by the affidavits 

of Carol R. Falcone and Thomas Miranda, former employees of 

defendants, and by the signed but unsworn statements of two 

former empioyees, Paul and Paula Ziselman. Also attached to 

the motion is an affidavit by Roy Cohn, of defendants' 

counsel, which purports to describe a number of events at 

which he was not present and which did not occur in the manner 

described by him. The papers filed on behalf of defendant 

call into question the professional conduct and reputation of 

Donna F. Goldstein, an attorney on the staff of this Section, 

with whom I am well acquainted and whom I know to have an 

excellent reputation, both with respect to her legal ethics 

and in relation to her professional competence. I am satisfied 

that the allegations of improper conduct against her are with-

out foundation and therefore constitute an abuse of the processes 

of this Court. 

3. In view of the nature of the allegations against 

Ms. Goldstein, the United States requests that the matter be 

expeditiously handled in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 3614 so that 

the factual issues may be resolved and Ms. Goldstein's reputation 

cleared.' We further ask that the evidentiary hearing be held 

.on August 16, 1974 as scheduled. 

4. In order to assure that no "surprise" witnesses be 

called by defendant to further atta.ck Ms. Goldstein's reputation, 

- 2 -



plaintiff has propounded brief interrogatories to defendants 

inquiring into the identity and prospective testimony of all 

witnesses to alleged misconduct by agents of the United States. 

Adequate preparation for the hearing will not be possible 

unless this information is disclosed to the United States in 

time to take the depositions of possible witnesses in advance 

of the hearing. Paragraph 3 of the affidavit of Roy Cohn 

states that defendants have attached the statements of only 

"some" former employees as to whom Hs. Goldstein is alleged to 

have acted improperly, which suggests that there are supposed 

to be others. Accordingly, we ask that the defendants be 

required to answer these interrogatories within five days, 

unless defendants voluntarily disclose this information to 

plaintiff earlier. 

5. The essential thrust of defendants' allegations on 

this motion is that Ms. Goldstein used threats and other un-

fair tactics in an attempt to influence the testimony of pro-

spective witnesses. The position of the United States is that 

the allegations of misconduct on Ms. Goldstein's part are false 

and scurrilous. In order to resolve this issue, it is essential 

that the testimony of all witnesses, both on deposition and 

at the hearing, be free of threats, undue influence, or other 

interference from the parties or from their counsel, and that 

. each party's right to examine and cross-examine witnesses with-

out interruption or disruption be fully protected. 
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6. The most effective means to assure the orderly 

conduct of these depositions is to have them supervised by 

an officer of the Court. At least one of the witnesses to 

be deposed Hr. Miranda has expressed fear of reprisal 

from defendants on two separate occasions, to attorneys for 

plaintiff -- once to Elyse Goldweber and once to Donna Gold-

stein, as reflected in their respective affidavits. At a 

hearing on May 3, 1974, Honorable Vincent Catoggio, United 

States Magistrate, reprimanded counsel for defendants for 

failing to carry out their responsibilities relating to dis-

covery and to expedite the action. Accordingly, the most 

effective means to assure the orderly conduct of these deposi-

tions is to have them supervised by an officerof this Court. 

WHEREFORE I respectfully request on behalf of the United 

States that an Order to Show Cause be entered herein as prayed 

for. No previous application has been made for the relief 

here requested. 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

· Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this 0( day of August, 1974. 

PUBLIC 
. ,//17/ 

My commission .3/,-



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., ) 

) 
Defendants. ) ________________________) 

AFFIDAVIT 
WASHINGTON ) 

) ss 
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN, being duly sworn, deposes and 

says: 

1. I am an attorney in the Civil Rights Division of 

the Department of Justice and one of the counsel for the 

United States in the above-styled action. I am a member of 

the bar of the State of Pennsylvania. I make this affidavit 

in response to defendants' motion and supporting papers which 

accuse me of threatening prospective witnesses and of other 

improper conduct in the discharge of my responsibilities in 

this case. 

2. I have read the affidavits of Carol R. Falcone and 

Thomas Miranda and the signed statements of Paul and Paula 

Ziselman. While I interviewed each of these individuals to 

determine if they had information pertinent to this case, I 

did not do any of the unlawful or improper things alleged 



in their statements, and, on the contrary, interviewed 

each in a fair and objective way to ascertain the facts. 

While a complete response to the statements of these indi-

viduals must await the hearing on the pending motion I 

think it important to immediately respond at least briefly, 

to the principal allegations, and I do so as follows: 

(a) I never harassed Ms. Falcone, nor did I 

threaten her with perjury, jail, or with anything else. 

I did not accuse her of any misconduct with regard to her 

business or money, or of dating Donald Trump, and have no 

information about these matters. In fact, I made no 

accusations at all. I did not tell Ms. Falcone that any 

phones were tapped, or that she was guilty, and in fact, I 

have no knowledge of any tapped phones and I am sure that the 

Civil Rights Division does not tap phones or cause them to 

be tapped. I did not act in a hostile manner towards her. 

In fact, the interview appeared to me friendly on both sides 

at all times. 

(b) I never harassed Mr. Miranda, and I never 

called upon him "to go against Trump Management" by lying. 

On the contrary, I asked him to tell the truth. I did not 

tell him that unless he cooperated he would be thrown in 

jail, nor did I discuss my "ambitions" or winning my case. 

I did not persecute him, nor did I make "unyielding" 

threats or any other kind. While Mr. Miranda was reluctant 

to relate the facts because he expressed fear that Mr. Fred 

Trump would destroy him, or words to that effect, 

he described to me some racially discriminatory housing .. 
- 2 -



practices in which defendants have engaged. Plaintiff's 

answers to interrogatories filed in the case of United 

States v. Fred C. Trump, et al., and sworn to by Elyse 

Goldweber, previous counsel for plaintiff in this suit, 

discloses that Hr. Miranda had also provided information 

about discriminatory practices before I was assigned to the 

case. My interview with Mr. Miranda seemed to me to be 

friendly on both sides. 

(c) I did not threaten or intimidate Mr. Ziselman, 

and the contents of his affidavit suggest that there must 

have been a misunderstanding. Prior to my interview with 

Mr. Ziselman, the Department of Justice had, in accordance 

with our normal practice, requested the FBI to interview a 

number of former Trump employees. Mr. Ziselman was one of 

them. When I was interviewing Mr. Ziselman, I mentioned that 

a request had been made for the FBI to contact him, but I 

told him that I would try and contact the FBI in time to have 

the agents cancel their interview with him, since it was now 

unnecessary. After I had completed my interview with Mr. 

Ziselman, I interviewed a prospective witness for plaintiff 

who provided details as to a rental transaction with Mr. 

Ziselman which differed from Mr. Ziselman's account. Accordingly, 

I telephoned Mr. Ziselman and asked him if he would permit me 

. to see him again for a short time since there were now a few more 

matters I wished to discuss with him. He refused my request and 

stated that he considered it to be harassment. I responded that 

.. 
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I was sorry he felt that way, since it was not intended 

to be harassment. 

(d) Mr. Manley's letter of June 13, 1974, and 

Mr. Cohn's affidavit completely distort the facts leading up 

to the records inspection in June 1974. Mr. Cohn was not present 

at the Trump office and has no direct information as to these 

events, a fact omitted from his affidavit. The facts with 

respect to this incident are described in detail in Appendix 

C to plaintiff's Report on Discovery, a copy of which is 

attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

3. In I wish to state that the attacks in 

defendants' papers on my conduct and integrity as an attorney 

are entirely without foundation. I hope that the matter can 

be disposed of at the earliest practicable date. 

Sworn to before me this 
2nd day of August, 1974. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Att:-orney, RotE ing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

. 
My commission expires: J. [/ / 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC. , 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) _________________________ ) 

AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
) ss 

OF " -.NEW YQRl< ) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

I, ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER, being duly sworn do depose and 

say that: 

1. I am presently employed as an examining attorney 

with the New York City Department of Investigation located at 

111 John Street, New York, New York. 

2. I was formerly employed as an attorney with the 

Civil Rights Division, Department of Justice, Washington, D. C. 

from September 19, 1972 until May 24, 1974. 

3o While employed by the Department of Justice, I par-
. .... ticipated in the preparat1on and the pre-trial stage of United 

States v. Fred TrumE, et al., Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 (EN). 

4. Prior to the institution of the above-mentioned 

lawsuit, I interviewed Hr. Thomas Hiranda who was formerly 
. ·r 



employed by Trump Management, Inc. as a superintendent at 

Kendall Hall Apartments, 41-10 Bm·me Street, Flushing, 

New York. The purpose of this interview to determine 

what, if anything, Mr. Miranda knew about discriminatory 

practices on the part of Trump Management, Inc. 

5. Mr. Miranda related to me that Mr. Hyman, Mrs. 

Williams& a woman called Sophie whose name he did not recall, 

all of Trump Management, Inc. had instructed him to attach 

a separate sheet of paper to all applications received from 

prospective black apartment seekers and that he was to write 

a big "C" on such attachment so as to indicate to Trump 

Management, Inc. that the application being considered was 

·from a "colored" person. Furthermo:re, Mr. Miranda stated to 

me that he did this every time a black person applied for an 

apartment. 

6. Mr. Miranda also stated to me during this interview 

that he was afraid that the Trumps would have him "knocked off", 

or words to that effect, because he told me about their allegedly 

discriminatory practices. He was reluctant to have his name 

disclosed. 

7. After this interview, which was in all respects 

friendly, I had no further personal contact with Mr. Miranda. 

When it became necessary to disclo'se his identity, I sent a 

letter in the form attached hereto to him and to the other 
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persons who had provided information about Trump Management, 

Inc. The letter was run off on an MTST machine, and while 

in accordance with Justice Department practice, only one 

sample copy was retained (the one addressed to Phyllis 

Kirschenbaum), Justice Department records disclose that an 

identical letter was sent to Mr. Miranda and fourteen others. 

ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this day of August, 1974. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My commission expires: 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 
. 

FRED C. TRUHP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRill'IP MANAGEMENT , INC • , 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) __________________________) 

CIVIL ACTION 'NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN} 

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE 

The United States having applied to this Court by affi-

davit for an Order to Show Cause, and it appearing that a hear-

ing is scheduled before this Court on August 16, 1974 to deter-

mine motions involving alleged misconduct by one of the 

attorneys in this action, which alleged misconduct is denied; 

and it further appearing that expedited discovery is necessary 

and appropriate, so that this motion may be expeditiously 

determined in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 3614; and it further 

appearing that the nature of the respective parties' allegations 

justifies judicial supervision of depositions relating to the 

pending motion; and the Court having considered the pertinent 

submissions, 

NOW, THEREFORE, upon the affidavit of FRANK E. SCHWELB 

and for .good and sufficient reason, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that defendants show cause, if any 

there be, in the chambers of this Court at 225 Cadman Plaza, 

Brooklyn, New York, on August , 1974, at M., or as 

soon thereafter as counsel may be heard, why 

.. 



(1) defendants should not be required to 

answer plaintiff's interrogatories with respect 

to the pending motion within five days of 

service thereof; and 

(2) the depositions with respect to this 

motion should not be conducted under the 

supervision of the Court. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that service upon counsel for 

defendants shall be done by no later 

than , and that this shall constitute 

good and sufficient service. 

IT IS SO ORDERED this day of August, 1974. 

United States District Judge 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF Nffii YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AHERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP HANAGEMENT, INC. , 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 (EN) 
) 
) 
) OF THE UNITED STATES IN 
) SUPPORT OF THE ENTRY OF AN ORDER 
) TO SHm-J CAUSE 
) 
) _________________________) 

On or about July 26, 1974, defendants filed a Notice of Motion 

seeking an adjudication of contempt against Donna F. Goldstein, a 

Department of Justice attorney assigned to this case, and a "cease 

and desist" order against the United States. In five affidavits 

including that of defense counsel Roy Cohn, defendants allege that 

Ms. Goldstein has, among other things, threatened and sought to 

influence the testimony of prospective witnesses in this case. The 

defendants have requested a hearing on this matter on August 16, 1974. 

The United States has filed a response supported by affidavits 

of Frank E. Schwelb, Chief of the Housing Section, Civil Rights 
' 
Division, Department of Justice, and of Ms. Goldstein denying each 

and every allegation of improper conduct. In preparation of the 

... 



hearing on August 16, 1974, the United States has noticed the 

depositions of several of the affiants who have made accusations 

against Ms. Goldstein, as well as of defendant Donald Trump. Brief 

interrogatories have also been served on counsel for the defendants 

to determine the pertinent details of any alleged incident of mis-

conduct by plaintiff's attorneys. In addition, the United States 

has applied for an Order to Show Cause why 

(1) defendants should not be required to 

answer plaintiff's interrogatories with respect 

to the pending motion within five days of service 

thereof; and 

(2) the depositions should not be super-

vised by an officer of the Court. 

A. Defendants Should Be Required to Respond to the Interrogatories 
Within Five Days of Service. 

Rule 33(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure vests the 

Court with discretion to shorten the time permitted for responding 

,to Interrogatories. In this case, defendants have made serious 

accusations against the United States and, in particular, against 

one of its counsel, Donna F. Goldstein. They seek to bring the 

matter on hearing on August 16, 1974. The United States is 

entitled to take the depositions of several persons who have infor-

mation about these charges and to otherwise prepare for the hearing, 

and cannot do so unless their identities are disclosed. 

- 2 -



.. 
'Defense counsel Roy Cohn in his affidavit indicated that only some 

of the persons who had complained of attorney Goldstein's behavior 

had signed statements for submission with defendants' pleading. In 

order to prepare for the hearing and assure that Ms. Goldstein's 

rights are fully protected, plaintiff is entitled to advance know-

ledge of the purported case against her. Plaintiff's interrogatories 

are brief and can be responsively answered in a short time, and 

there is no reason why an immediate response cannot be forthcoming. 

B. The Depositions Should Be Supervised by an Officer of 
this Court. 

The basic thrust of defendants' motion is that plaintiff's 

counsel have unduly influenced the testimony of prospective \vitnesses. 

Plaintiff contends, however, that the allegations are false and have 

the effect of preventing the expedited consideration of the case 

which the statute requires. 42 U.S.C. 3614. The affidavits of t\vO 

of plaintiff's counsel -- Elyse Goldweber and Donna F. Goldstein --

disclose that at least one of the prospective deponents Thomas 

Miranda -- has on two separate occasions expressed fear of reprisal 

from defendants if he should testify to the discriminatory practices 

of which he is aware. Magistrate Cattogio has found the defendants 

to have been in noncompliance with discovery procedures. 

- 3 -



With the issue herein being whether either side has used 

unlawful tactics vis-a-vis witnesses, it is imperative that their 

sworn testimony be given without interference or pressure from any 

source. Accordingly, the depositions should be conducted before 

an officer of this Court. 4 Moore's Federal Practice §28.02, p. 

1915; Fisher v. Harris, 61 F.R.D. 447 (S.D. N.Y. 1973); Shapiro v. 

Freeman, 38 F.R.D. 308 (S.D. N.Y. 1965); see also First Iowa Hvdro 

Elec. Coop. v. Iowa-Illinois Gas and Elec. Co., 245 F. 2d 613 (8th 

Cir. 1957), cert. denied 355 U.S. 871 (1957). 

JAMES PORTER 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, Chief 
NORMAN P. GOLDBERG, Attorney 
Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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APPENDIX A 

GNI'J.,lm STA'J.'E[; DISTRIC':' COURT 
EASTl...:.:RN DIS'l'l1IC'l' OP NEH YOl{K 

UNITED STATES or ll.HFRICA, I 
Plaintiff, OF' :c: +-..._ ---·------ I 

- against - C · · 1 ., t · ,, c ., - .-. ·l- 1 i-",C l.Cn hO. ... • ..1..:::-/.';. -

FRJ:D C. T;:ZU:!P, DO:J2\l,D 
anti. 'l'runp .1'-1.::.nage.'1lent, Inc., 

Defendants. 

-x 

Plaintiff has fon.rarded to defense counsel a proposed decrcf.:; 

'Hhich is hereto as Attnctlm(l:nt: A. Defense counsel ha::; 

I .;;.dyiscd plaint:.i£f!s counsei I that th2 decree is satis:f.D.ct.ory, subject 

to the nlodifications described herein. Plaintiff agrees to a 

continuance solely on the baeis of the representation that thi::: caE\ic'' 

in settled in principle along the lines statt"Jd ller.r;in. 

'l'he agreed settlement is on the proposed consent 

u("cree forwarded to counsel and attached hereto, subject to 

the follovring: 

{a) :C,rcd 'l'ru:np and Donald 'l'rurrrp to be dismissed as 

I 

I 
I 

d(;:fendnnts on tho grounds that a against Tru_,'ilp t-"lanager,1cnt 1 I 
Inc. binds them as officers, aiJents, etc. under Rule 65, P.i:L Civ.P., i 

I 
I 
i dnd that it t..rould t..1.erefore bo superfluous to retn.in them as nr:.:.r::<;;'d 

defendants. La.nguage of certain provisions amended accordin,;rly. 

Provisions in decree requiring assumption of respon.sibil1ty by Fred 

. .. .. J .. ( 
1: 
i' held by tlv:.•;: without mr:mtion of t.heir nar..1es. I - -
II 

' ', 



(b) The provision on pp. 4-5 involving the renting of apart 

rnents to persons on public assistance shall be omitted as stated. 

Under the income standards of Part IV, of the proposed decree, a 

footnote Shall be included ind;i_cating that all inCOMe SOUrces Of any 

applicant, including public assistance payments, alimony, child 

support and vlife • s inco1r..e shall bD considered in deterr.1ining the 

financial eligibility of any applicnnt. 

(c) The provision on pp. 6-7 involving wife'g income to be 

swmnarized, with prefatory language eliminated, and included in 

general injU.i'1Ctive provisi:nns in Pc.rt I of the decree as set forth in 

1\.ttacluncnt B hereto. 

(d) Procedural history page 2 to be eliminated. 

(e) Equal in advertising (P. 11) to l 
be eliminated as to ilds cf five lines or less. Defendants' advertisin 1 

policies presently in use shall no·t be changed because of this pro-

vision. Defendants shall not substitute or change ·the 

number of ads of six lines or or the of display 

advertisements presently used. 

(f) On p. 12, language as to advertisements in minority 

media clarified to include one monthly ad in black prezg and <me 

ad in Spanish-speaking press. 

(g) On p. 12, cross-Bcction of Trump to be 

advertised in minority media clarified to include only buildings 

with vacancies. 

(h) On p .. 13, 3-day period for the Open Housing Center to ref r 
! 

cl2xif:i.cd to co:':::·•,::.nco \ not:iJ':Lc::2.t.io::1 to 't.il•,' i ·: 

completed. Open to b& dafincd to mean rental to anyone not 

referred by fair hous5.ng group. 



• 

(i) Objective standards,_ including rental qualifications, 

as to all buildings and uniforn procedures used to determine them, 

all to be based on and no more stringent than past practices, and 

to be prepared by defendants ahd negotiated \vith plaintiff. 

(j) On p. 17, inclusion of provision prohibiting preference 

for persons referred by present tennnts. 

(k) Provision on p. 17 prohibiting the use of a waiting 

list is based on defendants' current practices. At defendants' 

option, a uniform waiting list procedure at all buildings may be 

included in the decree. 

(1) Provision shall be included allmving defendants to be 

notified of complaints from alleged victims of discrimination. 

(m) Under the affirrnatiYe employment provisions, 

to employees shall be clarified to include only superintendents, 

leasing agents, rental agents, and those in the central office who 

review·.· applications for tenancy, credit references or othenvisc 

participate in the rental process. 

(n) Provision explaining that standards for rental are 

subject to appropriate mo(:L{cation upon ruling of Boyd v. now 

pending before the Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit. 

I 
l 
I 

(o) Provision dissolying .u.ffirm;.'!.tive provisions of the decree! 
I 
I 

I 
three years from the date of the entry of the order upon motion by 

the defendants with opportunity for objections by the plaintiff. I 
I If no final consent hafJ be_en executed on the proposed 

decree to be submitted to the Court by February 14, 1975, the ... . I par ... l.as 



' I 

shall so inform the Court. T!le parties shall then seek the assistanc 

of the Court to resolve any dispute arising solely out of disagree-

ment as to the meaning of any proposed change referred to in the 

Hemorandum of Understanding. Jl.ll other provisions in the attached 

Consent Decree and those not in dispute as to meaning in the 

!·1e.":toranc:lum of Understanding shall be contained in their entixety in 

the final Consent Decree. 

If for any reason a Conmmt Decree is not agreed upon and 

entered by F'ebruary 24, 1975 the parties shall seek a new trial 

parties have exchanged witness lists in accordance with t.ho Order 

of this Court. Tha plaintiff's list of witnesses is append<:'!d hereto 

as Attachment C. The defendants' tnesses shall be as follov,rs: 

Fred Trump 

Donald Tr\L"ll.P 

Althea Gibson 

A representative of the H.P...i'\CP 

Agreed upon this 
20t!t. day of January 1975. 

For the Defendants 

l/1 '-r/1);! I lr. 12 
/. V 1. vt.j I v 

Donald-· 'i1rump Donna Goldstein 

P. Goldberg 

J! 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRU}1P 
and Trump Management, Inc. 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 
) 
) CONSENT ORDER 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) __________________________ ) 

This action was instituted by the United States 

of America on October 15, 1973, pursuant to the Fair 

Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 Plaintiff 

alleges that the defendants have engaged in a pattern 

and practice of discrimination in violation of the Fair 

Housing Act of 1968 by refusing to rent dwellings and 

by otherwise making dwellings unavailable to black per-

sons on account of race and color, in violation of 42 

U.S.C. 3604(a); by discriminating in the terms and con-

ditions of rental of dwellings because of race and color 

in violationaf 42 U.S.C. 3604(b); by making statements 

with respect to the rental of dwellings which indicate a 

preference, limitation and discrimination based on race 

and color in violation of 42 U.S.C. 3604(c); and by 

representing to persons on account of race and color that 

dwellings were not available for inspection and rental 

when such dwellings were in fact so available, in viola-

tion of 42 U.S.C. 3604(c). 



N:J.•)t :. . ' ;. : · .... : . . . 

In December 1973, defendants filed a counter-

claim against plaintiff for $100,000,000 in the nature 

of defamation or malicious prosecution. The counterclaim 

was dismissed for lack of jurisdiction of the subject 

matter. The defendants also filed motions to dismiss 

the Complaint and for a more definite statement, which 

motions were denied. 

On July 26, defendants filed a motion to 

have one of plaintiff's counsel held in contempt of 

court for alleged misconduct and for a protective order 

the United States. On October 24, 1974, after 

the Court heard the evidence adduced in support thereof, 
•. _;; .. ": .· ...... · .. . •. -.. -.· .... •· . .·::_\:· ... ... :: :' ···.·;:··""! .. · ... :::[.-'··. . 

·the motion was denied in all respects and stricken from 

the record, the Court explicitly finding that there was 

no credible evidence of improper conduct ·on the part of 

the United States or any of its attorneys or agents. 

Strippedto its essentials, the claim of the 

United States is that the defendants have failed and 

neglected to exercise their affirmative and nondelegable 

duty under the Fair Housing Act to assure compliance by 

their subordinates, with the result that equal housing 

opportunity has been denied to substantial numbers of 

persons and that defendants' subordinates have failed to 

carry out their obligations under the Act. Defendants 

claim that the number of violations by their agents is 

insubstantial, and that any discrimination was not done 

at the direction of the individual defendants. Irrespec-

tive of the merits of the Complaint, however, the 

defendants Fred C. Trump and Donald Trump are now prepared 
. , 
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:·,:,.I , ...... 

...... __ , ............ -- ... ··-·· . "" 

affirmatively to assume and carry out the responsibility 

for assuring that their employees will comply tvith the 

Act and will p:: eqbal opportunity. Accordingly, 

the United Sta prepared to resolve this case by 

the entry of a :sent decree. 

I 

INJUNCTION 

It is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that 

the defendants, their officers, agents, employees, sue-

cessors, and all persons in active concert or participation 

with any of them, are hereby permanently enjoined from: 

. GENERAL INJUNCTIVE PROVISIONS 
·or··; 

1. Refus{ng to sell or rent, refusing to negotiate 

for the sale or rental of, or making unavailable 

or denying any dwelling to any person on account of race, 

color, religion, sex or national origin. 

2. Discriminating against any person in the terms, 

conditions, or privileges of sale or rental of a dwelling, 

or in the provision of services or facilities in connec-

tion therewith, because of race, color, religion, sex or 

national origin. 

3. Making, printing or publishing, or causing to 

be made, printed, or ·:lished, any notice, 'statement or 

advertisement with re .ct to the .sale or rental of a 

·dWetii.ng that indicates any preference, limitation, or 

discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex or 

national origin, or an intention to make such preference, 

limitation or discrimination. 

'' 
- 3 -
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4. Representing to any person because of race, 

color, religion, or national origin that any 

is not available for inspection, sale or rental when such 

dwelling is in fact so available. 

5o Influencing the residential choice of any 

person on account of race, color. religion, sex or 

national origin. 

6. Coercing, threatening, or interfering with, or 

attempting to coerce, threaten or interfere with any per-
" son in the exercise or enjoyment of the right to equal 

housing opportunity protected by the Fair Housing Act of 

1968, or in the exercise or· enjoyment of the right to 

assist others to secure equal housing opportunity. 

7. Engaging in any act or practice which has the 

purpose or the effect of denying or abridging the right 

to equal housing opportunity protected by the Fair Hous-

ing Act. 

II 

· RENT.I\L TO PERSOXS RECEIVE;G PUBLIC 

The great majority of persons on public assistance 

in the New York area are black or of Puerto Rican ancestry. 

Consequently, the blanket exclusion from tenancy of other-

wise qualified p2rsons rec2iving public assistance has a 

racially discriminatory effect, and is legally impermissible 

in the absence of a showing of business necessity. No 

business necessity exists for excluding from residence any 

person receiving public assistance who, through a 

4 -
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guarantor or otherwise, has the reasonable capacity to pay 

ihe rent and who meets the other objective nonracial 

standJrds set forth herein. 

Affidavits filed in this action by defendants and 

their and press reports of certain 

statements, disclose past reluctance on the part of 

defendants to rent to persons receiving public assistance, 

which reluctance has been communicated to the public 

through the media. The predictable effect of such communi-

cation has been to chill the exercise by persons receiving 

public assistance of the right to equal housing opportunity. 

It is now, however, the stated policy of the defendants to 
'( \ ···,- " 

rent to persons receiving public assistance if they are 

able to meet thecbjective requirements which are to be 

nondiscriminatorily applied to all applicants for 

Accordingly, it is ORDERED that defendants, their officers, 

agents, employees and successors, and all those in active 

concert or participation with them or with any of them, 

are permanently enjoined from applying different or more 

stringent standards of sale or rental to any person on 

account of his being or having been a recipient of public 

assistance, and from otherwise discriminating against any 

such re3pect to his oppottunities. 

The parties recognize that there is pending before 

the Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit defendant's 

appeal from the decision of Mr. Justice Clark, retired in 

Boyd v. The Lefrak Organizntion, No. 71-1433, P.H.E.O.H. 

Rptr. para. 13,650 (E.D. N.Y. April 15, 1974). That case 

- 5 -



involves issues regarding the obligation of 

private :o rent to persons receiving public 

ass is tanc e. party to the present actioh is 

a party to the 3- ·d litigation, the ultimate decision in 

Boyd is likely affect the controlling la'>v with respect 

to this issue. Accordingly, the parties agree, and it is 

O?.DERED that 2ith2r party may apply to this Court for 
• 

appropriate modification of this Order in the light of 

further developments in the Bovd litigation. __.__ 

WIFE'S INCOME 

In August, 1974, 42 U.S.C. 3604 was amended to 

prohibit discrimination in housing based on sex as well ... t . .. . '; . 

as that based on race, color, religion or national origin. 

to that amendment, sex discrimination was prohibited 

by New York law. A landlord's refusal to consider a 

wife's income equally with that of her husband in deter-

mining whether the family has the financial capacity to 

pay the rent constitutes unlawful discrimination based 

on sex, in violation of 42 U.S.C. 3604. 

During the course of depositions in this action, 

which preceded the August, 1974 amendment to the Fair Hous-

ing Act, the individual defendants indicated a lack of cer-

determining an applicant's capacity to pay the r2nt, and, 

.. __ ,- if it was counted at all, whether it was counted fully or 

partially. In order to eliminate any doubt with respect 

to this question, it is ORDERED that defendants, their 

officers, agents, employees.and successors, and all those 

·- 6 -
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in active concert or participation with them or with any 

of them, are permanently enjoined from failing or refusing 

to give full and equal consideration to th2 iuccme of a 

tvife in d2teroining the rente.l qualifications of a married 

couple or the capacity of that couple to pay the rent. 

ASSUMPTION OF RESPONSIBILITY BY PRINCIPALS 
AND TRAINING PROGRAM FOR AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES 

Trump Management ·Inc. controls many thousands of 

rental units in the New York area and elsewhere, and its 

activities therefore have a major impact on housing oppor-

tunities. The individual defendants therefore occupy a 

position of. leadership in the real estate community and 
' 

· --· '···f, can, by their example, influence the activities not only 

of their own agents and employees but also of many others. 

The Fair Housing Act prohibits conduct which is discrimina-

tory in its effect, regardless of motivation, and viola-

tions of the Act can result from thoughtlessness and lack 

of information, as well as from deliberate discrimination. 

The individual defendants recognize that they have both 

the responsibility to assure nondiscrimination by their 

agents and employees -and a significant opportunity to pro-

mote equal housing opportunity generally in the New York 

area and elsewhere. They are prepared to carry out that 

responsibility and to take advantage of opportunity. 

Accordingly, it is ORDERED as follows: 

A. Defendants Fred C. Trump and Donald Trump 

shall forthwith 

- 7 .-
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(1) thoroughly acquaint themselves personally 

on a detailed basis with all of obligntions 

oL the defendants under the Fair Housing Act of 

1968, as under state and ffiunicipal 

civil rights laws; under pertinent Regulations 

.. ·-·. and Guidelines of the Department of Housing and 

Urban Development and other appropriate 

and under this Order; 

(2) Take steps to assure that their principal 

assistants and officers similarly familiarize 

themselves with their obligations; and 

(3),,Personally undertake to assure that the 

training program set forth herein is success-

fully carried out. 

B. Within thirty (30) days of the entry of this 

Decree, the defendants shall conduct and complete an edu-

cational program for all employees with rental or employ-

ment responsibilities, who have contact with prospective 

tenants, provide information to the public about rental, 

or accept or process applications for rentals, or who 

are engaged in any manner in the employmentprocess, to 

inform them of the provisions of this Decree, and their 

ducies the Fair Act of 1968. Such program 

shall include: 

(1) Furnishing to each such agent and employee 

a letter summar5-.;ing the terms of this Decree 

and of the Fair Housing Act as it applies to 

the employee. 

- 8 -
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(2) Informing each such agent and employee, 

i::1 person or by pro-

visions of this Decree and of duties of the 

Company and its agents and employees under 

the. various applicable Fair Housing Acts. 

Each such agent and employee shall be advised 

that his to comply with the provisions 

of 'this Decree shall subject him to dismissal 

or other disciplinary action, and to sanctions 

for disobedience of this order. 

(c) Securing a signed statement from each 

"''-· .. , · .. ,· .• such agent that he has read the letter men-

tioned above and received the instructions 
. 

described in the preceding paragraph and for-

warding a copy of each such signed statement 

to plaintiff. 

Each new agent and employee shall be instructed in 

accordance with the procedures set out above and shall be 

required to sign a statement to the effect that he has 

been so instructed and will comply with such instructions . 
within ten (10) days follo\ving the initial date of employ-

ment. Copies of all signed statements will be furnished 

to plaintiff upon execution. 

III 
· .. 

AFFIRMATIVE PROGRAM 

It is further ORDERED that the defendants shall 

forthwith take the following steps to adopt and implement 

The defendants' obligations to implement each 
of this Order for affirmative action shall begin ten (10) 
days following the entry of this Order, unless otherwise 
s p c i f L.• d h .' r e in . 

- 9 -
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an affirmative program aimed at ensuring compliance with 

the F2ir' Housing Act of 1968, and at the 

effects any previous qctions by the defendants which 

had the or eff2ct of rights secured by 

the Fair Housing Act: 

A. Notification to the Community of Defendants' 
Nondiscriminatory Policy 

1. Notify the following groups in the New York . 
Mettopolitan Area, in writing, with copies to counsel for 

plaintiff that apartments owned or managed by the defen-

dants are available to all qualified persons without 

regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

·· ,<, ·'···· ' Included in such letter ·shall be a full synopsis of the 

rental standards and procedures outlined in Part IV, 

below, and a general statement of present and anticipated 

vacancies in Trump apartment in the New York 

Metropolitan Area. The parties shall agree on the text 

of an appropriate letter prior to its mailing. 

a. (Parties to agree on identities of groups.) 

b. " 
c. " 

Subsequently, defendants shall mail to each of the organi-

zations, named above a copy of its weekly Central Listing 

of vacancies described in P3rt IV of this decree. 

This mailing shall be done on the day the list is made. 

2. Post and maintain fair housing in a form 

approved by the Secretary of the Department of Housing 

- 10 -
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·kl 
and Urban De·: (F''J) in all offices of the defen-

dants where t -re is activity or public contact. 

forming the nom:hit-2 co:":1r:mnT·ty of defendants' nondiscrimi-

natory rental policy. The defendants shall 

(a) Include, in all advertising, in newspapers, 

telephone directories, radio, television, and 

other media, and on all billboards, signs, 

pamphlets, brochures, and other promotional 

literature the words "Equal Housing Opportuni-

·ties" and the fair housing logo. ·These words 

and the logo shall be prominently placed and 
Y"'<-·· . ':' '!::!:.I 

easily legible. In addition, all advertising 

placed by the Company or its agents shall con-

form to the practiceS recommended in the 

Department of Housing and Urban Development 

advertising guidelines, as published in 37 Fed 

Reg., pp. 6700-02, on April 1, 1972. A copy 

of these guidelines is attached as Appendix 

"B" to this Order. 

{b) Allocate a reasonable proportion of their 

advertising budget to advertising in media 

*I See the pertinent HUD regulation, 37 FR 33429 (a copy 
attached hereto as Appendix A). 

**I In radio and television advertising, the t-.rords "equal 
housing opportunities" shall be used and shall be easily 

audible. 

- ll: -
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directed primarily to the black and Puerto 

Rican cor.munities. The parties have agreed 

that display in 
-'•/ " 

the black or Puerto Rican press, together 

with allocation of 10% of defendants' radio 

advertising budget to black-oriented and 

Spanish language stations, shall the 

requirements'of this provision. All 

tisements of Trump buildings in minority 

media shall advertise a full cross-section 

of Trump buildings, and shall not stress or 

give undue emphasis to buildings with sub-
,, ::, ·;tantial minority /c A.:C',•·"'::, 

4. Provide written notification to each firm, 

association, company, corporation, or other person or 

· organization engaged by defendants or any of them to act 

as referral agency, apartment locating service, credit 

checking company, or management company that apartments 

mvned or managed by the defendants are available to all 

...... 
t.t' 

qualified persons without regard to race, color, religion, 

sex or national origin. Each such notification shall also 

advise the recipient of defendants' objective standards 

and pr6cedures for rental. 

The parties agree that the placement of such adver-
tisements in the Amsterdam News and El Diario will 
satisfy this requirement. 

**/ If the listed apartQents do not include all Trump 
buildings, the buildings listed shall be rotated with 
each ad so that the same apartment buildings are not 
continuously advertised under this subsection. 

- 12 -
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B. Program of Providing Listings for Xinoritv 
Seekers 

For after the 2ntry of this or 

.until'further Order of this Court, shall 

notify the Open Housing Center of the Nev.- York Urban 

League, 150 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York, 10003, of 

every fifth available apartment in each apartment build-

ing owned and/or managed by the defendants which has a 
!:_/ 

black tenancy of less than ten percent, at least three 

days prior to placing that apartment on the open market. 

During this three day period the Open Housing Center shall 

have the opportunity to refer qualified applicants to the 

- -."';...defendants for the purpose of renting the apartment. 

After three days ii no qualified applic2nt referred by the 

Center has filed an application seeking to rent the apart-

ment, the apartment may be placed on the open market to be 

rented in defendants' normal business custom without 

regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

C. Affirmative Program 

The defendants shall recruit, hire, assign, promote 

and transfer employees and agents without regard to race, 

color, religion, sex or national origin and will endeavor 

to place blacks and other nom·1hite persons in supervisory 

and positions as vacancies fJr which th2y are 

qualified arise. 

!:_/ The requirements of this provision need not be followed 
for apartment buildings pre:scntly h.1ve or in the 
future reach a black occupancy rate of 10%. For these 
apartment buildings, apartments shall continue to be rented 
without regard to race, color. religion, sex or national 
origin. 

- 13 -
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Pursuant to this program, the defendants shall 

.1. Place acvertise=ents on a regular basis in a 

that prir:.:.arily serves the black cormnunity de-
*/ 

scribing the available work opportunities. 

2. Prominently include in all advertising of avail-

able jobs the slogan "Equal Opportunity Employer. " . !:!:_/ 
3. Display an equal employment opportunity poster 

in a prominent place clearly visible to prospective agents, 

employees, and applicants for employment in each office of 

the defendants where applications for employment are taken. 
. . 

Notify in writing, each labor union whose mem-

b2rs are part of defendants' work force of the terms of 

Part III (c) of this Decree and that prospective employees 

are to be referred without reg?rd to race, color, religion, 

sex or national origin. 

In recruiting and hiring nonwhite employees, the 

defendants shall not require that they possess qualifica-

tions for any job or position more exacting than those 

which were in effect with respect to white employees before 
• 

the institution of this action. 

IV 

• ·-- ' 1.. .. 0.....1 

In order to assure nondiscriminatory selectbn and 

assignment of tenants and to assure equal opportunity in 

The agree that the placement of such advertise-
ments in the Amsterdam News and El Diario satisfy this 
requiremente 

This poster shall be in the form, size and prominence 
approved by the United States Department of Labor and the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. 

- 14 -
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housing at each building m\rned or managed by defendants 

or any of them, defendants shall adopt and implement 

the standards ·and procedures: 

A. Standards 

(1) Incooe 
!:_I 

One week's gross salary from all sources must be 

at least equal to one month's rent. 

(2) Occupancy 

(Defendants to make a proposal based on their 

current standards.) 
!:::.1 

B. Procedures 

1. Application Procedure 

a. Anplications for tenancy will be received at 

the apartment building or complex where the tenant is 

applying for an apartment. Applications shall be received 

by Superintendents or rental agents authorized by the de-

fendants to accept applications, and instructed in the 

requirements of this Order and of the Fair Housing Act of 

1968, 42 u.s.c. 3601 et :::ea. -- Applications shall be 

accepted from all persons wishing to apply and the super-

intendent or agent shall make no subjective judgment on the 

acceptability of a prospective tenant. • 

*I This shall include alimony, child welfare 
payments, wife's income, etc. The parties recognize that 
the validity of this requirement may be affected by appel-
late decisions in Ro,·:.1 v. suDr:1. Either party may 
apply for a modification or revision of this provision in 
the light of future u_velopments in that case. 

These procedures are based on defendants' past prac-
tices, as described during. discovery. 

- 15 .: 



b. The or rental agent shall revi2w 

the application for corr.pleteness and shall require a 

security d2po3it of on2 rent and a 

substitute th2refor) from all applicants. The 

agents shall then submit the deposit, W2 form and applica-

tion, for review and determination to one of the 

two main offices. No superintendent or rental agent shall 

have the authority to make a determination on the accept-

ability for tenancy of ari applicant. 

c. A uniform credit and employment check as 

described in Appendix "A" hereto shall be conducted with 

respect to each applicant. 

'· .. d. Applications shall be reviewed and a determina-

tion oi acc2pcaoility be made by the Section Nanagers 

employed in the defendants' main offices. 

e. Each applicant shall be informed .. .... .: f-1-...:- .t:.: .... _ 
W .L. '-1.L.L.U .1.. .LV 0:::: 

(5) business days whether or not he or she has been ac-

cepted for tenancy. If rejected, the applicant shall be 

informed of the r2ason for rejection, and of the specific 

objective standard which he has failed to meet. 

2. Providing Rental Information to Anartment 
Seekers 

a. Defendants shall maintain at their central 

offices at 2611 West 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York and 

2064 Cropsey Avenue, Brooklyn, New York, and at Highlander 

Hall, Edgerton Hall, Patio Gardens and Lawrence Gardens, a 

Central to be compiled on a weekly basis, of 

each vacant or available apartment in the New 

York area, and of each apartment expected to be vacant 

or available Ln the New York area within the next thirty 
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days. This list, shall include the type of apartment, 

the of the r2nt, End date of avail-

ability and shall be shotm to all persons inquiring about 

available apartments. Defendants shall also maintain at 

each of their buildings similar list of the apartments 

vacant at that building. 

b. Apartments w4ich are available for rental and 
., 

;·listed on the apartment availability list (2(a) above) 

shall be shown to all interested inquiriers by an 

authorized agent of the defendants. 

c. !nquirers shall be uniformly informed of the 

qualifications for rental, including the income, security 

d2posit and W2 form requirer2nts, 

d. No waiting list will be maintained at any of 

defendants' offices or apartment buildings. Rental will 

be on a first-come, first-served basis when apartments 

are available for rental. 

v 

REPORTING REQUIREHENTS 

It is further.ORDERED that three (3) months after 

the entry of this Decree, and thereafter three (3) times 

per year the defendants shall file with the Court and 

serve on counsel tor niaintitr a r20ort . ' 

the following information for the following apartment 

buildings owned and/or managed by the defendants: 

1. Arovle Hall 

2. Westminster Hall 

3. Fountainbleu Apartments 
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·• ' 

(. I. M 

1 ..... 

4. Lawrence Gard2ns and Lawrence Towers 

6o Beachhaven Apartm2nts 

7. Shorehaven Apartments 

8. Belcrest Apartments 

9. Highlander Hall 

10. Saxony Hall · 

11. Clyde Hall 

12. Edgerton Apartments 

13. Winston Hall 

14. .Sussex Hall 

15. Oakdale Aoartments 

(Norfolk, Virginia) 

=.t 
a. The number of persons, by race, making inquiry 

in person about the availability or terms of rental of an 

apartment during the preceding reporting period and the 

number by race, that: 

1. made inquiry; 

2.· were offered an application; 
. 

3. t _led out an application; 

!/ As visually observable. 
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4. submitted an applicant with deposit; 

.). ior 

6. were rejected; 

7. withdrew applications; 

8. had applications pending at the end of the 

. ·. 1 reporting period. 

b. A report reflecting the applications for tenancy 

submitted during the preceding reporting period, including 

the following information for each person submitted an ap-

plication: 

1. pame, address, business and horne telephone 

number, and race; 

2 . cot2 o£ application; 

3. whether a deposit was received; 

4. date notified of acceptance or rejection; 

5. weekly income of applicant and monthly rent 

of apartment sought; 

6. if accepted, apartment chosen; 

7. if rejected, reason therefor; 

8. name of or persons who decided to 

accept or reject the application; 

9. if neither accepted nor rejected, status 

or dispo3itian O?plication. 

For each rejected nonwhite applicant, the report shall 
... ·.' .... 

include a detailed statement of the reason(s) for rejec-

tion and supporting information. 

c. A list of vacancies during the preceding 

quarter, including the date the was placed Ln 

- 19 -
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!:_/ 
the market and the date each apartment was r2nted or 

fer rental. 

d. Reports pursuant to this Order shall 

also include the current statistics with respect to the 

race of tenants in each apartr:-.:::nt building m·med or 

managed by the defendants, and an account of the steps 

'taken during the precedj_ng reporting period to implement 

the program outlined in Sections! and II above, including: 

1. Copies of all letters sent to apartment 

locators and credit checking companies, Fair 

groups, and labor unions pursuant to 

·. Parts II and III of this Decree. 

2. R2pr2s2ntativ2 copi2s oi all newspaper 

advertisements placed since the entry_ of this 

Order, the name of newspaper in which 

the advertisement was placed, and the date 

of each advertisement. 

3. The name, race, position and office assign-

ment of each rental agent, superintendent and 

office employed as of the date of 

the entry of this Order, an assurance that the 

educational program required by Part I has 

be2n ccnduct2d, copiis oi all i;n2d state-

ments obtained in accordance with Part I of 

this Decreeo I£ any rental agent refuses to 

.. 
!:_/ Includin2; where appropriate, the date the Open Housing 
Center was contacted the apartments' avail-
ability in accordance with Part II above. 
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sign such a statement the shall 

include a full of all pertinent 

and of any action taken by them 

in relation thereto. 

VI 

RECORDKEEPING PROVISIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the defendant shall for . 
three years following the entry of this Decree, make and 

preserve the records for all apartQent buildings 

owned or managed by them: 

1. The name, address, telephone number and date 

and time of contact of each person inquiring in person 

about the availability or terms ofrental of an apartment 
!:_/ 

therein, the size of apartment sought, if known, and 

whether: 

A. he was offered an application; 

B. he filled out an application; 

C. he submitted an applicati:m deposit. 

2. A detailed record of all action taken on each 

inquiry and application and the reasons for such action . . 
3. A detailed record of all steps taken by the 

defendants in ascertaining the acceptability for tenancy 

such steps or who approved or rejected the application. 

*I This may be accomnlished by maintaing a guest register 
at each apartment building mmed by the defendants. 
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4. All records which are the source of, or contain 

apy of the information pertinent to defendants' obligations 

this Order. of the plaintiff shall 

be permitted to inspect and copy all pertinent records of 

the defendants.at any and all reasonable tises, provided, 

however, that the plaintiff shall endeavor to minimize any 

inconvenience to the defendants from the inspection of 

such recordso 

VII 

It is further ORDERED that for a period extending 

three years from the entry of this Decree, the defendants 

shall, at least twenty (20) days prior to the event, report 

to counsel for the plaintiff: 

1. Any new m·mership or management interests in 

residential property, acquired by the 

2. The divestment through transfer or sale, of any 

ownership or management interests in residential property. 

VIII 

Each party shall bear its mm costs. 

The Court shall retain jurisdiction of this action 

for all purposes until the termination of this Order. 

ORDERED THIS day of , 1975. 

EDI-JARD 
United States District Judge 

The undersigned apply for and 
consent to the entry of this 
Order: 

For the Defendants: For the Plaintiff: 
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INJUNCTiON 
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It is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the I 
defendantp, 

their officers, agents, employees, successors, and all persons in I 
active concert or participation with any of them, are hereby 

permanently enjoined from: 

1-6 see the Proposed Decree, appended as Attachment A. 

7. Engaging in any act or practice which has the purpose or the 
i 

denying or abridging the right to equal housing opportunity! effect of 

I 
I 

protected by the Fair Housing Act. In this connection, defendants 

shall not, in determining the income qualification for rental of I 

any person, family, or other group of persons, fail or refuse to ! 
. I 

fully count a woman's total income, including salary, wages, alimony,! 

support payments or other income from whatever source received. \ 

I 
i 
I 

! 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 

THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF ANERICA, ) 

FRED Co 

Plaintiff,· 

Vo 

TRUMP·, et al. 

Defendants o 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 CIV 1529 

PlAINTIFF'S PROPOSED 
LIST OF WITi':ESS2S 

In accordance 'tvith the Order of the the United 

States submits the follmving names of persons who are 

expected to be called as Hitnesses. This list does not 

.;nc-lua·e t:' ·ne of any -.--b·· ........ -1 .... ,.,'hi"\ m!l"'!7. 'he:> .L _... 4t:: UL..t...C. a.u. ........ J' --

called to rebut testimony by defendants' witnesses nor does 

it include any of defendants' officers or managing agents -,;.;rho 

may be called as adverse 'tvitnesseso 

Walter Abramson, an official of the City of NeH York 

Commission on Human Right::>, or some 

other·agent of that agency to 

authentic?te, if necessary, certain 

recordso 

Susan Ber:1stein 

Beverly Best 

Kalman Biczo 

Saul Blate 

Mae Brmm 

'Haxi ne Brm-1n 

' 
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! 
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' ' 

Ronald and Agnes Bunn 

Stephanie Bush 

BarbarR Campbell, York Times Reporter, or 

another reporter present at the 

press conference at which defend2.nts' 

'announced the filing of a $100 

million counterclaimo 

James Chestnut 

Solomon Cohen, an agent of the Division of Human 

Rights, State of York, or some 

other agent of that agency to 

authenticate, if necessary,certain 

record:>o 

·Peter Connan 

Terrence Cox 

David DeReinzus 

Henrietta Davis 

Jack Fogler 

Edtvardo Ga ldames 

Annette Gandy 

11onique Golden 

Adolpho Gomez (testified by deposition) 

Allan Gross 

Charles Hall 

Robert Ech·:-nrd Hc:.rris 

Lorraine Haynes 

Rick a:1d Gemma Helms 

Donald Hcrmaa 
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' •' Betty Hoeber 

Alfred and Hoyt 

Godfrey JCJ.cobs 

Pritthinella Johnson 

George Sim Johnston 

Phyllis Kirschenbaum 

Mro & Mrso Kenneth Laitman 

York Times employee to verify authenticity of 

certain of classified advertisements 

(if defendants um·7illing to stipulate 

to authenticity of reproduction of 

those pages) 

Carl Nickelson 

Dorothy Orr 

Paul and Hope Rudder 

Huriel Salzman 

Ruth S2.rver 

Mrso Harry Schefflin 

Michael Scott 

Huriel Silberberg 

Pfiyllis Spiro • 

Ralph Stein 

James Gordon White 

Respectfully submitted, 

FRANK E. SCir..JELB 
NOm:At; P. GOLDDE:::G 
Dm:?:A GOLDSTED! 
Attorneys, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 

· Dc- ... ... ....,r: J··s ... cc '-hl._;:l ... UJ.. 1..1 I..J.. . 

Washington, Do C. 20530 

c 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

!·hereby certify that on J2nuary , 1975, copies 

of the foregoing Proposed List of Witnesses 

were served on counsel for defendants by hand: 

.... 

. 
Roy M. Cohn, Esquire 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley 
39 Eo. 68th StreAt 
NeH York, York 10021 

NORMAN P. GOLDBERG 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, Do Co 20530 

• 





APPENDIX B 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

·EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) 

v. ) ' 
) 

TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., ) 
) 

Defendant. ) 
) _______________________ ) 

CIVIL ACTION 
NO. 73 C 1529 

PROPOSED CONSENT 
ORDER 

This action was instituted by the United States of 

America on October 15, 1973, pursuant to the Fair Housing Act 

of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et Plaintiff alleges that the 

defendant has engaged in a and practice of discrimination 

in violation cf the Fair Housing Act of 1958 by refusing to rent 

dwellings and by otherwise making dwellings unavailable to black 

persons on account of race and color, in violation of 42 U.S.C. 

3604(a); by discriminating in the terms and conditions of rental 

of dwellings because of race and color in violation of 42 U.S.C. 
-

3604(b); by making statements with respect to the rental of 

d\vellings which indicate a preference, limitation and discrimin-

ation based on race and color in violation of 42 U.S.C. 3604(c); 

and by representing to persons on account of race and color that 

dwellings were not available for inspection and rental when such 

dwellings were in fact so available, in violation of 42 U.S.C. 

3604(d). 



Stripped to its essentials, the claim of the United 

States is that the defendant and its principal officers have 

failad and neglected to exercise their affirmative and non-

delegable duty under the Fair Housing Act to assure compliance 

by certain of their subordinates, with the result that equal 

housing opportunity has been denied to a number of persons and 

that certain of defendant's subordinates have failed to carry 
• 

out their obligations under the Act. Plaintiff contends that 

the insubstantial number of blacks presently in most. 

buildings supports these allegations. Defendants claim that 

the number of violations by their agents is insubstantial, 

and that any discrimination was not done at the direction of 

the principals of the d_efendant corporation. Moreover, 

defendant contends that plaintiff has alleged only a few 

incidents of discrimination over.a period of fourteen years 

and that there are a significant number of blacks presently 

residing in Trump apartment buildings. Irrespective of the 
I 

merits of the complaint, however, the principal officers of 

defendant Trump Management, Inc., are now prepared 

affirmatively to assume qnd carry out the responsibility 

for assuring that their employees will comply with the Act 

and will promote equal opportunity. Accordingly, the 

United States is prepared to resolve this case by the entry 

of a consent decree. 
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INJUNCTION 

It is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the 

defendant, its officers, agents, employees, successors and all 

persons in active concert or participation with any of them, 

are hereby permanently enjoined from: 

GENERAL INJUNCTIVE PROVISIONS 

1. Refusing to sell o'r rent, refusing to negotiate for . 
the sale or rental of, or otherwise making unavailable or denying 

any dwelling to any person on account of race, color, religion'· 

sex or national origin. 

2. Discriminating against any person in the terms, 

conditions, or privileges of sale or rental of a dwelling, or in 

the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, 

because of race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

3. Making, printing, or .publishing, or causing to be 

made, printed, or published, any notice, statement or advertise-

ment with respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling that 

indicates any preference, limitation, or discrimination based 

on race, color, religion, sex or national origin, or an intention 

to make such preference,.limitation or discrimination. 

4. Representing to any person because of race, color, 

religion, sex or national origin that any dwelling is not avail-

able for inspection, sale or rental when such dwelling is in 

fact so available. 

5. Influencing the residential choice of any person on 

account of race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 
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6. Coercing, threatening, or interfering with, or 

attempting to coerce, threaten or interfere with any person 

· in the exercise or enjoyment of the right to equal housing 

protected by the Fair Housing Act of 1968, or in 

the exercise or enjoyment of the right to assist others to 
.' 
secure equal housing opportunity. 

7. Engaging in any act or practice which has the purpose 

or the effect of denying or abridging the right to equal housing . 
opportunity protected by the Fair Housing Act. In this 

connection, defendants shall in determining 

the income qualification for rental of any person, family, or 

other group of persons, fail or refuse·to fully count a woman's 

total income, including salary, wages, alimony, support pay-

ments or other income from whatever source received. 

II 

ASSUMPTION OF RESPONSIBILITY BY 
PRINCIPALS OF TRUMP MANAGEMENT 
INC. , AND TRAINING PROGRAM FOR 

AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES 

Trump Management Inc., controls thousands of rental 

units in the New York area and elsewhere, and its activities 

therefore have a major impact on housing opportunities. The 

company therefore a-position of leadership in the real 

estate community and can, by its example, influence the activities 

not only of its own agents and employees but also of many others. 

The Fair Housing Act prohibits conduct which is discriminatory 

in its effect, regardless of motivation, and violations of the 

Act can result from thoughtlessness and lack of information, as 

- 4 -
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well as from deliberate discrimination. The principal officers 

of Trump Hanagement, Inc., recognize that they have both the 

responsibility to assure nondiscrimination by their agents and 

and a significant opportunity to promote equal housing 

opportunity generally in the New York area and elsewhere. They 

are prepared to carry out that responsibility and to take 

advantage of that opportunity. 

Accordingly, it is ORDERED as follows: 

A. The principal officers of Trump Management, Inc., 

presently Donald Trump and Fred C. Trump shall forthwith 

(1) thoroughly acquaint themselves personally 

on a detailed basis with all of the obligations of 

the defendant under the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 

as amended and as judicially interpreted; under 

I 
state and municipal civil rights laws; under . 

f pertinent Regulations and Guidelines of the 

Department of Housing and Urban Development and 

other appropriate agencies; and under this Order; 

(2) Take steps to assure that their principal 

assistants and officers similarly familiarize 

themselves with their obligations; and 

(3) Personally undertake to assure that the 

training program set forth herein is successfully 

carried out. 

B. Within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Decree, 

the Defendant its principal officers shall conduct and 

- 5 -
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1 

complete an educational program for all employees with rental 
. 

or. employment responsibilities, who have contact with pro-

spective tenants, provide information to the public about 

rental, or accept or process applications for rentals, or who 

are engaged in any manner in the employment process, to inform 

them of the provisions of this 

the Fair Housing Act of 1968. 

Decree, and their duties under 
I 
I Such program shall include: 

(1} Furnishing to each such agent and employee 

a letter summarizing the terms of this Decree and 

of the Fair Housing Act as it applies to the 
! 

employee. 

(2} Informing each such agent and employee, 

in person or by general meeting, of the provisions 

of this Decree and of duties of the Company and 
I 

! 
its agents and employees under the various 

applicable Fair Housing Acts. Each such agent 
I 

and employee shall be advised that his failure 

to comply with the provisions of this Decree 

shall subject him to dismissal or other disci-

plinary action, and to sanctions for disobedience 

of this Order. 

(3} Securing a signed statement from each such 

agent that he has read the letter mentioned above 

and received the instructions described in the 

preceding paragr?ph and forwarding a copy of each 

suchmgned statement to plaintiff. 

- 6 -
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Each new agent and employee shall be instructed in 

accordance with the procedures set out above and shall be 

· required to sign a statement to the effect that he has been 

so instruc.ted and will comply with such instructions within 

ten (10) days following the initial date of employment. 

Copies of all signed statements will be furnished to plaintiff 

upon execution. I 
III 

AFFIRMATIVE PROGRAM 

It is further ORDERED that the defendant shall forthwith*/ 

take the following steps to adopt and implement an affirmative 

program aimed at ensuring compliance with the Fair Housing Act 

of 1968, and at overcoming the effects of any previous actions 

by the defendant which had the purpose or effect of impairing 
I 

right's secured by the Fair Housing Act: 
I 

A. Notification to the Community of Defendant's 
Nondiscrimintory Policy 

1. Notify the following groups in the New York Metro-

politan Area, in writing, with copies to counsel for plaintiff 

that apartments owned or managed by the defendant are available 

to all qualified persons without regard to race, color, reli-

gion. sex or national origin. Included in such letter shall be 

a Eall synopsis of the rental standards and procedures outlined 

in Part IV, below, and a general statement of present and 

anticipated vacancies in Trump apartment buildings in the New 

York Metropolitan area. The parties shall agree on the text 

of an appropriate letter prior to its mailing. 

*I The defendant's obligations to implement each provision 
of this Order for affirmative action shall begin ten (10) 
days following the entry of this Order, unless otherwise 
specified herein. 

- 7 -
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a. (Parties to agree on identities of groups). 

b. II 

c. II 

Subsequently, defendant shall mail to each of the organizations, 

named above a copy of its weekly Central Listing of vacancies 

described infra in Part IV of this decree. This mailing shall 

be done on the day the list is made. 

2. Post and maintain fair housing signs in a form 

approved by the Secretary of the Department of Housing and 

Urban Development in all offices of the defendant where 

there is rental activity or public contact. 

3. Implement an advertising program at informing 

the nonwhite community of defendant's nondiscriminatory rental 

policy. The defendant shall 

a. Include, in all in ne\'lS-

papers, telephone directories, radio, ·television, 

and other media, and on all billboards, signs, 

pamphlets, brochures, and other promotional 

literature the words "Equal Housing Opportunities" 

and the fair housing logo. These words and the logo 

*f See the pertinent HUD regulation, 37 F.R. 33429 (a copy 
attached hereto as Appendix A). 

**I This subsection dealing with newspaper advertising shall 
only apply to newspaper ads of six (6) lines or more. Defendant 
shall continue its present advertising policies, and shall not 
change its present practices with respect to the size and type 
of advertising by shortening or by otherwise changing its policy 
of placing display ads to avoid the requirement of including 
the equal opportunity statement. 
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shall be prominently placed and easily 

In addition, all advertising placed by the 

Company or its agents shall conform to the 

practices recommended in the Department of 

Housing and Urban Development advertising guide-

lines, as published in 37 Fed. Reg., pp. 6700-02, 

on April 1, 1972. A copy of these guidelines is 

attached as "B" to this Order. 

(b) Allocate a reasonable proportion of its 

advertising budget to advertising in media 

directed primarily to the black and Puerto Rican 

communittes. The parties have agreed that t\vo 

reasonably prominent monthly display advertisements, 

one in the black and one in the Puerto Rican press,!::!:_/ 

together with the allocation of 10% of defendant's 

radio advertising budget to black-oriented and 

Spanish language stations, shall meet the require-

ments of this provision. All advertisements of 

Trump buildings in minority media shall advertise 

a full cross-section of Trump buildings with vacancies, 

and shall not or give undue emphasis to buildings 

with substantial minority 

4. Provide written notification to each firm, associa-

tion, company, corporation, or other person or organization 

engaged by defendant to act as referral agency, apartment 

*I In radio and television advertising, the words "equal housing 
opportunities" shall be used and shall be easily audible. 

**I The parties agree that the placement of such advertisements in 
the Amsterdam News and El Diario will satisfy this requirement. 

***I If the listed apartments do not include all Trump buildings 
with vacancies, the buildi_ngs listed shall be rotated with each 
ad so that the same apartment buildings are not continuously or 
disproportionately advertised under this subsection. 
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locating service, credit checking company, or management 

company that apartments owned or managed by the defendant 

are available to all qualified persons without regard to race, 

color, religion, sex or national origin. Each such notifi-

cation shall also advise the recipient of defendant's objective 

standards and procedures for rental • 

B. Program of Providing Listings for Minority 
Apartment Seekers 

For two years after the entry of this Order, or until 

further Order of this Court, defendant shall notify the Open 

Housing Center of the New York Urban League, 150 Fifth Avenue, 

New York, New York, 10003, of every fifth available apartment 

in each apartment building owned and/or managed by the defen-

dant which has a black tenancy of less than ten percent, 

at least three days prior to placing that apartment on the 

open market. 

Center shall have the opportunity to refer qualified applicants 

to the defendant for the purpose of renting the apartment. 

After three days if no qualified applicant referred by the 

Center has filed an application seeking to rent the apartment, 

the apartment may be placed on the open market to be rented in 

defendant's normal business custom without regard to race, 

color, religion, sex or national origin. 

*I The requirements of this provision need not be followed for 
apartment buildings which presently have or in the future reach 
a black occupancy rate of 10%. For these apartment buildings, 
apartments shall continue to be rented without regard to race, 
color, religion, sex or national origin. 

**I The three day period shall begin when notification has been 
completed and tl:e Open·Housing Center has received, either in 
person or by mail, the listings. For purposes of this Decree 
rental on the open market shall mean rental to any person not 
referred by the Open Housing Center. 

10 -



-- 0 

The defendant shall recruit, hire, assign, promote and 

transfer employees and agents without regard to race, color, 

sex or national origin and will endeavor to place 
. 

blacks and other nonwhite persons in · supervisory and pro-

fessional positions as vacancies for which they are qualified 

Pursuant to this program, the defendant shall take 

the following steps: 

1. Place advertisements on a regular basis in news-

papers that primarily serve the black and Spanish community 

describing the available work 

2. Prominently include in all advertising of available 

jobs the slogan "Equal Opportunity Employer." 

3. Display an equal employment opportunity 
--

in a prominent place clearly visible to prospective agents, 

employees, and applicants for employment in each office of 

the defendant where applications for employment are taken. 

*I References to employees and agents in Part III C of this 
Decree shall include only those persons who are presently 
employed as or seek to be superintendents, rental agents, 
leasing agents, or central office personnel who receive, review 
or approve applications for tenancy or otherwise participate 
in the rentat'-process. 

**I .The parties agree that the placement of such advertisements 
In the Amsterdam News and El Diario will satisfy this require-
ment. 

***I This poster shall be in the form, size and·prominence 
approved by the United States Department of Labor and the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. 
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4. Notify in writing, each labor union representing 

any part of defendant's work fotce of the terms of Part III(C) 

of this Decree and that prospective employees are to be referred 

withou't regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

In recruiting and hiring nonwhite employees, the defen-

dant shall not require that nonwhite persons recruited or 

hired possess qualifications for any job or position more 

exacting than those which were in effect with respect to white 

employees before the institution of this action. 

IV 

IMPLEMENTATION OF OBJECTIVE RENTAL 
STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 

In order.to assure nondiscriminatory selection and 

assignment of tenants and to assure equal opportunity in 

·housing at each building owned or managed by Trump 

Inc., defendant shall adopt and implement the following 

standards and procedures. The only standards and procedures 

that shall be applied in determining whether or not to rent 

to an applicant are as follows: 

A. Standards 

1. Income 

One week's gross salary from all sources*/ must be 

at equal to one month's rent. 

2. Occupancy 

(Defendants to make a proposal based on their current 

standards. 

!1 This shall include alimony, child support, public assis-
tance payments, or guarantor's assurances on behalf of publi.c 
assistance recipients, wife's income, etc. 

- 12 -
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3. Other Objective Standards 

Within fifteen (15) days of the entry of this Decree, 

defendant shall propose to plaintiff objective standards for 

rental, and uniform procedures for determining whether an 

applicant qualifies for rental, including procedures for 

credit and employment verification arid standards for deter-

mining credit worthiness, all to be based on and no more 

stringent than defendant's past practices. These standards 

and procedures shall be negotiated with plaintiff and submitted 

to the Court within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Order. 

B. Procedures 

1. Application Procedure 

a. Applications for tenancy will be received at the 

apartment building or complex where the tenant is applying for 

an apartment. Applications shall be received by Superintendents 

or rental agents authorized by the defendant to accept appli-

cations, and instructed in the requirements of this Order and 

of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 

.Applications shall be accepted from all persons wishing to 

apply and the superintendent or agent shall make no subjective 

judgment on the acceptability of a prospective tenant. 

b. The superintendent or rental agent shall review the 

application for completeness and shall requi.re a security deposit 

of one month's rent and a W2 form (or reasor1able substitute 

therefor) from all applicants. The agents shall then submit 

!1 These procedures are based on defendants' past practices, 
as described during discovery. 

- 13 -

........._..._ ... , ... ..-......... _,..., ...... ., ·-· .. ,, ...... . 



. I 
I 

; 

t 
l 
I • I 
1 
I 
! 
; 
! 
I 
! 

j 

I' 

the deposit, W2 form and application, for review and deter-

mination to of the defendant's two main offices. No 

superintendent or rental agent shall have the authority to 

make' a determination on the acceptability for tenancy of an 

applicant. 

c. Applications shall be reviewed and a determination 

of acceptability shall be made by the Section Managers employed 

in the defendant's main offices. 

d. Each applicant shall be informed within five (5) 

business days whether or not he or she has been accepted for 

tenancy. If rejected, the applicant shall be informed of the 

reason for rejection, and of the specific objective standard 

which he has failed to meet. 

2. Providing Rental Information to Apartment 
Seekers 

a. Defendant shall maintain at their central offices 

at 2611 West 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York and 2064 Cropsey 

Avenue, Brooklyn, New York, and at Highlander Hall, Edgerton 

Hall, Patio Gardens and Lawrence Gardens, a Central Listing, to 

be compiled on a weekly basis, of each currently vacant or 

available apartment in the New York area, and of each apartment . 
expected to be vacant or available in the New York area within 

the next thirty days. This list, shall include the type of 

apartment, the number of rooms, the monthly rent, and the date 

of availability and shall be shown to all persons inquiring 

about available apartments. Defendant shall also maintain at 

each of its buildings a similar list of the apartments vacant 

at that building. 

- 14 -
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b. Apartments which are available for rental and listed 

on the apartment availability list (2(a) above) shall be shown 

to all interested inquirers by an authorized agent of the 

defendant. 

c. Inquirers shall be uniformly informed of the quali-

fications for rental, including the income, security deposit 

and W2 form requirements. 

d. No waiting will be maintained at any of the 

defendant's offices or apartment buildings nor shall there be 

any preference for persons referred by present tenants. 

Rental will be on a first-come, first-served basis when apart-

ments are available for rental. 

v 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

It· is further ORDERED that three (3) months after the 

entry of this Decree, and thereafter three (3) times per year 

for three years the defendant shall file with the Court and 

serve on counsel for the plaintiff a report containing the 

following information for the following apartment buildings 

owned and/or managed by the defendant: 

1. Argyle Hall 

2. Westminster Hall 

3. Fontainebleau Apartments 

4. Lawrence Gardens and Lawrence Towers 

5. Sea Isle Apartments 

6. Beachaven Apartments 

*f Since this is defendant's present practice and it is non-
discriminatory, plaintiff interposes no objection thereto. 

- 15 -
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7. Shorehaven Apartments 

8. Belcrest Apartments 

9. Highlander Hall 

10. Saxony Hall 

11. Clyde Hall 

12. Edgerton Apartments 

13. Winston Hall 

14. Sussex Hall 

15. Oakdale Apartments 
Oceanaire Apartments 
(Norfolk, Virginia) 

a. The number of persons, by race,!/ making inquiry in 

person about of terms of rental of an apartment 

during the preceding reporting period and the number by race, 

that: 

1. made inquiry; 

2. were offered an 

3. filled out an application; 

4. submitted an applicant with deposit; 

5. were accepted for occupancy; 

6. were rejected; 

7. withdrew applications; 

8. had applications pending at the ena of the 

reporting period. 

b. A report reflecting the applications for tenancy sub-

mitted during the preceding reporting period, including the 

following information for each person submitted an application: 

As visually observable. 

- :f:-6 -
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1. name, address, business and home telephone 

number, and race; 

2. date of application; 

3. whether a deposit was received; 

4. date notified of acceptance or rejection; 

5. weekly income of applicant and monthly rent . 
of apartment sought; 

6. if accepted, apartment chosen; 

7. if rejected, reason therefor; 

8. name of person or persons who decided to 

accept or reject the application; 

9. if neither accepted nor rejected, status 

or disposition of application. 

For each rejected nonwhite applicant, the report shall include 

a detailed statement of the reason(s) for rejection and 

supporting information. 

c. A list of vacancies during the preceding quarter, 

including the date the apartment was placed on the market*/ 

and the date each apartment was rented or otherwise committed 

for rental. 

d. Reports filed pursuant to this Order shall also 

include the current statistics with respect to the race of 

tenants in each apartment building owned or managed by the 

defendant, and an account of the steps taken during the pre-

ceding reporting period to implement the program outlined in 

Sections I and II above, including: 

Including where appropriate, the date the Open Housing 
Center was contacted concerning the apartment's availability 
in accordance with Part II above. 

- 17 -
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1. Copies of all letters sent to apartment locators 

and credit checking companies, Fair Housing groups, 

and labor unions pursuant to Parts II and III of this 

Decree. 

2. Representative copies of all newspaper advertise-

ments placed since the entry of this Order, the name 

of each newspaper in the advertisement was 

placed, and the date of each advertisement. 

3. The name, race, position and office assignment 

of each rental agent, superintendent and main office 

employee.employed as of the date of the entry of this 

Order, an assurance that the educational program 

required by Part I has been conducted, and copies 

of all signed statements obtained in accordance 

with Part I of this Decree. If any rental agent 

refuses to sign such a statement the defendants 

shall include a full statement of all pertinent 

circumstances and of any action taken by them 

in relation thereto. 

VI 

... RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the defendant shall for three 

years following the entry of this Decree, make and preserve the 

following records for all apartment buildings owned or managed 

by them: 

1. The name, address, telephone number and date and 

time of contact of each person inquiring in person about the 

- 18 -
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ava1J.8D1J.1t:Y or t:enns OJ: rent:aJ. o.x: an apart:ment:: t::nereJ.n,::_t 

the size of apartment sought, if known, and whether: 

A. he was offered an application; 

B. he filled out an application; 

C. he submitted an application with deposit. 

2. A detailed record of all action taken on each inquiry 

and application and the reasons for such action. 

3. A detailed record of all steps taken by the defen-
• dant in ascertaining the acceptability for tenancy of the 

applicant and the name of the employee who took such steps 

or who approved or rejected the application. 
' 4. All records which are the source of, or contain any 

of the information pertinent to defendant's obligations under 

this Order. Representatives of the plaintiff shall be per-

mitted to_inspect and copy all pertinent records of the defen-

dant at any and all reasonable times, provided, however, that 

the plaintiff shall endeavor to minimize any inconvenience to 

the defendant from the inf:P ection of such records. 

VII 

It is further ORDERED that for a period extending three 

years from the entry of this Decree, the defendant shall, at 

least twenty (20) days prior to the event, report to counsel 

for the plaintiff: 

1. Any new ownership or management interests in 

residential property, acquired by the defendant. 

2. The divestment through transfer or sale, of any 

ownership or management interests in residential property. 

"!_/ This may be accomplished by maintaining a guest register 
at each apartment building owned by the defendants. 

- 19 -
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It is further ORDERED for a period of three years 

after the entry of this Decree the defendant shall advise 

counsel for plaintiff, in of all from 

whatever source, received by the defendant regarding equal 

opportunity in housing at properties owned and/or managed by 

Trump Management, Inc. In addition, plaintiff shall, for a 
·, 

period of three years after the entry of this Decree, notify 

the defendant of all complaints received by the plaintiff. 

Except where the plaintiff determines that there 

exists a need for emergency relief threatening the effectiveness 

of this Decree, the plaintiff shall afford the defendant 

fifteen (15) days from the date notice of such a complaint is 

received to investigate the complaint and provide plaintiff with 

an explanation of the information contained in the complaint. 

If the complaint is determined to be valid by either party, 

plaintiff shall recommend what steps it believes to be necessary 

to correct the conditions leading to the complaint, and shall 

afford the defendants an additional seven (7) days to effec-

tuate appropriate steps to remedy the conditions leading to 

the complaint and to overcome any continuing effects of the 

alleged discriminatory actions before applying to the court 

for a motion to compel compliance with this Decree, or any 

other additional judicial relief. 

*I For purposes of this Decree, "complaints" shall mean any 
information which comes to the attention of the defendant or 
its officers from whatever source received, which indicates 
a possible denial of equal housing opportunities under the 
Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. 3601 a potential 
violation of this Decree. 

- 20 -
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By consent of the parties, with the understanding that 

this Decree is binding on the defendant corporation's principal 
.. ..,_ 

officers, Fred C. Trump and Donald Trump,[and in consideration 
'----

of the affirmative assumption of responsibility by Fred C. Trump ,. 

and Donald Trump. contained in Part II is FURTHER 

ORDERED that Fred C. Trump and Donald Trump are hereby dismissed 

in their individual capacities as party .defendants to this 

action. 

X 

Each party shall bear its own costs. 

The Court shall retain jurisdiction of this action for 

all purposes. 

ORDERED this day of 

· The undersigned apply for and 
, consent to the entry of this 

Order: 

For the Defendants: 

, 1975. 

EDWARD NEAHER 
United States District Judge 

For the Plaintiff: 

\, i 
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WHTED ST1\TLS Ot N-1ElUCJ\, ) 
) 
) 
) CIVIL (W. C 

v. ) 
) S L\T 

FRED C. T P.W·1P, f)O\: /\!. D Tr:t1;.1r ) 
and TrWi\IP ;.:.\I<AGL.\11::\T, TNC. , ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

) 
·----------------1 

This action \·;as instituted hy the United States of 

on October 15, 1973, pursuant to the Fair Hcusing Act 

of 1968, 42 U.S.C . .3601 et seq. -- --' 

The claim of the United States 1s that the 

have failed and neglected to exercise their affirmative r1on-

delegabJe duty under the fair Act to assure conpliancc 

by their subordiJ1atcs, with the result that equal housing oppor-

turdty has been denied to suhstantial numbers of and t!1a: 

defendant's subordinates have failed to carry out their 

'' uncler t1u:: Act. 

Defendants vigorously deny said allegations and 

that the number of viola(ions, if any, are insubstantial, 

and "de minimis" and that if there was J.nv discrimination, it 

was not done at the direct1on of the individual defendants or 

the officers of Trump Management, Inc. 

Accordingly, without adjudication of the merits and with-
,, 

out any admission as to the existence or absence of liability, 

and in order to resolve this matter without further protracted 

litigation, including a long, costly and time consuming trial, 

the parties hereto are prepared to tesolve this case by the 

entry of a Consent Decree. 

It is expressly understood and Agreed that the 
•I 
H 
II admission by it of a violation of the prohibition against dis-

cdmination as set forth in the F.:.tir Act of 1968, o:-

any o t h c r :t p p 1 i c1 b 1 c s t a t u t c , :· u 1 c or r C' g ul a t· ion . ('I'rJ t.'!e contr<;cn:Y · 
I ti1oy assert th.:.'l.t have been in compliance with same, and thc.1t only · I min i.scule alle<:JE.U examt• les of di scr irninatior.. in a h:mdful of rmits out of ovc..c -. II 100, co'o thct t cl!clilfj(:i hands in 14 ytnrs es tablif:;hcs this.) I\V.C 
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It is hereby ORDEHED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED the 

Complaint: against Fred C. Trump and Donald J. Trump is dis· 

missed against them in their personal capacity. 

II 

It is further ORDERED that Trump Management, Inc.> 

their officers, agents, employees, successors, <J.nd all persons 

in active concert or participation with any of them, arc 

hereby permanently enjoined from: 

1. Refusing to sell or rent, refusing to negotiate 

for the sale or rental of, or otheiwise making unavailable 

or denying any dwelling to any person on account of race, 

color, religion, sex or national origin. 

2. Discriminating agaihst any 1n the terms, 

conditions or privileges of sale or rental of a dwelling, or 

in the provision of services or facilities in connection 

therewith, because of race, color, religion, sex or national 

origin. 

3. Making, printing or publishin;, or causing to . 
be made, printed or published, any notice, statement or 

advertisement with respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling 

that indicates any preference, limitation, or discrimination 

based on race, color, religion, sex or national origin, or an 

intention to make such preference, limitation or discrimination. 

4. Representing to any person because of race, 

not available for inspection, sale or rental when such 

dwelling is in fact so available. 

5. Influencing the residential chojce of any person 

on a c co u n t o f r 3 c c c o 1 o r , r c 1 j g i on , s c x o r n' 3 t i on a 1 o r i. g i t1 • 
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G. Coercing, thrcatenjng, or interfering or 

attempting to threaten or interfere v-lith any person 

in the exercise or enjoyment of the right to equal housing 

opportunity protected by the Fair i!ousing Act of 1968, or in 

the exercise or enjoyment of the right to assist others to 

secure equal housing opportuPity. 

7. Engaging J_n any act or practice Hhich has the 

purpose or the effect of denying or abridging the right to 

equal housing opportunity protected by the Fair Housing Act. 

In this connection, defendant shall not, in determining the 

income .qualifications for rental of any person, family or 

other group of persons, fail or refuse to fully take into 

account a Homan's total income, including salary, wages, 

alimony, support payments or other income from whatever source 

i ved. 

III 

OF BY PRINCIPALS 
AND TRAINING 

Trump Management, Inc. controls many thousands of rental 

units in the New York area and elsewhere, and its activities 
" 

therefore have a major impact on housing opportunities. The 

individual defendants therefore occupy a position of leadership 

in the real estate community and can, by their example, In-

fluence the activities not only of their own agents and 

employees but also of many others. The Fair Housing Act pro-

hibits conduct which is discriminatory in its effect, regard-

and lack of information, as well as from 

deliberate discrimination. 

Accordingly, it is· OlWf:Rf:D as follows: 

A. The officers of Trump Mnna;:;cmen.t, Inc. sh:1ll 

forthwith: 

I I 
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(1) thorour;hly acquaint themselves personally on 

a detailed basis with all of their obligations under 

the Fair Ilousing Act of 1968, as amended; under 

state and mu,1icipal civil rights laws; under pertinent 

Regulations and Guidelines of the Department of 

Housing and Urbdn Development and other appropriate 

agencies; and under this Order; 

(2) take steps to assure that their principal 

assistants and officers similarly familiarize 

themselves with th.:.::ir obligations; and 

(3) undertake to pssure that the training program 

set forth herein is successfully carried out. 

B. Within thirty days of the entry of this 

Decree, the dcfPndant shall conduct and complete an educational 

program for all employees with rental or responsi-.. 
bility, who have contact with prospective provide 

information to the public about rental, or accept or process 

applications for rentals, or who are engaged in any manner in 

the employment process, to inform them of the provisions of 

this Decree, and duties under the Fair Housing Act of 

1968. Such program shall include: 

(1) furnish to each such agent and employee a 

letter summarizing the terms of this Decree and of 

the Fair Housing Act as it applies to the employee; 

(2) informing each such agent and employee, in 

person or by general meeting, of the provisions of 

.• j- ';"-
- ' '. J.. ....... ' ' 

agents and employees under the various applicable 

Fair Housing Acts. Each such agent anJ employee 

shall be advised that his failure to comply with the 

provisions of this Decree shall sub-ject him to 

dismiss:tl or other djsciplinary acti·on, and to 

I 
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sancUor;s for Ji.sobcdicnce of this Order; 

(3) .securing a signed statement from each such 

agent that he has n:ad the letter mentioned above 

and received the instructions described in the 

pre c e d in g p a r a g r a ph a n d f o nv a r d i n g a ·copy o f e a c h 

signed statement to plaintiff. 

Each new agent and employee shall he instructed in 

accordance with the procedures set out above and shall be 

required to sign a statement to the effect that he has been 

so instructed and will comply with such instructions within 

ten (10) days following the initial date of employment. 

IV 

AFFIRMATIVE PROGRAM 

It is further ORDERED that the shall 

forthwith take the following steps to adopt and implement an 

affirmative program aimed at compliance with the 

Fair Housing Act of 1968. 

A. Notification to __ ColJ!muni.!:_y of Defendant's 
Nondisc1im.inatorv Poli.£r 

1. and maintain fair housing signs in a 

forw approved by the Secretary of the Department of Housing 

and Urban Development (HUD) in all offices of the defendant 

where there is rental activity or public contact. 

2. Include in all appropriate advertising the 

words "Equal Housing Opportunity" as to ads of fifteen lines 

or more. In addition. all advertising placed by the Company 

or its agents shall conforrn to the practices recomr:lCJHL:Ii in 

the Department of Housing Urban Development advertising 

guidelines, as published in 37 Fed Reg., pp. 6700-02, on 

April 1, 1972. A copy of these guidelines is attached as 

r' 
·' 



\I 

II 
I 

.. 

B. AffiriJnlivc r:mnlo\'Jl\l'Ilt Proc·r;1m 

Plaintiff acknowledges thut defendant presently 

has Horking for them a lnrgc percentage of black and minority 

\'/Orkers. Despite this, the defcnd,ant will not 

discriminate against anyone due to race, color, relit:;ion, sex 

or national origin in snpervisory and professional positions 

as v a can c i c s f o r \<i' h i c h t h c y arc q u 1 i f i c d a r i s c . 

Pursuant to this policy, the defendant shall 

take the following steps: 

1. Display nn equal opportunity employment 

poster in a prominent place clearly visible to prospective 

agents, employees and applicants for employment in each office 

of the defend3.nt hhere applications for employment ::ne taken. 

2. Notify in writing each labor union whose 

members are of defendant's work force of the terms of 

Part IV (c) of this Decree and that prospective employees 

are to be referred without regard to race, color, religion, 

sex or national origin. 

In recruiting and hiring nonwhite employees, the 

defendant shall not require that they possess qualifications 

for any job or position more exacting than those were 

in effect with respect to white employees before the 

institution of this action. 

v 
T T G01 OF OBJECTIVE RE:JTAL 

STANITAlHT:.s-i\0J lJ 1' ROC E DU RES 

l n o 1· d c r to a::.; s u r e non d i s c r i In iII at o r y s e 1 c c t ion and 

assign;ncnt of tenants and t? assure equal opportunity in 

housing .:lt each builuing owned or managcJ by dc!fendant or 

any of defendant shall adopt implc.mcnt the follow-

irg st:1nd:1:rds ;1nd proccdurt!s: 
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A. Standard:, 

1. I llCOJll(' '}, 

One wect's net sal0ry from all sources must 

be at least CGual to one month's rent unless any of the 

following circumstances pertain: 

a. If a is used. 

b. I£ additional security is used or if 

a customer is willing to pay rent in advance. 

c. If a tenant switches from one Trump 

building to another Trump building and if 

that tenant has met his obligations to Trump 

Management, Inc. in the past. 

·d. If a prospective tenant has a bank 

account with a subst::mtial balance. 

e. Individuals who furnish quality 

references from people svch as bank officers 1 

professionals (attorneys, architects, doctors, 

etc.) or relatives, who will guarantee their 

financial responsibility. 

f. If a particular building is experiencing 

rental difficulty due to economic or other 

conditions. 

g. If a prospective tenant (or his 
I 

docs business with Trump Managcment 1 

Inc. and will vouch for their financial 

stability. 

Ali income sources of any applicant, including wife's 
income,. public poy.ments, alimony and child 
t.· ' 1 , 1 • > -: : \ ; 1 , · · - -- \ - - , · · 1 .. - .. q n r""' l 1 ,-, r r"'' ,.-, c:, i r1 r-. r .., ..; '""' ·; ' l l . ' ' . " ' ' ' ' . . ' . j • . ' . •. - ' • • ' • • • • 

1 Il ll c l 1..- l l il .1._ i i c h ·.; 1 i. L '. .. l j : l >I i ;. ;- Ci f L l .. 

to assure payment of rent when due. 

2. 

Not more thnn two persons in a one bcdroolil 

apnrtmcnt. Not more than four tHo ni.lul ts and t\-:o 

-1-
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children of ":,he same sex, in a tHo bcch·oom apartment, etc. 

B. Procedures 

1 • p 1 i Cl t i on 1:1 roc c d u r c. 

a. Applications for tenancy will be rc-

ceived at the apartment or management office of the 

complex where the tenant is applying for an apartment. 

Applications shall he received by superintendents or rental 

agents authorized by the defendant to accept applications, and 

instructed in the requirements of this Order and of the Fair 

Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 ct Applications 

shall be accepted from all persons wishing to apply and the 

superintendent or agent shall make no subjective judgment on 

the acceptability of a prospective tenant unless said 

tive tenant is: 
i. Drunk and disorderly 

ii. Visably under .t.!,'1e influence of drugs 

iii. Abusive towards superintendent or 

·rental agent. 

iv. Blatantly shabbily dressed to a 

point at which other tenants living 

in the building would be offended. 

b. The superintendent or rental age!lt 

shall revie,., the app 1 ica t ion for camp le tene s s and sha 11 requ i rc 

the payment of one month's rent and one month's security 

together with a current WZ Form (or reasonable substitute 

therefor) from all applicants to be forwarded for review and 

determination to the defendant's main office. 

c: • 

check'shall he conducted with respect to each applicant. 

d. Applications shall be rcvie>ved and 

determination of acceptability shall be made by the Section 

Managers employed in the defendant's main office. 

i 
I 
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e . Each n p p l .i c an t s h a 1 1 b c i n form C' d 'd t h i n 

twcn ty ( 2 0) bus inc s s Jays \\he the r or not he or she has been 

accepted for tenancy. If rejected, the applicant shall be 

informed of the reason for rejection, and of the specific 

I objective standard which he has failed to meet. 
,I 

II 

2. Providing Rental Informntion to 
!:J.? t S c c r ------· 

a. Defendant shall maintain at their 

central office at 2611 West 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York 

and 2064 Cropsey Avenue, Brooklyn, New York a central listing 

to be compiled on a weekly basis, of each current vacant or 

available apartment in the New York area. This list shall 

include the type of apartment, the number of rooms, the 

monthly rent and date of availability. Defendant shall also 

maintain at each of their buildings a similar list of the 

apartments vacant at that building. 
" 

b. Inquirers shall be uniformly informed 

'of the qualifications for rental, including the income, 

security deposit and W2 Form requirements. 

VI 

REQUIREMENTS 

It is further ORDERED that three (3) months after the 

entry of this Decree, and thereafter three (3) time per year, 

the defendant sl1all file with the Court and serve on counsel 

for the plaintiff a report containing the fo lloiving information 

for the following apartment buildings owned and/or managed 

1. 

2 • 

3. 

4 . 
5. 

Argyle Ilall 

Westminster Hall 

Fontainbl9au Apartments 

Lawrence Gardens anJ Lawrence Towers 

S c a I s 1 e /\ p :1 r t m c n t .s 

.,, q. 
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6. neach Haven i\part:ltCntc; 

7. Shore IIJ.vca t,r.::ntmcnts 

8. Belcrest Apartments 

9. Highl anJ.cr Ho. 11 

10. Saxony Hall 

11. Clyde Hall 

12. Edgerton Apartments 

13. Winston !Iall 

14. Sussex Hall 

A. If a prospective applicant, making inquiry about 

a rental of an apartment in one of the above mentioned develop-

ments, will fill out an application form, the following informa-

tion will be asked on said application and said application 

will be retained by defendant during the term of this Order: 

1. Name, Address, .Business and Home 

telephone number 

2. Date of Application 

3. Whether a deposit was given 

4. Weekly net income of applicant and 

monthly rent sought 

.5. Apartment sought 

6. If rejected, reason therefor 

7. Name of person or persons who decided to 

accept or reject the application 

8. If neither accepted or rejected, status 

.or disposition of application. 

r• "r j, - r,., l. n c + l"' ,1 1' ")" 1 '11 i ·- (' ,, .. -c, i r· '1 ""! t "} ,... (' Y) (l r t \-- <1 A \. •. • ,. .._. .• • , l.i, , -1 • -' l . . • l- 2 . · .. t I • .• !' ..._.. i. , shaU 

on of a complaint, to include the defendant's 

reasons for rejection together with person responsible for 

said rejection. 
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It is further ORDEI<ED that \'lhcnevcr any future 

complaints arise under the provision of this Order, the 

Government shall furnish tl1e name of the person who made such 

complaint and a brief description of the nature and substance . 
of the complaint, including the date of the alleged incident 

and the building with respect to which the complaint was made. 

Thereafter, the defendant shall have thirty (30) days from 

the date notice is received of such complaint and the nature 

thereof, to investigate such complaint, and if the complaint 

is determined by defendant to be valid, to advise the 

Government what steps, if any, have been takenW correct the 

conditions leading to the complaint; or, if the complaint 

is determined 

Government of the basis for determining to be 

invalid, before the shall apply to this Court with 

any motion for an Order to Show Cause or any other motion to 

compel compliance with this Order. 

VIII 
. . 

It is further ORDERED that for a period extending 

two (2) years from the entry of this Decree, the defendant 

shall, at least twenty (20) days prior to the event, report 

to counsel for the plaintiff: 

1. Any new ownership or management interests 

in residential property in the New York area acquired by the 

defenJant. 

2. The divestment, through transfer or sale, 

of any ownership or ma11agement interests in residential property 

in the New York are8. 

··i1- l; 



I 
!! 

IX 

Two years from the date this Decree is entered, or 

thereafter, the defendant may move to dissolve this Order. 

If the United States fails to interpose any objection within 

thirty (30) days of the Notice of Motion, this injunction 

shall be dissolved and the complaint dismissed without a 

hearing or further Order ot the Court. 

X 

Each party shall bear its own costs. 

Court shall retain of this action 

for all purposes until the termination of this Order. 

ORDERED THIS 

The undersigned apply for and 
consent to the entry of this 
ORDER: 

For the Defendant: 

day of 1975. 

EDWARD NEAI-IER 
United States District Judge 

For the Plaintiff: 

-12-
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.JSP:fES:NPG:mp 
D .. l 175-52-28 

Mr. Roy Cohn 
Saxe. B.1con, Bolan 

and tt:mley 
39 East 68th Street 
Ne"t-1 York, New York 10021 

Re: United v. Trump Management 
et 

1 was sorry to hear of your illness and wish 
you speedy recovery. 

As I expla.i.ned to you by telephone, we unclerutand 
that this case has been se·&::tled in principle in 

\·lith our !{emorandu:n of Understanding t"'hich was 
signed by both parties on January 20, 1975. The 
.agreement provides, among other tb.:i.ngs, that 

{tlhe prtrtiGS shall •.• seek the 
assistance of the Court to resolve 
any dispute arising solely out of 
disagrPernent as to the meaning of 
any prop0sed to 
in the \!et':!cr.:mdmn of "Cndcrst<1nd1.ug. 
All other provisions in tha attached 
Consent Decree anrl th<Jze not in 
di.spute 11s to me in the 
of Gh.1.ll be contained 
in their entirety in the final 
Co:nsent Decree. 

Records 
Chrono 
Mr. Schwelb 
Mr. Golrlbcrg 
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The se'=!ond sentence of quoted pass.:1ge makes it 
crysta.l clear that th.ore nre to be !!£ changes in the 
decree att:1ehed to the ?1cmor.andl.!!ll except those 
epecif!cally set forth i.n the Ucmorandum. As one who 
represents his clients with oufficient zeal to suit 
most. you my un\villingness to 
renegotiate ""hat we ill ready negotiated, or to have 
a ner;otiated settlement pic:k.cd apart once tb.e pressure 
of imminent: trial is off. 

The 'counterdraftu •·;hich you submitted to us 
does not ftppear in any way to recognize the validicy 
of the Hemorandum of Under:1tanding and makes innumerable 
changes otha1.· than those sr-cci.fied in that Hemorandum. 
all. of which weaken the Order. I was 
somewhat reassured, hopefully "tvit:h reason. by I 
took to he your assurrmce that you di.d not view the 
u .... ...,,.... .......... ...y ....... , ..... .... .:.--.t-l-rt .... t._ ... ··--· ..1--j---- ... -! t·'" 4'J'-'...._,,_ QUYUlU <.41:> <.t. 0 .J.J.U;t;.t..,t.,;n_ LU<el.l.. \¥<..11:) ..,. U\0! J. 

the ultimate resollJ.tion of thi.s c.1se and· that you do 
regard it as a valid instt·umcnt -v;hich both parties are 
bound to follow as closely possible. 

Accordingly, I am going along with your request 
to draft a net.; letter whj.,:h sets forth the differences 
between your "counterdraft:u and the earlier version of 
our llgreement and which of the provisions 
omitted from your decree are essential to a settlement. 
Please keep in mind that by writing this letter we are 
not to the· reopening of any !"legotiations 
foreclosed by Hemorandu:-rJ of Understanding and that 
we believe th3t the should be settled forthwith 
on the terms to which we previously agreed. It is 
.!!2£ my intention to treat an agreement previously 
negotiated as bei.ng a starting point for new 
negotiations whir:h could only we.:.tken it. 
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a.. Farngra.ph II ( l). !_./ DefendD.nts' 
notlfic<:!tion to three fn.ir housing groups 
(names t.o be >'lgrecd u;)on by the parties) of 
defendants 5 frd.r policies and 
eubse'-]Utmt Heekly notification of defendants' 
vactmc:tos to each group. \.Ze would be 
s2tinfied to the raspon9ibility 
fo'r selecting the f . .lir housing to 
the Uaw York City on Human Rights. 
Alternatively, ";.·<ntld be content with the 
selecticm of the groups: (1) the 
New York City Open H,Jusing Ccrs.ter, the 
South Side Cms:x::::anii:y i'1issiou (for Spanish 
speaking people) and any f>.lir housing or 
civi 1 gi:uup i..:r.) your pre posed 
vi.tness from the NAACP belongs. 

b. Parat-;l.'aph III A (3) (a}. Inclusion of 
words HEqua.l Housing Opportuni.ties u and 
fair housing log" in all types of advertising 
including ads of 6 line.s or more. See 
pa.r.ogrttph (e) of of Understanding 
for. prior negotiated modification. As you 
know, W£! had recommended 
inclusim1 in ads 3 lines, and the 6 lines 
were the cofu.promi !le 011 which we both 
signed off. · 

*I References to numbered paragraphs refer to those 
cont;lined in Plaintiff t s i"rODOSed Consent Decree' 
forwarded to defendants• on February 5, 1975, unless 
other\-1ise he1.·cin. 
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c. Paragraph III A (3)(b). Advertising of 
housing opportunities 1.n minority media. 
See p.'lragraphs (f) .2nd (g) of Hemorandum of 
Underet:mding prior t1cgoti.ated modific& ... 
tion of our original proposal. 

d. III A (4). t{r!.ttcn 
notification to all appropriate companies 
with defendants do ·business of 
defendants' fair housing policies. 

e •. Paragraph III B. Provision of list 
of certain vacancies to Open Housing Center. 
See paragraph (h) of Hemorandum of 
Understartding for prior negotiated modification. 
The text o.f paragraph (h) makes it quite 
clear that such holdi.ngs of vacancies is 
to be accomplished, and it is no secret to 
you that this relief is of 
particularly great 

f. Paragraph III C (1). Advertising of 
defendants• employment opportunities in 
minority media. 

g. Paragraph III C (2). Inclusion of the 
words ''Et1ual Opportunity Employer 11 in all 
e.rnpl.oyrnent e.dvertising. 

h. Paragraph IV A (1). Income standards 
are to be one week's salary equal 
to ona ruonth • s rent., Virtually every 
resident rnanager testified on deposition 
that the prior standard ·ttas gross income 
and not net income. Other provisions related 
to objective standards., Paragraph IV A 
3 and paragraph (i} of the tfemorandum of 
Understanding, set forth the principle 
that the standards for tenancy shall be no 
more G tringent tha.n those previously 
followed by defendants. 
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1. Footnote to Pttrttgraph IV A (1). 

should bo :r.ct:1ined to assura that 
-wife's income c.md other forms of income are 
cotmted not· merely given fair and 
reasonable cons See additional 
discussion • as =o requirememt for 

public assistance payments. 

j & Paragraph IV B (2) (a). Naintenance 
at selected complexes in Brooklyn 
and Qu.er,ms of heekly llst..:in<;s of all 
vacancies at defcnd.!lnts' buildings. 

k. IV (d). Rentals 
on firstGcome, first-served 

basis. 

1. Paragraph V. Reporting obligations 
to Lw1 £or period of three (3) years. 

m. Paragraph V (c) and (d)(l), (2) and 
(3). Other reporting requirements. 

n. Paragraphs VI (1) through (4). 
Record keeping provisions. 

o. I. The prohibitory 
injuncti.on is pi?.rmanent. After three years, 
we have no objection to a clause enabling 
defendants t:o move for a dissolution of 
the provisions of the 
decree, subject to good cause objections 
by plaintiff. 

2. Qther changes to set:tJ.ement, .hi 
eonsent 

a. The prC!fatory langu;jge of tha two 
proposals can be combined s:ttisfactorily. 
We should keep the on behalf 
of evP-zyone to .!t rn:t.ni..mnrn. 
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be The diffcrencea bN::t-1eert Paragraph VIII 
of: our proposal and VII of 
defendants' relating to notification 
to eithor party' of housing discrimi.nation 
complaints negotinble. 

a. The terms of tht-: dismissal of Fred 
Donald Trump f.nd:tv:i.dually should be 
to to the of Understanding 
which that they are still in as 
officers of th.e corror,ltion. 

d8 As you mentione.c over the telephone, 
v I..efrak H:ts Teversed by the Court 

of .Appeals. Plaintiffs have applied for 
a relu:aring en h.:<nc, and expect to go to 
the COuz;t ""I£ they lose. Accordingly, 
the footnote in our original proposal is 
still valid. In any event, your people 
teetified that they counted public assistance 
payments now • and :;.ince the standards are 
not to be more atr:tngent than before, they 
should continue to do so. 

Per our agreement by telephone, we will look' 
forward to r·eceiving your response within five business 
days. I suggest that aft·ar th.:1t vJe put aside four 
continuous hours or so of attention solely to getting 
the mechanics of this getting it 
type4 in suitable fbrm, and get.ting it signed and 
ready for submission to the Court. If lve do not hear 

you, as ,'J'l"r:lneed, we will assume that settlement 
is not possible •.Jithout seeking the assistance of 
Judge Neaher as provided in our He.morandum of 
Understanding. 
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All in I to s.::.y I don't know tvhether 

to b·e or surrx e.t t.:he way tLut you are 
making a careor of thi.s. Then ag:1in, I sttppose 
you a.lr11ays ne::;d rr.atm:·ial for .'l lwok. I lil<c 
to thfnk that I'll get a copy of the 
ne}•.t ono too. and good if I am 
with the Civil Rights Divisio\1. .• 

Sineerelyt 

J. STAt:U..EY P01"TIHGER 
Assistant Attorney General 

C:i.vil Rights Division 

Ry: 

FRAUK E. SCHHELB 
Chief 

Housing Section 
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APPENDIX E 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEiv YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRill1P, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEHENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) . ) 
) 
) 
) 
) _________________________ ) 

CIVIL ACTION 
NO. 73 C 1529 

CONSENT ORDER 

This action was instituted by the United States of 
. 

America on October 15, 1973, pursuant to the Fair Hous:i.ng Act 

of 1968, 42 u.s.c. 3601 

. The claim of the United States is that the defendants 

have failed and neglected to exercise their affirmative and 

nondelegable duty under the Fair Housing Act to assure com-

pliance by their subordinates, with the result that equal housing 

opportunity has been denied to substantial numbers of persons 

and that defendant's subordinates have failed to carry out their 

obligations under the Act. 

Defendants vigorously deny said allegations and claim 

that the number of violations, if any, are insubstantial, and 

that if there was any discrimination, it was not done at the 

direction of the individual defendants or the officers of Trump 

Management, Inc. 

Accordingly, without adjudication of the merit 1and 

without any admission as to the exist0nce or absence of liability, 

and in order to resolve this matter without further protracted 

litigation, the parties hereto are pt:epared to resolve this case 

by the entry of a Consent Decree. 
/ 
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It is expressly understood and that the execution 

of this Agreement by Trump Management, Inc., is in no way an 

admission by it of a violation of the prohibition against dis-
. ' 

·· crimination as set forth in the Fair Housing Act of 1968, or 

any other applicable statute, rule or regulation • 

. _lrrespective of the merits of the complaint, however, the 

principal officers of defendant Trump Management, Inc., are 
• 

prepared to affirmatively assume and carry out the responsibility 

for assuring that their emp.loyees will comply with the Act and 

will promote equal opportunity. Accordingly, the parties are 

prepared to resolve this case by the entry of the following 

Consent Order. 

I. 
' It is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that in 

consideration of their affirmative assumption of responsibility 

contained in part III herein, the complaint against Fred C. 

Trump and Donald J. Trump is dismissed against them in their 

personal capacity, with prejudice, as to all allegations 

contained therein. 

II. 

INJUNCTION 

It is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that the 

defendant, its officers, agents, employees, successors, and 

all persons in active concert or participation with any of 

them, are hereby permanently enjoined from: 
.,; 
I 

; 
/ I 

/ I 

- 2 -
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GENERAL I:UU:iCTIVE PROVIS 

1. Refusing to sell or rent, refusing to negotiate for 
• 

the sale or rental of, or otherwise making unavailab].e or denying 

any dwellir!g to any person on acc9unt of race, color, religion, 

sex or national origin. 

2. Discriminating against any person in the terms, 

conditions, or privileges of sale or rental of a dwelling, or in 

the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, 

because of race, color, religion, sex or national origin.· 

3. Making, printing, or publishing, or causing to be 

made, printed, or published, any notice, statement or advertise-

ment with respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling that 

indicates any preference, limitation, or discrimination based 

on race, color, religion, sex or national origin, or an intention 

to make such preference, limitation or discrimination. 

4. Representing to any person because of race, color, 

religion, sex or national origin that any dwelling is not avail-

able for inspection, sale or rental when such dwelling is in 

'fact so available. 

5. Influencing the residential choice of any person on 

account of race, color, religion, sex or national origin • . 
6. Coercing, threatening, or interfering with, or 

attempting to coerce, threaten or interfere with any person 

in the exercise or enjoyment of the right to equal 

opportunity protected by the Fair Housing Act of 1968, or in 

the exercise or enjoyment of the right to assist others to 

secure equal housing·opportunity • 

. - -

\ 
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7. · Engaging in any act or practice which has the purpose 

or·the effect of denying or abridging the right to equal housing 

opportunity protected by the Fair Housing Act. In this 
'. . 

defendants shall not, in determining the income 

qualification for rental of any person, family, or other 

group of persons, fail or refuse to fully count a woman's 

total income, including salary, wages, alimony, support 

payments or other income from whatever source received. 

III 

ASSUMPTION OF RESPONSIBILITY BY 
PRINCIPALS OF TRlJMP MANAGEMEt-.rt 
INC., AND TRAINING PROGRAM FOR 

AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES 

Trump Management Inc., controls many thousands of rental 

units in the New York area and elsewhere, and its activities 

therefore have a major impact on housing opportunities. The 

. company therefore occupies a position of leadership in the real 

estate community and can, by its example, influence the activities 

not only of its own agents and employees but also of many others. 

The Fair Housing Act prohibits conduct which is discriminatory 

in its effect, regardless of motivation, and violations of the 

Act can result from thoughtlessness and lack of information, as 

well as from deliberate discrlinination. The principal officers . 
' 

of Trump Management, Inc., recognize that they have both the 

responsibility to assure nondiscrimination by their agents and 

employees and a significant opportunity to promote equal housing 

opportunity generally in the New York area and elsewhere. They 
:'!· 

are prepared to carry out that responsibility and to take 

advantage of that opportunity. 

- 4 -
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, · Accordingly, it is ORDERED as follows: 

A. The principal officers of Trump Hanagement, Inc., 
• 

presently Donald Trump and Fred C. Trump shall forthwith 

(1) thoroughly acquaint themselves personally 

on a detailed basis with all of the obligations of 
I 

I 
the defendant under the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 

as amended and as judicially interpreted; under 

state and municipal civil rights laws; under 

pertinent Regulations and Guidelines of the 

Department of Housing and Urban Development and 
I 

other appropriate agencies; and under this Order; 

(2) :Take steps to assure that their principal 

assistants and officers similarly familiarize 
I 

.themselves with their obligations; and 
i 

(3) IPersonally undertake to assure that the 
• • r program set forth herein is successfully 

I 
carried:out. 

i 
t 

B. Within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Decree, 
I ·····---· 

the Defendant by its principal officers;· shall conduct and 

complete an educational program for all employees with rental 

or employment responsibilities, who have contact with pro-

spective tenants, provide information the public about 

rental, or accept or process applications for rentals, or who 
! 

are engaged in any manner in the employment process, to inform 

them of the provisions of this Decree, and their duties under 

the Fair Housing Act of 1968·. Such program shall include: 
"t I 

- 5 
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{1) Furnishing to each such agent and employee 

a letter surrnnarizing the terms of this Decree and 
. 

of the Fair Housing Act as it applies to the 

employee. 

(2) Informing each such agent and employee, 

in person or· by general meeting, of the provisions 

of this Decree and of duties of the Company and 

its agents and under the various 

applicable Fair Housing Acts. Each such agent 

and employee shall be advised that his failure 

to comply with the provisions of this Decree 

shall subject him to dismissal or other disci-

plinary action, and to sanctions for disobedience 

of this Order. 

· (3) Securing a signed statement from each such 

agent that he has read the letter mentioned above 

and received the instructions described in the 

preceding paragraph and forwarding a copy of each 

--such signed statement to plaintiff. 

Each new agent and employee shall be instructed in 

accordance with the procedures set out above and shall be 

required to sign a statement to the effect that he has been 

so instructed and will comply with such instructions within 

ten (10) days following the initial date of employment. 

Copies of all signed statements will be furnished to plaintiff 

upon execution. 

- 6.-
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IV 

AFFIRNATIVE PROGRAM 

It is further ORDERED that the defendant shall forthwith*/ 

and for a period of two (2) years following the entry of this 

Order take the following steps to adopt and implement an 

affirmative program aimed at ensuring compliance with the Fa:i.r 

Housing Act of 1968, and at overcoming the effects of any 

previous actions by the defendant which had the purpose or effect of 

impairing rights secured by trhe Fair Housing Act: 

A. Notification to the Community of Defendant's 
Policy 

1. Notify the Open Housing Center of the New York 

Urban League, 150 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York, in writing, 

with copies to counsel for plaintiff that apartments owned or 

managed by the defendant are available to all qualified persons 

without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

Included in such letter shall be a full synopsis of the rental 

standards and procedures outlined in Part V, below, and a 

general statement of present and anticipated vacancies in Trump 

apartment buildings in the New York Metropolitan area. The 

parties shall agree on the text of an appropriate letter prior 

to its mailing. Subsequently, defendant shall mail to the Open 

Housing Center ·a copy of its weekly Central Listing of vacancies 

described infra in Part V of this decree. This mailing shall 

be done on the day the list is made. The Open Housing Center 

may, at its own discretion, forward copies of the above-

mentioned letter and weekly list of vacancies to any and all 

persons. or organizations with an interest in promotinr- 1equal 

housing opportunities. 

*f The defendant's obligations to w1plernent each provision of 
this Order for affirmative action shall begin ten (10) days following 
the entry of this Order, unless otherwise specified herein. 

- 7 -
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· 2. Post and maintain fair housing signs in a form 

approved by the Secretary of the Department of Housing and 
• 

Urban Development (HUD)2/ in all offices of the defendant 

where there is rental or public contact. 

----3. Implement an advertising program aimed at informing 

the nonwhite community of defendant's nondiscriminatory rental 

policy. The defendant shall 

a. Include, in all adverti.sing in news-. 
papers, telephone directories, radio, television 

and other media, and on all billboards, signs, 

pamphlets, brochures, and other promotional 

literature the words "EqualHousing Opportunity" 

and the fair housing logo. These words and the 

,logo shall be prominently placed and easily 

In addition, all advertising 

placed by the Company or its agents shall conform 

to the practices recommended in the Department of 

Housing and Urban Development advertising guide-

lines, as published in 37 Fed. Reg., pp. 6700-02, 

on April 1, 1972. A copy of these guidelines 

is attached as App,.endix "B" to this Order. 

*I See the pertinent HUD regulation, 37 F.R. 3429 {a copy 
attached hereto as Appendix A). 

This subsection dealing with newspaper advertising shall 
only apply to newspaper ads of six (6) lines or more. Defendant 
shall continue its present advertising policies, and shall not 
thange its present practices· with respect to the size type 
of advertising by shortening or by otherwise changing its policy 
of placing display ads to avoid the requirement of including 
the equal opportunity statement. 

***I In radio and television advertising, the words "equal 
hOusing opportunities" shall be used and shall be easily audible. 

- 8 -
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(b) Allocate a reasonable proportion of its 

advertising budget to advertising in media 

to the black and Puerto 

Ri.can communities. The parties have agreed 

that the placement of reasonably prominent 

monthly display advertisements, one in the 

black and one i.n the Puerto Rican press,!/ 

together with the allocation of 10% of defendant's 

radio advertising budget to black-oriented and 

Span:i.sh language stations, shall meet the re-

quirements of this provision.· All advertise-

ments of Trump buildings in minority media shall 

advertise a full cross-section of Trump buildings 

with vacancies, and shall not stress or give 

undue emphasis to buildings with substantial 

minority 

4. Provide written notification to each firm, association 

company, corporation, or other person or organization engaged 

by defendant to act as referral agency, apartment locating 

service, credit checking company, or management ccmpany that 

apartments owned or by the defendant are available to 

all qualified persons without regard to race, color, religion, 

·sex or national origin. Each such notification shall also 

advise the recipient of defendant's objective standards and 

procedures for rental. 

"!_/ The parties agree that the placement of such advertisements 
in the Amsterdam Ne\vS and' El Diario 'l.vill satisfy this requirement. 

**I If the listed apartments do not include all Trump buildings 
With vacancies, the buildings listed shall be rotated with each 
ad so that the same apartment buildings are not continuously or 
disproportionately advercised under this subsection. 

-9-
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B. _ _s>f Li:>_t:_i_r:gs for Hinority 
AEartmc·nt 

For two years after the entry of this Order, defendant 

··shall notify the Open Housing Center of the New York Urban 

_________ .. __ 150 Fifth Avenue, Ne\.;r York, Ne\\r York, 10003, of every 

/' .. 

fifth available apartment in each apartment building avned 

and/ or managed by the defendant \vhich has a black tenancy of 

less than ten at three days prior to placing 

that apartment on the open market.:::!:_/ During this three-day 

period, the Open Housing Center shall have the opportunity 

to refer qualified applicants to the defendant for the purpose 

of renting the apartment. All applicants referred by the 

Open Housing Center shall provide the defendant or its repre-

sentative with an appropriate identification which 1;o7ill serve 

to advise the defendants that such applicant has been referred 

by the Open Housing Center pursuant to this subsection. After 

three days if no qualified applicant referred by.the Center 

has filed an application seeking to rent the apartment, the 

apartment may be placed on the open market to be rented in 

defendant's normal business custom without regard to race, 

color, religion, sex or national origin. 

C. Affirmative Program 

The defendant shall recruit, hire, assign, promote and 

transfer employees and agents without regard to race, color, 

*I The requirements of this provision need not be followed for 
apartment buildings which presently have or in the future reach 
a black occupancy rate of 10%. For these apartment buildings, 
apartments shall to be rented without regard to race, 
color, religion, sex or national origino 

The three-day period shall- begin \vhen notification has 
been completed and the Open Housing Center has received, either 
in person, by telephone, or_ by mail, the listings. For 
purposes of this Decree, rental on the open market shall mean 
rental to any person not referred by the Open Housing 

10 -
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religion, sex or national origi.n and will endeavor to place 

blacks and other nonwhite perso•1s in supervisory and pro-

fessional positions as vacancies for which they are qualified 

. *I ___ ar1.se ._ 

Pursuant to this program, the defendant shall take 

the following steps: 

1. For every third -available employment opportunity, 

place advertisements on a regular basis in that 

primarily serve the black and describing 

the available work opportunities.***/ 

2. Prominently include in all advertising of available 

jobs the slogan "Equal Opportunity Employer." 

3. Display an equal employment opportunity poster-:!:.!::!:./ 

in a p'rominent place clearly visible to prospective agents, 

employees, and applicants for employment in each office of 

the defendant where applications for employment are taken. 

"!._/ References to employees and agents in Part IV C of this 
Decree shall include only those persons who are presently 
employed as or seek to be superintendents, rental agents, 
leasing agents, or central office personnel who receive, 
review or approve applications for tenancy or otherwise 
p'articipate in the rental process. 

The parties agree that the placement of such advertise-
ments in the Amsterdam News and El Diario will satisfy this 

·requirement. 

If defendants shall choose to restrict employment 
to persons living within a reasonable distance from the 
employment location, they shall so specify in these adver-
tiiements. Such designated areas shall be designed to 
include areas of potential black and Spanish residents 

., 
****/ This poster shall be in the form, size and 
approved by the United States Department of Labor and the 
Equal Employment Opportunity c-ommission. 

- 11 -
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, /+. Notify in \Yriting, each labor union representing 

any part of defendant's work force of the· terms of Part IV (C) 

of this Decree and that prospective employees are to be referred 

without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

___ !n recruiting and hiring nom·1hite employees, the 

dant shall not require that nonwhite persons recruited or 

·- qualifications for any job or position more 

exacting than those which were in effect with respect to white 

employees before the institution of this action. 

v 
IMPLEHENTATION OF OBJECTIVE RENTAL 

STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 

In order·to assure nondiscriminatory selection and 

assignment of tenants and to assure equal opportunity in 

housing at each building owned or managed by Trump Management, 

·Inc., defendant shall adopt and the following 

standards and procedures which shall be applied in determining 

whether or not to rent to an applicant. 

A. Standards 

1. Income 

One week's gross income from all sources"!;_/ must 

be at least equal to one month's rent, except in the following 

circumstances: 

(a) The applicant(s) have outstanding automobile 

payments, or other fixed debt in excess of $50.00 

a month, with a remaining debt period in excess of 

four (4) months, or 
.. / 

*l This shall include allinony , child support, pubiic 
assistance payments, or guarantor's assurances on behalf 
of public assistance wife's inc.ome, part-time 
employment, pensions, etc. 
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(b) The family coli'lposition is in excess of 

three (3) persons. 

In either circtunstm1ce (a) or (b) above, one week's net 

income must be at least equal to one month's rent. 

---If an applicant does not meet the foregoing income 

standards, he or she may still qualify for rental if: 

(a) He or she secures a guarantor who can 

verify funds sufficient to meet the financial 

obligations of the guarantors fixed monthly 

payments for his or her residence, as well as 

the applicanes rental, based on the defendant's 

income standardso 

(b) If the applicant is willing to post 

three (3) months security deposit or will supply 

six (6) months rent in advance. 

(c) If a tenant switches from one Trump 

building to another Trump building and if that 

tenant has met his obligations to Trump Management, 

Inc., in the past. 

2. Occupancy 

Not more than two (2) persons in a one-bedroom 

apartment. Not more than four (4) persons, two (2) adults 

and two (2) children of the same in a two-bedroom 

apartment. 

B. Procedures 

1. Application Procedure .. 
,( I 

*I Except that children under ten years of age may of 
different sexes. 

These procedures are substantially based on defendanes 
past practices, as described during discovery. 

- 13 -
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· a. Applications for tenancy will be received at the 

apartment building or complex where the tenant is applying 

for an apartment. Applications shall be received by Super-
. ' 

intendents or rental agents authorized by the defendant to 

accept applications, and instructed in the requirements of 

this Order and of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 

3601 Applications shall be accepted from all persons 

to apply and the or agent shall make 

no subjective judgment on the acceptability of a prospective 

tenant, unless said prospective tenant is: 

(i) visibly and objectively drunk 

and disorderly; 

(ii) visibly and objectively under 

the influence of drugs; 

(iii) abusive tm.;ards the superintendent 

or rental agent; 

or there is; 

(iv) a visible and objective indication 

that the applicant will not maintain his or 

her apartment with sufficient care and 

cleanliness so'as not to intrude on the 

rights of other tenants. In order to satisfy 

this criteria, defendant or its agents shall . f 
! 

contact the applicant's former landlord to 

ascertain the manner in which he or she had 

maintained the rented premises. In no event 

shall the subjective :mpression by a super-

intendent of manner of dress or style 

of grooming di.squalify an applicant. This 

subtecticn shall apply solely to cleanliness 

criteria. 
\ 
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· b. The superintendent or rental shall review 

the application for completeness and shall require a securjty 
• 

deposit of one month's rent a W2 form (or reasonable 

substitute therefor) from all applicants. The agents shall 

then submit the deposit, W2 form and application, for review 

and determination to one of the defendant's two main offices. 

No superintendent or rental agent shall have the authority to 

make a determination on the 'acceptability for tenancy of an 

applicant except as outlined in B(l)(a) (i-iv) above. 

c. Applications shall be reviewed and a determination 

of acceptability shall be made by the Section Managers employed 

in the defendant's main offices. 

d. If conducted, a uniform credit check and/or 

employment check shall be conducted with respect to each 

·applicant. The standards of acceptability based on credit 

and employment shall be uniformly applied without regard to 

race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

e. Each applicant shall be informed wherever possible 

--Within ten (10) business days whether or not he or she has 

been accepted for tenancy. If an application can not be . 
processed within ten (10) days, defendant shall notify the 

applicant of the reason therefor, but in no event shall an 

applicant not be informed 'of the disposition of his application 

beyond twenty (20) days from the time he or she applied. If 

rejected, the applicant shall be informed of the reason for 

rejection, and of the specific objective standard he O:L she 
I 

failed to meet. 

15 
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2. Providing Rental Information to Apartment 
Seekers 

a. Defendant shall maintain at its central offices 

at 2611 West 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York and 2064 Cropsey 

Avenue; Brooklyn, New York, a Central Listing, to be compiled 

on a weekly basis, of each currently vacant or available 

apartment in the New York area, and of each apartment expected 

to be vacant or available in the New York area within the next . 
thirty days. This list shall include the type of apartment, 

the number of roorns, the monthly rent, and the date of avail-

ability and shall be shown to all persons inquiring about 

available apartments. Defendant shall also maintain at each 

of its buildings a similar list of the apartments vacant at 

that building by type of apartment available and a notification 

that complete lists of all available apartments in the New 

York area are available for inspection at defendant's main 

offices located at 2611 W. 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York and 

2064 Cropsey Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. 

b. Apartments which are available for rental and listed 

on the apartment availability list (2(a) above) shall be shown 

to all interested inquirers by an authorized agent of the 

defendant. \ . 
\ 

c. Inquirers shall be uniformly informed of the quali-

fications for rental, including the income, security deposit 

and W2 form requirements. 

·, 
\ 
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'd. waiting will be maintained at any of the 

defendant's offices or apartment buildings nor shall there be 

any preference for persons referred by present tenants. 

Rental will be on a first-come, first-served basis when 

apartments are available for rental. 

VI 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

It is further ORDERED that three (3) months after the . . 
entry of this.Decree, am thereafter three (3) times per year 

for two years the defendant shall file with the Court and 

serve on counsel for the plaintiff a report containing the 

following for the following apartment buildings 

owned and/or managed by the defendant: 
I 

1. Argyle Hall I 

t 
2. Westminster Hall I 

! 

3. Fontainebleau Apartments 
I 
' 4. Lawrence Gardens and Lawrence Towers 

5. Sea Isle Apartments 

6. R:achaven Apartments 
. l -·-----· 

7. Shorehaven Apartments 

8. Belcrest Apartments 

9. Highlander Hall 

10. Saxony Hall 

11. Clyde Hall 

12. Edgerton Apartments 

13. Winston Hall i '·- --·--·· 

14. Sussex Hall 

*f Since this is defendant's present practice and it is non-
discriminatory, plaintiff interposes no objection thereto. 

- 17 -
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a. 'The number of persons, by race::_/ (as visually 

making inquiry in person about the availability 
• 

of terms of rental of an apartment during the preceding reporting 

period and the number by race, that: 

1. made inquiry; 

2. were offered an application; 

3. filled out an application; 

4.. submitted an applicant 't>lith deposit; 

5. were accepted for occupancy; 

6. were rejected; 

7. -withdrew applications; 

8. had applications pending at the end of the 

reporting period. 

This report rnay be forwarded to plaintiff on a form similar 

to the sample form attached hereto as Appendix C. 

b. A report reflecting the applications for tenancy 

submitted during the preceding reporting period, including 

following information for each person:submittirig an 

application: 

1. name, address, business and home telephone 

number, and race; 

2. date of application; 

3. whether a deposit was received; 

4. date notified of acceptance or rejection; 

5. weekly income of applicant and monthly rent 

of apartment sought; 
..., 

For purposes of this Decree, all notations of race shall 
be as visually observable. 

- 18 -
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6. i£ accepted, apartment chosen; 

7. if rejected, reason therefor; 

8. name of person or persons \vho decided to 

accept or reject the 

9. if neither accepted nor rejected, status 

or disposition of application. 

This report may be forwarded to plaintiff on a form similar 

to·the sample form attached hereto as Appendix D. For each 

rejected nonwhite applicant, the report shall include a 

detailed statement of the reason(s) for rejection and 

supporting information. 

c. A list of vacancies during the preceding quarter, 

including the date the apartment "1as placed on the market :_/ 

and the date each apartment was rented or otherwise committed 

for rental. 

d. Reports filed pursuant to this Order shall also 

include the current statistics with respect to the race of 

t'enants in each apartment building owned or managed by the 

defendant, and an account of the steps taken during the 

preceding reporting period to implement the program outlined 

in Sections I and II above, including: 

1. Copies of all letters sent to apartment locators 

and credit checking companies, Fair Housing groups, 

and labor unions pursuant to Parts III and IV of 

this Decree. 

.. 
*T Including where appropriate, the date the Open Housing 
Center was contacted concerning the apartment's availability 
in accordance with Part III above. 

- 19 -
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Representative copies of all newspaper advertise-

ments placed in the Amsterdam News and El Diario 

pursuant to this Order and the date of each 

advertisement. 

3. The name, race, position and office assignment 

of each rental agent, superintendent and main office 

employee employed as of the date of the entry of this 

Order, an assurance that the educational program 

required by Part n has been conducted, and copies 

of all signed statements obtained in accordance 

with PartU of this Decree. If any rental agent 

refuses to sign such a statement the defendants 

shall include a full statement of all pertinent 

.circumstances and of any action taken by them in 

relation 

VII 

RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the defendant shall,for two 

years following the entry of this Decree, make and preserve the 

following records for all apartment buildings owned or managed 

by them: 

1. The name, address, telephone number and date and 

time of contact of each person inquiring in person about the 

availability or terms of rental of an apartment 

the size of apartment sought, if known, and whether: 

A. he was an application; 

B. he filled out an application; 

C. he submitted an application with deposit. 

*I This may be accomplished by maintaining a guest register 
at each apartment building owned by the defendants. 
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2. A detailed record of all action taken on each 

inquiry and application and the reasons for such action. 

3. A detailed record of all steps taken by the defen-
. i 

dant in ascertaining the acce-ptability for of the 
; 
! 

applicant and the name of the employee who took such steps 

or who approved or rejected the application. 
I 
i 
' 4. All records which are the source or coritain any 
' 
I 

of the information pertinent to defendant's obligations under 
I = ' this Order. kepresentatives of the plaintiff'shall be per-
i 

rnitted to inspect and copy all pertinent records of the defen-
! 
I 

dant at any and all reasonable times, provided, however, that 
i 

the shall endeavor to minimize any to 
I. 

the defendant from the inspection of such rec9rds. 

VIII ----·-·.-1 

It is further ORDERED that for a oeriod exteadinl' two .... ! 0 I . 
years from the entry of this Decree, the defepdant shall, at 

t 
1 
! least twenty (20) days prior to the event, report to 

I for the plaintiff: 
t 

1. Any mvnership or management interests· In t . ---- -l 
I 

residential property, acquired by the defendant. .. . . I 
2. The divestment through transfer ot:i' sale·,· -of any 

i 
I 

ownership or management interests in property. 

JJ{ I 
It is further ORDERED that for a period of two _years 

! . 
f 1 

after the entry of this Decree the defendant shall advise _______ , ___ _ 
counsel .for plaintiff, in,..vriti.ng, of all from 

"!/ For purposes of this Decree, "complaints" shall mean any 
information which comes to the attention of the defendant or 
its officers from 'i,lhatever source received, which indicates 
a possible denial of equal housing opportunities under the 
Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. 3601 or a potential 
violation of this Decree. 
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\qhatevcr source, received by the defendant regarding equal 

opportunity in housing at properties mmed and/or managed by 
• 

Trump Nanagement, Inc. In.addition, plaintiff shall, for a 

period of two years after the entry of this notify 

·-- ·---- ··· -- the defendant of all complaints received by the plaintiff. 

Except where the plaintiff determines that there 

exists a need for emergency relief threatening the effective-

ness of this Decree, the platntiff shall afford the defendant 

fifteen (15) days from the date notice of such a complaint is 

received to the complaint and provide plaintiff with 

an explanation of the information contained in the complaint. 

If the complaint· is determined to be valid by either party, 

plaintiff shall recommend what steps it believes to be 

necessary to correct the conditions leading to the complaint, 

and shall afford the defendants an additional seven (7) 

days to effectuate appropriate steps to remedy·the conditions 

leading to the complaint and to overcome any continuing effects 

of the alleged discriminatory actions before applying to the 

court for a motion to compel compliance with this Decree, or 

any other additional judicial relief. 

X 

Each party shall bea·r its mm costs. 

"t - 22 -
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The Court shall retain jursidiction of this action 

for all purposes. 

ORDERED this day of ' 1975. 

The undersigned apply for and 
consent to the entry of this 
Order: 

For the Defendants: 

ROY M. COHN 
Bacon, Bolan & Manley 

39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 

FRED C. TRUMP 

DONALD TRUHP 

ED'i.JARD NEAI-IER 
United States District Judge 

For the Plaintiff: 

FRANK E. SCH\.JELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 

of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

NOID1AN P. GOLDBERG 
Attorney, Housing Section 
C:J .. vil Rights Division 

_Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

{2 A ". . ' . '? .., ) 
-· 
DONNA F. 
Attorney, Hsilsing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Departmm t of Justice 
Wasnngton, D. c. 20530 

-----------------------------1-IENRY BRACHTL 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 



; :. 

. '"''· 

• 

37 F.R. 3429 
Feb. 16, 1972 

.. .. 

........ --··-· ._ ... ,-- -------··· 

'I' ·I 

'• 

.· .. APPENDIX A 

ij4ules and Regulations 

.... 
., . 

.. _· .... 

. . ... ...... .... 

. ;_ 

Title' 24-HOUS!HG AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Chapter" !-Office of Assistant Secre-
tary for Equal Opportunity, Depart-
ment of Housing and Urban Devel-
opment 

A-FAIR HOUSING 
JDoclcct No. R-72-165 I 

PART 110-FAIR HOUSING POSTER 
The purpose of this regulation is to 

require the displ:ly of a fair 
poster by persons subject to sections 804-
806 of the Civil Hights Act of 1968 and to 
prescribe the content of this poster. 

Notice of a pro1;o3cd R!1Jcndment to 
Title 24 to include a new Part 72 was 
publishe-d in the FEDERAL REGISTER on 
August 4, 1971 <36 F'.R. 14336). <Under 
the rcorganizati::m of Title 24 published 

1971 <36 P.R. >. the fair housing 
poster will become new Part 110.) Com-
ments were from approximately 
20 interest€d and organizations 
and consideration has been given to each 
comment. 

Some with respect to pro-
posed § 72.10 criticized the coverage of 
the proposed re;;tllation as too broad, 
while other ccmmcnts obje::tcd that the 
coverage is too and various sug-
gestions were made for changes in cov-
erage. were dirPcted not only 
to what should be included 
but also to the sta.r:c at which the re-
quirement shoald take e!Tect and the 

. persons to whom it should npply. In 
respof1se to the comments. § 72.10 (a) 
<now § 110.10 lal and <b> > has been 
revised to clarify the exlent of COI'er-
ag-e, to broaden co\·crage to the extent 
appropriate and to eliminate unnecessary 
burdens where the requirement -::an ap-
propriately be narrowed or eliminated. 
Under 110.10 •;t• and •b>. display of 

prescribed poster at a sinr:le-family 
dwelling is not required unless the dwell-

,· tng Is being- c!Tcrrcl for sale or rental In 
· conjunction with the sale or rental of 

other dwellings; however if a real estate 
' . 

\ 
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broker or ngent is handling the sale or 
rental he must display the poster at any· 
place bu3incss where tl1e dwcllin.: i.s 
being offered for or rental. With re-
spect to all other dwellings covered by 
the Act, the poster must be displayed at 
nny plncc of bu.,inc:o.s where the d11·elling 

··is offered for sale or rrnlal: in addition, 
the poster must be at lhc dwell-
ing, except in the case of a single-
family dwcllinr, bciw; o!Tcred for sale or 
rental in conjunction with the sale or 
rental o.f other c.;;., a sub-
division, the poster may be di·:pl[lyed at 
model homC's Jn;,tcad of at each of the 
individu'll dwellings. FinallY. m the case 
of dwellings other than a sinr;Jc-iamily 
dwelling not bemg oiTerf'd for sale or 
rental in conjuncticm the sale or 
rental of other t!:c poster must 
be displayed from the beginning- of con-
struction the end of the sale or 
1·entnl process. 

t>everal comments revisions 
in the language of the poster described 
in proposed * 72.25. S;.Jch su:;_•!eotions in-
cluded rewriting the pe-ster in terms of 
the individual's rights rather th:m the 
Act's prohibitions. additional 
prohibitions cont:;Jined in t!J(! Act, em-
phasizing the nature oi pcn:11ti"s for 
failure to nnd listing the HUD area 
office instead of the regional office as a 
location to v;hirh to send complaints. 
The new adopt;, the suggestion 
With rer.ard tn the nrea ottices ln that 

·.the poster will provide for insertion of 
the address of the or area ofTice 
as appronriate. It h:1s decided that 
instead of the contf'nt of the 
poster by adcling additionnl prohibitions. 
the poster should be made shorter and 
easier to understand bv bric>fly hi<>'h-
l!e-htinr. thr. major prohibitions. In addi-
tion, the F..qual Housing Opportunity 
Jogot.ype and slogan h'lve been inserted 
at the top of the poster. 

A comment by Fr.dcral Home Loan 
Bank Board IFHLBB> recommended 
exempting from this ren;ul11tion any per-
son subject to a ren;ulat;on of the FHLBB 
requiring that prrson to post a poster 
substantially similar in content to the 
poster de!':eribed in HUD's rcrr,ulation. ·A 
similar comment \\'as m:1de bv the 
o! Governors of the Frdrral Reserve Sys-
tem with respect to entities subject to 
supervision by any of the four Fcderal 
financial regulatory agencies. The De-
partment will authOiizc a person subject 
to the jurisdiction of a financial 
regulatory agency to utilize a po:_:ter 
&cribed in n regulation bv such ao::ency, 
n.nd approved by the Department, in-
stead of the poster prescribed by HUD. 
However, all of the other requirC'ments of 
Part 110 will remain fully ap•1Iicabic re-
gardless of whatever s:mctions the rcgu-
·latory agency prescnbcs for failure to 
comply with its rcr-ul:1tion. This provi-
sion is set forth in* 110.25<b>. There-
Quirement. set f0rth in 110.11Hcl, thnt 
financial ir::-'Llrjti(JllS ;H;:-,t and 
8 !nir f1(1:,trr \\ lll!HlL L1..' 
tmt.il May 1. 1072. in ordl'r to allow t:mc 
!or the Jo,ederal financial regulatory 
ncencics to i.<sur 

Proposed 72.30 stated thnt a 
to di:.play the as reqUired would be 

3429 a 

dermrd a discrim;nntory how:ing prac-
tice, I.e., an act unlawful under sections 

805, and 806 of title Vl!l, and prim<t 
I:-tcie evidence of n violation of these ;.-::c-
iions. as applicable. There were com-
ments fa ,-c:·;ng this pro1·isir·n and :1. com-
ment th:-tt such a 
bcvond the DCJl:lllmcnt's rn 
the ;>:round that title Vlii p1 P'crilJc · the 
specific of clisnimin[llion \\'hich are 
unlawful. There was als.; a c:>mm::nt ITC-
ommendinr.; that f2ilure t') c"Jmply sh0uld 
subject a person to from 
eligibility for FHA insurance. 

The Drpartmcnt believes that it has 
the autbority to require a fair housing 
.Poster, and that 72.30 does not 
prescribe a new violation not provJded for 
in title VIII. Rather. the section pro\ide.s 
an appropriate evidentiary mr:chanism 
for· assisting in the determination of 
whether a violation of Litle VIII has oc-
curred. For purposes of clarity, the provi- . 
sion has been combined with pro-
posed § 72.35-complaint.s-!nto a new , 
§ of failure to d;splay -
poster-and the combined text short-
ened. Under § 110.30, when a person 
claiming to bave bern injured by a dis-
criminatory housing practice files a com-
plaint pursunnt to Part 105-Fair Hous-
ing, n failure to display the required 
poster shall be deemed prima facie evi-
dence of such practice. 

The comment with respect tl) apr>lica-
'tion of ndditional sanctio:1s rejected, 
since such sanctions as \\'ell as others ll re 
provided in the Affirmative F::dr 
Marketing Regulations pubiishcd Janu-
ary 5, 1972 (37 F'.R. 75 l, for failure t'J 
make the posting required at FHA proj-
ect sites by § 200.620(f) of that rerrula-
tion. Although Part 110 is applicable to 
some persons who are not covered by 
the Affirmative Fair Housinr 
regulations, the Department considers 
that the insertion in Part 110 of the sanc-
tlons proposed in the comment is not 
appropriate. 

Accordingly, a new Part 110 is added 
to Title 24 to read as follows: 

Subport A-Purpose ond Definitions 
Sec. 
110.1 Purpose. 
110.5 Definitions. 

Subpart B-Requirements for Display of Posters 
110.10 Pe-rsons subject. 
110.15 Location of posters. 
110 . .20 A\'allnhllity of posters. 
110.25 Dcscrlption of posters. 

Subpart C-Enforcemenl 
110.30 Effect of failure to displa::; poster. 

AUTHORITY: The pro\'lsions of this Part ll 0 
are Issued linder sectiou 7 (d) of the Depart-
ment of Housing and Urbnn Development 
Act or 1965 (42 u.s.c. 3535 (d)). 

Subpart and Definitions 
§ 110.1 l'urposc. 

'The set forth in this part 
contain the proc"clurcs 1y 
the Scnctary of ;md Urban • .Je-
velopmcnt with respect to the display of 
a !air housing poster by persons subject 
to sections 804-806 of the Civil Right.s Act 
oi 19GB; 12 U.S.C. 3604-·3606. 

.t 
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§ 110.5 D('finitions. 
(a) "Department'' means the Depart-

ment of Housing and Urban Develop-
ment. 

<b> "Discriminatory housing practice'' 
means an act that is unlawful under sec-
tion 804, 805, or 806 of title VIII. 

(C) "Dwelling" means any building, 
structure, or portion thereof which is 
occupied as, or de:sirmed or intended for 
occupancy a:;, a residence by one or more 
families, and any vacant land which is 
offered for sale or lease for.the construc-
tion or location thereon of any such 
building, structure, or portion thereof. 

<d> ":f'amily" includes a single Individ-
ual. 

<e> "Person" includes one or more in-
dividuals, corporations. partnerships, as-
sociations, labor'organizations. legal rep-
resentatives, mutual companies, joint-
stock companies, trusts, unincorporated 
organizations, trustees, trustees in bank-
ruptcy, receivers and fiducialics. 

(f) "Secretary" means the Secretary 
of Housing and Urban Development. 

(g) ''Fair housing poster" means the 
poster prescribed by the Secretary for 
display by persons subject to sections 
804-806 of the Civil Rights· Act of 1968. 

<h> "The Act" means title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3601 
et seq. 

<D "Person in the business of selling 
or renting dwellings" means a person as 
defined in section 803 ( c > of the Act. 
Subpart !!-Requirements for Display 

of Posters 
§ 110.10 <uhj<'rt. 

<a> Except to extent that para-
( b l of this section applies, all per-

·sons subject to section 804 of the Act. 
Discrimination in the Sale or Rental of 
Housing, shall post and maintain a fair 
housing poster as follows: 

<1) With respe;;t to a single-family 
dwelling (not being offered for sale or 
rental in conjunction with the sale or 
rental of other dwellings) offered for sale 
or throu!!h a real estate broker, 
agent. salesm'ln. or person in the business 
of selling or renting dwellings. such per-
son shall post and maintain a fair hous-
ing poster at nny place of business where 
the dwelling is offered for sale or rental. 

<2> With respect to all other dwellings 
covered by the Act: 

<I> A fair housing poster shall be 
posted and maintained at any place of 
business where the dwelling is offered for 
sale or rental. and 

(ij) A fair housing poster shall be 
posted and maintained at the dwelling, 
except that with respect to a single-
family dwelling being offered for sale or 
rental In conjunction with the sale or 
rental of other dwellings, the fair hous-
ing poster may be po:"tcd and maintained 
at t11C model dwelllll;·.s mstead oi at e:tch 
of the individual dwcllinr;s. 

<3) With respect to dwellings 
to which subparagraph t2l of this para-
Rraph applies, the f:tir housmg poster 
must be posted at the beginning of con-
struction and maintained throughout 
the period of construction and sale or 
rental. 

'• 

• 

(b) This part shall not require po!tlng 
and maintaining a !e.ir houslni poater; 

<D On vacant Janel, or 
<U> At any single-family dwelling, un-

less such dv:cllinr, 
<a) Is being offered for sale or rental 

in conjunction w1th the sale or rentAl 
of other dwellings In which circum-
stancE's a fair housing poster shall be 
posted nnd maintained as specified in 
paragra;:Jh <a> 12> <ii> o! this section, or 

<b> Is being of!ered for sale or rentr.l 
through a real estate broker, agent, 
man, or person in the busmess o! 
or renting dwellin;;s in which cir:::um-
stances a fair housing poster shall be 
'posted and rnaintained as specll'l«i in 
paragraph <al <ll of thls section, 

<c> All persons subject to section 805 
of the Act, Discrimination in the Financ-
ing- of Housing, shall post and maintain 
a fair housing poster nt all their places 
of which participate in the 
financing of housing. 

( d> All persons subject to section 806 
of the Act, Discrimination in the Provi-
sion of Brokerage Services, shall post 
and maintain a tair housing poster at all 
their places of business. 
§ 110.15 Location of po,tet·"· 

All fair housing posters shall be proml-
di:pl!lyed so as to be readily !!.P-

parent to all persons seeking housing 
accommodations or financial assistance 
or brokerage services in connection 
therev.-ith as contemplated by sections 
804-806 of the Act. 
§ 110.20 of 

All persons subject to this part may 
obtain fair housing posters from the De-
partment's regional and area ol'nces. A 
facsimile may be used if the poster and 
the lettering are equivalent in size and 
legibility to the poster available from the 
Department. 
§ 110.2:> of 

<a) The fair housing poster shall be 
11 inches by 14 Inches a..11d shall bear 
the following legend: 

EGUAL tHJUSiiJG 

We Do In Accordance With the 
Federal 1-'alr Housing Lo.w 

(Title VIt.I or the Clvll Rights Act of lllee) 
IT lS ILLEGAL 

TO DISCRIMINATE AGAINST 
ANY PERSON BECJI.uSE OP' RACE, 

COLOR. RELIGION, OR NATIONAL ORIGIN 
• In the saie or rentr.l r:>t h0uslng or reslden-

tlnl lots. 
• In the sale or rental o! hous• 

tng. 

3430 

o In the financing or housing. 
o In the provillon ot real estate brokert.i• 

services. 
o Blockbusting Is alao Illegal. 
Anyone who feels he hM been discl1m!nated 
aga.lnst should send a complaint to: 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

velopment. Assistant Secretary !or Equal 
Opportunity, Washington. D.C. 204!0 

or 
HUD Region or 

(Aree. omce stamp] 
lb) The Assistant Secretary for Equal 

Opp<irtunity may grant a waiver t:JCrrr.H· 
Ling the substitution of a poster p:-e-
scr1bed by a Federal Hnancial re;:;ulato:y 
agency for the iair housing poster de-
scribed in r.aragraph (a l of this section. 
While such waiver remains in e:'rect. 
compliance with the posting require-
ments of such regulatory ar;e!1cy .shall be 
deemed compliance with the postu:.g re-
QUirements of this part. Such waiver shall 
not -affect the applicability of all other 
provisions of this part. 

Subpart C-Enforcement 
§ 110.30 Effeet o£ fuilure to di,pLty 

pm•ter. 
Any person who claims to have been 

injured by a discriminatory hou.sir.g 
practice m:ty file a complaint v.ith the 
Secret,ary pursuant to Part J 05 of t!us 
ch'lpter. A failure to display the fair 
housing poster as reqUired by this part 
shall be deemed prima facie evider.ce of 
a discriminatory housing practice. 

Effective date. This part shall be ef · 
fective February 25, 1972. except for 
§ llO.lO<c> which shall be effective 
May 1, 1972. 

SAMUEL J. SIMMONS, 
Assistant Secretary 

lor Equal Opportunitv. 
IFR Doc:.72 2262 Filed 2-15-72;8:45 ami 

----·- ··---------r ... , 
! 
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DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 

Office of Assistant Secretory for Equal 
Opportunily 

(Docket No. R--72-108] 

ADVERTISING GUIDELINES FOR FAIR 
HOUSING 

Notice of Statement of Policy 
In order to facilitate and promote 

compliance with the requirements of 
Title VIII of the Civil Act of 1968, 
and particularly section 804 thereof 
(42_ U.S.C. 3601, 3604(cl) regarding 
notlces, statements or ad·,rertisements, 
the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development has prepared guidelines to 
indicr.te graphic and written references· 
that are appropriate for the preparation 
publication, and general usc of 
ing matter v:ith respect to the sale or 
rental of a dwelling as defmed by the 
Act. 

Notice of a proposed statement of pol-
icy Was published in the FEDERAL REGIS• 
TER on May 21, 1971 (36 P.R. 9266). Com-
ments were received irom 26 interested 
persons aud organization5 and consid-
eration has been given to each comment. 

Several comments observed that the 
proposed policy statement \\"tl.S at times 
unnecessarily limited to the field of 
newspaper advertising. In response to 
the comments, the policy statE;ment has 
been revised in several places to clarify 
that the guidelines apply to advertise-
ments in all media, including, e.g., tele-
Vision and radio, as well as to advertising 
agencies and other persons who use 
advertising. 

Several organizations suggested addi-
tional catchwords connoting a discrim-
inatory effect for inclusion in section 
A-3. That section has been expanded to 
include several additional terms which 
may have a discriminatory effect when 
used in a discrirPinatory context. 

In response to other comments. sec-
tion A-6 has been reV1sed to clarify how 
directional references could be employed 
in a discriminatory Cl'nt.ext with an 
ethnically, as well as a ractally. discrim-
inatory e!Iect. Also. section A-7 has been 
added relating specifically to designation 
of religious, ethnic or racial facilities to 
identify an area or neighborhood. 

A number of comments indicated that 
human models or Equal Opportunity ad-
vertisements can and have been used 
selectively to promote the development 
of racially exclusive communities. A new 
section C-4 has been added in order to 
meet this specific problem. 'I'he previous 
human models has been clarified 
by revision and rcor,:aniz:ction w the 
new 5ectwn C, in li!-'hL of comments 
which indicated confusion or uncer-
tainty surroundmg the use of human 
models. 

• 
APPENDIX B 

In response to publishers' comments, 
Table I has been simplified and refer-
ences to minimum type sizes limited to 
a recommendation that the type should 
be bold display face and no smaller than 
eight points. 

A number of organizations suggested 
the inclusion of a publislv:-r's notice to 
appear with real tsn:·,te advertising. A 
suggested notice has been included as 
Table III, in lieu of the provision in the 
proposed guidelines for direct notifica-
tion to all ftrms or persons using the 
advertising services of a pu::>lisher. Th1s 
provision was removed in light of objec-
tions that such notification would be 
unworkable or would impose great hard-
ship since a volume of real estate 
advertising is placed uy a great number 
of persons on a nonrecurring basis. 

Finally, a number of minor editorial or 
organizational changes h::we been made 
in order to clarify or simplify the 
advertising guidelines. 

Several organizations suggested that 
the gUidelines make specillc reference 
to the roles of other enforcement agen-
cies, including the Department of Justice 
and local agencies. Tl-.ese comments sug-
gested that the guidelines specify that 
they do not alter or afiect conciliation 
agreements or court orders obtained by 
these agencies, as well as by the Depart-
ment. Such a disclaimer appears to Lt: 
unnecessary, since there is nothing in 
the guidelines to ·indicate an intent to 
alter or a!Iect agreements or order• ob-
tained by the Department and other 
agencies. 

This document is issued pursuant to 
section 7 (d). Department of Housing and 
Urban Development Act, 42 U.S.C. 
3535(d). 

The statement of Policy reads . as 
follows: 
PUBLICATION GUIDEl.tNES FOP. COMPLIANCE 

WITH Trn.E VIII OF' THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT 
OF 1968 

POLICY STATEME!IT 

Section 804(c) of title VIII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1968. 42 U.S.C. 3604(c), makes 
it unlawful to make. print. or publish, or 
cause to be made. printed, or published any 
notice. statement, or advertLsement, with 
respect to the or rental of a ciwelling 
(any btulding. structure. or po:·tion thereof 
which is occup1ed as, or or intended 
for occupancy as, a residence by one or more 
f"milles. and any vnc.ant land which is of-
fered for sale or lease for the construction or 
location thereof oi any 3UCh building, struc-
ture, or portion t!v:>rcof) that !ndlcates any 
pre!ere!tce, limitation, or discrimination 
based on race. color. religion, or nat.ional 
origin. or an lntcnt:on to make any such 
preference, limttation or discrimination. 

These advertl.>ing guldellnes are being 
Issued for the purpose v: ac;ststing all adve-r-
tising media, ;l.dvertlslt1ti agencies. and all 
other perseus who tlo·e advertising to make, 
print. or publish cr c:n::e to he m:lde, pnnted, 
,-,r publbheli cLJ. c)r di.-,pla.y 
Ll5eincnt wtth :·:·.lp vr re:H .... '1.! v! 
a d\velltng by the o-.vner ur hls agent. 1n 
compliance With the rcquuea .. mt<; of tltle 
VIII. 

Con!ormancc with these guldellne3 wUl be 
considered In evaluating compliance with 
title VIII In connection with 1nvestl;;atlon .. 
by the As<istant. Secretary o! advertis\ng 
practices a1:d pollct"s under the title. 

A. The 11se of words, phrases. sentences 
and visual aids which have a disc-riminatory 
effect. The iollowing words, phrrl.ses. sym .. 
bois, and forms typify those most often 
used In residential real estP.te advertising 
to convey either overt or tacit discrlmln.'ltory 
Intent. Their use should therefore be 
In order to ellm.lnate their clls<:rlminatory 
e!Iect. In considering a complaint ur.der tltle 
VIII, the Assistant Secretary will nonnr.lly 
consider the use of and compa.rab!e 
words, phrases. symbols. and forms to In-
dicate possib1e violation ot the title and to 
establish a need for seeking resolution o! 
the complaint. If it is apparent 1roru the 
context o! the usage that discrirrJnt.tion 
within the meaning of the Title Is l!kt>ly to 
result. 

1. Words descriptive of dwelling, land-
lord, and tenant. White private home, Col-
ored home, Jewish home. 

2. Words indicative of race, color, reli-
giOn, or national origin. Negro, Hispano, Mex-
ican, Indian, Oriental, Black. White, WASP, 
Hebrew, Irish. ItaliP.n. Europc:.n, etc. 

3. Catch words. Restricted, ghcno, dlsad-
vantaged. Also, words such as private. In-
tegrated, traditional. "board Elpprova.J.'' or 
"membership approved" 1! u;ect in a dis-
criminatory context. 

4. Symbols or logotypes. Symbols or logo-
types which imply or suggest race, color, re-
ligion, or national origin. 

5. Colloquialisms. Locp.l!y acceptea words 
or phra.ses which impiy or suggest race. color, 
religion, or national origin. 

6. Directions to the real estate for sale Cf!" 
rent (use of maps or written instructions). 
Refereuces to t·eal estate location made 1n 
terms o! racially or ethnically significant 
landmarks such a.s an existing Bla.ck de-

velopment (signal to Blacks) or an existing 
development known fer Its exclusion o! mi-
norities (!>lgnal to Whites). Specif!c direc-
tions given !rom a racially or ethnically 
significant area. 

7. Area (location) description. Use of re-
ligious, ethnic, or racial facllltles to de-
scribe an area, neighborhood. or location. 

B. Selective use of advertising media or 
content with. discriminctory etJect. The se-
lective use of advertising in various media 
and with respect to various housing d<"vel-
opments or sites can lead to discriminatory 
results and may Indicate a violation or title 
VIII. 

1. Selective geographic impaet. Such selec-
tive use may Involve the strategic placement 
ot btllboards. brochure adv<"rtisements dis-
tributed Within a limited geor:mphlc area 
by hand or In the mail. or advertising 1n p<.!"-
ticubr geographic coverage editions of ma-
jor metropolitan newspapers, or ln 
newspap<'rs wllich are mainly ve-
hicles for reaching a particular sebmen• o! 
the community, or in displays or anr.ouuce-
roents only in sdected sales otflces. 

2. Selective usc oj equal opportunity slo-
gan or logo. Such selective mz1y involve 
using the equal opportunity slogan or logo 
In advertising reac: .g some geographlc 
areas. but not others, or with respect to 
some properties b· not others. 

3. sc:t.'Ctit'C G "{1l7.11(!1't :nodcls. Such se-
Inay niso u•rvlve Lle 

or hutna.n ll10dcl::;; pt1Illarlly 1n lHCdd:t. 
cater to one rli.ct"l or Nbn!c se,.;ment of the 
population that Is not balanced by a com-

'l 
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plementary advertising campaign that 1!!1 
directed at other groups, or the use by a de-
veloper o! racially mixed models to adver· 
tlse one the developments and not others. 

0. Polley and practtces gu1deZ1nes. T!1e 
following g-uidelines are offered e.s sugr:ested 
methods of r.ssurlng equal opporturuty In 
real estat« advertising: 

1. Guidelines for use of logotype, state-
tnent, or sloyan. All advertising or residential 
real estate for sale or rent c>m contain an 
Equal Housing logotype, f.Wte· 
ment or slogan as n means of educating; me 
homeseeklng public that the pro!lerty Is 
available to all persons reg:udless of race, 
oolor, rellg1on, or nAtional origin. Table l 
(see appendix) Indicates suo:-gcsted sizes for 
the use of tho logotype. In 1'.11 space advertis-
ing which is less tba.n 4 colum.n lncl:es o! a 
pago In size, the EqtL.'\1 Housing Opportunity 
sloGan should be used. The ftd'.'crtl<cment 
ma be ro C<l with o-vher 

ca tlon w ch s,aiff1Jiifthe hQJliW' 
tng Is ava .n .e o all without re ar to a.ce, 

o or! tn Altcrna-
ve y, 3-S percent of the vert ment copy 

may be devot-ed to a stat.o,ment of the equal 
housing opportunity pol!cy o! the owner or 
agent. Tnble 2 (see appendix) cont.'l.ins copies 
ot the suggested l:qtul Hous!ng Opportunity 
logotype, statement and slogan. 

2. Guidelines. tor use of human model.!. 
Human moc\elo !n photographs, drawln.gs, or 
other graphic t.c<:hn.\ques may be used to 
indicate racial Inclusiveness. If models are 
used In display advertising ca.mpa.Jgns, the 
models should be dctlnaole as reason· 

repr%enilng both majority and mmorlty 
groups In the metropolitan area. Models. If 
used, should indicate to the generul public 
that the housing is open to all without re-
gard to ra.:e, color, religion, or national 
origin, and Is not for the exclusive use o! one 
such group. 

3. Oui<felines for notification of Fair 
Houstng Policy. (a) All publishers 
O! adVE'rtislng agencieS, and 
firms cngUged in the sale or rent-al of rea.! 
estate should provide a printed copy ot their 
nondiscriminatory policy to each employee 
a.nd officer. 

(b) caents. All publishers Of advertise-
ments .and p.dvertislng agencies should post 
a oopy ot their nondiscrlmtrul.tlon policy 1n a.. 
oonspl.cuous place wherever persons oome to 
place advertising and should nave copies 
avaUa.ble for n.ll fl.rms a.nd persons using 
their advertising senices. 

(e)· Publisher's notice. All put-Ushers are 
enoouraged to publish a.t the beginning o! 
the real advertising 5ection a notice 
such as that appearing 1n T:1ble 3 (see 
appendix). 

Effective date. This statement of policy 
shall be effective May 1, 1972. 

t:PO 930·389 

SAMUEL J. SIMMONS, 
Assistant Secretary 

lor Equal Opportunity, 

6701 

APPENDIX 

'l'he following three tables may serve as a. 
guide for the use o! the Equa.J. Housing Op-

logotype, statement, slog-3-n, and 
publ!.sher's notice for display advert!.slng: 

TABLE 1 

A slmple formula can guide the real estate 
advertiser In using the Equalliousl.ng Oppor-
tunity logotype, sta.temont, or slogan. I! other 
logotypes arc used In the nd vert!.sement, then 
the Equal Housing Opportt:nlty logotype 
should be o! a slze equal to ;;be largest o! 
the other logotypes; I! no other logotypes 
ltre used, then the following guidelines can 
be used. In all Instances, the type should 
be bold display !ace and no smaller than 
8 points. 

.A.JlPro:rimate size of 
advertisement 

Size of 
Logotype 
in inche3 

2 lt 2. page or larger. ______________ _ 
%page up to 'l2 JXI-ge __________ _ 
4 column Inches to % pa.gtJ _____ _ 
Lees than 4 oolumn inches .••••• -

•Do not use. 

1 X 1. 
% X%. 
('). 

TABLE D.-ILLUSTRATIONS OF LOGOTYPE, 
STATEMENT, AND SLOGAN 

Equal Housing Opportunity logotype. 

EQUAl L'""l' riU 
OPPORTU?JiTY 

Equal Housing Opportunity statement: 
We are pledged to the letter a.n<l spirit o! 

U.S. pollcy !or the achievement of equal 
housing opportunity throughout the Nation. 
We encourage and support an aillrrnattve 
a.dvert!slng and mar1-;etlng program lz;. which 
there are no barriers to obtnlnlng ho1.1Slng 
because of race, color, religion or :natlona.l 
origin. 

Equal Housing Opportun!ty slogan: 
''Equnl Housing Opportunity." 

TABLE III-ILLUSTRATION Oli' PUBLISHER'S 
NOTICE 

Publ!.sber's notice: 
All real estate advertl.sed lu this news?aper 

ta subject to the Federal Fair Housing Act o! 
1968 which makes It Ulebl).l to advertise "any 
preference, limitation, or d!scrtm1natlon 
based on race, color, religion, or national 

origin, or an Intention to make any 
preference, limitation, or discr1m1nat!on. 

This newspaper will not knowingly !'.CCept 
any advertising tor real estate which !.s In 
violation ot the law. Our readers are hereby 
ln!onned that all dwclllnr;s advertised In 
new5paper are available on an equ...1 
opportunity bo..sls. 

(F.R Doc.72-4983 FUed 3-31-72;6:45 e .. 1) 
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APPENDIX t 

TRUMP HANAGEMENT, INC • 

• DATE: __ _ 

RE: Rental Analysis Report 

THE BREAKDO\m OF PERSONS BY RACE MAKING INQUIRY IN PERSON 
ABOUT THE TEID1S AND AVAILABILITY OF APARTrffiNTS 

FOR THE PERIOD OF _________ TO ________ _ 

AT 

. WHITE BLACK SPANISH OTHER 

MADE INQUIRY 

WERE OFFERED AN APPLICATION 
. -

FILLED OUT AN APPLICATION 

SUBMITTED DEPOSIT WITH APPLICATION 

APPLICATIONS WITHDRAWN 
BEFORE PROCESSING 

. 
APPLICATION ACCEPTED 

APPLICATIONS WITHDRAWN 
AFTER PROCESSING 

APPLICATIONS REJECTED 

APPLICATIONS PENDING END OF PERIOD 

- ,._. 
.. • 

I 

TOTAL 

. 

-



APPENDIX D _ 
.' 

APPLICATIONS FOR TENANCY 
AT APARTHENTS 

IF I 
DATE APPLI- SIZE, TYPE OF DEPOSIT REJECTED IF I C:A:·:E OF ' ' * HC:·ffi .& DATE OF s APT. DESIRED MONTHLY DESIRED REC'D REASON ACCEPTED, E>!?LOYF.E 

ss, BUSit-."ESS OF APPLICA- WEEKLY (Brs., Fur- RENTAL DATE OF AND AND Dl\TE DATE l ACT 
-::' PHONES INQUIRY TION INCOHE nished) R.A.TE OCCUPANCY DATE· ·NOTIFIED NOTIFIED ..... 

\ 

. 
. . • . 

:' . . . . . 
. 

: . . . . 
I - . • 

- ,.,... -- . 
. I 

' .. .. 
, 

I . . • ' 
, . : 

.. 
: . 

j ; - - -· l 

. 
I ' . 

-. --or mo;t"e· single persons are applying for one apartr.1ent, please so indicate • 
# ...... 

_____________________________________________________ , ·---------------------------------------
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_HL;·· .. 
DOCKET ---------------------

TITLE OF CASE ATTORNEYS 

UNITED STATES OF .AHERICA For Plaintiff: U.S. 
---------------------

vs. -------- ------------------
FRED C. TRUHP, DONALD TRUi:·1P 
and TRUHP H.ANAGD1ENT, INC. -------------- ------------------·--------

---- ---------------------
------- __ Fo_r_D_e_fe_nd_a_nt_:_s_: ___ .. . r _ 

BO !_J\ N, & T:'J\ rF:E:Y 
t,p; . .,l '-1 ._., ".) ;, ,J JUl. ' I . 

! ----
1 YoY'l,-c. N.Y. J J ____ _ 

BASIS OF ACTIO_N_: __ __ U_-_S"'_l:_:G_-_:'"c __ T_0_._E_l9G8 ,', --·-· 
SEEKS: An 

-!----! _____________________ _ 
I 

JURY TRIAL CLAIMED ! ____________ __ 

I -------------------------
ON 

DATE PLAINTIFF'S ACCOUNT I 
- -

1 
\ 
i :9.1121 COHPLI\IliT I 

I 

I, RECEIVED I DISBURSED :: DATE DEFENDANT'S ACCOUNT 
1------- i :, ______ - ---------------
1 -) \ :i : . ,t . .''i\U. • , ,1 

' .. ------
1 i _____________ ! ___ , __ , ______ _. 

i I i 

: j . I ! I ___ , __ : , __ ll : 
I I I ii : ·--l-1_: ____ _ I 

I 

I 
---!--1---:--.:--- ----

1 I i I[ I ------------·· I 
I 

I 
! 

/ 
I
I I : i --, 

I ! i ---!--·,---:--:i---, 
: I i --, ---------------1--1 __ H !. __ _ 

·----j --·----i ! i 
---- ------

1 I I . 

-------

1

1 

i i I \! f --- ,--,' ;--::---:----·------------------
1-_'.1, I ___ ,_ '--1--- ------------ ---

1 , I il 1--------------1---1 , __ !I _________________ ! __ , _____ --- .. 
I I I I I ! I ' I I 

ABSTRACT OF COSTS i 
I 
I 

TO WHOM DUE AMOUNT I 

I I 

RECEIPTS, REMARKS. ETC. 

---------.: 
-----------i---:--,--------------------------

1 : i 
I I I 

I 
_______ ,i !-1 

i I ,-1 
1 
I 

------------------------------------

; 
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1529 U.S. A. VS. FRED C. TRUHP, INC, ET AL 

FILING5-PROCEEOINGS 

10/15/73 Complaint filed. Surmnons issued. 
,n_0C-7 Summons returnPd & filed/executed. 

AMOUNT 
REPORTED IN 
EMOLUMENT 

RETURNS 

1 JS 

2 

5 

--
173 Hotice of Annearance for defts . 3 -------------------------------------------

'---: 173 Ev ,J. - O:rder dated 173 f':i 1 ed extendj ng t5 me f'cr 

the defts tc to 111?6 1?3 
5 -15-73Pl tff' s first -mterroga tories to __ d__:_e_f_t_s_f_i-'--l'--e_d....,:. _________ 

1
_...;::_ __ 

1 
__ 

ll-26-73[ By NEARER, J. - Q_r<!er. dtd 11-23-73 extending time to answer tre 
I 

1. complaint to 1.2-3-73 filed. 6 
1 By HEAHER,J.- Order dated 11/30/73 filed extend:tng time -r I I.._... ! 

7 -Notice of motion ret 1-11-74 for an order dismissing the 
·---------- -----:-------------------:-------------------------

i complaint & memorandum of law in support of motion filed. 8/9 
-·----- --------------------------------------------------------- --:-:2-73 filed. 10 
... -------- ----------------------------------------------------l-----1---
-'--·:.. -74 : l:otice of motion and memorandum of lai'T to dismiss defts' ________ , _________________ -
___________ i counterclaim, ret 1-11-74 at 10 A.M. filed. 11/12 
].-S_:::-_74 !_Unreported orders cited in memo of u.s. in opposition to 
_____ _: motion to dism_. _i_c.s __ s __ f_i-'l-"e_d...::c. ______________________________________ 1 __ l..;o.3 __ 1 __ 

A:emorandum of U.S. in response to affidavits of Donald Trump & 
__________ tH('Y Cohn filed. 14 

,., .. i ., - C2.}.ler:.! tt.) l:''!:-:li/.; ----'-! ' ::.• .- 01" _ .. ... ----· --'''-__ : ·----------------------------------1----1---
By NEM{ER,J.- Order dated 1/15/74 filed that the deft's motioh 

)-::-:=--
to dismiss is adjd to 1/25/74 15 

l-·22-7Ll- Defts 1 reply l!l.Ifu"'TI.orandum of law in support of motion to dismiss 
counterclaim filed. 16 -------- --------------------------------------------------l-----1----

'; _?h 1 r,7ct:ice of mnt:t rm to dF>fts to an!'r!tJPr nltff' 's inte·rrnga t 
1 
____ 

1 
__ 

_;:_-:__ ___ -_! n-riP.S ret. 01 10:00 and me!71crandnm of law f1lec1. 17/16 
:Before NEARER, J - Case called for hearing on motions to dis-
i 

complaint & counterclaim. Motd.ons_argued. - Defts' motion 1 _____ _ 

_______ :,to dismiss denied as indicated. Deft has 2 weeks to prepare __ 
1 
_____ _ 

______ !interrogatories. Order to be submitted. Pltff' s motion to dis-
miss defts' counterclaim granted. Order to be submitted. 

-2-/-6/_7_4 __ 1 By NEAHER,J.- Order dated 2/Sf74 filed that the deft's motioD 
I for an dismissing the complaint is denied, etc.(see 

order) 19 

=! Def't •s answer to complaint for inju_n_.c_t_i_o_n_f_i_l_e_d_. ___________ 

22 
s ·:-=':.c7.r: for to pltff filed. 
2-2(;-74 ptenographer' s transcript dtd 1-25-74 filed. 
·---------·-I 

(cont'd) 

• 
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73 c 1529 

CIVIL oocKET U.S • A • VS • FRED C • TRUMP, et al 
CLERK'S FEES AMOUNT 

DATE FILINGs-PROCEEDINGS r-----r------1 
PLAINTIF'F' DEFENDANT RETURNS 

3/6/74 Pl tff' s Ans't'Ters and Objections to deft's 

1

1 I l1 

interrogatories filed. I _ I 23 
3/19/74 Notice to take deposition upon oral examinati9n 24 I I r---_ 
l t •l I I I t-+' I 3 19.'74 to take deposition upon oral examination filedL_25 ' i 

3/19/74 Notice to take deposition upon oral ! 
1 ----, ------

,,_2_/_7_4 __ -+_B_c_y_N_EAHER,J.- Order dated 4/1/74 that derosjtionsj : 1 -----.,---· -···· 
of clefts are adjd to another date. 27 ! I 
Notice of Hotion, ret. 5/3/74 filed re: motion for I -

28 I I 
./23/74 

sanctions 
•/23/74 Memorandum in Support of nltff's motion for sanctjcns i -·-

-----+--f_i_le_d_. ______ _ 
I I 

----t-------------------t----l-----+---.........j._.____:_' __ -+---.. -· 
I ! ---r------------------------+--+-J.----!---+1-·--r----.. ,· 

I 1 ----t--------------------------+-·--1--l----+--+-·---+-· ···-···----
/ ! ----t------------------------------t----+---t-----+--+-----·.!._ ............ _,_ I I 

----+---------------------------+---+-----+---+-+i----j-------
: ----+--------------------------l-----+----l---+--4-----·-------.... --. I 

_, .. 
: 

I i 

---+--- ---· 
I _____ _ 
--·------: 

i 
! 

I I ' 
I : 
I 

I 

. 

----t--------------------+--+--+---+-----t--.;..._ ..... --- ··-

I ---r-------------------l-----4--+-----+--+---,-----· 
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REGISTERED MAIL 

Mrs. Dorothy Chojeeki 
Manager 
Eastern Transcription Service 
Lower Concourse 
Roosevelt Field Shopping Center 
Garden City, New York 11530 

Re: Transcription of tapes in the case of 
United Sta.tes v. Fred c. Trump, et al. 
Civil Action No. 13 C 1!:;>2.9, .. 

Dear Mrs. Chojecki: 

Enclosed'l!arein please find tapes recorded on May 3, 
1974, together with letter dated June 17, 1974, from Henry A. 

Brachtl, Esq., Assistant u. s. Attorney, which letter is self-
explanatory .. 

Kindly send the original and one copy of the transcript 
of the recording to this office together with the enclosed tapes. 

matter. 

Encls. 

Thank you for your courtesy and cooperation in this 

Very truly yours, 

VINCENT A,. CATOGGIO 
Uni. ted Sta. tes 
Eastern District of New York 



Value $ /'t' , 
Reg, Fee$ ({ 

12218 
Special $ 
Delivery 
Return 
Receipt $ 

POSTMARK OF 
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June 17, 1974 

Mrs. Dorothy Chojecki 
Manager 
Eastern Transcription Service 
Lower Concourse 
Roosevelt Pield Shoppdt!1g Center 
Garden City, New York 11530 

Re: United States v. Fred c. Trump, et al., 
U.S.D.C., E.D.N.Y., Civil Action 

-- No. 73 C 1529 
Date of Hearing - t-1.ay 3 1 1974 
Before - Magistrate Vincent Cat«l;!gg-ia;,. 

Dear Mrs. Chojecki: 

We would appreciate your causing the electronic 
recording of the testimony in the above-mentioned proceed-
ing to be stenographically transcribed. This Office, of 
course, will assume the expense of the transcript for one 
copy at the prevailing rate plus the original which must be 
filed tvith the office of the United States !4agistrates. 

Our need for the transcript is pressing, and we 'i'muld 
appreciate your efforts to expedite completion and delivery. 

Copy: 

Very truly yours, 

DAVID G. TRAGEH 
United St.ates Attorney 

By: 

HENRY A. BRACIITL 
Assistant u. s. Attorney 

Hon. Vincent Catoggio 
United States Magistrate 
Uni·ted States Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza Eas·t 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 



OCTOBER 24, 1974 

B e f o r e: 
NEAHER, .J. AT 10:00 A.M. 

CIVIL MOTION 

73 c 1529 u.s.A. -vs-

APPEARANCES: 

FRED C. TRUMP, IT AL 

APPLICATION OF THE U.S. THAT DEFTS MOTION FOR SANCTIONS 
BE HEARD, DENIED WITH PREJUDICE & STRICJCEN AFTER HEARING. 

DAVID G. TRAGER, U.S. ATTY. 
BY: H.A. BRACHTL, AUSA. 

FOR DEFTS 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., ) 

) 
Defendants. ) ________________________) 

AFFIDAVIT 
WASHINGTON ) 

) ss 
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN, being duly sworn, deposes and 

says: 

1. I am an attorney in the Civil Rights Division of 

the Department of Justice and one of the counsel for the 

United States in the above-styled action. I am a member of 

the bar of the State of Pennsylvania. I make this affidavit 

in response to defendants' motion and supporting papers which 

accuse me of threatening prospective witnesses and of other 

improper conduct in the discharge of my responsibilities in 

this case. 

2. I have read the affidavits of Carol R. Falcone and 

Thomas Miranda and the signed statements of Paul and Paula 

Ziselman. While I interviewed each of these individuals to 

determine if they had information pertinent to this case, I 

did not do any of the unlawful or improper things alleged 



.. .. 
in their statements, and, on the contrary, interviewed 

each in a fair and objective way to ascertain the facts. 

While a complete response to the statements of these indi-

viduals must await the hearing on the pending motion I 

think it important to immediately respond at least briefly, 

to the principal allegations, and I do so as follows: 

(a) I never harassed Ms. Falcone, nor did I 

threaten her with perjury, jail, or with anything else. 

I did not accuse her of any misconduct with regard to her 

business or money, or of dating Donald Trump, and have no 

information about these matters. In fact, I made no 

accusations at all. I did not tell Ms. Falcone that any 

phones were tapped, or that she was guilty, and in fact, I 

have no knowledge of any tapped phones and I am sure that the 

Civil Rights Division does not tap phones or cause them to 

be tapped. I did not act in a hostile manner towards her. 

In fact, the interview appeared to me friendly on both sides 

at all times. 

(b) I never harassed Mr. Miranda, and I never 

called upon him "to go against Trump Management" by lying. 

On the contrary, I asked him to tell the truth. I did not 

tell him that unless he cooperated he would be thrown in 

jail, nor did I discuss my "ambitions" or winning my case. 

I did not persecute him, nor did I make "unyielding" 

threats or any other kind. While Mr. Miranda was reluctant 

to relate the facts because he expressed fear that Mr. Fred 

Trump would destroy him, or words to that effect, 

he described to me some racially discriminatory housing 

- 2 -
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practices in which defendants have engaged. Plaintiff's 

answers to interrogatories filed in the case of United 

States v. Fred C. Trump, et al., and sworn to by Elyse 

Goldweber, previous counsel for plaintiff in this suit, 

discloses that Mr. Miranda had also provided information 

about discriminatory practices before I was assigned to the 

case. My interview with Mr. Miranda seemed to me to be 

friendly on both sides. 

(c) I did not threaten or intimidate Mr. Ziselman, 

and the contents of his affidavit suggest that there must 

have been a misunderstanding. Prior to my interview with 

Mr. Ziselman, the Department of Justice had, in accordance 

with our normal practice, requested the FBI to interview a 

number of former Trump employees. Mr. Ziselman was one of 

them. When I was interviewing Mr. Ziselman, I mentioned that 

a request had been made for the FBI to contact him, but I 

told him that I would try and contact the FBI in time to have 

the agents cancel their interview with him, since it was now 

unnecessary. After I had completed roy interview with Mr. 

Ziselman, I interviewed a prospective witness for plaintiff 

who provided details as to a rental transaction with Mr. 

Ziselman which differed from Mr. Ziselman's account. Accordingly, 

I telephoned Mr. Ziselman and asked him if he would permit me 

to see him again for a short time since there were now a few more 

matters I wished to discuss with him. He refused my request and 

stated that he considered it to be harassment. I responded that 

- 3 -
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I was sorry he felt that way, .since it was not intended 

to be harassment. 

{d) Mr. Manley's letter of June 13, 1974, and 

Mr. Cohn's affidavit completely distort the facts leading up 

to the records inspection in June 1974. Mr. Cohn was not present 

at the Trump office and has no direct information as to these 

events, a fact omitted from his affidavit. The facts with 

respect to this incident are described in detail in Appendix 

C to plaintiff's Report on Discovery, a copy of which is 

attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

3. In I wish to state that the attacks in 

defendants' papers on my conduct and integrity as an attorney 

are entirely without foundation. I hope that the matter can 

be disposed of at the earliest practicable date. 

Sworn to before me this 
2nd day of August, 1974. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Housing Section 

Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

5/ /f/ l 
My commission / 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

) 

AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
) ss 

CQ.UNTY OF N:EW YORK ) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

I, ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER, being duly sworn do depose and 

say that: 

1. I am presently employed as an examining attorney 

with the New York City Department of Investigation located at 

111 John Street, New York, New York. 

2. I was formerly employed as an attorney with the 

Civil Rights Division, Department of Justice, Washington, D. C. 

from September 19, 1972 until May 24, 1974. 

3. While employed by the Department of Justice, I par-

ticipated in the preparation and the pre-trial stage of United 

States v. Fred Trump 2 et al., Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 (EN). 

4. Prior to the institution of the above-mentioned 

lawsuit, I interviewed Mr. Thomas Miranda who was formerly 
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employed by Trump Management, Inc. as a superintendent at 

Kendall Hall Apartments, 41-10 Bowne Street, Flushing, 

New York. The purpose of this interview was to determine 

what, if anything, Mr. Miranda knew about discriminatory 

practices on the part of Trump Management, Inc. 

5. Mr. Miranda related to me that Mr. Hyman, Mrs. 

Williams&a woman called Sophie whose name he did not recall, 

all of Trump Management, Inc. had instructed him to attach 

a separate sheet of paper to all applications received from 

prospective black apartment seekers and that he was to write 

a big "C" on such attachment so as to indicate to Trump 

Management, Inc. that the application being considered was 

from a "colored" person. Furthermore, Mr. Miranda stated to 

me that he did this every time a black person applied for an 

apartment. 

6. Mr. Miranda also stated to me during this interview 

that he was afraid that the Trumps would have him "knocked off", 

or words to that effect, because he told me about their allegedly 

discriminatory practices. He was reluctant to have his name 

disclosed. 

7. After this interview, which was in all respects 

friendly, I had no further personal contact with Mr. Miranda. 

When it became necessary to disclose his identity, I sent a 

letter in the form attached hereto to him and to the other 

- 2 -



persons who had provided information about Trump Management, 

Inc. The letter was run off on an MTST machine, and while 

in accordance with Justice Department practice, only one 

sample copy was retained (the one addressed to Phyllis 

Kirschenbaum), Justice Department records disclose that an 

identical letter was sent to Mr. Miranda and fourteen others. 

My commission expires: 

EVELYN SOMMER 
·Notery l'ublic, Shte of '4ew York 

1 No. 24·•501 I 58 / 
in IC1qs County " 

Commi$sion Fxp;re$ March 30, 19 7 J 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP 
and TRUMP MANAGEMENT, INC., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) _________________________ ) 

AFFIDAVIT 

WASHINGTON ) 
) ss 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 
73 C 1529 (EN) 

FRANK E. SCHWELB, being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I am the Chief of the Housing Section of the Civil 

Rights Division, Department of Justice and in supervisory charge 

of the above-styled litigation on behalf of the United States. 

I make this affidavit in support of our request that an Order be 

entered herein directing expedited discovery and designating 

an officer of this Court to supervise depositions with respect 

to defendants' motion to hold one of plaintiff's attorneys in 

contempt and for a cease and desist order against the United 

States. 

2. On or about July 26, 1974, defendants filed with 

this Court a Notice of Motion praying that Donna Goldstein, 

one of plaintiff's counsel in this action, be adjudged in 

contempt of this Court for alleged coercion and threats against 



, 

prospective witnesses, and that the United States be ordered 

to cease and desist from such alleged unlawful conduct. The 

Notice of Motion is purportedly supported by the affidavits 

of Carol R. Falcone and Thomas Miranda, former employees of 

defendants, and by the signed but unsworn statements of two 

former employees, Paul and Paula Ziselman. Also attached to 

the motion is an affidavit by Roy Cohn, one of defendants' 

counsel, which purports to describe a number of events at 

which he was not present and which did not occur in the manner 

described by him. The papers filed on behalf of defendant 

call into question the professional conduct and reputation of 

Donna F. Goldstein, an attorney on the staff of this Section, 

with whom I am well acquainted and whom I know to have an 

excellent reputation, both with respect to her legal ethics 

and in relation to her professional competence. I am satisfied 

that the allegations of improper conduct against her are with-

out foundation and therefore constitute an abuse of the processes 

of this Court. 

3. In view of the nature of the allegations against 

Ms. Goldstein, the United States requests that the matter be 

expeditiously handled in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 3614 so that 

the factual issues may be resolved and Ms. Goldstein's reputation 

cleared. We further ask that the evidentiary hearing be held 

on August 16, 1974 as scheduled. 

4. In order to assure that no "surprise" witnesses be 

called by defendant to further attack Ms. Goldstein's reputation, 

- 2 -
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plaintiff has propounded brief interrogatories to defendants 

inquiring into the identity and prospective testimony of all 

witnesses to alleged misconduct by agents of the United States. 

Adequate preparation for the hearing will not be possible 

unless this information is disclosed to the United States in 

time to take the depositions of possible witnesses in advance 

of the hearing. Paragraph 3 of the affidavit of Roy Cohn 

states that defendants have attached the statements of only 

"some" former employees as to whom Hs. Goldstein is alleged to 

have acted improperly, which suggests that there are supposed 

to be others. Accordingly, we ask that the defendants be 

required to answer these interrogatories within five days, 

unless defendants voluntarily disclose this information to 

plaintiff earlier. 

5. The essential thrust of defendants' allegations on 

this motion is that Ms. Goldstein used threats and other un-

fair tactics in an attempt to influence the testimony of pro-

spective witnesses. The position of the United States is that 

the allegations of misconduct on Ms. Goldstein's part are false 

and scurrilous. In order to resolve this issue, it is essential 

that the testimony of all witnesses, both on deposition and 

at the hearing, be free of threats, undue influence, or other 

interference from the parties or from their counsel, and that 

each party's right to examine and cross-examine witnesses with-

out interruption or disruption be fully protected. 

- 3 -



6. The most effective means to assure the orderly 

conduct of these depositions is to have them supervised by 

an officer of the Court. At least one of the witnesses to 

be deposed Mr. Miranda has expressed fear of reprisal 

from defendants on two separate occasions, to attorneys for 

plaintiff -- once to Elyse Goldweber and once to Donna Gold-

stein, as reflected in their respective affidavits. At a 

hearing on May 3, 1974, Honorable Vincent Catoggio, United 

States Magistrate, reprimanded counsel for defendants for 

failing to carry out their responsibilities relating to dis-

covery and to expedite the action. Accordingly, the most 

effective means to assure the orderly conduct of these deposi-

tions is to have them supervised by an officerof this Court. 

WHEREFORE I respectfully request on behalf of the United 

States that an Order to Show Cause be entered herein as prayed 

for. No previous application has been made for the relief 

here requested. 

FRANK E. SCHWELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this o( day of August, 1974. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
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BY H.Al'JD 

June 14, 1974 

Saxe Bacon Bolan & Manley, Esqs. 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Attention: 

Re: 

Dear Sirs: 

Scott Manley, Esq. -\ 
United States v. Fred c. Trump, et '\ 
u.s.n.c., E.D.N.Y. Civil Action No/ 73 c 1529 ) 

I / 
\ 

We have your letter of June L;t_, 1974. 

Your description and characterization of the conduct 
of Government counsel at defendants' office on June 12, 1974, 
is false. 

Your statement that Attorney Goldstein agreed to pro-
duction of defendants' documents at your offices instead of de-
fendants' office is also false. 

We are considering an appropriate response. 

Very truly yours, 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
United States Attorney 

·:-:? c tf;:hJcf" 
. HENRY A2 BRACHTL 

u. s. Attorney 
/ 

J. STANLEY POTTINGER 
Assistant Attorney General 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 

0 ', _/") Z:_ ' / ' . 
B• j y ':;£eef2:;;,- ' <---·--------..... 

DONNA F. DSTEIN, Attorney 
Housing Section 

-1-
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Saxe Bacon Bolan & Manley, Esqs. 

Copy to: 

The Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
United States Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

(BY HAND) 

June 14, 1974 
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. ·¢tkee( f!jjacon/, &c il c 

39 EAST 68T"' STREET t:J' 
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10021 

JOHN GODFREY SAXE 0909·19!!31 
ROGERS H. BACON I191!;J·I982) 

(212) 472 -1400 THOMAs A. BoLAN 
COUNSEl. 

ROY M. COHN 
SCOTT E. MANLEY (ADMITTED ILUN015 AND INDIANA) 
MICHAEL ROSEN 

DANIEL J. OFUSCOLL 

HAROLD SCHWARTZ 
MELVYN RUBIN 
JEFFREY A. SHUMAN 
LORIN OUCKMAN 

BY HAND 

Henry A. Bracthl, Assistant u.s. Attorney 
Donna F. Goldstein, Attorney-Civil Rights 

Division · 
United States Department of Justice 
Federal Building 
Brooklyn, New York 

Dear Mr. Bracthl: 

June 13, 1974 

I ·am in receipt of your letter. dated today "\>lhich v-ms ·wa5. t-. 
ing .for me at my office upon my return from the· Cohen v. 
Cohen trial this afternoon at 5:00 p.m. 

We :stand ready to let you begin inspecting and copying records 
in U.S.'A.: v. Trump tomorrow. morning, June 14, as per. my 
ment with Miss Goldstein reached over the telephone on 
day. While I regret the misunderstanding that led to yoUl::: 
descending upon· the Trump officef:: with five stormt:roopers 
Wednesday morning banging on the doors and demanding to be 
allowed to swarin haphazardly through all of the· .Trump files 
and to totally disrupt their da:tly business routine, I do not:. 
feel that there is any point is carrying the a:rgillnent any 
ther. I would assume that your objective is the same a.s ours 
in this matter, namely, proceeding orderly with pre--trial dir:.:':"" 
covery so as to enable both sides to con·tinue preparing for 
a fair trial in this Toward that; end, we look for-
ward to with you Friday at our offices .. 

Miss Goldstein and I agreed that the inspection would take 
place at my offices instead of Trmnp so as to no-t: :to un-
necessarily totally disrupt the Trump necessary business· rou-
tine. I would assume. that by your demand in your .letter to 
inspect the materials at Trump offices that Miss .Goldstein 

. glected to inform you of our or:a.l agreement to the contrary. 

We are ready to provide you with over 1,000 fileS: Friday on 
both old and current tenants of Trump. Because Trump cannot: 
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function at all with all of its current leases and files out of 
its offices, we will have to work out a schedule whereby as soon 
as you have completed inspecting and copying this very substa.n-
tial amount of material that this material will be returned to 
the Trump office·and.additional material will be sent to our 
offices for your inspection. · 

With regard to the depositions of further Trump personnel ten-
atively scheduled to begin on June.l8, I already have advised 
the Government that this date is impossible as both Mr .. Cohn 
and myself.will still be on trial before Justice.Gomez in the 
Supreme Court of the State of New York in Cohen v. Cohen and 
Judge Gomez absolutely refuses to hear any application for 
even a half-day ·,adjournment in that case. I will supply you 
with alternate dates as quickly as possible and I am sure we 
can come to an agreeable solution which will neither delay 
the matter unnecessarily for.you nor prejudice the rights of 
the defendants by denying them the right to counsel in these 
proceedings. I would respectfully suggest that is completely 
unfair on your part to set forth ultimatums in the way of 
3:00 deadlines to respond or else in view of the fact that 
you are completely aware of both Mr. Cohn and myself being 
on trial before Judge Gomez from 9:00 to 4:30 dailyp we· 
are completely ready to cooperate in discovery;. all \lle re-
quire is a little time in which to assemble matter in view 
of our extremely heavy present schedule. 

Finally, I sincerely wish that at least from this point 
ward, that we could attempt t.o cooperate better in all of 
these matters. If your goal is to expedite discovery and 
prepare for a fair trial for both sides as is ours, I think 
that this end would be better. se;:ved by coopera:U.on and ob-
servation of the basic courtesies normally·extend.ed between 
private counsel in litigation instead of continual threats 
by. the Government and its treating the rules of civil pro-. 
cedure as some kind of undeviatinq Bible which cannot bend 
its timetables for even a fet.Y hours to p:comote the ends of 
.justice .. 

SEM/ap 
cc: Hon. Ed'V'1ard R. Neaher 
Unted States District Judge 
United States Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Honorable Vincent Catoggio 
United States Magistrate 
United States Courthouse 
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, N.Y. 11201 

Very truly yours, 



39 EAST 68TH STREET 

JOHN GOQFREY SAXE (1909-1953) 
ROGERS H. BACON (1919-1962) 

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10021 

(212) 472-1400 THOMAS A. BOLAN 
COUNSEL 

ROY M.COHN 
SCOTT E. MANLEY {ADMITTED ILLINOIS AND INDIANA) 

DANIEL J. DRISCOLL 

MELVYN RUBIN 
MICHAEL ROSEN 
HAROLD L.SCHWARTZ 

Honorable Edward Neaher 
United States District Judge 
Federal Building 
Cadman Plaza 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

September 11, 1975 

Re: Trump Decree 

Dear Judge Neaher: 

I am writing to Your Honor in response to a letter of 
Donna F. Goldstein, Esq., United States Department of Justice, 
the August 5, 1975 letter of Donna Goldstein in which Ms. 
Goldstein alleges that Trump Management is in violation of 
Real Property Law §236, which prohibits the failure to rent 
based on the fact that an applicant has children. Ms. 
Goldstein's presentation omits the crucial statutory word 

We submit that this section is in no way applicable 
to the instant proceeding, as the Consent Order entered into 
between the parties provides that rentals shall be pursuant 
to the policy which Trump Management had employed in the 
past, i.e., if there were children under the vacating occu-
pancy, there could be children under the new lease. 

It is thus evident that no one is denied rental 
solely on the basis that they have children. In fact, this 
is what the statute provides - that it is a violation only 
if the sole reason that a prospective tenant is denied rental 
is children. 

As a practical matter it is my understanding from 
discussions between Trump Management and this office that the 
only apartments in which this situation even arises are a few 
buildings located in the Jamaica Estates area of Queens. 
These buildings are not designed to accommodate the needs 
of young children, but rather older people who need peace 
and quiet and a greater amount of security than is usually 
found in buildings which are designed for the young. 



Honorable Edward Neaher 
September 11, 1975 
Page Two 

In this one area, children cannot be as happy with 
the facilities as in the over thousands of other units, and 
what Ms. Goldstein suggests would be unfair to them. With 
these few exceptions, the buildings under the control of 
Trump Management not only welcome rental to families with 
younger children, but, in fact, have specifically designed 
a majority of their complexes to meet the needs of minors. 

sb 
cc: Donna Goldstein, Esq. 

Respectfully, 

SAXE, BACON & BOLAN, P.C. 

Roy M. 
/ 
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39 EAST 68TH STREET 

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10021 

(212)472-1400 RoY M.COHN 

CABLE. SAXUM 

Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
Cadman Plaza 
Brooklyn, New York 

August 11, 1975 

Re: Trump Decree 

Dear Judge Neaher: 

COUNSEL 

The Trump organization has observed the terms of the 
decree, but the Civil Rights section has violated it in sig-
nificant respect. 

We declined to execute the decree unless language 
in the Civil Rights Section proposal - Article IV, Section A 
(bottom of p. 77), which gave the Open Housing Center the 
unbridled right to redistribute vacancy lists all over the 
place - was deleted. We pointed up the administrative diffi-
culties this would present, and after discussion before Your 
Honor, the language was deleted, and the vacancy list to 
go to Open Housing Center - period. 

Despite this, the Center has been mailing out the 
vacancy lists we have sent to them to other organizations, 
causing total confusion and extra work, as by the time the 
inquiry catches up with us, the list is usuaTiy obsolete. 
And what they are doing defeats the very purpose of the 
deletion. I am advised by Mr. Eskenazi of the Trump office 
that he has specifically asked Miss Parrish of the Center, 
and then Miss Goldstein to desist - and both have said they 
will not unless specifically directed to by Your Honor. 

Secondly, Miss Goldstein advises that Article V, 
No. 2 - p. 13 - which provides that Trump shall adhere to 
its past and existing practices with respect to two-bedroom 
apartments and number of occupants - is in her opinion 
"discriminating" and should not be observed. 



Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
August 11, 1975 
Page Two 

This is to respectfully request Your Honor to 
set a hearing on these ex parte decisions by the Civil 
Rights Section for sometime in early September (I shall 
be abroad on business until Labor Day.). 

Hoping Your Honor has a pleasant summer, I am 

Respectfully, 

fti( 1// / /t-
Roy M. Cohn 1 · 

sb 



NEW YORK. NEW YORK 10021 

JOHN GODFREY SAXE (1909-1953) 
ROGERS H. BACON 0919-1962) 

(212) 472 -1400 THOMAS A. BOLAN 
COUNSEL 

ROY M. COHN 
SCOTT E. MAN LEY (ADMITTED ILLINOIS AND INDIANA) 

MICHAEL ROSEN 

DANIEL J. DRISCOLL 

HAROLD SCHWARTZ 
MELVYN RUBIN 
JEFFREY A. SHUMAN 
LORIN DUCKMAN August 5, 1974 

Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Re: 

Dear 

United States V. Fr.ed.-- C .... 'l'.rump, 
Civil Action@ c 
Judge Neaher: 

et al. 

I telephoned Mr. Brown of Your Honor's chambers 
following receipt of a call from Mr. one of 
the hoard of eager-beavers in the Civil Rights Division, 
who is working on the above entitled matter. 

Apparently, what Mr. Goldberg was trying to tell 
me was that he wished to take depositions in connection 
with the contempt motion concerning prosecution tactics 
which Your Honor made returnable for next week 
Having spent the first week of August suffering through 
government depositions of approximately 10 more Trump 
employees, I hardly look forward to another set of deposi-
tions relating to a motion which has not even been heard by 
Your Honor as yet. 

I would respectfully request that the entire 
matter, including what, if any, "pre-trial" should be 
had in connection with this motion be considered by Your 
Honor at one time on the already scheduled date of August 
16th, at which time I shall, of course, be personally 
before the court. 
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We wish also to apply to Your Honor for an 
order setting some boundaries on the Civil Rights 
Division's discovery, which is proceeding at a pace 
that would suggest the facts are being explored now 
rather than prior to the following of the compliant. 
The purpose of concluding discovery at an early date 
would be the fixing of an early trial date by Your 
Honor so that the preference granted by Congress under 
this act may be fullfilled. The have pro-
tested and continue to protest their complete innocence, 
are most desirous of a prompt trial. 

RMC:ap 
BY HAND 

Respectfully yours, 



Honorable Vincent A. Catoggio 
Page Two 

We assume that the matter is now academic, and we 
have asked Judge Neaher to fix an early trial date in this 
matter. 

Respectfully yours, 

& 111. 
Cohn 

sb 
cc: Mr. Donald Trump 

Donna Goldstein 
Attorney, Housing Section 



r ' IN THE UNITED STATES. DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NE\.f YORK 

UNIJED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRffi.1P , DONALD ) 
TRID-fP and TRill1P MANAGE}!ENT, ) 
INC. , ) 

) 
Defendants. ) _________________________ ) 

CIVIL ACTION NiO. 73 C 1529 (EN) 

REPORT OF :-fHE lJNITED STATES 
TO THE COtiRT THE STATUS 
OF DISCOVEhY 

In accordance with the instructions of the Honorable Vincent 

Catoggio, United States Magistrate, plaintiff, United States of 

its report on the of discovery in this 

action. On May 3, 1974, Magistrate Catoggio made reference to the 

obligation of defense counsel as well as the Court to expedite the 

action in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 3614, and rebuked defense counsel 

for not havjng done so. 

T DISCOVERY IN PROCESS DELAYS AND DIFFICULTIES 

A. Depositions 

Prior to the hearing of May 3, 1974, plaintiff encountered 

substantial difficulties in taking any depositions because of 

defense counsel's continuous cancellat'ions and rescheduling. 



' This activity resulted in a substantial waste of the time and 
l < 

resources of counsel for plaintiff, as described in detail in 

plaintiff's memorandum in support _of its motion for sanctions, 

dated April 19, 1974, at pp. 4-6. Several notices of depo-

sition were outstanding at the time of that hearing, but 

plaintiff agreed to postpone these until defendants had answered 

the interrogatories propounded to them in November of the previous 

year. Abbreviated and incomplete answers to these interrogatories 

were finally provided on May 16, 1974. (See pp. infra). 

Thereafter, plaintiff attempted to reschedule depositions, as 

follows: 

1. On May 28, 1974, Ms. Donria Goldstein, a new attorney 

for the plaintiff; replacing Ms. Elyse Goldweber, telephoned 

Mr. Scott Manley in order to advise him that the plaintiff was 

noticing depositions for June 18-20, 1974.*/ In deference to 

Mr. Cohn's busy schedule, Mr. Manley was provided with an oppor-

tunity to propose alternative dates within the next few day&.• 

2. Between May 28 and June -3, Ms. Goldstein telephoned 

Mr. Manley at least three occasions to discuss. the contemplated 

depositions. Mr. Manley proposed no alternative dates on the two 

!/ These depositions were noticed on May 30, 1974. 
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' occasions he was reached, and ·failed to call back in response 
I ' 

to the message left on the third call. 

3. On Jl.me 5, 1974, Ms. Goldstein sent a special delivery 

. letter to Mr. Manley indicating' that the government intended to 

proceed with the depositions as noticed, since no alternative 

dates had been offered. 

4. On June 11, counsel for the plaintiff received.a 

letter from Mr. Manley dated June 6 cancelling these depositions 

on the grounds that they conflicted with Mr. Cohn's schedule, 

but promised to suggest alternative dates the following week.*/ 

5. Counsel for plaintiff periodically visited the offices 

of defense counsel between June 14 and June 28, 1974, as a part 

of the records inspection described below·. On June 26, after 

an inquiry by counsel for plaintiff, Mr. Manley stated that firm 

dates for the taking of depositions would be provided no later 

than July 2, and that in no event would these dates be later 

than the third week in July. 

6. Having heard nothing from defense counsel by July 3, 

Ms. Goldstp:!_,, telephoned Mr. Manley and was told that he still 

could not provide firm dates for the scheduling of depositions. 

*I This letter included a list of those employees scheduled to 
depose who were no longer employed by the defendants. This infor-
mation, which plaintiff had been attempting to secure for many 
months, was to be given to the plaintiff no later than May 13, 
1974, at the direction of Magistrate Catoggio at the May 3 
hearing. 
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Mr. Manley promised, however, to call back on July 8 with 

recommended dates. 

7. Mr. Manley did not call back on July 8, or for that 

matter, thereafter. On July 9, plaintiff served notice on 

defense counsel of the scheduling of depositiams of eleven 

agents of Trtn11p Management for July 30 - August: 2, 1974. 

Subpoenas were served on each of the prospecti"Te deponents. 

8. On July 26, 1974, Mr. Cohn, by telephone, advised 

Mr. Goldberg that the eleven scheduled depositions would have 

to be taken on July 30-31 only, since his schedule could not 

permit him to attend at any other time. Yielding to these 

time strictures, plaintiff took the of eight 

agents on July 30 and 31, 1974. The first attempt to take 

these depositions had been made on 19. 1974. 

B. Inspection of Defendants' Records 

On May 6, 1974, plaintiff served and filed a Rule 34 

Request for Production of Documents on de.fense counsel Roy Cohn • 

On May' 15, Mr. Scott Manley, an associate of Mr. Cohn, 

requested that plaintiff'J forner attorney Ms. 

Elyse Goldweber forward to him a copy of the Request, saying 

that he knew nothing about it. This was done immediately. 

!7 See Appendix A. 
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On May 28, 1974,.during the course of one of their 
• 

discussions about the scheduling of depositions, Ms. Goldstein 

reminded Mr. Manley of the proposed records inspection. 

Mr: Manley again stated that he knew nothing about the proposed 

inspection, and requested that Ms. Goldstein forward him another 

copy of the Request, which she did on the same day.'!_/ 

On at least two occasions between May 28 and June 3, 

Ms. Goldstein telephonically reminded Mr. Manl:ey that repre-

sentatives of the plaintiff would travel to New on June 12, 

1974, to inspect records as noticed. At no time during these 

conversations did Mr. Manley express any objection to the 

inspection or indicate that the records would .not be made 

available at the designated time and place. Defendants also 

filed no objection to the records inspection, nor did they 

suggest any alternative site or date, or any limitation on what 

the United States would be permitted to inspect. 

On June 12, th:i..ee attorneys for the United States and .. 
j•,J/• 

two law cle,.!:.:;; arrived at 10:00 a.m. at the offices of Trump 

Management, 2611 West 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York, in accor-

dance with the notice of records inspection. The Trump 

and employees present expressed surprise at their arrival. 

See Appendix B. 
- 5 -



Mr. controller of Trump Management, asked 

Mr. Henry Brachtl, Assistant United States Attorney, into his 

office. The other attorneys, Norman Goldberg and Donna 

Goidstein, and the assistants,Frank Phillips and Larry Rogers, 

law clerks at the United States Attorney's office, remained in 

the anteroom of the Trump offices. After approximately ten 

to fifteen minutes, Mr. Hyman -asketl the remaining represent:atives 

of the United States into his office and stated that he had not 

been informea that a records ir-spection was scheduled. He further 

stated that be could not produce any records until he contacted 

defendants' counsel and that he had been unable to reach counsel. 

Ms. Goldstein placed a call to Mr. Manley from Mr. Hyman's 

office. Mr. Manley was not in and a message was left to have 

Mr. Manley contact Ms. Goldstein at the United States Attorney's 

office. Plaintiff's representatives then left the Trump Offices 

and returned to the United States Attorney's office. Contrary 

to the allegations in Mr. Roy Cohn's affidavit, there was no 

banging doors, overreaching, or other improper conduct by 

any of the representatives of the United States. Mr. Cohn was 

not present at the Trump rior were any calls placed to 

the United States Attorney's office ·by defendant·s or their counsel 

complaining about the cor.duct of representatives of the plaintiff. 

- 6 -



On June 1974; at approximately 11:30 a.m. Nr. Manley 

telephoned Ms. Goldstein at the office of the United States Attorney 

for the Eastern District of New York and, for the first time, 
• . 

expressed his objections to Plaintiff's Rtquest. He claimed that 

he·had communicated these objections earlier. Ms. Goldstein informed 

him that no objections had been transmitted, either formally or 

informally, and that if defendants would not permit a records inspec-

tion to begin, as noticed, plaintiff would have no recourse but to 

apply to the Court once again for appropriate sanctions under Rule 

37(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. After some negotia-

tions between counsel, plaintiff was authorized to begin inspect-

ing defendants' records on Friday, June 1974, at the law offices 

of defense counsel. 

When plaintiff's representatives arrived at these offices on 

the morning of June 14, Nr. Fanelli, a clerk to Nr. Manley, handed 

them a letter from Mr. Manley which charat'terized their conduct at 

the offices of Trump Management on June 12, as "descending upon the 

Trump offices with flve stormtroopers • • • banging on the doors and 

demanding tt; be allowed to swarm haphazardly through all the Trump 

files and to totally disrupt their daily 'business routine." (See 

Letter of Mr. Manley dated June 13, 1974, a copy of which was sent 

to this Court.) Counsel for plaintiff responded by a brief letter 

of.June 14 denying the veracity of these rhetorical flourishes. 
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From Thursday, June 13, 1974, until the completion of the 

records inspection, counsel for plaintiff commmnicated almost 

exclusively with Hr. Fanelli since .. neither Mr. :Cohn nor Mr. Manley 

was"then available. On Tuesday afternoon, June 18, 1974, after 

2-112 days of records inspection, Mr. Fanelli informed counsel for 

the plaintiff that records would not be available for inspection on 

the following day, June 19. However, Mr. Fane1li did give. assurances 

that records would be available on Thursday and Friday, June 20 and 

21, beginning 10:00 a.m. 

On June 20, however, the records were not made available at 

10:00 a.m., as agreed. At 11:30 a.m., Mr. Fanelli informed 

plaintiff's counsel that the automobile carrying the records had 
*I broken down and that records would not be produced until 2:00 p.m.-

Records were inspected on Thursday afternoon, June 20, and Friday, 

June 21. On June 19 and 20 alone, plaintiff's two counsel from 

Washington lost a day and a half of their time for no as a 

result of these cancellations. 

*I When the records arrived on Thursday afternoon, the driver of 
the automobile, Mr. Simon Wiss, recounted to plaintiff's counsel 
the many he had to run for Trump }1anagement by auto that 
morning, extolled the virtues and dependability of the auto-
mobile the records. 

- 8 -
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On Friday, June 21, 1974, 'Hr. Fanelli indicated that additional 

records could not be available for inspection until Wednesday, June 

26,.1974. Counsel for returned to Washington, D. C. and 

travelled back to New York to complete the records inspection on 

June 26, 27, and 28, 1974. Thus, during a period of thirteen work-

ing days, records were made available for a little over seven days. 

Not only time but travel money could have been saved had these 

interruptions not occurred. 

* * * * 

We are reluctant to belabor the Court with the foregoing 

details. We believe, however, that while each item individually 

may be relatively minor, the total impact has been to waste a large 

amount of the time and money of counsel for the United States. 

While it is petty harassment, it seems to us harassment none the 

less, quite out of keeping with Magistrate Catoggids directions 

of May 3. Moreover, in view of the repeated effcrts to deal with 

defensd 3bout_ this records inspection, the allegations in 

defendants' papers that the United States tried to "by-pass" counsel 

are without foundation in fact. 

- 9 -



II. DEFENDANTS' TO PROVIDE DISCOVER\BL£ INFORMATION 
RE0UESTED BY PLAINTIFF 

A. Defendants' Answers to Plaintiff's Interrogatories 

Plaintiff's First Interrogatories to defendants were pro-

pounded on November, 1973, and were not answered or objected to for 

more than six months. On May 16, 1974, after tvo Orders of this 

Court directing defendants to answer the defendants 

finally submitted their response. That submission consisted of 

slightly more than two pages ·'!:J In response to at least three 

interrogatories, defendants indicated that responses would be forth-

coming by the following week (letter from Scott Manley of May 16, 

more than ten weeks since that promise was made, plain-

tiff is still waiting for defendants to complete their answers. 

As noted below, the information defendants have failed to provide 

goes to the heart of the case. 

While this memorandum is not intended to be a substitute for . 

a rene•ved Rule 37 motion dealing with the deficiencies of deJendants' 

*I The unusual brevity and incompleteness of these responses may 
be explained, in part, by the fact that on May 15, 1974, one day 
before the interrogatories were due, defendant IDonald Trump called 
former Depurtmcntal attorney and indicated that he had 
only recently heard about his obligation to the interroga-
tories and wanted to know if there were any pe:m.alties for filing 
untimely answers. Ms. Goldweber referred' Mr. Tlrump to his counsel. 

!!/ See Appendix C. 
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responses to'Interrogatories, and while we wish to reserve our right 

to file such a motion in the future, we believe that a brief· examina-

tion of some of defendants' responses should be brought to the 

Court's attention. 

• 

(a) Interrogatory 5, requests 16 items of basic 

information for each apartment complex owned or managed 

by defendants. The information sought includes a racial 

breakdown of the tenant force of each building. In 

response, defendants referred to two documents which 

defendants claimed to have previously furnished to 

plaintiff. One of those documents had in fact been 

furnished to plaintiff. Plaintiff has no record of ever 

having received the other, which is purported to be a 

memorandum to Ms. Goldweber dated Narch 15, 1973. The 

document that was furnished to plaintiff merely con-

tains a list of the Trump buildings and their super-

intendents as of October, 1972, almost two years ago. 

In eight months, defendants have surely had the 

time to writ.e t:o their superintendents and to 

provide racial occupancy information in at least 

approximate form, particularly since Donald Trump 

characterized the racial makeup of Trump buildings 
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in an affidavit December 11, 1973, but they have 

made no attempt to do so. Statistical information 

of this kind is, of course, important in cases of 

this kind. See United States v. Real Estate Develop-

ment Corporation, 347 F. Supp. 776 (N.D. Miss. 1972). 

Defendants have an obligation tc secure such informa-

tion from their superintendents. City of Philadelphia 

v. Westinghouse Electric Corp., 205 F. Supp. 831 
. 

(E. D. Pa •. 1962). 

(b) In response to Interrogatory 7, which requests 

the name, address, race, job title, job location and 

dates of employment for each and every employee of 

Trump, the defendants attached Exhibit 1 to their 

Answers. That Exhibit, however, contains only the last 

name and first initial of black and Puerto Rican 

employees of the defendants - facts insufficient to 

'locate them for interview - and none of the -
other requested information was 

Plaintiff has subsequently secured some of this information during 
the inspection of defendants' records. The identities of former 
employees, of course, constitute information. See United 

v. Youritan Construction Corp., 370 F. Supp. 643 (N.D. Calif. 
1973), and cases there cited, holding that proof of discriminatory 
instructions to employees meets the Attorney General's burden of 
proof. 
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The names of black tenants (Interrogatory 11), 

complaints about racial discrimination (Interro-

gatory 13) and the identities of tenants who 

secured apartments after complaining or threaten-

ing to complain about racial policies (Interroga-

tory 14) never been provided by defendants. 

B. Failure to Produce Rejected Applications 

In Plaintiff's Interrogatories to Defendants served on 

November 7, 1973, plaintiff first requested that defendants 

furnish certain information relating to rejected applicants. On 

March 28, 1974, Donald Trump tes;tified, on deposition, 

that there was no particular policy with respect to either retaining 

or destroying these records and that some of these records may 

still exist. (Dep. p. 33). Mr. Trump also stated that some of 

these records may also have been destroyed since the Interrogator-

ies were propounded (Id., p. 99), so that defendants' capacity to 

answer'those interrogatories calling for information as to rejected 

applicants was impaired, if not destroyed, by their own conduct. 

During the 
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taking of this deposition, Mr. Cohn did, however, provide a measure 

of assurance that his clients would preserve all relevant records, 

including those pertaining to rejected applicants. (Ia., pp. 99-100). 

During the June 1974 records inspection and after repeated 

requests for the production of rejected applications, plaintiff was 

provided with a copy of a memorandum from Mr. Stuart Hyman, comp-

troller of Trump Management, stating that "effective Harch 28, 1974" 

there were no rejected e.pplications.:._/ Whatever the meaning of 

Hyman's memorandum, it taxes credulity to suggest that between 

March 28, 1974 - the day that the defendants are supposed to have 

stopped destroying these applications - and June 28, 1974, the 

defendants, who have 2500 - 3000 vacancies a year (Hyman Dep. p. 73) 

and who have repeatedly testified through their agents that appli-

cations are closely reviewed, have not rejected a single applica-

tion.::!:_/ 

Defendants now go even further than Mr. Hyman's memorandum and 
a 

claim that there have never been any rejected applications. Minerva 

Gilbert, office -;-,tanager for the past seven years, who has the 
---:-----·----*1 See Appendix D. 

On July 3, 1974, we sent a letter to Mr. reiterating our 
concern that none of the rejected applications had been produced and 
requesting that the defendants furnish us with an explanation for 
the reproduction of these documents prior to this hearing but no 
explanation has been forthcoming. · 
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responsibility for approving or rejecting applications, testified 

during the depositions taken on July 30 and 31 that she cannot 

recall ever having rejected a single application for tenancy. 

Each of the six superintendents*/ depositions were taken on 

July 30 and 31 stated t even though they accepted 

applications from anyone, they have never had an application 

rejected by the main office. The six superintendents whose deposi-

tions were taken \vere also served with subpoenas directing them 

to bring certain documents including "records of the payment of 

depqsits in the possession, custody or control of the deponent." 

Only one superintendent produced these reccrds (Raymond Travis), 

others that no such records existed. 

Mr. Travis, superintendent at Wedgewood Hall Apartments for 

the past five years, also produced a book of receipts he 

described as having been supplied by the main office when he was 

first hired as superintendent. 'Hr. Travis tesitfied that he was 

instructed to give a receipt to each applicant when a deposit is 

submitted with the application. A number of these receipts are 

marked "refunded." \.Jhile early in his deposition Mr. Travis stated 

that he never had an application_ rejected, he later explained 

*I M-.:.-Skender Fici, }1r. Guido Lara, Mr. \olalter Rohr, Mr. Daniel 
Bozt:h, Joseph Zecher and Hr. Raymond Travis. 
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that "refunded" signifies applications which \vere rejected by 

Ms. Gilbert. In Mr. Travis' receipt book alame, which is used for 

an apartment complex of only approximately 94 units, there were 

at least six such "refunded" receipts since tJhe date of service of 

plaintiff's interrogatories in November 1973 requesting such infor-

mation. Accordingly, it is apparent that rejected applications 

exist but that information about them has not.: been made available 

to plaintiff. 

While some progress has been made in dliiscovery following 

the hearing before Magistrate Catoggio, remain in sub-

stantial noncompliance with their in relation to 

discovery. Some of the noncompliance involves material critical 

to the disposition of this case, while other a:-onduct has been of 

a harassing and disruptive nature. Even aside from the false and 

scurrilous charges assembled by defendants one of plaintiff's 

counsel,::_/ there has been sufficient resistamce to the orderly 

conduct of discovery to warrant consideratiorn a new motion 

"!:_/ On or about .Tuly 26, 1974, defendants not:fuced a motion for a 
contempt citation ogainst Ms. Goldstein. \fuf]_,e we generally avoid 
the argument by inflammatory rhetoric \vhich has characterized 
defense counsel's submissions, we can only say that, for reasons 
set f0rth in our other papers filed herewith, these charges are 
utterly fantastic. 
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for s.anctions after present discovery proceedings have been 

completed. 

JAMES PORTER 
Assistant United States 

Attorney 
Chief, Civil Division 

submitted, 

FRANK E. SCH\-lELB 
Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

NOlU1A.N P • GOLOB ERG 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 

of Justice 
D. C. 20530 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Attorney, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 
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APPENDIX A .. 

T. 5-6-74 
\ 

• 
JSP!FES :ESG :cmk 
DJ 175-52-23 

. ' 

Roy 11 .. Cohn, Esq. 
Saxe, Bacon, toln.n and Hanley 
39 E3st 63th Street 
New York, York 10021 

Re: United Staten v. Fred C. Trump, et al., 
Civi 1 No. 73 C 152') 

Dear Roy: 

Please find enclosed two of Plaintiff's 

. Request for Proc..:ction of Docu:ncnt:s ... 

ce: Records 
Chrono 
Gol&11eber 
Trial File 
Hold 

Sincerely, 

J • STANLEY POT'! u;GER 
Assistant Attonley General 

Civil Rights Divi5ion 

By: 
ELYSE S. 

Attornt!y 
Housing Section 

-



AP.PENDIX B 
\ . 

T. 5/28/74 
JSP:tG:mlp MAY 2 81974 

Scott Manley, Esq. 
S:lXo, · D-2con, ilol.an & I:.anley. 
39 E<:lst 68th St:rcet 
1'1eu York, r:;c":.' Ycrk 10021 

Rc: United St-ates v. Fred c .. Tn::;:;p, et a.l. 
Ci\."il Act5.0tl th. 73 C 1529 

Dear Mr. 

• 

In response ·to our telephone of Hay 28, 
1974, please find enclosed a copy of Request 
for Product i;m of J:or:trJ'ents, RCht::dulcd ft.;') cr.nro:euce on 
June 12, 1':17.'). the proposed 

for dcpos .ttio:ts of t:ho a:;enL:D and 
employees of Trumt> H:1nagement. Inc. Fo:rn·.al notice 
be for1:hcorning. Thet1e depositio:ts had been previously 
scheduled. for April 18- April 22, 1974. 

for your cooperation !:n this I 
look forv1ard to hc.nring from you soon t.:o confirm the 
attached dincovery schedule. 

. ' 

ce: Recorde / 
Chrono 
Ms. Goldstei 
Trial.File 
Henry Brachtl 

Sincerely, 

J. 
General 

Civil Rights Division 

GOLDSTEIN 
Attorney 

Housir-...g Seetion 



APPENDIX C 
.. -

f!ldacon/, !!Jdcilcov 2£" I/ 
·· 39-EAST 68TH STHEET (/' 

.JOHN GODF"RCY SAXE 
ROGERS H. BACON 11919 ·19621 

t •••o ,;.!'I 

L· _.-

SCOTT E. MANLEY u,.LIN015 ANO IHOIAN.A) 

C21Zl 47Z • 1400 

........ . , ,. 

MICHAEL ROSEN 

OANIE:L .J. DRISCOLL 

HAROLD SCHWARTZ 
MEI,..VYN RUBIN 

MAY 2? bt4 

May 1974 CIVIL RIGHTs 
.JEF"F"REY A SHUt.,jAN 
!..ORIN DUCKMAN 

. 
Miss Donna Goldstein 
United States Department of Justice 
Washington, D. c. 20530 

Re: United States v. Fred C. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Miss Goldstein: 

Enclosed please find a copy cz defendants' 
ans\vers to plaintiff's interrogatories. .It is my under-

-standing speaking with Miss that you are 
taking her place on this case since she r-as left to work 
in New York. 

As you will note from our ::2.:'..-S'i.-.-ers, most of the 
information requested by the Governoer.:: i.=-1 the interroga-
tories already has been supplied in ths examinations 
before trial \·lhich you already have cc:-.-;::..et2d. \.;e could 
not make specific reference to page due to the 
fact that the tre:nscripts have not bee:::: ccr:pleted. You 
will thdt there are three requiring detailed 
in"'=.:..cr:1ation from records, Hhich Stuart :=:_. ·an has been compil-
J..ng and hopes to co!":"'.plete next week. -w:ill supply you 
with this as soon as 1·1r. £_:;. ""'D completes saree. 

SEM/ew 

cc: Hen. Vincent Catoggio 
United States.Magistrate 
Eastern District of New York 
United States Courthouse 
225 Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Very truly yours, 

Scott E. Manley 

I 

• 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that I have on this date mailed copies of 

the following documents, postage prepaid, to: 

Roy Cohn, Esquire 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, Ne\v York 10021 

1. Response of the United States to 
Defendants' Motion of July 26, 1974 

2. Supporting affidavits 

3. Order to Show Cause (proposed} 

4. Memorandum of the United States 

5. Plaintiff's Interrogatories to Defendants 

6. Report of the United States to the Court 
on the Status of Discovery 

,.-"' 
August 5 , 1974 

Coun'sel for Plaintiff 

.. 

r 
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NEW YORK. NEW lOOZl 

JOHN GODFREY SAXE (1909·19531 

ROGERS H. BACON (1919·1982) 

(212) 472 -1.<100 THOMAS A. BOLAN 

ROY M. COHN 
SCOTT E. MANL.EY (A0>41TTEO IlLINOIS AND INDIANA) 

MICHAEL. ROSEN 

DANIEL. ..J. ORISCOL.L. 

HAROL.D SCHW.t.RTZ 
MEL.VYN RUBIN 
JEFFREY A- SHUMAN 
L.ORIN DUCKM.t.N 

Elyse Goldweber, Esq. 
Attorney, Housing Section 
U. S. Department of Justice 
Washington, D. c. 20530 

May 9, 1974, 

Re: United States v a Pred C. 'l'rump, et. al. 
Civil Action No .. 73 c· 1529 

Dear Elyse: 

COUNSEl. 

In connection with adver-tising by The Trump 
Organization, and its support; of civil rights organiza-
tions, you might remember tha·t: F':ced and Donald did not 
recall certain specifics at tl'w tim.;: of; their 

I am enclosing a from CORE concerni;rl.g 
advertising and support from 'L'he T:tt:unp Organization in 
the past and would appreciatE: ii: if you \vould add i1: to 
the depositions. 

En=1,vsure 

Frank Eo Schwe.>.lb 
Hen.r}t A. Brachtl, Esq. 
Hon. Vincent A. Catoggio 

Sincerely, 



. . ... 

CORE 
CONGRESS OF RACIAL EQUALITY 
:!00 West 1:\:,th Stre,·t. y,,,k,I'\.Y. IOO:lO, ·:!1:! 368-8104 

April 30, 1974 

Mr. Donald Trump 
The Trump Organization 
600 Avenue Z 
Brooklyn, N.Y. 11223 

Dear Mr. Trump: 

I am writing you concerning our recent telephone conversation and 
most certainly wish to thank you for the interest of participation 
with National CORE in our salute to Hank Aaron. 

It is only through the support of thoughtful and interested individ-
uals such as you, as well as all segments of the industrial and com-
mercial society of our country, that the Congress of Racial Equality 
can continue its efforts and pursuits as it has for many years. 

Last year, The Trump Organization was represented in our national 
publication by purchasing 1/8 page advertisement in the amount of 
$250.00. This year, we are requesting that The Trump Organization 
duplicate last year's representation. 

Many thanks for your cooperation. r' /. L. / · 

National Affairs Advisor 



NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10021 

JOHN GODFREY SAXE 
ROGERS H. BACON (1919·1962) 

(212) 472 A. BoLc\N 
COUNSEL 

ROY M. COHN 
SCOTT E. MANI..EY (AOMITIEO ILLINOIS AND INDIANA) 

MICHAEl.. ROSEN 

DANIEl.. J, DRISCOI..L 
April 17, 1974 

HAROLD SCHWARTZ 
MELVYN RUBIN 
,JI:;F"FREY A· SHUMAr,f 
LORIN DUCKMAN 

ElyiJ\J 8. Golc1vJebe.r 
Atto:eney, Housing Sect.ion 
United Sta·tes Depari.:ment of Jusi·.ice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

DE:a.r Elyse: 

Re: ESG: eym DJ 17 5--:>2"'28 
United States 'it. Fred c. Trump, ei: al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

I never knew you :.uch a whit:e 
female! The reason for the douJyt: about the ability to 
go with the continuat·.io,·J of depos:i tions which 
hc:rve already v was bee: use I had been directed 
·to proceed to trial in another watter. As I have advised 
you 1 ·the whole thi:ng is a in a as i:he 
other·. ·trial is not. going ahead :Lor a and He can 
con tirme depositions on Tuesdav, Apr .:i J 2 3 , at 9: 3 0 . 

We will see you. 'tvi th H::. rrJ:·ump and i:he o·t:her 
witnesses next week. 

Sincerely,. 

Hoy J:l1. Cohn 

cc Hon. Edward Neaher 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Addreu Reply to tde 
Division Indicated 

and Refer to lnitiala and Nwnl>er 

JSP :FES :DFG: saf 
DJ 175-52-28 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20530 

AUG 2 2 1975 
The Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
Federal Court House 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 10023 

Re: United States v. Trump Management, Inc. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Judge Neaher: 

I am writing in reference to the Consent Order in the 
above-styled lawsuit. We are in receipt of Mr. Roy Cohn's 
letter to you of August 11, 1975, which states that the United 
States has violated the terms of the Consent and requesting 
that a hearing be set. We have no objection to another hearing 
in this matter. In that regard, I am enclosing, for your 
information, a copy of a recent letter from this office to 
Mr. Cohn advising him that certain rental practices authorized 
by the Consent Order are in violation of State Law. 

Thank you for your continued patience and consideration 
in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

J. Stanley Pottinger 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

B • (-/vx,.__ 
y. ' -

Donna F. Gol s ein 
Attorney 

Housing Section 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) CIVIL ACTION NO. 73 C 1529 

v. ) 
) 

FRED C. TRUMP, DONALD TRUMP ) 
AND TRUMP MANAGEMENT INC. , ) PROPOSED ORDER 

) 
Defendants. ) _________________________) 

This matter is before the Court upon defendants' Motion 

to Dismiss and Motion for More Defini·te Statement. The plead-

ing in question is the Complaint plaintiff filed under the 1968 

Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et alleging discrimination 

in housing. This matter is also before the Court upon plaintiff's 

motion to dismiss defendants' counterclaim. 

After careful consideration of these matters the Court 

concludes as follows: 

1. For purposes of a motion to dismiss, the allegations 

of the complaint are deemed admitted and are to be construed in 

the light most favorable to plaintiff. A complaint may be dis-

missed for failure to state a claim only when it appears beyond 

doubt that plaintiff would be unable to prove a set of facts 

which would entitle him to relief. Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 

41, 45-46 (1957); United States v. Georgia Power Co., 301 F. Supp. 

538, 541 (N.D. Ga. 1969). The complaint alleges, in the language 

of the Act itself, that defendant has engaged in discriminatory 

practices, and is not subject to dismissal under this test. 



2. With respect to the Motion for More Definite 

Statement, the plaintiff has provided sufficient notice to 

the defendants of the Government's claims to enable them to 

frame a responsive pleading. The Complaint, paraphrasing the 

language of the statute itself, meets the requirements of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and is not subject to a motion 

for more definite statement. See, e.g. United States v. Bob 

Lawrence Realty. Inc., 313 F. Supp. 870, 873 (N.D. Ga. 1970). 

The Federal Rules provide ample opportunity for the defendants 

to discover the facts of plaintiff's case following joinder of 

issue. 

3. Defendants' counterclaim fails to state a claim upon 

which relief can be granted. No suit may be brought against the 

United States, as sovereign, without specific statutory consent, 

and the United States has not consented to suits of this nature. 

United States v. Northside Realty Associates, 324 F. Supp. 287 

(N.D. Ga. 1971). 42 U.S.C. 2680 bars suits against the United 

States for libel, slander, or abuse of process. Accordingly, 

IT IS ORDERED that (1) defendants' Motion to Dismiss and Motion 

for More Definite Statement be and they are hereby denied, and 

(2) defendants' counterclaim be and it is hereby dismissed with 

prejudice. 

------------------' 1974 

United States District Judge 
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JOHN GODFREY SAXE 0909-1953) 
ROGERS H. BACON 11919-1962) 

ROY M. COHN 
STANLEY M. FRIEDMAN 
DANIEL J. DRISCOLL 
MICHAEL ROSEN 
JOHN F. LANG 
JAMES M. PECK 
ROY R. KULCSAR 
JEFFREY A. SHUMAN 
RONALD F. POEPPLEIN 
EDWARD H. HELLER 
LOUIS BIANCONE + 

*ADMITTED IN NEW JERSEY ONLY 

39 EAST 68TH STREET 

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10021 

(212) 472-1400 

CABLE:SAXUM 

April 19, 1978 

Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
United States Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Re: U.S. v. Trump Management, Inc. 
73-C-1529 

Dear Judge Neaher: 

THOMAS A. BOLAN 
COUNSEL 

This is to confirm that the scheduling of the status 
conference in the above-entitled action for May 9, 1978, at 
9:30 a.m. is agreeable to counsel, and confirmed by Brian 
Heffernan of the u.s. Department of Justice. 

Respectfully yours, 

SAXE, BACON & BOLAN, P.C. 

/ '1 '--·----/ 
... _.. J 

Stanley M. Friedman 
sb -' 
cc: Brian Heffernan 
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Address Reply to the 
Division Indicated 

and Hefer to Initials and Number 

DSD:BFH:mop 
DJ 175-52-28 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20530 

1. q APR 

Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
United States Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Re: United States v. Trump Management, Inc. 
Civil Action No. 73-C-1529 

Dear Judge Neaher: 

Homer LaRue of the United States Attorney's office 
has informed us that the Court proposes to reschedule the 
status conference in the captioned case for May 9, 1978 
at 9:30 A.M. I have consulted with Mr. Friedman of 
Saxe, Bacon and Bolan, counsel for the defendant, and 
this is to advise you that May 9 is satisfactory to both 
parties. 

We appreciate the Court's consideration and time 
in this matter. 

• 

Sincerely, 

Drew s. Days, III 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 1L f. }J QL 
Br1an F. Heffernan 

Attorney 
Housing and Credit Section 



c 1529 

B e fo r e: 

MAY 3, 1974 

HONORABLE VINCENT A. CATOGGIO 
United States Magistrate 

CIVIL MOTION 

AT 10:00 AM 

U. S. A. -vs- FRED C. TRUMP, et al. 

DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR SANCTIONS, ETC. 

'PEARANCES: 

For P1tff: 

For Defts: 

Henry A. Brachtl, Esq. 
Frank E. Schwell, Esq. 
Miss Goldweber 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
By: Scott Manley, Esq. 

CASE CALLED- DELAYED 2 hrs DUE TO DEFENDANTS' ATTORNEY'S 

LATENESS - GOVERNMENT ATTORNEYS PRESENT AS SCHEDULED -

RESPECTIVE PARTIES HEARD - PROCEEDINGS RECORDED - TWO TAPES -

MR. MANLEY AGREED THAT BY MAY 13, 1974 HE WILL NOTIFY THE 

GOVERNMENT ATTORNEYS AS TO WHO IS STILL UNDER EMPLOY·MENT 
WITH TRUMP MANAGEMENT CORP., AND BY MAY 16, 1974 HE WILL 

ANSWER INTERROGATORIES. 



B e fo r e: 

MAY 3, 1974 

HONORABLE VINCENT A. CATOGGIO 
United States Magistrate 

CIVIL MOTION 

AT 10:00 AM 

?3 c 1529 U. S. A. -vs- FRED C. TRUMP, et al. 

RA NCES : 

For Pltff: 

For Defts: 

OTION FOR SANCTIONS, ETC. 

Henry A. Brachtl, Esq. 
Frank E. Schwell', Esq. 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
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IN TilE UNITED STATES DISTRICT iCOURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NE1T YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AHERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

Vo 

TRU!1P HANAGEHSNT, !NCo, 

Defendantso 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CIVIL ACTION 
NO. 73 C 1529 

SD1?FLEHENTAL 
ORDER 

_________________________ ) 

On the application of the Plaint. iff, United States 

of America, and by consent of Management, 

Inc.; it is hereby ordered tha't l\lrt V (2) of the Consent 

Order in this action in this C:OtH t on June 10, 1975, 

is hereby amended as follows: 

(2) Occupancy 

Not more than two (2) persons in a one bedroom 

apartment, nor more than four (4) two (2) 

adults and two (2) children of 

in a two bedroom apartmento 

No applicant shall be denied ter .;ncy bQr;;atte£ he or 
A 

she has children_, as of pe;:sm,s to 

!/ Except that children under seven y.ears of age may be of 
different sexeso 



... ' .... 
tb.e ttnit, and tl:e of thQ cb:i ldren r gnform 

ORDERED this ___ day of ---' 1975o 

Edward R. Neaher 

The apply for and 
consent to the entry of this 
Order. 

For the Defenuants 

--:------------'--------ROY M.. 
Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & 

Manley 
39 E. 68th Street 
New York, New York 

FRED C. TRilllP 

DONALD TRillfP 

For the Plaintiff 

r-r; .0 p ·; ?;,1 
J k l_. "J<)u .• :dt ---FRANK E. SCEw'ELB 

Chief, Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
't-lashington, D. C. 20530 
// 

I ; \ / ! 0 ·---- ·. 
.. r 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Attorney, .. Housing Section 
Civil Rights Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

DAVID G .. TRAGER 
United States Attorney 
by HENRY Ao BRACHTL 

Assistant UoSo Attorney 

.. 



NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10021 

.JOHN GODF"REY SAXE (1909-19531 
ROGERS H. BACON (1919·1962) 

(212) 472-1400 THOMAs A. BoLAN 
COUNSEL 

ROY M. COHN 

SCOTT E. MANLEY (ADMITTED ILLINOIS AND INDIANA) 
MICHAEL ROSEN 

DANIEL .J. DRISCOLL 

HAROLD SCHWARTZ 
MELVYN RUBIN 
.JEF"F"REY A. SHUMAN 
LORIN DUCKMAN 

BY HAND 

Henry A. Bracthl, Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Donna F. Goldstein, Attorney-Civil Rights 

Division · 
United States Department of Justice 
Federal Building 
Brooklyn, New York 

Dear Mr. Bracthl: 

June 13, 1974 

I am in receipt of your letter dated today which was 'tlai t-
ing for me at my office upon my return from the Cohen v. 
Coheri trial this afternoon at. 5:00 p.m. 

We :stand ready to let you begin inspecting and copying records 
in U.S.A. v. Trump tomorrow morning, June 14, as per my agree-
ment with Miss Goldstein reached over the telephone on Wednes-
day. While I regret the misunderstanding that led to your 
descending upon the Trump offices with five stormtroopers 
Wednesday morning banging on the doors and demanding to be 
allowed to swarm haphazardly through all of the Trump files 
and to totally disrupt their daily business routine, I do not 
feel that there is any point is carrying the argument any fur-
ther. I would assume that your objective is the same as ours 
in this matter, namely, proceeding orderly with pre·-trial dis-
covery so as to enable both sides to continue preparing for 
a fair trial in this Toward that end, we look for-
\vard to cooperating with you Friday morning at our offices. 

Miss Goldstein and I agreed that. the inspection would take 
place at my offices instead of Trump so as to not have to un-
necessarily totally disrupt the Trump necessary business rou-
tine. I would assume that by your demand in your letter to 
inspect the materials at Trump offices that Miss .Goldstein ne-
glected to inform you of our oral agreement to the contrary. 

We are ready to provide you with over 1, 000 files: Friday on 
both old and current tenants of Trump. Because Trump cannot 



A_ f!ldacon/, f!Jdo&wv -2-.. . 

at all with all of its current leases and files out of 
its offices, we will have to work out a schedule whereby as soon 
as you have completed inspecting and copying this very substan-
tial amount of material that this material will be returned to 
the Trump office and additional material will be sent to our 
offices for your inspection. 

With regard to the depositions of further Trump personnel ten-
atively scheduled to begin on June 18, I already have advised 
the Government that this date is impossible as both Mr. Cohn 
and myself will still be on trial before Justice Gomez in the 
Supreme Court of the State of New York in Cohen v. Cohen and 
Judge Gomez absolutely refuses to hear any application for 
even a half-day ·,adjournment in that case. I will supply you 
with alternate dates as quickly as possible and I am sure we 
can come to an agreeable solution which will neither delay 
the matter unnecessarily for you nor prejudice the rights of 
the defendants by denying them the right to counsel in these 
proceedings. I would respectfully suggest that is completely 
unfair on your part to set forth ultimatums in the way of 
3:00 deadlines to respond or else in view of the fact that 
you are completely aware of both Mr. Cohn and myself being 
on trial before Judge Gomez from 9:00 to 4:30 daily. We 
are completely ready to cooperate in discovery; all we re-
quire is a little time in which to assemble matter in view 
of our extremely heavy present litigation schedule. 

Finally, I sincerely wish that at least from this point for-
ward, that we could attempt to cooperate better in all of 
these matters. If your goal is to expedite discovery and to 
prepare for a fair trial for both sides as is ours, I think 
that this end would be better served by cooperation and ob-
servation of the basic courtesies normally extended between 
private counsel in litigation instead of continual threats 
by. the Government and its treating the rules of civil pro-
cedure as some kind of undeviating Bible which cannot bend 
its timetables for even a few hours to promote the ends of 
justice. 

SEM/ap 
cc: Hon. Edward R. Neaher 
Unted States District Judge 
United States Courthouse 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Honorable Vincent Catoggio 
United States Magistrate 
United States Courthouse 
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, N.Y. 11201 

Very truly yours, 
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File No. 
'730959 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
FEDERAL BUILDING 

BROOKLYN, N. Y. 11201 

BY HAND 

August 6, 1974 

Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 
Messrs. Saxe, Bacon, Bolan 

and Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Re: u. s. v. Fred c. Trump, et al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Mr. Cohn: 

Enclosed herewith are the following documents: 

1. Order to Show Cause, entered August 5, 1974, 
2. Memorandum of the United States in Support 

of the Entry of an Order to Show Cause, 
3. Response of United States to Defendant's 

Motion of July 26, 1974, 
4. Affidavit of Frank E. Schwelb, dated 

August 2, 1974, 
5. Affidavit of Donna F. Goldstein, dated 

August 2, 1974, 
6. Affidavit of Elyse S. Goldweber with 

accompanying letter of November 5, 1973, 
7. Plaintiff's Interrogatories to the De-

fendants, and 
8. Report of the United States to the Court 

on the Status of Discovery. 
I. 

Please note that the Order to Show Cause is returnable 
August 8, 1974, at 2:00 P.M. 

Encls. 
a/s 

Very truly yours, 

DAVID G. TRAGER 
ed States Attorney By: _... 

C RL I • STm'VART 
Assistant U. S. Attorney ·, 



cc: 
The Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
Unj.ted States District Judge 

stern District of New York 
ited States Courthouse 
5 Cadman Plaza East 

Brooklyn, New York 11201 
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NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10021 

.JOHN GODFREY SAXE (1909-19531 
ROGERS H. BACON Cl919cl962) 

(212) 472-1400 THOMAS A. BOLAN 
COUNSEL 

ROY M. COHN 
SCOTT E. MANLEY (ADMITTED ILLINOIS AND INDIANA) 

MICHAEL ROSEN 

DANIEL .J- DRISCOLL May 15th, 1975 

Hon. Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Court 
Eastern District 
u. S. Court House 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Re: Trump 

Dear Judge Neaher:-

Your Honor can surmise from the six-

page single space letter written to you by the 

Housing Section under date May 8, 1975, just how 

much bureaucratic knit-picking and time-wasting 

has characterized the process of agreeing on final 

language in the decree. 

I think what they're trying to say is that a 

meeting with Your Honor would be constructive, which 

is precisely what I had suggested to Miss Goldstein 

last week. 

lf/!Hf/7/?z ____ 
ROY M.jCOHN 

RMC:at 
cc: Frank Schwelb, Chief 

Housing Section 
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Honorable Vincent A. Catoggio 
Magistrate, United States District Court 
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Re: United States v. Fred C. Trump, et al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Judge Catoggio: 

We hav,a just received a copy of Mr. Roy Cohn's 
September 5, 1974, letter to you in which he contends that 
our-response to defendants' objections to plaintiff's Request 
for Production of Documents in the above-captioned case was 
so untimely as to render the issue ''academic." While we 
hesitate to burden you with additional correspondence on this 
matter, 't>1e believe the letter raises issues requiring a short 
response. 

On August 20, after being informed by the United States 
Attorney's office that Mr. Cohn had objected by letter to our 
request to inspect records in Norfolk, Virginia, we delivered 
a letter to you which advised that we intended to respond 
fully to these objections. You may recall that on September 3, 
I advised your Honor by telephone that I was on that date 
mailing, by special delivery, plaintiff's response. During 
that conversation, it was my impression that the matter 
remained open for determination. 

Despite Mr. Cohn's assertion that the issue is now 
"academic," we believe that Plaintiff's outstanding Request 
for Production of Documents, noticed 01:1 August 13, 1974, 
rmnains active and survives the .September first discovery 



deadline. Indeed, if plaintiff's September third response is 
deemed to be untimely because it comes after the discovery 
deadline, defendants would succeed in defeating what would 
otherwise be permissible discovery by makit1.g informal objections 
at the eleventh hour. 

Mr. Cohn also indicates that he has asked Judge Neaher 
to fix an early trial date. We have, as yet, received no 
notice from the defendants, either formal or informal, that 
they have requested that this case be put on the trial calendar. 
However, we will be contacting Judge Neaher to advise him that 
we believe there are certain matters remaining outstanding in 
this lawsuit which need to be settled before this action is 
set for trial. These include our request to inspect records 
in Norfolk, Virginia, and a forthcoming motion which we intend 
to file to have defendants' July 26 notice of Motion and 
supporting Affidavits, which seek to have plaintiff's counsel 
held in contempt of court, stricken from the record. 

Respectfully yours, 

J. STANLEY POTTINGER 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 

DONNA F. GOLDSTEIN 
Attorney 

Housing Section 

cc: Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
Roy M. Cohn, Esquire 

\ ·, 

/' 
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Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Court 
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Re: United States v. Fred C. Trump, et al. 
Civil Act:ion No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Judge Neaher: 

On September 11, 1974, we received a copy of a letter 
sent by Mr. Roy Cohn to Magistrate Catoggio in which he states 
that he has requested that the above ... captioned suit be placed 
on the trial calendar. As our responding letter to Magistrate 
Catoggio (a copy of which is enclosed) indicates, we believe 
there are important matters remaining outstanding which need 
to be settled before this case is set for trial. 

For example, defendants have made objections to plain-
tiff•s August 13th Request for Production of Documents. The 
parties are now awaiting a determination by Magistrate Catoggio 
as to the permissibility of this requested discovery. Moreover, 
we intend, in the very near future, to file a motion to Strike 
defendants' July 26th Notice of Motion and Supporting Affidavits 
which seek disciplinary action against plaintiff's counsel for 
alleged misconduct. As you may recall, on August 8, 1974, 
after the hearing Qn plaintiff's Order to Show cause, the 
parties met with Judge Catoggio. At that time the defendants 
decided to withdraw their contempt motion from the calendar, 
but refused to agree to a full withdrawal with prejudice. 



Plaintiff believes that allowing this motion to remain in its 
present state of limbo only serves to further cloud the issues 
in this lawsuit. It additionally unduly preJudices the repu-
't:ation of one of plaintiff's counsel with charges which we are 
prepared to prove are totally without foundation. 

The United States wants an early and expeditious trial 
in this case in keeping with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. 
3613. In fact, this lawsuit could have already been tried 
had it not been for the continued delays and dilatory tactics 
occasioned by the defendants and their counsel. However, we 
do not believe that with these outstanding issues still 
unresolved, this case is now ready to be set for trial. There-
for.e, we respectfully urge that this case not be placed on the 
trial calendar until the resolution of these open matters. 

Respectfully yours, 

J. STANLEY POO'TINGER 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 

NORMAN P. GOLDBERG 
Attorney 

Housing Section 

cc: The Honorable Vincent A. Catoggio 
Roy M. Cohn, Esquire 
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April 16, 1974 

Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley, Esqs. 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

Attn: Roy M. Cohn, Esq. 

f>ear Sirs: 

Re: United States v. Fred c. Trump, et al. 
u.s.n.c., B.D.N.Y. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 _, _______ _...4;t .... _ 

We are sorry to learn from your associate .. Teffrey 
Schuman, Esq. that. you will. not honor your commitment to 
produce previously designated officers, agents and employees 
of defendants in the above action for depositions on. April 17, 
18, 19 and 22, 1974, notwithstandin9 your written stipulation, 
by Mr. Schuman, so ordered by the Court on April l, 1974, 
and the oral representation of Mr. Cohn of your firm to 
Government counsel. on March 29, 1974. To avoid obviously 
futile expenditure, we have cancelled o·ur· request for a 
stenographer to record the depositions on those dates. 

We regret, too, that defendant has chosen to 
violate the Court•e order of February 5, 1974 \fhich ordered 
defendants to answer plaintiff's interrogatories on or 
before April 1, 1974. 

we will, of course, apply for appropriate 
sanctions against 

Very truly yours, 

EDWARD JOHN BOYD V 
States2:;;9 ey 

/1 /' / r··/ &----- ( ____ (-
HENRY BRACBTL . 

U.. S. Jl..t.tor:ney 

The Honorable Edward R. Naaher 
United States District ,Judge 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
DrcoklyrJ, New York 11201 
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Scott Manley, Esq. 

MAY 1974 

Saxe, Baeoa, Bolan & Manley 
39 East 68th Street 
New New York 10021 

Re: Utd.ted States v. Fred C. Trump, et a.l., 
§§tion No. 73 C 1529 

Dear Mr. Man lCi!y: 

I am writing to confirm our telephone conversations of 
May 9, 1974. During our conversations, you requested that 
the United States stipulate to granting the defendants a ten 
day extension of time to respond to our interrogatories of 
November 7, 1973. 

Ordinarily we would consent to such a request, however, 
in light of the fact that there have been so many de lays in 
the above-styled lawsuit; that we have previously made a Motion 
for Sanctions; and that on May J, 1974, Judge Catoggip ordered 
the defendants to respond to our interrogatories on or before 
May 16, 1974, we decline to consent to an extension of time. 

If you decide to move for leave of court for an 
extension of time, l\'e would naturally want to be served with 
a copy of all the pertinent papers. 

Sincerely, 

J. STANLEY POTTINGER 
Assistant Attorney General 

Civil Rights Division 

By: 
ELYSE S. GOLDWEBER 

Attorney 
Housing Section 

f 



ec: Bon. Edward B.. Neaher 
United States District Court Judge 
Eastern District of New York 
United States Courthouse 
225 IJadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn. New York 11201 

lion. Vineent Catosgio 
United States M4gistrate 
Easte:srr& District of New York 
United States Cout'thOWJe 
22.5 Cadman Plaza Ea.&t 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 
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UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE 
UNITED STATES DISTRiCT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNI'TED STATES COURT HOUSE 
BROOKLYN, NEW YORK 11201 

Henry A. Brachtl, Esq. 
Assistant U. S. Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 

Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 

Saxe, Bacon, Bolan & Manley, Esqs. 
39 East 68th Street 
New York, New York 10021 

June 18, 1974 

Re: United States v. Fred c. T:tump, et al. 
Civil Action No. 73 C 1529 

Gentlemen: 

A further conference in this case will be held before 

the undersigned on June 27, 1974 at It:30 ?. M. This meeting is 

made necessary by the tenor of your letter of June 13, 197lf and 

.Tune 111, 1971-1. No excuse for non-attendance will be accepted 

and failure to appear will invite consideration of the imposition 

of sanctions. 

cc: Honorable Edward R. Neaher 
United States District Judge 
Eastern District of New York 

Very truly yours, 
• r 

f i I I ! 

I / I ' <>' ' - ; { \ ( ::;· ( . \. c 
\/ v v "' · ..... ,\. \.. 1 i 

VINCENT A. CATOGGI& 
United States Magi2trate 
Eastern District of New York 
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TO 1'!IIOH IT }.L'\ Y COHCPRN: 
"·' 

100 Jedwood Place 
Valley Stream, L.I., N.Y. 
July 19th, 1974 

\' I, PaulDZiselman1hereby make the following true and 
correct statements of my own free will: 

I was formerly· employed by Trump Management on a part-
time basis as a rental agent at Beach Haven Apartments, 2611 W. 
2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York. During my period of employment 
I personally never discriminated against any prospective tenants 
regardless of race, color or creed. 

Additionally, I have never been instructed by any 
superior of the Trump Office, nor was it ever suggested or 
stated to me in any way, manner or form to follow a racially 
discriminatory rental policy while I was employed by this 
company. In fact, during such employment I rented many apart-
ments to minorities, including blacks. 

Despite the above mentioned, I was visited by a 
representative of the Justice Department who stated that an 
"FBI Agent" would be back to continue the interrogation. These 
statements were made in a threatening manner and ! strongly resent 
and object to it. I was especially harassed and intimidated 
by a Donna Goldstein and in my opinion, her unethical conduct 
in itself should be a matter of investigation. 



TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 
pH.._sl n r 

100 Jedwood Plate 
Valley Stream, L.I., N.Y. 
July 19th, 1974 

I, Jl;:;"";,:t"ik Ziselman hereby make the following 
statements of my own free will, which are true and 
correct. 

I was formerly employed by Trump Management 
on a part-time basis as a rental agent at Beach Haven 
Apartments, 2611 W. 2nd Street, Brooklyn, New York. 
During my employment under no circumstances did I ever 
discriminate, nor was I ever told to discriminate by 
any superior of Trump Management against any person 
regardless of race, color or creed the rental 

of an apartment. 
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